
 
 

 

 To: All Members of the Council 
  

 
 

Town House, 
ABERDEEN, 11 December 2012 

 
 

COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 The Members of the COUNCIL are requested to meet in Council Chamber - Town 
House on WEDNESDAY, 19 DECEMBER 2012 at 10.30am. 
 
 
  

 
 

JANE G. MACEACHRAN 
HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

 
 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

1 Admission of Burgesses   
 

2 Members are requested to resolve that any exempt business on this agenda be 
considered with the press and public excluded   
 

3 Requests for Deputations   
 

 MINUTES OF COUNCIL 
 

4(a) Minute of Meeting of Council of 10 October 2012 - for approval (circulated 
separately)   
 

4(b) Minute of Meeting of Urgent Business Committee of 29 November 2012 - for 
approval  (Pages 1 - 2) 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 MINUTES OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

5(a) Pamphlet of Minutes - for information (circulated separately)   
 

 BUSINESS STATEMENT, MOTIONS LIST AND OTHER MINUTES 
 

6(a) Business Statement  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 

6(b) Motions List  (Pages 9 - 10) 
 

 REFERRALS FROM COMMITTEES 
 

7(a) Third Don Crossing - Referred by Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 
Committee of 6 December 2012  (Pages 11 - 12) 
 

 GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

8(a) Appointments - Report by Chief Executive  (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

8(b) Treasury Management - Mid Year Review - Report by Director of Corporate 
Governance - Referred by Finance and Resources Committee of 4 October 2012  
(Pages 17 - 22) 
 

8(c) Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan - Referred by Strategic 
Development Planning Authority of 9 November 2012  (Pages 23 - 270) 
 

8(d) Annual Audited Accounts 2011/12 - Referred by Audit and Risk Committee of 27 
November 2012  (Pages 271 - 306) 

  (i) External Auditor's Annual Report on the 2011/12 Audit 
(ii) Annual Audited Accounts 2011/12 (circulated previously) 

 
8(e) Appointment of Members to the Older People's Advisory Group - Referred by 

Corporate Policy and Performance Committee of 29 November 2012  (Pages 307 - 
310) 
 

8(f) Draft Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Housing Capital Budget 2013/14 to 
2015/16 - Joint report by Director of Corporate Governance and Director of 
Housing and Environment - Referred simpliciter by Finance and Resources 
Committee of 6 December 2012  (Pages 311 - 350) 
 

8(g) Strategic Police Priorities - Report by Chief Executive  (Pages 351 - 360) 
 



 
 
 

 MOTIONS 
 

9(a) Councillor Malone   
  "In view of the recent decision to reduce the speed limit from the Kingswells 

roundabout to Blacktop from 60mph to 40mph, that officers be instructed to 
report on the implications of this for the neighbouring rural roads network 
including Countesswells Road, Kirk Brae and Baillieswells Road, and on the 
need to ensure consistency of speed limits in the area, instruct the Director of 
Corporate Governance and Head of Finance to identify an appropriate budget 
from which to fund any works which officers may propose." 
 

9(b) Councillor Greig   
  "That this Council: 

(1) identifies how city centre safety can be improved for a period of 
approximately the next 5 years through a series of actions agreed through 
community planning in partnership with the BID, Police, Fire, NHS, Unight 
and other relevant organisations with community safety responsibilities; 

(2) agrees to work towards Purple Flag accreditation; and 
(3) reports back to Council at appropriate times with a fuller progress report 

by 1 April 2013." 
 

9(c) Councillor Yuill   
  "That this Council agrees to amend Standing Order 3(4)(b) as follows: 

  
"A special meeting of the Council called by requisition of members in terms of 
Standing Order 4(2) shall, if required, be held on any day, including any day 
referred to in Standing Order 3(4)(a)(i) or 3(4)(a)(iii). The Lord Provost shall also 
have the power, in his/her sole discretion and where special circumstances so 
require, to instruct that a meeting of the Council be held on any date 
whatsoever." 
  
and that Standing Order 4(2) be amended as follows: 
  
"A special meeting of the Council may be called at any time by the Lord Provost 
or if required by at least a quarter of the members of the Council and in the latter 
case shall be held within fourteen clear days of receipt of the requisition by the 
Head of Democratic Services. For the avoidance of doubt the calculation of one 
quarter in these Standing Orders shall be rounded down if it results in a figure 
ending in less than point 5, and rounded up if the figure is point 5 or above. In 
the case of a meeting called in terms of this Standing Order the notice required 
to be published in terms of Standing Order 6 shall have attached the letter 
signed by the members requisitioning the meeting and shall specify the business 
proposed to be transacted at the meeting. For the further avoidance of doubt 
special meetings of the Council may not be held on a Saturday or Sunday or on 
public holidays observed by the staff employed in the Town House." 
 
 



 
 
 

9(d) Councillor Yuill   
  “That this Council agrees to establish a Public Petitions Committee to consider 

petitions presented to the Council by citizens of Aberdeen and instructs officers 
to prepare a report on this." 
 

9(e) Councillors MacGregor and Samarai   
  "Council agrees to establish a working group consisting of relevant officers, local 

members, community representatives and relevant partner organisations to 
develop and implement proposals for a community garden in Bucksburn, utilising 
the land adjacent to the Cloverleaf Hotel which was handed over as part of the 
3Rs development and sourcing appropriate external funding to enable the 
delivery of the project." 
 

9(f) Councillors Crockett, Allan, Boulton, Carle, Cooney, Donnelly, Lesley Dunbar, 
Finlayson, Forsyth, Graham, Grant, Len Ironside CBE, Laing, Lawrence, Malik, 
Jean Morrison MBE, Nathan Morrison, Reynolds, Taylor, Thomson and Young   

  "This Council acknowledges that the people of Scotland will decide our nation's 
future in a referendum. This Council agrees that Aberdeen as the power house 
of Scotland's economy, as Europe's oil capital, is more prosperous stronger and 
better together as part of the United Kingdom. This Council further agrees that 
the people of Aberdeen benefit greatly as part of the United Kingdom and that 
the United Kingdom is richer with Scotland as a partner." 
 

9(g) Councillor Boulton   
  “That the Council agrees to write to Keith Brown the Transport Minister 

requesting a meeting with him and Council Leaders on bringing forward as a 
matter of urgency the Haudagain improvement. Mr Brown will surely appreciate 
the problems faced by commuters on a daily basis having been delayed at the 
Haudagain himself and realise that the people of Aberdeen should not have to 
wait until 2019. Immediate improvements would allow the long awaited 
regeneration of Middlefield to begin." 
 

9(h) Councillor Greig   
  “That the Council recognises and appreciates the key role that micro, small and 

medium sized local businesses, including shops and single traders in Aberdeen, 
as economic generators which play a major part in determining and enhancing 
the quality of life across the city. 
 
That this Council undertakes a broad-ranging review to identify specific ways 
that the Council and its partners can work together to support and foster micro, 
small and medium sized business activity. 
 
To this end, that the Council carries out a consultation exercise to enable micro, 
small and medium sized business people to have their say in identifying specific 
suggestions and proposals; and that a report is produced with recommendations 
for action.” 
 



 
 
 

9(i) Councillor Kiddie   
  “Aberdeen City Council agrees that in view of the current problems in the city 

affecting the delivery of home care services a summit meeting should be 
organised of all interested parties to determine a way forward to resolve the 
current difficulties.” 
 
 

 BUSINESS THE COUNCIL MAY WISH TO CONSIDER IN PRIVATE 
 

10(a) Pinewood and Hazledene Development Sites - Report by Director of Enterprise, 
Planning and Infrastructure - Referred by Finance and Resources Committee of 6 
December 2012  (Pages 361 - 386) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Martyn 
Orchard, tel. (52)3097 or email morchard@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

URGENT BUSINESS COMMITTEE 
 

ABERDEEN, 29 November, 2012 - Minute of Meeting of the URGENT 
BUSINESS COMMITTEE.  Present:- Councillor Crockett, Convener; and 
Councillors Boulton, Cooney, Dickson, Jackie Dunbar, Forsyth, Kiddie 
(substituting for Councillor McCaig), Laing, Malone, May, Noble, Taylor and 
Young.  

 
The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be found at:-    
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=334&MId=2746&Ver=4 
 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 
 
Councillors Boulton and Kiddie declared interests in relation to the 
items of business on the agenda by virtue of their appointment by the 
Council to the Board of Aberdeen Performing Arts. Both Councillors 
chose to remain in the meeting as Aberdeen Performing Arts was a 
body being a company as set out in paragraph 5.18(2)(i)(d) of the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct.  

 
 
DETERMINATION OF URGENT BUSINESS 
 
1. In terms of Standing Order 28(3)(vi), and in accordance with Section 
50(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, the Committee was 
informed that it had to determine (1) that the items on the agenda were of an urgent 
nature; and (2) that the Committee required to consider the items and take 
decisions thereon.    
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to agree that the report on the Aberdeen Art Gallery Redevelopment Programme 
was of an urgent nature and required to be considered this day, and a decision 
taken thereon. 
 
Councillor Jackie Dunbar moved as a procedural motion, seconded by Councillor 
Kiddie:- 

That the report on the redevelopment of the Music Hall was not of an urgent 
nature and should instead be referred to the Council meeting on 19 
December 2012 for determination.  

 
On a division, there voted:-   for the procedural motion  (5) - Councillors Dickson, 
Jackie Dunbar, Kiddie, May and Noble;  against the procedural motion  (8) - 
Convener; and Councillors Boulton, Cooney, Forsyth, Laing, Malone, Taylor and 
Young.  
 
The Committee further resolved:- 
to reject the procedural motion and thereby agree that the item was of an urgent 
nature and required to be considered this day, and a decision taken thereon.  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4(b)

Page 1



 2

ABERDEEN ART GALLERY REDEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME - ECS/12/062 
 
2. The Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director of Education, 
Culture and Sport which advised of progress with the submission of an application 
to the Heritage Lottery Fund for the redevelopment of Aberdeen Art Gallery and 
provided an update on related work, in particular the Museums Collection Centre. 
 
The Committee had earlier received a short presentation from the Acting Director of 
Education, Culture and Sport.  
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee -  
(a) note the progress to date on the Art Gallery redevelopment and Museums 

Collection Centre; 
(b) agree that the Council submit an application to the Heritage Lottery Fund’s 

Heritage Grant programme for £10million for the redevelopment of the Art 
Gallery prior to this year’s deadline of 30 November 2012; 

(c) agree that a sum of £3million be set aside from the Council’s Non Housing 
Capital Programme in 2013/14; 

(d) agree that a sum of £10million be set aside from the Council’s Non Housing 
Capital Programme for the financial period 2013-2017; and 

(e) agree that the Council provide a guarantee to meet any shortfall in the level 
of fundraising up to £10million. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations.  
 
 
MUSIC HALL REDEVELOPMENT - ECS/12/061 
 
3. The Committee had before it a report by the Acting Director of Education, 
Culture and Sport which provided an update on recent developments regarding the 
Music Hall and sought agreement for Aberdeen Performing Arts to conduct a 
design competition to determine the scope of any future redevelopment.  
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee confirm the Council’s support for and agreement to Aberdeen 
Performing Arts carrying out a design competition in order to determine the full 
potential of any redevelopment of the Music Hall.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to request officers to provide members with a copy of the detailed financial 

model and business plan for the Music Hall as instructed by the Education, 
Culture and Sport Committee of 20 January 2011 (Article 15 of the minute 
refers); and 

(ii) to approve the recommendations 
- BARNEY CROCKETT, Convener. 
 
 
 

Page 2



CO
UN

CI
L 

 
BU

SIN
ES

S S
TA

TE
ME

NT
 

 
19

 D
EC

EM
BE

R 
20

12
 

 Ple
as

e n
ote

 th
at 

thi
s s

tat
em

en
t c

on
tai

ns
 a 

no
te 

of 
ev

ery
 re

po
rt 

wh
ich

 ha
s b

ee
n i

ns
tru

cte
d f

or
 su

bm
iss

ion
 to

 C
ou

nc
il. 

Al
l o

the
r a

cti
on

s 
wh

ich
 ha

ve
 be

en
 in

str
uc

ted
 by

 th
e C

ou
nc

il a
re 

no
t in

clu
de

d, 
as

 th
ey

 ar
e d

ee
me

d t
o b

e o
pe

rat
ion

al 
ma

tte
rs 

aft
er 

the
 po

int
 of

 de
cis

ion
.  

  No
. 

Mi
nu

te 
Re

fer
en

ce
 

  C
ou

nc
il/C

om
mi

tte
e D

ec
isi

on
 

 Up
da

te 
 

Le
ad

 
Of

fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

Re
po

rt 
Ex

pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 
1. 

Co
un

cil 
16

.12
.09

 
Ar

tic
le 

19
 

 

50
m 

Sw
im

mi
ng

 Po
ol 

 Th
e 

Co
un

cil 
ap

pro
ve

d 
a 

nu
mb

er 
of 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
reg

ard
ing

 d
es

ign
 

an
d 

pro
cu

rem
en

t i
ss

ue
s 

rel
ati

ng
 to

 
the

 5
0m

 P
oo

l. 
Th

e 
Co

un
cil 

ag
ree

d 
tha

t t
he

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

 p
roj

ec
t 

be
 tr

an
sfe

rre
d 

to 
Ab

erd
ee

n 
Sp

ort
s 

Vil
lag

e s
ub

jec
t to

 (a
) t

he
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f 

fur
the

r l
eg

al 
an

d 
fin

an
cia

l a
dv

ice
 in

 
res

pe
ct 

of 
an

y 
po

ten
tia

l r
isk

s 
to 

the
 

Co
un

cil;
 a

nd
 (b

) t
he

 o
the

r p
art

ne
rs 

co
nfi

rm
ing

 th
eir

 fi
na

nc
ial 

co
ntr

ibu
tio

n 
to 

the
 pr

oje
ct.

 
 Th

e 
Co

un
cil 

req
ue

ste
d 

tha
t 

Ab
erd

ee
n S

po
rts

 V
illa

ge
 pr

ov
ide

 th
e 

Co
un

cil 
wit

h 
a 

rep
ort

 w
ith

in 
fou

r 
mo

nth
s o

n h
ow

 th
ey

 pl
an

ne
d t

o d
riv

e 
the

 p
roj

ec
t 

for
wa

rd.
 T

his
 i

s 
sti

ll 
aw

ait
ed

. 
  

Ple
as

e 
se

e 
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
for

 f
ull

 
inf

or
ma

tio
n. 

 Th
e E

du
ca

tio
n, 

Cu
ltu

re 
an

d S
po

rt 
Co

mm
itte

e 
of 

2 
Ju

ne
 

20
11

 
ap

pro
ve

d 
the

 
fol

low
ing

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s:-

  
 (d

) 
to 

ap
pro

ve
 fu

nd
ing

 of
 up

 to
 

£8
 m

illio
n 

an
d 

thi
s 

be
 m

et 
fro

m 
the

 
No

n-H
ou

sin
g 

Ca
pit

al 
Pr

og
ram

me
 fo

r t
he

 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

 o
f a

 1
0 

lan
e 

po
ol 

su
bje

ct 
to:

 
 (ii

i) 
off

ice
rs 

rea
ch

ing
 a

n 
ag

ree
me

nt 
wit

h 
pa

rtn
ers

 in
 re

ga
rd 

to 
the

 
us

e 
of 

the
 

fac
iliti

es
 i

n 
lig

ht 
of 

the
 

po
ten

tia
l 

mi
gra

tio
n 

of 
sw

im
mi

ng
 c

lub
s 

to 
the

 ne
w 

fac
ility

;  a
nd

 
(iv

) 
off

ice
rs 

rea
ch

ing
 

ag
ree

me
nt 

on
 

a 
Tra

ns
fer

 A
gre

em
en

t 
Do

cu
me

nt,
 w

hic
h w

ill 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 an

d 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

                      

24
.03

.10
 

                         

                          

Agenda Item 6(a)

Page 3



 
2

No
. 

Mi
nu

te 
Re

fer
en

ce
 

  C
ou

nc
il/C

om
mi

tte
e D

ec
isi

on
 

 Up
da

te 
 

Le
ad

 
Of

fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

Re
po

rt 
Ex

pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 
for

ma
lise

 
the

 
tra

ns
fer

 
of 

res
po

ns
ibi

lity
 fo

r t
he

 
de

live
ry 

an
d 

op
era

tio
na

l 
ph

as
es

 
of 

the
 50

 m
etr

e p
oo

l 
pro

jec
t 

to 
AS

V 
Lim

ite
d. 

 
(f) 

to 
ins

tru
ct 

off
ice

rs 
to 

rep
ort

 
ba

ck
 

to 
the

 
ne

xt 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 m

ee
tin

g 
of 

the
 

Co
un

cil 
in 

reg
ard

 t
o 

the
 

pro
gre

ss
 

on
 

the
 

ne
go

tia
tio

ns
 o

n 
ite

ms
 d

(iii
) 

an
d (

iv)
 ab

ov
e. 

 A 
pro

gre
ss

 re
po

rt 
wa

s c
on

sid
ere

d 
by

 C
ou

nc
il 

on
 6

 O
cto

be
r 

20
11

, 
wh

ich
 

de
alt

 
wit

h 
the

 
ab

ov
e 

ma
tte

rs,
 a

s 
we

ll 
as

 t
he

 l
ate

st 
po

sit
ion

 
reg

ard
ing

 
ne

go
tia

tio
ns

 
wit

h 
Ab

erd
ee

ns
hir

e 
Co

un
cil.

 
Co

un
cil 

ap
pro

ve
d 

the
 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
co

nta
ine

d 
wit

hin
 t

he
 r

ep
ort

 a
nd

 in
str

uc
ted

 
off

ice
rs 

to 
arr

an
ge

 a
 m

ee
tin

g 
of 

the
 5

0m
 P

oo
l 

Pr
oje

ct 
W

ork
ing

 
Gr

ou
p a

s s
oo

n a
s p

os
sib

le.
  

 Th
e 

req
ue

st 
for

 a
 r

ep
ort

 f
rom

 
Ab

erd
ee

n 
Sp

ort
s 

Vil
lag

e 
on

 h
ow

 
the

y 
pla

nn
ed

 to
 d

riv
e 

the
 p

roj
ec

t 
for

wa
rd 

(as
 r

efe
rre

d 
to 

in 
the

 
Co

un
cil 

De
cis

ion
 c

olu
mn

 o
n 

the
 

pre
vio

us
 

pa
ge

) 
ha

s 
be

en
 

       

                  

                  

Page 4



 
3

No
. 

Mi
nu

te 
Re

fer
en

ce
 

  C
ou

nc
il/C

om
mi

tte
e D

ec
isi

on
 

 Up
da

te 
 

Le
ad

 
Of

fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

Re
po

rt 
Ex

pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 
su

pe
rse

de
d 

by
 e

ve
nts

 g
ive

n 
tha

t 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

 w
ork

s h
av

e b
eg

un
.  

 It w
as

 re
co

mm
en

de
d t

o C
ou

nc
il i

n 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

11
 th

at 
thi

s i
tem

 b
e 

rem
ov

ed
 

fro
m 

the
 

Bu
sin

es
s 

Sta
tem

en
t i

n 
vie

w 
of 

the
 a

bo
ve

 
inf

orm
ati

on
; 

ho
we

ve
r 

Co
un

cil 
ag

ree
d 

to 
ret

ain
 th

e 
ite

m 
in 

ord
er 

tha
t 

me
mb

ers
 

co
uld

 
be

 
ke

pt 
inf

orm
ed

 
of 

dis
cu

ss
ion

s 
wit

h 
Ab

erd
ee

ns
hir

e 
Co

un
cil 

reg
ard

ing
 

the
ir f

un
din

g c
on

trib
uti

on
.  

 At 
the

 C
ou

nc
il m

ee
tin

g o
n 

4 
Ap

ril 
20

12
, t

he
 C

ou
nc

il r
eq

ue
ste

d 
tha

t 
an

 u
pd

ate
 b

e 
pro

vid
ed

 o
n 

the
 

im
pa

ct 
if 

Ab
erd

ee
ns

hir
e 

Co
un

cil 
did

 n
ot 

pro
ce

ed
 w

ith
 a

 fi
na

nc
ial

 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t

o t
he

 50
m 

Po
ol.

 
  

2. 
Co

un
cil 

 
09

.02
.12

 
Ar

tic
le 

4 
Co

mm
on

 G
oo

d B
ud

ge
t - 

20
12

/13
 

 Th
e 

Co
un

cil,
 

in 
ap

pro
vin

g 
the

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s 

co
nta

ine
d 

wit
hin

 
the

 
rep

ort
 

wit
h 

so
me

 
mi

no
r 

am
en

dm
en

ts,
 ag

ree
d, 

am
on

gs
t o

the
r 

thi
ng

s, 
to:

- 
(i) 

ins
tru

ct 
the

 H
ea

d 
of 

Fin
an

ce
 

to 
un

de
rta

ke
 a

 re
vie

w 
of 

the
 

lev
el 

of 
ca

sh
 b

ala
nc

es
 th

at 
sh

ou
ld 

be
 re

tai
ne

d f
or 

a l
on

g 
ter

m 
fin

an
cia

l s
tra

teg
y, 

an
d 

rep
ort

 b
ac

k 
to 

Co
un

cil 
at 

an
 

A 
rep

ort
 o

n 
the

 C
om

mo
n 

Go
od

 
Bu

dg
et 

wa
s 

co
ns

ide
red

 b
y 

the
 

Fin
an

ce
 

an
d 

Re
so

urc
es

 
Co

mm
itte

e o
n 6

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

2. 
  

He
ad

 of
 

Fin
an

ce
 

19
.12

.12
 

 

Page 5



 
4

No
. 

Mi
nu

te 
Re

fer
en

ce
 

  C
ou

nc
il/C

om
mi

tte
e D

ec
isi

on
 

 Up
da

te 
 

Le
ad

 
Of

fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

Re
po

rt 
Ex

pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 tim

e; 
an

d 
(ii)

 
ins

tru
ct 

the
 H

ea
d 

of 
Fin

an
ce

 
to 

rep
ort

 ba
ck

 to
 C

ou
nc

il o
n a

 
pro

po
se

d 
5 

ye
ar 

bu
dg

et,
 

tak
ing

 a
cc

ou
nt 

of 
the

 c
as

h 
ba

lan
ce

 
str

ate
gy

 
to 

be
 

ad
op

ted
. 

  
3. 

Co
un

cil 
13

.06
.12

 
Ar

tic
le 

13
 

Dr
aft

 
St

ate
me

nt 
of 

Ac
co

un
ts 

20
11

/12
 

 Th
e 

Co
un

cil 
no

ted
 th

at 
the

 a
ud

ite
d 

Sta
tem

en
t 

of 
Ac

co
un

ts 
wo

uld
 b

e 
pre

se
nte

d 
to 

the
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

Ris
k 

Co
mm

itte
e, 

alo
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

ex
ter

na
l 

au
dit

or’
s 

rep
ort

 to
 m

em
be

rs 
in 

the
 

au
tum

n, 
an

d 
wo

uld
 co

me
 b

ac
k 

to 
a 

Co
un

cil 
me

eti
ng

 th
ere

aft
er.

 
  

Th
is 

ite
m 

is 
on

 th
e a

ge
nd

a. 
He

ad
 of

 
Fin

an
ce

 
10

.10
.12

 
19

.12
.12

 

4. 
Au

dit
 an

d R
isk

 
25

.09
.12

 
Ar

tic
le 

11
 

  

Ro
les

 
an

d 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

ies
: 

Is 
Ab

erd
ee

n 
Ci

ty 
Co

un
cil

 G
ett

ing
 it

 
Ri

gh
t? 

 Th
e 

Au
dit

 
an

d 
Ris

k 
Co

mm
itte

e 
ins

tru
cte

d 
tha

t a
 re

po
rt 

be
 su

bm
itte

d 
to 

Co
un

cil 
co

ve
rin

g 
the

 f
ollo

win
g 

ite
ms

:- 
 

• 
rev

iew
 a

nd
 a

gre
e 

the
 m

os
t 

eff
ec

tive
 st

ruc
tur

e o
f re

po
rts

 to
 

co
mm

itte
es

; 
• 

rev
iew

 
the

 
co

mm
itte

e 
str

uc
tur

e, 
pa

rtic
ula

rly
 

to 

 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Go
ve

rna
nc

e 
06

.03
.13

 
 

Page 6



 
5

No
. 

Mi
nu

te 
Re

fer
en

ce
 

  C
ou

nc
il/C

om
mi

tte
e D

ec
isi

on
 

 Up
da

te 
 

Le
ad

 
Of

fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

Re
po

rt 
Ex

pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 
bro

ad
en

 sc
rut

iny
; a

nd
 

• 
rev

iew
 

the
 

sc
he

me
 

of 
de

leg
ati

on
 

an
d 

sta
nd

ing
 

ord
ers

. 
  

5. 
Co

un
cil 

10
.10

.12
 

Ar
tic

le 
tbc

 
 

Cr
em

ato
riu

m 
Bu

s S
erv

ice
 

 Th
e C

ou
nc

il (
1) 

ag
ree

d i
n p

rin
cip

le 
to 

rei
ns

tat
e t

he
 cr

em
ato

riu
m 

bu
s s

erv
ice

 
as

 so
on

 as
 fe

as
ible

; (2
) in

str
uc

ted
 th

e 
Ho

us
ing

 an
d 

En
vir

on
me

nt 
Se

rvi
ce

 to
 

ide
nti

fy 
po

ten
tia

l s
ou

rce
s 

of 
fun

din
g 

for
 th

os
e 

ele
me

nts
 o

f a
 cr

em
ato

riu
m 

bu
s s

erv
ice

 th
at 

ca
nn

ot 
be

 co
ve

red
 by

 
ex

ist
ing

 re
so

urc
es

; a
nd

 (3
) in

str
uc

ted
 

off
ice

rs 
to 

rep
ort

 b
ac

k t
o 

Co
un

cil,
 o

r 
the

 
Ho

us
ing

 
an

d 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

Co
mm

itte
e, 

on
 t

he
 i

mp
lem

en
tat

ion
 

da
te.

 
  

Th
is 

rep
ort

 w
ill b

e s
ub

mi
tte

d t
o t

he
 

Ho
us

ing
 

an
d 

En
vir

on
me

nt 
Co

mm
itte

e o
n 1

5 J
an

ua
ry 

20
12

.  
He

ad
 of

 
Pla

nn
ing

 an
d 

Su
sta

ina
ble

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

  

06
.03

.13
 

Ho
us

ing
 an

d 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

Co
mm

itte
e 

15
.01

.12
 

6. 
Co

un
cil 

10
.10

.12
 

Ar
tic

le 
tbc

 
 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

We
ste

rn
 

Pe
rip

he
ral

 
Ro

ute
 

 Th
e 

Co
un

cil 
ins

tru
cte

d 
off

ice
rs 

to 
co

nti
nu

e 
to 

ne
go

tia
te 

wit
h 

Tra
ns

po
rt 

Sc
otl

an
d 

on
 

the
 

fut
ure

 
fun

din
g 

me
ch

an
ism

 a
nd

 re
po

rt 
ba

ck
 in

 d
ue

 
co

urs
e o

n t
his

 fu
nd

ing
 pa

ck
ag

e. 
  

 
He

ad
 of

 
Fin

an
ce

 
06

.03
.13

 
 

  

Page 7



APPENDIX 
ITEM 1 - 50m SWIMMING POOL 
 
At its meeting of 27 April 2011, the Council agreed to delegate authority to the Education, Culture and 
Sport Committee to make all necessary decisions at its meeting on 2 June 2011, in order to keep the 
project on track, and that officers report accordingly.  
 
The Education, Culture and Sport Committee of 2 June 2011 approved the recommendations contained 
within the report, as outlined below, and added an additional recommendation at d(v) “subject to officers 
receiving clarification from Aberdeenshire Council that their revenue funding contribution remains intact”. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee - 
(a) note the content of the report; 
(b) note that the development cost, based on the most economically advantageous tender for the 10 

lane option is £21,918,104 and for the 8 lane option is £21,638,104 compared to the previously 
reported estimated costs of £23,347,259 for the 10 lane option and £22,726,794 for the 8 lane 
option; 

(c) note that the total funding available from the other partners as detailed in section 5.3 of the report 
has increased from the previous total of £10 million reported to Council on 15 December 2010 to 
£14 million.  This being the result of the University of Aberdeen increasing their contribution from 
£5 million to £8 million and Aberdeen Sports Village Ltd. (ASV Limited) agreeing to underwrite 
the shortfall of £1 million for the 10 lane option to ensure that the funding package can be 
secured.  The remaining balance of external funding coming from a £5 million grant from 
sportscotland; 

(d) agree to approve funding of up to £8 million and this be met from the Non-Housing Capital 
Programme for the construction of a 10 lane pool subject to: 
(i) the Corporate Asset Group, on behalf of the Corporate Management Team, managing the 

overall spend of the Non-Housing Capital Programme in 2011/12 to stay within approved 
spending limits and to take into account the future capital demand for this project in the 
budget process for 2012/13 and 2013/14; 

(ii) the revenue support for the ongoing costs of the project being capped at £250,000 per 
annum at 2010/11 prices with a review of future indexation once the facility is nearing 
completion of the construction phase; 

(iii) officers reaching an agreement with partners in regard to the use of the facilities in light of 
the potential migration of swimming clubs to the new facility;  and 

(iv) officers reaching agreement on a Transfer Agreement Document, which will formalise the 
transfer of responsibility for the delivery and operational phases of the 50 metre pool 
project to ASV Limited. 

(e) note that the most economically advantageous tender for the 50 metre pool project was 
submitted by Contractor A, and subject to the Committee agreeing to approve funding on the 
basis of recommendation (d), to instruct officers to arrange, in conjunction with Aberdeen 
University and Aberdeen Sports Village Ltd., to appoint Contractor A as the Principal Contractor, 
based on their tender figure for the 10 lane option which results in an overall development cost of 
£21,918,104; 

(f) to instruct officers to report back to the next appropriate meeting of the Council in regard 
to the progress on the negotiations on items d(iii) and (iv) above;  and 

(g) to note that the provision of a 50 metre pool has been included within the scope of the Water 
Management Plan currently underway, and will also be included within the report to Committee, 
due on 15 September 2011.  The Committee should be aware that historically there has been a 
recognition that the city has a greater number of swimming pools for the size of population than 
elsewhere.  sportscotland is providing support to model the existing water provision and future 
needs.  The recommendations will also take full account of the reducing revenue and capital 
budgets and the costs associated with the 50 metre pool and are likely to include a reduction in 
the number and range of facilities. 

 
At its meeting on 17 August 2011, the Council agreed that the above information be added back in to 
the business statement, and noted that a report would be submitted to the meeting on 6 October 2011.  

Page 8



CO
UN

CI
L  

 

MO
TIO

NS
 LI

ST
 

 

19
 D
EC

EM
BE

R 
20
12
 

 
Ple

as
e n

ote
 th

at 
thi

s s
tat

em
en

t t
rac

ks
 al

l N
oti

ce
s o

f M
oti

on
 (r
ele

va
nt 

to 
Co

un
cil

) s
ub

mi
tte

d b
y m

em
be

rs,
 un

til 
the

 po
int

 of
 di

sp
os

al.
 Th

e 
mo

tio
n w

ill 
rem

ain
 on

 th
e s

tat
em

en
t u

nti
l th

e C
ou

nc
il h

as
 ag

ree
d t

o r
em

ov
e i

t.  
 No

. 
Mo

tio
n 

Da
te 
of 

Co
un
cil
 

Me
eti
ng
 

De
cis

ion
 of
 C
ou
nc
il 

Ac
tio
n t
ak
en
 / 
Pr
op
os
ed
 F
utu

re 
Ac
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
sib

le 
He
ad
(s)
  o
f 

Se
rvi
ce
 

Du
e D

ate
 

Is au
tho

rit
y 

so
ug
ht 
to 

rem
ov
e 

mo
tio
n 

fro
m 
lis
t? 

1. 
 

Mo
tio

n b
y C

ou
nc

illo
r 

Mc
Ca

ig 
 “In

 r
ec

og
nit

ion
 o

f 
his

 
su

cc
es

sfu
l 

foo
tba

ll 
ca

ree
r, 

inc
lud

ing
 

his
 

po
sit

ion
 a

s t
he

 S
co

tla
nd

 
na

tio
na

l t
ea

m’
s 

joi
nt 

top
 

go
al 

sc
ore

r 
wit

h 
thi

rty
 

go
als

 a
nd

 a
s 

the
 o

nly
 

Sc
ott

ish
 

foo
tba

lle
r 

to 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 
cro

wn
ed

 
Eu

rop
ea

n 
Fo

otb
all

er 
of 

the
 Y
ea

r, C
ou

nc
il a

gre
es

 
to 

be
sto

w 
the

 F
ree

do
m 

of 
the

 C
ity

 o
n 

De
nis

 
La

w.
” 

 

04
.04

.12
 

To
 in

str
uc

t o
ffic

ers
 to

 re
po

rt 
to 

a 
fut

ure
 m

ee
tin

g 
on

 th
e 

pro
ce

ss
 

of 
no

mi
na

tin
g 

ca
nd

ida
tes

 fo
r F

ree
do

m 
of 

the
 

Cit
y, 

de
tai

lin
g 

the
 

rel
ev

an
t 

im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

me
rits

 of
 th

is 
no

mi
na

tio
n a

s 
we

ll 
as

 
the

 
oth

er 
tw

o 
no

mi
na

tio
ns

 su
bm

itte
d. 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il, 
on

 10
 O

cto
be

r 
20

12
, a

gre
ed

 to
 e
sta

bli
sh

 a
 

Fre
ed

om
 

of 
the

 
Cit

y 
W
ork

ing
 G

rou
p 

ch
air

ed
 b

y 
the

 
Lo

rd 
Pr

ov
os

t 
an

d 
co

mp
ris

ing
 

the
 

Gr
ou

p 
Le

ad
ers

 to
 (1

) c
on

sid
er 

in 
fur

the
r 

de
tai

l e
ac

h 
of 

the
 

thr
ee

 
pro

po
sa

ls 
for

 
the

 
fre

ed
om

 o
f t

he
 c

ity
 a

nd
 to

 
rec

om
me

nd
 t

o 
Co

un
cil 

a 
de

cis
ion

 o
n 

ea
ch

; a
nd

 (2
) 

co
ns

ide
r 

the
 

cu
rre

nt 
pro

ce
ss

 fo
r n

om
ina

tio
n 

an
d 

co
nfe

rra
l o

f t
he

 fr
ee

do
m 

of 
the

 c
ity

 a
nd

 to
 re

co
mm

en
d 

to 
the

 C
ou

nc
il a

ny
 ch

an
ge

s 
it 

wo
uld

 
wis

h 
to 

se
e 

ad
op

ted
. 

 

He
ad

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
, O

ffic
e 

of 
Ch

ief
 

Ex
ec

uti
ve

 

06
.03

.13
 

No
 

2. 
 

Mo
tio

n b
y F

orm
er 

Co
un

cill
or 

Hu
nte

r 
 “Th

at 
Co

un
cil 

co
nfe

rs 
the

 F
ree

do
m 

of 
the

 C
ity

 
up

on
 P

au
l L

aw
rie

 fo
r h

is 
se

rvi
ce

s 
to 

go
lf 

an
d 

to 

04
.04

.12
 

To
 in

str
uc

t o
ffic

ers
 to

 re
po

rt 
to 

a 
fut

ure
 m

ee
tin

g 
on

 th
e 

pro
ce

ss
 

of 
no

mi
na

tin
g 

ca
nd

ida
tes

 fo
r F

ree
do

m 
of 

the
 

Cit
y, 

de
tai

lin
g 

the
 

rel
ev

an
t 

im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

me
rits

 of
 th

is 
no

mi
na

tio
n a

s 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il, 
on

 10
 O

cto
be

r 
20

12
, a

gre
ed

 to
 e
sta

bli
sh

 a
 

Fre
ed

om
 

of 
the

 
Cit

y 
W
ork

ing
 G

rou
p 

ch
air

ed
 b

y 
the

 
Lo

rd 
Pr

ov
os

t 
an

d 
co

mp
ris

ing
 

the
 

Gr
ou

p 
Le

ad
ers

 to
 (1

) c
on

sid
er 

in 

He
ad

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
, O

ffic
e 

of 
Ch

ief
 

Ex
ec

uti
ve

 

06
.03

.13
 

No
 

Agenda Item 6(b)

Page 9



 
2

No
. 

Mo
tio
n 

Da
te 
of 

Co
un
cil
 

Me
eti
ng
 

De
cis

ion
 of
 C
ou
nc
il 

Ac
tio
n t
ak
en
 / 
Pr
op
os
ed
 F
utu

re 
Ac
tio
n 

Re
sp
on
sib

le 
He
ad
(s)
  o
f 

Se
rvi
ce
 

Du
e D

ate
 

Is au
tho

rit
y 

so
ug
ht 
to 

rem
ov
e 

mo
tio
n 

fro
m 
lis
t? 

the
 

cit
y 

an
d 

for
 

his
 

ch
ari

tab
le 

wo
rk.

” 
we

ll 
as

 
the

 
oth

er 
tw

o 
no

mi
na

tio
ns

 su
bm

itte
d. 

 
fur

the
r 

de
tai

l e
ac

h 
of 

the
 

thr
ee

 
pro

po
sa

ls 
for

 
the

 
fre

ed
om

 o
f t

he
 c

ity
 a

nd
 to

 
rec

om
me

nd
 t

o 
Co

un
cil 

a 
de

cis
ion

 o
n 

ea
ch

; a
nd

 (2
) 

co
ns

ide
r 

the
 

cu
rre

nt 
pro

ce
ss

 fo
r n

om
ina

tio
n 

an
d 

co
nfe

rra
l o

f t
he

 fr
ee

do
m 

of 
the

 c
ity

 a
nd

 to
 re

co
mm

en
d 

to 
the

 C
ou

nc
il a

ny
 ch

an
ge

s 
it 

wo
uld

 
wis

h 
to 

se
e 

ad
op

ted
. 

 
3. 

 
Mo

tio
n 

by
 F

orm
er 

Lo
rd 

Pr
ov

os
t P

ete
r S

tep
he

n 
 “Th

at 
the

 
Co

un
cil 

co
nfe

rs 
the

 F
ree

do
m 

of 
the

 C
ity

 o
n 

Pr
ofe

ss
or 

Pa
ul 

Me
alo

r 
of 

the
 

Un
ive

rsi
ty 

of 
Ab

erd
ee

n. 
Pr

ofe
ss

or 
Me

alo
r i

s w
ell

 
kn

ow
n h

av
ing

 w
ritt

en
 th

e 
mu

sic
 fo

r th
e h

it s
on

g b
y 

the
 M

ilita
ry 

W
ive

s w
hic

h 
top

pe
d 

the
 m

us
ic 

ch
art

s 
in 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
11

 - 
thi

s 
ha

s 
bro

ug
ht 

hu
ge

 c
red

it 
to 

the
 

cit
y 

an
d 

the
 

un
ive

rsi
ty,

 fo
cu

ss
ing

 o
n 

the
 m

ilita
ry 

ba
ck

gro
un

d 
wh

ich
 

the
 

UK
 

are
 

cu
rre

ntl
y i

nv
olv

ed
 in

.” 

04
.04

.12
 

To
 in

str
uc

t o
ffic

ers
 to

 re
po

rt 
to 

a 
fut

ure
 m

ee
tin

g 
on

 th
e 

pro
ce

ss
 

of 
no

mi
na

tin
g 

ca
nd

ida
tes

 fo
r F

ree
do

m 
of 

the
 

Cit
y, 

de
tai

lin
g 

the
 

rel
ev

an
t 

im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 

me
rits

 of
 th

is 
no

mi
na

tio
n a

s 
we

ll 
as

 
the

 
oth

er 
tw

o 
no

mi
na

tio
ns

 su
bm

itte
d. 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il, 
on

 10
 O

cto
be

r 
20

12
, a

gre
ed

 to
 e
sta

bli
sh

 a
 

Fre
ed

om
 

of 
the

 
Cit

y 
W
ork

ing
 G

rou
p 

ch
air

ed
 b

y 
the

 
Lo

rd 
Pr

ov
os

t 
an

d 
co

mp
ris

ing
 

the
 

Gr
ou

p 
Le

ad
ers

 to
 (1

) c
on

sid
er 

in 
fur

the
r 

de
tai

l e
ac

h 
of 

the
 

thr
ee

 
pro

po
sa

ls 
for

 
the

 
fre

ed
om

 o
f t

he
 c

ity
 a

nd
 to

 
rec

om
me

nd
 t

o 
Co

un
cil 

a 
de

cis
ion

 o
n 

ea
ch

; a
nd

 (2
) 

co
ns

ide
r 

the
 

cu
rre

nt 
pro

ce
ss

 fo
r n

om
ina

tio
n 

an
d 

co
nfe

rra
l o

f t
he

 fr
ee

do
m 

of 
the

 c
ity

 a
nd

 to
 re

co
mm

en
d 

to 
the

 C
ou

nc
il a

ny
 ch

an
ge

s 
it 

wo
uld

 
wis

h 
to 

se
e 

ad
op

ted
. 

 

He
ad

 of
 

Se
rvi

ce
, O

ffic
e 

of 
Ch

ief
 

Ex
ec

uti
ve

 

06
.03

.13
 

No
 

 Page 10



 

 

 
 
 

ENTERPRISE, PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE 
 

6 DECEMBER  2012 
 
 
 
THIRD DON CROSSING 
 
2. With reference to article 1 of this minute, the Convener invited the members 
who had requisitioned the special meeting to put forward their proposal. 
 
Councillor Corral moved, seconded by Councillor Yuill:- 

Following the end of the legal challenge against the Aberdeen Western 
Peripheral Route (AWPR), the Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 
Committee agrees to renew the commitment to “lock in” the benefits of the 
AWPR by progressing with the third Don crossing on the route previously 
agreed by Council, and the dualling of the Berryden corridor as quickly as 
possible” 

 
Councillor Thomson moved as an amendment, seconded by Councillor Forsyth:- 

Council recognises its commitment to the existing policy for the third don 
crossing and recognises that the Council needs to bring forward a balanced 
budget for 2013/2014 and agrees the third Don crossing will be part of that 
process.  Council further notes the complete failure of the SNP Administration 
to include the Berryden corridor in their capital budget plan for 2011/12 and 
further notes the complete hypocrisy of the SNP who when in Administration 
with the Liberal Democrats between May 2007 and May 2012 failed to build the 
third Don crossing, failed to proceed with the Berryden corridor and failed the 
people of Aberdeen. 

 
On a division, there voted:- 
For the motion (7) – Councillors Corral, Cormie, Delaney, Jaffrey, MacGregor, 
Townson and Yuill.  For the amendment (8) – the Convener;  the Vice-Convener;  and 
Councillors Boulton, Finlayson, Forsyth, Grant, Laing and Thomson. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to adopt the amendment. 
 

In terms of Standing Order 36(3) Councillor Yuill intimated that he wished 
the matter dealt with in the preceding article to be referred to Council for 
final decision.  He was supported by Councillors Corall, Cormie, Delaney, 
Jaffrey and Townson in this respect. 

 

Agenda Item 7(a)

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Council    
 
DATE   19 December 2012     
 
LEAD OFFICER  Chief Executive     
 
TITLE OF REPORT   Appointments   
 
REPORT NUMBER:      OCE/12/030 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To bring before the Council vacancies for representation on the Boards 
of Sport Aberdeen and Oakbank School. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION  
  

That the Council agrees representatives to fill the vacancy on the Sport 
Aberdeen Board and the three vacancies on the Oakbank School 
Trust. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
As noted in the original reports on appointments to the Statutory 
Meeting of the Council on 16 May 2012, the financial implications 
associated with the subject matter of this report are negligible. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no other implications to this report. 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
At the Statutory Meeting on 16 May 2012, Council considered reports 
on the appointment of members to specific sub-committees, groups, 
Council-supported trusts and boards (CG/12/056) and on the 
appointment of representatives to outside bodies (CG/12/057).   
 
With regard to the former report, Council resolved to defer 
consideration of the appointment of members to the trusts and boards 
appended to that report for discussion amongst Group Leaders.  With 
regard to the latter report, Council resolved to agree that a meeting of 
Group Leaders be held in early course to agree the appointment of 
members to the various bodies listed in appendices appended to that 
report. 
 

Agenda Item 8(a)

Page 13



 

Sport Aberdeen 
 
Following a meeting of the Group Leaders on 23 May 2012, at its 
meeting of 1 June 2012 the Urgent Business Committee considered 
and agreed a report by the Chief Executive on appointments 
(OCE/12/009).  This report detailed the appointment of 3 members 
(including an opposition member) to the Board of Sport Aberdeen – 
Councillors Dickson, Forsyth and Lawrence.   
 
Councillor Forsyth has now intimated his resignation from the Board 
and consequently the Council is requested to agree a representative to 
fill this vacancy.  For the Council’s information, in relation to the 
appointment of Council representatives the Memorandum and Articles 
of Sport Aberdeen state that they “shall be appointed on the basis of 
their having skills and experience which, in the opinion of the Council, 
would allow them to make a substantial contribution to the work of the 
Board”. 
 
Oakbank School Trust 
 
With regard to the Oakbank School Trust, as requested by the Council 
at its meeting of 13 June 2012 the Chief Executive reported to the 
Council at its meeting on 22 August 2012 (OCE/12/016) on the 
requirement for Council representation on the Board.  The report 
detailed that the Scheme of Administration of the Oakbank School 
Trust states that nine of the eleven Governors of the Trust should be 
elected by Aberdeen City Council.  Not fewer than five of the nine 
should be experienced in Education and not fewer than four of the nine 
should be experienced in Social Work.  The Trust has confirmed that it 
wishes the full complement of Council representatives appointed.  The 
report recommended that three further members are appointed. 
 
At its meeting of 22 August 2012 the Council resolved to note that the 
SNP Group would give consideration to appointing members to the 
Oakbank School Board of Governors if a copy of their accounts could 
be provided to them.  
 
Having been provided by the Trust on 10 October 2012, a copy of the 
Oakbank School Trust accounts was provided to Councillor McCaig by 
the Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive on 11 October 2012. 
 
The Council is requested to agree three representatives to fill the 
vacancies on the Oakbank School Trust. 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

Representation on the various sub-committees, trusts, boards and 
outside bodies assists the Council in fulfilling its role in delivering the 
Single Outcome Agreement. 

 

Page 14



 

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Ciaran Monaghan 
Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive 
cmonaghan@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
01224 (52) 2293 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT

FINANCE AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

4 October 2012

TREASURY MANAGEMENT � MID YEAR REVIEW (CG/12/095)  
 
1. With reference to article 13 of the minute of its meeting of 21 June 2012, 
the Committee had before it a report by the Head of Finance which provided an 
update on treasury management activities for 2012/2013. 

The report recommended: 
that the Committee recommend that Council -  
(i) note the treasury management activities undertaken in 2012/2013 as 

detailed within the report; and  
(ii) approve the revised counterparty list as detailed at appendix 1. 
 
The Committee resolved:
to approve the recommendations. 
 

Agenda Item 8(b)

Page 17



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

COMMITTEE   Finance and Resources    
 
DATE     04 October 2012  
 
DIRECTOR    Stewart Carruth  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Treasury Management � Mid Year Review  
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/12/095 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To update the Committee on Treasury Management activities 
undertaken to date, during financial year 2012/13. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 

It is recommended that the Committee considers and recommends this 
report to Council for approval as follows: 

 
a)  Notes the Treasury Management activities undertaken in 2012/13 
as detailed, and 

 
b)   Approves the revised Counterparty list as detailed at Appendix 1.  

 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Treasury Management activities influence the loans pool interest rates 
and aims to minimise the cost of borrowing.  This directly impacts upon 
costs chargeable to the Council's revenue budgets through the interest 
rates that are applied to capital financing costs.  Whilst the level of 
borrowing a Council can undertake is now devolved from the Scottish 
Government to individual Councils, it will still be constrained by the 
requirement for capital investment to be affordable, sustainable and 
prudent. The main test of affordability will be whether the capital 
financing costs can be contained within the revenue budgets. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

If an active Treasury Management policy is not undertaken and 
implemented there may be future budgetary implications for the Council 
through greater than budgeted capital financing costs. 

 

Page 18



5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

5.1 Introduction 
 
The Council previously approved a Treasury Management policy on 15 
March 2012.  Part of this policy is to report a mid-year review to 
committee on Treasury Management activities undertaken. 
 
With effect from 1 April 2004, Councils are now required by regulation 
to have regard to the Prudential Code (the Code) when carrying out 
their duties under part 7 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003. 
 
Historically, the Council's annual programme of capital investment has 
been funded by Treasury Management activities, such as additional 
long-term borrowing.  
 
It is a requirement of this Code that Treasury Management is carried 
out in accordance with good professional practice. The Code requires 
the Council to comply with CIPFA "Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management in the Public Services", which this Council does. 
 
This �mid-year� review on activities undertaken is also in line with new 
reporting requirements from the latest update of the CIPFA Code of 
Practice. 
 

5.2 Treasury Management 2012/13 
 
The following is a summary of Treasury Management activities which 
have been undertaken thus far in 2012/13: - 
 
Long Term Borrowing

One new PWLB (Public Works Loans Board) loan for £10 million was 
borrowed in April 2012, at the relatively low rate of 2.95%, with this 
year�s capital borrowing requirement in mind.  
 
PWLB Interest Rates

As a direct result of the Government Spending Review last October, 
there was a major change to PWLB public sector lending rates. The 
rationale behind this major change is that HM Treasury will now set the 
rates at an average of 100 basis points (or 1 per cent) over the relevant 
gilt price. 
 
However, this additional rise in PWLB rates by 90 basis points has 
somewhat discouraged the use of PWLB loans, and forced the Council 
to consider other forms of long term borrowing, such as LOBO loans 
(Lenders Option Borrowers Option) from financial institutions, and Bond 
Issuance. 

Page 19



Short Term Borrowing

Short-term borrowing rates for periods of up to 1 year continue at 
relatively low levels. The Council's borrowing strategy both last year 
and this year has been to borrow short-term where possible, to take 
advantage of these lower rates. The Council currently has some £55m 
of Temporary Loans from other Local Authorities, at an average rate of 
0.65%.  
 
Investments

Due to the downturn in the global economy, many previously 
undoubted financial institutions have been removed from the Council's 
Counterparty list during the last few years.  The Counterparty list is the 
list of approved banks and building societies that the Council may lend 
to either directly or through the Money Markets, on a temporary basis.  
 
Reviews of the Council's Counterparty list were undertaken and 
approved by Committee as the situation deteriorated. Last year, upon 
advice from Sector Treasury Services, the Council�s Treasury 
Management advisors, the maximum lending term for all institutions 
was reduced to 3 months, with the exception of the Nationalised UK 
Banks, which were to remain at 12 months. Although this was purely a 
temporary measure to protect the Council�s investments, there are no 
plans to review this at present, as the current financial climate remains 
volatile. 
 
After recent discussions with our Treasury Management advisors, it is 
proposed that the Council increases the Counterparty Limit of the 
Nationalised UK Banks from £20m to £30m. This would provide the 
Council with the additional flexibility required to maximise returns on 
short-term surplus funds, without compromising on Counterparty 
quality. 
 

Money Market Funds

Money Market Funds are AAA rated, short term pooled investment 
vehicles. They offer security, counterparty diversification and instant 
access to funds, when required. 
 
The Council opened three Money Market Fund accounts in August 
2012. This had been approved previously as part of the Council�s 
annual Investment Strategy.  These Money Market Fund accounts will 
greatly assist the Council in spreading its Counterparty risk and also 
improve cashflow liquidity.   
 
The accounts were opened in August with Goldman Sachs Asset 
Management, Federated Prime Rate Capital Management and Ignis 
Asset Management.  

Page 20



6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate � Failure to approve the changes to the Counterparty list 
could lead to reduced earnings to the Council.  
 
Public � None. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None. 
 

8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Neil Stewart, Treasury Officer,  
nstewart@aberdeencity.gov.uk, 01224 522696 

 

Page 21



Appendix 1

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
REVISED COUNTERPARTY LIST 

 
Changes are required to the current counterparty list as follows:  
 

1. Increase the limits for the two Part UK Nationalised Banks, Lloyds 
Banking Group and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, from £20m to 
£30m.  

 

Deposits up to 12 months

UK Nationalised and Part Nationalised Banks - £30m limit 

Lloyds Banking Group (includes Lloyds TSB Bank plc, Halifax Bank of Scotland) 
 
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc   
 (includes National Westminster Bank plc, Ulster Bank Ltd) 

 
UK Local Authorities, including Police Authorities - £10m limit

Deposits up to 3 months

Council's Bankers - £20m limit 

Clydesdale Bank plc 
 
UK Banks - £10m limit

Barclays Bank plc 
 
UK Building Societies - £10m limit 

Nationwide Building Society 
 

Collective Investment Schemes - £30m total limit

Money Market Funds - £10m limit

Federated Prime Rate Sterling Liquidity Fund 
 
Goldman Sachs Sterling Liquid Reserve Fund 
 
Ignis Liquidity Fund 

Page 22



DRAFT 
 

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY 
 

9 November, 2012 
 
ABERDEEN CITY AND SHIRE STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
 
With reference to article 6 of the minute of its previous meeting, the Authority had 
before it a report by the Strategic Development Plan Manager which presented a 
draft of the proposed Strategic Development Plan (SDP) for consideration.  
 
The report provided a background to the Plan and a synopsis of the draft Plan, 
which was appended to the report along with (1) a number of indicative plans and 
diagrams, (2) a draft habitats regulation appraisal record, (3) a strategic 
environmental assessment report, (4) a strategic flood risk assessment, (5) an 
equalities and human rights impact assessment; and (6) a document outlining 
responses to the comments received in relation to the October, 2011 Main Issues 
report. A minute extract from the meeting of the Aberdeen City Enterprise, 
Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting of 6 November, 2012 was 
circulated at the meeting, as was a list of suggested amendments as follows –  

• page 1, update page number due to typo. 
• page 6, paragraph 3.9 – “this will include new or extended primary 
and secondary schools…” to enable responsive solutions to 
educational provision in cases where new development extends a 
community with an existing secondary school. 

• page 9, paragraph 3.32 – “we will need to make sure that one or 
two new secondary schools…” to clarify existing wording. 

• page 11, paragraph 3.41 – ”we will need to make sure new or 
extended secondary schools and associated primary schools are 
provided in this area”. 

• page 12, paragraph 3.44 – add “this will have significant 
infrastructure requirements, including a new secondary and 
associated primary and schools…” to rectify an omission regarding 
the Chapelton of Elsick new settlement. 

• page 12, paragraph 3.45 – “this will be supported by the potential 
for expansion of a new secondary school…” to clarify existing 
wording. 

• page 13, paragraph 3.55 – “we will also need to make sure that 
new or extended secondary schools and associated primary 
schools are provided in this area”. 

• page 26, paragraph 5.6 – “…and certain developments (including 
River Dee link) to demonstrate no adverse effect on the integrity of 
any Natura 2000 site” to provide clarity around the link to Habitats 
Regulations appraisals. 

Agenda Item 8(c)

Page 23



• page 27, paragraph 5.11 – “…A96 between Inverurie and the 
border with Moray…” due to typo. 

 
In relation to page 92 of the report, whereby the condition of the site at Loch of 
Skene was identified as “unfavourable declining”, officers undertook to ascertain 
as to what the problem was, and what actions were being taken to alleviate this, 
and to advise members accordingly by way of email.  
 
The report recommended –  
that the Authority –  
(a) discuss and agree the draft of the Proposed Plan (Appendix 1) and the 

associated supporting documentation (Appendices 2 – 6) as the SDPA’s 
settled view of the recommended final content of the plan; 

(b) agree the arrangements set out in section 5 above for the period for 
representations on the Proposed Plan; 

(c) delegate to the Strategic Development Plan Manager the task preparing the 
plan for publication (including the graphic design of the plan) and the 
finalisation of the Action Programme for consultation alongside the 
proposed plan; 

(d) seek delegated authority from both councils to submit the Proposed Plan to 
Scottish Ministers for examination and approval if no substantive changes 
are proposed to the plan following representations; and 

(e)  refer this report to both Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council 
for ratification. 

 
Councillor Bellarby moved –  
 that the Strategic Growth Area 3 (Aberdeen – Laurencekirk) be extended to 

include Edzell Air Base.  
 
Councillor Bellarby’s motion did not attract a seconder, and therefore his motion 
fell. The Authority agreed in terms of Standing Order 7.27 (1) to suspend 
Standing Order 7.21 (7) in order that the motion could be recorded in this minute 
 
The Authority resolved: 
(i) to approve the draft of the Proposed Plan (Appendix 1) incorporating the 

amendments as above, and the associated supporting documentation 
(Appendices 2 – 6) as the SDPA’s settled view of the recommended final 
content of the plan; and  

(ii) to approve recommendations (b) – (e) as above.  
 

Page 24



 

 
ABERDEEN CITY & SHIRE  

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY 
 

Date:  9 November 2012 
 
Title:  Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan 
  
1  Purpose of Report 
 
1.1  The purpose of this report is to present a draft of the Proposed Strategic 

Development Plan (SDP) to the Strategic Development Planning Authority 
(SDPA) for discussion and agreement, recommending that the decision be 
referred to the two councils for ratification followed by a period for 
representations before submission to Scottish Ministers. 

 
2  Background 
 
2.1  The Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan was approved by Scottish 

Ministers in August 2009. It was the last structure plan to be approved in 
Scotland before the Planning etc (Scotland) Act 2006 came into force, 
introducing a requirement to prepare SDPs in the four largest city regions 
(including in Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire).  

 
2.2 Both councils have now adopted local development plans consistent with the 

structure plan. This was a significant achievement given the scale of change 
required from the previous local plans. 
 

2.3 Although not applying directly to the first SDP, there is a statutory requirement 
for future plans to be submitted to Scottish Ministers within four years of the 
approval of the previous plan. The current and previous development plan 
schemes have presented plan preparation timetables which set this as a target 
for the first strategic development plan. This means that submission is required 
to Scottish Ministers by 17 August 2013. 

 
2.4 The SDPA started work on the preparation of a replacement plan in late 2010. 

This has involved the preparation of a range of studies and assessments as 
well as monitoring of the current structure plan and engagement with 
stakeholders and agencies. The SDPA approved a Main Issues Report at its 
meeting of 23 September 2011 and consultation took place between October 
2011 and January 2012, with 85 responses received. 

 
2.5 All members of both councils have been invited to two informal seminar 

sessions during the preparation of the plan to date. The first took place on 10 
June 2011 on the proposed content of the Main Issues Report while the second 
took place on 10 September 2012 on the content of the Proposed Plan itself.  

 
2.6 An early draft of the Proposed Plan was shared with the Key Agencies for 

comment and their feedback was useful in informing the final draft attached. 
 

Page 25



2.7 The Aberdeen City and Shire SDP is the last of the four plans to be prepared in 
Scotland. The plans for the Glasgow and Dundee areas were approved by 
Scottish Ministers in June this year, while the plan for the Edinburgh area was 
submitted to Scottish Ministers in August. This reflects the fact that the 
Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan was only approved in 2009 – the plans 
being replaced elsewhere in Scotland were largely approved in the period 
between 2002 and 2006. 

 
2.8 Scottish Ministers’ guidance on the form and content of SDPs is set out in 

Circular 1/2009. The quote below gives an indication of their expectations: 
 

Scottish Ministers expect SDPs to be concise visionary documents 
that set clear parameters for subsequent LDPs and inform decisions 
about strategic infrastructure investment. Vision statements should 
provide a realistic expression of what the plan area could be like in 
20 years’ time and a useful springboard for the spatial strategy of the 
plan. The spatial strategy should encapsulate the headline changes 
that the plan seeks to achieve, and provide a locational strategy for 
new development up to year 12 from plan approval and a broad 
indication of the scale and direction of growth up to year 20. 

Circular 1/2009 (para 14) 
 

2.9 The Regional Transport Strategy prepared by Nestrans is also being refreshed 
at the current time to ensure it remains up-to-date and consistent with the SDP. 
Consultation on an issues report is due over the coming months with the 
intention of publishing an update to the strategy next year. The refresh of the 
Regional Transport Strategy does not have the same legislative approval 
mechanism so the two documents will be brought into line at the same time. 
The Proposed SDP and Regional Transport Strategy refresh have been 
prepared in parallel through close partnership working. 

 

3  Proposed Plan 
 
3.1 The preparation of a Proposed Plan is a key stage in the preparation of the 

SDP. The proposed plan builds on the monitoring of the previous plan, 
engagement with stakeholders and Key Agencies, responses to the Main 
Issues Report and the various studies and assessments prepared in support of 
the plan.  

 
3.2 The Proposed Plan presented in Appendix 1 represents a significant level of 

continuity with the current structure plan. This was the view clearly expressed 
by the majority of stakeholders, Key Agencies and those responding to the Main 
Issues Report.  
 

3.3 The plan continues to present an ambitious strategy for growth for the area 
while also focusing regeneration activity in those parts of the area with particular 
challenges. A common view throughout engagement and consultation was that 
the focus should be on implementation rather than making changes to a plan 
which was widely welcomed and still only a few years old. 
 

3.4 As identified in the Main Issues Report, while by no means immune from the 
consequences of the global economic turmoil since 2007/08, Aberdeen City and 

Page 26



Shire has been one of the most resilient parts of the UK. Aberdeen City and 
Shire is consistently identified as one area in Scotland and the UK which has 
the potential to drive economic recovery. It is important that the SDP supports 
this and helps deliver on this opportunity. 
 

3.5 Housing and employment allowances up to at least 2026 have already resulted 
in allocations being made by the two Local Development Plans so there is 
already a clearly defined pattern of growth. The focus is therefore rightfully on 
the implementation of these plans. 
 

3.6 As indicated in the Main Issues Report, the opportunity has been taken to 
expand the ‘Spatial Strategy’ section of the plan and at the same time include 
more diagrams to explain the effect of the plan on different areas. At the same 
time the text retains the Crystal Mark from the Plain English Campaign for its 
clarity. 
 

3.7 The main changes from the current structure plan relate to five additional 
proposals and the policy positions around waste management and the strategic 
transport fund. These are addressed below after a consideration of the housing 
land supply position. 
 
Housing Land Supply 

3.8 The 2012 Housing Land Audit is reported elsewhere on this agenda. The Audit 
identifies a record supply of housing land, with further land entering the Audit in 
Aberdeenshire next year from its local development plan.  
 

3.9 While housing completions in Aberdeen City and Shire have declined since the 
start of the global economic turmoil in 2007/08, they have been more resilient 
than elsewhere in Scotland. The 2012 Audit indicates that completions are likely 
to rise again over the next few years as the new LDP allocations are developed. 
 

3.10 The Proposed SDP does not require additional housing or employment land to 
be identified in the subsequent LDPs for the period to 2026.  
 

3.11 The housing requirement and allowances in the Proposed Plan are based on 
the outputs of the 2011 Housing Need and Demand Assessment (HNDA). 
Recent projections prepared by the National Records of Scotland (formerly the 
General Register Office for Scotland) suggest a significantly higher rate of 
population and household growth than was used as the basis for the HNDA. 
The Housing Market Partnership met earlier this year and recommended that 
the HNDA continue to be used as the basis for the SDP. The Proposed SDP 
continues to provide a generous supply of housing and employment land and is 
robust enough to accommodate higher levels of growth such as those projected 
by the National Records of Scotland in the medium-term (ie to 2026 at least and 
probably well into the final phase of the plan).  
 

3.12 Monitoring of population and household growth as well as the rate of new house 
building will be important on an annual basis to inform the review of the Housing 
Need and Demand Assessment and the SDP in five years’ time to ensure that 
the SDP continues to provide a robust plan for the future. 
 

Page 27



Waste Management 
3.13 The publication of Scotland’s Zero Waste Plan in 2010 set a different context for 

planning for waste management to that contained in the current structure plan. 
This was anticipated in the structure plan  which stated that the new framework 
would be reflected in the first SDP.  

 
3.14 The urgency and significant of the change to a more sustainable approach to 

waste management expressed in the structure remains. This plan seeks to 
facilitate the development of the required infrastructure, viewing waste as an 
important resource. 
 

3.15 The MIR presented a series of options to deal with the area’s waste and the 
preferred option has largely been carried forward into the proposed SDP. The 
proposed SDP emphasises the objective of meeting our waste management 
needs locally as far as possible, in line with the waste hierarchy, the proximity 
principle and the Zero Waste Plan. 
 

3.16 While we currently have sufficient landfill capacity, there is a need for at least an 
additional 300,000 tonnes of capacity in new waste management facilities in the 
area. These are likely to be facilities such as material recycling and composting 
plants as well as energy from waste facilities. The plan directs most of this 
capacity to the strategic growth areas within the Aberdeen Housing Market Area 
to reduce the environmental and financial costs of transporting waste and 
maximise the opportunity for using the heat generated by such proposals. Given 
the nature of modern waste management facilities, sites identified for 
employment purposes in the two local development plans are likely to be 
potentially suitable, along with sites adjacent to existing waste management 
facilities. Sites outwith the strategic growth areas may also be suitable, 
particularly where they meet a more local need or require a rural location. 
 
Strategic Transport Fund 

3.17 The SDPA approved Supplementary Planning Guidance on a Strategic 
Transport Fund (STF) in December 2011 and this was subsequently ratified by 
both councils in early 2012.  
 

3.18 Financial contributions from development have already been received and a 
number of planning agreements have been signed which require a contribution 
to be made at a future date. Most of the contributions to the fund will come from 
new sites allocated in the two recently approved local development plans so it 
can be expected that the number of planning agreements with STF 
contributions will rise significantly as sites come forward for development over 
the next year or two. 
 

3.19 Engagement with the development industry is due to take place over the next 
few months around the timing of implementation of the individual interventions. 
This will also seek views on the implementation of the guidance and how it can 
be improved. A review of the guidance will be carried out over the next six to 
twelve months with reports to future meetings of the SDPA. Consultation will be 
carried out as part of this process and enable the guidance to be adopted as 
statutory supplementary guidance alongside the approval of the SDP. The 
existing guidance will continue in force until that time. 

Page 28



 
Proposals 

3.20 All of the proposals contained in the current structure plan have been carried 
forward to the Proposed SDP with one exception. The proposal for a new prison 
at Peterhead has been removed as construction is well underway. All other 
proposals are still awaiting implementation and there is value in retaining the 
plan’s support for them until that stage has been reached. 

 
3.21 A number of additional proposals have been included in the Proposed SDP. 

Most of these were highlighted in the MIR, although the Scottish Government’s 
Infrastructure Investment Plan gave a commitment to dualling the A96 north of 
Inverurie and this has also been included. 
 

3.22 The new proposals include: 
 

• Upgrading the A96 to dual carriageway north of Inverurie; 
 
• Carbon capture and storage infrastructure at Peterhead as well as 

infrastructure for the transport of CO2 to St Fergus from outwith the area 
(either by pipeline or ship); 

 
• Electricity transmission infrastructure to the south of Peterhead including an 

extension to the electricity substation and converter stations required for 
offshore transmission (subject to a development framework for the area); 

 
• Proposals to realise the potential of the ports at Aberdeen and Peterhead, 

particularly in the context of the National Renewables Infrastructure Plan; 
and 

 
• Strategic transport interventions required to address the cumulative impact 

of new development in and around Aberdeen. These interventions were 
identified and will be funded through the Strategic Transport Fund. 

 
Main Issues Report Consultation Responses 

3.23 Consultation responses received to the Main Issues Report were presented to 
the SDPA at its meeting in March 2012. These were used to inform the drafting 
of the Proposed Plan. Appendix 2 contains proposed responses to the issues 
raised. 
 
Publication 

3.24 The final version of the Proposed Plan will be graphic designed and presented 
in such a way as to express the vision and aspiration of the plan as well as 
highlight its key messages. The current maps in the Proposed Plan are draft in 
nature and will be completed prior to publication. It will be made clear that they 
are not maps and are indicative in nature. 
 

3.25 Although distribution via the SDPA website is the preferred means, a number of 
hard copies of the plan will be required. It is proposed that up to 1,000 copies of 
the proposed plan are printed and made available free of charge in line with the 
commitments contained in the development plan scheme. 
 

Page 29



  
4 Supporting documents 
 
4.1 A series of supporting documents accompany the Proposed SDP. These are 

required to be published alongside the plan and are set out in Appendices 3-6 
to this report. 

 
• Habitats Regulations Appraisal (Appendix 3) 
• Strategic Environmental Appraisal (Appendix 4) 
• Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (Appendix 5) 
• Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment (Appendix 6) 
 

4.2 A Proposed Action Programme is also required to be published alongside the 
Proposed Plan. This is still being developed in partnership with those likely to 
be identified to deliver the plan. Given the high level of continuity with the 
current structure plan, its action programme has been used as the basis for the 
new Action Programme. Amendments can be made to the Action Programme at 
any time and it does not go through the same statutory process as the plan 
itself. Delegated authority is requested below to finalise the Action Programme 
prior to consultation. 

 
4.3 In addition to these new or revised documents, a Housing Need and Demand 

Assessment, Climate Change Study and Monitoring Statement were published 
alongside the Main Issues Report and are still of relevance. These documents 
will not be republished but are available from the SDPA website and limited 
numbers of hard copies will be available on request. 
 

5 Consultation 
 
5.1 The Development Plan Scheme (DPS) 2012/13 sets out the commitments we 

have made to engagement at different stages of the plan preparation process. It 
requires that we seek representations for a period of 7 weeks and that we send 
copies of the plan to all those on our contact database (which includes all 
Community Councils as well as those who responded to the Main Issues 
Report). The DPS also identifies that press notices and press releases will be 
issued to help reach other interested parties. 

 
5.2 In addition to the minimum set out in the DPS it is proposed to place the press 

notice on the ‘tellmescotland.gov.uk’ website and provide information to a range 
of organisations which circulate newsletters by email.   
 

5.3 Following the close of the period for representations, it is proposed to provide a 
brief summary of responses to the March 2013 meeting of the SDPA and a full 
response to the June meeting. This will enable the plan to be submitted to 
Scottish Ministers in advance of the August 2013 target date. 
 

5.4 In order to ensure that the plan can be submitted to the Scottish Ministers by 
the target date it is recommended that delegated authority is sought from the 
two councils to submit on their behalf in mid-2013 as long as no substantive 
changes are proposed to the plan at that stage. 
 

Page 30



5.5 Submission of the plan to Scottish Ministers starts the examination phase of the 
plan preparation process where Scottish Ministers appoint Reporters from the 
Directorate for Planning and Environmental Appeals to examine the 
representations and recommend any changes required to the plan. They report 
to directly to Scottish Ministers who can approve the plan with or without 
modifications. 

 
6 Financial Implications 
 
6.1  The financial implications arising from this report relate to the publication, 

distribution and publicity around the Proposed SDP. These expenses have 
been accounted for within the SDPA’s budget. Costs later in the process around 
the examination of the plan have been identified in the SDPA’s indicative 
budget for 2013/14. 

 
7  Recommendations 
 
7.1  It is recommended that the SDPA: 

a)  discuss and agree the draft of the Proposed Plan (Appendix 1) and the 
associated supporting documentation (Appendices 2 – 6) as the SDPA’s 
settled view of the recommended final content of the plan; 

b)  agree the arrangements set out in section 5 above for the period for 
representations on the Proposed Plan; 

c) delegate to the Strategic Development Plan Manager the task preparing 
the plan for publication (including the graphic design of the plan) and the 
finalisation of the Action Programme for consultation alongside the 
proposed plan; 

d)  seek delegated authority from both councils to submit the Proposed Plan 
to Scottish Ministers for examination and approval if no substantive 
changes are proposed to the plan following representations; and 

e) refer this report to both Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council 
for ratification. 

 
 
 
David Jennings 
Aberdeen City & Shire Strategic Development Plan Manager 
 
 
Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning & Sustainable Development 
Aberdeen City Council 
 

 

 
Robert Gray 
Head of Planning & Building Standards 
Aberdeenshire Council 
 

 

 
Report prepared by: David Jennings, Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan 

Manager 
 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Fo
rew

or
d 

       

Co
nte

nts
 

 1 
Int

ro
du

cti
on

  
 

 
 

pa
ge
  2

 
2 

Th
e v

isi
on

 fo
r t
he
 pl
an
 

 
 

    
    
  5

 
3 

Th
e s

pa
tia
l s
tra

teg
y 

 
 

    
    
  6

 
 

Str
ate

gic
 gr

ow
th 

are
as
 

 
 

    
    
  7

 
 

Lo
ca
l g
row

th 
an
d d

ive
rsi
fic
ati
on
 ar

ea
s  
    
    
    

8 
 

Re
ge
ne
rat

ion
 pr

ior
ity
 ar

ea
s 

 
    

    
 9

 
 

SG
A1

: A
be

rde
en

 C
ity

 
 

 
 

10
 

 
SG

A2
: A

be
rde

en
 – 

Hu
ntl

y 
 

 
 

12
 

SG
A3

: A
be

rde
en

 – 
La

ure
nc

ek
irk

  
 

13
 

SG
A4

: A
be

rde
en

 – 
Pe

ter
he

ad
 

 
 

14
 

 
4 

Ob
jec

tiv
es
  

 
 

 
    
    
 1

5 
 

Ec
on
om

ic 
Gr
ow

th 
 

 
 

    
    
 1

6 
 

Su
sta

ina
ble

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d c

lim
ate

 ch
an
ge
  1

8 
 

Po
pu
lat
ion

 G
row

th 
 

 
    

    
    
    
    

21
 

 
Qu

ali
ty 
of 

the
 en

vir
on
me

nt 
 

    
    
    
    
    

23
 

 
Su

sta
ina

ble
 m

ixe
d c

om
mu

nit
ies

  
    

    
    
    
  

24
 

 
Ac

ce
ss
ibi
lity

  
 

 
    

    
    
    
    

26
 

 5 
Pu

ttin
g t

his
 pl
an
 in
to 
pr
ac
tic
e 

 
    
    
 2

7 
 

Sc
he
du

le 
1: 
Ho

us
ing

 al
low

an
ce
s 

    
    
 2

9 
 

Sc
he
du

le 
2: 
Pr
op

os
als

 
 

 
 

29
 

 
Gl
os
sa
ry 

 
 

 
 

    
    
 3

0 
 

 
 

 
 

 
    

 
 

    
           

Page 33



2 

1 –
 In
tro

du
cti
on
 

 1.1
 A
be
rde

en
 C

ity
 an

d S
hir
e i

s a
 re

gio
n o

f g
lob

al 
sig

nif
ica

nc
e. 

As
 

the
 e

ne
rgy

 c
ap
ita
l o

f 
Eu

rop
e 

it 
ha
s 

the
 a

mb
itio

n, 
sk
ills

 a
nd
 

res
ou
rce

s t
o l
ea
d t

he
 m

ov
e t

ow
ard

s a
 m

ore
 se

cu
re 

an
d s

us
tai
na
ble

 
su
pp
ly 
of 

en
erg

y a
nd
 le
ad
 S
co
tla
nd
 fo

rw
ard

 on
 a 

pa
th 

of 
ec
on
om

ic 
rec

ov
ery

.  
 1.2

 T
he
 a
rea

 a
lre
ad
y h

as
 a
n 
en
via

ble
 re

pu
tat
ion

 a
s a

n 
att
rac

tiv
e 

pla
ce
 to

 li
ve
 a
nd
 w

ork
, w

ith
 a
 h
igh

-qu
ali
ty 

en
vir
on
me

nt,
 a
bo
ve
-

av
era

ge
 in

co
me

s, 
low

 u
ne
mp

loy
me

nt 
an
d 

am
on
g 

the
 h

ap
pie

st 
pe
op
le 
in 
the

 U
K. 

Ho
we

ve
r, t

he
re 

is 
no
 ro

om
 fo

r c
om

pla
ce
nc
y. 
Th

e 
eff
ec
ts 

of 
clim

ate
 c

ha
ng
e, 

the
 n

ee
d 

to 
us
e 

res
ou
rce

s 
mo

re 
eff
icie

ntl
y, 

ch
an
ge
s 

in 
No

rth
 S

ea
 o

il 
an
d 

ga
s 

pro
du
cti
on
 a

nd
 

dif
fer

en
ce
s i
n w

ea
lth
 an

d o
pp
ort

un
ity
 be

tw
ee
n s

om
e o

f th
e r

eg
ion

’s 
co
mm

un
itie

s 
wil

l t
hre

ate
n 
ev
ery

on
e’s

 w
ell
be
ing

 if
 w

e 
do
 n
ot 

tak
e 

ac
tio
n. 
 

 1.3
 B
y 2

03
5, 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 an

d S
hir
e w

ill 
ne
ed
 to

 ha
ve
 ad

ap
ted

 to
 

a v
ery

 di
ffe

ren
t w

orl
d. 

W
e n

ee
d t

o f
ac
e u

p t
o t

he
 ch

all
en
ge
s a

he
ad
 

to 
be
 ab

le 
to 

ma
int
ain

 an
d i
mp

rov
e t

he
 at

tra
cti
ve
ne
ss
 of

 th
e r

eg
ion

 
as
 a 
pla

ce
 to
 liv

e, 
vis

it a
nd
 do

 bu
sin

es
s. 

 1.4
 Th

e p
urp

os
e o

f th
is 
pla

n i
s t
o s

et 
a c

lea
r d

ire
cti
on
 fo

r th
e f

utu
re 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
the

 N
ort

h 
Ea

st 
– 
rec

og
nis

ing
 th

e 
im
po
rta

nc
e 
of 

im
pro

vin
g 
lin
ks
 a
nd
 c
on
ne
cti
on
s, 

ad
din

g 
to 

the
 a
lre
ad
y 
en
via

ble
 

qu
ali
ty 

of 
life

 a
nd
 p

rov
idi
ng
 t
he
 o

pp
ort

un
itie

s 
for

 h
igh

-qu
ali
ty 

su
sta

ina
ble

 g
row

th 
tow

ard
s 
wh

ich
 th

e 
pu
bli
c 
an
d 
pri
va
te 

se
cto

rs 
ca
n w

ork
 to

 de
live

r o
ur 

vis
ion

. 
 1.5

 T
his

 p
lan

 is
 th

e 
firs

t s
tra

teg
ic 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n 
to 

co
ve
r t
he
 

are
a. 

It 
ha
s 

be
en
 d

ev
elo

pe
d 

fro
m 

the
 p

rev
iou

s 
str
uc
tur

e 
pla

n 
ap
pro

ve
d b

y S
co
ttis

h M
ini
ste

rs 
in 
20
09
 an

d r
efl
ec
ts 
the

 w
ide

sp
rea

d 
su
pp
ort

 th
at 

pla
n r

ec
eiv

ed
.  

 1.6
 Th

e p
lan

 co
ve
rs 

the
 w
ho
le 
of 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 an

d A
be
rde

en
sh
ire
 

ex
ce
pt 

tha
t p
art

 w
ith
in 
the

 C
air
ng
orm

s N
ati
on
al 
Pa

rk.
 It

 h
as
 b

ee
n 

pre
pa
red

 b
y t

he
 A

be
rde

en
 C

ity
 a
nd
 S

hir
e 
Str

ate
gic

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Pla
nn
ing

 A
uth

ori
ty 

on
 b
eh
alf
 o
f A

be
rde

en
 C

ity
 a
nd
 A
be

rde
en
sh
ire
 

co
un
cils

. It
 re

pre
se
nts

 a 
sh
are

d v
isio

n f
or 

the
 fu

tur
e o

f th
e a

rea
 an

d 
ha
s b

ee
n d

ev
elo

pe
d i
n a

 w
ay
 w
hic

h a
im
s t
o i
nc
lud

e e
ve
ryo

ne
 in
 th

e 
pro

ce
ss
, i

nc
lud

ing
 c

om
mu

nit
ies

, p
ub
lic-

se
cto

r o
rga

nis
ati
on
s 

an
d 

bu
sin

es
se
s. 

 La
yo
ut 

an
d c

on
ten

t o
f th

e p
lan

 
1.7

 Th
is 
pla

n f
oc
us
es
 on

 w
ha
t w

e w
an
t to

 ch
an
ge
. It

 do
es
 no

t c
ov
er 

all
 pl
an
nin

g i
ss
ue
s b

ut 
on
ly 
tho

se
 w
hic

h a
re 

na
tio
na
lly 

or 
reg

ion
all
y 

im
po
rta

nt 
or 

ca
n b

es
t b

e d
ea
lt w

ith
 by

 A
be
rde

en
 C
ity
 C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 

Ab
erd

ee
ns
hir
e 

Co
un
cil 

wo
rki
ng
 to

ge
the

r. 
Bo

th 
co
un
cils

 p
rep

are
 

loc
al 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
ns
 w

hic
h 
co
ve
r a

 w
ide

r r
an
ge
 o
f i
ss
ue
s 
in 

mo
re 

de
tai
l. 

 1.8
 A

 k
ey
 p

art
 o

f t
his

 p
lan

 is
 o

ur 
vis

ion
 a

nd
 s
pa
tia
l s

tra
teg

y, 
su
pp
ort

ed
 b

y 
a 

se
rie
s 
of 

ob
jec

tiv
es
 a

nd
 ta

rge
ts.
 P

rop
os
als

 a
re 

inc
lud

ed
 w
he
re 

the
y a

re 
im
po
rta

nt 
to 

pu
ttin

g t
he
 pl

an
 in

to 
pra

cti
ce
. 

W
e h

av
e t

rie
d t

o u
se
 as

 fe
w 
tec

hn
ica

l te
rm

s a
s p

os
sib

le,
 bu

t th
ere

 
is 
a g

los
sa
ry 

at 
the

 en
d o

f th
e p

lan
 w
hic

h d
efi
ne
s s

om
e w

ord
s a

nd
 

ph
ras

es
 yo

u m
ay
 no

t b
e f

am
ilia

r w
ith
.  

 1.9
 It 

is 
vit
al 
to 

rec
og
nis

e t
he
 lin

ks
 be

tw
ee
n t

he
 di
ffe

ren
t p

art
s o

f th
e 

pla
n. 
W
e h

av
e d

ivid
ed
 th

e p
lan

 in
to 

a n
um

be
r o

f th
em

es
 ra

the
r th

an
 

top
ic-
ba
se
d c

ha
pte

rs 
be
ca
us
e i
nd
ivid

ua
l to

pic
s r
ela

te 
to 

so
me

, if
 no

t 
all
, o

f th
e t

he
me

s. 
Th

is 
em

ph
as
ise

s t
ha
t th

e p
lan

 sh
ou
ld 
be
 re

ad
 as

 
a w

ho
le.
  

 1.1
0 T

he
 pl
an
 is
 su

pp
ort

ed
 by

 a 
Pr
op
os
ed
 Ac

tio
n P

rog
ram

me
 w
hic

h 
sh
ow

s h
ow

 w
e 
pla

n 
to 

pu
t t
he
 p
lan

 in
to 

eff
ec
t w

ith
 o
ur 

pa
rtn

ers
. 

Lo
ca
l d

ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
s a

re 
on
e o

f th
e m

ain
 w
ay
s o

f p
utt

ing
 th

is 
pla

n i
nto

 ef
fec

t b
ut 

the
re 

are
 ot

he
rs.
 B
oth

 co
un
cils

 w
ill 
us
e t

his
 pl
an
 

in 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 c
as
es
 t
o 

he
lp 

de
cid

e 
wh

eth
er 

a 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
po
sa
l w

ou
ld 

tak
e t

he
 ar

ea
 in

 th
e r

igh
t d

ire
cti
on
. H

ow
ev
er,

 lo
ca
l 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
ns
 (a

nd
 su

pp
lem

en
tar

y g
uid

an
ce
) c

on
sis

ten
t w

ith
 

thi
s p

lan
 w
ill 
be
 th

e m
ain

 pl
an
s w

e w
ill 
us
e t

o a
ss
es
s a

pp
lica

tio
ns
 

for
 pl
an
nin

g p
erm

iss
ion

. 

Page 34



3 

Inf
lue
nc
es
 on
 th
e p
lan
 

1.1
1 W

e h
av
e 
wr
itte

n 
thi
s p

lan
 w

ith
 a
 w

ide
 ra

ng
e 
of 

int
ern

ati
on
al,
 

na
tio
na
l a
nd
 re

gio
na
l in

flu
en
ce
s i
n m

ind
.  

 1.1
2 

At 
an
 in

ter
na
tio
na
l l
ev
el,
 is

su
es
 s

uc
h 

as
 c

lim
ate

 c
ha
ng
e, 

pro
tec

tin
g t

he
 en

vir
on
me

nt,
 se

cu
rin
g e

ne
rgy

 su
pp
lie
s f

or 
the

 fu
tur

e 
an
d e

co
no
mi
c r
ec
ov
ery

 al
l s
et 

an
 im

po
rta

nt 
co
nte

xt 
for

 th
is 
pla

n. 
 1.1

3 
At 

the
 n

ati
on
al 

lev
el,
 N

ati
on
al 

Pla
nn
ing

 F
ram

ew
ork

 2
 w

as
 

pu
bli
sh
ed
 b

y 
the

 S
co
ttis

h 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t 

in 
Ju
ne
 2

00
9. 

Th
e 

fra
me

wo
rk 

loo
ks
 fo

rw
ard

 
to 

20
30
 w

ith
 t
he
 m

ain
 

pa
rts
 of

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

str
ate

gy
 b
ein

g 
sh
ow

n 
in 

fig
ure

 2
. T

he
 e
as
t c

oa
st 

co
rrid

or 
fro

m 
Ab

erd
ee
n 

to 
Ne

wc
as
tle
 is
 id

en
tifi
ed
 

as
 

a 
‘ke

y 
ec
on
om

ic 
co
rrid

or’
 

off
eri
ng
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 d

ev
elo

p 
‘kn

ow
led

ge
 

ec
on
om

y 
lin
ks
’ w

ith
 th

e e
ne
rgy

 an
d 

off
sh
ore

 i
nd
us
trie

s 
an
d 

the
 un

ive
rsi
tie
s a

lon
g t

he
 

rou
te.

 
Pe

ter
he
ad
 

is 
ide

nti
fie
d 

as
 
a 

‘de
ep
 

wa
ter

 
op
po
rtu

nit
y’ 

an
d 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

as
 

an
 

int
ern

ati
on
al 

ga
tew

ay
. 

Th
e A

90
 an

d A
96
 ar

e i
de
nti
fie
d a

s s
tra

teg
ic 
tra

ns
po
rt 
rou

tes
 w
hil
e 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

is 
als

o 
sh
ow

n 
as
 h

av
ing

 ‘s
tra

teg
ic 

tra
ns
po
rt 

rou
tes

’ 
be
yo
nd
 th

e 
str
ate

gic
 d
ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
 a
rea

. A
 p
ote

nti
al 

su
bs
ea
 

en
erg

y n
etw

ork
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
ide

nti
fie
d 
off
 th

e 
ea
st 

co
as
t, 
wit

h 
a 
ke
y 

on
sh
ore

 co
nn
ec
tio
n a

t P
ete

rhe
ad
. 

 

1.1
4 

Alo
ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 a
ss
oc
iat
ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
ch
an
gin

g 
na
tur

e o
f th

e o
ffs
ho
re 

oil
 an

d g
as
 in
du
str
y, 
the

 po
ten

tia
l o
f th

e N
ort

h 
Ea

st 
to 

bu
ild
 o
n 
its
 s
tre

ng
ths

 is
 a
lso

 re
co
gn
ise

d 
– 
gro

win
g 
an
d 

div
ers

ify
ing

 t
he
 e

co
no
my

. 
Th

e 
Na

tio
na
l 
Pla

nn
ing

 F
ram

ew
ork

 
em

ph
as
ise

s t
he
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 of
fer

ed
 by

 th
e d

ee
pe
st 
ha
rbo

ur 
in 
the

 
No

rth
 Ea

st 
at 

Pe
ter

he
ad
, in

clu
din

g a
 po

ten
tia
l ro

le 
in 
tak

ing
 of

fsh
ore

 
eq
uip

me
nt 

ou
t o

f u
se
. T

hre
e 
‘na

tio
na
l d

ev
elo

pm
en
ts’
 h
av
e 
be
en
 

ide
nti
fie
d 

in 
the

 a
rea

 –
 i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 

(in
clu

din
g 

ac
ce
ss
) 

to 
Ab

erd
ee
n 
air
po
rt, 

the
 u
pg
rad

ing
 o
f P

ete
rhe

ad
 p
ow

er 
sta

tio
n 
an
d 

rei
nfo

rci
ng
 th

e e
lec

tric
ity
 gr

id 
(E
as
t C

oa
st 
tra

ns
mi
ss
ion

 ro
ute

). 
 1.1

5 
Re

ce
nt 

leg
isla

tio
n 

an
d 

Sc
ott

ish
 G

ov
ern

me
nt 

str
ate

gie
s, 

inc
lud

ing
 th

e 
Cli

ma
te 

Ch
an
ge
 (
Sc

otl
an
d) 

Ac
t 2

00
9, 

La
nd
 U

se
 

Str
ate

gy
, 
Ze

ro 
W
as
te 

Pla
n, 

Ec
on
om

ic 
Str

ate
gy
, 
Re

ge
ne
rat

ion
 

Str
ate

gy
 a
nd
 th

e 
Ag

en
da
 fo

r C
itie

s, 
ha
ve
 
be
en
 
pu
bli
sh
ed
 
sin

ce
 t

he
 

pre
vio

us
 st
ruc

tur
e p

lan
. F

ort
hc
om

ing
 

wo
rk 

inc
lud

es
 m

ari
ne
 pl
an
nin

g a
t th

e 
na
tio
na
l a
nd
 re

gio
na
l le

ve
l. 

 1.1
6 

Ov
er 

the
 la

st 
few

 y
ea
rs 

the
 

Sc
ott

ish
 G

ov
ern

me
nt 

ha
s 
ide

nti
fie
d 

a r
an
ge
 of

 im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 th
e r

oa
d 

an
d 

rai
l i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

in 
the

 a
rea

 
ov
er 

the
 p
eri
od
 o
f t
his

 p
lan

. T
he
se
 

inc
lud

e m
ak
ing

 th
e f

ull
 le

ng
th 

of 
the

 
A9

6 
a 
du
al 

ca
rria

ge
wa

y a
s 
we

ll a
s 

red
uc
ing

 
jou

rne
y 

tim
es
 

an
d 

inc
rea

sin
g t

he
 fre

qu
en
cy
 of

 tra
ins

 on
 

the
 Ab

erd
ee
n-I

nv
ern

es
s r
ail
wa

y l
ine

. 
 1.1

7 
Th

e 
reg

ion
al 

str
ate

gie
s 

an
d 

pla
ns
 w

hic
h 
ha
ve
 a
n 
im
po
rta

nt 
inf
lue

nc
e 
on
 th

is 
pla

n 
inc

lud
e 
the

 
No

rth
 E

as
t S

co
tla
nd
 T
ran

sp
ort

 P
art

ne
rsh

ip’
s 
(N
es
tra

ns
) R

eg
ion

al 
Tra

ns
po
rt S

tra
teg

y a
nd
 Ab

erd
ee
n C

ity
 an

d S
hir
e E

co
no
mi
c F

utu
re’
s 

Ec
on
om

ic 
Ma

nif
es
to.
 

Page 35



4 

2 –
 Th

e v
isi
on
 fo
r t
he
 pl
an
 

 2.1
 W

e 
ne
ed
 t
o 

fac
e 

up
 t
o 

the
 c

ha
lle
ng
es
 a

nd
 g

ras
p 

the
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 a
he
ad
 t
o 

be
 a

ble
 t
o 

ma
int
ain

 a
nd
 im

pro
ve
 t
he
 

att
rac

tiv
en
es
s o

f th
e r

eg
ion

 as
 a 

pla
ce
 to

 liv
e, 

vis
it a

nd
 do

 bu
sin

es
s. 

A v
isio

n f
or 

a s
uc
ce
ss
ful
 an

d s
us
tai
na
ble

 fu
tur

e i
s s

et 
ou
t b
elo

w.
 

 Vis
ion
 

“A
be
rde

en
 C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hir
e 

wil
l 
be
 a

n 
ev
en
 m

ore
 a

ttra
cti
ve
, 

pro
sp
ero

us
 an

d s
us
tai
na
ble

 E
uro

pe
an
 ci
ty 

reg
ion

 an
d a

n e
xc
ell
en
t 

pla
ce
 to
 liv

e, 
vis

it a
nd
 do

 bu
sin

es
s. 
 

 W
e w

ill b
e r

ec
og
nis

ed
 fo
r: 

 • 
ou
r e

nte
rpr

ise
 an

d i
nv
en
tiv
en
es
s, 

pa
rtic

ula
rly
 in

 th
e k

no
wle

dg
e 

ec
on
om

y a
nd
 in
 hi
gh
-va

lue
 m
ark

ets
;  

• 
the

 un
iqu

e q
ua
litie

s o
f o

ur 
en
vir
on
me

nt;
 an

d 
• 

ou
r h

igh
 qu

ali
ty 
of 

life
.  

 W
e w

ill 
ha
ve
 ac

ted
 co

nfi
de
ntl
y a

nd
 ta

ke
n t

he
 co

ura
ge
ou
s d

ec
isio

ns
 

ne
ce
ss
ary

 to
 fu

rth
er 

de
ve
lop

 a 
rob

us
t a

nd
 re

sili
en
t e

co
no
my

 an
d t

o 
lea

d 
the

 w
ay
 to

wa
rds

 d
ev
elo

pm
en
t b

ein
g 

su
sta

ina
ble

, i
nc
lud

ing
 

de
ali
ng
 w
ith
 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge
 an

d c
rea

tin
g a

 m
ore

 in
clu

siv
e s

oc
iet
y.”
 

 2.2
 T
o 
ma

ke
 th

is 
vis

ion
 a
 re

ali
ty,
 w

e 
ha
ve
 d
ev
elo

pe
d 
a 
se
rie
s o

f 
aim

s. 
Th

es
e p

rov
ide

 a 
us
efu

l g
uid

e w
hic

h b
oth

 in
ter

pre
ts 
the

 vi
sio

n 
an
d 
foc

us
es
 cl

ea
rly
 o
n 
the

 ro
le 

thi
s p

lan
 w

ill 
pla

y i
n 
de
live

rin
g 
it. 

Th
is 

rec
og
nis

es
 th

at 
ma

ny
 d
iffe

ren
t p

eo
ple

 a
nd
 o
rga

nis
ati
on
s w

ill 
be
 in
vo
lve

d i
n d

eli
ve
rin
g t
his

 vi
sio

n. 
 

 

Ai
ms
 

 Th
e m

ain
 ai
ms

 of
 th
e p

lan
 ar

e t
o: 

 • 
pro

vid
e a

 st
ron

g f
ram

ew
ork

 fo
r in

ve
stm

en
t d

ec
isio

ns
 w
hic

h h
elp

 
to 

gro
w 

an
d 

div
ers

ify
 th

e 
reg

ion
al 

ec
on
om

y, 
su
pp
ort

ed
 b

y 
pro

mo
tin
g 

the
 n

ee
d 

to 
us
e 

res
ou
rce

s 
mo

re 
eff
icie

ntl
y 

an
d 

eff
ec
tiv
ely

; a
nd
 

• 
tak

e o
n t

he
 ur

ge
nt 

ch
all
en
ge
s o

f s
us
tai
na
ble

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

clim
ate

 ch
an
ge
. 

 To
 su

pp
ort

 th
es
e m

ain
 ai
ms

, th
e p

lan
 al
so
 ai
ms

 to
: 

• 
ma

ke
 s
ure

 th
e 
are

a 
ha
s 
en
ou
gh
 p
eo
ple

, h
om

es
 a
nd
 jo

bs
 to

 
su
pp
ort

 th
e 
lev

el 
of 

se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 fa

cili
tie
s n

ee
de
d 
to 

ma
int
ain

 
an
d i
mp

rov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 
of 

life
;  

• 
pro

tec
t a

nd
 im

pro
ve
 ou

r v
alu

ed
 as

se
ts 
an
d r

es
ou
rce

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 
the

 bu
ilt 
an
d n

atu
ral
 en

vir
on
me

nt 
an
d o

ur 
cu
ltu
ral
 he

rita
ge
;  

• 
he
lp 
cre

ate
 su

sta
ina

ble
 m

ixe
d c

om
mu

nit
ies

, a
nd
 th

e a
ss
oc
iat
ed
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re,
 w

hic
h 
me

et 
the

 h
igh

es
t s

tan
da
rds

 of
 u
rba

n 
an
d 

rur
al 

de
sig

n 
an
d 
ca
ter

 fo
r t
he
 n
ee
ds
 o
f t
he
 w

ho
le 

po
pu
lat
ion

; 
an
d  

• 
ma

ke
 th

e m
os
t e

ffic
ien

t u
se
 of

 th
e t

ran
sp
ort

 ne
tw
ork

, r
ed
uc
ing

 
the

 n
ee
d 
for

 p
eo
ple

 to
 tr

av
el 

an
d 
ma

kin
g 
su
re 

tha
t w

alk
ing

, 
cy
clin

g a
nd
 pu

bli
c t
ran

sp
ort

 ar
e a

ttra
cti
ve
 ch

oic
es
. 

 2.3
 W

e a
re 

co
mm

itte
d t

o a
ll t
he
 ai

ms
 as

 a 
wh

ole
. T

his
 is
 th

e o
nly

 
wa

y w
e w

ill b
e a

ble
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 ou

r v
isio

n. 
 

 Po
lic
y 

 In 
as
se
ss
ing

 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
po
sa
ls,
 
we

 
wil

l 
ba
lan

ce
 
the

 
im
po
rta

nc
e 
giv

en
 to

 ea
ch
 a
im
 in

 co
mi
ng
 to

 a 
de
cis

ion
, ta

kin
g i

nto
 

ac
co
un
t th

e s
pa
tia
l s
tra

teg
y, 
ob
jec

tiv
es
 an

d t
arg

ets
 of

 th
e p

lan
. 

Page 36



5 

3 –
 Th

e s
pa
tia
l s
tra
teg

y 
 3.1

 A
ll p

art
s o

f t
he
 N

ort
h 
Ea

st 
are

 im
po
rta

nt 
for

 th
e 
fut

ure
 o
f t
he
 

are
a. 

Ho
we

ve
r, d

iffe
ren

t a
rea

s w
ill 
tak

e d
iffe

ren
t ro

les
 as

 a 
res

ult
 of

 
the

ir c
urr

en
t c

ha
rac

ter
ist
ics

 an
d f

utu
re 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

. T
his

 pl
an
 w
ill 

se
t a

 cl
ea
r d

ire
cti
on
 an

d b
e s

pe
cif
ic 
wh

ere
 ne

ce
ss
ary

, w
hil
e g

ivin
g 

loc
al 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
ns
 t
he
 o

pp
ort

un
ity
 t
o 

res
po
nd
 t
o 

loc
al 

cir
cu
ms

tan
ce
s. 
 

 3.2
 Id

en
tify

ing
 w

he
re 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

wil
l ta

ke
 pl

ac
e i

s a
 vi
tal
 pa

rt 
of 

de
live

rin
g 
the

 c
ha
ng
es
 n

ee
de
d 

in 
the

 A
be
rde

en
 C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hir
e 

are
a. 

Be
ing

 c
lea

r a
bo
ut 

wh
ere

 w
e 
wa

nt 
ne
w 

ho
me

s, 
bu
sin

es
se
s 

an
d 

oth
er 

de
ve
lop

me
nts

 to
 b
e 

pro
vid

es
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 c
ert

ain
ty 

an
d 

co
nfi
de
nc
e 

for
 c

om
mu

nit
ies

, b
us
ine

ss
es
 a

nd
 o

rga
nis

ati
on
s 

tha
t 

pro
vid

e 
se
rvi
ce
s. 

It 
all
ow

s u
s t

o 
ma

ke
 b
es
t u

se
 o
f t
he
 in

ve
stm

en
t 

tha
t w

e w
ill 
ne
ed
 to

 m
ain

tai
n a

nd
 im

pro
ve
 th

e q
ua
lity

 of
 lif
e i

n t
he
 

are
a o

ve
r th

e c
om

ing
 de

ca
de
s o

f g
row

th.
 

 3.3
 W

e 
ha
ve
 d

ev
elo

pe
d 

a 
sp
ati
al 

str
ate

gy
 w

hic
h 

pro
mo

tes
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
pla

ce
s t
ha
t m

ee
t th

e n
ee
ds
 of

 bu
sin

es
s a

nd
, a

t th
e 

sa
me

 tim
e, 

are
 su

sta
ina

ble
 an

d t
ak
e o

n 
the

 ch
all
en
ge
s o

f c
lim

ate
 

ch
an
ge
. T

he
 s
tra

teg
y 
als

o 
rec

og
nis

es
 th

e 
ne
ed
 to

 m
ain

tai
n 
an
d 

im
pro

ve
 th

e a
rea

’s 
co
mm

un
itie

s a
nd
 th
e s

erv
ice

s t
he
y d

ep
en
d o

n. 
 3.4

 Al
l p
art

s o
f th

e s
tra

teg
ic 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n a

rea
 ar

e e
ith
er 

wit
hin

 
a 
str
ate

gic
 g
row

th 
are

a 
or 

a 
loc

al 
gro

wt
h 
an
d 
div

ers
ific

ati
on
 a
rea

. 
Ho

we
ve
r, 
so
me

 a
rea

s 
are

 a
lso

 id
en
tifi
ed
 a
s 
reg

en
era

tio
n 
pri
ori
ty 

are
as
. 

 3.5
 T

his
 s
tra

teg
y 
(se

e 
fig
ure

 3
) f

oc
us
es
 d
ev
elo

pm
en
t i
n 

pla
ce
s 

wh
ere

 th
ere

 a
re 

cle
ar 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 e
nc
ou
rag

e 
pe
op
le 

to 
us
e 

pu
bli
c 
tra

ns
po
rt, 

wh
ich

 it
se
lf c

an
 b
e 
pro

vid
ed
 in

 a
n 
eff
icie

nt 
wa

y. 
Th

e 
str
ate

gy
 p
lan

s 
for

 s
ign

ific
an
t g

row
th 

in 
a 
lim

ite
d 
nu
mb

er 
of 

pla
ce
s, 
wh

ere
 th

ere
 ca

n b
e s

ign
ific

an
t p

ub
lic 

an
d p

riv
ate

 in
ve
stm

en
t 

in 
sc
ho
ols

, c
om

mu
nit
y f

ac
iliti

es
 an

d t
ran

sp
ort

 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e w
ith
ou
t 

aff
ec
tin
g 
pe
op
le’
s 
qu
ali
ty 

of 
life

. I
t a

lso
 p
rov

ide
s 
the

 fl
ex
ibi
lity

 to
 

me
et 

the
 n
ee
ds
 o
f lo

ca
l c

om
mu

nit
ies

. T
he
 st

rat
eg
y a

lso
 id

en
tifi
es
 

tho
se
 ar

ea
s t

ha
t n

ee
d i

nv
es
tm

en
t to

 ta
ck
le 

im
po
rta

nt 
reg

en
era

tio
n 

ne
ed
s. 
 

 3.6
  A

ll a
rea

s w
ill 
ne
ed
 si
gn
ific

an
t u

pg
rad

es
 to

 th
e c

om
mu

nic
ati
on
s 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
to 

all
ow

 fo
r s

up
erf

as
t b

roa
db
an
d 
ea
rly
 in

 th
e 
pe
rio
d 

co
ve
red

 by
 th

is 
pla

n. 
 Ta
rg
ets

 
 • O

ve
r t
he
 p
eri
od
 to

 2
03
5, 

at 
lea

st 
75
% 

of 
all
 h
om

es
 b
uil
t, 
an
d 

em
plo

ym
en
t l

an
d 

de
ve
lop

ed
 s

ho
uld

 b
e 

in 
the

 s
tra

teg
ic 

gro
wt
h 

are
as
.  

• O
ve
r th

e p
eri
od
 to

 20
35
, a

t le
as
t 5

0%
 of

 al
l h
om

es
 bu

ilt 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 

in 
Ab

erd
ee
n C

ity
.  

• F
or 

all
 d
ev
elo

pm
en
ts 

me
eti
ng
 m

ore
 th

an
 lo

ca
l n

ee
ds
 to

 b
e 
in 

str
ate

gic
 gr

ow
th 

are
as
, u
nle

ss
 an

oth
er 

are
a c

an
 be

 ju
sti
fie
d. 

 Ho
w 
to 

me
et 
the

 ta
rg
ets

 
 • L

oc
al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
ns
 (a

nd
, w

he
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

, s
up
ple

me
nta

ry 
gu
ida

nc
e) 

wil
l u

se
 th

e 
sp
ati
al 

str
ate

gy
 to

 se
t p

oli
cie

s a
nd
 id

en
tify

 
lan

d f
or 

de
ve
lop

me
nt.
 

• P
lan

nin
g a

pp
lica

tio
ns
 w
ill 
be
 as

se
ss
ed
 ag

ain
st 
the

 sp
ati
al 
str
ate

gy
 

to 
de
cid

e w
he
the

r th
e l
oc
ati
on
, n

atu
re 

an
d s

ca
le 

of 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

is 
in 
lin
e w

ith
 th

e p
lan

.  
 Mo

nit
or
ing

 
 Pa

tte
rns

 in
 ho

us
e-b

uil
din

g a
nd
 la
nd
 us

ed
 fo

r n
ew

 em
plo

ym
en
t u

se
s 

wil
l b
e m

on
ito
red

 ea
ch
 ye

ar.
 

Page 37



6 

St
rat
eg
ic 
gr
ow
th 
are
as
  

 3.7
 T
his

 st
rat

eg
ic 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n i

de
nti
fie
s f

ou
r s

tra
teg

ic 
gro

wt
h 

are
as
 w
hic

h w
ill 
be
 th

e m
ain

 fo
cu
s f

or 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
the

 ar
ea
 up

 
to 

20
35
.  

 3.8
 A
lth
ou
gh
 th

es
e a

rea
s w

ill 
ca
rry

 ou
t d

iffe
ren

t ro
les

, to
ge
the

r th
ey
 

ca
n b

e e
xp
ec
ted

 to
 ac

co
un
t fo

r a
rou

nd
 75

% 
of 

the
 gr

ow
th 

ov
er 

the
 

ne
xt 

20
 ye

ars
 or

 m
ore

. T
he
 st

rat
eg
ic 
gro

wt
h a

rea
s a

re 
ce
ntr

ed
 on

 
Ab

erd
ee
n a

nd
 th

e m
ain

 pu
bli
c t

ran
sp
ort

 ro
ute

s. 
Th

ey
 ai

m 
to 

ma
ke
 

ho
us
ing

, e
mp

loy
me

nt 
an
d 

se
rvi
ce
s 

hig
hly

 a
cc
es
sib

le 
by
 p

ub
lic 

tra
ns
po
rt a

nd
 th

ey
 w
ill 
be
 re

lat
ive

ly 
na
rro

w,
 up

 to
 ar

ou
nd
 5k

m 
wid

e. 
Ho

we
ve
r, 
the

 A
be
rde

en
sh
ire
 L
oc
al 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Pla
n 
wil

l d
ec
ide

 
wh

ich
 se

ttle
me

nts
 an

d s
ite
s a

re 
wit

hin
 a 

str
ate

gic
 gr

ow
th 

are
a. 

 3.9
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t in

 th
es
e a

rea
s w

ill 
bri
ng
 ab

ou
t a

 si
gn
ific

an
t n

ee
d 

for
 ne

w 
an
d i

mp
rov

ed
 in

fra
str
uc
tur

e. 
Th

is 
wil

l in
clu

de
 ne

w 
pri
ma

ry 
an
d 
se
co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ols

, o
pe
n 
sp
ac
e, 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 ro
ad
s a

nd
 

rai
lwa

ys
 a
s 
we

ll a
s 
wa

lkin
g, 

cy
clin

g 
an
d 
bu
s 
ne
tw
ork

s, 
an
d 
ne
w 

wa
ter

 an
d w

as
te-

wa
ter

 sy
ste

ms
.  

 3.1
0 
W
e 
sh
ou
ld 

ex
plo

re 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 p
ut 

in 
pla

ce
 a
 s
tra

teg
ic 

wa
lkin

g 
an
d 
cy
cle

 n
etw

ork
 w

hic
h 
bu
ild
s 
on
 th

e 
cu
rre

nt 
ne
tw
ork

s 
be
ing

 de
ve
lop

ed
 in

 A
be
rde

en
 an

d A
be
rde

en
sh
ire
 to

wn
s b

y l
ink

ing
 

the
se
 t
og
eth

er.
 W

e 
sh
ou
ld 

do
 t
his

 i
n 

a 
wa

y 
wh

ich
 c

rea
tes

 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 f
or 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 t
o 

the
 n

atu
ral
 e

nv
iro
nm

en
t 
by
 

lin
kin

g 
ha
bit
ats

 a
nd
 sp

ec
ies

 in
 g
ree

n 
ne
tw
ork

s. 
Ne

w 
tre

e-p
lan

tin
g 

co
uld

 pl
ay
 an

 im
po
rta

nt 
rol
e i
n d

eli
ve
rin
g t
he
se
 ne

tw
ork

s. 
 3.1

1 T
his

 in
ve
stm

en
t in

 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e i
s e

ss
en
tia
l if
 w
e a

re 
to 

cre
ate

 
su
cc
es
sfu

l s
us
tai
na
ble

 m
ixe

d c
om

mu
nit
ies

, a
nd
 th

e c
os
t is

 lik
ely

 to
 

be
 s

ev
era

l h
un
dre

d 
mi
llio

n 
po
un
ds
. W

hil
e 

the
 p

ub
lic 

se
cto

r 
is 

co
mm

itte
d t

o i
nv
es
tin
g i
n t

he
 ar

ea
, a

 si
gn
ific

an
t p

art
 of

 th
e c

os
t w

ill 
ha
ve
 to

 be
 pa

id 
for

 by
 de

ve
lop

ers
 an

d l
an
do
wn

ers
 w
ho
 sh

ou
ld 
tak

e 
ac
co
un
t o
f th

is 
wh

en
 ne

go
tia
tin
g t
he
 pr

ice
 pa

id 
for

 la
nd
.  

3.1
2 

W
e 

als
o 

ne
ed
 i

nv
es
tm

en
t 

in 
ne
w 

wa
ste

-m
an
ag
em

en
t 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
su
ch
 a

s 
rec

yc
lin
g, 

co
mp

os
tin
g 

an
d 

en
erg

y 
fro

m 
wa

ste
. M

os
t o

f th
is 
sh
ou
ld 

be
 lo

ca
ted

 in
 th

e s
tra

teg
ic 
gro

wt
h a

rea
s 

clo
se
 to
 Ab

erd
ee
n o

r in
 Ab

erd
ee
n i
tse

lf. 
 3.1

3 
All
 fo

ur 
str
ate

gic
 g

row
th 

are
as
 s

ho
uld

 fo
cu
s 

on
 c

rea
tin
g 

su
sta

ina
ble

 m
ixe

d 
co
mm

un
itie

s 
wit

h 
the

 s
erv

ice
s, 

fac
iliti

es
 a

nd
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
ne
ce
ss
ary

 fo
r th

e 2
1s
t c
en
tur

y. 
 

 3.1
4 W

e d
isc

us
s e

ac
h o

f th
e f
ou
r a

rea
s i
n d

eta
il b

elo
w.
 

 

Page 38



7 

Lo
ca
l g
ro
wt
h a
nd
 di
ve
rsi
fic
ati
on
 ar
ea
s  

 3.1
5 M

os
t o

f A
be
rde

en
sh
ire
 is
 id
en
tifi
ed
 in
 th

is 
pla

n f
or 

loc
al 
gro

wt
h 

an
d d

ive
rsi
fic
ati
on
. T

he
se
 ar

ea
s a

re 
im
po
rta

nt 
as
se
ts 

to 
the

 N
ort

h 
Ea

st 
an
d 
Sc

otl
an
d 
as
 a
 w

ho
le,
 p
rov

idi
ng
 a
rea

s o
f r
ich

 ag
ric
ult
ura

l 
lan

d a
s w

ell
 as

 hi
gh
 en

vir
on
me

nta
l q

ua
lity

 fo
r t
ou
ris
m 

an
d o

utd
oo
r 

rec
rea

tio
n. 

Th
e 
tow

ns
 a
nd
 vi

lla
ge
s 
ref

lec
t t
he
 d
iffe

ren
t r
ole

s 
the

y 
ha
ve
 pl
ay
ed
 ov

er 
tim

e. 
 3.1

6 
Fis

hin
g, 

far
mi
ng
 a

nd
 fo

res
try
 a

re 
im
po
rta

nt 
se
cto

rs 
of 

the
 

ec
on
om

y. 
Ho

we
ve
r, t

he
re 

is 
a n

ee
d f

or 
div

ers
ific

ati
on
 an

d g
row

th 
in 

the
 e
co
no
my

 in
 th

is 
are

a 
to 

me
et 

loc
al 

ne
ed
s, 

wit
h 
tou

ris
t-re

lat
ed
 

de
ve
lop

me
nts

 h
av
ing

 a
 r
ole

 to
 p

lay
. E

nc
ou
rag

ing
 e

mp
loy

me
nt 

gro
wt
h 

in 
the

se
 a

rea
s 

is 
a 

ce
ntr

al 
pa
rt 

of 
ma

kin
g 

the
m 

mo
re 

su
sta

ina
ble

 an
d r

ed
uc
ing

 th
e n

ee
d t

o c
om

mu
te,

 w
ith
 its

 ec
on
om

ic,
 

so
cia

l a
nd
 en

vir
on
me

nta
l c
on
se
qu
en
ce
s. 

 3.1
7 

Inc
rea

sin
g 

tre
e 

co
ve
r 
ca
n 

bri
ng
 s

ign
ific

an
t e

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
, 

ec
on
om

ic,
 so

cia
l a

nd
 co

mm
un
ity
 b
en
efi
ts 

if n
ew

 p
lan

tin
g 
res

pe
cts

 
the

 di
ffe
ren

t fu
nc
tio
ns
 of

 th
e l
an
d c

on
ce
rne

d a
nd
 its

 ro
le 

in 
a w

ide
r 

gre
en
 ne

tw
ork

. T
he
re 

is 
cle

ar 
po
ten

tia
l to

 in
cre

as
e t

he
 tre

e c
ov
er 

of 
thi
s a

rea
 w
hil
e r

es
pe
cti
ng
 th

e c
om

pe
tin
g i
nte

res
ts 
for

 la
nd
. T

his
 w
ill 

co
ntr

ibu
te 

to 
a w

ide
r S

co
ttis

h G
ov
ern

me
nt 

tar
ge
t o

f in
cre

as
ing

 tre
e 

co
ve
r a

nd
 re

co
gn
isin

g t
he
 ro

le 
of 

wo
od
lan

d i
n r

ed
uc
ing

 th
e c

au
se
s 

of 
clim

ate
 ch

an
ge
 (k
no
wn

 as
 m

itig
ati
on
). 

 3.1
8 
W
e 
ne
ed
 to

 im
pro

ve
 s
om

e 
of 

the
 ro

ad
 in

fra
str
uc
tur

e 
in 

the
 

are
a, 

pa
rtic

ula
rly
 t

ho
se
 l
ink

s 
to 

an
d 

fro
m 

no
rth

ern
 c

oa
sta

l 
co
mm

un
itie

s s
uc
h a

s F
ras

erb
urg

h a
nd
 B
an
ff. 

Th
is 
wil

l s
up
po
rt v

ita
l 

ec
on
om

ic 
gro

wt
h a

nd
 re

ge
ne
rat

ion
 in

 th
is 
are

a. 
Th

is 
are

a w
ill 
als

o 
pla

y a
 pa

rt i
n s

up
po
rtin

g n
ew

 su
sta

ina
ble

 en
erg

y i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re,

 an
d 

ha
rbo

urs
 a

lon
g 

the
 n

ort
h 

co
as
t m

ay
 p

lay
 a

 r
ole

 in
 s

up
ply

ing
 

se
rvi
ce
s t
o o

ffs
ho
re 

ren
ew

ab
le 
en
erg

y f
ac
iliti

es
. 

 3.1
9 L

ev
els

 of
 gr

ow
th 

in 
ind

ivid
ua
l s
ett

lem
en
ts 
sh
ou
ld 
rel
ate

 to
 lo
ca
l 

ne
ed
s, 

alt
ho
ug
h 
the

 s
ca
le 

of 
thi
s 
gro

wt
h 
wil

l v
ary

 fr
om

 p
lac

e 
to 

pla
ce
. 
W
hil
e 

we
 s

ho
uld

 a
im
 t

o 
pro

vid
e 

a 
mi
x 

of 
ho
us
ing

 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r e

ve
ryo

ne
, w

e 
ne
ed
 to

 fo
cu
s o

n p
rov

idi
ng
 sm

all
er 

ho
me

s 
to 

bu
y 

or 
ren

t, 
an
d 

a 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
am

ou
nt 

of 
aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us
ing

. W
e n

ee
d t

o g
ive

 pr
ior
ity
 to

 m
ixe

d-u
se
 de

ve
lop

me
nts

 w
hic

h 
res

pe
ct 
the

 ch
ara

cte
r o

f th
e l
an
ds
ca
pe
 an

d l
oc
al 
ide

nti
ty.
 

 3.2
0 
Ho

us
ing

 a
llo
wa

nc
es
 fo

r t
his

 a
rea

 a
re 

se
t o

ut 
be
low

, w
hil
e 

em
plo

ym
en
t la

nd
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 m
ad
e a

va
ila
ble

 to
 m
ee
t lo

ca
l n
ee
ds
. 

  
Ho

us
ing

 al
low

an
ce
s 

 
Ex
ist
ing
 LD
P 

all
oc
ati
on
s t
o 

20
16
 

20
17
-20

26
 

20
27
-20

35
 

Lo
ca
l g
row

th 
(A
HM

A)
 

1,0
00
 

1,3
50
 

1,3
50
 

Lo
ca
l g
row

th 
(R
HM

A)
 

4,2
00
 

4,0
00
 

4,0
00
 

 3.2
1 I

n t
his

 ar
ea
, th

ere
 w
ill 
co
nti
nu
e t

o b
e p

res
su
re 

for
 ho

us
ing

 in
 

the
 c
ou
ntr

ys
ide

 w
hic

h 
is 

no
t c

on
ne
cte

d 
to 

ex
ist
ing

 s
ett

lem
en
ts.
 

Ho
we

ve
r, 
loc

al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
ns
, i
n 
lin
e 
wit

h 
Sc

ott
ish

 P
lan

nin
g 

Po
licy

, s
ho
uld

 ap
pro

ac
h t

his
 by

 fo
cu
sin

g n
ew

 ho
us
ing

 in
, o

r a
s a

n 
ex
ten

sio
n t

o, 
ex
ist
ing

 se
ttle

me
nts

, p
art

icu
lar
ly 
tho

se
 w
hic

h a
re 

we
ll 

se
rve

d 
by
 p
ub
lic 

tra
ns
po
rt. 

Th
is 

wil
l h

elp
 to

 c
rea

te 
an
d 
ma

int
ain

 
su
cc
es
sfu

l p
lac

es
 an

d b
e m

ore
 su

sta
ina

ble
. 

 3.2
2 
In 

so
me

 ca
se
s, 

de
ve
lop

me
nts

 w
hic

h 
aim

 to
 m

ee
t m

ore
 th

an
 

loc
al 

ne
ed
s m

ay
 n
ee
d 
to 

be
 b
as
ed
 in

 th
is 

are
a, 

su
ch
 a
s m

ine
ral
 

ex
tra

cti
on
. I

n 
the

se
 c

as
es
, d

ev
elo

pe
rs 

wil
l n

ee
d 

to 
jus

tify
 th

is 
ag
ain

st 
the

 a
im
s, 

str
ate

gy
, o

bje
cti
ve
s 
an
d 

tar
ge
ts 

of 
thi
s 
pla

n. 
Me

eti
ng
 re

ge
ne
rat

ion
 ne

ed
s c

ou
ld 
be
 on

e p
art

 of
 th
is 
jus

tifi
ca
tio
n. 

  

Page 39



8 

Re
ge
ne
rat
ion
 pr
ior
ity
 ar
ea
s  

3.2
3 

Re
ge
ne
rat

ion
 is

 a
 v

ita
l p

art
 o

f t
he
 s

tra
teg

y 
of 

thi
s 

pla
n. 

Ine
qu
ali
ty 

ex
ist
s i
n s

om
e p

art
s o

f th
e a

rea
 an

d t
he
se
 ar

ea
s w

ill 
no
t 

me
et 

the
ir 

ful
l p

ote
nti
al 

un
les

s 
we

 ta
ke
 p

os
itiv

e 
ste

ps
. T

he
se
 

ac
tio
ns
 a
re 

ne
ed
ed
 to

 su
pp
ort

 on
go
ing

 co
mm

un
ity
 ef

for
ts 

an
d 
wil

l 
inv

olv
e 

for
mi
ng
 p

art
ne
rsh

ips
 a

cro
ss
 t

he
 p

ub
lic,

 p
riv
ate

 a
nd
 

vo
lun

tar
y s

ec
tor

s, 
an
d w

ill 
foc

us
 on

 ac
hie

vin
g c

lea
r r
es
ult
s. 
W
ork

 is
 

alr
ea
dy
 go

ing
 on

 bu
t n
ee
ds
 to
 co

nti
nu
e a

nd
 in
cre

as
e. 

 3.2
4 T

he
 ar

ea
s i
n n

ee
d o

f re
ge
ne
rat

ion
 ar

e i
de
nti
fie
d b

roa
dly

 in
 th

is 
pla

n 
bu
t a

re 
foc

us
ed
 o
n 
the

 n
ee
ds
 o
f e

xis
tin
g 
co
mm

un
itie

s. 
Th

ey
 

inc
lud

e 
so
me

 o
f 
the

 c
oa
sta

l c
om

mu
nit
ies

 o
f 
no
rth

 a
nd
 s

ou
th 

Ab
erd

ee
ns
hir
e (

inc
lud

ing
 th

e t
wo

 la
rge

st 
tow

ns
 of

 Fr
as
erb

urg
h a

nd
 

Pe
ter

he
ad
), 
as
 w

ell
 a
s p

art
s o

f A
be
rde

en
 (t
he
 C

ity
 C

en
tre

 a
nd
 a
 

nu
mb

er 
of 

its
 co

mm
un
itie

s).
 Im

pro
vin

g t
he
 ec

on
om

y, 
en
vir
on
me

nta
l 

qu
ali
ty,
 

ac
ce
ss
ibi
lity

, 
em

plo
ym

en
t 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 
an
d 

the
 

co
mp

eti
tiv
en
es
s o

f b
us
ine

ss
 sh

ou
ld 

pla
y a

 p
art

icu
lar
 ro

le 
in 

the
se
 

are
as
. 

 3.2
5 
Th

e 
ch
all
en
ge
s 
an
d 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 in
 th

es
e 
are

as
 a
re 

wid
e-

ran
gin

g a
nd
 de

ma
nd
 a 

res
po
ns
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 

to 
the

 pa
rtic

ula
r a

rea
. 

W
e m

us
t d

o e
ve
ryt
hin

g w
e c

an
 an

d e
xp
lor
e f

un
din

g t
o b

rin
g a

bo
ut 

po
sit
ive

 c
ha
ng
e 

in 
the

se
 c
om

mu
nit
ies

. T
his

 c
ha
ng
e 

mu
st 

bri
ng
 

las
tin
g 

be
ne
fits

 a
nd
 h

av
e 

po
sit
ive

 e
ffe
cts

 o
n 

the
ir 

vit
ali
ty 

an
d 

via
bil
ity
. 

 3.2
6 
Op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r r
ed
ev
elo

pin
g 
bro

wn
fie
ld 

sit
es
 w

ill 
va
ry 

fro
m 

pla
ce
 to

 pl
ac
e a

nd
 ov

er 
tim

e b
ut 

ne
ed
 to

 be
 a 

cle
ar 

pri
ori
ty.
 S
uc
h 

red
ev
elo

pm
en
t s

ho
uld

 r
es
pe
ct 

the
 c

ha
rac

ter
 o

f t
he
 lo

ca
l a

rea
, 

im
pro

ve
 th

e q
ua
lity

 of
 th

e e
nv
iro
nm

en
t, u

se
 hi
gh
-qu

ali
ty 
de
sig

n a
nd
 

inc
lud

e a
 m
ix 
of 

us
es
. 

 3.2
7 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

Cit
y 

Co
un
cil 

is 
cu
rre

ntl
y 

de
ve
lop

ing
 a

 n
ew

 
fra

me
wo

rk 
for

 re
ge
ne
rat

ion
 to

 re
pla

ce
 its

 st
rat

eg
y o

f 2
00
7. 

Th
is 
wil

l 
int
eg
rat

e s
oc
ial
, e

co
no
mi
c a

nd
 ar

ea
-ba

se
d i
nit
iat
ive

s i
n a

 nu
mb

er 
of 

pa
rts
 o

f t
he
 c
ity
. A

s 
we

ll 
as
 re

dir
ec
tin
g 

ex
ist
ing

 s
pe
nd
ing

, t
he
 

str
ate

gy
 w
ill 
loo

k a
t a

cc
es
s t

o n
ew

 fu
nd
ing

 so
urc

es
 an

d t
he
 us

e o
f 

its
 ow

n a
ss
et 
ba
se
 to
 st
im
ula

te 
ne
w 
inv

es
tm

en
t.  

 3.2
8 

Ab
erd

ee
ns
hir
e 

Co
un
cil 

de
ve
lop

ed
 

a 
‘Fr

am
ew

ork
 

for
 

Re
ge
ne
rat

ion
’ in

 2
01
0 
an
d 
thi
s i

s s
up
po
rte

d 
by
 a
 se

rie
s o

f a
cti
on
 

pla
ns
. T

he
se
 ar

e b
as
ed
 on

 th
e n

ee
ds
 an

d o
pp
ort

un
itie

s o
f p

art
icu

lar
 

co
mm

un
itie

s 
an
d 

co
ve
r 
im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 th
e 

bu
ilt 

an
d 

na
tur

al 
en
vir
on
me

nt,
 ac

tio
ns
 to

 im
pro

ve
 to

wn
-ce

ntr
e v

ita
lity

, a
nd
 m

ea
su
res

 
to 

im
pro

ve
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r e

mp
loy

me
nt.

  
 3.2

9 
Im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 tr
an
sp
ort

 a
re 

pa
rtic

ula
rly
 im

po
rta

nt 
to 

the
 

co
as
tal
 c

om
mu

nit
ies

 o
f 
no
rth

 a
nd
 s

ou
th 

Ab
erd

ee
ns
hir
e. 

Th
e 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

W
es
ter

n 
Pe

rip
he
ral
 R

ou
te 

an
d 

du
all
ing

 o
f 
the

 A
90
 

be
tw
ee
n 

Ba
lm
ed
ie 

an
d 

Tip
pe
rty
 a

re 
im
po
rta

nt 
pro

jec
ts 

to 
he
lp 

tac
kle

 th
es
e 

iss
ue
s. 

Ho
we

ve
r, 

fur
the

r i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 

to 
the

 A
90
 

no
rth

 of
 A
be
rde

en
 an

d b
ett

er 
lin
ks
 to

 th
e t

run
k r

oa
d n

etw
ork

 (s
uc
h 

as
 i

mp
rov

em
en
ts 

to 
the

 A
94
7 

an
d 

A9
52
 f

rom
 B

an
ff 

an
d 

Fra
se
rbu

rgh
) w

ill 
als

o 
he
lp 

im
pro

ve
 a
cc
es
s t

o 
ma

rke
ts.
 A
cc
es
s t

o 
se
rvi
ce
s 

an
d 

em
plo

ym
en
t 

in 
so
uth

 A
be
rde

en
sh
ire
 i

s 
be
ing

 
su
pp
ort

ed
 th
rou

gh
 ac

tio
n b

y c
om

mu
nit
ies

.  
 3.3

0 
Th

e 
qu
ali
ty 

of 
the

 e
nv
iro
nm

en
t v

ari
es
 fr

om
 a

rea
 to

 a
rea

, 
alt
ho
ug
h 

it 
wil

l b
e 

po
ss
ibl
e 

to 
fur

the
r d

ev
elo

p 
tou

ris
m 

in 
so
me

 
co
as
tal
 ar

ea
s. 

Page 40



9 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 

3.3
1 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

is 
Sc

otl
an
d’s

 th
ird
-la
rge

st 
cit
y 
an
d 

the
 re

gio
na
l 

ce
ntr

e f
or 

em
plo

ym
en
t, r

eta
il, 
cu
ltu
re,

 he
alt
h a

nd
 hi

gh
er 

ed
uc
ati
on
 

as
 w
ell
 as

 be
ing

 th
e r

eg
ion

’s 
tra

ns
po
rt h

ub
 – 

wit
h r

oa
d, 

rai
l, s

ea
 an

d 
air
 lin

ks
. 

 3.3
2 A

rou
nd
 h
alf
 of

 a
ll n

ew
 d
ev
elo

pm
en
t in

 th
e 
cit
y r

eg
ion

 w
ill 
be
 

wit
hin

 Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
. W

hil
e w

e p
ref

er 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

to 
tak

e p
lac

e o
n 

bro
wn

fie
ld 
sit
es
, th

e s
ca
le 
of 

gro
wt
h w

e e
xp
ec
t w

ill 
me

an
 th

at 
mo

re 
tha

n h
alf
 of

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t w

ill 
ne
ed
 to

 ta
ke
 pl

ac
e o

n g
ree

nfi
eld

 
sit
es
. R

ed
uc
ing

 tr
av
el 

dis
tan

ce
s a

nd
 m

ak
ing

 w
alk

ing
, c

yc
lin
g 
an
d 

pu
bli
c t

ran
sp
ort

 m
ore

 a
ttra

cti
ve
 to

 p
eo
ple

 is
 vi

tal
. W

e 
wil

l n
ee
d 
to 

ma
ke
 su

re 
tha

t o
ne
 or

 tw
o s

ec
on
da
ry 

sc
ho
ols

, a
ss
oc
iat
ed
 pr

im
ary

 
sc
ho
ols

 an
d i

mp
rov

em
en
ts 

to 
tra

ns
po
rt 
inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
are

 pr
ov
ide

d 
to 

se
rve

 ne
w 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
in 
the

 ci
ty.
  

 3.3
3 H

ou
sin

g a
nd
 em

plo
ym

en
t a

llo
wa

nc
es
 fo
r A

be
rde

en
 

  
Ho

us
ing

 al
low

an
ce
s 

 
Ex

ist
ing

 LD
P a

llo
ca
tio
ns
 

to 
20
16
 

20
17
-20

26
 

20
27
-20

35
 

Br
ow

nfi
eld

 
4,5

00
 

3,0
00
 

3,0
00
 

Gr
ee
nfi
eld

 
12
,00

0 
5,0

00
 

4,0
00
 

 
 

 
 

 
Em

plo
ym

en
t la

nd
 al
low

an
ce
s (
he
cta

res
) 

 
10
5 

70
 

 3.3
4 W

e h
av
e p

lan
ne
d a

 w
ide

 ra
ng
e o

f tr
an
sp
ort

 m
ea
su
res

 to
 ei
the

r 
tac

kle
 e
xis

tin
g 
pro

ble
ms

 o
r s

up
po
rt 
the

 g
row

th 
pla

nn
ed
 o
ve
r t
he
 

ne
xt 

20
 to

 25
 ye

ars
. W

hil
e c

on
ge
sti
on
 is
 a 

ke
y f

ac
tor

, re
du
cin

g t
he
 

eff
ec
t o

f t
ran

sp
ort

 o
n 

the
 e

nv
iro
nm

en
t (

inc
lud

ing
 im

pro
vin

g 
air
 

qu
ali
ty)
 is

 a
lso

 im
po
rta

nt.
 S

ub
sta

nti
al 

pu
bli
c- 

se
cto

r f
un
din

g 
wil

l 
de
live

r t
he
 A
be
rde

en
 W

es
ter

n P
eri
ph
era

l R
ou
te 

an
d p

ark
-an

d-r
ide

 
at 

its
 ju

nc
tio
n 

wit
h 

the
 A

96
 a

s 
we

ll 
as
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to

 th
e 

Ha
ud
ag
ain

 R
ou
nd
ab
ou
t a

nd
 a

 n
ew

 b
rid
ge

 o
ve
r t

he
 R

ive
r D

on
. 

Fu
rth

er 
pro

po
sa
ls 
to 

su
pp
ort

 gr
ow

th 
inc

lud
e: 

• 
ne
w 

bu
s 
se
rvi
ce
s 
an
d 

ac
tio
n 

to 
giv

e 
pri
ori
ty 

to 
bu
se
s 
an
d 

inc
rea

se
 th
eir
 fre

qu
en
cy
; 

• 
jun

cti
on
 i

mp
rov

em
en
ts 

on
 t

he
 A

96
, 

A9
44
, 

A9
56
, 

A9
0, 

Kin
gs
we

lls 
No

rth
 an

d P
ark

hil
l;  

• 
sa
fet

y i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 
on
 th
e a

cc
es
s r
oa
d t

o t
he
 A9

3; 
• 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to
 th
e P

ark
wa

y a
nd
 Pe

rsl
ey
 Br

idg
e; 

an
d 

• 
a l
ink

 ov
er 

the
 R
ive

r D
ee
.  

 3.3
5 
Co

mm
un
ica

tio
n 
an
d 
tra

ns
po
rt 
lin
ks
 a
re 

cri
tic
al 

to 
the

 fu
tur

e 
pro

sp
eri
ty 
of 

the
 ci
ty 
reg

ion
, a

nd
 Ab

erd
ee
n A

irp
ort

 ha
s a

 vi
tal
 ro

le 
to 

pla
y 
in 

ma
int
ain

ing
 a

nd
 im

pro
vin

g 
the

se
 b

oth
 d

om
es
tic
all
y 
an
d 

int
ern

ati
on
all
y. 

Im
pro

ve
me

nts
 at

 th
e a

irp
ort

 ar
e n

ee
de
d t

o i
mp

rov
e 

cu
sto

me
rs’
 ex

pe
rie
nc
e a

nd
 in
cre

as
e t

he
 nu

mb
er 

of 
tra

ve
lle
rs 

it c
an
 

su
pp
ort

 w
hil
e k

ee
pin

g t
he
 ef

fec
t o

n t
he
 en

vir
on
me

nt 
to 

a m
ini
mu

m.
 

Ac
ce
ss
 to

 th
e a

irp
ort

 al
so
 ne

ed
s t

o b
e i
mp

rov
ed
, in

clu
din

g b
uil
din

g 
the

 Ab
erd

ee
n W

es
ter

n P
eri
ph
era

l R
ou
te 
an
d o

the
r re

lat
ed
 pr

oje
cts

. 
 3.3

6 A
be
rde

en
 H
arb

ou
r is

 a 
vit
al 
ga
tew

ay
 fo

r th
e r

eg
ion

al 
ec
on
om

y 
an
d p

rov
ide

s i
mp

ort
an
t p

as
se
ng
er 

an
d f

rei
gh
t li
nk
s t

o t
he
 N
ort

he
rn 

Isl
es
. T

he
 ha

rbo
ur 

ha
s b

ee
n i
de
nti
fie
d a

s a
 ke

y p
ort

 in
 th

e N
ati
on
al 

Re
ne
wa

ble
s I

nfr
as
tru

ctu
re 

Pla
n. 

W
ork

 w
ill 
be
 ne

ed
ed
 to

 se
t o

ut 
in 

mo
re 

de
tai
l th

e l
ike

ly 
im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 of

 th
is 
(bu

ild
ing

 on
 ‘T

he
 C
as
e f

or 
Gr
ow

th’
) a

nd
 ho

w 
the

 gr
ow

th 
of 

the
 ha

rbo
ur 

ca
n b

e a
cc
om

mo
da
ted

 
to 

inf
orm

 th
e 
ne
xt 

loc
al 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n. 

Gi
ve
n 
its
 c
ity
-ce

ntr
e 

loc
ati
on
, t
his

 w
ork

 s
ho
uld

 ta
ke
 in

to 
ac
co
un
t t
he
 w

ide
r c

ity
-ce

ntr
e 

reg
en
era

tio
n 

as
 p

art
 o

f 
the

 c
urr

en
t 
Cit

y 
Ce

ntr
e 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

Fra
me

wo
rk 
an
d t
he
 co

mp
eti
ng
 de

ma
nd
s f
or 

lan
d. 
 

 3.3
7 A

be
rde

en
 C
ity
 ce

ntr
e i

s a
n i

mp
ort

an
t a

ss
et 

for
 th

e r
eg
ion

 bu
t 

its
 re

ge
ne
rat

ion
 is
 vi
tal
 fo

r th
e e

co
no
mi
c f
utu

re 
of 

the
 ar

ea
 an

d h
ow

  
po
ten

tia
l in

ve
sto

rs 
an
d r

es
ide

nts
 se

e i
t. D

eta
ils 

on
 th

is 
are

 in
clu

de
d 

in 
the

 C
ity
 C

en
tre

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t F

ram
ew

ork
 b
ut 

we
 n
ee
d 
to 

tak
e 

de
ter

mi
ne
d a

cti
on
 to

 cr
ea
te 

a c
ity
 ce

ntr
e t

o b
e p

rou
d o

f a
nd
 w
hic

h 
ref

lec
ts 

the
 g
lob

al 
sta

tus
 a
nd
 a
mb

itio
ns
 o
f t
he
 ci

ty 
an
d 
the

 w
ide

r 
reg

ion
. T

he
 B
us
ine

ss
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Dis

tric
t (
BID

), 
se
t u

p 
in 

20
11
, 

wa
s a

 m
ajo

r in
itia

tiv
e a

nd
 sh

ow
ed
 th

at 
the

 pr
iva

te 
se
cto

r w
as
 w
illin

g 

Page 41



10
 

to 
ac
tiv
ely

 ta
ke
 p
art

 in
 th

is 
pro

ce
ss
. T

he
re 

ne
ed
s t

o 
be
 a
 st

ron
g 

foc
us
 on

 im
pro

vin
g t

he
 qu

ali
ty 
of  

the
 ci
ty 
ce
ntr

e’s
 sh

op
pin

g, 
lei
su
re,

 
co
mm

erc
ial
 

an
d 

res
ide

nti
al 

en
vir
on
me

nt 
– 

wit
h 

pa
rtia

l 
pe
de
str
ian

isa
tio
n o

f U
nio

n S
tre

et 
ha
vin

g a
n i
mp

ort
an
t ro

le.
  

 3.3
8 A

be
rde

en
 ha

s a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
co
mm

un
itie

s w
hic

h 
wo

uld
 be

ne
fit 

fro
m 

reg
en
era

tio
n. 

Th
es
e a

re 
lar
ge
ly 
are

as
 w
ith
 a 

hig
h p

erc
en
tag

e 
of 

so
cia

l h
ou
sin

g 
bu
ilt 

in 
the

 1
96
0s
 w

hic
h 

no
 lo

ng
er 

pro
vid

e 
sa
tis
fac

tor
y l
ivin

g c
on
dit
ion

s. 
Th

ere
 is
 m

ore
 de

tai
l a

bo
ut 

thi
s i
n t

he
 

Re
ge
ne
rat

ion
 Pr

ior
ity
 Ar

ea
 th
em

e b
elo

w.
 

 3.3
9 

Tw
o 

po
ss
ibl
e 

loc
ati
on
s 

are
 s

ho
wn

 fo
r a

 n
ew

 C
om

mu
nit
y 

Sta
diu

m 
to 

su
pp
ort

 th
e g

row
ing

 sp
ort

ing
 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e o
f th

e c
ity
. 

   

Page 42



11
 

Ab
erd

ee
n t

o H
un

tly
  

3.4
0 

Th
is 
are

a i
s t
he
 ke

y c
orr

ido
r li
nk
ing

 Ab
erd

ee
n a

nd
 In

ve
rne

ss
 

an
d c

on
tai
ns
 se

ve
ral
 th
riv
ing

 Ab
erd

ee
ns
hir
e c

om
mu

nit
ies

. 
Sig

nif
ica

nt 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

wil
l ta

ke
 pl
ac
e i
n t

he
 31

-m
ile
 ro

ad
 an

d r
ail
 

co
rrid

or 
str
etc

hin
g f
rom

 H
un
tly
 to

 Bl
ac
kb
urn

. D
ev
elo

pm
en
t a
t th

e 
so
uth

ern
 en

d o
f th

e c
orr

ido
r w

ill b
e m

ain
ly 
foc

us
ed
 to
wa

rds
 th

e e
nd
 

of 
the

 pl
an
 pe

rio
d, 
be
yo
nd
 20

27
, w

hil
e f

urt
he
r n

ort
h i
t w

ill b
e s

pre
ad
 

thr
ou
gh
ou
t th

e p
eri
od
 of
 th
e p

lan
.  

Ho
us
ing

 an
d e

mp
loy

me
nt 
all
ow

an
ce
s f
or 

thi
s a

rea
 

  
Ho

us
ing

 al
low

an
ce
s 

 
Ex

ist
ing

 LD
P 

all
oc
ati
on
s t
o 

20
16
 

20
17
-20

26
 

20
27
-20

35
 

Inv
eru

rie
 - B

lac
kb
urn

 
1,0

00
 

1,5
00
 

4,0
00
 

Hu
ntl
y -
 Pi

tca
ple

 
30
0 

50
0 

20
0 

 
 

 
 

 
Em

plo
ym

en
t la

nd
 al
low

an
ce
s (
he
cta

res
) 

Hu
ntl
y -
 Bl

ac
kb
urn

 
42

 
28

 

 3.4
1 

So
uth

 o
f 

Inv
eru

rie
 t

he
 c

orr
ido

r 
is 

se
rve

d 
by
 a

 d
ua
l 

ca
rria

ge
wa

y t
o A

be
rde

en
, w

ith
 th

e S
co
ttis

h G
ov
ern

me
nt 

co
mm

itte
d 

to 
co
mp

let
ing

 th
e 

A9
6 

du
al 

ca
rria

ge
wa

y 
be
tw
ee
n 

Inv
eru

rie
 a

nd
 

Inv
ern

es
s 

ov
er 

the
 li

fet
im
e 

of 
thi
s 

pla
n. 

Ho
we

ve
r, 

sh
ort

-te
rm

 
im
pro

ve
me

nts
 w
ill 
als

o b
e m

ad
e (

su
ch
 as

 re
pla

cin
g t

he
 In

ve
ram

sa
y 

Br
idg

e 
to 

all
ow

 tw
o-w

ay
 tr

aff
ic)
 b
efo

re 
the

 m
ore

 c
om

pre
he
ns
ive

 
up
gra

de
 
pla

nn
ed
 
for

 
lat
er 

in 
the

 
pla

n 
pe
rio
d. 

Sig
nif
ica

nt 
im
pro

ve
me

nts
 ar

e a
lso

 pl
an
ne
d t

o t
he
 A
be
rde

en
-In

ve
rne

ss
 ra

ilw
ay
 

lin
e, 

wit
h m

ore
 se

rvi
ce
s, 
sh
ort

er 
jou

rne
y t
im
es
 an

d a
 ne

w 
sta

tio
n a

t 
Kin

tor
e. 

W
e w

ill 
als

o l
oo
k a

t fu
rth

er 
im
pro

ve
me

nts
, in

 th
e f

orm
 of

 a 
mo

re 
loc

al 
rai
l s

erv
ice

 t
o 

be
tte

r 
se
rve

 c
om

mu
ter

s, 
sh
op
pe
rs,
 

stu
de
nts

 an
d v

isit
ors

. T
his

 w
ill 
be
 su

pp
ort

ed
 by

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
thi
s 

co
rrid

or.
 B
us
 se

rvi
ce
s o

n 
thi
s c

orr
ido

r a
re 

alr
ea
dy
 g
oo
d, 

alt
ho
ug
h 

we
 w
ill 
ne
ed
 to

 m
ak
e f

urt
he
r im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to

 m
ak
e t

he
se
 se

rvi
ce
s 

an
 e

ve
n 

mo
re 

att
rac

tiv
e 

ch
oic

e. 
W
e 

wil
l 
ne
ed
 t
o 

pro
vid

e 
a 

se
co
nd
ary

 s
ch
oo
l a

nd
 a

ss
oc
iat
ed
 p

rim
ary

 s
ch
oo
ls 

in 
thi
s 
are

a. 
Se

ve
ral
 t
run

k 
roa

d 
jun

cti
on
s 

wil
l 
als

o 
ne
ed
 t
o 

be
 i
mp

rov
ed
, 

inc
lud

ing
 th

os
e 
at 

Inv
eru

rie
, w

ith
 o
pp
ort

un
itie

s 
co
ns
ide

red
 fo

r a
n 

ea
ste

rn 
by
pa
ss
 fo
r th

e t
ow

n. 
 3.4

2 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

wil
l b

e 
su
pp
ort

ed
 b
y n

ew
 in

fra
str
uc
tur

e 
wit

hin
 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 su

ch
 as

 th
e A

be
rde

en
 W

es
ter

n P
eri
ph
era

l R
ou
te,
 a 

ne
w 

pa
rk-

an
d-r

ide
 s

ite
 a

t i
ts 

jun
cti
on
 w

ith
 th

e 
A9

6 
an
d 

oth
er 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 on

 th
e A

96
 co

rrid
or.

  
  

Page 43



12
 

Ab
erd

ee
n t

o L
au
ren

ce
kir

k 
3.4

3 
Th

is 
are

a 
is 

the
 ke

y c
orr

ido
r l
ink

ing
 th

e 
reg

ion
 w

ith
 ce

ntr
al 

an
d 
so
uth

ern
 S
co
tla
nd
 a
s w

ell
 a
s t

he
 re

st 
of 

the
 U

K 
by
 ro

ad
 a
nd
 

rai
l. 
Its
 m

ain
 s
ett

lem
en
t i
s 
Sto

ne
ha
ve
n 
wh

ere
 th

e 
Hig

hla
nd
 F
au
lt 

Lin
e m

ark
s t
he
 bo

un
da
ry 

be
tw
ee
n H

igh
lan

d a
nd
 Lo

wla
nd
 S
co
tla
nd
, 

wh
ich

 ca
n b

e s
ee
n i
n t
he
 ge

olo
gy
 an

d l
an
ds
ca
pe
 of
 th
e a

rea
. 

 3.4
4 

W
e 

are
 p

rop
os
ing

 s
ign

ific
an
t 
ne
w 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
the

 
no
rth

ern
 pa

rt 
of 

thi
s c

orr
ido

r e
arl
y i
n t

he
 pl

an
 pe

rio
d. 

A 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
ne
w 

se
ttle

me
nt 

is 
pla

nn
ed
 s
ou
th 

of 
Po

rtle
the

n 
at 

Ch
ap
elt
on
 o

f 
Els

ick
 w

hic
h 
ha
s t

he
 p
ote

nti
al 

to 
se
t t
he
 st

an
da
rd 

for
 fu

tur
e 
ne
w 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
in 
Ab

erd
ee
n C

ity
 an

d S
hir
e a

nd
 be

yo
nd
. 

 3.4
5 

Ne
w 
ho
us
ing

 an
d e

mp
loy

me
nt 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

is 
als

o p
rop

os
ed
 

in 
the

 so
uth

ern
 e
nd
 o
f t
he
 co

rrid
or 

as
 w

ell
, b

ut 
on
 a
 m

ore
 lim

ite
d 

sc
ale

. T
his

 w
ill 

be
 s

up
po
rte

d 
by
 a

 n
ew

 s
ec
on
da
ry 

sc
ho
ol 

in 
La
ure

nc
ek
irk
 (M

ea
rns

 A
ca
de
my

 C
om

mu
nit
y 
Ca

mp
us
) w

hic
h 

wil
l 

rep
lac

e t
he
 ex

ist
ing

 sc
ho
ol 
on
 a 
ne
arb

y s
ite
. 

 Ho
us
ing

 an
d e

mp
loy

me
nt 
all
ow

an
ce
s f
or 

thi
s a

rea
  

  
Ho

us
ing

 al
low

an
ce
s 

 
Ex
ist
ing
 LD
P 

all
oc
ati
on
s t
o 

20
16
 

20
17
-20
26
 
20
27
-20
35
 

Po
rtle
the
n –
 St
on
eh
av
en
 

2,2
00
 

2,4
00
 

1,0
00
 

So
uth
 of
 D
rum

lith
ie 
- L
au
ren
ce
kir
k 

50
0 

40
0 

10
0 

 
 

 
 

 
Em
plo
ym
en
t la
nd
 al
low
an
ce
s 

(he
cta
res
) 

Po
rtle
the
n -
 La
ure
nc
ek
irk
 

63
 

42
 

 3.4
6 

Im
pro

ve
d 

jun
cti
on
s 

on
 th

e 
A9

0 
wil

l a
lso

 b
e 

ne
ed
ed
 fo

r 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

at 
Els

ick
 a

nd
 L

au
ren

ce
kir
k 

(w
he
re 

ex
ist
ing

 s
afe

ty 
iss

ue
s a

lso
 ne

ed
 to
 be

 ta
ke
n i
nto

 ac
co
un
t) t

o g
o a

he
ad
. 

 

3.4
7 

Th
e s

ou
the

rn 
leg

 of
 th

e A
be
rde

en
 W

es
ter

n P
eri
ph
era

l R
ou
te 

pa
ss
es
 th

rou
gh
 th

e n
ort

he
rn 

pa
rt 
of 

thi
s a

rea
 an

d t
he
 F
as
tlin

k w
ill 

sig
nif
ica

ntl
y 
im
pro

ve
 a

cc
es
s 

fro
m 

the
 s

ou
th 

to 
the

 a
irp
ort

 a
nd
 

no
rth

ern
 A
be
rde

en
sh
ire
. A

 pa
rk-

an
d-r

ide
 w
ill 
be
 bu

ilt 
at 

Po
rtle

the
n 

so
 th

at 
tra

ffic
 he

ad
ing

 fo
r t
he
 ci
ty 

ca
n u

se
 m

ore
 su

sta
ina

ble
 tr
av
el 

for
 th

e l
as
t le

g o
f th

e j
ou
rne

y. 
 3.4

8 
A 

ne
w 

sta
tio
n 

op
en
ed
 a

t L
au
ren

ce
kir
k 
in 

20
09
 a

nd
 h

as
 

pro
ve
d 

ex
tre

me
ly 

po
pu
lar
, w

ith
 tw

ice
 th

e 
ex
pe
cte

d 
nu
mb

er 
of 

pa
ss
en
ge
rs 

alr
ea
dy
 u

sin
g 

it. 
W
e 

wil
l l
oo
k 

at 
the

 p
ote

nti
al 

for
 

de
ve
lop

ing
 a 

fur
the

r s
tat

ion
 at

 N
ew

ton
hil
l a

lon
gs
ide

 ot
he
r p

os
sib

le 
loc

ati
on
s 

wit
hin

 A
be
rde

en
. 

Ot
he
r 

rai
l 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 i

nc
lud

e 
im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to
 jo
urn

ey
 tim

es
 an

d e
lec

trif
ica

tio
n. 

 3.4
9 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

wil
l b

e 
su
pp
ort

ed
 b
y n

ew
 in

fra
str
uc
tur

e 
wit

hin
 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

Cit
y 

su
ch
 a

s 
a 

ne
w 

lin
k 

ov
er 

the
 R

ive
r 
De

e 
an
d 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to
 th
e A

95
6. 

 3.5
0 

W
e w

ill 
su
pp
ort

 pr
op
os
als

 ou
tw
ith
 th

e s
tra

teg
ic 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n a

rea
 w
hic

h r
ed
uc
e j
ou
rne

y t
im
es
 by

 ro
ad
 an

d r
ail
 so

uth
. 

Page 44



13
 

Ab
erd

ee
n t

o P
ete

rh
ea
d 

3.5
1 

Th
is 
are

a h
as
 im

po
rta

nt 
str
ate

gic
 as

se
ts,
 hi
gh
 en

vir
on
me

nta
l 

qu
ali
ty 
an
d s

ign
ific

an
t p
ote

nti
al 
for

 de
ve
lop

me
nt.

 En
erg

eti
ca
 is
 

alr
ea
dy
 he

lpi
ng
 to
 re

ali
se
 th

is 
po
ten

tia
l a
nd
 cr
ea
te 
a g

lob
al 
hu
b f

or 
the

 en
erg

y s
ec
tor

 in
 a 
firs

t-c
las

s c
oa
sta

l lo
ca
tio
n. 
Th

is 
is 
be
ing

 do
ne
 

thr
ou
gh
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 be

tw
ee
n t

he
 pu

bli
c a

nd
 pr

iva
te 

se
cto

rs.
 

3.5
2 

Bo
th 
em

plo
ym

en
t a
nd
 ho

us
ing

 la
nd
 w
ill b

e n
ee
de
d o

ve
r th

e 
pe
rio
d o

f th
e p

lan
, w

ith
 th

es
e a

llo
wa

nc
es
 se

t o
ut 

in 
fig
ure

 sd
f b

elo
w.
 

Cu
rre

nt 
pla

ns
 al
rea

dy
 id
en
tify

 la
nd
 up

 to
 20

26
, w

hil
e l
an
d i
de
nti
fie
d 

for
 th

e p
eri
od
 be

yo
nd
 20

27
 w
ill n

ee
d t

o b
e a

llo
ca
ted

 in
 fu
tur

e l
oc
al 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
pla

ns
. 

Ho
us
ing

 an
d e

mp
loy

me
nt 
all
ow

an
ce
s f
or 

thi
s a

rea
 

  
Ho
us
ing
 al
low
an
ce
s 

 
Ex
ist
ing
 LD
P 

All
oc
ati
on
s t
o 2
01
6 

20
17
-20
26
 

20
27
-20
35
 

Bla
ck
do
g -
 El
lon
 

80
0 

1,5
00
 

1,5
00
 

Ha
tto
n -
 Pe
ter
he
ad
 

80
0 

80
0 

60
0 

 
 

 
 

 
Em
plo
ym
en
t la
nd
 al
low
an
ce
s (
he
cta
res
) 

Bla
ck
do
g -
 Pe
ter
he
ad
 

45
ha
 

43
ha
 

 3.5
3 

Th
e 
no
rth

ern
 e
nd
 o
f t
he
 E

ne
rge

tic
a 
co
rrid

or 
ha
s 
a 
un
iqu

e 
op
po
rtu

nit
y t
o p

lay
 an

 im
po
rta

nt 
rol
e i
n t
he
 en

erg
y f
utu

re 
of 

Eu
rop

e. 
 

 • 
W
e n

ee
d t

o m
ak
e t

he
 be

st 
us
e o

f th
e d

ee
pw

ate
r o

pp
ort

un
itie

s 
at 

Pe
ter

he
ad
 P

ort
. 
It 

ha
s 

be
en
 id

en
tifi
ed
 in

 t
he
 N

ati
on
al 

Re
ne
wa

ble
s 

Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Pla

n 
an
d 

we
 n

ee
d 

to 
aid

 i
ts 

div
ers

ific
ati
on
 in

to 
oil
 a

nd
 g

as
 d

ec
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 a

s 
we

ll 
as
 

off
sh
ore

 re
ne
wa

ble
s. 
 

 • 
Th

e P
ete

rhe
ad
 an

d S
t F

erg
us
 ar

ea
 ha

s b
ee
n v

ita
l to

 th
e U

K 
oil
 

an
d g

as
 in
du
str
y o

ve
r th

e l
as
t 4

0 y
ea
rs 

an
d w

ill 
be
 w
ell
 in
to 

the
 

fut
ure

. 
It 

no
w 

als
o 

ha
s 

sig
nif
ica

nt 
po
ten

tia
l f

or 
ca
ptu

rin
g, 

tra
ns
po
rtin

g 
an
d 
sto

rin
g 
ca
rbo

n 
dio

xid
e 
un
de
r t
he
 N

ort
h 
Se

a 
(ca

rbo
n c

ap
tur

e a
nd
 st

ora
ge
). 
Th

is 
wo

uld
 m

ak
e e

xte
ns
ive

 us
e 

of 
ex
ist
ing

 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e, 
he
lp 
to 

de
live

r s
ign

ific
an
t re

du
cti
on
s i
n 

gre
en
ho
us
e 
ga
s 
em

iss
ion

s 
an
d 
pro

vid
e 
a 
ma

jor
 c
om

pe
titi
ve
 

ad
va
nta

ge
 in
 th
is 
em

erg
ing

 te
ch
no
log

y. 
 

 • 
Pe

ter
he
ad
 a
lso

 h
as
 th

e 
po
ten

tia
l t
o 
be
 a
n 
im
po
rta

nt 
hu
b 
in 
 

tra
ns
mi
ttin

g 
ren

ew
ab
le 

en
erg

y 
bo
th 

wit
hin

 th
e 
UK

 a
nd
 m

ore
 

wid
ely

 as
 pa

rt 
of 

a E
uro

pe
an
 ne

tw
ork

. It
s c

oa
sta

l lo
ca
tio
n a

nd
 

ex
ist
ing

 c
on
ne
cti
on
s 
ma

ke
 it
 a
n 
att
rac

tiv
e 
ch
oic

e 
for

 s
ub
se
a 

ca
ble

s a
nd
 th
eir
 on

sh
ore

 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e. 
 

 3.5
4 

Th
es
e n

ati
on
all
y a

nd
 in

ter
na
tio
na
lly 

im
po
rta

nt 
de
ve
lop

me
nts

 
ne
ed
 to

 be
 co

-or
din

ate
d e

ffe
cti
ve
ly 
(se

e f
igu

re 
sd
f). 

To
 ac

hie
ve
 th

is,
 

a d
ev
elo

pm
en
t fr

am
ew

ork
 w
ill 
be
 ne

ed
ed
 fo

r th
e s

ou
the

rn 
ga
tew

ay
 

to 
Pe

ter
he
ad
.  

 3.5
5 

Fu
rth

er 
so
uth

, r
ea
lisi

ng
 th

e e
co
no
mi
c p

ote
nti
al 

of 
the

 M
en
ie 

Es
tat

e 
go
lf 

res
ort

 w
ill 

be
 im

po
rta

nt 
as
 w

ell
 a

s 
de
live

rin
g 

vit
al 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
pro

jec
ts 

in 
the

 fir
st 

pla
n p

eri
od
 to

 en
co
ura

ge
 gr

ow
th.

 
Th

es
e 
inc

lud
e 
bu
ild
ing

 th
e 
Ab

erd
ee
n 
W
es
ter

n 
Pe

rip
he
ral
 R

ou
te,
 

ma
kin

g 
the

 
A9

0 
be
tw
ee
n 

Ba
lm
ed
ie 

an
d 

Tip
pe
rty
 
a 

du
al 

ca
rria

ge
wa

y, 
im
pro

vin
g t

he
 H

au
da
ga
in 

Ro
un
da
bo
ut 

an
d d

eli
ve
rin
g 

a n
ew

 br
idg

e o
ve
r th

e R
ive

r D
on
. U

nti
l 

thi
s 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
is 

in 
pla

ce
, 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
the

 s
ou
the

rn 
pa
rt 

of 
the

 co
rrid

or 
wil

l b
e 
lim

ite
d. 

Th
e f

oc
us
 

in 
the

 w
ho
le 

are
a 

ne
ed
s 

to 
be
 o

n 
de
ve
lop

ing
 

an
d 

div
ers

ify
ing

 
the

 
ec
on
om

y 
wit

h 
a 
str
on
g 
foc

us
 o
n 
the

 
qu
ali
ty 

of 
de
ve
lop

me
nt.
 W

e 
wil

l a
lso

 
ne
ed
 t
o 

pro
vid

e 
a 

ne
w 

se
co
nd
ary

 
sc
ho
ol 

an
d a

ss
oc
iat
ed
 pr

im
ary

 sc
ho
ol 

in 
thi
s a

rea
. 

Page 45



14
 

4 –
 O
bje

cti
ve
s 

  

Page 46



15
 

Ec
on
om
ic 
Gr
ow
th 

Ob
jec

tiv
e 

 To
 p
rov

ide
 o
pp
ort

un
itie

s w
hic

h 
en
co
ura

ge
 e
co
no
mi
c d

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

an
d 
cre

ate
 n
ew

 e
mp

loy
me

nt 
in 

a 
ran

ge
 o
f a

rea
s 
tha

t a
re 

bo
th 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 fo
r a

nd
 a
ttra

cti
ve
 to

 th
e 
ne
ed
s o

f d
iffe

ren
t in

du
str
ies

, 
wh

ile
 
at 

the
 
sa
me

 
tim

e 
im
pro

vin
g 

the
 
es
se
nti
al 

str
ate

gic
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
ne
ce
ss
ary

 to
 al
low

 th
e e

co
no
my

 to
 gr

ow
 ov

er 
the

 lo
ng
 

ter
m.

  
 Iss

ue
s 

 4.1
 A

be
rde

en
 C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hir
e 

ha
s 

a 
he
alt
hy
 e

co
no
my

. 
W
hil
e 

cu
rre

ntl
y 
do
mi
na
ted

 b
y 
the

 o
il 
an
d 

ga
s 

ind
us
trie

s, 
it 

als
o 

ha
s 

sig
nif
ica

nt 
str
en
gth

s 
in 

life
 s
cie

nc
es
, f
oo
d 
an
d 
dri
nk
 a
nd
 to

uri
sm

. 
Th

e o
il a

nd
 ga

s i
nd
us
try
 w
ill 
co
nti
nu
e t

o b
e v

ery
 im

po
rta

nt 
int
o t

he
 

fut
ure

. It
s c

ha
ng
ing

 fo
cu
s o

ve
r th

e n
ex
t fe

w 
de
ca
de
s (

int
o s

up
ply

ing
 

the
 e
xp
ort

 m
ark

et 
an
d 
de
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
) w

ill 
me

an
 th

at 
the

 a
rea

 
wil

l n
ee
d t

o s
ell
 its

elf
 m

ore
 st

ron
gly

 to
 m

ak
e s

ure
 gr

ow
th 

ha
pp
en
s 

he
re.

 T
rad

itio
na
l i
nd
us
trie

s, 
su
ch
 a

s 
far

mi
ng
 a

nd
 fi

sh
ing

, m
us
t 

co
nti
nu
e t

o b
e s

up
po
rte

d. 
To

 pr
om

ote
 a 

div
ers

e l
oc
al 

ec
on
om

y w
e 

wil
l h

av
e t

o b
uil
d o

n o
ur 

ex
ist
ing

 as
se
ts 

(pa
rtic

ula
rly
 in

 th
e f

iel
d o

f 
ren

ew
ab
le 
en
erg

y) 
an
d p

ut 
int
o p

rac
tic
e n

ew
 id
ea
s, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
os
e 

fro
m 

ou
r u

niv
ers

itie
s, 

res
ea
rch

 o
rga

nis
ati
on
s 
an
d 
ou
r s

kill
ed

 a
nd
 

inn
ov
ati
ve
 w

ork
for

ce
, a

nd
 im

pro
ve
 o
ur 

co
nn
ec
tio
ns
 to

 th
e 
ou
tsi
de
 

wo
rld
 th

rou
gh
 tr

an
sp
ort

 a
nd
 h

igh
-sp

ee
d 

dig
ita
l c

om
mu

nic
ati
on
s 

ne
tw
ork

s. 
 

 4.2
 A
 st
ron

g s
erv

ice
 se

cto
r is

 al
so
 im

po
rta

nt 
an
d i
n p

art
icu

lar
, re

tai
l 

an
d a

ll f
orm

s o
f to

uri
sm

, in
clu

din
g b

us
ine

ss
 to

uri
sm

, w
ill h

av
e a

 ro
le 

to 
pla

y. 
It i
s v

ery
 im

po
rta

nt 
tha

t re
tai
l s
erv

ice
s t
hro

ug
ho
ut 

the
 re

gio
n 

are
 p
rom

ote
d 
to 

gu
ara

nte
e 
the

 v
ita
lity

 a
nd
 v
iab

ility
 o
f o

ur 
tow

n 
ce
ntr

es
, w

hil
e c

rea
tin
g o

pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

gro
wt
h i
n t

he
 ec

on
om

y. 
It i
s 

pa
rtic

ula
rly
 im

po
rta

nt 
tha

t w
e c

on
tin
ue
 to

 su
pp
ort

 th
e r

eg
en
era

tio
n 

of 
Ab

erd
ee
n c

ity
 ce

ntr
e –

 m
ak
ing

 su
re 

tha
t th

is 
ke
y r

eg
ion

al 
as
se
t 

ful
fils

 it
s 
po
ten

tia
l b

y 
im
pro

vin
g 
its
 s
ho
pp
ing

, l
eis

ure
, c

om
me

rci
al 

an
d r

es
ide

nti
al 
en
vir
on
me

nt 
as
 w
ell
 as

 its
 vi
sit
or 

ex
pe
rie
nc
e. 

So
me

 
of 

the
 bu

ild
ing

 bl
oc
ks
 ar

e a
lre
ad
y i
n p

lac
e (

su
ch
 as

 th
e C

ity
 C
en
tre

 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Fra
me

wo
rk 

an
d 
the

 B
us
ine

ss
 Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
Dis

tric
t) 

bu
t t
he
re 

is 
sti
ll m

uc
h 
to 

be
 d
on
e. 

In 
lin
e 
wit

h 
Sc

ott
ish

 P
lan

nin
g 

Po
licy

, a
 se

qu
en
tia
l a

pp
roa

ch
 w

ill 
be
 ta

ke
n 
wh

en
 id

en
tify

ing
 si

tes
 

for
 n
ew

 re
tai
l d

ev
elo

pm
en
t a

cro
ss
 th

e 
str
ate

gic
 d
ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
 

are
a. 

 4.3
 M

ak
ing

 su
re 

tha
t t
he
re 

is 
en
ou
gh
 o
f t
he
 ri
gh
t t
yp
e 
of 

lan
d 
for

 
bu
sin

es
s u

se
, in

 th
e r

igh
t p

lac
es
, w

ill 
giv

e A
be
rde

en
 C
ity
 an

d S
hir
e 

a c
om

pe
titi
ve
 ad

va
nta

ge
, th

is 
inc

lud
es
 m

ixe
d-u

se
 de

ve
lop

me
nts

 on
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 si
tes

. W
e e

xp
ec
t th

at 
the

 E
ne
rge

tic
a i

nit
iat
ive

 w
ill 
he
lp 

to 
de
live

r t
his

 in
 th

e A
be
rde

en
 to

 P
ete

rhe
ad
 st

rat
eg
ic 
gro

wt
h a

rea
, 

wh
ile
 w
e w

ill 
en
co
ura

ge
 ec

on
om

ic 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
loc

al 
gro

wt
h a

nd
 

div
ers

ific
ati
on
 a

rea
s 

at 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 le
ve
ls 

to 
me

et 
loc

al 
ne
ed
. 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 an

d S
hir
e a

lre
ad
y h

as
 a 

ve
ry 

we
ll-d

ev
elo

pe
d r

ole
 in
 

the
 kn

ow
led

ge
 ec

on
om

y. 
Pr
ov
idi
ng
 hi
gh
-qu

ali
ty 
bu
sin

es
s s

pa
ce
 ha

s 
an
 im

po
rta

nt 
rol
e t

o p
lay

 in
 bu

ild
ing

 on
 th

is,
 as

 ha
s s

up
po
rt f

or 
hig

h 
qu
ali
ty 

ed
uc
ati
on
 an

d t
rai
nin

g o
pp
ort

un
itie

s f
rom

 sc
ho
ols

, c
oll
eg
es
 

an
d u

niv
ers

itie
s. 

 4.4
 T
he
 ro

ll-o
ut 

of 
hig

h-s
pe
ed
 b
roa

db
an
d 
thr

ou
gh
ou
t t
he
 a
rea

 is
 

vit
al 

for
 th

e e
co
no
my

 as
 w
ell
 as

 br
ing

ing
 so

cia
l a

nd
 en

vir
on
me

nta
l 

be
ne
fits

. W
orl
d-l
ea
din

g i
nte

rne
t a

cc
es
s i
s e

ss
en
tia
l in

 th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
gro

wt
h 

are
as
, 

wh
ile
 s

ign
ific

an
tly
 i
mp

rov
ed
 s

pe
ed
s 

are
 a

lso
 

ne
ce
ss
ary

 in
 th

e r
ura

l g
row

th 
an
d d

ive
rsi
fic
ati
on
 ar

ea
s. 

Th
e p

ub
lic 

an
d 

pri
va
te 

se
cto

rs 
wil

l n
ee
d 

to 
wo

rk 
tog

eth
er 

to 
de
live

r t
he
se
 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
. 

 4.5
 C
on
ne
cti
on
s, 

wit
hin

 A
be
rde

en
 C
ity
 an

d S
hir
e a

s w
ell
 as

 to
 th

e 
res

t o
f S

co
tla
nd
, th

e U
K 
an
d t

he
 re

st 
of 

the
 w
orl
d a

re 
cri
tic
al 
for

 th
e 

fut
ure

 h
ea
lth
 o

f t
he
 lo

ca
l e

co
no
my

. A
be
rde

en
 a

irp
ort

 a
nd
 th

e 
reg

ion
’s 
ma

in 
po
rts
 ar

e k
ey
 ga

tew
ay
s a

nd
 ha

ve
 a 

vit
al 
rol
e t

o p
lay

 in
 

ac
ce
ss
ing

 i
nte

rna
tio
na
l 
ma

rke
ts 

as
 w

ell
 a

s 
pro

vid
ing

 l
ife
lin
e 

se
rvi
ce
s 
to 

Or
kn
ey
 a
nd
 S

he
tla
nd
. I
t i
s 
vit
al 

tha
t t
he
se
 im

po
rta

nt 

Page 47



16
 

reg
ion

al 
as
se
ts 

are
 s
up
po
rte

d 
in 

me
eti
ng
 th

eir
 p

ote
nti
al 

for
 th

e 
reg

ion
al 
ec
on
om

y a
nd
 th

at 
the

y r
efl
ec
t th

e a
im
s o

f th
e a

rea
. F

utu
re 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

sh
ou
ld 

no
t b

e 
all
ow

ed
 to

 li
mi
t t

he
 g

row
th 

of 
the

 
ec
on
om

y 
by
 m

ak
ing

 t
he
 r

eg
ion

 l
es
s 

att
rac

tiv
e 

to 
bu
sin

es
s, 

pa
rtic

ula
rly
 in

 re
lat
ion

 to
 c
on
ge
sti
on
 a
nd
 a
cc
es
s 
to 

roa
ds
, p

ort
s, 

air
po
rts
 an

d r
ail
 fa

cili
tie
s. 

Th
is 
inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
ne
ed
s t

o b
e p

rot
ec
ted

 
an
d i
mp

rov
ed
, in

clu
din

g s
up
po
rtin

g f
rei
gh
t b

ein
g t

ran
sp
ort

ed
 by

 ra
il 

an
d s

ea
. 

 Ta
rg
ets

 
 • T

o 
ma

ke
 s
ure

 th
ere

 is
 a
t le

as
t 6

0 
he
cta

res
 o
f m

ark
eta

ble
 la

nd
 

av
ail
ab
le 

to 
bu
sin

es
se
s 
at 

all
 ti
me

s 
in 

a 
ran

ge
 o
f p

lac
es
 w

ith
in 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
. 

• T
o 
ma

ke
 s
ure

 th
ere

 is
 a
t le

as
t 6

0 
he
cta

res
 o
f m

ark
eta

ble
 la

nd
 

av
ail
ab
le 

to 
bu
sin

es
se
s 
at 

all
 ti
me

s 
in 

a 
ran

ge
 o
f p

lac
es
 w

ith
in 

str
ate

gic
 gr

ow
th 

are
as
 in
 Ab

erd
ee
ns
hir
e. 

• F
or 

at 
lea

st 
20
 he

cta
res

 of
 th

e a
bo
ve
 la
nd
 av

ail
ab
le 
to 

bu
sin

es
se
s 

in 
the

 st
rat

eg
ic 
gro

wt
h a

rea
s t

o b
e o

f a
 st

an
da
rd 

wh
ich

 w
ill 
att

rac
t 

hig
h-q

ua
lity

 bu
sin

es
se
s o

r b
e s

uit
ab
le 
for

 co
mp

an
y h

ea
dq
ua
rte

rs.
 

• F
or 

Ab
erd

ee
n t

o r
em

ain
 on

e o
f th

e t
op
-20

 re
tai
l a
rea

s i
n t
he
 U
K. 

• F
or 

all
 n
ew

 d
ev
elo

pm
en
t t
o 
ha
ve
 th

e 
us
e 
of 

mo
de
rn,

 u
p-t

o-d
ate

 
hig

h-s
pe
ed
 te
lec

om
mu

nic
ati
on
s n

etw
ork

s, 
su
ch
 as

 fib
re 

op
tic
s. 

 Ho
w 
to 

me
et 
the

 ta
rg
ets

 
• L

oc
al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
ns
 sh

ou
ld,
 w
he
re 

po
ss
ibl
e, 

pro
tec

t s
tra

teg
ic 

res
erv

e l
an
d f

rom
 ot
he
r u

se
s (
se
e f
igu

res
 3 
an
d 4

).  
 

Fig
ure

 3:
 Em

plo
ym

en
t la

nd
 al
loc

ati
on
s 

 

 
Es

tab
lish

ed
 

lan
d 

20
11
 

(he
cta

res
) 

Ma
rke

tab
le 

lan
d 

20
11
 

(he
cta

res
) 

Mi
nim

um
 

lan
d 

av
ail
ab
le 

at 
all
 

tim
es
 

(he
cta

res
) 

LD
P 

all
oc
ati
on
s 

to 
20
26
 

(he
cta

res
) 

Str
ate

gic
 

res
erv

e 
lan

d 
20
27
-

20
35
 

(he
cta

res
) 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 

21
0 

87
 

60
 

10
5 

70
 

Ab
erd

ee
ns
hir
e 

 
Hu

ntl
y 

to 
La
ure

nc
ek
irk
 

15
3 

75
 

40
 

10
5 

70
 

Bla
ck
do
g 

to 
Pe

ter
he
ad
 

10
4 

86
 

20
 

45
 

43
 

To
tal
 

46
7 

24
8 

12
0 

25
5 

18
3 

 • I
de
nti
fyi
ng
 a
nd
 m

ain
tai
nin

g 
an
 a
pp
rop

ria
te 

am
ou
nt 

of 
bu
sin

es
s 

lan
d 

in 
the

 l
oc
al 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n 

for
 ‘

loc
al 

gro
wt
h 

an
d 

div
ers

ific
ati
on
’ a
rea

s i
n A

be
rde

en
sh
ire
. 

• P
ut 

the
 C

ity
 C

en
tre

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t F

ram
ew

ork
 in

to 
pra

cti
ce
 a
nd
 

ca
rry

 ou
t a

 w
ide

r re
ge
ne
rat

ion
 of
 th
e a

rea
. 

• W
ork

 w
ith
 p
art

ne
rs 

to 
ma

ke
 si

gn
ific

an
t im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to

 p
rov

ide
 

wo
rld
-cl
as
s t
ele

co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
 ne

tw
ork

s. 
• 
W
ork

ing
 in

 p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
wit

h 
un
ive

rsi
tie
s, 

co
lle
ge
s 

an
d 

oth
er 

res
ea
rch

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
s t
o h

elp
 th

em
 m

ak
e a

s p
os
itiv

e a
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
n 

as
 po

ss
ibl
e t

o t
he
 ar

ea
, in

clu
din

g f
or 

ex
am

ple
, th

e i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 
of 

the
 F

ore
ste

rhi
ll 

Ma
ste

rpl
an
 p

rep
are

d 
by
 t
he
 U

niv
ers

ity
 o

f 
Ab

erd
ee
n a

nd
 N
HS

 G
ram

pia
n. 

• U
sin

g a
cti
on
 pr

og
ram

me
s t

o i
de
nti
fy 

an
d c

o-o
rdi
na
te 

the
 ac

tio
ns
 

ne
ed
ed
 to

 m
ak
e l

an
d a

llo
ca
tio
ns
 av

ail
ab
le 

to 
bu
sin

es
s i

n l
ine

 w
ith
 

the
 sp

ati
al 
str
ate

gy
. 

 Mo
nit

or
ing

 
 Mo

nit
ori
ng
 w
ill 
foc

us
 on

 th
e s

up
ply

 of
 em

plo
ym

en
t la

nd
, th

e r
oll
-ou

t 
of 

hig
h-s

pe
ed
 te
lec

om
mu

nic
ati
on
s n

etw
ork

s a
nd
 re

tai
l ra

nk
ing

s. 

Page 48



17
 

Su
sta
ina
ble
 de
ve
lop
me
nt 
an
d c
lim
ate
 ch
an
ge
 

 Ob
jec

tiv
e 

 To
 be

 a 
cit
y r

eg
ion

 w
hic

h t
ak
es
 th

e l
ea
d i

n r
ed
uc
ing

 th
e a

mo
un
t o

f 
ca
rbo

n d
iox

ide
 re

lea
se
d i
nto

 th
e a

ir, 
ad
ap
ts 
to 

the
 ef

fec
ts 
of 

clim
ate

 
ch
an
ge
 an

d l
im
its
 th
e a

mo
un
t o
f n

on
-re

ne
wa

ble
 re

so
urc

es
 it 
us
es
. 

 Iss
ue
s 

 4.6
 Th

e c
ha
lle
ng
es
 of

 su
sta

ina
ble

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d c

lim
ate

 ch
an
ge
 

are
 so

me
 of

 th
e m

os
t s

eri
ou
s w

e w
ill 
fac

e o
ve
r t
he
 pe

rio
d c

ov
ere

d 
by
 th

is 
pla

n. 
Re

du
cin

g 
the

 c
au
se
s 
of 

clim
ate

 c
ha
ng
e 
(kn

ow
n 
as
 

mi
tig
ati
on
) is

 im
po
rta

nt.
 H
ow

ev
er,

 du
e t

o c
urr

en
t a

nd
 pa

st 
ac
tio
ns
, it
 

is 
vit
al 

to 
pu
t 
in 

pla
ce
 a

 n
um

be
r 
of 

me
as
ure

s 
to 

lim
it 

the
 

co
ns
eq
ue
nc
es
 of
 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge
 as

 w
ell
 (k
no
wn

 as
 ad

ap
tat

ion
).  

 4.7
 T

o 
tac

kle
 c
lim

ate
 c
ha
ng
e, 

en
erg

y 
eff

icie
nc
y 
wil

l n
ee
d 
to 

be
 

im
pro

ve
d 

in 
ex
ist
ing

 a
s 

we
ll 

as
 n

ew
 d

ev
elo

pm
en
t. 

All
 n

ew
 

de
ve
lop

me
nts

 m
us
t b

e 
de
sig

ne
d 
an
d 
bu
ilt 

to 
us
e 
res

ou
rce

s m
ore

 
eff
icie

ntl
y 
an
d 
be
 lo

ca
ted

 in
 p
lac

es
 w

he
re 

the
y 
ha
ve
 a
s 
litt
le 

an
 

eff
ec
t o

n 
the

 e
nv
iro
nm

en
t a

s p
os
sib

le.
 F
oc
us
ing

 in
itia

lly 
on
 u
sin

g 
en
erg

y-e
ffic

ien
cy
 m

ea
su
res

 is
 lik

ely
 to

 be
 th

e b
es
t w

ay
 of

 re
du
cin

g 
the

 de
ma

nd
 fo

r e
ne
rgy

 as
 a 

ste
p t

ow
ard

s a
ch
iev

ing
 ca

rbo
n-n

eu
tra

l 
de
ve
lop

me
nt,
 a

nd
 th

is 
sh
ou
ld 

be
 d

on
e 

as
 s

oo
n 

as
 p

rac
tic
all
y 

po
ss
ibl
e. 

Jo
int
 su

pp
lem

en
tar

y g
uid

an
ce
 m

ay
 be

 pr
ep
are

d t
o r

eq
uir
e 

ne
w 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

to 
me

et 
sp
ec
ific

 c
arb

on
-di
ox
ide

 le
ve
ls 

thr
ou
gh
 

the
 s

us
tai
na
bil
ity
 la

be
llin

g 
me

ch
an
ism

. D
ev
elo

pe
rs 

wil
l n

ee
d 

to 
ex
am

ine
 t
he
 s

co
pe
 f
or 

inc
lud

ing
 c

om
bin

ed
 h

ea
t 
an
d 

po
we

r 
sc
he
me

s w
he
n p

rep
ari
ng
 la
rge

r d
ev
elo

pm
en
t p
rop

os
als

. 
 4.8

 S
ign

ific
an
t c
ha
ng
es
 w
ill 
als

o b
e n

ee
de
d t

o r
ed
uc
e t

he
 ef

fec
ts 
of 

tra
ns
po
rt 

on
 c

lim
ate

 c
ha
ng
e. 

As
 w

ell
 a

s 
inc

rea
sin

g 
en
erg

y 
eff
icie

nc
y, 

we
 w

ill 
ne
ed
 to

 e
nc
ou
rag

e 
the

 u
se
 o
f a

lte
rna

tiv
e 
fue

ls 
an
d t

ak
e o

pp
ort

un
itie

s, 
su
ch
 as

 pr
ov
idi
ng
 el

ec
tric

-ve
hic

le 
ch
arg

ing
 

po
int
s, 
to 
en
co
ura

ge
 pe

op
le 
to 
us
e t
he
m.
 

 4.9
 W

e 
als

o 
ne
ed
 to

 ta
ck
le 

the
 su

pp
ly 

of 
en
erg

y d
uri
ng

 th
e 
pla

n 
pe
rio
d. 

Th
is 

wil
l i
nv
olv

e 
inc

rea
sin

g 
the

 s
up
ply

 o
f e

ne
rgy

 fr
om

 
ren

ew
ab
le 

so
urc

es
 a

nd
 r
ed
uc
ing

 e
mi
ss
ion

s 
of 

clim
ate

-ch
an
ge
 

ga
se
s f
rom

 ex
ist
ing

 po
we

r s
tat

ion
s. 
As

 w
ell
 as

 so
me

 ex
tra

 ca
pa
cit
y 

for
 o
ns
ho
re 

win
d 
the

re 
is 

sti
ll 
co
ns
ide

rab
le 

po
ten

tia
l i
n 
off
sh
ore

 
win

d, 
en
erg

y 
fro

m 
wa

ste
, s

ola
r a

nd
 b
iom

as
s, 

as
 w

ell
 a
s 
gro

un
d, 

wa
ter

 a
nd
 a

ir 
so
urc

e 
he
at 

pu
mp

s. 
A 

mo
re 

ba
lan

ce
d 

mi
x 

of 
ren

ew
ab
le 

en
erg

y 
so
urc

es
 w

ill 
be
 n
ee
de
d 
if 
we

 a
re 

to 
me

et 
ou
r 

ren
ew

ab
les

 ta
rge

ts.
 

 4.1
0 

On
e 
of 

ou
r s

ign
ific

an
t p

ote
nti
al 

rol
es
 w

ill 
be
 to

 p
ut 

in 
pla

ce
 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
so
 th

at 
Sc

otl
an
d c

an
 m

ee
t it

s r
en
ew

ab
le 

en
erg

y a
nd
 

ca
rbo

n-e
mi
ss
ion

s t
arg

ets
.  

 • 
Th

e 
on
sh
ore

 e
lec

tric
ity
 g
rid
 w

ill 
ne
ed
 to

 b
e 
up
gra

de
d 
to 

all
ow

 
ne
w 
so
urc

es
 of

 re
ne
wa

ble
 en

erg
y t
o b

e d
ev
elo

pe
d i
n t

he
 no

rth
 of
 

Sc
otl
an
d. 

Th
is 

me
an
s 
up
gra

din
g 
the

 E
as
t C

oa
st 

tra
ns
mi
ss
ion

 
rou

te 
fro

m 
27
5k
V 

to 
40
0k
V 

(id
en
tifi
ed
 
as
 
a 

‘na
tio
na
l 

de
ve
lop

me
nt’
 in
 th

e N
ati
on
al 
Pla

nn
ing

 Fr
am

ew
ork

) a
s w

ell
 as

 th
e 

lin
e f

rom
 R
oth

ien
orm

an
 to

 P
ete

rhe
ad
. H

ow
ev
er,

 th
e v

olu
me

s o
f 

ele
ctr
icit

y l
ike

ly 
to 

be
 ge

ne
rat

ed
 m

ea
n t

ha
t o

ffs
ho
re 

tra
ns
mi
ss
ion

 
wil

l 
als

o 
be
 n

ec
es
sa
ry,
 w

ith
 P

ete
rhe

ad
 a

cti
ng
 a

s 
a 

ma
in 

tra
ns
mi
ss
ion

 hu
b w

ith
 lin

ks
 to

 En
gla

nd
 as

 w
ell
 as

 ot
he
r E

uro
pe
an
 

co
un
trie

s t
o b

ala
nc
e r

en
ew

ab
le 
en
erg

y g
en
era

tio
n a

nd
 ov

erc
om

e 
the

 in
ter

mi
tte
nc
y c

ha
lle
ng
es
 as

so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th

e w
ide

sp
rea

d u
se
 

of 
win

d e
ne
rgy

.  
 • 

Ca
rbo

n 
ca
ptu

re 
an
d 
sto

rag
e 
ha
s s

ign
ific

an
t p

ote
nti
al 

to 
red

uc
e 

gre
en
ho
us
e g

as
 em

iss
ion

s f
rom

 co
nv
en
tio
na
l p
ow

er 
sta

tio
ns
 an

d 
he
lp 

the
 ch

an
ge
 to

 a
 lo

w-
ca
rbo

n 
fut

ure
. W

e 
are

 w
ell
 p
lac

ed
 to

 
pla

y a
 ke

y r
ole

 in
 th

is,
 b
uil
din

g 
on
 o
ur 

wo
rld
-le
ad
ing

 e
xp
ert

ise
, 

ex
ist
ing

 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e 
an
d 
ne
arn

es
s 
to 

po
ten

tia
l s

tor
ag
e 
sit
es
. 

Th
e t

ec
hn
olo

gy
 ha

s h
ug
e g

lob
al-
ma

rke
t p

ote
nti
al 
ov
er 

the
 pe

rio
d 

of 
thi
s p

lan
 an

d b
ey
on
d. 

Th
e p

ow
er 

sta
tio
n a

t P
ete

rhe
ad
 of

fer
s 

an
 i

de
al 

op
po
rtu

nit
y 

to 
de
mo

ns
tra

te 
the

 t
ec
hn
olo

gy
 a

nd
 

Page 49



18
 

sig
nif
ica

nt 
sto

rag
e p

ote
nti
al 
tha

t li
es
 in
 ol
d o

il a
nd
 ga

s r
es
erv

oir
s 

un
de
r t
he
 N
ort

h S
ea
, w

ith
 S
t F

erg
us
 th

e e
sta

bli
sh
ed
 ga

tew
ay
 to

 
thi
s 
po
ten

tia
l. 
Us

ing
  
ex
ist
ing

 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e 
wil

l b
e 
the

 k
ey
 to

 
ma

kin
g 
the

 te
ch
no
log

y c
om

me
rci
all
y 
via

ble
, w

ith
 e
xis

tin
g 
hig

h-
pre

ss
ure

 ga
s p

ipe
lin
es
 al

rea
dy
 in

 pl
ac
e b

etw
ee
n S

t F
erg

us
 an

d 
ce
ntr

al 
Sc

otl
an
d. 

Pe
ter

he
ad
 al
so
 ha

s t
he
 po

ten
tia
l to

 ac
t a

s a
 ke

y 
im
po
rt 

po
int
, w

ith
 c

arb
on
 d

iox
ide

 b
ein

g 
sh
ipp

ed
 th

ere
 fr

om
 

els
ew

he
re 

in 
the

 U
K 
or 

fur
the

r a
fie
ld 
be
for

e b
ein

g t
ran

sp
ort

ed
 in
 

ex
ist
ing

 pi
pe
lin
es
 up

 to
 S
t F

erg
us
 an

d o
nw

ard
s f
or 

sto
rag

e u
nd
er 

the
 N
ort

h S
ea
. 

 4.1
1 A

rea
s o

f A
be
rde

en
 an

d A
be
rde

en
sh
ire
 ar

e a
lre
ad
y a

t ri
sk
 fro

m 
flo
od
ing

, b
ut 

inc
rea

se
d 
ris
k 
co
me

s 
ab
ou
t t
hro

ug
h 
ch
an
gin

g 
an
d 

mo
re 

un
pre

dic
tab

le 
we

ath
er 

pa
tte

rns
 an

d r
isin

g s
ea
 le
ve
ls.
 Av

oid
ing

 
flo
od
 ris

k i
s a

n i
mp

ort
an
t m

ea
su
re 

to 
ad
ap
t to

 cl
im
ate

 ch
an
ge
. W

e 
wil

l n
ee
d 
to 

tak
e 
ac
co
un
t o

f t
he
 sc

ale
 of

 th
es
e 
ch
an
ge
s w

he
n 
we

 
co
ns
ide

r w
ha
t n

ew
 d
ev
elo

pm
en
ts 

sh
ou
ld 

be
 b
uil
t a

nd
 w

he
re 

the
y 

sh
ou
ld 
be
 lo
ca
ted

.  
 4.1

2 
Sc

otl
an
d’s

 Z
ero

 W
as
te 

Pla
n 
ha
s s

et 
a 
tar

ge
t o

f r
ec
yc
lin
g 
or 

co
mp

os
tin
g 7

0%
 of

 al
l w

as
te,

 an
d l
im
itin

g w
as
te 

se
nt 

to 
lan

dfi
ll s

ite
s 

to 
5%

, b
y 2

02
5. 

Me
eti
ng
 th

es
e 
tar

ge
ts 

wil
l r
ep
res

en
t a

 si
gn
ific

an
t 

ch
an
ge
 f
rom

 c
urr

en
t 
pra

cti
ce
 a

nd
 m

ov
e 

the
 e

mp
ha
sis

 f
rom

 
pro

vid
ing

 en
ou
gh
 la
nd
fill 

sp
ac
e t

o p
rov

idi
ng
 si
tes

 fo
r o

the
r tr

ea
tm
en
t 

pro
ce
ss
es
 (s
uc
h a

s c
om

po
sti
ng
 an

d e
ne
rgy

 fro
m 

wa
ste

).  
 4.1

3 
Ou

r o
bje

cti
ve
 is

 to
 m

ee
t o

ur 
wa

ste
-m

an
ag
em

en
t n

ee
ds
 lo

ca
lly 

as
 

far
 a
s p

os
sib

le.
 T
his

 w
ill 
ma

ke
 su

re 
tha

t 
the

 
ec
on
om

ic,
 

so
cia

l 
an
d 

en
vir
on
me

nta
l v

alu
e 
fro

m 
ma

na
gin

g 
thi
s i
mp

ort
an
t re

so
urc

e i
s k

ep
t in

 th
e 

loc
al 

are
a 
an
d 
the

 e
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 co

sts
 o
f t
ran

sp
ort

 a
re 

ke
pt 

to 
a 

mi
nim

um
.  

 

4.1
4 W

hil
e t

he
re 

is 
no
 ov

era
ll n

ee
d f

or 
ne
w 
lan

dfi
ll s

pa
ce
 in
 th

e p
lan

 
are

a, 
we

 ar
e l
ike

ly 
to 

ne
ed
 tim

e e
xte

ns
ion

s a
t s
om

e e
xis

tin
g s

ite
s t
o 

ma
ke
 su

re 
we

 m
ain

tai
n 
ca
pa
cit
y, 

ma
ke
 th

e 
be
st 

us
e 
of 

sit
es
 a
nd
 

res
tor

e t
he
 si
tes

 to
 th

e h
igh

es
t s

tan
da
rds

. W
e s

ho
uld

 do
 th

is 
wh

ile
 

tak
ing

 in
to 

ac
co
un
t t
he
 e
ffe
ct 

on
 c
om

mu
nit
ies

 a
nd
 th

e 
leg

itim
ate

 
co
nc
ern

s o
f re

sid
en
ts 
clo

se
 to
 su

ch
 fa

cili
tie
s. 
 

 4.1
5 
Ma

na
gin

g 
ou
r w

as
te 

res
po
ns
ibl
y 
an
d 
in 

lin
e 
wit

h 
the

 w
as
te 

hie
rar

ch
y, 
pro

xim
ity
 pr

inc
ipl
e a

nd
 Ze

ro 
W
as
te 
Pla

n w
ill m

ea
n w

e w
ill 

ne
ed
 a 

va
rie
ty 

of 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
ex
tra

 w
as
te-

tre
atm

en
t fa

cili
tie
s (

wit
h a

 
ca
pa
cit
y 
of 

ov
er 

30
0,0

00
 to

nn
es
) i

n 
a 

va
rie
ty 

of 
loc

ati
on
s. 

W
e 

sh
ou
ld 
de
ve
lop

 th
es
e n

ew
 fa

cili
tie
s a

s c
los

e 
as
 po

ss
ibl
e t

o t
he
 so

urc
e o

f th
e w

as
te,
 w
ith
 

aro
un
d 
75
% 

of 
the

m 
be
ing

 in
 th

e 
str
ate

gic
 

gro
wt
h 
are

as
 w

ith
in 

or 
clo

se
 to

 A
be
rde

en
. 

Ou
tw
ith
 th

is 
are

a, 
fac

iliti
es
 sh

ou
ld 

ge
ne
ral
ly 

me
et 

a m
ore

 lo
ca
l n

ee
d o

r n
ee
d t

o b
e 
in 

a 
rur

al 
loc

ati
on
. 
Po

ss
ibl
e 

loc
ati
on
s 

inc
lud

e 
sit
es
 n

ex
t 
to 

ex
ist
ing

 w
as
te-

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
fac

iliti
es
 o

r l
an
d 

wh
ich

 lo
ca
l d

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

pla
ns
 h

av
e 

ide
nti
fie
d 

for
 e

mp
loy

me
nt 

or 
mi
xe
d-u

se
 p

urp
os
es
 w

he
re 

the
 n

ew
 s

ite
 

wo
uld

 be
 co

mp
ati
ble

 w
ith
 ne

arb
y e

xis
tin
g o

r 
pro

po
se
d u

se
s. 
 

 4.1
6 W

he
n 
de
cid

ing
 w

he
the

r a
 si

te 
is 

su
ita
ble

, a
 ra

ng
e 
of 

fac
tor

s 
wil

l b
e 
im
po
rta

nt,
 in

clu
din

g 
go
od
 a
cc
es
s t

o 
the

 tr
an
sp
ort

 n
etw

ork
 

an
d 

wh
eth

er 
the

re 
is 

a 
rea

list
ic 

pro
sp
ec
t o

f u
sin

g 
an
y 
he
at 

or 
ele

ctr
icit

y 
ge
ne
rat

ed
 b
y 
the

 p
roc

es
s. 

W
e 
mu

st 
int
eg
rat

e 
ho
w 

we
 

ma
na
ge
 w

as
te 

int
o 

all
 d

ev
elo

pm
en
t 
pro

po
sa
ls 

an
d 

co
ns
ide

r 
co
ns
tru

cti
on
 a

nd
 d

em
oli
tio
n 

wa
ste

 a
s 
we

ll 
as
 w

as
te 

ge
ne
rat

ed
 

du
rin
g t

he
 lif
eti
me

 of
 th

e d
ev
elo

pm
en
t. E

ne
rgy

 fr
om

 w
as
te 

fac
iliti

es
 

wit
hin

 w
ide

r d
ev
elo

pm
en
t p

rop
os
als

 w
hic

h 
us
e 

su
rpl
us
 h

ea
t f

or 
ho
me

s, 
bu
sin

es
se
s 
an
d 
co
mm

un
ity
 fa

cili
tie
s 
are

 lik
ely

 to
 b
e 
ve
ry 

eff
icie

nt 
an
d w

ill r
eq

uir
e p

ote
nti
al 
de
ve
lop

ers
 to

 sp
ea
k t
o e

ac
h o

the
r 

at 
an
 ea

rly
 st
ag
e. 

Page 50



19
 

 4.1
7 T

he
 R
ive

r D
ee
 (s

ee
 fig

ure
 6)

 is
 an

 im
po
rta

nt 
ec
on

om
ic 
as
se
t 

as
 w
ell
 as

 be
ing

 th
e r

eg
ion

’s 
ma

in 
so
urc

e o
f d

rin
kin

g w
ate

r a
nd
 a 

Sp
ec
ial
 A
rea

 of
 C
on
se
rva

tio
n. 

Th
is 
res

ou
rce

 is
 un

de
r p

res
su
re 

an
d 

as
 a

 r
es
ult
, m

an
ag
ing

 th
e 

us
e 

of 
wa

ter
 a

nd
 in

cre
as
ing

 w
ate

r 
eff
icie

nc
y 
is 

vit
al.
 D

uri
ng
 a
nd
 b
ey
on
d 
the

 p
eri
od
 o
f t
his

 p
lan

 th
e 

eff
ec
ts 

of 
clim

ate
 ch

an
ge
 m

ay
 af

fec
t th

e r
ive

r a
nd
 w
e m

ay
 ha

ve
 to

 
tak

e a
pp
rop

ria
te 
ad
ap
tat
ion

 m
ea
su
res

. 
 Ta
rg
ets

 
 • F

or 
all
 ne

w 
bu
ild
ing

s t
o b

e c
arb

on
 ne

utr
al 
by
 20

20
. 

• F
or 

the
 ci

ty 
reg

ion
’s 

ele
ctr
icit

y n
ee
ds
 to

 b
e 
me

t f
rom

 re
ne
wa

ble
 

so
urc

es
 by

 20
20
. 

• T
o a

vo
id 

ha
vin

g t
o i

nc
rea

se
 th

e a
mo

un
t o

f w
ate

r S
co
ttis

h W
ate

r 
are

 lic
en
se
d 
to 

tak
e 
fro

m 
the

 R
ive

r D
ee
, a

s 
a 
res

ult
 o
f t
he
 n
ew

 
de
ve
lop

me
nts

 pr
op
os
ed
 in
 th
e p

lan
.  

• F
or 

all
 ne

w 
de
ve
lop

me
nts

 to
 us

e w
ate

r-s
av
ing

 te
ch
no
log

y. 
• T

o a
vo
id 

de
ve
lop

me
nts

 on
 la

nd
 w
hic

h i
s a

t a
n u

na
cc
ep
tab

le 
ris
k 

fro
m 

co
as
tal
 o
r r

ive
r f
loo

din
g 
(as

 d
efi
ne
d 
by
 th

e 
’In
dic

ati
ve
 R

ive
r 

an
d C

oa
sta

l F
loo

d M
ap
 fo

r S
co
tla
nd
’ o
r th

rou
gh
 a 

de
tai
led

 flo
od
 ris

k 
as
se
ss
me

nt)
, e
xc
ep
t in

 ex
ce
pti
on
al 
cir
cu
ms

tan
ce
s. 

• 
To

 w
ork

 t
ow

ard
s 

an
 e

xtr
a 

30
0,0

00
 t
on
ne
s 

of 
ne
w 

wa
ste

-
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
inf
ras

tru
ctu

re.
 

 Ho
w 
to 

me
et 
the

 ta
rg
ets

 
 • 
Lo
ca
l d

ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
s 

(an
d 

su
pp
lem

en
tar

y 
gu
ida

nc
e) 

wil
l 

pro
mo

te 
a 

gra
du
al 

mo
ve
 t
ow

ard
s 

bu
ild
ing

s 
wh

ich
 a

re 
ca
rbo

n 
ne
utr

al.
 

• 
Lo
ca
l d

ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
s 

(an
d 

su
pp
lem

en
tar

y 
gu
ida

nc
e) 

wil
l 

ide
nti
fy 

are
as
 o
r t
ec
hn
olo

gy
 w

hic
h 
ca
n 
co
ntr

ibu
te 

to 
the

 su
pp
ly 
of 

ren
ew

ab
le 
en
erg

y. 
•  

W
ork

 w
ith
 S

co
ttis

h 
Na

tur
al 

He
rita

ge
, t
he
 S

co
ttis

h 
En

vir
on
me

nt 
Pr
ote

cti
on
 A
ge
nc
y, 
Sc

ott
ish

 W
ate

r a
nd
 ot

he
r s

tak
eh
old

ers
 to

 be
tte

r 
un
de
rst
an
d t

he
 lik

ely
 m

ed
ium

 to
 lo
ng
-te

rm
 ef

fec
ts 
of 

clim
ate

 ch
an
ge
 

on
 th

e 
Riv

er 
De

e 
an
d 

an
y 

ad
ap
tat

ion
 m

ea
su
res

 th
at 

ma
y 

be
 

ne
ed
ed
. 

• T
he
 tw

o c
ou
nc
ils 

sh
ou
ld 
wo

rk 
tog

eth
er 

to 
ide

nti
fy 
an
d p

ut 
in 
pla

ce
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 re
sid

ua
l w

as
te 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
so
lut
ion

s. 
• 
Lo
ca
l d

ev
elo

pm
en
t 
pla

ns
 s

ho
uld

 n
ot 

ide
nti
fy 

sit
es
 f
or 

ne
w 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

wh
ich

 a
re 

at 
an
 u

na
cc
ep
tab

le 
ris
k 

fro
m 

flo
od
ing

, 
ex
ce
pt 

for
 br

ow
nfi
eld

 si
tes

 w
hic

h h
av
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 

flo
od
 pr

ev
en
tio
n 

me
as
ure

s i
n p

lac
e. 

Un
ac
ce
pta

ble
 ris

k w
ill 
no
rm

all
y b

e m
ore

 th
an
 a 

1 i
n 2

00
 (0

.5%
) c

ha
nc
e o

f a
 flo

od
 ha

pp
en
ing

 in
 an

y y
ea

r, a
lth
ou
gh
 

thi
s w

ill v
ary

 w
ith
 th

e t
yp
e o

f d
ev
elo

pm
en
t b
ein

g p
rop

os
ed
. 

• U
se
 m

as
ter

 p
lan

nin
g 
(an

d 
su
pp
lem

en
tar

y g
uid

an
ce
) t
o 
co
ns
ide

r 
the

 p
os
sib

le 
sc
op
e 

of 
co
mb

ine
d 

he
at 

an
d 

po
we

r 
sc
he
me

s 
to 

co
ntr

ibu
te 

tow
ard

s u
sin

g e
ne
rgy

 m
ore

 ef
fic
ien

tly
 an

d i
n r

ed
uc
ing

 th
e 

am
ou
nt 
of 
en
erg

y u
se
d o

ve
ral
l. 

 Mo
nit

or
ing

 
 Mo

nit
ori
ng
 w

ill 
foc

us
 o
n 
the

 q
ua
nti
ty 

of 
wa

ter
 e
xtr
ac
ted

 fr
om

 th
e 

Riv
er 

De
e, 

the
 am

ou
nt 

of 
ren

ew
ab
le 

en
erg

y p
rod

uc
ed
 in

 th
e a

rea
 

an
d t

he
 pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 w
as
te 

wh
ich

 is
 ta

ke
n t

o l
an
dfi
ll, 
rec

yc
led

 or
 

co
mp

os
ted

. 
 

Page 51



20
 

Po
pu
lat
ion
 gr
ow
th 

 Ob
jec

tiv
e 

 To
 in

cre
as
e 

the
 p

op
ula

tio
n 

of 
the

 c
ity
 r
eg
ion

 a
nd
 a

ch
iev

e 
a 

ba
lan

ce
d a

ge
 ra

ng
e t

o h
elp

 m
ain

tai
n a

nd
 im

pro
ve
 pe

op
le’
s q

ua
lity

 
of 

life
. 

 Iss
ue
s 

 4.1
8 E

xp
ec
tat

ion
s o

f h
ou
sin

g n
ee
d a

nd
 de

ma
nd
 ov

er 
the

 pe
rio
d t

o 
20
35
 h

av
e 

be
en
 a

ss
es
se
d 

in 
a 

Ho
us
ing

 N
ee
d 

an
d 

De
ma

nd
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
(20

11
).  

 4.1
9 
Th

e 
po
pu
lat
ion

 o
f t

he
 c
ity
 re

gio
n 

ha
s 
be
en
 g
row

ing
 fo

r a
 

nu
mb

er 
of 

ye
ars

 an
d w

as
 46

5,0
00
 in
 20

11
. T

his
 is
 ex

pe
cte

d t
o g

row
 

to 
aro

un
d 
50
0,0

00
 b
y 2

03
5. 

Ho
we

ve
r, 
as
 w

ell
 a
s t

he
 to

tal
 si

ze
 of

 
the

 p
op
ula

tio
n, 

the
 a

ge
 ra

ng
e 

of 
the

 p
op
ula

tio
n 

als
o 

pre
se
nts

 
ch
all
en
ge
s i
n t

he
 ye

ars
 ah

ea
d. 

Th
e o

ve
r-6

5s
 ag

e g
rou

p i
s p

red
ict
ed
 

to 
gro

w 
at 

the
 fa

ste
st 
rat

e –
 th

is 
wil

l h
av
e a

 si
gn
ific

an
t e

ffe
ct 
on
 th

e 
ec
on
om

y o
f th

e a
rea

 an
d t

he
 w
ay
 in
 w
hic

h s
erv

ice
s a

re 
pro

vid
ed
 fo

r 
an
 in
cre

as
ing

ly 
eld

erl
y p

op
ula

tio
n. 

 4.2
0 P

lan
nin

g f
or 

an
 in

cre
as
e i

n t
he
 po

pu
lat
ion

 of
 35

,00
0 o

ve
r 2

4 
ye
ars

 w
ill 
be
 a
 si

gn
ific

an
t c

ha
lle
ng
e 
for

 th
e 
No

rth
 E
as
t. 
Ho

we
ve
r, 

mo
st 

of 
the

 n
ee
d 
for

 a
lm
os
t 5

4,0
00
 n
ew

 h
om

es
 (s

ee
 fi
gu
re 

8) 
co
me

s 
fro

m 
the

 e
xis

tin
g 
po
pu
lat
ion

 o
f t
he
 a
rea

 a
s 
the

 a
ve
rag

e 
nu
mb

er 
of 

pe
op
le 

in 
ea
ch
 h
ou
se
ho
ld 

fal
ls.
 W

e 
wil

l o
nly

 a
ch
iev

e 
the

se
 ch

all
en
gin

g l
ev
els

 of
 gr

ow
th 

if w
e w

ork
 to

wa
rds

 ou
r a

im
s a

nd
 

ob
jec

tiv
es
 w
ith
 ou

r p
art

ne
rs.
  

 4.2
1 I

f th
e p

op
ula

tio
n g

row
s t
o t

he
 le
ve
ls 
we

 ar
e a

im
ing

 fo
r, w

e w
ill 

ne
ed
 a
n 
inc

rea
se
 in

 th
e 
nu
mb

er 
of 

ho
me

s 
wh

ich
 a
re 

bu
ilt 

ea
ch
 

ye
ar.

 Th
is 
pre

se
nts

 a 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
ch
all
en
ge
 gi
ve
n t

he
 cu

rre
nt 

ac
ce
ss
 

to 
fin
an
ce
 fo

r b
oth

 de
ve
lop

ers
 an

d h
ou
se
ho
lds

. 
 

 4.2
2 T

he
 ho

us
ing

 re
qu
ire
me

nt 
is 
se
t o
ut 

in 
fig
ure

 8 
be
low

. 
 Fig

ur
e 8

: H
ou

sin
g r

eq
uir

em
en
t 

  
20
11
-20

16
 

20
17
-20

26
 

20
27
-20

35
 

To
tal
 

Ab
erd

ee
n H

MA
 

9,9
65
 

15
,01

7 
13
,50

6 
38
,48

8 
Ru

ral
 H
MA

 
4,2

37
 

6,4
11
 

4,8
36
 

15
,48

4 
To

tal
 

14
,20

2 
21
,42

8 
18
,34

2 
53
,97

2 
 4.2

3 S
ch
ed
ule

 1 
(pa

ge
 27

) s
ho
ws

 th
e h

ou
sin

g a
llo
wa

nc
es
 ne

ed
ed
 

to 
he
lp 

de
live

r t
his

 in
cre

as
e i

n n
ew

 ho
me

s a
nd
 al

low
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

at 
the

 ra
tes

 ta
rge

ted
 in
 th

is 
pla

n. 
 4.2

4 I
n l
ine

 w
ith
 S
co
ttis

h P
lan

nin
g P

oli
cy
, th

es
e a

llo
wa

nc
es
 pr

ov
ide

 
a g

en
ero

us
 su

pp
ly 
of 

lan
d f

or 
ne
w 
ho
us
ing

 (S
ch
ed
ule

 1)
 on

 to
p o

f 
the

 ho
us
ing

 re
qu
ire
me

nt 
(fig

ure
 8)

. A
s a

 re
su
lt, 
we

 ca
nn
ot 
ex
pe
ct 
all
 

the
 n
ew

 h
om

es
 to

 b
e 
bu
ilt 

wit
hin

 th
e 
rel
ev
an
t p

lan
 p
eri
od
. T

his
 

ma
ke
s s

ure
 th

e 
pla

n 
ca
n 
co
pe
 w

ith
 h
igh

er 
lev

els
 o
f d

em
an
d 
tha

n 
we

 cu
rre

ntl
y e

xp
ec
t.  

 Ta
rg
ets

 
 • T

o i
nc
rea

se
 th
e p

op
ula

tio
n o

f th
e c

ity
 re

gio
n t

o 5
00
,00

0 b
y 2

03
5. 

• T
o m

ov
e 
tow

ard
s b

uil
din

g a
t le

as
t 2

,50
0 
ho
me

s a
 ye

ar 
by
 2
01
6 

thr
ou
gh
 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
. 

• T
o m

ov
e 
tow

ard
s b

uil
din

g a
t le

as
t 3

,00
0 
ho
me

s a
 ye

ar 
by
 2
02
0 

thr
ou
gh
 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
. 

 Ho
w 
to 

me
et 
the

 ta
rg
ets

 
 4.2

5 B
oth

 pl
an
nin

g a
uth

ori
tie
s w

ill 
ne
ed
 to

 m
ak
e l

an
d a

va
ila
ble

 fo
r 

ho
me

s 
thr

ou
gh
 lo

ca
l d

ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
s 
in 

lin
e 

wit
h 

the
 s
pa
tia
l 

str
ate

gy
 an

d s
ch
ed
ule

 1 
of 

thi
s p

lan
. P

ha
sin

g o
f la

nd
 al
loc

ati
on
s f
or 

the
 pe

rio
d 2

01
7-2

02
6 m

ay
 be

 pu
t in

 pl
ac
e w

he
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

. W
e 

wil
l u

se
 a

cti
on
 p

rog
ram

me
s, 

pla
nn
ing

 a
gre

em
en
ts 

an
d 

po
ss
ibl
y 

Page 52



21
 

co
mp

uls
ory

 p
urc

ha
se
 p
ow

ers
 to

 fo
cu
s a

tte
nti
on
 o
n 
de
live

rin
g 
ne
w 

ho
us
ing

, 
em

plo
ym

en
t a

nd
 c

om
me

rci
al 

us
es
 a

nd
 p

rov
idi
ng
 t
he
 

ne
ce
ss
ary

 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e. 
 4.2

6 A
s w

ell
 as

 th
es
e, 

the
re 

are
 al
so
 ot

he
r a

cti
on
s w

e n
ee
d t

o t
ak
e 

to 
me

et 
thi
s 
ob
jec

tiv
e. 

Th
es
e 

ac
tio
ns
 a

re 
co
ve
red

 u
nd
er 

oth
er 

ob
jec

tiv
es
 w
hic

h f
oc
us
 on

 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d w

ill 
he
lp 

to 
ma

ke
 th

e N
ort

h E
as
t a

n e
ve
n m

ore
 at

tra
cti
ve
 pl

ac
e t

o l
ive

, v
isit

 
an
d 

do
 b

us
ine

ss
. I

n 
thi
s 

wa
y, 

pro
vid

ing
 la

nd
 fo

r h
ou
sin

g 
an
d 

inc
rea

sin
g t

he
 po

pu
lat
ion

 is
 on

e p
art

 of
 a 

str
ate

gy
 to

 in
cre

as
e t

he
 

qu
ali
ty 

of 
life

 in
 th

e 
are

a. 
Pr
ov
idi
ng
 n
ew

 h
ou
sin

g 
wh

ich
 d
oe
s n

ot 
me

et 
the

 re
qu
ire
me

nts
 of

 th
e s

pa
tia
l s
tra

teg
y o

r m
ee
t th

e s
tan

da
rds

 
se
t o
ut 

un
de
r o

the
r o

bje
cti
ve
s w

ill n
ot 

be
 su

pp
ort

ed
 by

 th
is 
pla

n. 
 4.2

7 
Me

eti
ng
 th

es
e 
tar

ge
ts 

wil
l a

lso
 d
ep
en
d 
on
 fa

cto
rs 

wh
ich

 a
re 

no
t r

ela
ted

 to
 th

e 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n 
or 

un
de
r t

he
 c
on
tro

l o
f t
he
 

pla
nn
ing

 au
tho

riti
es
. T

he
se
 fa

cto
rs 

inc
lud

e t
he
 he

alt
h o

f th
e g

lob
al 

an
d 
loc

al 
ec
on
om

y, 
the

 p
ric
e 
of 

oil
, a

cc
es
s 
to 

an
d 
the

 c
os
t o

f 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 
mo

rtg
ag
e 
fin
an
ce
, t
he
 re

sp
on
se
 o
f t
he
 h
ou
se
-

bu
ild
ing

 i
nd
us
try
 a

nd
 h

ow
 t
he
 a

rea
 i
s 

ma
rke

ted
 t
o 

po
ten

tia
l 

res
ide

nts
 fro

m 
the

 re
st 
of 

Sc
otl
an
d o

r fu
rth

er 
afi
eld

. 
   Mo

nit
or
ing

  
 Mo

nit
ori
ng
 w

ill 
as
se
ss
 tr

en
ds
 in

 p
op
ula

tio
n 

gro
wt
h 

an
d 

ho
us
e-

bu
ild
ing

 in
 th
e a

rea
.  

 

Page 53



22
 

Qu
ali
ty 
of 
the
 en
vir
on
me
nt 
 

 Ob
jec

tiv
e 

 To
 m

ak
e 

su
re 

ne
w 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

ma
int
ain

s 
an
d 

im
pro

ve
s 

the
 

reg
ion

’s 
im
po
rta

nt 
bu
ilt,
 na

tur
al 
an
d c

ult
ura

l a
ss
ets

. 
 Iss

ue
s 

 4.2
8 

Th
e 

bu
ilt,
 n

atu
ral
 a

nd
 c

ult
ura

l e
nv
iro
nm

en
t i

s 
a 

va
lua

ble
 

res
ou
rce

, b
ut 

on
e w

hic
h n

ee
ds
 to

 be
 pr

ote
cte

d. 
Th

e w
ay
 in

 w
hic

h 
sit
es
 a

re 
ch
os
en
, a

nd
 h

igh
 q

ua
lity

 d
es
ign

, w
ill 

ma
ke
 s
ure

 th
at 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

do
es
 no

t le
ad
 to

 th
e d

ec
lin
e o

f th
e N

ort
h E

as
t’s
 bu

ilt,
 

na
tur

al 
an
d c

ult
ura

l a
ss
ets

.  
 4.2

9 B
iod

ive
rsi
ty,
 w
ild
life

 ha
bit
ats

 an
d l
an
ds
ca
pe
 ca

n b
e v

uln
era

ble
 

to 
the

 ef
fec

ts 
of 

ne
w 
de
ve
lop

me
nt.

 A
s a

 re
su
lt, 
we

 ne
ed
 to

 fo
cu
s o

n 
ma

int
ain

ing
 an

d i
mp

rov
ing

 th
em

, e
sp
ec
ial
ly 
wh

ere
 th

ere
 ar

e p
lan

s 
for

 d
ev
elo

pm
en
t. 

In 
pa
rtic

ula
r, 

we
 n

ee
d 

to 
tak

e 
ca
re 

ov
er 

the
 

po
ss
ibl
e 

eff
ec
ts 

of 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

on
 N

atu
ra 

20
00
 s
ite
s 
an
d 

the
 

Ca
irn
go
rm

s N
ati
on
al 
Pa

rk.
 

 4.3
0 
No

t a
ll w

ate
r b

od
ies

 in
 th

e 
are

a 
me

et 
the

 q
ua
lity

 st
an
da
rds

 
un
de
r t

he
 W

ate
r F

ram
ew

ork
 D

ire
cti
ve
. R

ive
r B

as
in 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Pla

ns
 ha

ve
 be

en
 pr

ep
are

d i
n p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
to 
de
al 
wit

h t
he
se
 is
su
es
. 

 4.3
1 
Th

e 
gre

en
 b
elt
 a
rou

nd
 A
be
rde

en
 w

ill 
co
nti
nu
e 
to 

pla
y a

 vi
tal
 

rol
e 
in 

pro
tec

tin
g 
the

 ch
ara

cte
r a

nd
 la

nd
sc
ap
e 
se
ttin

g 
of 

the
 C

ity
. 

Ho
we

ve
r, i

t w
ill 
ne
ed
 to

 ch
an
ge
 to

 m
ee
t th

e g
row

th 
thi
s p

lan
 se

ek
s 

to 
ac
hie

ve
. It

 m
us
t g

uid
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t to

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 pl
ac
es
 w
hil
e 

pro
tec

tin
g 
the

 m
os
t i
mp

ort
an
t a

rea
s. 

Ac
ce
ss
ibl
e 
gre

en
 n
etw

ork
s 

wit
hin

 an
d a

rou
nd
 A
be
rde

en
 an

d o
the

r m
ajo

r s
ett

lem
en
ts 

wil
l a

lso
 

be
 im

po
rta

nt 
to 
ac
hie

vin
g a

 hi
gh
 qu

ali
ty 
en
vir
on
me

nt.
 

 

4.3
2 
Sit

es
 a
nd
 a
rea

s v
alu

ed
 fo

r t
he
ir 
co
ntr

ibu
tio
n 
to 

the
 b
uil
t a

nd
 

his
tor

ic 
en
vir
on
me

nt 
are

 ju
st 

as
 se

ns
itiv

e a
nd
 sh

ou
ld 

be
 pr

ote
cte

d 
fro

m 
the

 ne
ga
tiv
e e

ffe
cts

 of
 de

ve
lop

me
nt.
 

 Ta
rg
ets

 
 • T

o m
ak
e s

ure
 th
at 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
im
pro

ve
s a

nd
 do

es
 no

t le
ad
 to

 th
e 

los
s o

f, o
r d

am
ag
e t

o, 
bu
ilt,
 na

tur
al 
or 

cu
ltu
ral
 he

rita
ge
 as

se
ts.
 

• T
o 
av
oid

 n
ew

 d
ev
elo

pm
en
t p

rev
en
tin
g 
wa

ter
 b
od
ies

 a
ch
iev

ing
 

‘go
od
 ec

olo
gic

al 
sta

tus
’ u
nd
er 

the
 W

ate
r F

ram
ew

ork
 D
ire
cti
ve
. 

 Ho
w 
to 

me
et 
the

 ta
rg
ets

 
 • L

oc
al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
ns
 (a

nd
 su

pp
lem

en
tar

y g
uid

an
ce
) w

ill 
ma

ke
 

su
re 

the
 N

ort
h 
Ea

st’
s 
na
tur

al 
en
vir
on
me

nt 
an
d 
his

tor
ic 

sit
es
 a
nd
 

bu
ild
ing

s c
on
tin
ue
 to

 be
 pr

ote
cte

d a
nd
 im

pro
ve
d. 
 

• 
Bo

th 
co
un
cils

 w
ill 

tak
e 

pa
rt 

in 
the

 R
ive

r B
as
in 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Pla

nn
ing

 pr
oc
es
s, 
pa
rtic

ula
rly
 as

 it 
rel
ate

s t
o n

ew
 de

ve
lop

me
nt.
 

• B
oth

 c
ou
nc
ils 

wil
l t
ak
e 
ac
co
un
t o

f b
iod

ive
rsi
ty,
 w

ild
life

 h
ab
ita
ts,
 

lan
ds
ca
pe
, g

ree
n n

etw
ork

s a
nd
 ot

he
r s

en
sit
ive

 ar
ea
s i
n i

de
nti
fyi
ng
 

lan
d 

for
 d

ev
elo

pm
en
t, 

pre
pa
rin
g 

ma
ste

rpl
an
s 

an
d 

as
se
ss
ing

 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
pro

po
sa
ls.
 

 Mo
nit

or
ing

 
 • M

ea
su
rin
g 
the

 p
erc

en
tag

e 
of 

wa
ter

 b
od
ies

 th
at 

ac
hie

ve
 ‘g

oo
d 

ec
olo

gic
al 

sta
tus

’, 
ca
rrie

d 
ou
t 

by
 t

he
 S

co
ttis

h 
En

vir
on
me

nt 
Pr
ote

cti
on
 Ag

en
cy
. 

• A
ss
es
sin

g 
ho
w 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

ha
s d

ire
ctl
y o

r i
nd
ire
ctl
y l

ed
 to

 th
e 

los
s o

f th
e b

uil
t, n

atu
ral
 an

d c
ult
ura

l a
ss
ets

, b
y c

arr
yin

g o
ut 

rev
iew

s 
thr

ou
gh
 lo
ca
l d
ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
s. 

• A
ss
es
sin

g 
ho
w 

mu
ch
 d
ev
elo

pm
en
t h

as
 b
ee
n 
gra

nte
d 
pla

nn
ing

 
pe
rm

iss
ion

 ag
ain

st 
gre

en
 be

lt p
oli
cie

s, 
us
ing

 ap
pe
al 

de
cis

ion
s a

nd
 

Sc
ott

ish
 M
ini
ste

r n
oti
fic
ati
on
s. 

 

Page 54



23
 

Su
sta
ina
ble
 m
ixe
d c
om
mu
nit
ies
 

 Ob
jec

tiv
e 

 To
 m

ak
e s

ure
 th

at 
ne
w 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

me
ets

 th
e n

ee
ds
 of

 th
e w

ho
le 

co
mm

un
ity
, b

oth
 no

w 
an
d i
n t

he
 fu

tur
e, 

an
d m

ak
es
 th

e a
rea

 a 
mo

re 
att

rac
tiv
e p

lac
e f
or 

res
ide

nts
 an

d b
us
ine

ss
es
 to
 m
ov
e t

o. 
 Iss

ue
s 

 4.3
3 

To
o 

oft
en
 in

 t
he
 p

as
t, 

ne
w 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

ha
s 

no
t 
be
en
 

su
sta

ina
ble

, 
mi
xe
d 

or 
foc

us
ed
 o

n 
me

eti
ng
 t
he
 n

ee
ds
 o

f 
the

 
co
mm

un
ity
. W

e m
us
t n

ot 
all
ow

 th
is 
to 

co
nti
nu
e. 

If w
e a

re 
to 

ac
hie

ve
 

ou
r v

isio
n, 

we
 m

us
t s

et 
the

 h
igh

es
t s

tan
da
rds

 fo
r u

rba
n 
an
d 
rur

al 
de
sig

n, 
the

 m
ix 

of 
lan

d 
us
es
, u

sin
g 
lan

d 
mo

re 
eff
icie

ntl
y a

nd
 re

-
us
ing

 pr
ev
iou

sly
 de

ve
lop

ed
 la
nd
.  

 4.3
4 A

 fo
cu
s o

n s
us
tai
na
ble

 m
ixe

d c
om

mu
nit
ies

 m
ea
ns
 no

t d
ea
lin
g 

wit
h d

iffe
ren

t la
nd
 us

es
 in

 is
ola

tio
n. 

Re
tai
l, e

mp
loy

me
nt,

 ed
uc
ati
on
, 

he
alt
h, 

lei
su
re,

 op
en
 sp

ac
e a

nd
 tra

ns
po
rt a

s w
ell
 as

 ho
us
ing

 ar
e a

ll 
vit
al 

for
 s

uc
ce
ss
ful
 d

ev
elo

pm
en
t. 

Su
ch
 d

ev
elo

pm
en
t c

rea
tes

 a
 

str
on
g 
se
ns
e 
of 

pla
ce
 a
nd
 a
 h
igh

-qu
ali
ty 

en
vir
on
me

nt 
in 

wh
ich

 to
 

live
 an

d w
ork

. 
 4.3

5 
Ou

r f
utu

re 
co
mm

un
itie

s m
us
t b

e 
mi
xe
d 
in 

ter
ms

 o
f t
he
 ty

pe
 

an
d s

ize
 of

 ho
me

s, 
as
 w
ell
 as

 th
eir
 te

nu
re 

an
d c

os
t. W

e a
lso

 ne
ed
 

to 
ma

ke
 su

re 
tha

t n
ew

 ho
me

s a
re 

de
sig

ne
d t

o a
 hi
gh
 st
an
da
rd 

an
d 

tha
t th

ey
 re

sp
ec
t a

nd
 im

pro
ve
 th

e e
xis

tin
g q

ua
litie

s o
f t
he
 a
rea

. If
 

we
 w
an
t to

 al
low

 pe
op
le 
to 

ha
ve
 a 

ch
oic

e o
f w

he
re 

the
y w

an
t to

 liv
e, 

de
ve
lop

me
nts

 m
us
t p

rov
ide

 a
 w

ide
 ra

ng
e 
of 

op
tio
ns
, f
rom

 st
art

er 
ho
me

s t
o 
lar
ge
 d
eta

ch
ed
 h
ou
se
s. 

Pr
ov
idi
ng

 a
ffo
rda

ble
 h
ou
sin

g 
is 

als
o c

riti
ca
l to

 de
live

rin
g s

us
tai
na
ble

 m
ixe

d c
om

mu
nit
ies

. H
ow

ev
er,

 
cu
rre

ntl
y t
he
re 

is 
mo

re 
of 

a n
ee
d f

or 
aff
ord

ab
le 
ho
us
ing

 (id
en
tifi
ed
 in
 

the
 H

ou
sin

g 
Ne

ed
 a

nd
 D

em
an
d 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
as
 3

8%
 o

f n
ew

 
ho
me

s) 
tha

n t
he
re 

is 
fun

din
g a

va
ila
ble

.  
Me

eti
ng
 th

e t
arg

ets
 in

 th
is 

pla
n w

ill 
ne
ed
 co

ns
ide

rab
le 

eff
ort

 an
d c

rea
tiv
ity
 on

 th
e p

art
 of

 bo
th 

pu
bli
c a

nd
 p
riv
ate

 se
cto

rs 
wo

rki
ng

 to
ge
the

r. 
Th

e 
tw
o 
co
un
cils

 w
ill 

pre
pa
re 

loc
al 

ho
us
ing

 st
rat

eg
ies

 w
hic

h w
ill 
co
ns
ide

r in
 m

ore
 de

tai
l 

ho
w 
to 

pro
vid

e a
ffo
rda

ble
 ho

us
ing

. H
av
ing

 a 
va
rie
ty 

of 
ho
me

s a
nd
 

res
ide

nti
al 

en
vir
on
me

nts
 w

ill 
he
lp 

to 
im
pro

ve
 u
rba

n 
de

sig
n 
in 

the
 

cit
y, 

tow
ns
 an

d r
ura

l a
rea

s. 
Ne

w 
ho
us
ing

 w
hic

h d
oe
s n

ot 
me

et 
the

 
tar

ge
ts 
se
t o
ut 
be
low

 w
ill n

ot 
be
 su

pp
ort

ed
 by

 th
is 
pla

n. 
 4.3

6 I
t is

 im
po
rta

nt 
tha

t n
ew

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 

me
ets

 th
e n

ee
ds
 of

 th
e 

wh
ole

 c
om

mu
nit
y, 

inc
lud

ing
 t
he
 s

pe
cif
ic 

ne
ed
s 

of 
Gy

ps
ies

 /
 

Tra
ve
lle
rs.
 W

ith
 an

 ag
ein

g p
op
ula

tio
n a

nd
 sm

all
er 

ho
us
eh
old

s, 
ne
w 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

wil
l n

ee
d t

o m
ee
t th

e c
ha
ng
ing

 ne
ed
s o

f s
oc
iet
y o

ve
r 

its
 w
ho
le 
life

.  
 4.3

7 L
an
d b

rou
gh
t fo

rw
ard

 fo
r d

ev
elo

pm
en
t m

us
t b

e u
se
d e

ffic
ien

tly
 

an
d 

bro
wn

fie
ld 

sit
es
 a

nd
 r
eg
en
era

tio
n 

are
as
 s

ho
uld

 b
e 

giv
en
 

pri
ori
ty.
 T
hro

ug
h 
thi
s 
pro

ce
ss
, w

e 
sh
ou
ld 

cre
ate

 o
pp
ort

un
itie

s 
for

 
ne
w 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

tha
t w

ill 
clo

se
 th

e g
ap
 be

tw
ee
n t

he
 w
ea
lth
y a

nd
 

mo
st 
dis

ad
va
nta

ge
d a

rea
s o

f th
e r

eg
ion

. 
 4.3

8 
Ne

w 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

ne
ed
s 
to 

foc
us
 o

n 
co
mm

un
itie

s. 
In 

the
 

str
ate

gic
 g
row

th 
are

as
, s

erv
ice

s 
an
d 
fac

iliti
es
 fo

r t
he
 c
om

mu
nit
y 

mu
st 

be
 a

 p
art

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
elo

pm
en
t. 

Th
is 

pla
n 

wil
l n

ot 
su
pp
ort

 
ho
us
e-b

uil
din

g 
tha

t f
ail
s 
to 

pro
vid

e 
the

se
 s
erv

ice
s 
an
d 

fac
iliti

es
 

wh
ich

 he
lp 
ma

ke
 su

cc
es
sfu

l a
nd
 su

sta
ina

ble
 co

mm
un
itie

s. 
  4.3

9 
In 

the
 s
am

e 
wa

y, 
a 
foc

us
 o
n 
co
mm

un
itie

s 
me

an
s 
tha

t n
ew

 
ho
us
ing

 a
nd
 d
ev
elo

pm
en
ts 

for
 e
mp

loy
me

nt 
an
d 
co
mm

erc
ial
 u
se
 

sh
ou
ld 

be
 in

teg
rat

ed
 (w

ell
 re

lat
ed
 to

 e
ac
h 
oth

er 
an
d 
co
mm

un
ity
 

fac
iliti

es
) t
o 
im
pro

ve
 p
eo
ple

’s 
qu
ali
ty 

of 
life

 a
nd
 o
pp
ort

un
ity
. T

his
 

sh
ou
ld 

be
 a
 p
art

icu
lar
 fo

cu
s 
in 

ma
ste

rpl
an
s 
pre

pa
red

 fo
r l
arg

er 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
are

as
. 

 4.4
0 T

o c
rea

te 
su
sta

ina
ble

 m
ixe

d c
om

mu
nit
ies

, re
tai
l s
erv

ice
s m

us
t 

be
 o
ne
 o
f t
he
 m

ain
 c
on
sid

era
tio
ns
 in

 p
rep

ari
ng
 m

as
ter

pla
ns
 a
nd
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

bri
efs

 fo
r n

ew
 de

ve
lop

me
nt.
 W

e w
ill 
tak

e a
 se

qu
en
tia
l 

ap
pro

ac
h t

o n
ew

 re
tai
l d
ev
elo

pm
en
t. H

ow
ev
er,

 w
e w

ill 
als

o s
up
po
rt 

Page 55



24
 

ex
ist
ing

 re
tai
l c
en
tre

s t
o m

ak
e s

ure
 th

at 
the

 ne
ed
s o

f th
e c

om
mu

nit
y 

are
 m
et 
no
w 
as
 w
ell
 as

 in
 th
e f

utu
re.

 
 4.4

1 
Th

is 
pla

n 
ha
s a

 cl
ea
r o

bje
cti
ve
 fo

r p
op
ula

tio
n 
gro

wt
h 
in 

the
 

No
rth

 Ea
st 
an
d i
nc
rea

sin
g t
he
 le
ve
l o
f h

ou
se
-bu

ild
ing

. H
ow

ev
er,

 th
is 

wil
l o
nly

 be
 ac

ce
pta

ble
 if 
the

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 

is 
of 

the
 hi
gh
es
t q
ua
lity

. 
 Ta
rg
ets

 
 • T

o i
nc
rea

se
 th

e r
an
ge
 an

d q
ua
lity

 of
 ho

us
ing

 an
d t

he
 re

sid
en
tia
l 

en
vir
on
me

nt 
in 
the

 ‘re
ge
ne
rat

ion
 pr

ior
ity
 ar

ea
s’.
 

• F
or 

40
% 

of 
all
 ne

w 
ho
us
ing

 in
 A
be
rde

en
 C
ity
 to

 be
 on

 br
ow

nfi
eld

 
sit
es
. 

• F
or 

all
 h

ou
sin

g 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
ov
er 

on
e 

he
cta

re 
in 

str
ate

gic
 

gro
wt
h 
are

as
 to

 b
e 
in 

lin
e 
wit

h 
ap
pro

ve
d 
su
pp
lem

en
tar

y g
uid

an
ce
 

an
d g

en
era

lly 
ha
ve
 no

 le
ss
 th

an
 30

 dw
ell
ing

s p
er 

he
cta

re.
  

• F
or 

the
 qu

ali
ty 
an
d d

es
ign

 of
 ne

w 
de
ve
lop

me
nts

 in
 th

e c
ity
 re

gio
n 

to 
be
 na

tio
na
lly 

rec
og
nis

ed
. 

• F
or 

ne
w 

ho
us
ing

 to
 m

ee
t t
he
 n
ee
ds
 of

 th
e 
wh

ole
 co

mm
un
ity
 b
y 

pro
vid

ing
 a
pp
rop

ria
te 

lev
els

 o
f a

ffo
rda

ble
 h
ou
sin

g 
(ar

ou
nd
 2
5%

) 
an
d 
an
 a
pp
rop

ria
te 

mi
x o

f t
yp
es
 a
nd
 si

ze
s o

f h
om

es
, in

 lin
e 
wit

h 
loc

al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
ns
 an

d a
pp
rov

ed
 su

pp
lem

en
tar

y g
uid

an
ce
. 

• F
or 

loc
al 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
ns
 an

d a
ll m

as
ter

pla
ns
 to

 fu
lly 

co
ns
ide

r 
the

 sc
op
e f
or 

a m
ix 
of 
us
es
 on

 a 
sit
e. 

 Ho
w 
to 

me
et 
the

 ta
rg
ets

 
 • L

oc
al 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
ns
 w
ill 
tak

e a
cc
ou
nt 

of 
the

se
 ta

rge
ts 

wh
en
 

de
cid

ing
 ho

w 
an
d w

he
re 

to 
ide

nti
fy 
lan

d f
or 

de
ve
lop

me
nt.
 

• E
ve
ryo

ne
 in
vo
lve

d i
n t

he
 pr

oc
es
s n

ee
ds
 to

 sh
ow

 a 
co
mm

itm
en
t to

 
qu
ali
ty 

an
d 
se
t th

e h
igh

es
t s

tan
da
rds

 th
rou

gh
ou
t th

e 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
ce
ss
, s
ett

lin
g f
or 

go
od
 pr

ac
tic
e, 
bu
t a
im
ing

 fo
r e

xc
ell
en
ce
. 

• U
sin

g 
su
pp
lem

en
tar

y 
gu
ida

nc
e 

to 
pro

vid
e 

mo
re 

de
tai
l o

n 
the

 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 
mi
x 

of 
pro

pe
rtie

s, 
urb

an
-de

sig
n 

pri
nc
ipl
es
 
an
d 

co
mm

un
ity
 fa

cili
tie
s. 

• M
ain

tai
n 
a 
de
sig

n 
rev

iew
 p
roc

es
s f

or 
ma

ste
rpl
an
s a

nd
 th

e 
mo

st 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
pla

nn
ing

 ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
. 

 Mo
nit

or
ing

  
 • M

ea
su
rin
g h

ow
 m

an
y p

rop
ert

ies
 th
ere

 ar
e i
n e

ac
h h

ec
tar

e f
or 

sit
es
 

of 
ov
er 

on
e h

ec
tar

e w
hic

h h
av
e b

ee
n g

ran
ted

 pl
an
nin

g p
erm

iss
ion

 
in 

str
ate

gic
 gr

ow
th 

are
as
, c

arr
ied

 ou
t e

ac
h y

ea
r u

sin
g t

he
 ho

us
ing

 
lan

d a
ud
it. 

• M
ea
su
rin
g t

he
 pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 ne
w 
ho
us
ing

 on
 br

ow
nfi
eld

 si
tes

 in
 

Ab
erd

ee
n, 
ca
rrie

d o
ut 
ea
ch
 ye

ar 
us
ing

 th
e h

ou
sin

g l
an
d a

ud
it. 

• R
ep
ort

 on
 re

ge
ne
rat

ion
 ac

tiv
ity
 an

d o
utc

om
es
. 

• 
Bu

ild
ing

 u
p 

a 
de
tai
led

 p
ict
ure

 o
f n

ew
 h

ou
sin

g 
de
ve
lop

me
nt,
 

inc
lud

ing
 th

e s
ize

s, 
typ

es
 an

d t
en
ure

 of
 pr

op
ert

ies
, c
arr

ied
 ou

t e
ac
h 

ye
ar 

us
ing

 th
e h

ou
sin

g l
an
d a

ud
it. 
 

 

Page 56



25
 

Ac
ce
ss
ibi
lity
 

 Ob
jec

tiv
e 

 To
 m

ak
e 

su
re 

tha
t 
all
 n

ew
 d

ev
elo

pm
en
ts 

co
ntr

ibu
te 

tow
ard

s 
red

uc
ing

 th
e n

ee
d t

o t
rav

el 
an
d e

nc
ou
rag

e p
eo
ple

 to
 w
alk

, c
yc
le 
or 

us
e p

ub
lic 

tra
ns
po
rt b

y m
ak
ing

 th
es
e a

ttra
cti
ve
 ch

oic
es
. 

 Iss
ue
s 

 4.4
2 
It 
is 

wid
ely

 a
cc
ep
ted

 th
at 

the
re 

are
 n
eg
ati
ve
 e
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
, 

ec
on
om

ic 
an
d 

so
cia

l 
eff
ec
ts 

as
so
cia

ted
 w

ith
 r

oa
d 

tra
ns
po
rt, 

inc
lud

ing
 ai
r a

nd
 no

ise
 po

llu
tio
n a

nd
 co

ng
es
tio
n. 

 4.4
3 T

his
 pl

an
 w
ill 
he
lp 

to 
pro

mo
te 

the
 lin

k b
etw

ee
n l

an
d u

se
 an

d 
tra

ns
po
rt 
to 

ma
ke
 s
ure

 th
at 

all
 n
ew

 d
ev
elo

pm
en
t i
s 
co
nv
en
ien

tly
 

loc
ate

d 
an
d 

de
sig

ne
d 

in 
su
ch
 a

 w
ay
 a

s 
to 

en
co
ura

ge
 w

alk
ing

, 
cy
clin

g 
an
d 
the

 u
se
 o
f p

ub
lic 

tra
ns
po
rt. 

Im
pro

vin
g 
bu
s 
an
d 
tra

in 
se
rvi
ce
s w

ill 
ma

ke
 su

re 
tha

t p
eo
ple

 w
ill 
be
 en

co
ura

ge
d t

o u
se
 m

ore
 

en
vir
on
me

nta
lly 

frie
nd
ly 
for

ms
 of
 tra

ns
po
rt. 

 4.4
4 
W
alk

ing
 a

nd
 c
yc
lin
g 

are
 th

e 
mo

st 
en
vir
on
me

nta
lly 

frie
nd
ly 

for
ms

 of
 tr
an
sp
ort

 an
d s

ho
uld

 al
so
 be

 en
co
ura

ge
d a

s t
his

 w
ill 
he
lp 

to 
ac
hie

ve
 im

po
rta

nt 
he
alt
h, 
so
cia

l a
nd
 en

vir
on
me

nta
l b
en
efi
ts.
 

 4.4
5 

Im
pro

vin
g 

ac
ce
ss
 to

 th
e 

No
rth

 E
as
t i

s 
als

o 
es
se
nti
al 

to 
de
ve
lop

ing
 a 

str
on
g e

co
no
my

 an
d p

rov
idi
ng
 be

tte
r li
nk
s. 
Th

e s
pa
tia
l 

str
ate

gy
 pr

om
ote

s o
pp
ort

un
itie

s a
t h

arb
ou
rs 

an
d t

he
 ai

rpo
rt a

s w
ell
 

as
 h

elp
ing

 to
 p

rom
ote

 a
cc
es
sib

ility
 b

y 
ma

kin
g 

su
re 

tha
t f

utu
re 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

als
o 

all
ow

s 
for

 im
pro

ve
me

nts
 in

 th
e 

rai
l a

nd
 ro

ad
 

ne
tw
ork

s. 
Th

is 
wil

l h
elp

 to
 im

pro
ve
 b

us
 a

nd
 tr

ain
 s
erv

ice
s 
an
d 

en
co
ura

ge
 pe

op
le 
to 
us
e t

he
m.
 

 Ta
rg
ets

 
 • F

or 
all
 de

ve
lop

me
nts

 to
 m

ee
t th

e a
cc
es
sib

ility
 st
an
da
rds

 se
t o

ut 
in 

the
 re

gio
na
l tr
an
sp
ort

 st
rat

eg
y. 

• F
or 

ma
jor
 e

mp
loy

me
nt 

an
d 

se
rvi
ce
 d

ev
elo

pm
en
ts 

in 
str
ate

gic
 

gro
wt
h 
are

as
 to

 s
ho
w 

tha
t t
he
y 
are

 e
as
y 
to 

ac
ce
ss
 b
y 
wa

lkin
g, 

cy
clin

g 
or 

us
ing

 p
ub
lic 

tra
ns
po
rt. 

Th
e 
tra

ve
l p

lan
s 
pro

du
ce
d 
for

 
the

se
 de

ve
lop

me
nts

 sh
ou
ld 
red

uc
e t
he
 ne

ed
 fo
r p

eo
ple

 to
 us

e c
ars

. 
• T

o r
ed
uc
e t
he
 pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 jo
urn

ey
s m

ad
e b

y c
ar.

 
 Ho

w 
to 

me
et 
the

 ta
rg
ets

  
 • 
Lo
ca
l d

ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
s 

wil
l i
de
nti
fy 

an
d 

pro
tec

t l
an
d 

fro
m 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

to 
ma

ke
 su

re 
tha

t tr
an
sp
ort

 pr
op
os
als

 id
en
tifi
ed
 in
 th

e 
loc

al 
an
d r

eg
ion

al 
tra

ns
po
rt s

tra
teg

ies
 ca

n b
e d

ev
elo

pe
d. 

Tra
ns
po
rt 

pro
po
sa
ls 
ne
ed
ed
 du

e t
o d

ev
elo

pm
en
t p

rom
ote

d i
n t

he
 pl
an
 w
ill 
be
 

ide
nti
fie
d i
n s

up
ple

me
nta

ry 
gu
ida

nc
e. 

• 
W
ork

 w
ith
 N

es
tra

ns
 to

 m
ak
e 

su
re 

tha
t p

utt
ing

 th
e 

str
ate

gic
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n 

int
o 

pra
cti
ce
 c

los
ely

 li
nk
s 

wit
h 

the
 r
eg
ion

al 
tra

ns
po
rt s

tra
teg

y. 
• T

he
 sp

ati
al 

str
ate

gy
 w
ill 
dir
ec
t d

ev
elo

pm
en
t to

 ar
ea

s t
ha
t c

an
 be

 
ac
ce
ss
ed
 b

y 
a 

gre
ate

r c
ho
ice

 o
f m

ore
 e

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
ly 

frie
nd

ly 
for

ms
 of
 tra

ns
po
rt. 

• B
oth

 co
un
cils

 w
ill 
pre

pa
re 

an
d k

ee
p u

nd
er 

rev
iew

 co
re 

pa
th 

pla
ns
 

tak
ing

 a
cc
ou
nt 

of 
wh

ere
 n
ew

 d
ev
elo

pm
en
ts 

wil
l t
ak
e 
pla

ce
 a
nd
 

iss
ue
s w

hic
h a

ffe
ct 
bo
th 
co
un
cil 

are
as
. 

• 
Th

e 
ac
tio
n 

pro
gra

mm
e 

wil
l, 

at 
an
 e

arl
y 

sta
ge
, 
ide

nti
fy 

the
 

ne
ce
ss
ary

 re
qu
ire
me

nts
 to

 m
ak
e 
su
re 

tha
t d

ev
elo

pm
en
ts 

ca
n 
be
 

ac
ce
ss
ed
 by

 w
alk

ing
, c
yc
lin
g a

nd
 pu

bli
c t
ran

sp
ort

. 
• A

pp
rov

ed
 su

pp
lem

en
tar

y g
uid

an
ce
 w
ill 
inc

lud
e l
ay
ou
ts 
an
d d

es
ign

 
for

 n
ew

 d
ev
elo

pm
en
ts 

wh
ich

 ca
n 
be
 a
cc
es
se
d 
ea
sily

 b
y w

alk
ing

, 
cy
clin

g a
nd
 pu

bli
c t
ran

sp
ort

.  
 Mo

nit
or
ing

 
 Mo

nit
ori
ng
 w

ill 
foc

us
 on

 th
e 
ac
ce
ss
ibi
lity

 o
f d

ev
elo

pm
en
ts 

an
d 
the

 
pe
rce

nta
ge
 of
 jo
urn

ey
s w

hic
h a

re 
ma

de
 by

 di
ffe
ren

t m
eth

od
s. 

 

Page 57



26
 

5 -
 Pu

ttin
g t
his

 pl
an
 in
to 
pr
ac
tic
e 

 5.1
 T
his

 pl
an
 pr

ov
ide

s a
 vi
sio

n t
ha
t a

im
s t

o d
ev
elo

p t
he
 ec

on
om

y, 
ma

int
ain

 an
d i
mp

rov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
ou
r e

nv
iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 pr

ov
ide

 a 
hig

h 
qu
ali
ty 

of 
life

. T
he
 s
ca
le 

of 
the

 c
ha
ng
es
 n

ee
de
d 

an
d 

the
 

ch
all
en
ge
s 
se
t b

y 
the

 v
isio

n, 
es
pe
cia

lly 
in 

rel
ati
on
 to

 s
us
tai
na
ble

 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d c

lim
ate

 ch
an
ge
, s
ho
uld

 no
t b
e u

nd
ere

sti
ma

ted
. 

 5.2
 Th

is 
pla

n s
ets

 th
e f

ram
ew

ork
 fo

r o
the

r p
lan

s a
nd
 st
rat

eg
ies

, a
nd
 

pro
mo

tes
 ta

rge
ts 
to 

ac
hie

ve
 ou

r a
im
s. 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ork

ing
 be

tw
ee
n 

the
 pu

bli
c a

nd
 pr

iva
te 

se
cto

rs 
wil

l b
e e

ss
en
tia
l to

 pu
t th

e p
lan

 in
to 

pra
cti
ce
. O

ne
 of

 th
e m

ain
 w
ay
s w

e w
ill 
pu
t th

is 
pla

n i
nto

 pr
ac
tic
e i
s 

thr
ou
gh
 lo

ca
l d

ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
s 

an
d 

su
pp
lem

en
tar

y 
gu
ida

nc
e. 

Th
es
e 

are
 p

rep
are

d 
se
pa
rat

ely
 b

y 
Ab

erd
ee
n 

Cit
y 

Co
un
cil 

an
d 

Ab
erd

ee
ns
hir
e C

ou
nc
il a

nd
 m
us
t b
e c

on
sis

ten
t w

ith
 th

is 
pla

n. 
 5.3

 H
ow

ev
er,

 lo
ca
l d

ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
s w

ill 
no

t h
av
e 
the

 lo
ng
-te

rm
 

vis
ion

 of
 th

e s
tra

teg
ic 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n. 

Th
ere

 m
ay
 be

 ac
tio
n t

ha
t 

ne
ed
s t

o b
e t

ak
en
 no

w 
to 

all
ow

 pr
op
os
als

 to
 be

 in
clu

de
d i

n f
utu

re 
loc

al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
ns
. W

e h
av
e d

ev
elo

pe
d a

n a
cti
on
 pr

og
ram

me
 

to 
su
pp
ort

 th
is 
pla

n. 
 

 5.4
 T
he
 pr

og
ram

me
 id

en
tifi
es
 w
ho
 is
 to

 ta
ke
 ac

tio
n, 

wh
en
 th

is 
wil

l 
ne
ed
 to

 ha
pp
en
 an

d h
ow

 it 
wil

l b
e f

un
de
d a

nd
 de

live
red

. T
his

 w
ill 

giv
e 
the

 p
eo
ple

 c
on
ce
rne

d 
the

 c
on
fid
en
ce
 to

 m
ak
e 
de
cis

ion
s 
on
 

inv
es
tm

en
t. T

he
 ac

tio
n p

rog
ram

me
 w
ill 
be
 m

on
ito
red

 re
gu
lar
ly 
an
d 

rev
iew

ed
 at

 le
as
t e

ve
ry 
tw
o y

ea
rs.

 
 5.5

 In
 tr
uly

 ex
ce
pti
on
al 

cir
cu
ms

tan
ce
s, 

for
 ex

am
ple

 if 
it i
s e

ss
en
tia
l 

to 
pu
t t
he
 p
lan

’s 
str
ate

gy
 in

to 
pra

cti
ce
, p

lan
nin

g 
pe
rm

iss
ion

 m
ay
 

ne
ed
 to

 be
 gr

an
ted

 on
 si
tes

 id
en
tifi
ed
 in
 lo
ca
l d
ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
s f
or 

the
 pe

rio
d 2

02
7-2

03
5 (

sh
ow

n i
n s

ch
ed
ule

 1)
. A

ny
 pe

rm
iss

ion
 m

ay
 

ha
ve
 co

nd
itio

ns
 w

hic
h 
co
ntr

ol 
the

 ra
te 

of 
de
ve
lop

me
nt.
 W

e 
wo

uld
 

ne
ed
 to

 h
igh

lig
ht 

the
 n

ee
d 

for
 th

is 
ac
tio
n 

thr
ou
gh
 th

e 
Ac

tio
n 

Pr
og
ram

me
 an

d b
oth

 th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
nn
ing

 au
tho

rity
 

an
d t
he
 re

lev
an
t c
ou
nc
il w

ou
ld 
ha
ve
 to

 ag
ree

 to
 it.
 

 5.6
 W

e h
av
e c

arr
ied

 ou
t a

 ‘H
ab
ita
ts 

Re
gu
lat
ion

s A
pp
rai
sa
l’ f
or 

thi
s 

pla
n. 

Ho
we

ve
r, 

we
 w

ill 
ha
ve
 t
o 

ca
rry

 o
ut 

a 
mo

re 
de
tai
led

 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
at 

a l
ate

r s
tag

e f
or 

loc
al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
ns
 an

d c
ert

ain
 

de
ve
lop

me
nts

 to
 m

ak
e s

ure
 th

ey
 w
ill 
no
t h

av
e a

 ne
ga
tiv
e e

ffe
ct 

on
 

an
y N

atu
ra 

20
00
 si
te.
 

 Pr
ov
idi
ng

 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e 
 5.7

 T
o m

ak
e c

ha
ng
es
 on

 th
e s

ca
le 

pro
po
se
d i

n t
his

 pl
an
, w

e m
us
t 

inv
es
t 

in 
ex
ist
ing

 
an
d 

ne
w 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
in 

the
 
str
ate

gic
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n a

rea
. T

his
 is
 im

po
rta

nt 
to 

ma
int
ain

 qu
ali
ty 

of 
life

 
in 
co
mm

un
itie

s. 
Th

e e
xis

tin
g r

oa
ds
, s

ew
ers

 an
d s

ch
oo
ls 
wil

l n
ot 

be
 

ab
le 
to 

co
pe
 w
ith
 th

e d
em

an
ds
 ex

tra
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

wil
l b
rin
g. 
W
e w

ill 
als

o n
ee
d t

o i
nv
es
t in

 fa
cili

tie
s a

nd
 se

rvi
ce
s f
or 

co
mm

un
itie

s. 
Th

es
e 

tw
o 
ne
ed
s h

av
e 
to 

be
 ca

ref
ull
y c

on
sid

ere
d 
ve
ry 

ea
rly
 in

 th
e 
lan

d-
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
ce
ss
, 
ev
en
 b

efo
re 

lan
d 

is 
ide

nti
fie
d 

in 
loc

al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
pla

ns
.  

 5.8
 D

ev
elo

pe
rs 

wil
l h

av
e 

to 
ac
ce
pt 

the
 n

ee
d 

for
 c

on
trib

uti
on
s 

tow
ard

s n
ec
es
sa
ry 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re,
 se

rvi
ce
s a

nd
 fa

cili
tie
s w

ith
in 

the
ir 

ow
n s

ite
. H

ow
ev
er,

 in
 ca

se
s w

he
re 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

ha
s w

ide
r e

ffe
cts

, 
we

 w
ill h

av
e t

o s
ec
ure

 co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 to
 de

al 
wit

h t
he
se
 as

 w
ell
.  

 5.9
 W

e w
ill p

rep
are

 su
pp
lem

en
tar

y g
uid

an
ce
 in
 su

pp
ort

 of
 th

is 
pla

n. 
 

Th
is 

wil
l a

llo
w 

(th
rou

gh
 a

 ‘S
tra

teg
ic 

Tra
ns
po
rt 

Fu
nd
’) 

tra
ns
po
rt 

pro
jec

ts 
wh

ich
 ar

e n
ee
de
d a

s a
 re

su
lt o

f th
e c

om
bin

ed
 ef
fec

t o
f n

ew
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
the

 s
tra

teg
ic 

gro
wt
h 

are
as
 w

ith
in 

the
 A

be
rde

en
 

Ho
us
ing

 M
ark

et 
Ar
ea
 to
 be

 fu
nd
ed
 an

d d
eli
ve
red

.  
 5.1

0 
W
e 
ex
pe
ct 

tha
t t
he
 in

cre
as
e 
in 

lan
d 
va
lue

, a
s 
a 
res

ult
 o
f 

gra
nti
ng
 p
lan

nin
g 
pe
rm

iss
ion

, w
ill 

fun
d 
a 
lar
ge
 p
erc

en
tag

e 
of 

the
 

ne
w 
inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
ne
ed
ed
, a

lth
ou
gh
 th

e p
ub
lic 

se
cto

r w
ill 
als

o n
ee
d 

to 
ma

ke
 an

 im
po
rta

nt 
co
ntr

ibu
tio
n. 

W
e w

ill 
ne
ed
 to

 se
cu
re 

a h
igh

er 
pe
rce

nta
ge
 of

 th
e i
nc
rea

se
 in
 la
nd
 va

lue
s t
ha
n w

e h
av
e i
n t

he
 pa

st,
 

to 
be
 ab

le 
to 
cre

ate
 su

sta
ina

ble
 m
ixe

d c
om

mu
nit
ies

.  

Page 58



27
 

 5.1
1 T

he
 A
be
rde

en
 W

es
ter

n P
eri
ph
era

l R
ou
te,
 du

all
ing

 of
 th

e A
90
 

be
tw
ee
n B

alm
ed
ie 

an
d T

ipp
ert

y a
nd
 of

 th
e A

90
 be

tw
ee
n I

nv
eru

rie
 

an
d t

he
 bo

rde
r w

ith
 M

ora
y a

re 
alr
ea
dy
 Tr

an
sp
ort

 S
co
tla
nd
 pr

oje
cts

, 
alo

ng
 w
ith
 a 

ne
w 
sta

tio
n a

t K
int
ore

 an
d o

the
r s

erv
ice

 im
pro

ve
me

nts
 

on
 th

e 
Ab

erd
ee
n-I

nv
ern

es
s 
rai
l li

ne
. A

ll o
the

r w
ork

 a
ffe

cti
ng
 th

e 
tru

nk
 r

oa
d, 

or 
rai
l 
ne
tw
ork

, 
wil

l 
ne
ed
 T

ran
sp
ort

 S
co
tla
nd
’s 

pe
rm

iss
ion

. 
 Pr
op

os
als

 
 5.1

2 
A 

ran
ge
 o
f p

roj
ec
ts 

ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
pro

po
se
d 
tha

t w
ill 

he
lp 

us
 

ac
hie

ve
 o
ur 

vis
ion

 fo
r t
he
 N

ort
h-E

as
t. W

hil
e 
so
me

 a
re 

we
ll u

nd
er 

wa
y, 

oth
ers

 ar
e a

t a
n e

arl
y s

tag
e. 

Th
es
e a

re 
se
t o

ut 
at 

the
 fro

nt 
of 

the
 pl
an
 in
 th

e s
pa
tia
l s
tra

teg
y a

s w
ell
 as

 be
ing

 lis
ted

 in
 Sc

he
du
le 
2. 

Yo
u c

an
 fin

d m
ore

 de
tai
l o
n e

ac
h p

rop
os
al 
in 
the

 [P
rop

os
ed
] A

cti
on
 

Pr
og
ram

me
. 

 Mo
nit

or
ing

 an
d r

ev
iew

ing
 th

is 
pla

n 
 5.1

3 
W
e 

rec
og
nis

e 
tha

t t
hin

gs
 w

ill 
ch
an
ge
 o

ve
r 
tim

e, 
bo
th 

in 
res

po
ns
e 
to 

the
 d
ire
cti
on
 th

is 
pla

n 
pro

mo
tes

 a
nd
 e
ve
nts

 w
e 
we

re 
no
t a

ble
 to

 p
red

ict
. M

on
ito
rin
g 

mu
st 

tak
e 

pla
ce
 to

 a
ss
es
s 
ou
r 

pro
gre

ss
 in
 m
ee
tin
g t
he
 pl
an
’s 
ob
jec

tiv
es
 an

d u
ltim

ate
ly,
 th

e v
isio

n. 
 5.1

4 
Ea

ch
 o
bje

cti
ve
 o
f t
his

 p
lan

 id
en
tifi
es
 w

ay
s o

f m
on
ito
rin
g 
an
d 

we
 w

ill 
pro

du
ce
 a

 m
on
ito
rin
g 

rep
ort

 to
 a

ss
es
s 
ou
r p

rog
res

s 
in 

me
eti
ng
 th

e t
arg

ets
. 

 5.1
5 S

ign
ific

an
t c
ha
ng
es
 in
 so

cie
ty,
 th

e e
co
no
my

, e
nv
iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

po
pu
lat
ion

 w
ill 
on
ly 
be
co
me

 cl
ea
r o

ve
r th

e l
on
ge
r te

rm
, b

ut 
wil

l a
lso

 
ne
ed
 to

 b
e 

mo
nit
ore

d 
to 

ma
ke
 s

ure
 th

e 
pla

n’s
 o

bje
cti
ve
s 

are
 

ap
pro

pri
ate

. M
on
ito
rin
g 

the
se
 w

ill, 
in 

pra
cti
ce
, b

e 
a 

co
nti
nu
ou
s 

pro
ce
ss
. H

ow
ev
er,

 w
e 

wil
l o

nly
 re

po
rt 

on
 th

em
 a

s 
pa
rt 

of 
the

 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 st
ate

me
nt 
pre

pa
red

 fo
r th

e n
ex
t p

lan
. 

 

5.1
6 

W
e 

wil
l r

ev
iew

 th
is 

pla
n 

on
 th

e 
tim

es
ca
le 

se
t o

ut 
in 

the
 

leg
isla

tio
n, 

wit
h 
a 
rev

ise
d 
pla

n 
go
ing

 to
 S

co
ttis

h 
Mi
nis

ter
s 
wit

hin
 

fou
r y
ea
rs 
of 
thi
s p

lan
’s 
ap
pro

va
l.  

 

Page 59



28
 

Sc
he
du
le 
1: 
Ho

us
ing

 al
low

an
ce
s 

  
Ef
fec

tiv
e 

La
nd

 
Su

pp
ly 

20
11

 

Co
ns

tra
ine

d 
La

nd
 

su
pp

ly 
20

11
 

Ex
ist

ing
 

LD
P 

all
ow

an
ce

s 
to 

20
16

 

20
17

 t
o 

20
26

 
20

27
 t

o 
20

35
 

To
tal

 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 – 

Br
ow

nfi
eld

* 
1,1
88
 

1,2
44
 

4,5
00
 

3,0
00
 

3,0
00
 

10
,50
0 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 – 

Gr
ee
nfi
eld

* 
1,2
07
 

50
6 

12
,00
0 

5,0
00
 

4,0
00
 

21
,00
0 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 

2,5
30

 
1,7

50
 

16
,50

0 
8,0

00
 

7,0
00

 
31

,50
0 

 Hu
ntl
y –

 Pi
tca

ple
 
19
1 

20
7 

30
0 

50
0 

20
0 

1,0
00
  

Inv
eru

rie
 – 

Bla
ck
bu
rn*

 
1,1
91
 

27
9 

1,0
00
 

1,5
00
 

4,0
00
 

6,5
00
  

Po
rtle

the
n –

 
Sto

ne
ha
ve
n* 

71
4 

16
 

2,2
00
 

2,4
00
 

1,0
00
 

5,6
00
  

So
uth

 of
 

Dr
um

lith
ie 
– 

La
ure

nc
ek
irk
 

25
3 

10
 

50
0 

40
0 

10
0 

1,0
00
  

Pe
ter

he
ad
 – 

Ha
tto

n 
72
4 

31
1 

80
0 

80
0 

60
0 

2,2
00
  

Ell
on
 – 

Bla
ck
do
g* 

28
0 

54
5 

80
0 

1,5
00
 

1,5
00
 

3,8
00
  

Lo
ca
l G

row
th 

(A
HM

A)
* 

1,2
83
 

18
5 

1,0
00
 

1,3
50
 

1,3
50
 

3,7
00
  

Lo
ca
l G

row
th 

(R
HM

A)
 

1,5
84
 

1,4
34
 

4,2
00
 

4,0
00
 

4,0
00
 

12
,20
0  

Sm
all
 Si

tes
 

(A
HM

A)
* 

45
5 

 
 

 
 

 
Sm

all
 Si

tes
 

(R
HM

A)
 

74
5 

 
 

 
 

 
Ab

erd
ee

ns
hir

e 
7,2

85
 

2,9
87

 
10

,80
0 

12
,45

0 
12

,75
0 

36
,00

0 
 AH

MA
 (*

) 
6,3

18
 

2,7
75

 
21

,50
0 

14
,75

0 
14

,85
0 

51
,10

0 
RH

MA
 

3,4
97

 
1,9

62
 

5,8
00

 
5,7

00
 

4,9
00

 
16

,40
0 

Ab
erd

ee
n C

ity
 

an
d S

hir
e 

9,8
15

 
4,7

37
 

27
,30

0 
20

,45
0 

19
,75

0 
67

,50
0 

 *A
be
rde

en
 H
ou
sin

g M
ark

et 
Ar
ea
 (A

HM
A)
  

 No
te:

 Th
e ‘

Eff
ec
tiv
e L

an
d S

up
ply

 20
11
’ in

clu
de
s t

he
 5-

ye
ar 

eff
ec
tiv
e h

ou
sin

g l
an
d s

up
ply

 
as
 w
ell
 as

 th
e e

ffe
cti
ve
 su

pp
ly 
pro

gra
mm

ed
 be

yo
nd
 ye

ar 
fiv
e. 

To
 av

oid
 do

ub
le-
co
un
tin
g, 

we
 h

av
e 

no
t 
inc

lud
ed
 a

ny
 lo

ca
l d

ev
elo

pm
en
t 
pla

n 
all
oc
ati
on
s 

in 
the

 e
ffe
cti
ve
 o

r 
co
ns
tra

ine
d l
an
d s

up
ply

. 
 Th

e P
lai
n E

ng
lish

 C
am

pa
ign

’s 
Cr
ys
tal
 M
ark

 do
es
 no

t a
pp
ly 
to 
an
y t
ab
le.
 

Sc
he
du
le 
2: 
Pr
op
os
al 

 • T
he
 A
be
rde

en
 W

es
ter

n P
eri
ph
era

l R
ou
te 

an
d o

the
r a

ss
oc
iat
ed
 m

ea
su
res

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 
be
tte
r a

cc
es
s a

nd
 co

nn
ec
tio
ns
 to

 ot
he
r p

lac
es
 an

d t
o a

llo
w 
en

vir
on

me
nta

lly 
frie

nd
ly 

me
tho

ds
 of

 tra
ns
po
rt t

o b
e p

rov
ide

d. 
• D

ua
llin

g 
be
tw
ee
n 
Ba

lm
ed
ie 

an
d 
Tip

pe
rty
 a
nd
 fu

rth
er 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to

 th
e 
A9

0 
(no

rth
) to

 pr
ov
ide

 be
tte
r a

cc
es
s a

nd
 co

nn
ec
tio
ns
.  

•  
Re

pla
ce
 th

e 
Inv

era
ms

ay
 B

rid
ge
 a
nd
 lo

ng
er-

ter
m 

du
all
ing

 o
f t

he
 A

96
 b
etw

ee
n 

Inv
eru

rie
 an

d t
he
 bo

rde
r w

ith
 M
ora

y. 
• I
mp

rov
em

en
ts 

to 
the

 H
au
da

ga
in 

rou
nd
ab
ou
t, a

 th
ird
 cr

os
sin

g o
f th

e R
ive

r D
on
 an

d 
oth

er 
as
so
cia

ted
 m

ea
su
res

 to
 d
ea
l w

ith
 co

ng
es
tio
n 
an
d 
all
ow

 g
row

th 
in 

an
d 
to 

the
 

no
rth

 of
 th
e c

ity
. 

• T
wo

 n
ew

 p
ark

-an
d-r

ide
 s
erv

ice
s 
aro

un
d 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

to 
im
pro

ve
 a

cc
es
sib

ility
, a

ir 
qu
ali
ty 
an
d p

rov
ide

 w
ide

r tr
an

sp
ort

 be
ne
fits

. 
• R

oa
d a

nd
 ra

il i
mp

rov
em

en
ts,
 in

clu
din

g a
 ne

w 
sta

tio
n a

t K
int
ore

 an
d i

mp
rov

ed
 lo

ca
l 

rai
l s
erv

ice
s, 
to 

ma
ke
 en

vir
on

me
nta

lly 
frie

nd
ly 
me

tho
ds
 of

 tra
ns
po
rt m

ore
 at

tra
cti
ve
 – 

inc
lud

ing
 re

du
cin

g j
ou
rne

y t
im
es
 to
 In
ve
rne

ss
 an

d E
din

bu
rgh

 / G
las

go
w 
an
d b

ey
on
d. 

• P
utt
ing

 th
e A

be
rde

en
 ai
rpo

rt m
as
ter

pla
n i
nto

 pr
ac
tic
e. 

• 
Be

tte
r 
lin
ks
 b

etw
ee
n 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

an
d 

the
 c

om
mu

nit
ies

 o
n 

the
 n

ort
h 

co
as
t o

f 
Ab

erd
ee
ns
hir
e. 

• In
itia

tiv
es
 by

 th
e u

niv
ers

itie
s, 
co
lle
ge
s a

nd
 re

se
arc

h o
rga

nis
ati
on
s t
o s

tre
ng
the

n o
ur 

kn
ow

led
ge
 ec

on
om

y. 
• T

he
 E

ne
rge

tic
a 
ini
tia
tiv
e 
be
ing

 p
rom

ote
d 
by
 A

be
rde

en
 C

ity
 a
nd

 S
hir
e 
Ec

on
om

ic 
Fu

tur
e f

or 
the

 Ab
erd

ee
n t
o P

ete
rhe

ad
 st
rat

eg
ic 
gro

wt
h a

rea
. 

• Im
pro

vin
g t

he
 po

rt a
nd
 as

so
cia

ted
 fa

cili
tie
s a

t A
be
rde

en
 an

d P
ete

rhe
ad
 to

 m
ak
e t

he
 

mo
st 
of 

the
ir o

pp
ort

un
itie

s a
nd
 po

ten
tia
l, p

art
icu

lar
ly 
for

 th
e e

ne
rgy

 (in
clu

din
g o

ffs
ho
re 

win
d) 

an
d f

ish
ing

 se
cto

rs.
 

• P
rop

os
als

 to
 re

ge
ne
rat

e 
Ab

erd
ee
n 
cit
y c

en
tre

 a
nd
 so

me
 o
f t
he
 ci

ty 
reg

ion
’s 

mo
st 

dis
ad
va
nta

ge
d a

rea
s. 

• P
ut 

in 
pla

ce
 th

e C
ity
 C
en
tre

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t F

ram
ew

ork
, w

hic
h i

nc
lud

es
 pr

op
os
als

 to
 

ma
ke
 pa

rt o
f U

nio
n S

tre
et 
an
 ar

ea
 fo

r p
ed
es
tria

ns
 on

ly.
 

• A
 ne

w 
co
mm

un
ity
 st
ad
ium

 – 
a r

eg
ion

all
y i
mp

ort
an
t fa

cili
ty 
wh

ich
 w
ill b

rin
g e

co
no
mi
c, 

so
cia

l a
nd
 cu

ltu
ral
 be

ne
fits

 (tw
o p

os
sib

le 
loc

ati
on
s a

re 
sh
ow

n o
n m

ap
 x)
. 

• 
Up

gra
de
s 

to 
the

 o
ns
ho
re 

ele
ctr
icit

y 
gri
d 

an
d 

the
 d

ev
elo

pm
en
t 
of 

off
sh
ore

 
tra

ns
mi
ss
ion

 fro
m 
Pe

ter
he
ad

. 
• U

pg
rad

ing
 o
f P

ete
rhe

ad
 p
ow

er 
sta

tio
n 
an
d 
pu
ttin

g 
in 

pla
ce
 c
arb

on
 c
ap
tur

e 
an
d 

sto
rag

e t
ec
hn
olo

gy
 an

d i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re.

 
• A

 ra
ng
e o

f tr
an
sp
ort

 m
ea
su
res

 to
 de

al 
wit

h t
he
 co

mb
ine

d e
ffe

ct 
of 

ne
w 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

on
 th
e t
ran

sp
ort

 ne
tw
ork

 in
 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 

loc
ati
on
s i
nc
lud

ing
: 

� 
ne
w 
bu
s s

erv
ice

s a
nd
 ac

tio
n t
o g

ive
 th
em

 pr
ior
ity
 an

d i
nc
rea

se
 th

eir
 fre

qu
en
cy
; 

� 
 ju
nc
tio
n a

nd
 ca

pa
cit
y i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 
on
 th

e A
96
, A

94
4, 

A9
56
, A

90
, K

ing
sw

ell
s 

No
rth

 an
d P

ark
hil
l; 

� 
 sa

fet
y i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 
on
 th
e a

cc
es
s r
oa
d t
o t
he
 A9

3; 
 

� 
im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to
 th
e P

ark
wa

y a
nd
 Pe

rsl
ey
 Br

idg
e; 
an
d  

� 
a l
ink

 ov
er 

the
 R
ive

r D
ee
. 

Page 60



29
 

Gl
os
sa
ry 

 Ac
tio

n p
ro
gr
am

me
s 

 Do
cu
me

nts
 t
ha
t 
se
t 
ou
t 
wh

at 
ne
ed
s 

to 
be
 d

on
e 

to 
pu
t 
the

 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n 
int
o 
pra

cti
ce
. T

he
y 
sh
ow

 im
po
rta

nt 
da
tes

 a
nd
 

wh
o i
s r
es
po
ns
ibl
e f
or 

ea
ch
 ac

tio
n. 
 

 Ad
ap
tat
ion

 
 Ac

tio
n t

o l
im
it h

ow
 ex

po
se
d t

he
 en

vir
on
me

nt 
an
d p

eo
ple

 ar
e t

o t
he
 

eff
ec
ts 
of 

clim
ate

 ch
an
ge
. 

 Af
for

da
ble

 ho
us
ing

 
 Ho

us
ing

 w
hic

h i
s m

ad
e a

va
ila
ble

 at
 a 

co
st 

be
low

 fu
ll m

ark
et 

va
lue

 
to 

me
et 

an
 id

en
tifi
ed
 n

ee
d. 

It 
inc

lud
es
 h

om
es
 re

nte
d 

fro
m 

the
 

co
un
cil 

an
d h

ou
sin

g a
ss
oc
iat
ion

s a
nd
, in

 so
me

 ca
se
s, 

ho
me

s s
old

 
or 

ren
ted

 fro
m 

the
 pr

iva
te 

se
cto

r. 
 Al
loc

ati
on

s 
 Ar
ea
s 

of 
lan

d 
ide

nti
fie
d 

in 
a 

loc
al 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n 

for
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt.
 

 Bi
od

ive
rsi

ty 
 Th

e 
va
rie
ty 

of 
life

 a
nd
 ri
ch
ne
ss
 o
f a

ll l
ivin

g 
thi
ng
s 
in 

the
 n
atu

ral
 

wo
rld
. 

 Br
ow

nfi
eld

 si
tes

 
 La
nd
, n

orm
all
y i

n 
tow

ns
 a
nd
 vi

lla
ge
s, 

wh
ich

 h
as
 b
ee
n 
bu
ilt 

on
 o
r 

us
ed
 in

 th
e 

pa
st 

for
 s

om
e 

pu
rpo

se
. B

row
nfi
eld

 la
nd
 d

oe
s 
no
t 

inc
lud

e 
pri
va
te 

or 
pu
bli
c 
ga
rde

ns
, s

po
rts
 p

itc
he
s, 

wo
od
lan

ds
 o

r 
op
en
 sp

ac
es
 us

ed
 fo
r le

isu
re 

an
d r

ec
rea

tio
n p

urp
os
es
. T

he
 gr

ou
nd
s 

of 
ins

titu
tio
ns
 (s

uc
h a

s s
ch
oo
ls 
or 

ho
sp
ita
ls)
 th

at 
are

 no
 lo
ng
er 

us
ed
 

are
 no

t c
on
sid

ere
d a

s b
row

nfi
eld

 si
tes

. 

Ca
rb
on

 ne
utr

al 
 De

ve
lop

me
nt 

wh
ich

 lim
its
 th

e a
mo

un
t o

f e
ne
rgy

 us
ed
 an

d c
rea

tes
 

as
 m

uc
h 
ren

ew
ab
le 

en
erg

y a
s i

t u
se
s e

ac
h 
ye
ar 

for
 h
ea
tin
g 
an
d 

ele
ctr
ica

l a
pp
lia
nc
es
.  

 Co
mp

uls
or
y p

ur
ch
as
e 

 Th
is 

giv
es
 lo

ca
l a

uth
ori
tie
s 
the

 p
ow

er,
 b
y 
law

, t
o 
bu
y 
lan

d 
an
d 

bu
ild
ing

s w
hic

h a
re 

ne
ed
ed
 to
 de

live
r im

po
rta

nt 
pro

jec
ts.
 

 Di
ve
rsi

fy 
 Inc

rea
se
 th

e r
an
ge
 of

 se
cto

rs 
of 

the
 ec

on
om

y t
o r

ed
uc
e t

he
 ris

k o
f 

rel
yin

g t
oo
 m
uc
h o

n a
ny
 on

e s
ec
tor

.  
 Dw

ell
ing

s p
er 

he
cta

re 
 

 Th
e n

um
be
r o

f h
om

es
 th
at 
are

 bu
ilt 
on
 a 

sin
gle

 he
cta

re 
of 

lan
d. 

 Ef
fec

tiv
e h

ou
sin

g l
an
d s

up
ply

 
 Th

e h
ou
sin

g l
an
d a

va
ila
ble

 on
 w
hic

h t
o b

uil
d n

ew
 ho

me
s. 

 En
erg

eti
ca
 

 A 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

ini
tia
tiv
e 

be
tw
ee
n 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

an
d 

Pe
ter

he
ad
 to

 
cre

ate
 a 

wo
rld
-cl
as
s b

us
ine

ss
 an

d r
es
ide

nti
al 
loc

ati
on
 w
ith
in 
a h

igh
-

qu
ali
ty 
en
vir
on
me

nta
l s
ett

ing
.  

  En
erg

y f
ro
m 
wa

ste
 

 Th
e p

roc
es
s o

f c
rea

tin
g e

ne
rgy

, in
 th

e f
orm

 of
 el
ec
tric

ity
 or

 he
at 

(or
 

bo
th)

, fr
om

 w
as
te.
 

 

Page 61



30
 

Flo
od

 pr
ev
en
tio

n m
ea
su
res

 
 Ex

am
ple

s 
inc

lud
e 
wa

lls,
 e
mb

an
km

en
ts,
 n
ew

 c
ha
nn
els

 a
nd
 fl
oo
d 

sto
rag

e a
rea

s t
o t
ry 
an
d p

rev
en
t a
 si
te 
fro

m 
flo
od
ing

. 
 Gr
ee
n b

elt
 

 An
 ar

ea
 of

 co
un
try
sid

e w
he
re 

str
ict
 pl
an
nin

g c
on
tro

ls 
are

 in
 pl
ac
e t

o 
pro

tec
t t
he
 la

nd
sc
ap
e 
se
ttin

g 
of 

the
 c
ity
, m

ain
tai
n 
the

 id
en
tity

 o
f 

pla
ce
s a

nd
 pr

ov
ide

 la
nd
 fo

r re
cre

ati
on
.  

 Gr
ee
nfi

eld
 si
tes

 
 La
nd
 on

 w
hic

h n
o b

uil
din

g h
as
 ta

ke
n p

lac
e. 

 Gr
id 
rei

nfo
rce

me
nt 

Up
gra

din
g t

he
 el

ec
tric

ity
 su

pp
ly 
ne
tw
ork

, w
hic

h i
nc
lud

es
 ov

erh
ea
d 

po
we

r li
ne
s a

nd
 su

bs
tat
ion

s. 
 Ha

bit
ats

 R
eg
ula

tio
ns
 A
pp

rai
sa
l 

 An
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t w

e 
mu

st 
ca
rry

 o
ut 

un
de
r t
he
 E

uro
pe
an
 H

ab
ita
ts 

Dir
ec
tiv
e 
to 

ma
ke
 su

re 
the

 p
lan

 w
ill 

ha
ve
 n
o 
ne
ga
tiv
e 
eff
ec
ts 

on
 

int
ern

ati
on
all
y d

es
ign

ate
d e

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 si
tes

. 
 He

cta
re 

 An
 ar

ea
 of

 la
nd
 eq

ua
l to

 10
,00

0 s
qu
are

 m
etr

es
 (1

00
 x 

10
0 m

etr
es
) 

or 
2.4

71
 ac

res
. 

 Hi
gh

-va
lue

 m
ark

ets
 

 Th
e g

oo
ds
 an

d s
erv

ice
s a

cro
ss
 m

an
y d

iffe
ren

t m
ark

et 
se
cto

rs 
tha

t 
are

 co
ns
ide

red
 to

 be
 of

 hi
gh
er 

va
lue

, fo
r e

xa
mp

le,
 lu
xu
ry 
ice

 cr
ea
m,
 

hig
h-q

ua
lity

 cl
oth

ing
, o

il s
up
po
rt o

r c
om

pu
tin
g t
ec
hn
olo

gy
 se

rvi
ce
s. 

 

Ho
us
ing

 re
qu

ire
me

nt 
 Th

e t
ota

l a
mo

un
t o
f n

ew
 ho

us
ing

 ne
ed
ed
 ov

er 
the

 pl
an
 pe

rio
d. 

 Hu
b 

 An
 im

po
rta

nt 
po
int
 o
n 
a 
tra

ns
po
rt 
(or

 o
the

r) 
ne
tw
ork

 w
hic

h 
ha
s a

 
nu
mb

er 
of 

co
nn
ec
tio
ns
. 

 Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
 Th

e 
pa
rts
 o
f c

itie
s, 

tow
ns
 o
r v

illa
ge
s 
tha

t m
ak
e 
the

m 
wo

rk.
 T
his

 
inc

lud
es
 w
ate

r, 
dra

ina
ge
, e

lec
tric

ity
 an

d p
ho
ne
s, 

as
 w
ell
 as

 ro
ad
s, 

sc
ho
ols

, c
om

mu
nit
y h

all
s, 
he
alt
hc
are

 fa
cili

tie
s, 
lib
rar

ies
, o

pe
n s

pa
ce
 

an
d b

us
 st
op
s. 

 Kn
ow

led
ge
 ec

on
om

y 
 Se

cti
on
s o

f t
he
 ec

on
om

y t
ha
t u

se
 kn

ow
led

ge
 ra

the
r t
ha
n 
ph
ys
ica

l 
res

ou
rce

s t
o c

rea
te 

we
alt
h. 

Ex
am

ple
s i
nc
lud

e e
du
ca
tio
n, 

res
ea
rch

, 
an
d p

rod
uc
t d
ev
elo

pm
en
t. 

 Lo
ca
l d
ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
 

 Th
es
e a

re 
pre

pa
red

 by
 ev

ery
 lo

ca
l a

uth
ori
ty.
 T
he
y c

on
tai
n d

eta
ile
d 

po
lici

es
 a
nd
 si

tes
 th

at 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
ch
os
en
 fo

r d
ev
elo

pm
en
t in

 lin
e 

wit
h 
the

 a
pp
rov

ed
 s
tra

teg
ic 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n 
an
d 
aft
er 

a 
lot
 o
f 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l c

om
mu

nit
ies

. T
he
 lo

ca
l d

ev
elo

pm
en
t p

lan
 

wil
l b
e t

he
 m
ain

 w
ay
 fo

r p
lan

nin
g a

pp
lica

tio
ns
 to
 be

 as
se
ss
ed
. 

 Mi
tig

ati
on

 
 Ac

tio
n 

to 
red

uc
e 

ca
rbo

n 
dio

xid
e 

an
d 

oth
er 

ha
rm

ful
 s
ub
sta

nc
es
 

rel
ea
se
d 
int
o 
the

 a
ir 
as
 a
 w

ay
 o
f r

ed
uc
ing

 th
e 
lev

el 
of 

clim
ate

 
ch
an
ge
. 

 

Page 62



31
 

Na
tio

na
l d
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

 A 
pro

jec
t in

 th
e 
Na

tio
na
l P

lan
nin

g 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
wh

ich
 th

e 
Sc

ott
ish

 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t a

gre
es
 is
 ne

ed
ed
 an

d w
an
ts 
to 
se
e b

uil
t. 

 Na
tio

na
l P

lan
nin

g F
ram

ew
or
k 

 A 
do
cu
me

nt 
tha

t s
ets

 ou
t th

e S
co
ttis

h G
ov
ern

me
nt’
s d

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

pri
ori
tie
s a

nd
 id
en
tifi
es
 na

tio
na
l d
ev
elo

pm
en
ts.
 

 Na
tur

a 2
00
0 

 A 
Eu

rop
ea
n n

etw
ork

 of
 pr

ote
cte

d s
ite
s w

hic
h r

ep
res

en
t a

rea
s o

f th
e 

hig
he
st 
va
lue

 fo
r n

atu
ral
 ha

bit
ats

 an
d s

pe
cie

s o
f p

lan
ts 
an
d a

nim
als

 
wh

ich
 a

re 
rar

e, 
en
da
ng
ere

d 
or 

vu
lne

rab
le 

in 
the

 E
uro

pe
an
 

Co
mm

un
ity
. T

he
 a

rea
s 

are
 k

no
wn

 a
s 

eit
he
r ‘

Sp
ec
ial
 A

rea
s 

of 
Co

ns
erv

ati
on
 (S

AC
)’ o

r ‘S
pe
cia

l P
rot

ec
tio
ns
 Ar

ea
s (
SP

A)
’. 

 No
n-r

en
ew

ab
le 
res

ou
rce

s 
 Re

so
urc

es
 th

at 
wil

l ru
n o

ut 
an
d c

an
no
t b

e r
ep
lac

ed
. N

on
-re

ne
wa

ble
 

en
erg

y s
ou
rce

s i
nc
lud

e c
oa
l, g

as
 an

d o
il. 

 Pla
nn

ing
 ga

in 
 Mo

ne
y 
or 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
(se

e 
ab
ov
e) 

pro
vid

ed
 b
y 
de
ve
lop

ers
 a
nd
 

lan
do
wn

ers
 to

 a
llo
w 

es
se
nti
al 

pro
jec

ts 
to 

be
 b
uil
t t
ha
t a

re 
dir
ec
tly
 

lin
ke
d 
to 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pro
po
sa
ls.
 P

lan
nin

g 
ga
in 

wil
l n

orm
all
y 
be
 

pa
rt o

f a
 le
ga
l a
gre

em
en
t. 

 Re
ne
wa

ble
 re

so
ur
ce
s 

 Re
so
urc

es
 th

at 
do
 no

t ru
n o

ut.
 R
en
ew

ab
le 

en
erg

y s
ou
rce

s i
nc
lud

e 
en
erg

y f
rom

 th
e s

un
, th

e g
rou

nd
, w

ind
, w

av
es
, ti
de
s a

nd
 w
oo
d. 

 

Re
sid

ua
l w

as
te 

 Th
e w

as
te 

lef
t o

ve
r a

fte
r it

em
s h

av
e b

ee
n r

em
ov
ed
 to

 be
 re

-us
ed
 or

 
rec

yc
led

. 
 Sc

ott
ish

 Pl
an
nin

g P
oli
cy
 

 Sta
tem

en
ts 

of 
the

 S
co
ttis

h G
ov
ern

me
nt’
s p

oli
cie

s o
n n

ati
on
al 

lan
d 

us
e 
an
d 
oth

er 
pla

nn
ing

 m
att
ers

, s
uc
h 
as
 h
ou
sin

g, 
tra

ns
po
rt 
an
d 

gre
en
 be

lts
. 

 Se
qu

en
tia
l a
pp

ro
ac
h 

 A 
pro

ce
ss
 fo

r c
ho
os
ing

 si
tes

 fo
r r
eta

il d
ev
elo

pm
en
t. T

he
 ap

pro
ac
h 

firs
t lo

ok
s f

or 
sit
es
 in

 ci
ty 

an
d t

ow
n c

en
tre

s, 
the

n s
ite
s o

n t
he
 ed

ge
 

of 
the

se
 c
en
tre

s, 
the

n 
oth

er 
co
mm

erc
ial
 c
en
tre

s 
ide

nti
fie
d 
in 

the
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n, 

an
d 
fin
all
y 
ou
t-o

f-to
wn

 s
ite
s 
wh

ich
 c
an
 b
e, 

or 
are

, a
cc
es
se
d b

y d
iffe

ren
t fo

rm
s o

f tr
an
sp
ort

. 
 St
rat

eg
ic 

 Im
po
rta

nt 
iss

ue
s w

hic
h n

ee
d b

oth
 co

un
cils

 to
 w
ork

 to
ge
the

r. 
 St
rat

eg
ic 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n 

 Th
es
e h

av
e r

ep
lac

ed
 st
ruc

tur
e p

lan
s a

nd
 ar

e p
rep

are
d b

y s
tra

teg
ic 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
nn
ing

 au
tho

riti
es
. T

he
y s

et 
ou
t a

 pl
an
 fo

r th
eir
 ar

ea
 

an
d 

mu
st 

co
nc
en
tra

te 
on
 th

e 
ma

in 
lan

d 
us
e 

an
d 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

ma
tte
rs 

in 
tha

t a
rea

. T
he
se
, a

lon
g w

ith
 th

e l
oc
al 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n 

(se
e 
ab
ov
e),

 w
ill 
be
 th

e 
ma

in 
wa

y f
or 

pla
nn
ing

 a
pp
lica

tio
ns
 to

 b
e 

as
se
ss
ed
. 

 St
rat

eg
ic 
inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

 
 Th

is 
is 

ma
jor
 in

ve
stm

en
t in

 la
rge

-sc
ale

 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e 
(se

e 
ab
ov
e).

 
Th

is 
ca
n 

inc
lud

e 
ma

in 
roa

ds
, m

ajo
r j
un
cti
on
s, 

wa
ter

 re
se
rvo

irs
, 

wa
ste

-w
ate

r tr
ea
tm
en
t w

ork
s, 
pu
mp

ing
 st
ati
on
s, 
se
co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ols

 
an
d h

os
pit
als

. 

Page 63



32
 

St
rat

eg
ic 
res

erv
e 

 Ar
ea
s 
of 

lan
d 
ide

nti
fie
d 
in 

a 
loc

al 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

pla
n 
for

 p
os
sib

le 
fut

ure
 de

ve
lop

me
nt.
 

 Su
pp

lem
en
tar

y g
uid

an
ce
 or

 su
pp

lem
en
tar

y p
lan

nin
g g

uid
an
ce
 

 Th
es
e d

oc
um

en
ts 

su
pp
ort

 a 
pla

n b
y s

ett
ing

 ou
t d

eta
ils 

of 
ho
w 
the

 
po
lici

es
 or

 pr
op
os
als

 sh
ou
ld 
be
 pu

t in
to 

pra
cti
ce
. T

he
se
 ca

n i
nc
lud

e 
ma

ste
rpl
an
s, 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

bri
efs

 an
d d

es
ign

 br
ief
s. 

Th
ey
 m

ay
 al

so
 

inc
lud

e o
the

r p
oli
cy
 st
ate

me
nts

 on
 a 
wid

e r
an
ge
 of

 is
su
es
. 

 Su
sta

ina
bil
ity
 la
be
llin

g 
 A 
sy
ste

m 
wh

ich
 re

co
gn

ise
s t
he
 m

os
t s
us
tai
na
ble

 ne
w 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

thr
ou
gh
 th
e b

uil
din

g s
tan

da
rds

 sy
ste

m.
 

 Su
sta

ina
ble

 
 So

me
thi
ng
 th

at 
wil

l l
as
t b

ec
au
se
 it
 h

as
 ta

ck
led

 it
s 
cu
rre

nt 
an
d 

lon
ge
r-te

rm
 e
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
, s

oc
ial
 a
nd
 e
co
no
mi
c e

ffe
cts

 a
nd

 d
oe
s 

no
t re

ly 
on
 no

n-r
en
ew

ab
le 
res

ou
rce

s. 
 Su

sta
ina

ble
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

 
 A 

wid
ely

 u
se
d 

de
fin
itio

n 
of 

thi
s 
is 

‘de
ve
lop

me
nt 

tha
t m

ee
ts 

the
 

ne
ed
s 
of 

the
 p

res
en
t w

ith
ou
t c

om
pro

mi
sin

g 
the

 a
bil
ity
 o
f f

utu
re 

ge
ne
rat

ion
s t

o 
me

et 
the

ir 
ow

n 
ne
ed
s’.
 It
 m

ea
ns
 th

at 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 

sh
ou
ld 

tak
e f

ull
 ac

co
un
t o

f it
s i
mp

lica
tio
ns
 on

 th
e l

oc
al 

co
mm

un
ity
 

an
d e

co
no
my

 an
d o

n t
he
 en

vir
on
me

nt 
bo
th 

loc
all
y a

nd
 w
orl
dw

ide
. 

 Te
nu

re 
 Th

e 
leg

al 
rig
ht 

un
de
r w

hic
h 

pro
pe
rly
 is

 h
eld

. H
ou
sin

g 
ten

ure
s 

inc
lud

e 
ow

ne
r-o

cc
up
ied

 h
om

es
, 

ho
me

s 
ren

ted
 f

rom
 p

riv
ate

 
lan

dlo
rds

, a
nd
 ho

me
s r

en
ted

 fro
m 

a c
ou
nc
il o

r h
ou
sin

g a
ss
oc
iat
ion

. 
Sh

are
d o

wn
ers

hip
 is
 a 

ten
ure

 w
he
re 

a p
erc

en
tag

e o
f a

 pr
op
ert

y i
s 

ow
ne
d a

nd
 th
e r

es
t is

 re
nte

d. 

Vit
ali
ty 
an
d v

iab
ilit
y 

 A 
me

as
ure

 o
f h

ow
 liv

ely
 a
nd
 b
us
y c

ity
 a
nd
 to

wn
 ce

ntr
es
 a
re 

an
d 

the
ir 

ab
ility

 t
o 

att
rac

t 
on
go
ing

 i
nv
es
tm

en
t 

for
 m

ain
ten

an
ce
, 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
an
d t
o m

ee
t c
ha
ng
ing

 ne
ed
s. 

 Wa
ste

 hi
era

rch
y 

 A 
wa

y o
f th

ink
ing

 ab
ou
t w

as
te 

wh
ich

 fo
cu
se
s o

n r
ed
uc
ing

 w
as
te 

in 
the

 fir
st 

pla
ce
 th

rou
gh
 re

-us
ing

, r
ec
yc
lin
g, 

an
d 
rec

ov
eri
ng
 e
ne
rgy

. 
W
as
te 
dis

po
sa
l in

 la
nd
fill 

sit
es
 is
 at
 th
e b

ott
om

 of
 th
e h

ier
arc

hy
. 

 Wa
ter

 bo
die

s 
 Pla

ce
s w

he
re 

wa
ter

 is
 fo

un
d 
su
ch
 a
s r

ive
rs,

 b
urn

s, 
loc

hs
, p

on
ds
, 

bo
gg
y w

et 
lan

d, 
wa

ter
 he

ld 
un
de
r th

e g
rou

nd
 an

d c
oa
sta

l w
ate

rs.
 

Page 64



H
un

tl
y

El
lo

n

B
an

ff

In
ve

rb
er

vi
e

St
on

eh
av

en

B
an

ch
or

y

K
in

to
re

In
ve

ru
ri

e

A
lf

or
d La

ur
en

ce
ki

rk

A
bo

yn
eP

or
ts

oy

A
be

rc
hi

rd
er

Tu
rr

iff
M

in
tl

aw

D
yc

e

O
ld

m
el

dr
um

W
es

th
ill

A
be
rd
ee
n

P
et
er
he
ad

Fr
as

er
bu

rg
h

A
be
rd
ee
n

P
et
er
he
ad

Fr
as

er
bu

rg
h

A
be
rd
ee
n

D
un
de
e

St
ir
lin
g

G
la
sg
ow
E
di
nb
ur
gh

K
ey

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l t
ra

de
A

fr
ic

a

A
si

a 
P

ac
ifi

c

A
us

tr
al

as
ia

Eu
ro

pe
an

 U
ni

on

Fo
rm

er
 S

ov
ie

t U
ni

on
 a

nd
 

E
as

te
rn

 E
ur

op
e

La
tin

 A
m

er
ic

a

M
id

dl
e 

E
as

t

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ic
a

W
es

te
rn

 E
ur

op
e 

(e
xc

lu
di

ng
 E

U
)

St
ra

te
gi

c 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

A
re

as

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

it
y 

an
d 

Sh
ir

e

D
un

de
e,

 P
er

th
, A

ng
us

 a
nd

 N
or

th
 F

ife

Ed
in

bu
rg

h 
an

d 
So

ut
h 

E
as

t S
co

tl
an

d

G
la

sg
ow

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ly

de
 V

al
le

y

Sa
te

lli
te

 la
nd

 u
se

 im
ag

e
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 B

 P
la

n 

M
ov

em
en

t

G
re

en
/G

re
en

be
lt

P
la

ce

W
at

er

01
  C

on
te

xt
 m

ap
 (l

oc
at

io
n)

  |
   

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
na

tio
na

l, 
lo

ca
l a

nd
 B

 P
la

n 
lo

ca
l 

Page 65



K
ey

St
ra

te
gi

c 
co

nc
ep

t

Sp
at

ia
l g

ro
w

th

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n

Lo
ca

l g
ro

w
th

H
ou

si
ng

 a
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

02
  S

tr
at

eg
ic

 (b
ig

 p
ic

tu
re

)  
|  

X-
ra

y 
an

d 
A

bs
tr

ac
t m

ap

Page 66



K
ey

G
ro

w
th

: S
pa

tia
l

 
Lo

ca
l

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n

03
  S

pa
tia

l m
ap

 (a
re

as
 o

f c
ha

ng
e)

  |
  G

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n

Page 67



2

3

1

4

5
6

7
8

16

19

13

14

15

2
0

10
11

12

18

9

17

K
ey

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

P
ro

po
se

d

Sp
at

ia
l g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

U
rb

an
 a

re
as

M
ov

em
en

t

G
re

en

P
la

ce

IN
FO

 T
O

 C
H

A
N

G
E

05
 B

 P
la

n 
de

ta
il 

m
ap

 (A
re

a 
1)

  |
  A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

Page 68



1

3

2

4

5

6

7

8
9

11

12

13

10

K
ey

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

P
ro

po
se

d

Sp
at

ia
l g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

U
rb

an
 a

re
as

H
ou

si
ng

 a
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

M
ov

em
en

t

G
re

en

P
la

ce

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re

05
 B

 P
la

n 
de

ta
il 

m
ap

 (A
re

a 
4)

  |
  H

un
tly

IN
FO

 T
O

 C
H

A
N

G
E

Page 69



1

3
2

4 5

6

7

8

9

10
11

K
ey

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

P
ro

po
se

d

Sp
at

ia
l g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

U
rb

an
 a

re
as

H
ou

si
ng

 a
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

M
ov

em
en

t

G
re

en

P
la

ce

05
 B

 P
la

n 
de

ta
il 

m
ap

 (A
re

a 
3)

  |
  L

au
re

nc
ek

ir
k

Page 70



5

6 7

8
9

10

11

13

12

14
15

16

17

19 2
1

18

2
0

1

2

3
4

K
ey

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

P
ro

po
se

d

Sp
at

ia
l g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

U
rb

an
 a

re
as

H
ou

si
ng

 a
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

M
ov

em
en

t

G
re

en

P
la

ce

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re

05
 B

 P
la

n 
de

ta
il 

m
ap

 (A
re

a 
2)

  |
  P

et
er

he
ad

Page 71



K
ey

St
ra

te
gi

c 
co

nc
ep

t

Sp
at

ia
l g

ro
w

th

Lo
ca

l g
ro

w
th

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n

P
ro

je
ct

s

M
ov

em
en

t

G
re

en

P
la

ce

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 H

ou
si

ng
 a

re
a 

bo
un

da
ry

07
 F

ut
ur

e 
Fo

ot
pr

in
t (

br
in

gi
ng

 it
 a

ll 
to

ge
th

er
) |

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
 C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

Page 72



K
ey

Sp
at

ia
l g

ro
w

th

H
ou

si
ng

 a
re

a 
bo

un
da

ry

M
ov

em
en

t

G
re

en

P
la

ce

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re

04
  B

 P
la

n 
m

ap
 (P

ro
je

ct
s)

  |
  P

ro
po

se
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

gr
ou

nd

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Main Issues Report: Responses to Comments Received 
The Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority (SDPA) 
published a ‘Main Issues Report’ (MIR) in October 2011. The consultation period 
lasted for 13 weeks and closed on 6 January 2012. 
A summary of responses to the consultation was presented to the SDPA at its 
meeting in March 2012 which was subsequently published on the SDPA website 
(http://www.aberdeencityandshire-sdpa.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=958&sID=38).  
The responses received were used to inform the content of the proposed strategic 
development plan (SDP). This document provides a response to the issues raised in 
that consultation and is presented using the same structure as the MIR itself. 
One of the challenges encountered by a number of those responding to the 
consultation was that they were unfamiliar with the content of the current structure 
plan and a lot of suggestions were made which related to matters already addressed 
in the plan (and hence not emphasised in the MIR). This is one of the challenges of 
reviewing an existing plan under the new development plan process. 
Responses which welcomed the content of the MIR have generally not been 
highlighted below but were welcome and were captured in the earlier consultation 
report. 
1 – Introduction and general comments 
Comments welcoming the quality, format and clarity of the MIR are welcome, along 
with appreciation for the consultation events. The consultation was 13 weeks long so 
there was adequate opportunity for community groups to respond, even with an early 
January closing date. 
It is recognised that the online form was not very user-friendly. A better form will be 
used for the consultation on the Proposed Plan. 
The MIR was prepared with the input of a range of individuals, businesses and 
organisations. ACSEF was just one of these. Local views are important and these 
need to be captured in development plans so that they inform decision-making on 
individual applications. Local development plans are the best way of capturing issues 
specific to particular communities. 
The SDP starts the next cycle of plan-making in Aberdeen City and Shire. Recently 
adopted local development plans were prepared to be consistent with the structure 
plan. 
Economic growth is a focus of the plan because that growth can move the area in a 
more sustainable direction. Renewable energy, electricity transmission and carbon 
capture and storage all create investment and employment as well as reducing 
emissions of gases responsible for climate change. ‘Steady-state’ economics is not 
incompatible with growth at a local level. 

Page 75



 

 

Forward planning is challenging in the current economic climate but that is not a 
reason not to do it. The current climate makes it even more important that plans are 
robust enough to cope with a variety of scenarios. This area has been one of the 
most economically resilient in the whole of the UK since 2007, which suggests that 
less has changed here than in the rest of the country. 
2 – Major influences on the strategic development plan 
Widespread support for the identification of ‘supporting development in challenging 
economic times’ and ‘responding to the challenges and opportunities of climate 
change’ as the main issues was welcome. A number of other issues were mentioned 
which are already highlighted in the current structure plan such as sustainable 
development, the conservation of finite resources, the importance of Energetica and 
the need to conserve our high quality environment. 
The suggestion that in harsh economic times less ambitious plans may be more 
realistic fails to recognise the different economic context in Aberdeen City and Shire 
(not immune but considerably more robust) and the fact that less ambitious plans 
would have serious social, economic and environmental consequences for the area. 
The SDP is a long-term strategic plan which looks forward to 2035. Short-term 
economic challenges may influence implementation in the short-term but will not last 
and should be seen in the context of longer-term objectives. 
Sites to meet the plan’s allowances are identified in the local development plans 
rather than the SDP itself. 
It is the SDP itself rather than the MIR which is required to contribute to sustainable 
development and Climate Change Act emissions reductions. The MIR focuses on 
those things where changes are proposed rather than presenting a draft plan. Issues 
of energy security are addressed in the MIR but more fully in the SDP itself. This is 
one of the challenges of preparing a MIR rather than a draft plan and thought will be 
given as to how this could be better communicated next time. 
There isn’t a disconnect between the two issues and the rest of the MIR as they 
largely drove its content and the way individual topics were addressed. 
Climate change is a significant driver of policy at UN, EU, UK and Scottish 
Government levels. It is not possible for the SDP to reject this, not least because of 
its legal requirements under the Climate Change (Scotland) Act and the Planning etc 
(Scotland) Act. It cannot be seen as a secondary consideration. 
It is agreed that high quality sustainable design and places are critical to the 
implementation of the plan. The structure plan already attaches a high level of 
importance to these issues. 
The vision of the plan will not be achieved without development and it would not be 
appropriate to fail to take reasonable steps to facilitate the delivery of the plan. 

Page 76



‘Giving with one hand and taking with the other’ is not a contradiction but a direct 
consequence of the need to prioritise in the current economic climate. Support is 
provided, for example, by proposing to delay the requirement for carbon neutrality, 
not increasing the requirement for affordable housing and the approach to the 
provision of new infrastructure through the strategic transport fund. 
It is agreed that the Westminster and Scottish Governments must support 
development in the area. 
Suggested documents will be taken into account in the Proposed SDP. 
The delay to the AWPR has been regrettable but it is critical to the future to the 
development of the area. 
Efficient use of land is vital to the delivery of the strategy of the plan. Scottish 
Planning Policy requires that prime quality agricultural land should be avoided where 
possible but it is very unlikely that all ‘productive’ land can be avoided. 
It is agreed that the plan should continue to prioritise city and town centres for retail 
development. 
The current structure plan was able to take into account the implications of the 
Planning etc (Scotland) Act, SPP and NPF2 (in draft) so the changes required are 
more modest than would otherwise been the case. 
Aberdeen City and Shire doesn’t have the capacity within existing infrastructure to 
support the level of growth envisaged within the plan so the challenges for the 
development industry in financing projects need to be recognised and addressed. 
The strategy of concentrating growth in the strategic growth areas is designed to 
facilitate the delivery of the required infrastructure. 
Quality development and high quality infrastructure is essential if the area is to be 
able to attract the talent to address existing and future skills shortages and allow the 
economy to grow. This requires a long-term view to be taken. 
A range of costs can be passed onto future generations as a result of decisions 
made today (economic, financial, social and environmental) and it is important that all 
of these costs are taken into account, as well as the lost opportunities that can result 
from particular decisions. 
3 – Format 
Widespread support for the format of the existing structure plan and proposed 
amendments is welcome. Graphic design suggestions will be taken into account for 
the Proposed SDP. 
The Key Diagram is a reflection of the need to be explicit about how the plan should 
be implemented in the two council areas. The Proposed SDP has a new map / 
diagram but the importance of clarity for the two council areas remains. More detailed 
maps are provided to focus on particular areas of change. 

Page 77



 

 

Implementation of the SDP will be through local development plans as well as 
actions by a range of public sector bodies and private sector businesses. The Action 
Programme published alongside the Proposed Plan will clarify what needs to be 
done to put the plan into practice. 
The approach of the current structure plan was to provide appropriate choices at the 
local development plan level in terms of their implementation of the plan. It is not 
appropriate for the SDP to take this discretion away unless there is a clear case for it. 
The structure plan contained significant elements of policy material as well as its 
spatial strategy and clarity around targets. The level of policy prescription is 
considered appropriate and no examples have been provided where greater clarity is 
required. 
4 – Vision and spatial strategy 
Widespread agreement that the current vision and spatial strategy are appropriate for 
the SDP is welcome, particularly when the current focus should be on delivery. 
The maintenance and enhancement of ecosystem services is important and 
amendments have been made which seek to reflect the important roles played by 
different land uses. 
Development proposals are not considered in a vacuum but by law must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 
Support for Energetica, science parks, development around the airport and improved 
road and rail links are noted. The need for a sea link along the coast is more of an 
issue for the Regional Transport Strategy than the SDP. 
It is agreed that quality of life and the environment are critical to the future success of 
the area. Being a desirable place to live is very important but growth has to be 
accommodated in the most sustainable way possible. The plan does not promote 
‘urban sprawl’ but the development of high quality sustainable mixed communities. 
Vision 
Rather than move the date in the vision back every five years when a new plan is 
produced, it is now proposed to remove the date. The inclusion of a date indicates a 
target (which would be continually pushed back at each review) which was not 
intended. 
Suggestions were made as to how the vision should change but these tended to add 
to its length without significant benefit. Support for particular types of development 
(such as renewable energy) and sustainable location / design are contained 
elsewhere in the plan and it would not be appropriate to repeat these in the vision. 

Page 78



This applies to proposed references to the city centre as well, where stronger 
language will be included in the text of the plan. 
Support for a more sustainable and inclusive society is welcome. These were 
covered in the MIR, in terms of spatial strategy, policy and individual proposals but 
are more fully expressed in the Proposed SDP itself. 
The plan needs to be read as a whole and individual proposals need to be seen in 
that context as well. Road improvements are part of the solution, not the solution in 
and of themselves. 
Spatial strategy 
Support for the current spatial strategy is welcome.  
Levels of brownfield development are informed by an ‘Urban Capacity Study’. There 
is already a generous supply of greenfield land for development and there is no 
justification for a mechanism to increase this further. The plan is reviewed every five 
years and such issues can be addressed through the review process. 
It is recognised that renewable energy projects can support diversification and 
regeneration in rural areas. This is supported by the plan but was not a focus of the 
MIR. 
The delivery of the AWPR is vital to the future development of Aberdeen and 
Aberdeenshire. It is not appropriate to develop a strategy which assumes it will not 
be delivered just because it has been subject to legal challenge. It is supported by 
both councils, the Scottish Government and a significant majority of the population of 
the area. 
The level of growth appropriate in individual settlements in the local growth and 
diversification area (such as Newmachar) is a matter for the Aberdeenshire Local 
Development Plan, taking into account the strategy and objectives of the SDP. 
The plan recognises the importance of Fraserburgh and the need to revive its 
economy. The plan does not limit the growth potential of the town but reflects the 
challenges and opportunities it faces, focusing on the need for regeneration. 
Regeneration funding is available to Fraserburgh through Aberdeenshire’s 
‘Framework for Regeneration’ and associated action plans. It is not proposed to 
change the strategy as it applies to Fraserburgh. 
A number of responses suggested extending the coverage of strategic growth areas 
to include particular settlements or sites not currently covered. The current structure 
plan identifies the extent of the strategic growth areas in general terms but provides 
some discretion to the Aberdeenshire LDP to define which settlements fall within the 
area. It is not proposed to remove this discretion in the SDP. However, a number of 
areas are clearly currently outwith the scope of being included within one of the 
SGAs - these include Edzell Air Base, Westhill, Kemnay and Park Quarry (Drumoak). 
The SDP does not prevent development happening in such locations but does impact 

Page 79



 

 

on the scale of growth which might be appropriate. The strategy is only a few years 
old and implementation is only just commencing in full now that the two local 
development plans have been approved. It is too early to start changing the strategy 
without sound justification. The strategy focuses strategic growth in a limited number 
of places so that public and private sector investment in schools, community facilities 
and transport infrastructure can be coordinated and concentrated. Spreading growth 
too thinly would have a significant impact of the deliverability of the infrastructure 
required to service it. The strategy also directs strategic growth to locations which 
provide clear opportunities to encourage people to use public transport which can be 
provided in an efficient way. Diluting that strategy at this time would be detrimental to 
the delivery of the plan. The SDP is reviewed every five years so there will be 
opportunities to consider the strategy again in future years. 
Edzell Air Base – previously in use as an air base the site received a large allocation 
in the Aberdeenshire LDP as part of the local growth and diversification area. 
However, the site is remote from the A90 (even if the strategic growth area did 
extend to the border with Angus) and the provision of public transport services to the 
site which would be both attractive and efficient is unrealistic. Considerable 
development would be required to deliver the necessary infrastructure but it would be 
remote from services and facilities. The strategy of the plan is to concentrate 
strategic levels of growth in the most sustainable locations and extending the 
strategic growth area to include Edzell Air Base would not meet this objective. The 
Reporters to the LDP examination strongly supported the concentration of 
development in Laurencekirk in order to benefit from its services and facilities and 
help to overcome existing constraints. 
Park Quarry – a new settlement proposal in a quarry which is coming to the end of its 
extraction phase located on the south side of the River Dee on the South Deeside 
Road opposite Drumoak (11 miles from the city centre). The site will be restored to 
agricultural use after quarrying ceases.   While the proposal is commendable in many 
respects (many of which were highlighted in the consultation response), there is no 
clear justification for extending the strategic growth area when housing allowances 
up to 2027 have already been identified in both LDPs (with this site rejected on a 
number of grounds) and no additional allowances are being proposed in the SDP. 
The site would be subject to significant infrastructure challenges, not least around 
transport given its location on the South Deeside Road. Scottish Planning Policy sets 
out the circumstances when a new settlement may be appropriate if it is justified by 
the scale and nature of the housing land requirement – the housing land requirement 
does not indicate a new settlement in this location is required as alternative sites 
have already been identified. 
Kemnay – is some distance from the A96 corridor upon which the strategic growth 
area is based and the opportunities for encouraging public transport are considerably 
lower than within the corridor itself which was key to its identification. The secondary 
school roll currently exceeds the school’s capacity. Diverting infrastructure 

Page 80



investment away from the Blackburn – Inverurie corridor would not be consistent with 
the plan’s vision, spatial strategy and objectives. Inverurie already has a station and 
one of the plan’s proposals is for an additional station at Kintore, the opportunities to 
maximise use of the railway were important factors in generation of the spatial 
strategy for the plan.  
Westhill – has grown significantly over the last 20 years, both in terms of households 
and employment, but such growth does not, in itself, justify further expansion. The 
town is subject to a range of constraints including transport and education capacity 
as well as being physically constrained to the east and west by pipelines. In addition, 
opportunities have been identified in close proximity to Westhill to the west of 
Aberdeen so there are already significant opportunities for residential and 
commercial development within a distance of only a few miles.  
Aberdeen City Centre was identified on the structure plan Key Diagram and will be in 
the strategic development plan as well.  
Potterton – Aberdeenshire Council decided during the preparation of their LDP to 
exclude the settlement from the strategic growth area and this was supported by the 
Reporters at the recent LDP examination. Nothing has changed which would indicate 
that the SDP should take a contrary position. 
Stonehaven is already part of the strategic growth area and the scale of growth in 
that town is a matter for the Aberdeenshire local development plan, taking into 
account the strategy and objectives of the SDP. 
5 - Sustainable economic growth 
Housing requirement and allowances 
Acceptance of the proposed update to the housing requirement and that the current 
allowances are adequate to 2035 is welcome. 
It is the role of local development plans to allocate site for housing at an appropriate 
density, with proximity to railway stations one of the important considerations. 
The requirement no longer accounts for almost 5,000 demolitions in regeneration 
areas in Aberdeen City and this has had a significant impact on the housing 
requirement proposed for the SDP. Allowances for the period 2017-2027 are on top 
of the existing supply in 2011 and the allowances for the period to 2016 – providing a 
generous supply on top of the housing requirement in this period.  
Some have questioned the need for such significant rates of new housing over the 
plan period. Although completions have declined over the last few years due to the 
financial crisis, they are projected to increase again in the next few years. The HNDA 
is not based on recent levels of population growth continuing at the same rate over 
the next 23 years, it is based on a more realistic scenario. It is not true that 
developers can’t sell houses, new house building in Aberdeen City and Shire is 
considerably higher than the Scottish average. Most new housing is required to 

Page 81



 

 

house the existing population rather than to cater for an increase in population due to 
in-migration but jobs growth is forecast over the next 10-15 years.  
No evidence is given to support the need for an increase in housing allowances other 
than ‘GRO projections’ and ‘increasing demand’. However, the Housing Market 
Partnership has confirmed that the HNDA remains based on realistic expectations of 
future household and population growth in spite of more recent 2008 and 2010-based 
projections. The allowances contained in the plan are of a scale which enables the 
plan to be robust over the medium to long-term even with higher levels of growth 
than those foreseen in the plan – because a generous supply of housing land has 
been provided for. Increasing allowances to 100,000 would have significant 
infrastructure implications beyond those that the development industry is currently 
facing. Flexibility was built into the previous plan through a generous supply of 
housing land. That supply is still generous. Monitoring over the next five years will 
ensure that all available evidence is fed into the next HNDA and informs the next 
review of the plan. 
It is not accepted that there is a significant qualitative and quantitative backlog in the 
housing land supply. Land is provided for affordable as well as market housing. 
There is only one housing requirement in the existing structure plan and there will 
only be one in the SDP. Schedule 1 contains the generous allowances made to meet 
the requirement. 
While delivery of housing is important (as evidenced by the targets in the plan, 
making it clear that sites are required to deliver units within a particular plan period 
would mean that allowances would need to be reduced because they currently 
provide a generous supply of housing land and the structure plan is clear (as will the 
SDP be) that they will not all be built in a particular period. This is not the outcome 
being sought by the respondent. 
The Portlethen to Stonehaven strategic growth area already identifies a further 1,000 
units for the period to 2035 and there is no realistic basis to increase this further at 
the current time. Monitoring of completions over the next five years at Chapelton of 
Elsick will inform future reviews of this plan. 
The proposed SDP continues to provide considerable scope for small-scale 
expansion for smaller communities and no change is required to deliver this. 
Local housing strategies will be emphasised as important in the delivery of the plan. 
Available evidence of completions over the last five years provides no support for 
changing the balance between the two housing market areas. However, monitoring 
will continue to ensure that the balance between the two housing market areas is 
appropriate.  
Employment land 

Page 82



The supply of employment land was not identified as a main issue so received limited 
attention in the MIR but that did not indicate it would not receive the same 
prominence in the SDP as it had in the structure plan. Regular monitoring is carried 
out and significant sites have come through the structure plan and two local 
development plans this year. Mixed-use sites are designed to integrate residential, 
employment and other uses through masterplans. 
Population and household growth 
The population of the SDP area in 2011 was around 23,500 higher than is was in 
1996. However, the population fell for several years after 1996 before rising again. 
The housing market area boundary does date from the early 1970’s but the DTZ 
study of 2007 didn’t identify a significant change during that period until data zones 
were used to try to build up an area. Following that study it was decided that no 
change would be made but that the results of the 2011 Census would inform the next 
review of the boundary. This decision was based on the fact that the observed 
changes were not significant, continuity of boundary had numerous advantages and 
there was no appetite for change within the development industry. The development 
appropriate to Catterline would not be determined by the Housing Market Area it is in. 
The structure plan explicitly refers to the needs of the Gypsy/Traveller communities 
and it is expected that the SDP will continue to do so. 
The HNDA is the main forum to debate future population and household growth 
scenarios. It was ‘robust and credible’ and has informed the MIR and Proposed SDP. 
That document was published alongside the MIR and contains the justification for the 
scenarios chosen. 
The Housing Land Audit will monitor the effectiveness of housing land. Because 
generous allowances have been provided, it is not anticipated that additional sites 
will be required – this is one of the reason a generous supply is required in the first 
place.  
The allowances provide a generous supply of housing land and are robust enough to 
cope with higher levels of growth than anticipated by the plan. There is no 
justification for making LDPs add a further level of generosity on top, this would not 
be in line with Scottish Government policy. 
It is agreed that quantity must not be at the expense of quality, which is why the 
current structure plan and future SDP place such a high priority on the quality of new 
development, including the provision of appropriate infrastructure. 
A working group was established in late 2011 with representatives from the SDPA, 
SNH, SEPA, Scottish Water, Dee Salmon Fisheries Board and Aberdeenshire 
Council  to look at water abstraction from the River Dee. This work concluded that 
the growth to 2035 was unlikely to have an adverse impact on the integrity of the 
river. However, climate change (in the long term) may have an impact which needs to 
be investigated further, including possible mitigation measures. 

Page 83



 

 

Connectivity 
Significant support for putting more emphasis on the transport network in 
encouraging economic growth and the role of Aberdeen Airport are welcome. 
Ways of reducing the need to travel and encouraging walking, cycling and public 
transport are central to the plan in both its spatial strategy as well as its policy 
material. A strategic cycle network will help make these connections for longer 
journeys. 
Reducing congestion has an important role to play in improving air quality. The 
construction of the AWPR enables development closer to the City where walking, 
cycling and public transport are potentially more attractive choices. 
The plan focuses on the importance of digital connectivity as well as transport as 
both are vital. 
The role of the SDP to provide a strategic framework for the development of 
Aberdeen City and Shire. It is not the place for detailed wording of policies on level 
crossings, however important that might be. In the same way, it is not the place for 
details of airport safeguarding, although the principle is mentioned in the current 
structure plan and will be carried forward. The airport will be identified on the strategy 
map. 
Upfront funding of infrastructure by the public sector is actively being explored but 
comes with considerable challenges. 
Pipelines do play an important role and their use can vary over time. The MIR 
identified one potential use (transporting CO2) but there can be others. Pipelines are 
safeguarded under Health and Safety legislation and through local development 
plans. 
The importance of mixed use development was emphasised in the structure plan and 
it is proposed that this remains in the SDP. 
Development is required to mitigate its transport impacts. Hundreds of millions of 
pounds is being spent on the transport infrastructure in the area and the contribution 
of new development needs to be seen in this context. 
The delivery of the AWPR is important to the strategy of the plan and was factored 
into the strategy of the current structure plan so it does not require amendment at this 
stage. 
The delivery of development in particular locations is a matter for local development 
plans in the context of the strategy set out in the SDP. 
Nestrans is refreshing the Regional Transport Strategy alongside the SDP to ensure 
the two documents remain consistent. 

Page 84



Road, rail and airport infrastructure are all important to the future prosperity of the 
area, as well as actions aimed at encouraging people to walk, cycle and take public 
transport. Climate change emissions are one of the factors which is central to the 
strategy of the plan but that cannot mean that people are prevented from travelling 
longer distances for business or leisure. 
Digital infrastructure 
There was overwhelming support for the rollout of high-speed broadband throughout 
the area. It is agreed that the SDP should provide strategic direction to this process 
and it is welcome that some developers are already integrating such technology into 
new developments. It is agreed that it can encourage flexible working and reduce 
transport emissions and congestion. The SDPA are working with partners to 
influence infrastructure investment decisions but there is also a need to encourage 
developers to build high-speed broadband enabled homes which are fit for the 21st 
Century (which enable much faster speeds than retrofitting existing homes).  
Retail 
It is agreed that the city centre must continue to be supported, both protected and 
enhanced to meet the needs of businesses, residents and visitors alike. . Support for 
the existing structure plan’s retail position is welcome. 
Proximity to the AWPR is not a good justification for out-of-town retail when the clear 
priority must be on the city centre, while facilitating retail uses at a scale appropriate 
to existing centres in the hierarchy and mixed-use proposals on a neighbourhood 
scale. 
Other 
A range of suggestions were made to the MIR as to other changes needed to the 
current structure plan to support sustainable economic growth but these are either 
already covered in the structure plan or issues for the regional transport strategy, 
LDPs or implementation. 
6 – Supporting development 
A range of suggestions about how to support were suggested in response to the 
MIR, many of which extend beyond the remit of the SDP (such as tax measures). 
Clarity, flexibility and a pragmatic approach to implementation were advocated as 
well as supporting community trusts and social enterprise. A generous supply of 
housing land was also advocated as well as flexibility in the plan’s strategy to support 
smaller sites with less significant infrastructure requirements – both of which are 
already provided by the plan. Incentivising mixed-use schemes was also suggested, 
or standing firmer against proposals which do not meet the highest standards. Doing 
more to explore innovative funding mechanisms was suggested to influence 
implementation of the plan. Some responses were clear that the plan should be 
neutral and enabling rather than encouraging and facilitating, with planning gain 

Page 85



 

 

discussed in an open and transparent way. Imaginative redevelopment of Aberdeen 
Harbour was suggested, along with a European Capital of Culture bid. 
Strategic transport fund 
[Consultation on the Strategic Transport Fund took place in parallel with the MIR 
consultation and the SDPA have already agreed a response.] 
A variety of responses were received, with general support for the principal and 
questions over the detail of implementation and justification. It is recognised that 
transport assessment will still be required in some cases to address the local impacts 
of development. 
A review of the guidance is required to bring it forward as part of the development 
plan and further engagement will take place to address remaining concerns over 
some of the details of implementation. 
Timing of new developments and the AWPR 
The continued commitment of the Scottish Government to the delivery of the AWPR 
is welcome, as is Transport Scotland’s commitment to work in partnership in the 
intervening period. It is not possible to delay all development until construction of the 
AWPR has started but construction timetables do need to be taken into account 
when transport mitigation is proposed. 
Affordable Housing 
The provision of affordable housing is vital to the delivery of the plan’s vision. When 
the funding situation improves (from the perspective of both the public sector and 
private sector) there will need to be a reassessment of requirements. Commitments 
by the private sector in excess of 25% in individual cases are welcome where they 
are otherwise in accordance with the plan. In the case where need has been 
identified at 38% in the HNDA, reducing expectations to 25% is already a significant 
change and reducing it further would not be consistent with the vision and strategy of 
the plan. While some responses sought 25% to be a maximum and some a 
minimum, around 25% is appropriate in the SDP with the ability for LDPs to vary the 
requirement on a site-by-site if necessary. 
The need for creative solutions is recognised in the challenges of delivering 
affordable housing at the current time but the MIR did not imply that increased need 
for affordable housing had led to a fall in completions. The delivery of affordable 
housing is largely an issue for the two local housing strategies. 
The importance of a range of house types, tenures and sizes is recognised as critical 
to the delivery of sustainable mixed communities. 
The move away from one-year funding programmes for affordable housing is 
welcome as this will help delivery through the development plan. 

Page 86



Development charges are an issue being considered by the Scottish Government 
and were subject to a preliminary consultation earlier this year. 
The importance of a robust framework for affordable housing is vitally important to 
ensure delivery of the plan. Indications are that there is likely to be a significant 
increase in new house completions in Aberdeen City and Shire over the next few 
years – up to and beyond what was seen in the period up to 2008. 
Infrastructure fund 
A variety of views were expressed on whether there was merit in rolling out a wider 
infrastructure fund. That is was something worth looking at was a commonly held 
view, particularly where the public sector were forward-funding the fund. Advantages 
were seen as speeding up the negotiation process for planning permission and 
increasing certainty over costs. Challenges were expressed about fit with current 
legislation and practical implementation and delivery. This issue can be explored 
further through the action programme with the Scottish Government and others. 
Regeneration 
The structure plan focused regeneration activity in Aberdeenshire and Fraserburgh 
was one of the areas it identified. A ‘Framework for Regeneration’ and associated 
action plans have been produced but implementation will take time and results 
cannot be expected overnight. 
Regeneration Priority Area designation does not mean priority will be given to 
economic development proposals over environmental issues. The plan recognises 
that the issues in the southern area (in both scale and nature)are very different from 
those along Aberdeenshire’s north coast and the text of the SDP should allay these 
concerns. The needs and opportunities of areas differ and enhancing the current 
environmental assets to focus on tourism could present opportunities in this area, as 
well as providing better access to services and employment. 
A revised regeneration strategy is being developed by Aberdeen City Council which 
will emerge over the next few months.  
7 – Managing resources efficiently 
While the SDP is about principles, it is also about action to deliver our vision. It would 
not be appropriate to completely ignore the effects of the economic cycle. One of the 
key responses is around prioritisation where this is required. 
Using land efficiently is recognised as important in the plan, with the redevelopment 
of brownfield sites and higher densities on greenfield sites both seen as vital to the 
implementation of the plan. While agricultural land will be lost to new development, 
there is no alternative if we are to grow at the scale envisaged by the plan. 

Page 87



 

 

Text has been included in the plan to reflect the importance of avoiding flood risk and 
the role of land use to climate change adaptation. The expansion of woodland cover 
has also been identified as having a role to play. 
Renewable energy (heat as well as electricity) will be supported by the plan. This 
includes biomass and heat pumps as well as energy from waste. The plan 
recognises the importance of early engagement between developers if effective use 
is to be made of heat through district heating networks. While the setting of 
renewable electricity targets are not required by the Scottish Government, setting the 
target is designed to focus attention on the need for a significant increase in 
generation. The target is not expressed as a limit and progress towards it will be 
reviewed in future plans. 
The importance of the green belt is highlighted in the SDP, with a focus on protecting 
the character and landscape setting of the city. 
Additional sewage infrastructure capacity will be required in some locations but not of 
a scale which would require inclusion in the SDP. SEPA and Scottish Water, as Key 
Agencies have been involved in the preparation of both the current structure plan as 
well as the new SDP. 
Carbon neutrality in new development 
The challenges around moving to new development being carbon neutral are noted, 
particularly in the current financial climate. This is reflected in the MIR’s suggestion 
that a flexible approach should be adopted rather than continue with the current 
target. It is also recognised that building regulations set nationally also have a role to 
play. However, the scale of development proposed in the plan, the lifetime of that 
new development and the urgency of emissions reductions makes it imperative that 
emissions are reduced as soon as practically possible in a local context. ‘Fabric first’ 
approaches are likely to be the most cost effective first steps and these should be 
taken as quickly as possible. Support for a common approach across Aberdeen and 
Aberdeenshire (if not Scotland as a whole) is welcome. A range of views were 
expressed as to target dates, with the view expressed that 2020 was challenging but 
realistic. Costs will only come down through large-scale implementation and this will 
require a push from the planning and building standards systems. A consultation on a 
review of building standards is anticipated in late 2012. Using the sustainability 
labelling mechanism does not duplicate work with building standards but focussing 
on carbon dioxide levels helps to priorities expenditure. 
A variation on Option 1 rather than the preferred option in the MIR (Option 4) has 
been taken forward to the Proposed SDP, with a 2020 target date and the recognition 
that joint supplementary guidance may be prepared to help deliver this through the 
sustainability labelling mechanism.  
 

Page 88



Water efficiency 
Support for water efficiency in new development is welcome. 
Drinking water is not plentiful in Aberdeen City and Shire, with abstraction from the 
River Dee - a resource protected for its natural heritage value. 
Water storage may be required at some point in the future but would present 
particular environmental challenges and be very costly. The appropriateness of such 
a solution will be explored further with partners in the context of the likely impact of 
climate change on the River Dee and inform future plans. However, water efficiency 
measures are likely to be more sustainable and cost-effective. 
Water efficiency is not currently part of the building regulations in Scotland. In any 
case, Aberdeen City and Shire has a local challenge to deal with around abstraction 
from the River Dee. 
General support for the use of sustainability labelling as a consistent mechanism to 
address water efficiency issues, with one standard across the SDP area being the 
preferred approach (if not across Scotland as a whole), including domestic as well as 
non-domestic buildings. Support given for the use of the gold standard from the start. 
However, the proposed SDP has not specified how water-saving technology should 
be incorporated into new development, choosing Option 1 rather than the preferred 
Option 3. 
Alternative fuels for transport 
Reducing emissions from transport will improve public health but it is recognised that 
this is not the solution to congestion. 
Hydrogen is one alternative that is currently being explored, with a focus on hydrogen 
buses rather than fuel cells. 
The proposed SDP does support the deployment of alternative fuels (such as electric 
charging points) but is not specific about location. This is an issue being picked up by 
the refresh of the Regional Transport Strategy. 
Managing our waste 
Recognition of the importance of changing current waste management practice and 
the potential contribution of the SDP is appreciated. The Scottish Government see 
the planning system having an important role to play in facilitating this transition and 
a planning free-for-all will not deliver the required change. However, it is not possible 
to restrict the use of non-recyclable materials in the SDP. 
The MIR and proposed SDP do not single municipal waste out but seek to plan for all 
waste. The foreword to the MIR emphasises the importance of waste management in 
the MIR as well as the space devoted to it – its location in the document is not 
relevant. 

Page 89



 

 

Considerable support for self-sufficiency (Option 2) was expressed, with the benefits 
this can bring, which is welcome. It is recognised that some waste will need to be 
transported outwith the area (due to the treatment processes required) and that some 
may enter the area. However, meeting our waste management needs locally as far 
as possible is the clear goal. The MIR sought to provide a positive perspective on 
waste management, there is no indication that ‘letting the market decide’ will deliver 
the investment required. 
The particular challenges associated with the treatment of hazardous waste are 
recognised. The plan does not seek to prevent these being dealt with in appropriate 
facilities. 
Widespread support for the approach to landfill is welcome.  
Widespread support for the regional concentration of new waste management 
facilities is welcome. While it is recognised that site characteristics will be important, 
sites in or on the edge of settlements are likely to be suitable for modern waste 
management facilities, except where a rural location is required. It is agreed that 
cumulative impacts need to be taken into account when siting new facilities but this 
does not need to be highlighted in the SDP. No value is gained by identifying existing 
waste management sites in the SDP and setting out the types of facilities required is 
likely to be overly restrictive. Agree that site identification for new facilities can be 
helpful but no sites were proposed during the preparation of the SDP. It is recognised 
that transport other than by road is potentially beneficial, depending on the distances 
involved. 
Widespread support for setting a clear framework at the regional level and letting 
LDPs implement it, either through site-specific allocations or otherwise. It is 
recognised that the views of local communities may make this challenging on some 
sites. The LDPs are not out-of-synch with the SDP, both SDP and LDP are reviewed 
on a rolling basis and new LDPs will be required to implement the SDP. 
Although there was a general acceptance that this policy framework will encourage 
the move towards more sustainable waste management, those who took the view 
that the market should be left to get on with it without interference from planning did 
not agree. The SDP provides a positive framework without being too restrictive but it 
is recognised that confident and courageous decisions will be required to implement 
it. 
Waste is recognised as a resource rather than a problem as well as having a 
potential role in the generation of renewable energy. The importance of waste 
minimisation is emphasised. A number of suggestions go beyond the scope of the 
SDP (such as funding, waste charging, increasing kerbside collections and the use of 
biodegradable packaging). The SDP does not limit waste management to the 
strategic growth areas. 

Page 90



8 – Proposals 
The proposals contained in the plan are recognised for the support they give to the 
delivery of the plan and its spatial strategy. They are given explicit support as being 
in accordance with the plan. A new community stadium is supported by the plan but 
two possible locations were identified but the choice of site required justification. 
Aiding investor confidence for waste management proposals is important but no such 
proposals have been put forward for explicit support in the SDP. 
Existing Proposals 
AWPR – The delivery of the AWPR is vital to the future development of Aberdeen 
and Aberdeenshire. It is not appropriate to develop a strategy which assumes it will 
not be delivered just because it has been subject to legal challenge. It is supported 
by both councils, the Scottish Government and a significant majority of the population 
of the area. It is agreed that it should not become a location for out-of-town retail 
development as retail needs to be supported in existing centres, particularly the city 
centre but also other existing centres. 
Haudagain – Proposals have been put forward locally which have been accepted by 
the Scottish Government. While it is recognised that the proposals will have an 
impact to the local area, it is not possible to improve the junction without significant 
change to the adjacent areas. However, attempts have been made to minimise these 
impacts in the design of the proposals. 
Third Don Crossing – A planning application has now been approved, although the 
ongoing legal action is noted. The SDP supports a third crossing over the River Don 
because of the relief it brings to existing crossings, the development it enables to the 
north of Aberdeen and the improvements at the Haudagain roundabout it supports. 
No indication exists that the proposal would be paid for other than locally, although 
the AWPR contract has been identified as a possible way of reducing the cost. 
New stations – the plan will continue to support the possibility of opening of additional 
stations. Kintore is now a firm proposal but there is a need for the case for additional 
stations to be explored further and led by Nestrans in partnership with Transport 
Scotland and the two councils. Transport Scotland’s position regarding new stations 
has changed over recent months which is helpful in this regard. 
Strategic Rail Improvements – support for this strategic rail improvement is noted. 
Electrification will continue to be supported. 
Airport Masterplan – Aberdeen airport plays an important role in the regional 
economy and is a vital link which needs to be supported. It is however important that 
efforts continue to be made to minimise the environmental impacts of the airport and 
this was the focus of the SDPA’s response to the draft Masterplan 2012.  
Community stadium – It is noted that planning permission has yet to be granted 
because a legal agreement is required before this can be done. Until the new 

Page 91



 

 

stadium is delivered it is proposed to retain both potential sites in the SDP because 
delivery on the currently preferred site is still subject to uncertainty. A possible new 
station in the south of Aberdeen will be considered by Nestrans and partners as part 
of their wider consideration of possible new stations. Aberdeen City Council are 
minded to grant the application on the site so are comfortable with the traffic impacts 
of the proposed development on the road network (with the mitigation proposed). 
City Centre Masterplan – A development framework has now been produced and it is 
the implementation of this which is now important. 
Electricity grid – SHETL timescales for the Peterhead – Rothienorman upgrade are 
noted. Leylodge is the closest Aberdeenshire community to the substation, although 
Kintore is the closest town. Figure 14 was supplied by Scottish and Southern Energy 
at the time of the MIR but will not appear in the final SDP anyway. 
New proposals 
Support for the inclusion of these new proposals is welcome. While it is agreed that 
the strategic transport interventions are of regional importance, the other proposals 
do have a much wider national and international significance. There is no value to be 
gained from not identifying projects of national significance in the SDP. 
It is recognised that the SDPA does not control the delivery of these proposals. 
Rather than highlighting this in the plan itself, this will be clear from the action 
programme, including the sources of funding appropriate in each case. 
Although the deployment of carbon capture and storage is ambitious, this project fits 
extremely well with the plan’s vision and aims and should be supported. Although the 
Longannet proposal has now been abandoned, other projects in central Scotland 
have replaced it and the use of the existing pipeline to St Fergus is still likely to be 
attractive. 
The challenges around the need for electricity converter stations in and around 
Peterhead will be reflected in the plan, along with the need for a strategic framework 
for the area to access capacities, design, scope for coordination and mitigation. 
While NorthConnect and SHETL disagreed with the need for a ‘masterplan’, there 
was a recognition that the projects have the potential to raise significant planning 
issues. The term ‘masterplan’ possibly implied a level of detail not originally 
envisaged in the proposal. The assessment of cumulative impacts through the EIA 
process will not give the required level of co-ordination in land use planning terms. A 
strategic framework is proposed as the means of addressing these issues, avoiding 
the complexities of business separation and competition law. A project to scope the 
strategic framework is currently underway with Scottish Enterprise and 
Aberdeenshire Council – this will involve engagement with all the known potential 
developers in the area. Scottish Natural Heritage will be integrated into the project as 
it moves forward. 

Page 92



It is recognised that the strategic transport interventions identified require further 
refinement in terms of detail but the need for them has been identified and is justified 
on the basis of the cumulative transport appraisal carried out with Nestrans and the 
two councils. The support of Transport Scotland in this process is appreciated. 
Additional proposals 
A range of additional proposals were suggested for inclusion in the SDP, some of a 
general nature such as ‘job creation initiatives’ and others more specific. 
Support for an extension to the Peterhead electricity substation is given in the SDP in 
recognition of the role it can perform in transmitting renewable energy (particularly 
from offshore wind). Other onshore infrastructure to support offshore energy 
generation and transmission is also supported. 
It is proposed that the importance of green networks should be recognised in the 
plan, particularly with reference to the implementation of strategic walking and cycling 
routes. However, further work is required to more clearly define the scope of work 
appropriate in a largely rural area in respect of a wider vision and spatial strategy. 
The export of water from our ports is not supported because water sources in the 
area do not generate surplus capacity for export. 
The allocation of land is a matter for local development plans in the context of the 
spatial strategy and objectives of the SDP. 
The need for concerted action to improve the city centre is proposed in the plan and 
this includes support for pedestrianisation. The individual components are largely a 
matter for Aberdeen City Council and partners. The ACSEF bond proposal would 
appear to align well with suggestions made around envisaged delivery mechanisms. 
The potential for combined heat and power, particularly when powered from 
renewable energy is already supported by the plan, not just in the Energetica 
corridor. Hydro-electric schemes are likely to be small-scale in nature but the plan 
does support renewable energy generally. 
The plan has a clear focus on a sequential approach to retail within the plan area, 
with the city centre as the regional centre which must be supported. While retail uses 
are vital within new sustainable mixed communities, it is not appropriate to identify 
Loirston as a site for out of town retail use. 
Rail – Reopening the Deeside line would be very expensive and complex given 
current uses (including as an active travel route). However, rail issues such as this 
are a matter for the Regional Transport Strategy. 
Bus – The Ballater to Perth (Heather Hopper) service is outwith the SDP area. 
Subsidies for public transport is not an issue for the SDP. Park and ride sites are 
included in the structure plan and are taken forward in the SDP. Bus priority 
measures are identified as required under the additional projects identified in the 
MIR. Issues of bus ticketing are not for the SDP. 

Page 93



 

 

Active travel (walking and cycling) – the importance of strategic walking / cycling 
routes in the strategic growth areas is recognised on the Proposed SDP and is also 
being taken forward in the refresh of the Regional Transport Strategy. 
Pedestrianisation in Aberdeen city centre is supported as a proposal by the current 
structure plan and it is proposed to retain this support in the SDP. 
Road – A link from Inchgarth Road to North Deeside road or from the Netherly Road 
to the Slug Road would not be a strategic project. No need or funding has been 
identified for a junction on the fastlink at Chapelton of Elsick at the current time. In 
line with the current structure plan, it is agreed that STPR project 29 (A90 
improvements through or around Dundee) would bring benefits to Aberdeen City and 
Shire and should be supported in principle in the text of the plan. Issues of 
congestion charging and car park charging are not issues for the SDP. 
 
Projects not included explicitly within the plan would need to be assessed against the 
plan as a whole at the time they come forward to assess their acceptability. The plan 
will be reviewed every five years to ensure it is kept up-to-date. 

Page 94



 
1

 

 A
b

er
d

ee
n

 C
it

y 
an

d
 S

h
ir

e 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

P
la

n
 

   

D
ra

ft
 H

ab
ita

ts
 R

eg
u

la
ti

o
n

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

 R
ec

o
rd

 

Page 95



 
2

 

 

T
ab

le
 o

f 
C

o
n

te
n

ts
 

 T
itl

e 
P

ag
e 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

1 

T
ab

le
 o

f C
on

te
nt

s 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
2 

1 
B

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
to

 H
ab

ita
ts

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 A
pp

ra
is

al
 (

H
R

A
) .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 3
 

2 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

4 

3 
B

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 S
ite

s 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 7
 

4 
S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 2

5 

4.
1 

S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 a

s 
pa

rt
s 

of
 th

e 
S

D
P

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 2
5 

4.
2 

S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 fo

r 
LS

E
 o

f p
ar

ts
 o

f t
he

 S
D

P
 o

n 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

S
ite

s 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 2
8 

4.
3 

In
 C

om
bi

na
tio

n 
ef

fe
ct

s 
– 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

pa
rt

s 
of

 th
e 

S
D

P
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 3

0 

4.
4 

In
 C

om
bi

na
tio

n 
ef

fe
ct

s 
– 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

pa
rt

s 
of

 th
e 

S
D

P
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 3

6 

4.
5 

S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 a

nd
 M

iti
ga

tio
n 

ap
pl

ie
d 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

38
 

5 
C

on
cl

us
io

n 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 4

2 

Page 96



 
3

 

 1 
B

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

 t
o

 H
ab

it
at

s 
R

eg
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
A

p
p

ra
is

al
 (

H
R

A
) 

 
 N

at
ur

a 
20

00
 s

ite
s 

ar
e 

a 
ne

tw
or

k 
of

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 s

ite
s 

of
 i

nt
er

na
tio

na
l 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 w

hi
ch

 i
nc

lu
de

 S
pe

ci
al

 A
re

as
 o

f 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

(S
A

C
’s

), 
S

pe
ci

al
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

re
as

 (
S

P
A

’s
) 

an
d 

R
am

sa
r 

S
ite

s.
 U

nd
er

 A
rt

ic
le

 6
 (

3 
&

 4
) 

o
f t

he
 E

ur
op

ea
n 

H
ab

ita
ts

’ D
ire

ct
iv

e,
 a

ny
 p

la
n 

or
 p

ro
je

ct
 li

ke
ly

 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

a 
N

at
ur

a 
20

00
 s

ite
, 

ei
th

er
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

lly
 o

r 
in

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 p

la
ns

 o
r 

pr
oj

ec
ts

, 
sh

al
l 

un
de

rg
o 

an
 

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
its

 i
m

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 f

or
 t

he
 s

ite
. 

T
he

 c
om

pe
te

nt
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

ca
n 

on
ly

 a
gr

ee
 t

o 
th

e 
pl

an
 o

r 
pr

oj
ec

t 
af

te
r 

ha
vi

ng
 a

sc
er

ta
in

ed
 th

at
 it

 w
ill

 n
ot

 a
dv

er
se

ly
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f 

th
e 

si
te

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 (

A
rt

ic
le

 6
.3

).
 In

 e
xc

ep
tio

na
l c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 a
 p

la
n 

or
 

pr
oj

ec
t 

m
ay

 s
til

l b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 t
o 

go
 a

he
ad

, 
in

 s
pi

te
 o

f 
a 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t, 

pr
ov

id
ed

 t
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
so

lu
tio

ns
 a

nd
 t

he
 p

la
n 

or
 

pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
of

 o
ve

rr
id

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 in

te
re

st
. I

n 
su

ch
 c

as
es

 th
e 

M
em

be
r 

S
ta

te
 m

us
t t

ak
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l c

oh
er

en
ce

 o
f t

he
 N

at
ur

a 
20

00
 N

et
w

or
k 

is
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 (
A

rt
ic

le
 6

.4
).

  
 T

hi
s 

sc
re

en
in

g 
is

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
(S

D
P

) 
do

es
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

an
y 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 
N

at
ur

a 
20

00
 s

ite
s.

 
 

Page 97



 
4

 

2 
A

b
er

d
ee

n
 C

it
y 

an
d

 S
h

ir
e 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
P

la
n

 
 T

hi
s 

H
ab

ita
ts

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 A
pp

ra
is

al
 is

 b
ei

ng
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
P

la
n 

(S
D

P
).

 T
he

 S
D

P
 

co
ve

rs
 t

he
 w

ho
le

 o
f 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 e
xc

ep
t 

th
at

 p
ar

t 
of

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 C
ai

rn
go

rm
s 

N
at

io
na

l 
P

ar
k.

 I
t 

is
 a

 
st

ra
te

gy
 f

or
 t

he
 f

ut
ur

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 a
re

a 
up

 t
o 

20
35

 a
nd

 i
s 

an
 e

vo
lu

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

 P
la

n 
w

hi
ch

 w
as

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 S
co

tti
sh

 M
in

is
te

rs
 in

 2
00

9.
 

 A
 H

ab
ita

ts
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 A

pp
ra

is
al

 (
H

R
A

) 
ha

d 
be

en
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
or

 th
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 P

la
n 

(2
00

9)
 a

nd
 th

at
 p

la
n 

fo
rm

ed
 

th
e 

ba
se

 fr
om

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
ne

w
 S

D
P

 h
as

 e
vo

lv
ed

.  
 A

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
es

 R
ep

or
t 

(M
IR

) 
w

as
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
1 

as
 a

 m
ea

ns
 o

f 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
on

 t
he

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 o

pt
io

ns
 t

o 
in

fo
rm

 t
he

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 S

D
P

. 
A

n 
H

R
A

 w
as

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

of
 t

he
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

is
su

es
 a

nd
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

t 
th

e 
tim

e 
th

e 
M

IR
 w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

an
d 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

in
 p

ar
al

le
l w

ith
 th

e 
M

IR
 fo

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n.
 S

co
tti

sh
 N

at
ur

al
 H

er
ita

ge
 r

es
po

nd
ed

 to
 th

at
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
se

 
ha

s 
be

en
 u

se
d 

to
 in

fo
rm

 th
is

 d
ra

ft 
ap

pr
ai

sa
l r

ec
or

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
S

D
P

 it
se

lf.
 

 T
he

 c
on

te
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

S
D

P
 a

re
 s

um
m

ar
is

ed
 in

 T
ab

le
 2

.1
 b

el
ow

. 
 T

ab
le

 2
.1

 C
o

n
te

n
ts

 o
f 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
P

la
n

 
 S

D
P

 V
is

io
n

, S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d
 P

o
lic

ie
s 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

1.
 

V
is

io
n 

 
1.

1 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 w

ill
 b

e 
an

 e
ve

n 
m

or
e 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e,
 p

ro
sp

er
ou

s 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

ci
ty

 
re

gi
on

 a
nd

 a
n 

ex
ce

lle
nt

 p
la

ce
 to

 li
ve

, v
is

it 
an

d 
to

 d
o 

bu
si

ne
ss

. W
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 fo

r:
  

· 
ou

r 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

an
d 

in
ve

nt
iv

en
es

s,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 th
e 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
ec

on
om

y 
an

d 
in

 h
ig

h-
va

lu
e 

m
ar

ke
ts

; 
· 

T
he

 u
ni

qu
e 

qu
al

iti
es

 o
f o

ur
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t; 
an

d 
 

· 
ou

r 
hi

gh
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 li
fe

. 
W

e 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

ac
te

d 
co

nf
id

en
tly

 a
nd

 ta
ke

n 
th

e 
co

ur
ag

eo
us

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 t
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
ro

bu
st

 a
nd

 r
es

ili
en

t e
co

no
m

y 
an

d 
le

ad
 th

e 
w

ay
 to

w
ar

ds
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t b

ei
ng

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

de
al

in
g 

w
ith

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 a

nd
 c

re
at

in
g 

a 
m

or
e 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
so

ci
et

y.
 

 
 

 
2.

 
S

pa
tia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
2.

1 
T

hi
s 

re
ta

in
s 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 a

nd
 s

ca
le

s 
of

 g
ro

w
th

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 t
he

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 

P
la

n 
(2

00
9)

. M
os

t n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

 (
i) 

th
e 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 G

ro
w

th
 A

re
as

, w
ith

 fu
rt

he
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 
in

 (
ii)

 th
e 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
P

rio
rit

y 
A

re
as

 a
nd

 (
iii

) 
Lo

ca
l G

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 D

iv
er

si
fic

at
io

n 
A

re
as

. A
ro

un
d 

ha
lf 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

in
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

. 
 

 
 

Page 98



 
5

 

3.
 

F
oc

us
 o

f A
llo

w
an

ce
s 

3.
1 

M
os

t o
f t

he
 a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
ar

e 
w

ith
in

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
an

d 
co

rr
id

or
s 

to
 E

llo
n,

 In
ve

ru
rie

 a
nd

 S
to

ne
ha

ve
n 

 
 

 
4.

 
E

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 
4.

1 
E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d 

al
lo

ca
tio

n,
 h

ig
h-

sp
ee

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n,
 in

no
va

tio
n,

 r
et

ai
l a

nd
 to

ur
is

m
, v

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s,

 r
eg

io
na

l s
ho

pp
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 E
ne

rg
et

ic
a 

co
rr

id
or

, i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

ne
ed

s 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

, 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

fr
ei

gh
t b

y 
ra

il 
an

d 
se

a.
  

 
 

 
5.

 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
5.

1 
R

ed
uc

in
g 

ca
rb

on
 d

io
xi

de
 e

m
is

si
on

s,
 a

da
pt

in
g 

to
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 e
ffe

ct
s 

an
d 

lim
iti

ng
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 n
on

-
re

ne
w

ab
le

 r
es

ou
rc

es
. D

es
ig

n 
an

d 
us

e 
of

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
o 

be
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 h
av

in
g 

m
in

im
al

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
s,

 s
up

pl
y 

an
d 

de
m

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f e
ne

rg
y,

 r
en

ew
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
us

e,
 u

pg
ra

di
ng

 
gr

id
, c

ar
bo

n 
ca

pt
ur

e 
an

d 
st

or
ag

e,
 ta

ck
in

g 
flo

od
in

g,
 m

an
ag

in
g 

w
as

te
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 w

as
te

 h
ie

ra
rc

hy
 a

nd
 

pr
ox

im
ity

 p
rin

ci
pl

es
 w

ith
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 w
as

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ac

ili
tie

s,
 m

an
ag

in
g 

w
at

er
 u

se
. 

 
 

 
6.

 
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
G

ro
w

th
 

6.
1 

T
ar

ge
t 

of
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 t
he

 c
ity

 r
eg

io
n 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
to

 5
00

,0
00

 b
y 

20
35

 (
an

 in
cr

ea
se

 o
f 

35
,0

00
 o

n 
20

11
).

 A
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
ra

te
 o

f h
ou

se
bu

ild
in

g 
to

 2
,5

00
 a

nd
 e

ve
nt

ua
lly

 to
 3

,0
00

 p
er

 y
ea

r.
 

 
 

 

7.
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t  
 

7.
1 

M
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
re

gi
on

’s
 im

po
rt

an
t b

ui
lt,

 n
at

ur
al

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l a
ss

et
s 

as
 a

 v
al

ua
bl

e 
re

so
ur

ce
 

fo
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
. C

on
tin

ue
 to

 u
se

 th
e 

gr
ee

n 
be

lt 
ar

ou
nd

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 it
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
an

d 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

se
tti

ng
. I

m
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

gr
ee

n 
ne

tw
or

ks
 in

 a
nd

 a
ro

un
d 

A
be

rd
ee

n.
 

 
 

 

8.
 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 M
ix

ed
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 

8.
1 

N
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t m
us

t b
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e,

 m
ix

ed
 a

nd
 fo

cu
se

d 
on

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
, w

ith
 

hi
gh

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f u
rb

an
 a

nd
 r

ur
al

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 u
se

 o
f l

an
d.

 P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 

m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 G
yp

si
es

 / 
T

ra
ve

lle
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

ag
in

g 
po

pu
la

tio
n.

 S
eq

ue
nt

ia
l a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 

re
ta

il 
pr

op
os

al
s.

 
 

 
 

9.
 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
 

9.
1 

R
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 tr
av

el
 a

nd
 e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 w

al
ki

ng
, c

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

sp
or

t. 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
th

e 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

at
 h

ar
bo

ur
s 

an
d 

th
e 

ai
rp

or
t. 

 
 

 
10

. 
P

ro
po

sa
ls

 
10

.1
 

 T
he

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
W

es
te

rn
 P

er
ip

he
ra

l R
ou

te
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 b
et

te
r 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 

co
nn

ec
tio

ns
 to

 o
th

er
 p

la
ce

s 
an

d 
to

 a
llo

w
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
lly

 fr
ie

nd
ly

 m
et

ho
ds

 o
f t

ra
ns

po
rt

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
. 

 
10

.2
 

 D
ua

lli
ng

 b
et

w
ee

n 
B

al
m

ed
ie

 a
nd

 T
ip

pe
rt

y 
an

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
th

e 
A

90
 (

no
rt

h)
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
be

tte
r 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
. 

 
10

.3
 

 R
ep

la
ce

 t
he

 I
nv

er
am

sa
y 

B
rid

ge
 a

nd
 l

on
ge

r-
te

rm
 d

ua
lli

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
A

96
 b

et
w

ee
n 

In
ve

ru
rie

 a
nd

 t
he

 b
or

de
r 

w
ith

 M
or

ay
 

 
10

.4
 

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

th
e 

H
au

da
ga

in
 r

ou
nd

ab
ou

t, 
a 

th
ird

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
of

 t
he

 R
iv

er
 D

on
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

an
d 

al
lo

w
 g

ro
w

th
 in

 a
nd

 to
 th

e 
no

rt
h 

of
 th

e 
ci

ty
. 

 
10

.5
 

 A
 r

in
g 

of
 n

ew
 p

ar
k-

an
d-

rid
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
ro

un
d 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
lin

ki
ng

 to
 th

e 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

W
es

te
rn

 P
er

ip
he

ra
l R

ou
te

 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

, a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 w

id
er

 tr
an

sp
or

t b
en

ef
its

. 
 

10
.6

 
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

ra
il 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
ne

w
 s

ta
tio

n 
at

 K
in

to
re

 a
nd

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
lo

ca
l 

ra
il 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
to

 

Page 99



 
6

 

m
ak

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
lly

 fr
ie

nd
ly

 m
et

ho
ds

 o
f t

ra
ns

po
rt

 m
or

e 
at

tr
ac

tiv
e 

– 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
du

ci
ng

 jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
es

 to
 

In
ve

rn
es

s 
an

d 
E

di
nb

ur
gh

 / 
G

la
sg

ow
 a

nd
 b

ey
on

d.
 

 
10

.7
 

 P
ut

tin
g 

th
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
ai

rp
or

t m
as

te
rp

la
n 

in
to

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 

 
10

.8
 

 B
et

te
r 

lin
ks

 b
et

w
ee

n 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

an
d 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 o
n 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
co

as
t o

f A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
. 

 
10

.9
 

 In
iti

at
iv

es
 

by
 

th
e 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s,

 
co

lle
ge

s 
an

d 
re

se
ar

ch
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 
to

 
st

re
ng

th
en

 
ou

r 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

ec
on

om
y.

 
 

10
.1

0 
 T

he
 

‘E
ne

rg
et

ic
a’

 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

be
in

g 
pr

om
ot

ed
 

by
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 

an
d 

S
hi

re
 

E
co

no
m

ic
 

F
ut

ur
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
to

 P
et

er
he

ad
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
re

a.
 

 
10

.1
1 

 Im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
po

rt
 a

nd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

at
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

an
d 

P
et

er
he

ad
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

th
e 

m
os

t 
of

 t
he

ir 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
l, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 fo
r 

th
e 

en
er

gy
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
of

fs
ho

re
 w

in
d)

 a
nd

 fi
sh

in
g 

se
ct

or
s.

 
 

10
.1

2 
 P

ro
po

sa
ls

 to
 r

eg
en

er
at

e 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e 

an
d 

so
m

e 
of

 th
e 

ci
ty

 r
eg

io
n’

s 
m

os
t d

is
ad

va
nt

ag
ed

 a
re

as
. 

 
10

.1
3 

 A
 n

ew
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
ta

di
um

 –
 a

 r
eg

io
na

lly
 im

po
rt

an
t 

fa
ci

lit
y 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

rin
g 

ec
on

om
ic

, 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
be

ne
fit

s 
(t

w
o 

po
ss

ib
le

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 a
re

 s
ho

w
n 

on
 th

e 
ke

y 
di

ag
ra

m
).

 
 

10
.1

4 
 T

he
 

ci
ty

 
ce

nt
re

 
m

as
te

rp
la

n,
 

w
hi

ch
 

in
cl

ud
es

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

to
 

m
ak

e 
pa

rt
 

of
 

U
ni

on
 

S
tr

ee
t 

an
 

ar
ea

 
fo

r 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

 o
nl

y.
 

 
10

.1
5 

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
to

 th
e 

on
sh

or
e 

el
ec

tr
ic

ity
 g

rid
 a

nd
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f o

ffs
ho

re
 tr

an
sm

is
si

on
 fr

om
 P

et
er

he
ad

. 
 

10
.1

6 
 U

pg
ra

di
ng

 o
f 

P
et

er
he

ad
 p

ow
er

 s
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

th
e 

de
pl

oy
m

en
t 

of
 c

ar
bo

n 
ca

pt
ur

e 
an

d 
st

or
ag

e 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 
an

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

. 
 

10
.1

7 
 A

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 t
he

 c
um

ul
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

on
 t

he
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 
ne

tw
or

k 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e,

 p
rio

rit
y 

an
d 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
m

ea
su

re
s;

 j
un

ct
io

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
A

96
, 

A
94

4,
 A

95
6,

 A
90

, 
K

in
gs

w
el

ls
 N

or
th

 a
nd

 P
ar

kh
ill

; 
sa

fe
ty

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

 r
oa

d 
to

 t
he

 A
93

; 
P

ar
kw

ay
 a

nd
 P

er
sl

ey
 B

rid
ge

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

; a
nd

 a
 R

iv
er

 D
ee

 li
nk

 
     

Page 100



 
7

 

3 
B

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
n

 S
it

es
 

 3.
1 

L
is

t 
o

f 
E

u
ro

p
ea

n
 s

it
es

 
 In

 T
ab

le
 3

.1
 b

el
ow

, 
w

e 
ha

ve
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

a 
lis

t 
of

 E
ur

op
ea

n 
si

te
s 

w
ith

 t
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l t
o 

be
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 b

y 
an

y 
fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
in

 
th

e 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
P

la
n 

ar
ea

. 
T

he
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
P

la
n 

is
 e

ss
en

tia
lly

 a
 s

pa
tia

l s
tr

at
eg

y 
of

 h
ow

 
th

e 
re

gi
on

 w
ill

 d
ev

el
op

 in
 t

he
 n

ex
t 

20
 t

o 
25

 y
ea

rs
. 

S
om

e 
of

 t
he

m
 a

re
 li

st
ed

 f
or

 t
he

 li
ke

ly
 im

pa
ct

s 
of

 t
he

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

e
nt

 P
la

n 
on

 
th

em
. 

O
th

er
s 

ar
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 f
or

 t
he

ir 
in

-c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

ef
fe

ct
s.

  
T

he
 c

rit
er

ia
 u

se
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

se
le

ct
io

n 
of

 s
ite

s 
ar

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

aq
ua

tic
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
m

ob
ile

 s
pe

ci
es

, t
he

ir 
vu

ln
er

ab
ili

ty
 to

 r
ec

re
at

io
na

l p
re

ss
ur

e,
 th

ei
r 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

be
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 b

y 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
co

as
t. 

 
 T

ab
le

 3
.1

: 
 L

is
t 

o
f 

E
u

ro
p

ea
n

 s
it

es
  

 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

si
te

s 
 

E
ff

ec
t 

o
n

 a
q

u
at

ic
 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
E

ff
ec

t 
o

n
 

m
o

b
ile

 s
p

ec
ie

s 
V

u
ln

er
ab

le
 t

o
 

re
cr

ea
ti

o
n

al
 p

re
ss

u
re

 
In

cr
ea

se
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
C

o
u

ld
 a

ff
ec

t 
th

e 
 c

o
as

t 
1 

B
uc

ha
n 

N
es

s 
to

 C
ol

lie
st

on
 C

oa
st

  S
A

C
 

√ 
√ 

√ 
√ 

√ 
2 

B
uc

ha
n 

N
es

s 
to

 C
ol

lie
st

on
 C

oa
st

  S
P

A
 

√ 
√ 

√ 
√ 

√ 
3 

G
ar

ro
n 

P
oi

nt
 S

A
C

 
 

√ 
√ 

 
√ 

4 
H

ill
 o

f T
ow

an
re

ef
 S

A
C

 
 

 
 

 
 

5 
R

ed
 M

os
s 

of
 N

et
he

rle
y 

S
A

C
 

 
 

 
 

 
7 

M
or

tla
ch

 M
os

s 
S

A
C

 
 

√ 
 

√ 
 

8 
R

ei
ds

id
e 

M
os

s 
S

A
C

 
 

 
 

 
 

9 
R

iv
er

 D
ee

 S
A

C
 

 
 

 
 

 
10

 
Y

th
an

 E
st

ua
ry

, S
an

ds
 o

f F
or

vi
e 

an
d 

M
ei

kl
e 

lo
ch

 S
P

A
 

 
√ 

√ 
 

√ 
11

 
S

an
ds

 o
f F

or
vi

e 
S

A
C

 
 

 
√ 

 
√ 

12
 

T
ur

cl
os

si
e 

M
os

s 
S

A
C

 
 

 
 

 
 

13
 

F
ow

ls
he

ug
h 

 S
P

A
 

 
√ 

 
 

 
14

 
Lo

ch
 o

f S
ke

ne
 S

P
A

/R
A

M
S

A
R

 
 

√ 
 

 
 

15
 

Lo
ch

 o
f S

tr
at

hb
eg

 S
P

A
/R

A
M

S
A

R
 

 
√ 

 
 

 
16

 
T

ip
s 

of
 C

or
se

m
au

l a
nd

 T
om

 M
or

  S
P

A
 

 
√ 

 
 

 
17

 
T

ro
up

, P
en

na
n 

an
d 

Li
on

s 
H

ea
d 

S
P

A
 

 
√ 

√ 
 

√ 
20

 
M

or
ay

 F
irt

h 
S

P
A

 
√ 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
si

te
s 

ar
e 

ou
tw

ith
 th

e 
S

D
P

 a
re

a:
 

18
 

M
or

ve
n 

an
d 

M
ul

la
ch

du
bh

 S
A

C
 

 
 

 
 

 
19

 
M

ui
r 

of
 D

in
ne

t S
A

C
 

 
 

 
 

 
6 

D
in

ne
t O

ak
w

oo
d 

S
A

C
 

 
 

 
 

 
21

 
G

le
n 

T
an

ar
 S

A
C

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 101



 
8

 

T
ab

le
 3

.2
: 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
S

it
es

 S
el

ec
te

d
 

S
it

e 
&

 C
o

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 
O

b
je

ct
iv

es
 

C
o

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 
Q

u
al

if
yi

n
g

 
In

te
re

st
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
S

it
e 

F
ac

to
rs

 
in

fl
u

en
ci

n
g

 S
it

e 
V

u
ln

er
ab

ili
ty

 t
o

 
ch

an
g

es
 o

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 

ef
fe

ct
s 

o
f 

P
P

S
 

1.
 

B
u

ch
an

 N
es

s 
to

 
C

o
lli

es
to

n
 S

A
C

 
(2

08
.6

2 
ha

) 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 o
n 

17
/0

3/
20

05
 

  

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

t (
i.e

. v
eg

et
at

ed
 s

ea
 c

lif
fs

) 
th

us
 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
th

e 
si

te
 m

ak
es

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 
fa

vo
ur

ab
le

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
st

at
u s

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 fe
at

ur
es

; a
nd

  
T

o 
en

su
re

 fo
r 

th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

t 
th

at
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 

th
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

:  
·  

E
xt

en
t o

f t
he

 h
ab

ita
t o

n 
si

te
  

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t w
ith

in
 

si
te

 
· 

S
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 fu

nc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

· 
P

ro
ce

ss
es

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 o
f 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

·  
V

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 a
s 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
· 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 o

f 
ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 o
f t

he
 h

ab
ita

t 
 

V
eg

et
at

ed
 s

ea
 

cl
iff

s 
of

 th
e 

A
tla

nt
ic

 a
nd

 
B

al
tic

 c
oa

st
s  

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(3
0/

09
/2

00
0)

 
 G

en
er

al
 s

ite
 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

fe
at

ur
es

: 
S

hi
ng

le
. S

ea
 c

lif
fs

. 
Is

le
ts

 (
30

%
);

 
B

og
s.

 M
ar

sh
es

. 
W

at
er

 fr
in

ge
d 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
 F

en
s 

(0
.5

%
) 

H
ea

th
. S

cr
ub

. 
M

aq
ui

s 
an

d 
ga

rr
ig

ue
. 

P
hy

gr
an

a 
(5

%
) 

H
um

id
 g

ra
ss

la
nd

. 
M

es
op

hi
le

 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

(6
4.

5%
) 

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
, 

el
ec

tr
ic

ity
 (

ex
c.

 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 
en

er
gy

 c
as

es
) 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 

w
at

er
 u

se
.  

 T
he

 w
ay

 p
ar

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
si

te
 a

re
 

m
an

ag
ed

 fo
r 

gr
az

in
g  

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
gi

m
e 

of
 c

lif
f-

to
p 

gr
as

sl
an

ds
. 

R
ec

re
at

io
n,

 u
se

 
by

 w
al

ke
rs

, 
na

tu
ra

lis
ts

, 
cl

im
be

rs
. 

T
he

 v
ar

ie
d 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 to

 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

se
 

cl
iff

-t
op

 g
ra

ss
la

nd
s.

 A
 

co
as

ta
l p

at
h 

ru
ns

 a
lo

ng
 

th
e 

cl
iff

-t
op

 a
nd

 is
 in

 
pa

rt
 w

el
l u

se
d 

by
 

w
al

ke
rs

 a
nd

 n
at

ur
al

is
ts

. 
P

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 a

re
 

al
so

 u
se

d 
by

 c
lim

be
rs

. 
C

ur
re

nt
 le

ve
ls

 o
f 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l a

ct
iv

ity
 a

re
 

co
m

pa
tib

le
 w

ith
 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 c

lif
f 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
 

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

K
ey

 
Is

su
es

  
· 

H
ab

ita
t l

os
s 

· 
D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 

2.
 

B
u

ch
an

 N
es

s 
to

 
C

o
lli

es
to

n
 S

P
A

 
(5

,4
00

.9
4 

ha
) 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 o

n 
30

/0
3/

19
98

 w
ith

 
m

ar
in

e 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

on
  

 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s 
or

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

to
 th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

sp
ec

ie
s,

 
th

us
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 

si
te

 is
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d;
 a

nd
  

T
o 

en
su

re
 fo

r 
th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

sp
ec

ie
s 

th
at

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 
th

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
:  

·  
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

as
 a

 
vi

ab
le

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

 

S
ea

bi
rd

 
as

se
m

bl
ag

e,
 

br
ee

di
ng

 
 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
N

o 
ch

an
ge

 
(0

4/
07

/2
00

7)
 

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
fo

r 
m

ar
in

e 
dr

ed
gi

ng
, 

on
sh

or
e 

w
in

d 
fa

rm
, o

ffs
ho

re
 

w
in

d 
fa

rm
, 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 

en
er

gy
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 

T
he

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f p
ar

t 
of

 th
e 

si
te

 b
y 

th
e 

 
S

co
tti

sh
 W

ild
lif

e 
T

ru
st

 
Lo

ng
ha

ve
n 

R
es

er
ve

 
en

su
re

s 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 th
re

at
s 

to
 th

e 
in

te
re

st
 a

t p
re

se
nt

 
 S

N
H

 is
 e

ng
ag

ed
 in

 a
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

G
ui

lle
m

ot
 (

U
ria

 
aa

lg
e)

, b
re

ed
in

g 
U

nf
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

N
o 

ch
an

ge
 

(0
4/

07
/2

00
7)

 
K

itt
iw

ak
e 

(R
is

sa
 

tr
id

ac
ty

la
),

 
br

ee
di

ng
 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
N

o 
ch

an
ge

 
(0

4/
07

/2
00

7)
 

Page 102



 
9

 

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 
si

te
 

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

an
d 

ex
te

nt
 o

f h
ab

ita
ts

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

· 
S

tr
uc

tu
re

, f
un

ct
io

n 
an

d 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
of

 h
ab

ita
ts

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

· 
N

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

sp
ec

ie
s 

 

F
ul

m
ar

 
(F

ul
m

ar
us

 
gl

ac
ia

lis
),

 
br

ee
di

ng
 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
de

cl
in

in
g 

(0
4/

07
/2

00
7)

 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 
 T

he
re

 is
 a

 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l u
se

 
of

 th
e 

cl
iff

s 
an

d 
ro

ck
-c

lim
bi

ng
.  

  

se
ab

ird
 p

op
ul

at
io

ns
, a

nd
 

is
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
ity

, a
nd

 o
w

ne
rs

 
an

d 
oc

cu
pi

er
s,

 to
 a

gr
ee

 
a 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 p

at
h 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
ite

 
in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n.

 
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
K

ey
 

Is
su

es
  

· 
H

ab
ita

t l
os

s 
· 

D
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 
· 

R
ec

re
at

io
na

l 
im

pa
ct

 
· 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
an

d 
de

cl
in

in
g 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
fe

at
ur

es
 

 

G
ui

lle
m

ot
 (

U
ria

 
aa

lg
e)

, b
re

ed
in

g 
F

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
D

ec
lin

in
g  

(0
4/

07
/2

00
7)

 
S

ea
bi

rd
 

as
se

m
bl

ag
e,

 
br

ee
di

ng
 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
N

o 
ch

an
ge

 
(0

4/
07

/2
00

7)
 

 T
he

 lo
w

, b
ro

ke
n 

cl
iff

s 
sh

ow
 m

an
y 

er
os

io
n 

fe
at

ur
es

 
su

ch
 a

s 
st

ac
ks

, 
ar

ch
es

, c
av

es
 a

nd
 

bl
ow

ho
le

s.
 T

he
 

va
rie

d 
co

as
ta

l 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
le

dg
es

 a
nd

 c
lif

f 
to

ps
 in

cl
ud

es
 

m
ar

iti
m

e 
he

at
h,

 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

an
d 

br
ac

ki
sh

 fl
us

he
s.

  
3.

 
G

ar
ro

n
 P

o
in

t 
S

A
C

 (
15

.5
8 

ha
) 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 o

n 
16

/9
/2

00
8 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s 
(N

ar
ro

w
-

m
ou

th
ed

 w
ho

rl 
sn

ai
l) 

or
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s,
 

th
us

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 th

e 
in

te
gr

ity
 o

f t
he

 
si

te
 is

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

th
e 

si
te

 m
ak

es
 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
fa

vo
ur

ab
le

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
st

at
us

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 
fe

at
ur

es
; a

nd
  

T
o 

en
su

re
 fo

r 
th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

sp
ec

ie
s 

th
at

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 
th

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
: 

N
ar

ro
w

-m
ou

th
ed

 
w

ho
rl 

sn
ai

l 
(V

er
tig

o 
an

gu
st

io
r)

 

N
o 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
fe

at
ur

e 
 G

en
er

al
 s

ite
 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

fe
at

ur
es

: 
C

oa
st

al
 s

an
d 

du
ne

s.
 S

an
d 

be
ac

he
s.

 M
ac

ha
ir 

(4
.5

%
)  

S
hi

ng
le

. S
ea

 
cl

iff
s.

 Is
le

ts
 (

11
%

) 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

us
e 

an
d 

ge
ol

og
ic

al
 

in
te

re
st

 in
 s

ite
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 a
t 

S
ka

tie
 S

ho
re

. 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 
liv

es
to

ck
 to

 th
e 

si
te

.  
 D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 fr

om
 

bu
rn

in
g 

of
 

dr
ift

w
oo

d 
an

d 
di

sp
os

ab
le

 

V
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y 
of

 s
na

il 
co

lo
ni

es
 r

ec
re

at
io

na
l, 

w
oo

d 
bu

rn
in

g 
an

d 
gr

az
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
.  

P
ot

en
tia

l s
ite

 e
ro

si
on

 
fr

om
 li

ve
st

oc
k 

ac
tiv

ity
. 

V
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y 
to

 s
ite

 to
 

m
ar

in
e 

oi
l p

ol
lu

tio
n 

an
d 

lo
ng

 te
rm

 r
is

in
g 

se
a 

le
ve

l.  
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
K

ey
 

Is
su

es
  

Page 103



 
1

0
 

· 
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

as
 a

 
vi

ab
le

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

 
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 

si
te

 
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
an

d 
ex

te
nt

 o
f h

ab
ita

ts
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
·  

S
tr

uc
tu

re
, f

un
ct

io
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

of
 h

ab
ita

ts
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
· 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 
sp

ec
ie

s 

B
og

s.
 M

ar
sh

es
. 

W
at

er
 fr

in
ge

d 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n.

 F
en

s 
(5

.8
%

) 
H

ea
th

. 
S

cr
ub

. M
aq

ui
s 

an
d 

ga
rr

ig
ue

. 
P

hy
gr

an
a 

(1
8.

7%
) 

H
um

id
 g

ra
ss

la
nd

.  
M

es
op

hi
le

 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

(6
0%

) 
 

ba
rb

ec
ue

s 
aw

ay
 

fr
om

 th
e 

sn
ai

l 
co

lo
ni

es
. 

   

· 
H

ab
ita

t l
os

s 
· 

D
is

tu
rb

an
ce

  
· 

R
is

k 
fr

om
 fi

re
 

· 
C

oa
st

al
 s

qu
ee

ze
 

· 
O

il 
po

llu
tio

n 
 

· 
E

ro
si

on
  

· 
R

ec
re

at
io

na
l 

im
pa

ct
 

4.
 

H
ill

 o
f 

T
o

w
an

re
ef

 S
A

C
 

(1
88

5.
92

 h
a)

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 o
n 

17
/0

3/
20

05
 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

ts
  t

hu
s 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 
th

e 
in

te
gr

ity
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

 is
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
th

e 
si

te
 m

ak
es

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 fa
vo

ur
ab

le
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

st
at

us
 fo

r  
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

fe
at

ur
es

; a
nd

  
T

o 
en

su
re

 fo
r 

th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 

th
at

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 
th

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
:  

·  
E

xt
en

t o
f t

he
 h

ab
ita

t o
n 

si
te

  
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t w

ith
in

 
si

te
  

·  
S

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 fu
nc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
· 

P
ro

ce
ss

es
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 o

f 
th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
· 

V
ia

bi
lit

y 
of

 ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 a

s 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

· 
N

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 o
f 

ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 o

f t
he

 h
ab

ita
t 

 

G
ra

ss
la

nd
s 

on
 

so
ils

 r
ic

h 
in

 
he

av
y 

m
et

al
s 

 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(2
9/

07
/2

00
2)

 

P
as

t p
ea

t c
ut

tin
g.

 
E

xt
en

si
on

 o
f 

M
ui

rb
ur

n 
on

to
 

bl
an

ke
t b

og
, 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 lo

ss
 

of
 S

ph
ag

nu
m

 
co

ve
r.

 
La

nd
 p

riv
at

el
y 

ow
ne

d.
 

R
ec

re
at

io
na

l u
se

 
by

 w
al

ke
rs

 a
nd

 
us

e 
fo

r 
gr

ou
se

 
m

oo
r 

an
d 

ro
ug

h 
gr

az
in

g 
 

Lo
ss

 o
f S

ph
ag

nu
m

 
co

ve
r;

  
O

ne
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 s
ite

 is
 

fr
eq

ue
nt

l y
 v

is
ite

d 
by

 
w

al
ke

rs
 b

ut
 th

is
 is

 n
ot

 
da

m
ag

in
g 

to
 th

e 
si

te
's

 
in

te
re

st
s 

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

K
ey

 
Is

su
es

  
· 

H
ab

ita
t l

os
s 

(b
la

nk
et

 b
og

 a
nd

 
dr

y 
he

at
hs

) 
· 

D
is

tu
rb

an
ce

  
· 

P
ot

en
tia

l 
de

pl
et

io
n 

of
 

ca
rb

on
 s

in
k 

· 
R

ec
re

at
io

na
l 

im
pa

ct
 

B
la

nk
et

 b
og

  
U

nf
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

D
ec

lin
in

g 
(2

9/
07

/2
00

2)
 

Ju
ni

pe
r 

on
 

he
at

hs
 o

r 
ca

lc
ar

eo
us

 
gr

as
sl

an
ds

  

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(0
1/

08
/2

00
1)

 
  

M
ar

sh
 s

ax
ifr

ag
e 

(S
ax

ifr
ag

a 
hi

rc
ul

us
) 

 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(2
8/

08
/2

00
0)

 
D

ry
 h

ea
th

s 
 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
D

ec
lin

in
g 

(1
7/

09
/2

00
0)

 
A

lp
in

e 
an

d 
su

ba
lp

in
e 

he
at

hs
  

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(1
7/

09
/2

00
0)

 
 B

og
s.

 M
ar

sh
es

. 
W

at
er

 fr
in

ge
d 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
 F

en
s 

(1
5%

) 

Page 104



 
1

1
 

H
ea

th
. S

cr
ub

. 
M

aq
ui

s 
an

d 
ga

rr
ig

ue
. 

P
hy

gr
an

a 
(6

8%
) 

H
um

id
 g

ra
ss

la
nd

. 
M

es
op

hi
le

 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

(1
7%

) 
 

5.
 

R
ed

 M
o

ss
 o

f 
N

et
h

er
le

y 
(9

2.
52

 
ha

) 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 
on

 1
7/

03
/2

00
5 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

t(
s)

 th
us

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 th

e 
in

te
gr

ity
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

 is
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

th
e 

si
te

 m
ak

es
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 

fa
vo

ur
ab

le
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

st
at

us
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 q
ua

lif
yi

ng
 fe

at
ur

es
; a

nd
  

T
o 

en
su

re
 fo

r 
th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 
th

at
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 

th
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

:  
·  

E
xt

en
t o

f t
he

 h
ab

ita
t o

n 
si

te
  

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t w
ith

in
 

si
te

 
· 

S
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 fu

nc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

· 
P

ro
ce

ss
es

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 o
f 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

·  
V

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 a
s 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
·  

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 o

f 
ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 o
f t

he
 h

ab
ita

t 
  

D
eg

ra
de

d 
ra

is
ed

 
bo

g 
 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
N

o 
ch

an
ge

 
(2

2/
10

/2
00

8)
 

E
xt

en
si

ve
 

dr
ai

na
ge

 a
nd

 
cu

tti
ng

 o
ve

r 
of

 
th

e 
bo

g  
Lo

w
er

ed
 w

at
er

 
ta

bl
e 

Lo
ca

l l
os

s 
of

 b
og

 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

en
cr

oa
ch

m
en

t o
f 

op
en

 m
ire

 b
y 

sc
ru

b.
  

D
am

ag
e 

fr
om

 
m

ui
rb

ur
n,

 g
ra

zi
ng

 
an

d 
pr

os
pe

ct
in

g 
fo

r 
m

in
er

al
s 

(d
ia

to
m

ite
)  

  

A
ba

nd
on

m
en

t o
f p

as
t 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
re

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 a

 
th

re
at

. A
 fe

w
 m

aj
or

 
dr

ai
ns

 r
em

ai
n 

al
on

g 
th

e 
si

te
's

 m
ar

gi
ns

 a
nd

 in
 a

 
m

or
e 

ce
nt

ra
l p

ar
t o

f i
t, 

an
d 

al
th

ou
gh

 th
es

e 
ar

e 
no

 lo
ng

er
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d,
 

th
ey

 a
re

 s
til

l a
ct

iv
e.

 A
n 

on
go

in
g 

pr
ob

le
m

 o
n 

pa
rt

s 
of

 th
e 

si
te

 is
 s

cr
ub

 
en

cr
oa

ch
m

en
t. 

 
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
K

ey
 

Is
su

es
  

· 
E

ffe
ct

s 
on

 
hy

dr
ol

og
y 

· 
Lo

w
 w

at
er

 ta
bl

e 
· 

E
ro

si
on

 
· 

H
ab

ita
t l

os
s 

(b
og

) 
 

A
ct

iv
e 

ra
is

ed
 b

og
  

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
N

o 
ch

an
ge

 
(2

9/
10

/2
00

8)
 

 
   B

og
s.

 M
ar

sh
es

. 
W

at
er

 fr
in

ge
d 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
 F

en
s 

(8
0%

) 
H

ea
th

. 
S

cr
ub

. M
aq

ui
s 

an
d 

ga
rr

ig
ue

. 
P

hy
gr

an
a 

(1
0%

) 
B

ro
ad

-le
av

ed
 

de
ci

du
ou

s 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

(1
0%

) 
 

6.
 

D
in

n
et

 O
ak

w
o

o
d

 
S

A
C

 (
19

.7
3 

ha
) 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 o

n 
17

/0
3/

20
05

 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

t t
hu

s 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 

th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

th
e 

si
te

 m
ak

es
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 fa

vo
ur

ab
le

 

W
es

te
rn

 a
ci

di
c 

oa
k 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
F

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
M

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
(1

2/
07

/2
00

2)
 

  

N
on

-n
at

iv
e 

pl
an

tin
gs

 a
nd

 
in

va
si

ve
 s

hr
ub

s 
(R

ho
do

de
nd

ro
n)

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

to
 

co
lo

ni
sa

tio
n 

by
 n

on
-

na
tiv

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
T

he
re

 is
 g

en
er

al
 p

ub
lic

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 th

e 
si

te
 b

ut
 th

e 

Page 105



 
1

2
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

st
at

us
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

fe
at

ur
es

; a
nd

  
T

o 
en

su
re

 fo
r 

th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

t 
th

at
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 

th
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

:  
·  

E
xt

en
t o

f t
he

 h
ab

ita
t o

n 
si

te
 

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t w
ith

in
 

si
te

  
·  

S
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 fu

nc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

· 
P

ro
ce

ss
es

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 o
f 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

· 
V

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 a
s 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
· 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 o

f 
ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 o
f t

he
 h

ab
ita

t 
 

 B
ro

ad
-le

av
ed

 
de

ci
du

ou
s 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
(1

00
%

) 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 
cl

ea
re

d 
si

nc
e 

cr
ea

tin
g 

th
e 

re
se

rv
e 

in
 1

96
6.

  

cu
rr

en
t l

ow
 le

ve
ls

 o
f u

se
 

ar
e 

no
t t

ho
ug

ht
 to

 b
e 

da
m

ag
in

g 
to

 th
e 

w
oo

dl
an

d.
 

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

K
ey

 
Is

su
es

  
· 

D
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 
· 

H
ab

ita
t l

os
s 

 
· 

S
pr

ea
di

ng
 o

r 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 
no

n-
na

tiv
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

  

7.
 

M
o

rt
la

ch
 M

o
ss

 
S

A
C

 (
12

.0
2 

ha
) 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 o

n 
17

/0
3/

20
05

 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

t (
B

as
e-

ric
h 

fe
ns

) 
th

us
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 

si
te

 is
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
th

e 
si

te
 m

ak
es

 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

fa
vo

ur
ab

le
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

st
at

us
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 q
ua

lif
yi

ng
 

fe
at

ur
es

; a
nd

  
T

o 
en

su
re

 fo
r 

th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

t 
th

at
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 

th
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

:  
· 

E
xt

en
t o

f t
he

 h
ab

ita
t o

n 
si

te
  

·  
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t w
ith

in
 

si
te

  
·  

S
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 fu

nc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

· 
P

ro
ce

ss
es

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 o
f 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

B
as

e-
ric

h 
fe

ns
  

  

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(0
1/

09
/2

00
5)

 
  S

ite
 h

as
 B

og
s.

 
M

ar
sh

es
. W

at
er

 
fr

in
ge

d 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n.

 F
en

s 
(1

00
%

) 
 F

or
 A

lk
al

in
e 

fe
ns

, 
th

is
 is

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

to
 b

e 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

be
st

 a
re

as
 in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. 

S
ite

 c
on

ta
in

s 
se

lf-
so

w
n 

pi
ne

 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

co
ni

fe
rs

. N
o 

da
m

ag
e 

to
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
  

F
or

es
t E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
(F

E
) 

w
or

k 
to

 a
n 

ag
re

ed
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

la
n 

w
he

n 
un

de
rt

ak
in

g 
fo

re
st

ry
 

op
er

at
io

ns
 in

 th
e 

ca
tc

hm
en

t. 
F

el
lin

g 
Li

ce
nc

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 

gr
an

te
d.

  
  S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
K

ey
 

Is
su

es
  

· 
N

o 
is

su
es

 n
ow

 
   

Page 106



 
1

3
 

· 
V

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 a
s 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
· 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 o

f 
ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 o
f t

he
 h

ab
ita

t 
 

8.
 

R
ei

d
si

d
e 

M
o

ss
 

S
A

C
 (

87
.1

7 
ha

) 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 o
n 

17
/0

3/
20

05
 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

t(
s)

  t
hu

s 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 th

e 
in

te
gr

ity
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

 is
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

th
e 

si
te

 m
ak

es
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 

fa
vo

ur
ab

le
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

st
at

us
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 q
ua

lif
yi

ng
 fe

at
ur

es
; a

nd
  

T
o 

en
su

re
 fo

r 
th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 
th

at
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 

th
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

:  
· 

E
xt

en
t o

f t
he

 h
ab

ita
t o

n 
si

te
  

·  
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t w
ith

in
 

si
te

  
·  

S
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 fu

nc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

·  
P

ro
ce

ss
es

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 o
f 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

·  
V

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 a
s 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
· 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 o

f 
ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 o
f t

he
 h

ab
ita

t 

A
ct

iv
e 

ra
is

ed
 b

og
  

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
R

ec
ov

er
in

g 
 

(3
/8

/2
01

0)
 

F
ac

to
rs

 th
at

 
in

flu
en

ce
 th

e 
si

te
 

in
cl

ud
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

dr
ai

ns
, w

oo
dl

an
d 

en
cr

oa
ch

m
en

t, 
gr

az
in

g,
  

cu
lti

va
tio

n 
an

d 
af

fo
re

st
at

io
n  

. 

E
xi

st
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ag

re
em

en
t c

ov
er

in
g 

pa
rt

 
of

 th
e 

si
te

 th
at

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
af

fo
re

st
at

io
n,

 g
ra

zi
ng

 
an

d 
cu

lti
va

tio
n 

w
ill

 
ad

dr
es

s 
ke

y 
is

su
es

 
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
K

ey
 

Is
su

es
  

· 
E

ffe
ct

s 
on

 
hy

dr
ol

og
y 

· 
D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 

 

D
eg

ra
de

d 
ra

is
ed

 
bo

g 
 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
R

ec
ov

er
in

g 
(3

/8
/2

01
0)

 
 

  B
og

s.
 M

ar
sh

es
. 

W
at

er
 fr

in
ge

d 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n.

 F
en

s 
(6

5%
) 

H
ea

th
. 

S
cr

ub
. M

aq
ui

s 
an

d 
ga

rr
ig

ue
. 

P
hy

gr
an

a 
(2

5%
) 

H
um

id
 g

ra
ss

la
nd

. 
M

es
op

hi
le

 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

(1
0%

) 

9.
 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
 S

A
C

 
(2

44
6.

82
 h

a)
 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 o

n 
17

/0
3/

20
05

 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s 
 o

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 to
 th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

sp
ec

ie
s,

 th
us

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 

th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

th
e 

si
te

 m
ak

es
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 

A
tla

nt
ic

 s
al

m
on

 
(S

al
m

o 
sa

la
r)

 
(1

0/
09

/2
00

4)
 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(1
0/

09
/2

00
4)

 

S
ite

 is
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 

by
 h

ou
si

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

, 
w

at
er

 a
bs

tr
ac

tio
n 

an
d 

riv
er

 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g.
 T

he
 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
 In

te
gr

at
ed

 
C

at
ch

m
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
la

n 
is

 in
 p

la
ce

; T
he

re
 is

 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n 
be

st
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

fo
r 

riv
er

 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 
w

or
ks

.  

O
tte

r 
(L

ut
ra

 lu
tr

a)
 

(1
0/

09
/2

00
4)

 
F

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
M

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
(3

0/
09

/2
00

4)
 

Page 107



 
1

4
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 fa
vo

ur
ab

le
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

st
at

us
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

fe
at

ur
es

; a
nd

 T
o 

en
su

re
 fo

r 
th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

sp
ec

ie
s 

th
at

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

lo
ng

 
te

rm
:  

· 
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ra
ng

e 
of

 g
en

et
ic

 ty
pe

s 
fo

r 
sa

lm
on

, a
s 

a 
vi

ab
le

 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
  

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 
si

te
  

·  
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

an
d 

ex
te

nt
 o

f h
ab

ita
ts

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

 
·  

S
tr

uc
tu

re
, f

un
ct

io
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

of
 h

ab
ita

ts
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
 

· 
N

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

sp
ec

ie
s 

 
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
an

d 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 o

f 
fr

es
hw

at
er

 p
ea

rl 
m

us
se

l h
os

t 
sp

ec
ie

s 
 

· 
S

tr
uc

tu
re

, f
un

ct
io

n 
an

d 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
of

 h
ab

ita
ts

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

fr
es

hw
at

er
 p

ea
rl 

m
us

se
l h

os
t 

sp
ec

ie
s 

 

F
re

sh
w

at
er

 p
ea

rl 
m

us
se

l 
(M

ar
ga

rit
ife

ra
 

m
ar

ga
rit

ife
ra

) 
(0

7/
08

/2
00

3)
 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
N

o 
ch

an
ge

  
(0

7/
08

/2
00

3)
 

si
te

 is
 s

ub
je

ct
 is

 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l u
se

  
  S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
K

ey
 

Is
su

es
  

· 
H

ab
ita

t l
os

s 
 

· 
D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
  

· 
P

ot
en

tia
l 

R
ec

re
at

io
na

l 
im

pa
ct

 
· 

C
oa

st
al

 s
qu

ee
ze

 

10
. 

Y
th

an
 E

st
u

ar
y,

 
S

an
d

s 
o

f 
F

o
rv

ie
 

an
d

 M
ei

kl
e 

L
o

ch
 

S
P

A
  (

10
16

.2
4 

ha
) 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 

on
 3

0/
03

/1
99

8 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s 
or

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

to
 th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

sp
ec

ie
s,

 
th

us
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 

si
te

 is
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d;
 a

nd
 T

o 
en

su
re

 fo
r 

th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s 
th

at
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
lo

ng
 

te
rm

:  
· 

P
op

ul
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
as

 a
 

vi
ab

le
 c

om
po

ne
nt

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
  

Li
ttl

e 
te

rn
 

(S
te

rn
ul

a 
al

bi
fr

on
s)

, 
br

ee
di

ng
  

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

 
(2

9/
06

/2
00

8)
 

F
ac

to
rs

 th
at

 
in

flu
en

ce
 th

e 
si

te
 

in
cl

ud
e 

 to
ur

is
m

 / 
le

is
ur

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

, 
O

ns
ho

re
 W

in
d,

 
M

ic
ro

re
ne

w
ab

le
s,

 
O

th
er

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 

B
ur

ni
ng

 w
ill

 d
am

ag
e 

se
ns

iti
ve

 h
ab

ita
ts

 a
nd

 
sp

ec
ie

s.
 T

er
n 

co
lo

ni
es

 
ar

e 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 to
 o

ut
 

da
m

ag
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e.

 
T

er
n 

br
ee

di
ng

 is
 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 to

 p
re

da
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
pe

rio
di

c 
ov

er
to

pp
in

g 
of

 th
e 

S
an

dw
ic

h 
te

rn
 

(S
te

rn
a 

sa
nd

vi
ce

ns
is

),
 

br
ee

di
ng

 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

  
(3

1/
07

/2
00

8)
 

La
pw

in
g 

(V
an

el
lu

s 
F

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
M

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
 

Page 108



 
1

5
 

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 
si

te
  

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

an
d 

ex
te

nt
 o

f h
ab

ita
ts

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

 
· 

S
tr

uc
tu

re
, f

un
ct

io
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

of
 h

ab
ita

ts
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
 

· 
N

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

sp
ec

ie
s 

 

va
ne

llu
s)

, n
on

-
br

ee
di

ng
 

(0
2/

09
/2

00
7)

 
fa

vo
ur

ed
 s

hi
ng

le
 b

ed
s 

by
 

sa
nd

.  
S

ho
ot

in
g 

of
 g

ee
se

 
is

 n
ot

 th
ou

gh
 a

s 
an

 
is

su
e.

 E
ffe

ct
s 

of
 

eu
tr

op
hi

ca
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

es
tu

ar
y 

an
d 

its
 fl

or
a 

an
d 

fa
un

a.
 In

ve
rt

eb
ra

te
s,

  
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 th
e 

pr
ey

 o
f 

w
at

er
fo

w
l, 

ar
e 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 

to
 b

ui
ld

 u
p 

of
 a

lg
al

 m
at

s 
 

  F
ox

 c
on

tr
ol

 m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
by

e 
la

w
s 

ar
e 

th
ou

gh
 

to
 b

e 
he

lp
in

g 
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

K
ey

 
Is

su
es

 
· 

D
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 
· 

P
re

da
tio

n 
· 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l 

im
pa

ct
s 

· 
eu

tr
op

hi
ca

tio
n 

 

E
id

er
 (

S
om

at
er

ia
 

m
ol

lis
si

m
a)

, n
on

-
br

ee
di

ng
 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

  
(3

1/
01

/2
00

2)
 

R
ed

sh
an

k 
(T

rin
ga

 to
ta

nu
s)

, 
no

n-
br

ee
di

ng
 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

 
(3

1/
01

/2
00

2)
 

C
om

m
on

 te
rn

 
(S

te
rn

a 
hi

ru
nd

o)
, 

br
ee

di
ng

 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
D

ec
lin

in
g 

(3
0/

06
/2

00
2)

 
P

in
k-

fo
ot

ed
 

go
os

e 
(A

ns
er

 
br

ac
hy

rh
yn

ch
us

),
 

no
n-

br
ee

di
ng

 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

 
(3

1/
10

/2
00

2)
 

W
at

er
fo

w
l 

as
se

m
bl

ag
e,

 
no

n-
br

ee
di

ng
 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

  
(3

1/
01

/1
99

9)
 

 
 

Page 109



 
1

6
 

11
. 

S
an

d
s 

o
f 

F
o

rv
ie

 
S

A
C

 (
73

4.
02

 h
a)

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 o
n 

17
/0

3/
20

05
 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

ts
  t

hu
s 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
th

e 
si

te
 m

ak
es

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
fa

vo
ur

ab
le

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
st

at
us

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 
fe

at
ur

es
; a

nd
  

T
o 

en
su

re
 fo

r 
th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 
th

at
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 

th
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

:  
· 

E
xt

en
t o

f t
he

 h
ab

ita
t o

n 
si

te
  

·  
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t w
ith

in
 

si
te

  
·  

S
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 fu

nc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

·  
P

ro
ce

ss
es

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 o
f 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

· 
V

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 a
s 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
· 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 o

f 
ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 o
f t

he
 h

ab
ita

t 
 

S
hi

fti
ng

 d
un

es
  

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(2
8/

09
/2

00
0)

 

F
ac

to
rs

 th
at

 
in

flu
en

ce
 th

e 
si

te
 

in
cl

ud
e 

 tr
un

k 
ro

ad
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 

T
hi

s 
is

 h
ig

hl
y 

ac
tiv

e 
an

d 
m

ob
ile

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
fr

in
ge

 
bu

t t
he

 o
ld

er
 d

un
es

 h
av

e 
st

ab
ili

se
d 

an
d 

la
rg

el
y 

su
pp

or
t h

ea
th

la
nd

 a
nd

 
gr

as
sl

an
d.

 V
er

y 
lit

tle
 

ac
tiv

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t i
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t. 

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

K
ey

 Is
su

es
 

· 
N

o 
se

rio
us

 is
su

e 
 

Li
m

e-
de

fic
ie

nt
 

du
ne

 h
ea

th
la

nd
 

w
ith

 c
ro

w
be

rr
y 

 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(2
8/

09
/2

00
0)

 

S
hi

fti
ng

 d
un

es
 

w
ith

 m
ar

ra
m

  

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(2
8/

09
/2

00
0)

 

H
um

id
 d

un
e 

sl
ac

ks
  

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(2
8/

09
/2

00
0)

 
 

   

12
. 

T
u

rc
lo

ss
ie

 M
o

ss
 

S
A

C
 (

62
.7

7 
ha

) 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 o
n 

17
/0

3/
20

05
 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 th

us
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
th

e 
si

te
 m

ak
es

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
fa

vo
ur

ab
le

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 

D
eg

ra
de

d 
ra

is
ed

 
bo

g  
F

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
M

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
(3

0/
06

/2
00

1)
 

F
ac

to
rs

 th
at

 
in

flu
en

ce
 th

e 
si

te
 

in
cl

ud
e 

pa
st

 c
ut

-
ov

er
 b

og
 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 

lo
w

er
ed

 w
at

er
 

 A
t p

re
se

nt
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 

da
m

ag
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 b

ei
ng

 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t o
n 

th
e 

si
te

. A
 

hy
dr

ol
og

ic
al

 s
tu

dy
 w

ill
 

in
fo

rm
 th

e 
re

st
or

at
io

n 

A
ct

iv
e 

ra
is

ed
 b

og
 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(3
0/

06
/2

00
1)

 

Page 110



 
1

7
 

st
at

us
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 q
ua

lif
yi

ng
 

fe
at

ur
es

; a
nd

 T
o 

en
su

re
 fo

r 
th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 th
at

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

:  
· 

E
xt

en
t o

f t
he

 h
ab

ita
t o

n 
si

te
  

·  
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t w
ith

in
 

si
te

  
·  

S
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 fu

nc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

· 
P

ro
ce

ss
es

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 o
f 

th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

· 
V

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 a
s 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
· 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 o

f 
ty

pi
ca

l s
pe

ci
es

 o
f t

he
 h

ab
ita

t 

 
   B

og
s.

 M
ar

sh
es

. 
W

at
er

 fr
in

ge
d 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
 F

en
s 

(9
2%

) 
H

ea
th

. 
S

cr
ub

. M
aq

ui
s 

an
d 

ga
rr

ig
ue

. P
hy

gr
an

a 
(5

%
) 

B
ro

ad
-le

av
ed

 
de

ci
du

ou
s 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
(3

%
) 

ta
bl

e.
 T

ur
cl

os
si

e 
M

os
s 

is
 a

 
re

m
na

nt
 o

f a
 

m
uc

h 
la

rg
er

 
pe

at
la

nd
. S

oi
l 

an
d 

ge
ol

og
y 

is
 

ac
id

ic
, n

ut
rie

nt
-

po
or

, p
ea

t  

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
hi

s 
si

te
. 

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

K
ey

 Is
su

es
 

· 
H

yd
ro

lo
gi

ca
l 

ef
fe

ct
s 

(lo
w

er
ed

 
w

at
er

 ta
bl

e)
 

· 
P

ot
en

tia
l 

di
m

in
is

hi
ng

 
ca

rb
on

 s
in

k 
fr

om
 

lo
ss

 o
f p

ea
tla

nd
 

13
. 

F
o

w
ls

h
eu

g
h

 S
P

A
 

(1
30

3.
54

 h
a)

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 o
n 

31
/0

8/
19

92
 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 o
f t

he
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 s
pe

ci
es

 o
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 to

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s,
 th

us
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d;
 a

nd
 T

o 
en

su
re

 fo
r 

th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s 
th

at
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
:  

· 
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

as
 a

 
vi

ab
le

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

  
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 

si
te

  
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
an

d 
ex

te
nt

 o
f 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

 
· 

S
tr

uc
tu

re
, f

un
ct

io
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

of
 h

ab
ita

ts
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
 

·  
N

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

sp
ec

ie
s 

R
az

or
bi

ll 
(A

lc
a 

to
rd

a)
, b

re
ed

in
g 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(1
1/

06
/1

99
9)

 

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
fo

r 
of

f -
sh

or
e 

W
in

d,
 a

nd
  

to
ur

is
m

 / 
le

is
ur

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
th

re
at

s  
to

 th
e 

in
te

re
st

 a
t 

pr
es

en
t. 

T
he

 s
ite

 is
 

m
an

ag
ed

 a
s 

a 
na

tu
re

 
re

se
rv

e 
by

 th
e 

pr
es

en
t 

ow
ne

rs
, t

he
 R

S
P

B
, w

ho
 

ha
ve

 u
pg

ra
de

d 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
fo

ot
pa

th
 w

hi
ch

 r
un

s 
al

on
g 

th
e 

cl
iff

to
p 

fo
r 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f v
is

ito
rs

 to
 th

e 
co

lo
ny

, a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
bo

ar
ds

.  
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
K

ey
 Is

su
es

 
· 

P
ot

en
tia

l t
ou

ris
m

 
im

pa
ct

s 

K
itt

iw
ak

e 
(R

is
sa

 
tr

id
ac

ty
la

),
 

br
ee

di
ng

 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(1
1/

06
/1

99
9)

 
G

ui
lle

m
ot

 (
U

ria
 

aa
lg

e)
, b

re
ed

in
g 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(1
1/

06
/1

99
9)

 
F

ul
m

ar
 

(F
ul

m
ar

us
 

gl
ac

ia
lis

),
 

br
ee

di
ng

 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(1
8/

06
/1

99
9)

 

H
er

rin
g 

gu
ll 

(L
ar

us
 

ar
ge

nt
at

us
),

 
br

ee
di

ng
 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
D

ec
lin

in
g 

(1
8/

16
/1

99
9)

 

S
ea

bi
rd

 
as

se
m

bl
ag

e,
 

br
ee

di
ng

 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(1
8/

06
/1

99
9)

 

Page 111



 
1

8
 

 
 

 99
.6

%
 (

M
ar

in
e)

 
0.

04
%

 (
C

oa
st

al
 

N
or

th
-e

as
t 

S
co

tla
nd

) 
 

14
. 

L
o

ch
 o

f 
S

ke
n

e 
S

P
A

/R
A

M
S

A
R

 
(1

20
.8

9 
ha

) 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 o
n 

01
/1

0/
19

86
 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 o
f t

he
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 s
pe

ci
es

 o
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 to

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s,
 th

us
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d;
 a

nd
  

T
o 

en
su

re
 fo

r 
th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

sp
ec

ie
s 

th
at

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 
th

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
:  

·  
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

as
 a

 
vi

ab
le

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

  
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 

si
te

  
·  

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
an

d 
ex

te
nt

 o
f 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

 
· 

S
tr

uc
tu

re
, f

un
ct

io
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

of
 h

ab
ita

ts
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
 

·  
N

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

sp
ec

ie
s 

 

G
re

yl
ag

 g
oo

se
 

(A
ns

er
 a

ns
er

),
 

no
n-

br
ee

di
ng

 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
D

ec
lin

in
g 

(0
1/

11
/2

00
8)

 

T
he

 s
ite

 h
as

 
be

en
 s

ub
je

ct
 o

f 
on

sh
or

e 
w

in
d 

an
d 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. 
Lo

ck
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 
sa

ili
ng

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
, 

sp
or

ts
 fi

sh
in

g 
an

d 
w

ild
fo

w
lin

g.
 

H
yp

er
tr

op
hi

ca
tio

n 
fr

om
 s

ew
er

ag
e 

an
d 

ag
ric

ul
tu

re
  

S
P

A
 is

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

as
 

hy
pe

rt
ro

ph
ic

at
io

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 a

lg
al

 b
lo

om
 

w
hi

ch
 in

 tu
rn

 a
ffe

ct
s 

aq
ua

tic
 fl

or
a 

an
d 

fa
un

a 
an

d 
re

du
ce

s 
fo

od
 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

to
 th

e 
S

P
A

 
in

te
re

st
.  

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

K
ey

 Is
su

es
 

· 
H

yp
er

to
rp

hi
ca

l &
 

po
llu

tio
n 

 
· 

P
ot

en
tia

l 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
fr

om
 

si
te

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

15
. 

L
o

ch
 o

f 
S

tr
at

h
b

eg
 

S
P

A
/R

A
M

S
A

R
 

(6
15

.9
4 

ha
) 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 o

n 
27

/1
1/

19
95

 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 o
f t

he
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 s
pe

ci
es

  o
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 to

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s,
 th

us
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d;
 a

nd
 T

o 
en

su
re

 fo
r 

th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s 
th

at
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
:  

· 
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

as
 a

 
vi

ab
le

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

  

S
an

dw
ic

h 
te

rn
 

(S
te

rn
a 

sa
nd

vi
ce

ns
is

),
 

br
ee

di
ng

 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
D

ec
lin

in
g 

(3
1/

07
/2

00
4)

 

C
on

fli
ct

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
ge

es
e 

w
hi

ch
 

ro
os

t o
n 

th
e 

lo
ch

 
an

d 
th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
fa

rm
s 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 

fe
ed

.  
S

ho
ot

in
g 

fr
om

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 la

nd
 o

f 
bi

rd
s 

le
av

es
 th

e 
ro

os
t i

n 

R
oy

al
 S

oc
ie

ty
 fo

r 
th

e 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 B
ird

s 
(R

S
P

B
) 

is
 m

an
ag

in
g 

to
 

re
du

ce
 c

on
fli

ct
s 

an
d 

vu
ln

er
ab

ili
tie

s.
 F

or
 

ex
am

pl
e 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

is
 

be
in

g 
re

gu
la

te
d 

by
 

R
S

P
B

's
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

of
 

so
m

e 
of

 th
e 

sh
oo

tin
g 

rig
ht

s 
an

d 
by

 li
ce

ns
in

g.
 

S
N

H
 h

av
e 

pi
lo

te
d 

a 
Lo

ch
 

P
in

k-
fo

ot
ed

 
go

os
e 

(A
ns

er
 

br
ac

hy
rh

yn
ch

us
),

 
no

n-
br

ee
di

ng
 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(3
1/

08
/2

00
1)

 

W
at

er
fo

w
l 

as
se

m
bl

ag
e,

 
no

n-
br

ee
di

ng
 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(3
1/

08
/2

00
1)

 

Page 112



 
1

9
 

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 
si

te
  

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

an
d 

ex
te

nt
 o

f 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
 

· 
S

tr
uc

tu
re

, f
un

ct
io

n 
an

d 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
of

 h
ab

ita
ts

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

 
· 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 
sp

ec
ie

s 
 

W
ho

op
er

 s
w

an
 

(C
yg

nu
s 

cy
gn

us
),

 n
on

-
br

ee
di

ng
 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(3
1/

08
/2

00
1)

 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e.

  
of

 S
tr

at
hb

eg
 G

oo
se

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
S

ch
em

e 
to

 a
lle

vi
at

e 
th

e 
co

nf
lic

t b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e  
ge

es
e 

fa
rm

in
g 

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

K
ey

 Is
su

es
 

· 
D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
  

· 
C

on
fli

ct
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ro
os

tin
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
an

d 
fa

rm
in

g 

T
ea

l (
A

na
s 

cr
ec

ca
),

 n
on

-
br

ee
di

ng
 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(3
1/

08
/2

00
1)

 
S

va
lb

ar
d 

B
ar

na
cl

e 
go

os
e 

(B
ra

nt
a 

le
uc

op
si

s)
, n

on
-

br
ee

di
ng

 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(3
1/

08
/2

00
1)

 

G
re

yl
ag

 g
oo

se
 

(A
ns

er
 a

ns
er

),
 

no
n-

br
ee

di
ng

 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
D

ec
lin

in
g 

(3
1/

08
/2

00
1)

 
     

 

16
. 

T
ip

s 
o

f 
C

o
rs

em
au

l a
n

d
 

T
o

m
 M

o
r 

S
P

A
 

(8
3.

71
 h

a 
) 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 o

n 
15

/1
2/

20
00

 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 o
f t

he
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 s
pe

ci
es

  o
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 to

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s,
 th

us
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d;
 a

nd
  T

o 
en

su
re

 fo
r 

th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s 
th

at
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
:  

· 
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

as
 a

 
vi

ab
le

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

  
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 

si
te

  
·  

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
an

d 
ex

te
nt

 o
f 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

 
· 

S
tr

uc
tu

re
, f

un
ct

io
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

of
 h

ab
ita

ts
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
 

C
om

m
on

 g
ul

l 
(L

ar
us

 c
an

us
),

 
br

ee
di

ng
 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
N

o 
C

ha
ng

e 
 

(2
2/

05
/2

00
8)

 

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
fo

r 
of

f-
sh

or
e 

W
in

d,
 a

nd
  

ho
us

in
g 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

T
he

 s
ite

 is
 

m
an

ag
ed

 a
s 

a 
gr

ou
se

 m
oo

r 
an

d 
as

 r
ou

gh
 g

ra
zi

ng
 

fo
r 

sh
ee

p.
  

 . 

C
om

m
on

 g
ul

ls
 a

re
 

vu
ln

er
ab

ili
ty

 to
 p

re
da

tio
n 

fr
om

 c
ro

w
s 

an
d 

fo
xe

s 
as

 
w

el
l a

s 
fr

om
 r

ot
at

io
na

l 
m

ui
rb

ur
n 

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

K
ey

 Is
su

es
 

· 
P

re
da

tio
n 

· 
D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 

Page 113



 
2

0
 

· 
N

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

sp
ec

ie
s 

 
17

. 
T

ro
u

p
, P

en
n

an
 

an
d

 L
io

n
's

 
H

ea
d

s 
S

P
A

 
(3

36
7.

21
 h

a)
 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 o

n 
14

/0
3/

19
97

 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 o
f t

he
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 s
pe

ci
es

 o
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 to

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s,
 th

us
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d;
 a

nd
  

T
o 

en
su

re
 fo

r 
th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

sp
ec

ie
s 

th
at

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 
th

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
:  

·  
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

as
 a

 
vi

ab
le

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

  
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 

si
te

  
·  

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
an

d 
ex

te
nt

 o
f 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

 
· 

S
tr

uc
tu

re
, f

un
ct

io
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

of
 h

ab
ita

ts
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
 

·  
N

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

sp
ec

ie
s 

    

H
er

rin
g 

gu
ll 

(L
ar

us
 

ar
ge

nt
at

us
),

 
br

ee
di

ng
 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
N

o 
ch

an
ge

  
(0

3/
07

/2
00

7)
 

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
of

f-
sh

or
e 

W
in

d 
on

-s
ho

re
 w

in
d,

 
m

ar
in

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
, 

el
ec

tr
ic

ity
 (

ex
c.

 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 
en

er
gy

 c
as

es
) 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 

an
d 

w
at

er
 

ab
st

ra
ct

io
n 

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
th

re
at

s 
to

 th
e 

in
te

re
st

 a
t 

pr
es

en
t. 

S
N

H
 is

 e
ng

ag
ed

 
in

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

se
ab

ird
 

po
pu

la
tio

ns
, a

nd
 is

 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
ity

, a
nd

 o
w

ne
rs

 
an

d 
oc

cu
pi

er
s,

 to
 a

gr
ee

 
an

 a
cc

es
s 

po
lic

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
si

te
.  

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

K
ey

 Is
su

es
 

· 
P

ot
en

tia
l 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

fr
om

 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

 

R
az

or
bi

ll 
(A

lc
a 

to
rd

a)
, b

re
ed

in
g 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
D

ec
lin

in
g 

(0
3/

07
/2

00
7)

 
K

itt
iw

ak
e 

(R
is

sa
 

tr
id

ac
ty

la
),

 
br

ee
di

ng
 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
N

o 
ch

an
ge

 
(0

3/
07

/2
00

7)
 

S
ea

bi
rd

 
as

se
m

bl
ag

e,
 

br
ee

di
ng

 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
D

ec
lin

in
g 

(0
3/

07
/2

00
7)

 
G

ui
lle

m
ot

 (
U

ria
 

aa
lg

e)
, b

re
ed

in
g 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
D

ec
lin

in
g 

(0
3/

07
/2

00
7)

 
F

ul
m

ar
 (

F
ul

m
ar

us
 

gl
ac

ia
lis

),
 

br
ee

di
ng

 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
D

ec
lin

in
g 

(0
3/

07
/2

00
7)

 
 

 

18
. 

M
o

rv
en

 a
n

d
 

M
u

lla
ch

d
u

b
h

 
S

A
C

 (
91

6.
76

 h
a)

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 o
n 

17
/0

3/
20

05
 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

t t
hu

s 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 

th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

th
e 

si
te

 m
ak

es
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 fa

vo
ur

ab
le

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
st

at
us

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
fe

at
ur

es
; a

nd
 T

o 
en

su
re

 
fo

r 
th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

ha
bi

ta
t t

ha
t t

he
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

lo
ng

 
te

rm
:  

Ju
ni

pe
r 

on
 h

ea
th

s 
or

 c
al

ca
re

ou
s 

gr
as

sl
an

ds
 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(2
5/

01
/2

00
5)

 
     B

og
s.

 M
ar

sh
es

. 
W

at
er

 fr
in

ge
d 

M
or

ve
n,

 a
n 

ou
tly

in
g 

su
m

m
it 

of
 th

e 
ea

st
er

n 
H

ig
hl

an
ds

, h
as

 
ex

te
ns

iv
e 

ju
ni

pe
r 

sc
ru

b 
on

 th
e 

m
id

dl
e 

an
d 

lo
w

er
 

sl
op

es
. T

he
 u

se
 

of
 th

e 
la

nd
 fo

r 
su

m
m

er
 g

ra
zi

ng
 

N
o 

kn
ow

n 
vu

ln
er

ab
ili

ty
  

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

K
ey

 Is
su

es
 

· 
N

o 
is

su
e 

Page 114



 
2

1
 

· 
E

xt
en

t o
f t

he
 h

ab
ita

t o
n 

si
te

  
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t w

ith
in

 
si

te
  

· 
S

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 fu
nc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
·  

P
ro

ce
ss

es
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 o

f 
th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
· 

V
ia

bi
lit

y 
of

 ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 a

s 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

· 
N

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 o
f 

ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 o

f t
he

 h
ab

ita
t 

 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n.
 F

en
s 

(1
%

) 
H

ea
th

. 
S

cr
ub

. M
aq

ui
s 

an
d 

ga
rr

ig
ue

. 
P

hy
gr

an
a 

(6
2%

) 
D

ry
 g

ra
ss

la
nd

. 
S

te
pp

es
 (

28
%

) 
H

um
id

 
gr

as
sl

an
d.

 
M

es
op

hi
le

 
gr

as
sl

an
d 

(7
%

) 
C

on
ife

ro
us

 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

(2
%

) 
 

by
 s

he
ep

 a
nd

 
ca

ttl
e 

an
d 

by
 a

 
la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

m
ou

nt
ai

n 
ha

re
s 

is
 

co
m

pa
tib

le
 w

ith
 

th
e 

si
te

 in
te

re
st

, 
as

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

d 
by

 g
ra

du
al

 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ju

ni
pe

r 
sc

ru
b.

 

19
. 

M
u

ir
 o

f 
D

in
n

et
 

S
A

C
/R

A
M

S
A

R
 

(4
15

.8
1 

ha
) 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 o

n 
17

/0
3/

20
05

 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 th

us
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
th

e 
si

te
 m

ak
es

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
fa

vo
ur

ab
le

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
st

at
us

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 
fe

at
ur

es
; a

nd
 T

o 
en

su
re

 fo
r 

th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 th

at
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
:  

· 
E

xt
en

t o
f t

he
 h

ab
ita

t o
n 

si
te

  
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t w

ith
in

 
si

te
  

· 
S

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 fu
nc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
· 

P
ro

ce
ss

es
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 o

f 
th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
· 

V
ia

bi
lit

y 
of

 ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 a

s 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

·  
N

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 o
f 

ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 o

f t
he

 h
ab

ita
t 

O
tte

r 
(L

ut
ra

 lu
tr

a)
 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

D
ec

lin
in

g 
(1

3/
07

/2
01

0)
 

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 h
ad

 
be

en
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

fo
r 

el
ec

tr
ic

ity
 (

ex
c.

 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 
en

er
gy

 c
as

es
) 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
. 

T
he

 m
oo

rla
nd

 is
 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 to

 c
ol

on
is

at
io

n 
fr

om
 a

dj
ac

en
t w

oo
dl

an
d.

 
P

ea
t g

ro
w

th
 c

an
 b

e 
im

pe
de

d 
by

 o
pe

n 
di

tc
h 

an
d 

dr
ai

ns
 

Lo
ch

 D
av

an
 is

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

to
 e

ut
ro

ph
ic

at
io

n.
  

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

K
ey

 Is
su

es
 

· 
P

ot
en

tia
l 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l 

im
pa

ct
s 

 
· 

E
ut

ro
ph

ic
at

io
n 

· 
C

ol
on

is
at

io
n 

by
 

ot
he

r 
pl

an
ts

 

V
er

y 
w

et
 m

ire
s 

of
te

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 

an
 u

ns
ta

bl
e 

'q
ua

ki
ng

' s
ur

fa
ce

 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
D

ec
lin

in
g  

(3
0/

08
/2

00
8)

 

C
le

ar
-w

at
er

 la
ke

s 
or

 lo
ch

s 
w

ith
 

aq
ua

tic
 v

eg
et

at
io

n 
an

d 
po

or
 to

 
m

od
er

at
e 

nu
tr

ie
nt

 
le

ve
ls

 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d  

(2
5/

06
/2

00
4)

 

D
ry

 h
ea

th
s 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

D
ec

lin
in

g  
(1

6/
02

/2
00

1)
 

D
eg

ra
de

d 
ra

is
ed

 
bo

g 
F

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
M

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
(3

0/
06

/2
00

0)
 

 
 

Page 115



 
2

2
 

 

20
. 

M
o

ra
y 

F
ir

th
 S

A
C

 
(1

51
34

7.
17

 h
a)

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 o
n 

17
/0

3/
20

05
 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

t t
hu

s  
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 

th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

th
e 

si
te

 m
ak

es
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 fa

vo
ur

ab
le

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
st

at
us

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
fe

at
ur

es
; a

nd
 T

o 
en

su
re

 
fo

r 
th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

ha
bi

ta
t t

ha
t t

he
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

lo
ng

 
te

rm
:  

· 
E

xt
en

t o
f t

he
 h

ab
ita

t o
n 

si
te

  
·  

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t w

ith
in

 
si

te
  

·  
S

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 fu
nc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
·  

P
ro

ce
ss

es
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
·  

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 o

f 
th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
·  

V
ia

bi
lit

y 
of

 ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 a

s 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t  

·  
N

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 o
f 

ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 o

f t
he

 h
ab

ita
t 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 o
f t

he
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 s
pe

ci
es

 o
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 to

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s,
 th

us
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 is

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
th

e 
si

te
 m

ak
es

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
fa

vo
ur

ab
le

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
st

at
us

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 
fe

at
ur

es
; a

nd
 T

o 
en

su
re

 fo
r 

th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
sp

ec
ie

s 
th

at
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

S
ub

tid
al

 
sa

nd
ba

nk
s  

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(1
2/

08
/2

00
4)

 

D
ol

ph
in

 W
at

ch
in

g 
N

ee
d 

to
 r

es
to

re
 

bo
ttl

en
os

e 
do

lp
hi

n 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

at
 a

 
vi

ab
le

 le
ve

l  

T
he

 s
pe

ci
es

 a
re

 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 to
 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e,

 h
ar

as
sm

en
t, 

co
nt

am
in

at
io

n,
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 fo

od
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y,
 

tr
au

m
at

ic
 d

ea
th

 a
nd

 
in

ju
ry

  
  A

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 

us
ed

 fo
r 

do
lp

hi
n-

w
at

ch
in

g 
cr

ui
se

 b
oa

ts
. 

T
he

re
 a

re
 c

od
es

 o
f 

co
nd

uc
t f

or
 r

ec
re

at
io

na
l 

pl
ea

su
re

 c
ra

ft.
 A

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r 
du

m
pi

ng
 a

nd
 

dr
ed

gi
ng

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 is

 a
ls

o 
be

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

es
e 

ve
ry

 
lo

ca
lis

ed
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 th
e 

co
as

tli
ne

. 
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
K

ey
 Is

su
es

 
· 

D
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 
· 

H
ar

as
sm

en
t, 

 
· 

C
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n 

· 
In

ju
ry

 
· 

P
ot

en
tia

l 
po

ac
hi

ng
 

· 
R

ec
re

at
io

na
l 

im
pa

ct
 

 

B
ot

tle
no

se
 d

ol
ph

in
 

(T
ur

si
op

s 
tr

un
ca

tu
s)

 

U
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
R

ec
ov

er
in

g 
(3

1/
03

/2
00

5)
 

 
 

Page 116



 
2

3
 

ar
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

th
en

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 

th
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

:  
· 

P
op

ul
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
as

 a
 

vi
ab

le
 c

om
po

ne
nt

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
  

· 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 
si

te
  

·  
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

an
d 

ex
te

nt
 o

f 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
 

· 
S

tr
uc

tu
re

, f
un

ct
io

n 
an

d 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
of

 h
ab

ita
ts

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

 
· 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 
sp

ec
ie

s 
 

 
21

. 
G

le
n

 T
an

ar
 

S
A

C
/R

A
M

S
A

R
 

(4
18

0.
09

 h
a)

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
on

 
17

/0
3/

20
05

 
 

T
o 

av
oi

d 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 (

lis
te

d 
be

lo
w

) 
th

us
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f 

th
e 

si
te

 is
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
th

e 
si

te
 

m
ak

es
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 fa

vo
ur

ab
le

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
st

at
us

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
  

qu
al

ify
in

g 
fe

at
ur

es
; a

nd
 T

o 
en

su
re

 
fo

r 
th

e 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 th
at

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

 
lo

ng
 te

rm
:  

·  
 E

xt
en

t o
f t

he
 h

ab
ita

t o
n 

si
te

 
·  

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t w

ith
in

 
si

te
  

·  
S

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 fu
nc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
·  

P
ro

ce
ss

es
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t 
· 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 o

f 
th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t  
·  

V
ia

bi
lit

y 
of

 ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 a

s 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

· 
N

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 o
f 

C
al

ed
on

ia
n 

fo
re

st
 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(0
8/

04
/2

01
0)

 

S
ite

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

fe
lli

ng
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
P

os
iti

ve
ly

 s
tr

ic
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

w
ith

ou
t 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

an
d 

lo
w

-in
te

ns
ity

 
si

lv
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

m
et

ho
ds

 a
nd

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

ha
s 

af
fe

ct
ed

 th
e 

fa
vo

ur
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e 

si
te

 
  

T
he

 m
ai

n 
is

su
es

 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

gr
az

in
g,

 s
tr

ik
es

 b
y 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
gr

ou
se

 a
nd

 
ris

k 
of

 a
cc

id
en

ta
l f

ire
. 

 S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

K
ey

 Is
su

es
 

· 
D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 

· 
In

ju
ry

 
· 

A
cc

id
en

ta
l f

ire
 

 

W
et

 h
ea

th
la

nd
 w

ith
 

cr
os

s -
le

av
ed

 h
ea

th
 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d  

(2
1/

11
/2

00
9)

 
O

tte
r 

(L
ut

ra
 lu

tr
a)

 
F

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
M

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
(3

0/
09

/2
00

4)
 

D
ry

 h
ea

th
s 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d  

(2
3/

10
/2

00
3)

 
B

la
nk

et
 b

og
 

F
av

ou
ra

bl
e 

M
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

(3
1/

10
/2

00
3)

 
   

Page 117



 
2

4
 

ty
pi

ca
l s

pe
ci

es
 o

f  
th

e 
ha

bi
ta

t 

Page 118



 
2

5
 

4 
S

cr
ee

n
in

g
 

 
 T

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f 
th

is
 s

cr
ee

ni
ng

 is
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 a
ny

 p
ar

t o
f 

th
e 

S
D

P
, e

ith
er

 in
di

vi
du

al
ly

 o
r 

in
 c

om
bi

na
tio

n 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 p
la

ns
 o

r 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 i

s 
lik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
N

at
ur

a 
20

00
 s

ite
s 

lis
te

d 
in

 T
ab

le
 3

.2
 a

bo
ve

. 
In

 d
oi

ng
 s

o,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 t

he
 p

la
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

a 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

si
te

s,
 e

ith
er

 a
lo

ne
 o

r 
in

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

w
ith

 
ot

he
r 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 t

he
 s

am
e 

pl
an

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
pl

an
s 

or
 p

ro
je

ct
s,

 s
o 

th
at

 t
he

y 
ca

n 
be

 e
lim

in
at

ed
 f

ro
m

 f
ur

th
er

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n.
 I

n 
T

ab
le

 4
.1

, 
w

e 
ha

ve
 s

cr
ee

ne
d 

ou
t p

ar
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

pl
an

 o
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 t
he

 c
rit

er
ia

 li
st

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

4.
1 

be
lo

w
. 

N
ex

t 
in

 T
ab

le
 4

.2
 a

nd
 T

ab
le

 4
.3

, 
w

e 
ha

ve
 s

cr
ee

ne
d 

th
e 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 t

he
 p

la
n 

w
e 

co
ul

d 
no

t 
sc

re
en

 o
ut

 t
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e

ir 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 E
ur

op
ea

n 
si

te
s.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 t
he

n 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 i
n-

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

ef
fe

ct
s 

in
 S

ec
tio

ns
 4

.4
-4

.7
. 

W
he

re
 l

ik
el

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
ru

le
d 

ou
t 

by
 t

he
 

sc
re

en
in

g 
ex

er
ci

se
, 

w
e 

ha
ve

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

so
m

e 
st

ra
ig

ht
fo

rw
ar

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 e
lim

in
at

e 
ris

ks
 o

f 
lik

el
y 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s 
(S

ee
 S

ec
tio

n 
4.

5)
.  

 4.
1 

S
cr

ee
n

in
g

 a
s 

p
ar

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
S

D
P

 
 W

e 
ha

ve
 s

cr
ee

ne
d 

ou
t a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f t
he

 p
la

n 
on

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

: 
· 

ge
ne

ra
l p

ol
ic

y 
st

at
em

en
ts

; 
· 

in
ab

ili
ty

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 a
ny

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 E

ur
op

ea
n 

si
te

 b
ec

au
se

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 is
 to

o 
ge

ne
ra

l; 
· 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 in
, b

ut
 n

ot
 p

ro
po

se
d 

by
 th

e 
S

D
P

; 
· 

pa
rt

s 
of

 th
e 

S
D

P
 th

at
 a

re
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 th
e 

na
tu

ra
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t, 
· 

pa
rt

s 
of

 th
e 

S
D

P
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 n
ot

 in
 th

em
se

lv
es

 le
ad

 to
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

r 
ot

he
r 

ch
an

ge
; 

· 
pa

rt
s 

of
 t

he
 S

D
P

 w
hi

ch
 m

ak
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
ch

an
ge

 b
ut

 w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
no

 c
on

ce
iv

ab
le

 e
ffe

ct
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f 
th

e 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 a
 

lin
k 

or
 p

at
hw

ay
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

pl
an

 a
nd

 E
ur

op
ea

n 
si

te
s;

 
· 

pa
rt

s 
of

 t
he

 S
D

P
 w

hi
ch

 m
ak

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r 

ch
an

ge
 b

ut
 c

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
no

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

ef
fe

ct
 a

s 
th

ei
r 

ef
fe

ct
s 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 m
in

im
al

; 
an

d 
· 

pa
rt

s 
 o

f 
a 

pl
an

 t
ha

t 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 n
o 

lik
el

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
a 

si
te

, 
al

on
e 

or
 in

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

pl
an

, o
r 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 p

la
ns

 o
r 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
 

T
ab

le
 4

.1
 b

el
ow

 s
ho

w
s 

th
os

e 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 S

D
P

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

ei
th

er
 b

ee
n 

sc
re

en
ed

 in
 o

r 
ou

t 
of

 t
he

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

an
d 

th
e 

cr
ite

ria
 u

se
d.

  
  

Page 119



 
2

6
 

T
ab

le
 4

.1
: 

S
cr

ee
n

in
g

 in
 / 

S
cr

ee
n

in
g

 o
u

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

te
n

ts
 o

f 
P

P
S

 
 

       P
o

lic
ie

s,
 o

b
je

ct
iv

es
, a

ct
io

n
s 

an
d

 p
ro

je
ct

s 

PPS likely to have 
significant effects 

General policy statements 

Projects not generated by 
this PPS 

Protective, enhancement 
and conservation  policies  

Does not generate 
development and change 

Provision of change with no 
link or pathway to qualifying 
features 

Provision of changed with 
no or minimal effects  

Too general nature of PPS 
with no information on  
where, how, or when of 
implementation 

 Screen in / Screen out 

1 
V

is
io

n 
to

 m
ak

e 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 &
 S

hi
re

 a
ttr

ac
tiv

e,
 p

ro
sp

er
ou

s 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 
X

 
O

U
T

 
2 

S
pa

tia
l S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
2.

1.
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 G
ro

w
th

 A
re

as
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2.

2.
 L

oc
al

 G
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 D
iv

er
si

ty
 A

re
as

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
X

 
 

O
U

T
 

 
2.

3.
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

P
rio

rit
y 

A
re

as
 

 
 

 
 

 
X

 
X

 
 

O
U

T
 

3 
F

oc
us

 o
f a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
X

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
4 

E
co

no
m

ic
 G

ro
w

th
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
 

 
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

O
U

T
 

6 
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
G

ro
w

th
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

7 
Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t  

 
 

 
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

O
U

T
 

8 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 M

ix
ed

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
X

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
9 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
X

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
10

 
P

ro
po

sa
ls

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
10

.1
 

T
he

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
W

es
te

rn
 P

er
ip

he
ra

l 
R

ou
te

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

be
tte

r 
ac

ce
ss

 
an

d 
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

 
to

 
ot

he
r 

pl
ac

es
 

an
d 

to
 

al
lo

w
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 fr

ie
nd

ly
 m

et
ho

ds
 o

f t
ra

ns
po

rt
 to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

. 
 

 
X

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
U

T
 

 
10

.2
 

D
ua

lli
ng

 b
et

w
ee

n 
B

al
m

ed
ie

 a
nd

 T
ip

pe
rt

y 
an

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
th

e 
A

90
 

(n
or

th
) 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 b

et
te

r 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

. 
 

 
X

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
U

T
 

 
10

.3
 

R
ep

la
ce

 t
he

 I
nv

er
am

sa
y 

B
rid

ge
 a

nd
 l

on
ge

r-
te

rm
 d

ua
lli

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
A

96
 b

et
w

ee
n 

In
ve

ru
rie

 a
nd

 th
e 

bo
rd

er
 w

ith
 M

or
ay

 
 

 
X

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
U

T
 

 
10

.4
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

th
e 

H
au

da
ga

in
 r

ou
nd

ab
ou

t, 
a 

th
ird

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
of

 t
he

 R
iv

er
 D

on
 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 d
ea

l 
w

ith
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
al

lo
w

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n 

an
d 

to
 th

e 
no

rt
h 

of
 th

e 
ci

ty
. 

 
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

U
T

 

 
10

.5
 

A
 r

in
g 

of
 n

ew
 p

ar
k-

an
d-

rid
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
ro

un
d 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
lin

ki
ng

 t
o 

th
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
 

 
X

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
U

T
 

Page 120



 
2

7
 

W
es

te
rn

 P
er

ip
he

ra
l R

ou
te

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
, a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 w
id

er
 

tr
an

sp
or

t b
en

ef
its

. 
 

10
.6

 
R

oa
d 

an
d 

ra
il 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
ne

w
 s

ta
tio

n 
at

 K
in

to
re

 a
nd

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
lo

ca
l r

ai
l s

er
vi

ce
s,

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
lly

 f
rie

nd
ly

 m
et

ho
ds

 o
f 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
m

or
e 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
– 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

du
ci

ng
 j

ou
rn

ey
 t

im
es

 t
o 

In
ve

rn
es

s 
an

d 
E

di
nb

ur
gh

 /
 

G
la

sg
ow

 a
nd

 b
ey

on
d.

 

 
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

U
T

 

 
10

.7
 

P
ut

tin
g 

th
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
ai

rp
or

t m
as

te
rp

la
n 

in
to

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 

 
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

U
T

 
 

10
.8

 
B

et
te

r 
lin

ks
 b

et
w

ee
n 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
an

d 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

co
as

t 
of

 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

. 
 

 
X

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
U

T
 

 
10

.9
 

In
iti

at
iv

es
 

by
 

th
e 

un
iv

er
si

tie
s,

 
co

lle
ge

s 
an

d 
re

se
ar

ch
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 
to

 
st

re
ng

th
en

 o
ur

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

ec
on

om
y.

 
 

X
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

U
T

 

 
10

.1
0 

T
he

 
‘E

ne
rg

et
ic

a’
 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
be

in
g 

pr
om

ot
ed

 
by

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 
an

d 
S

hi
re

 
E

co
no

m
ic

 F
ut

ur
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
to

 P
et

er
he

ad
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
re

a.
 

 
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

U
T

 

 
10

.1
1 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
po

rt
 a

nd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

at
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

an
d 

P
et

er
he

ad
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

th
e 

m
os

t 
of

 t
he

ir 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
po

te
nt

ia
l, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 f
or

 t
he

 e
ne

rg
y 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
of

fs
ho

re
 w

in
d)

 a
nd

 fi
sh

in
g 

se
ct

or
s.

 
 

 
X

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
U

T
 

 
10

.1
2 

P
ro

po
sa

ls
 t

o 
re

ge
ne

ra
te

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e 
an

d 
so

m
e 

of
 t

he
 c

ity
 r

eg
io

n’
s 

m
os

t d
is

ad
va

nt
ag

ed
 a

re
as

. 
 

X
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

U
T

 

 
10

.1
3 

A
 n

ew
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
ta

di
um

 –
 a

 r
eg

io
na

lly
 i

m
po

rt
an

t 
fa

ci
lit

y 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
rin

g 
ec

on
om

ic
, s

oc
ia

l a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l b
en

ef
its

 (
tw

o 
po

ss
ib

le
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 a

re
 s

ho
w

n 
on

 th
e 

ke
y 

di
ag

ra
m

). 
 

 
X

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
U

T
 

 
10

.1
4 

T
he

 c
ity

 c
en

tr
e 

m
as

te
rp

la
n,

 w
hi

ch
 i

nc
lu

de
s 

pr
op

os
al

s 
to

 m
ak

e 
pa

rt
 o

f 
U

ni
on

 
S

tr
ee

t a
n 

ar
ea

 fo
r 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 o

nl
y.

 
 

 
X

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
U

T
 

 
10

.1
5 

U
pg

ra
de

s 
to

 t
he

 o
ns

ho
re

 e
le

ct
ric

ity
 g

rid
 a

nd
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 o

ffs
ho

re
 

tr
an

sm
is

si
on

 fr
om

 P
et

er
he

ad
. 

 
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

U
T

 

 
10

.1
6 

U
pg

ra
di

ng
 o

f 
P

et
er

he
ad

 p
ow

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
de

pl
oy

m
en

t 
of

 c
a

rb
on

 c
ap

tu
re

 
an

d 
st

or
ag

e 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 a
nd

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
. 

 
 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

U
T

 

 
10

.1
7 

A
 r

an
ge

 o
f 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

to
 d

ea
l 

w
ith

 t
he

 c
um

ul
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

on
 

th
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
ne

tw
or

k 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
e,

 
pr

io
rit

y 
an

d 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

m
ea

su
re

s;
 j

un
ct

io
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

A
96

, 
A

94
4,

 A
95

6,
 A

90
, 

K
in

gs
w

el
ls

 N
or

th
 a

nd
 P

ar
kh

ill
; 

sa
fe

ty
 i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
on

 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

 
ro

ad
 

to
 

th
e 

A
93

; 
P

ar
kw

ay
 

an
d 

P
er

sl
ey

 
B

rid
ge

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
; a

nd
 a

 R
iv

er
 D

ee
 li

n
k 

X
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

  

Page 121



 
2

8
 

4.
2 

S
cr

ee
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
lik

el
y 

si
g

n
if

ic
an

t 
ef

fe
ct

s 
o

f 
p

ar
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

S
D

P
 o

n
 E

u
ro

p
ea

n
 S

it
es

 
In

 t
hi

s 
se

ct
io

n,
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
S

D
P

 s
cr

ee
ne

d 
in

 f
ro

m
 S

ec
tio

n 
4.

1 
ar

e 
sc

re
en

ed
 t

o 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 t

he
 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
si

te
s.

 K
ey

 to
 th

e 
ab

br
ev

ia
tio

ns
 u

se
d 

in
 th

e 
sc

re
en

in
g 

is
 e

xp
la

in
ed

 in
 th

e 
T

ab
le

 4
.2

 b
el

ow
. 

 T
ab

le
 4

.2
: 

S
cr

ee
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
lik

el
y 

si
g

n
if

ic
an

t 
ef

fe
ct

s:
  A

sp
ec

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
P

P
S

 S
cr

ee
n

ed
 in

 f
ro

m
 4

.1
 a

b
o

ve
 

  P
la

n
 

Buchan Ness  to  
Collieston SAC 

Buchan Ness  to  
Collieston SPA 

Garron Point SAC 

Hill of Tawanrieef 
SAC 

Red Moss of 
Netherley SAC 

Troup Pennan 
Lion’s Head SPA 

Fowlheugh  SPA 

River Dee SAC 

Yhan Estuary 
Sands of Fovie & 
Meikle Loch   SPA 

Mortloch Moss 
SAC 

Lock of Skene  
SPA 

Loch of Strathbeg 
SPA 

Sands of Fovie 
SAC 

S
p

at
ia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
(S

tr
at

eg
ic

 G
ro

w
th

 A
re

as
) 

H
L

, 
R

I 
H

L
, 

R
I 

H
L

, 
R

I 
 

E
o

P
, 

E
o

H
 

 
 

W
A

, H
L

, 
D

,R
I, 

C
C

,E
o

H
 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
,E

o
H

 

 
 

 
 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

P
o

lic
y 

 
H

L
, 

R
I 

H
L

, 
R

I 
H

L
, 

R
I 

 
E

o
P

, 
E

o
H

 
 

 
W

A
, H

L
, 

D
, R

I, 
C

C
,E

o
H

 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
,E

o
H

 

 
 

 
 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 G
ro

w
th

 
  

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
 

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 M

ix
ed

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
 

H
L

, 
R

I 
H

L
, 

R
I 

H
L

, 
R

I 
 

E
o

P
, 

E
o

H
 

 
 

W
A

, H
L

, 
D

, R
I, 

C
C

,E
o

H
 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
,E

o
H

 
 

 
 

 

A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 R

iv
er

 D
ee

 li
n

k)
 

  

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
 

   
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 

K
ey

 
H

L 
– 

H
ab

ita
t L

os
s 

R
I –

 R
ec

re
at

io
na

l I
m

pa
ct

 
C

C
 –

 C
oa

st
al

 S
qu

ee
ze

 
W

A
 –

 W
at

er
 A

bs
tr

ac
tio

n 

E
oH

 –
 E

ffe
ct

s 
on

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

E
oP

 –
 E

ffe
ct

s 
on

 P
ol

lu
tio

n 
D

 –
 D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
   

W
Q

 –
 W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

Page 122



 
2

9
 

T
ab

le
 4

.2
(c

o
n

t)
: 

S
cr

ee
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
lik

el
y 

si
g

n
if

ic
an

t 
ef

fe
ct

s:
  A

sp
ec

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
P

P
S

 S
cr

ee
n

ed
 in

 f
ro

m
 4

.1
 a

b
o

ve
 

 
             P

ol
ic

ie
s,

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

S
ite

s 

Turclossie Moss SAC 

Dinnet Oakwood SAC 

Mortlach Moss SAC 

Tips of Corsemaul and Tom 
Mor  SPA 

Morven and Mullachdubh 
SAC 

Muir of Dinnet SAC 

Glen Tanar SAC 

Reidside Moss SAC 

S
p

at
ia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
(S

tr
at

eg
ic

 G
ro

w
th

 A
re

as
) 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

P
o

lic
y 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 G
ro

w
th

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
S

u
st

ai
n

ab
le

 M
ix

ed
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 R

iv
er

 D
ee

 li
n

k)
 

 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

 N
o 

LS
E

 
 N

o 
LS

E
 

Page 123



 
3

0
 

4.
3 

In
 C

o
m

b
in

at
io

n
 e

ff
ec

ts
 –

 c
o

m
b

in
at

io
n

 b
et

w
ee

n
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
p

ar
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

S
D

P
 

 T
hi

s 
se

ct
io

n 
co

ns
id

er
s 

th
e 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

el
em

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 p

la
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
so

m
e 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
 s

cr
ee

ne
d 

ou
t o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

th
at

 th
ey

 w
er

e 
pr

ot
ec

tiv
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

or
 th

at
 th

os
e 

as
pe

ct
s 

co
ul

d 
ha

ve
 n

o 
lik

el
y 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s.
 T

he
se

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f t

he
 p

la
n 

in
cl

ud
e:

 
1.

 
S

p
at

ia
l S

tr
at

eg
y(

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 G

ro
w

th
 A

re
as

) 
(S

G
A

);
  

2.
 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
P

rio
rit

y 
A

re
as

) 
(R

P
A

) 
3.

 
Lo

ca
l G

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 D

iv
er

si
ty

 A
re

as
 (

LG
&

D
A

) 
4.

 
E

co
n

o
m

ic
 G

ro
w

th
  

5.
 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 G
ro

w
th

 
6.

 
S

u
st

ai
n

ab
le

 M
ix

ed
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

(S
M

C
) 

7.
 

A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
 

8.
 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

 (
S

D
&

 C
C

) 
9.

 
Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t (

Q
oE

) 
 T

he
 n

um
be

rs
 li

st
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 p
ar

ts
 o

f t
he

 p
la

n 
ar

e 
pa

ire
d 

in
 d

iff
er

en
t p

er
m

ut
at

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
.  

 
T

ab
le

 4
.3

: 
P

o
ss

ib
le

 C
o

m
b

in
at

io
n

 o
f 

p
ar

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
p

la
n

 
 

 
1 

2 
3 

4 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2 
2,

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3 

3,
1 

3,
2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
4 

4,
1 

4,
2 

4,
3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5 
5,

1 
5,

2 
5,

3 
5,

4 
 

 
 

 
 

6 
6,

1 
6,

2 
6,

3 
6,

4 
6,

5 
 

 
 

 
7 

7,
1 

7,
2 

7,
3 

7,
4 

7,
5 

7,
6 

 
 

 
8 

8,
1 

8,
2 

8,
3 

8,
4 

8,
5 

8,
6 

8,
7 

 
 

9 
9,

1 
9,

2 
9,

3 
9,

4 
9,

5 
9,

6 
9,

7 
9,

8 
 

 F
ro

m
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

ab
ov

e 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

36
 p

os
si

bl
e 

co
m

bi
na

tio
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
pa

rt
s 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
 s

ho
w

n 
be

lo
w

. T
he

se
 3

6 
co

m
bi

na
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 u
se

d 
in

 s
cr

ee
ni

ng
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

 o
n 

th
e 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
si

te
s 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

su
lt 

is
 in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 T

ab
le

 4
.4

 b
el

ow
. 

Page 124



 
3

1
 

T
ab

le
 4

.4
: 

S
cr

ee
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
in

-C
o

m
b

in
at

io
n

 E
ff

ec
ts

 (
In

te
rn

al
) 

 
   In

-
co

m
b

in
at

io
n

 
b

et
w

ee
n

 
p

ar
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

p
la

n
 

Buchan Ness  to  
Collieston SAC 

Buchan Ness  to  
Collieston SPA 

Garron Point 
SAC 

Hill of 
Tawanrieef SAC 

Red Moss of 
Netherley SAC 

Troup Pennan 
Lion’s Head SPA 

Fowlheugh  SPA 

River Dee SAC 

Yhan Estuary 
Sands of Fovie & 
Meikle Loch   
SPA 

Mortloch Moss 
SAC 

Lock of Skene  
SPA 

Loch of 
Strathbeg SPA 

Sands of Fovie 
SAC 

S
p

at
ia

l 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

(S
G

A
) 

+ 
R

P
A

 

 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
E

o
P

, 
E

o
H

 
 

 
W

A
, H

L
 

D
, R

I 
C

C
,  

E
o

H
 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
 E

o
H

 
 

 
 

N
o 

ad
de

d 
ef

fe
ct

 fr
om

 
th

e 
R

P
A

 

S
p

at
ia

l 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

(S
G

A
) 

+ 
 

L
G

&
D

A
 

 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
E

o
P

, 
E

o
H

 
 

 
W

A
, H

L
 

D
, R

I 
C

C
 

 E
o

H
 

 
D

,R
I, 

W
Q

 E
o

H
 

 
 

 
N

o 
ad

de
d 

ef
fe

ct
 fr

om
 

th
e 

LG
&

D
A

 
S

p
at

ia
l 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
(S

G
A

) 
+ 

 
E

co
n

 G
ro

w
th

 

 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
E

o
P

 
E

o
H

 
 

 
W

A
, H

L
 

D
, R

I 
C

C
 

 E
o

H
 

 
D

,R
I, 

W
Q

 E
o

H
 

 
 

 
 

S
p

at
ia

l 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

(S
G

A
) 

+ 
 

P
o

p
. G

ro
w

th
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
 

E
o

P
, 

E
o

H
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

S
p

at
ia

l 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

(S
G

A
) 

+ 
S

M
C

 

 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
E

o
P

, 
E

o
H

 
 

 
W

A
, H

L
 

D
, R

I 
C

C
,  

E
o

H
 

 
D

,R
I, 

W
Q

 E
o

H
 

 
 

 
 

S
p

at
ia

l 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

(S
G

A
) 

+ 
 

A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
 

H
L

 
R

I D
 

H
L

 
R

I D
 

H
L

 
R

I D
 

 
E

o
P

, 
E

o
H

 
R

I D
 

R
I D
 

R
I D
 

R
I D
 

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

S
p

at
ia

l 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

(S
G

A
) 

+ 
S

D
&

C
C

 

H
L

 
R

I 
H

L
 

R
I 

H
L

 
R

I 
 

E
o

P
, 

E
o

H
 

 
 

W
A

, H
L

 
D

, R
I 

C
C

,  
E

o
H

 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
 E

o
H

 
 

 
 

 

S
p

at
ia

l 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

(S
G

A
) 

+ 
Q

o
E

 

H
L

 
R

I 
H

L
 

R
I 

H
L

 
R

I 
 

E
o

P
, 

E
o

H
 

 
 

W
A

, H
L

 
D

, R
I 

C
C

,  
E

o
H

 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
 E

o
H

 
 

 
 

 

R
P

A
 +

 
L

G
&

D
A

 
N

o
 

L
S

E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 125



 
3

2
 

R
P

A
 +

 
E

co
n

 G
ro

w
th

 
H

L
 

R
I 

H
L

 
R

I 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
E

o
P

, 
E

o
H

 
 

 
W

A
, H

L
 

D
, R

I 
C

C
, E

o
H

 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
, E

o
H

 
 

 
 

 

R
P

A
 +

 
P

o
p

. G
ro

w
th

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

 
E

o
P

, 
E

o
H

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 

R
P

A
 +

 
S

M
C

 
 

H
L

 
R

I 

 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
E

o
P

, 
E

o
H

 
 

 
W

A
, H

L
 

D
, R

I 
C

C
,  

E
o

H
 

 
D

,R
I, 

W
Q

 E
o

H
 

 
 

 
 

R
P

A
 +

 
A

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

 
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
P

A
 +

 
S

D
&

C
C

 
N

o
 

L
S

E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
P

A
 +

 
Q

o
E

 
N

o
 

L
S

E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

L
G

&
D

A
 +

 
E

co
n

 G
ro

w
th

 
H

L
 

R
I 

H
L

 
R

I 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
E

o
P

, 
E

o
H

 
 

 
W

A
, H

L
 

D
, R

I 
C

C
, E

o
H

 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
 E

o
H

 
 

 
 

 

L
G

&
D

A
 +

 
P

o
p

 G
ro

w
th

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

 
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

L
G

&
D

A
 +

 
S

M
C

 
H

L
 

R
I 

H
L

 
R

I 
H

L
 

R
I 

 
E

o
P

, 
E

o
H

 
 

 
W

A
, H

L
 

D
, R

I 
C

C
,  

E
o

H
 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
, E

o
H

 
 

 
 

 

L
G

&
D

A
 +

 
A

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

 
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

L
G

&
D

A
 +

 
S

D
&

C
C

 
N

o
 

L
S

E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

L
G

&
D

A
 +

 
Q

o
E

 
N

o
 

L
S

E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
+ 

P
o

p
 G

ro
w

th
 

H
L

 
R

I 
H

L
 

R
I 

H
L

 
R

I 
 

E
o

P
, 

E
o

H
 

 
 

W
A

, H
L

 
D

, R
I 

C
C

 E
o

H
 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
 E

o
H

 
 

 
 

 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
+ 

S
M

C
 

H
L

 
R

I 
H

L
 

R
I 

H
L

 
R

I 
 

E
o

P
, 

E
o

H
 

 
 

W
A

, H
L

 
D

, R
I 

C
C

, E
o

H
 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
 E

o
H

 
 

 
 

 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
+ A

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

 

H
L

,R
I,

D
 

H
L

,R
I,

D
 

H
L

,R
I,

D
 

 
E

o
P

, 
E

o
H

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
W

A
, H

L
, 

D
, R

I, 
C

C
,E

o
H

 
R

I,D
 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
, E

o
H

, 
R

I,D
 

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
+ 

S
D

&
C

C
 

H
L

 
R

I 
H

L
 

R
I 

H
L

 
R

I 
 

E
o

P
, 

E
o

H
 

 
 

W
A

, H
L

 
D

, R
I 

C
C

 E
o

H
 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
 E

o
H

 
 

 
 

 

Page 126



 
3

3
 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
+ 

Q
o

E
 

H
L

 
R

I 
H

L
 

R
I 

H
L

 
R

I 
 

E
o

P
, 

E
o

H
 

 
 

W
A

, H
L

 
D

, R
I 

C
C

 E
o

H
 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
 E

o
H

 
 

 
 

 

P
o

p
 G

ro
w

th
 +

 
S

M
C

 
H

L
,R

I,
D

 
H

L
,R

I, 
D

 
H

L
,R

I, 
D

 
 

E
o

P
, 

E
o

H
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

W
A

, H
L

 
D

, R
I 

C
C

, E
o

H
 

D
, R

I 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
 E

o
H

 
D

  

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

P
o

p
 G

ro
w

th
 +

 
A

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

 
- 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
R

iv
er

 D
ee

 li
nk

 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
 

  
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 

P
o

p
 G

ro
w

th
 +

 
S

D
&

C
C

  
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

 
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

P
o

p
 G

ro
w

th
 +

 
Q

o
E

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

 
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

S
M

C
 +

 
A

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

 
- 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
R

iv
er

 D
ee

 li
nk

 

H
L

,R
I,

D
 

H
L

,R
I,

D
 

H
L

,R
I,

D
 

 
E

o
P

, 
E

o
H

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
W

A
, H

L
 

D
, R

I 
C

C
 E

o
H

 
D

, R
I 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
,E

o
H

 
 

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

S
M

C
 +

 
S

D
&

C
C

 
H

L
, 

R
I 

H
L

, 
R

I 
H

L
, 

R
I 

 
E

o
P

, 
E

o
H

 
 

 
W

A
, H

L
 

D
, R

I 
C

C
 E

o
H

 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
 E

o
H

 
 

 
 

 

S
M

C
 +

 
Q

o
E

 
H

L
,R

I 
H

L
,R

I 
H

L
,R

I 
 

E
o

P
, 

E
o

H
 

 
 

W
A

, H
L

, 
D

, R
I, 

C
C

, E
o

H
 

D
,R

I, 
W

Q
,E

o
H

 
 

 
 

 

A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
 

- 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
 li

nk
 

+ 
S

D
&

C
C

 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
 

  
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 

A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
 

- 
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
 li

nk
 

+ 
Q

o
E

 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
 

  
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 
 

R
I,D

 
R

I,D
 

R
I,D

 

S
D

&
C

C
 +

 
Q

o
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

K
ey

 
H

L 
– 

H
ab

ita
t L

os
s 

R
I –

 R
ec

re
at

io
na

l I
m

pa
ct

 
C

C
 –

 C
oa

st
al

 S
qu

ee
ze

 
W

A
 –

 W
at

er
 A

bs
tr

ac
tio

n 
 

E
oH

 –
 E

ffe
ct

s 
on

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

E
oP

 –
 E

ffe
ct

s 
on

 P
ol

lu
tio

n 
D

   
  -

 D
is

tu
rb

an
ce

  
W

Q
 –

 W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 

Page 127



 
3

4
 

T
ab

le
 4

.4
(c

o
n

t)
: 

S
cr

ee
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
in

-C
o

m
b

in
at

io
n

 E
ff

ec
ts

 (
In

te
rn

al
) 

 
    In

-c
o

m
b

in
at

io
n

 b
et

w
ee

n
 p

ar
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

p
la

n
 

Turclossie Moss 
SAC 

Dinnet Oakwood 
SAC 

Mortlach Moss 
SAC 

Tips of 
Corsemaul and 
Tom Mor  SPA 

Morven and 
Mullachdubh 
SAC 

Muir of Dinnet 
SAC 

Glen Tanar SAC 

Reidside Moss 
SAC 

S
p

at
ia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
(S

G
A

) 
+ 

R
P

A
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

S
p

at
ia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
(S

G
A

) 
+ 

L
G

&
D

A
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

S
p

at
ia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
(S

G
A

) 
+ 

E
co

n
 

G
ro

w
th

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 

S
p

at
ia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
(S

G
A

) 
+ 

 
P

o
p

. G
ro

w
th

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 

S
p

at
ia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
(S

G
A

) 
+ 

 
S

M
C

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 

S
p

at
ia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
(S

G
A

) 
+ 

 
A

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

 -
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

R
 D

ee
 li

nk
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

S
p

at
ia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
(S

G
A

) 
+ 

 
S

D
&

C
C

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 

S
p

at
ia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
(S

G
A

) 
+ 

 
Q

o
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 

R
P

A
 +

 L
G

&
D

A
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

R
P

A
 +

 E
co

n
 G

ro
w

th
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

R
P

A
 +

 P
o

p
. G

ro
w

th
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

R
P

A
 +

 S
M

C
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

R
P

A
 +

 A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
 -

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
R

iv
er

 
D

ee
 li

nk
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

R
P

A
 +

 S
D

&
C

C
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

R
P

A
 +

 Q
o

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

L
G

&
D

A
 +

 E
co

n
 G

ro
w

th
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

L
G

&
D

A
 +

 P
o

p
 G

ro
w

th
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

Page 128



 
3

5
 

L
G

&
D

A
 +

 S
M

C
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

L
G

&
D

A
 +

 A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
 -

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
R

iv
er

 D
ee

 li
nk

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 

L
G

&
D

A
 +

 S
D

&
C

C
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

L
G

&
D

A
 +

 Q
o

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

+
 

P
o

p
 G

ro
w

th
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

+
 S

M
C

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
E

co
n

o
m

ic
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
+

 
A

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

 -
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
 

lin
k 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

+
 S

D
&

C
C

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
E

co
n

o
m

ic
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
+ 

Q
o

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

P
o

p
 G

ro
w

th
 +

 S
M

C
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

P
o

p
 G

ro
w

th
 +

 A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
  -

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
 li

nk
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

P
o

p
 G

ro
w

th
 +

 S
D

&
C

C
  

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

P
o

p
 G

ro
w

th
 +

 Q
o

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

S
M

C
 +

 A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
 -

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
R

iv
er

 D
ee

 li
nk

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 

S
M

C
 +

 S
D

&
C

C
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

S
M

C
 +

 Q
o

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
 -

  i
nc

lu
di

ng
 R

iv
er

 D
ee

 
lin

k 
+ 

S
D

&
C

C
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

A
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
 -

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
R

iv
er

 D
ee

 
lin

k 
+ 

Q
o

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

S
D

&
C

C
 +

 Q
o

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

K
ey

 
H

L 
– 

H
ab

ita
t L

os
s 

R
I –

 R
ec

re
at

io
na

l I
m

pa
ct

 
C

C
 –

 C
oa

st
al

 S
qu

ee
ze

 
W

A
 –

 W
at

er
 A

bs
tr

ac
tio

n 
 

E
oH

 –
 E

ffe
ct

s 
on

 H
yd

ro
lo

gy
 

E
oP

 –
 E

ffe
ct

s 
on

 P
ol

lu
tio

n 
D

   
  -

 D
is

tu
rb

an
ce

  
W

Q
 –

 W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 

 

Page 129



 
3

6
 

4.
4 

In
 C

o
m

b
in

at
io

n
 e

ff
ec

ts
 –

 c
o

m
b

in
at

io
n

 b
et

w
ee

n
 p

ar
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

S
D

P
 

 T
hi

s 
se

ct
io

n 
co

ns
id

er
s 

th
e 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

el
em

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

pl
an

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

la
ns

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
in

 t
he

 r
eg

io
n 

an
d 

in
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

au
th

or
iti

es
. T

he
 o

th
er

 p
la

ns
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
re

gi
on

al
 tr

an
sp

or
t s

tr
at

eg
y,

 th
e 

C
ai

rn
go

rm
s 

LD
P

 a
nd

 M
or

ay
 L

D
P

. T
he

 e
le

m
en

ts
 

of
 t

he
 p

la
n 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
w

ith
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

pl
an

s 
ar

e 
th

e 
S

pa
tia

l 
S

tr
at

eg
y,

 R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
P

rio
rit

y 
A

re
as

, 
Lo

ca
l 

G
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 D
iv

er
si

ty
 

A
re

as
, 

E
co

no
m

ic
 G

ro
w

th
, 

P
op

ul
at

io
n 

G
ro

w
th

, 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 M

ix
ed

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y.
 I

n 
ab

le
 4

.5
 b

el
ow

, 
w

e 
sh

ow
 h

ow
 

w
e 

ha
ve

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t t

he
 in

-c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

ef
fe

ct
s.

 
 T

ab
le

 4
.5

: S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 fo

r 
in

-c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

ef
fe

ct
s 

(e
xt

er
na

l) 
  

 P
o

lic
ie

s,
 S

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
an

d
 

S
it

es
 

 E
u

ro
p

ea
n

 s
it

es
 

af
fe

ct
ed

 

 L
ik

el
y 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
E

ff
ec

t 
 In

- 
co

m
b

in
at

io
n

 e
ff

ec
ts

   
 R

is
k 

o
f 

L
S

E
 p

er
si

st
in

g
?

  
(Y

es
/N

o
) 

S
pa

tia
l S

tr
at

eg
y 

· 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 G
ro

w
th

 
A

re
as

 
· 

Lo
ca

l G
ro

w
th

 
an

d 
D

iv
er

si
ty

 
A

re
as

 
· 

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
P

rio
rit

y 
A

re
as

 

B
uc

ha
n 

N
es

s 
 to

  
C

ol
lie

st
on

 S
A

C
/S

P
A

, 
G

ar
ro

n 
P

oi
nt

, R
ed

 M
os

s 
of

 N
et

he
rle

y,
 D

ee
 a

nd
 

M
or

ay
 F

irt
h,

 Y
th

an
 

Y
es

  
W

at
er

 a
bs

tr
ac

tio
n,

 
H

ab
ita

t l
os

s,
 r

ec
re

at
io

na
l 

im
pa

ct
s,

 c
he

m
ic

al
 

ch
an

ge
, e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

hy
dr

ol
og

y,
  d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
, 

vi
br

at
io

n 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 
do

lp
hi

ns
 

S
om

e 
m

in
im

al
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
si

te
s 

in
 th

e 
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s/
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s 
LD

P
 a

nd
 M

or
ay

 
LD

P
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
A

ng
us

 L
D

P
 

Y
es

  
D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 a

nd
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

on
 D

ol
ph

in
s  

E
co

no
m

ic
 G

ro
w

th
 

B
uc

ha
n 

N
es

s 
 to

  
C

ol
lie

st
on

 S
A

C
/S

P
A

, 
G

ar
ro

n 
P

oi
nt

, R
ed

 M
os

s 
of

 N
et

he
rle

y,
 D

ee
 a

nd
 

M
or

ay
 F

irt
h,

 Y
th

an
 

Y
es

  
W

at
er

 a
bs

tr
ac

tio
n,

 
H

ab
ita

t l
os

s,
 r

ec
re

at
io

na
l 

im
pa

ct
s,

 c
he

m
ic

al
 

ch
an

ge
, e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

hy
dr

ol
og

y,
  d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
, 

vi
br

at
io

n 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 
do

lp
hi

ns
  

S
om

e 
m

in
im

al
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
si

te
s 

in
 th

e 
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s/
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s 
LD

P
 a

nd
 M

or
ay

 
LD

P
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
A

ng
us

 L
D

P
 . 

Y
es

  
D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 a

nd
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

on
 D

ol
ph

in
s 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
P

os
iti

ve
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 a
ll 

si
te

s 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 

P
op

ul
at

io
n 

G
ro

w
th

 
B

uc
ha

n 
N

es
s 

 to
  

C
ol

lie
st

on
 S

A
C

/S
P

A
, 

G
ar

ro
n 

P
oi

nt
, R

ed
 M

os
s 

Y
es

  
R

ec
re

at
io

na
l e

ffe
ct

 a
nd

 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
to

 s
pe

ci
es

 

S
om

e 
m

in
im

al
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
si

te
s 

in
 th

e 
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s/
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s 
LD

P
 a

nd
 M

or
ay

 

Y
es

  
D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 a

nd
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

on
 D

ol
ph

in
s 

Page 130



 
3

7
 

of
 N

et
he

rle
y,

 D
ee

 a
nd

 
M

or
ay

 F
irt

h,
 Y

th
an

, 
T

ro
up

 P
en

na
n 

Li
on

’s
 

H
ea

d,
 F

ow
ls

he
ug

h,
 

Lo
ck

 o
f S

ke
ne

, L
oc

h 
of

 
S

tr
at

hb
er

g,
 S

an
ds

 o
f 

F
or

vi
e 

an
d 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 
 

LD
P

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

A
ng

us
 L

D
P

. 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t  
 

P
os

iti
ve

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 a

ll 
si

te
s 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 M
ix

ed
 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 
B

uc
ha

n 
N

es
s 

 to
  

C
ol

lie
st

on
 S

A
C

/S
P

A
, 

G
ar

ro
n 

P
oi

nt
, R

ed
 M

os
s 

of
 N

et
he

rle
y,

 D
ee

 a
nd

 
M

or
ay

 F
irt

h,
 Y

th
an

,  

Y
es

  
W

at
er

 a
bs

tr
ac

tio
n,

 
H

ab
ita

t l
os

s,
 r

ec
re

at
io

na
l 

im
pa

ct
s,

 c
he

m
ic

al
 

ch
an

ge
, e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

hy
dr

ol
og

y,
  d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
, 

vi
br

at
io

n 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 
do

lp
hi

ns
  

S
om

e 
m

in
im

al
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
si

te
s 

in
 th

e 
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s/
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s 
LD

P
 a

nd
 M

or
ay

 
LD

P
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
A

ng
us

 L
D

P
 . 

Y
es

  
D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 a

nd
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

on
 D

ol
ph

in
s  

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
- 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
R

iv
er

 D
ee

 li
nk

 
B

uc
ha

n 
N

es
s 

 to
  

C
ol

lie
st

on
 S

A
C

/S
P

A
, 

G
ar

ro
n 

P
oi

nt
, R

ed
 M

os
s 

of
 N

et
he

rle
y,

 D
ee

 a
nd

 
M

or
ay

 F
irt

h,
 Y

th
an

, 
T

ro
up

 P
en

na
n 

Li
on

’s
 

H
ea

d,
 F

ow
ls

he
ug

h,
 

Lo
ck

 o
f S

ke
ne

, L
oc

h 
of

 
S

tr
at

hb
er

g,
 S

an
ds

 o
f 

F
or

vi
e 

Y
es

  
H

ab
ita

t l
os

s,
 r

ec
re

at
io

na
l 

im
pa

ct
s,

 c
he

m
ic

al
 

ch
an

ge
, e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

hy
dr

ol
og

y,
  d

is
tu

rb
an

ce
, 

vi
br

at
io

n 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 
do

lp
hi

ns
  

S
om

e 
m

in
im

al
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
si

te
s 

in
 th

e 
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s/
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s 
LD

P
 a

nd
 M

or
ay

 
LD

P
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
A

ng
us

 L
D

P
 . 

Y
es

  
D

is
tu

rb
an

ce
 a

nd
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

on
 D

ol
ph

in
s  

Page 131



4.
5 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

S
cr

ee
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 a

p
p

lie
d

 
 In

 m
iti

ga
tin

g 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

 o
n 

th
e 

si
te

s,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

th
e 

ch
oi

ce
 fr

om
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

· 
de

le
tin

g 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

or
 p

ro
po

sa
l t

ha
t m

ay
 c

au
se

 th
e 

lik
el

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
;  

· 
ch

an
gi

ng
 th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
r 

ty
pe

 o
f a

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 d

am
ag

in
g 

pr
op

os
al

s;
  

· 
re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
sc

al
e 

of
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 d
am

ag
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n,

 w
he

th
er

 it
 is

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l l

ev
el

 o
f 

gr
ow

th
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l o
r 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

pl
an

 a
re

a,
 

or
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

pr
op

os
al

 o
f a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 s
ca

le
 o

r 
si

ze
;  

· 
re

lo
ca

tin
g 

or
 a

lte
rin

g 
th

e 
sp

at
ia

l d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 d

am
ag

in
g 

pr
ov

is
io

n;
  

· 
ph

as
in

g 
or

 ti
m

in
g 

of
 a

 p
ro

po
sa

l s
o 

th
at

 it
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 e
ffe

ct
s 

ca
n 

be
 a

de
qu

at
el

y 
m

an
ag

ed
 o

ve
r 

tim
e;

  
· 

pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g 
a 

pr
op

os
al

 s
o 

th
at

 it
 is

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 o

n 
ke

y 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

r 
up

gr
ad

in
g,

 s
uc

h 
as

 w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
or

 w
as

te
 w

a
te

r 
tr

ea
tm

en
t, 

be
in

g 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

ef
or

e 
it 

co
ul

d 
pr

oc
ee

d;
 a

nd
  

· 
re

qu
iri

ng
 b

uf
fe

r 
zo

ne
s 

to
 b

e 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
· 

re
qu

iri
ng

 lo
w

er
-t

ie
r 

pl
an

s 
to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 H

R
A

s 
an

d/
or

 S
E

A
s 

 
 T

he
se

 m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 T
ab

le
 4

.6
 b

el
ow

: 
 

Page 132



T
ab

le
 4

.6
: 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
al

 a
n

d
 in

-c
o

m
b

in
at

io
n

 e
ff

ec
ts

 a
n

d
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
  

 P
o

lic
ie

s,
 

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d

 
S

it
es

 

 E
u

ro
p

ea
n

 s
it

es
 

af
fe

ct
ed

 

 L
ik

el
y 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
E

ff
ec

t 
in

d
iv

id
u

al
ly

 
an

d
 in

 
c o

m
b

in
at

io
n

 w
it

h
 

p
ar

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
S

D
P

 

 In
-C

o
m

b
in

at
io

n
 e

ff
ec

ts
 (

ex
te

rn
al

) 
 M

it
ig

at
io

n
 M

ea
su

re
s 

 
 R

is
k 

o
f 

L
S

E
 

p
er

si
st

in
g

?
  

(Y
es

/N
o

) 

 Is
 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

R
eq

u
ir

ed
?

 
(Y

es
/N

o
) 

S
pa

tia
l 

S
tr

at
eg

y  
 

B
uc

ha
n 

N
es

s 
 

to
  C

ol
lie

st
on

 
S

A
C

/S
P

A
, 

G
ar

ro
n 

P
oi

nt
, 

R
ed

 M
os

s 
of

 
N

et
he

rle
y,

 D
ee

 
an

d 
M

or
ay

 
F

irt
h,

 Y
th

an
 

Y
es

  
W

at
er

 
ab

st
ra

ct
io

n,
 

H
ab

ita
t l

os
s,

 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l 
im

pa
ct

s,
 

ch
em

ic
al

 c
ha

ng
e,

 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

hy
dr

ol
og

y,
  

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e,

 
vi

br
at

io
n 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 d

ol
ph

in
s  

S
om

e 
m

in
im

al
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 S

tr
at

eg
y,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

si
te

s 
in

 th
e 

C
ai

rn
go

rm
s,

 
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s 
LD

P
 a

nd
 M

or
ay

 
LD

P
. R

eg
ar

di
ng

 th
e 

M
or

ay
 F

irt
h,

 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ris

ks
:  

� 
D

iff
us

e 
ru

n-
of

f p
ol

lu
tio

n 
fr

om
 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l p

ra
ct

ic
es

 
� 

E
xc

es
si

ve
 u

nd
er

w
at

er
 n

oi
se

 
ca

us
in

g 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
to

 d
ol

ph
in

 
po

pu
la

tio
ns

 
� 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 e
ffl

ue
nt

 h
as

 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ca

us
e 

de
te

rio
ra

tio
n 

of
 d

ol
ph

in
 

po
pu

la
tio

ns
 

� 
S

ew
ag

e 
ef

flu
en

t h
as

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
to

 c
au

se
 d

et
er

io
ra

tio
n 

of
 

do
lp

hi
n 

po
pu

la
tio

ns
 

� 
M

ar
in

e 
Li

tte
r 

� 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
ne

ts
 h

av
e 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

ca
us

e 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e,
 in

ju
ry

 a
nd

 
m

or
ta

lit
y.

 
�  

D
re

dg
in

g 
an

d 
di

sp
os

al
 o

f 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 c
on

ta
in

in
g 

co
nt

am
in

an
ts

 O
ffs

ho
re

 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 h
av

e 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ca

us
e 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

or
 in

ju
ry

. 
� 

O
il 

ex
pl

or
at

io
n 

ha
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

ca
us

e 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
or

 d
et

er
io

ra
tio

n 
of

 d
ol

ph
in

 
po

pu
la

tio
ns

 o
r 

th
ei

r 
pr

ey
 

th
ro

ug
h 

oi
l r

el
at

ed
 

F
ut

ur
e 

LD
P

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 li

ke
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l H

ou
si

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

sh
ou

ld
 a

vo
id

 
po

lic
ie

s 
or

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 th

at
 m

ay
 c

au
se

 
da

m
ag

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
LS

E
;  

F
ut

ur
e 

LD
P

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 li

ke
 

Lo
ca

l H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
sh

ou
ld

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

r 
ty

pe
 o

f a
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 
da

m
ag

in
g 

pr
op

os
al

;  
F

ut
ur

e 
LD

P
s 

sh
ou

ld
 a

vo
id

 a
llo

ca
tin

g 
si

te
s 

w
hi

ch
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 d
am

ag
es

 s
ite

s .
 

T
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 fu
tu

re
 L

D
P

s 
an

d 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

p r
og

ra
m

m
ed

 s
o 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 
de

pe
nd

en
t o

n 
ke

y 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 

or
 u

pg
ra

di
ng

.  
Lo

w
er

-t
ie

r 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
un

de
rt

ak
e 

H
R

A
 a

nd
 E

IA
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
ad

v e
rs

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
ar

e 
fu

lly
 m

iti
ga

te
d 

 A
gr

ee
 w

ith
 r

el
ev

an
t b

od
ie

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
w

at
er

 a
bs

tr
ac

te
d 

w
ill

 n
ot

 a
ffe

ct
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 
fe

at
ur

es
. 

 A
gr

ee
 w

ith
 r

el
ev

an
t b

od
ie

s 
to

 p
re

pa
re

 a
 

dr
ou

gh
t p

la
n 

as
 a

n 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

to
 fu

tu
re

 
cl

im
at

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
 A

gr
ee

 w
ith

 S
N

H
 o

n 
an

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 r

ec
re

at
io

na
l u

se
 o

f s
ite

s 
do

 
no

t a
ffe

ct
 q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 fe
at

ur
es

 a
nd

 h
ab

ita
ts

 
 F

ut
ur

e 
LD

P
s 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
re

qu
ire

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
  t

o 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 

th
ro

ug
h 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 m

ar
in

e-
no

is
e 

m
od

el
lin

g,
 th

at
 a

dv
er

se
 im

pa
ct

s 
on

 
B

ot
tle

no
se

 D
ol

ph
in

s 
an

d 
A

tla
nt

ic
 S

al
m

on
 

N
o 

N
o 

Page 133



 
4

0
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

.  
� 

Im
pa

ct
s 

fr
om

 b
oa

ts
 a

nd
 

sh
ip

pi
ng

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 m

ot
or

is
ed

 
w

at
er

 s
po

rt
s 

ar
e 

av
oi

de
d 

  

E
co

no
m

ic
 

G
ro

w
th

 
B

uc
ha

n 
N

es
s 

 
to

  C
ol

lie
st

on
 

S
A

C
/S

P
A

, 
G

ar
ro

n 
P

oi
nt

, 
R

ed
 M

os
s 

of
 

N
et

he
rle

y,
 D

ee
 

an
d 

M
or

ay
 

F
irt

h,
 Y

th
an

 

Y
es

  
W

at
er

 
ab

st
ra

ct
io

n,
 

H
ab

ita
t l

os
s,

 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l 
im

pa
ct

s,
 

ch
em

ic
al

 c
ha

ng
e,

 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

hy
dr

ol
og

y,
  

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e,

 
vi

br
at

io
n 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 d

ol
ph

in
s 

 

S
om

e 
m

in
im

al
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 S

tr
at

eg
y,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

si
te

s 
in

 th
e 

C
ai

rn
go

rm
s,

 
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s 
LD

P
 a

nd
 M

or
ay

 
LD

P
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
A

ng
us

 L
D

P
. 

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
 

N
o 

N
o 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

P
os

iti
ve

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 a
ll 

si
te

s  

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
N

o 

P
op

ul
at

io
n 

G
ro

w
th

 
B

uc
ha

n 
N

es
s 

 
to

  C
ol

lie
st

on
 

S
A

C
/S

P
A

, 
G

ar
ro

n 
P

oi
nt

, 
R

ed
 M

os
s 

of
 

N
et

he
rle

y,
 D

ee
 

an
d 

M
or

ay
 

F
irt

h,
 Y

th
an

, 
T

ro
up

 P
en

na
n 

Li
on

’s
 H

ea
d,

 
F

ow
ls

he
ug

h,
 

Lo
ck

 o
f S

ke
ne

, 
Lo

ch
 o

f 
S

tr
at

hb
er

g,
 

S
an

ds
 o

f  
F

or
vi

e 

Y
es

  
R

ec
re

at
io

na
l 

ef
fe

ct
 a

nd
 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

to
 

sp
ec

ie
s 

an
d 

ha
bi

ta
ts

 
 

S
om

e 
m

in
im

al
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 S

tr
at

eg
y,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

si
te

s 
in

 th
e 

C
ai

rn
go

rm
s/

C
ai

rn
go

rm
s 

LD
P

 
an

d 
M

or
ay

 L
D

P
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
A

ng
us

 L
D

P
. 

F
ut

ur
e 

LD
P

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 li

ke
 

Lo
ca

l H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
sh

ou
ld

 a
vo

id
 

po
lic

ie
s 

or
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 th
at

 m
ay

 c
au

se
 

da
m

ag
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

LS
E

;  
F

ut
ur

e 
LD

P
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 li
ke

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
sh

ou
ld

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

r 
ty

pe
 o

f a
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 
da

m
ag

in
g 

pr
op

os
al

;  
F

ut
ur

e 
LD

P
s 

sh
ou

ld
 a

vo
id

 a
llo

ca
tin

g 
si

te
s 

w
hi

ch
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 d
am

ag
es

 s
ite

s.
 

T
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 fu
tu

re
 L

D
P

s 
an

d 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
ed

 s
o 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 
de

pe
nd

en
t o

n 
ke

y 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 

or
 u

pg
ra

di
ng

.  
Lo

w
er

-t
ie

r 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
un

de
rt

ak
e 

H
R

A
 a

nd
 E

IA
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
ad

ve
rs

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
ar

e 
fu

lly
 m

iti
ga

te
d 

N
o 

N
o 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t  
 

P
os

iti
ve

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 a
ll 

si
te

s 
 

N
o 

LS
E

 
N

o 
LS

E
 

 
N

o 
N

o 

Page 134



 
4

1
 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
M

ix
ed

 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 

B
uc

ha
n 

N
es

s 
 

to
  C

ol
lie

st
on

 
S

A
C

/S
P

A
, 

G
ar

ro
n 

P
oi

nt
, 

R
ed

 M
os

s 
of

 
N

et
he

rle
y,

 D
ee

 
an

d 
M

or
ay

 
F

irt
h,

 Y
th

an
, 

Y
es

  
W

at
er

 
ab

st
ra

ct
io

n,
 

H
ab

ita
t l

os
s,

 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l 
im

pa
ct

s,
 

ch
em

ic
al

 c
ha

ng
e,

 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

hy
dr

ol
og

y,
  

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e,

 
vi

br
at

io
n 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 d

ol
ph

in
s 

 

S
om

e 
m

in
im

al
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 S

tr
at

eg
y,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

si
te

s 
in

 th
e 

C
ai

rn
go

rm
s/

C
ai

rn
go

rm
s 

LD
P

 
an

d 
M

or
ay

 L
D

P
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
A

ng
us

 L
D

P
. 

F
ut

ur
e 

LD
P

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 li

ke
 

Lo
ca

l H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
sh

ou
ld

 a
vo

id
 

po
lic

ie
s 

or
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 th
at

 m
ay

 c
au

se
 

da
m

ag
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

LS
E

;  
F

ut
ur

e 
LD

P
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 li
ke

 
Lo

ca
l H

ou
si

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

sh
ou

ld
 c

ha
ng

e 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
r 

ty
pe

 o
f a

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 

da
m

ag
in

g 
pr

op
os

al
;  

F
ut

ur
e 

LD
P

s 
sh

ou
ld

 a
vo

id
 a

llo
ca

tin
g 

si
te

s 
w

hi
ch

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 d

am
ag

es
 s

ite
s.

 
T

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 fu

tu
re

 L
D

P
s 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

ed
 s

o 
th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 

de
pe

nd
en

t o
n 

ke
y 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 
or

 u
pg

ra
di

ng
.  

Lo
w

er
-t

ie
r 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
H

R
A

 a
nd

 E
IA

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

ad
ve

rs
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

ar
e 

fu
lly

 m
iti

ga
te

d 

N
o 

N
o 

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
- 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
R

iv
er

 
D

ee
 li

nk
 

B
uc

ha
n 

N
es

s 
 

to
  C

ol
lie

st
on

 
S

A
C

/S
P

A
, 

G
ar

ro
n 

P
oi

nt
, 

R
ed

 M
os

s 
of

 
N

et
he

rle
y,

 D
ee

 
an

d 
M

or
ay

 
F

irt
h,

 Y
th

an
, 

T
ro

up
 P

en
na

n 
Li

on
’s

 H
ea

d,
 

F
ow

ls
he

ug
h,

 
Lo

ck
 o

f S
ke

ne
, 

Lo
ch

 o
f 

S
tr

at
hb

er
g,

 
S

an
ds

 o
f 

F
or

vi
e  

Y
es

  
H

ab
ita

t l
os

s,
 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l 

im
pa

ct
s,

 
ch

em
ic

al
 c

ha
ng

e,
 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
hy

dr
ol

og
y,

  
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e,
 

vi
br

at
io

n 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 d
ol

ph
in

s  
 

S
om

e 
m

in
im

al
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 S

tr
at

eg
y,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

si
te

s 
in

 th
e 

C
ai

rn
go

rm
s/

C
ai

rn
go

rm
s 

LD
P

 
an

d 
M

or
ay

 L
D

P
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
A

ng
us

 L
D

P
. 

F
ut

ur
e 

LD
P

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 li

ke
 

Lo
ca

l H
ou

si
ng

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
sh

ou
ld

 a
vo

id
 

po
lic

ie
s 

or
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 th
at

 m
ay

 c
au

se
 

da
m

ag
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

LS
E

;  
F

ut
ur

e 
LD

P
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 li
ke

 
th

eL
oc

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

sh
ou

ld
 c

ha
ng

e 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
r 

ty
pe

 o
f a

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 

da
m

ag
in

g 
pr

op
os

al
;  

F
ut

ur
e 

LD
P

s 
sh

ou
ld

 a
vo

id
 a

llo
ca

tin
g 

si
te

s 
w

hi
ch

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 d

am
ag

es
 s

ite
s.

 
T

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 fu

tu
re

 L
D

P
s 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

ed
 s

o 
th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 

de
pe

nd
en

t o
n 

ke
y 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 
or

 u
pg

ra
di

ng
.  

Lo
w

er
-t

ie
r 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
H

R
A

 a
nd

 E
IA

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

ad
ve

rs
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

ar
e 

fu
lly

 m
iti

ga
te

d 

N
o 

N
o 

  
 

   

Page 135



 
4

2
 

5 
C

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 

 F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

sc
re

en
in

g 
of

 t
he

 S
D

P
 a

nd
 t

he
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
of

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s,

 w
e 

ca
n 

co
nc

lu
de

 t
ha

t 
th

is
 S

D
P

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 

ha
ve

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
si

te
s 

lis
te

d 
in

 t
hi

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
ei

th
er

 a
lo

ne
 o

r 
in

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

pl
an

 
or

 o
th

er
 p

la
ns

 o
r 

pr
oj

ec
ts

. N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
. 

Page 136



 1 

COVER NOTE 

SEA ENVIRONMENTAL REPORT 

Cover Page 
PART 1 

To 

Sea.gateway@scotland.gsi.gov.uk 

Or 
SEA Gateway 
Scottish Executive 
Area 1 H (Bridge) 
Victoria quay 
Edinburgh EH 

PART 2 

An SEA Scoping Report is attached for the plan entitled 

 Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan  

The Responsible Authority is:  

 Aberdeenshire Council  

 

PART 3 

 

Contact 
Name 

David Jennings  

   

Job Title Aberdeen City & Shire Strategic Development Plan 

Manager 

 

   

Contact 

Address 

Aberdeen City and Shire SDPA 
27-29 King Street 
Aberdeen 
AB24 5AA 
 

 

   

Contact tel no 01224 628214  

   

Contact email djennings@aberdeencityandshire-sdpa.gov.uk  

   

Page 137



 2 

Signature    

   

Date   

   

   

Page 138



 3 

Contents of Environmental Report 

Cover Page ............................................................................................................... 1 
1 Environmental Report Non Technical Summary ............................................ 5 

1.1 Purpose of this Environmental Report and key stages ................................ 5 
1.2 The Context of the Strategy ......................................................................... 5 
1.3 Baseline/Evolution, Characteristics of Areas & Environmental Problems .... 6 
1.4 Assessment of Effects ................................................................................. 6 
1.5 Broad Mitigation Measures .......................................................................... 9 
1.6 Monitoring .................................................................................................. 10 
1.7 How to Comment on the Report ................................................................ 10 

2. The Main Environmental Report .................................................................... 11 
2.1 Introduction ................................................................................................ 11 
2.2 Key Facts ................................................................................................... 12 
2.3 SEA activities to date ................................................................................. 14 

3. Outline and Objectives of the Aberdeen City and Shire SDP ...................... 16 
3.1 Vision ......................................................................................................... 16 
3.2 Spatial Strategy and Options ..................................................................... 16 
3.3 Alternatives within the Preferred Option .................................................... 17 
3.4 SDP Objectives – Preferred Options and Alternatives ............................... 18 

4 The Context of Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire SDP .............................. 20 
4.1 Relationship with other PPS and environmental protection objectives ...... 20 
4.2 Relevant aspects of the current state of the environment .......................... 22 
4.3 Environmental problems & likely evolution of the environment .................. 23 
4.4 Characteristics of Areas likely to be significantly affected .......................... 29 

5 Assessment Mitigation and Monitoring ........................................................ 30 
5.1 Alternatives to which SEA was applied ...................................................... 30 
5.2 Framework for assessing environmental effects ........................................ 31 
5.3 Cumulative Effect Assessment .................................................................. 31 
5.4 Proposed Mitigation Measures .................................................................. 32 
5.5 Monitoring .................................................................................................. 35 
5.6 An outline of the reasons for selecting the alternatives dealt with ............. 37 
5.7 General Difficulties, Weaknesses and Limitations ..................................... 37 
5.8 Next Steps and Anticipated Milestones ..................................................... 37 

Appendices: Assessments, PPS Context & Baseline ......................................... 45 
Appendix 6.1: Assessment of Spatial Strategy ................................................... 45 
Appendix 6.2 Housing and Employment Land Allocations ................................ 47 
Appendix 6.3: Assessment of Policy Options ..................................................... 50 
Appendix 6.4 Cumulative Effects of the Preferred Options ................................ 53 
Appendix 6.5: Links to other PPS & Environmental Protection Objectives ...... 59 
Appendix 6.6: Baseline data, targets & trends for Aberdeen City & Shire ........ 65 
Appendix 6.6.1: SEA Topic: Air & Climatic Factors ............................................ 65 
Appendix 6.6.2: SEA Topic: Water ........................................................................ 68 
Appendix 6.6.3: SEA Topic: Soil ........................................................................... 70 
Appendix 6.6.4: SEA Topic: Biodiversity (natural heritage designations) ........ 77 
Appendix 6.6.5: Human Health .............................................................................. 81 
Appendix 6.6.6: SEA Topic: Population ............................................................... 83 
Appendix 6.6.7: SEA Topic: Cultural Heritage ..................................................... 87 
Appendix 6.6.8: SEA Topic: Landscape ............................................................... 89 
Appendix 6.6.9: SEA Topic: Material Assets........................................................ 90 

Page 139



 4 

Appendix 6.6.10 Employment Land Supply additional information: ................. 92 
Appendix 7.1.1 Battle of Alford ............................................................................. 93 
Appendix 7.1.2 Battle of Barra .............................................................................. 94 
Appendix 7.1.3 Battle of Fyvie ............................................................................... 95 
Appendix 7.1.3 Battle of Harlaw ............................................................................ 96 
Appendix 7.2.1 Major Soil sub-groups ................................................................. 97 
Appendix 7.2.2 Peaty Podzols ............................................................................... 98 
Appendix 7.2.3 Blanket Peat ................................................................................. 99 
Appendix 7.2.4 Peaty Gleys ................................................................................. 100 
Appendix 7.2.5 Organic Soils .............................................................................. 101 
Appendix 7.3.1 SSSI ............................................................................................. 102 
Appendix 7.3.2 District Wild Life Sites ............................................................... 103 
Appendix 7.3.3 Local Nature Reserves .............................................................. 104 
Appendix 7.3.4 Special Area of Conservation ................................................... 105 
Appendix 7.3.6 Listed Buildings ......................................................................... 107 
Appendix 7.3.8 Townscapes – The Green .......................................................... 109 
Appendix 7.3.9 Designed Garden and Landscapes – Duthie Park .................. 110 
Appendix 7.4.1 International and National Heritage Designations .................. 111 
Appendix 7.4.2 Landscape Designations ........................................................... 112 
Appendix 7.4.3 Archaeological and Listed Buildings ....................................... 113 
Appendix 7.4.4 Local natural heritage designations ......................................... 114 
Appendix 7.4.4 Scheduled Ancient Monuments ................................................ 115 
Appendix 7.4.5 Category C(S) Listed Buildings ................................................ 116 

Page 140



 5 

1 Environmental Report Non Technical Summary  
 
1.1 Purpose of this Environmental Report and key stages 
We have written this environmental report (“the report”) for the Aberdeen City and 
Shire Strategic Development Plan (SDP) under the Environmental Assessment 
(Scotland) Act 2005. The process taken to write this report is called Strategic 
Environmental Assessment (SEA). The reason for undertaking SEA is to address all 
the effects that a plan, programme or strategy (PPS) will have on the environment. 
The overall aim of the process is to protect the environment. Throughout this SEA 
process we have taken the views of others into account before coming to final 
decisions.   
 
The key stages of this SEA are pre-screening, screening, scoping, environmental 
report and post-adoption statement. We do a pre-screening of a plan, as the first 
stage, when we show that a plan is not likely to have any effect on the environment; 
or even it has any effects at all, they will be minimal. After a pre-screening, we will 
do no further SEA. We do a screening of a plan, to replace the first stage, to find out 
whether we should do an SEA at all. When a plan is likely to have significant (i.e. 
very bad, damaging, large or long-lasting) effects on the environment, we will do an 
SEA. But if the effect is not significant, we will not take any further action. At the 
second stage, we scope a plan to set out how much information should be in an 
environmental report and how long we will consult with others on the report. In the 
environmental report, during the third stage, we show how we assess the effects of a 
plan on the environment; how we could address those effects through a process 
called mitigation, and how we will monitor any significant effects of the plan on the 
environment. When we address the concerns of everyone through consultations 
before adopting the plan, we must inform everyone about what difference the SEA 
process and their views have made to the final plan. And we do this through a post-
adoption statement. Because of the nature of the plan, we skipped the first stage of 
the process and began by scoping the plan. During the third stage, we prepared an 
interim environmental report for the Main Issues. This report assesses the effects of 
the Strategic Development Plan on the environment. 
 
1.2 The Context of the Strategy 
Before this SDP was prepared, the Main Issues Report was used to engage with the 
public, focusing on the main strategic issues and options facing Aberdeen and 
Aberdeenshire and for the policies that will guide development. The engagement 
helped us note changes we must make to the options and to the strategic 
development plan. This proposed Strategic Development Plan broadly shows how 
we have allocated land for housing and employment over 3 phases up to 2035.  
 
To guide and help us deliver what we plan to do in the Strategic Development Plan 
and other related strategies like the Local Development Plans, Local Housing 
Strategy and the Local Transport Strategy, we have made use of high-level 
documents and statements such as National Planning Framework, Strategic 
Transport Projects Review, Regional Transport Strategy and Aberdeen City and 
Shire Economic Future’s Economic Manifesto. We have also used 56 documents in 
the SEA to influence how we will influence this strategy, and these documents cover: 

� framework and policies at national level 
� climate and flooding 

Page 141



 6 

� low carbon economy and energy  
� the water environment 
� biodiversity (plant and animal life on the land and in the water) 
� sustainable development 
� transport and air quality issues 
� historic environment and landscape 
� housing 
� design  
� soil and pollution 
� how we manage our waste 
� equality 
� ageing, exercise and health 

 
This Environmental Report covers the key issues, outcomes, topics and processes 
of the SEA process listed at paragraph 1-9 of Schedule 3 of the 2005 Act.  
 
1.3 Baseline/Evolution, Characteristics of Areas & Environmental Problems  
We have identified a number of problems and issues in Aberdeen and 
Aberdeenshire. In this section, we have listed the significant environmental problems 
and issues that we have considered in this report. We also use this section to say 
how baseline information in the area looks like. These issues show the challenges 
we must deal with through this Plan.  

� We have serious air quality problems in some areas in Aberdeen called Air 
Quality Management Areas. The increasing number of cars, trucks and 
vehicles that pass through the City worsens this.  This problem is not as 
serious in Aberdeenshire. 

� We burn a lot of fuel to heat our homes and to drive our cars. This is 
pumping more CO2 into the air and causing our carbon and ecological 
footprints to rise.  

� Future climate change will affect how much water we will have and how 
stable our soils will be.  

� How we throw away waste can also affect our soils, water and climate. But 
new ways of how we manage waste has improved this. 

� The area is rich in cultural heritage and has distinctive landscapes, but the 
houses we have built in the past has put pressure on these resources. But 
new housing development offers the opportunity to improve the efficiency of 
our homes and create landscapes. 

� New buildings are putting pressure on animal and plant life (biodiversity).  
� When we have good parks or open spaces, people will want to build and live 

around them.  
� The make-up of the population is an issue that needs to be considered for 

future development. For example, there are a range of age groups living in 
the area, but because we are living longer there will be an increased 
proportion of older people, and there is an increase in people coming to live 
here from other countries. 

 
 
 

1.4 Assessment of Effects    
We have put together how the Strategic Development Plan could effect the 
environment in Table 1.1 below. 

Page 142



 7 

Table 1.1: Assessment of Effects 
 
SEA Issue Plan Impact 
Air  On the whole we found that the effects of the plan on the air 

to be mixed (i.e. positive and negative). The effects are 
however not significant. Some localised air quality issues are 
likely in parts of Aberdeen. Where biomass is likely to be 
encouraged there could be problems with air quality. Because 
of the improvements we expect as we develop new 
infrastructure, the effect of the plan on air quality will also be 
positive. 

Climatic factors We found that the effects of the plan on climatic factors are 
mixed (i.e. positive, negative & neutral). Because of the 
improvements we expect through new infrastructure, the 
effect of the plan on climatic factors is not significant across 
the City and the Shire. The potential increased car and 
energy use in homes and work places may make the effect of 
the plan on climate significant in the long term. 

Water We think that the effects of this plan on water will be negative 
and significant. Although the additional amount of water 
abstracted should be small, some development works like 
infrastructure development, particularly across the Dee as 
well as pollution from agricultural activities can affect the 
general water environment. 

Soil Through house building and development, there will be soil 
loss, soil sealing, soil erosion and soil structural degradation. 
We think that the effects are significant.  However, the 
availability of improved waste management technologies 
means that we do not expect contamination from these 
activities.  

Biodiversity (flora and 
fauna) 

The overall effects on biodiversity are mixed. If we develop 
67,500 new houses in the area, we must take some 
greenfield sites, fragment habitat and lose species and 
habitats and disturb other species. The River Dee and other 
protected areas are the home to some protected species like 
otter, salmon and freshwater pearl mussel. Taking too much 
water can harm them. 

Population  The overall effects of the plan on people are very positive. 
The scale of development proposed is significant. If 
implemented, many people in Aberdeen City and 
Aberdeenshire will potentially find houses to buy and rent. 

Health The overall effects of the plan on people’s health are mixed.  
Positive in some cases but negative in some others. If traffic 
from new development makes air quality worse it may have a 
negative affect on human health but overall the effects are 
not thought to be significant. 

Cultural Heritage We found that the effects of the SDP to be negative although 
not significant on the historic environment. Design policies will 

Page 143



 8 

make the impact small. 
Landscape We found that the effects of the SDP on landscape to be 

mixed but not significant.  Development that can be seen 
from lots of places can have negative affects on views and 
scenery.  

Material Assets The overall effect of the plan on wealth creation through new 
buildings and roads is very significantly positive. 

 

Page 144



 9 

1.5 Broad Mitigation Measures  

Some of the options and projects that flow from the SDP will have to do 
environmental impact assessments (EIAs) as appropriate.  Those options which 
promote new developments that are likely to have adverse affects on the integrity of 
Natura 2000 sites or projects should be subject to appropriate assessment. For the 
strategic options, policies, and sites we have assessed, we have shown how we 
would address their negative or positive affects in Table 1.2 below:   
 
Table 1.2: Mitigation Measures 
 
SEA Issue Mitigation Measures 
Water We will work with public bodies to regulate the amount of water taken 

from the Dee. We must promote policies that develop infrastructure to 
service new developments and to use water efficient technologies. 
Future plans should provide for drainage impact assessment and 
SUDs. Sites likely to flood should not be allocated; they should serve as 
buffer strips. Lower levels plans should provide for EIAs and HRAs. 
Future plans should do everything to improve the ecological status of 
water bodies.  

Soil We will make sure that development avoids peat soils. We will ensure 
that designs should avoid pouring concrete of many surfaces and 
encourage landscaping. Structure planting and landscaping so be done 
in such a way as to avoid soil erosion and soil loss. 

Biodiversity 
(flora and 
fauna) 

We will put policies in place through lower-tier plans to make sure that 
more brownfield land are used before green field sites. We will ensure 
that land that is poor in biodiversity is developed rather than land that is 
rich in biodiversity so that we do not lose as many of our species and 
habitats. We will request that lower HRAs and EIAs are undertaken for 
developments that are likely to affect protected species and habitats. 
We will continue to talk and agree with bodies charged with managing 
water.   

Climatic 
factors 

We will seek to enhance (i.e. add value to) the positive impacts as we 
work with our partners. We will look to reduce car dependence and 
provide people with choice on how they travel. We will have a mix of 
houses, jobs, shops and schools close together so that these uses are 
more easily reached by non motorised transport. We will avoid building 
on land which can be flooded. We will make sure buildings need less 
heat and electricity. Future land allocation will not be on peat soil. 

Material 
Assets 

We will make sure that lower-tier plans have policies that promote 
quality of developments - roads, drains, houses, workplaces, schools 
and hospitals. We will also ensure that more materials are recycled.  

Population  We will encourage the provision of services, jobs, houses and facilities 
that cater for all sectors of society, old and young. We will avoid 
building where there are risks to health like areas of bad air quality or 
smell. 

 

Page 145



 10 

1.6 Monitoring 
We will monitor the significant negative and positive affects of the plan through the 
monitoring plan that we have set out in the environmental report. We have stated 
what actions we must carry out, who must carry out each of the actions and when 
we must carry them out.  
 
1.7 How to Comment on the Report 
If you would like to express your views on this environmental report, please send 
your comments to: 
  
David Jennings 
Strategic Development Plan Manager 
Aberdeen City and Shire SDPA 
27-29 King Street 
Aberdeen 
AB24 5AA 
 
Telephone 01224 628214 
 
. 
 
 

Page 146



 11 

2. The Main Environmental Report 
 
2.1 Introduction 
As part of preparing Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan (SDP), we 
(Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority) have carried 
out a Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA).  SEA is a systematic method for 
considering the likely environmental effects of certain PPS on the environment.  SEA 
aims to integrate environmental factors into PPS preparation and decision-making; 
improve PPS and enhance environmental protection; increase public participation in 
decision making; and facilitate openness and transparency of decision-making. 
 

SEA is required by the Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005. The key 
SEA stages include screening, scoping, environmental report, adoption and 
monitoring. In screening we aim to determine whether the PPS is likely to have 
significant environmental effects and whether an SEA is required. In scoping, we 
decide on the scope and level of detail for the Environmental Report, and how long 
we will consult with Consultation Authorities. In the Environmental Report, we 
publish the environmental effects of the PPS on the environment and show we will 
mitigate significant adverse effects and enhance significant positive effects. Through 
a post-adoption statement we provide information on the adopted PPS; how the 
consultation processes have been taken into account; and methods for monitoring 
the significant environmental effects of the implementation of the PPS. We will also 
have to monitor significant environmental effects in such a manner that we can 
identify any unforeseen adverse effects at an early stage and undertake appropriate 
remedial action.  
 
The purpose of this Environmental Report is to provide information on the Aberdeen 
City and Shire Strategic Development Plan; identify, describe and evaluate the likely 
significant effects of the PPS and its reasonable alternatives; and provide an early 
and effective opportunity for the Consultation Authorities and the public to offer 
views on any aspect of this Environmental Report. The SEA process for this SDP 
involved the preparation of a scoping report and a subsequent interim environmental 
report for the Main Issues Report. Following a further development of the SDP and 
the analysis of comments on the Main Issues Report and the Interim Environmental 
Report we have now prepared this Environmental Report. 
 
The organisation of the sections of this report begins with a non-technical summary 
at Section 1. Section 2 covers this introduction, key facts and SEA activities to date.  
Next, Section 3 describes the content and the alternatives of the PPS while Section 
4 discusses the issues that set the context for the strategy such as other PPS and 
environmental protection objectives, baseline data, the  evolution of the baseline 
without the PPS; and environmental problems relevant to the plan. Section 5 then 
looks at the scope and level of details comprising alternatives, and assessment 
framework, cumulative effects assessment, mitigation and monitoring as well as 
general weaknesses of the report and difficulties we have faced. The next steps are 
outlined in this section, while the Appendices occupy Section 6. Maps can be found 
in Section 7. 
 
 
 

Page 147



 12 

2.2 Key Facts 
 
The key facts relating to the Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan 
are set out in Table 2.1 below. 
 
Table 2.1: Key Facts relating to the Strategic Development Plan 
 
Name of 
Responsible 
Authority  

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Authority 

Title of the PPS Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan 
What Prompted 
the PPS 

Planning & etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 

Subject Land Use 
Period Covered 
by the PPS 

2011 to 2035 

Frequency of 
Updates 

Every five years  

Area covered by 
the PPS 

The Strategic Development Plan covers all of Aberdeen City and 
Aberdeenshire excepting that part of Aberdeenshire that forms part 
of the Cairngorms National Park. (As shown in Figure 2.1 below) 

Purpose and/or 
objectives of the 
PPS 

To set the framework for the development of land across the city 
region 

Contact Point David Jennings 
Strategic Development Plan Manager 
Aberdeen City and Shire SDPA 
27-29 King Street 
Aberdeen 
AB24 5AA 
 
Telephone 01224 628214 

Page 148



 13 

Figure 2.1: Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan Area  
 

 
Source: The Scottish Government (Circular 3/2008) 
Due to OS licence conditions you/your agent may only use this map for official business dealings with 
The Scottish Government. If you wish to use the map for other uses, you must first obtain a separate 
licence from OS. 
Crown Copyright © The Scottish Government 100020540 2008 
Produced 07.10.2008 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 149



 14 

2.3 SEA activities to date 
 

Table 2.2 summarises the SEA activities to date in relation to the Environmental 
Report for the Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan  
 

Table 2.2: SEA activities to date 

SEA Action/Activity When 
carried out 

Notes 
(e.g. comment on data availability, 

particular issues or any advice from 
the Consultation Authorities that has 

now been taken into account) 
Scoping the consultation periods and the 
level of detail to be included in the 
Environmental Report for the Main Issues 
Report 

2 July 2010 – 
3 August 
2010 

All advice has been taken into 
account 

Outline and objectives of the PPS September  
2010 

Discussed with partners 

Relationship with other PPS and 
environmental objectives 

October 2010 Updated using suggestions from 
consultation authorities 

Environmental baseline established October 2010 
– February 
2011 

Revised and updated particularly 
for air quality and waste data 

Environmental problems identified March 2011 In conjunction with the main 
issues report  

Assessment of future of area without the 
PPS 

April 2011 As part of the baseline data 
collection  

Alternatives considered May 2011 Listed in the main issues report  
Environmental assessment methods 
established 

June 2011 Based on the suggested 
methodology in the Scoping 
Report 

Selection of PPS alternatives to be included 
in the environmental assessment 

July  2011 Circumscribed by currently 
planning legislation on 
modernised planning   

Identification of environmental problems 
that may persist after implementation and 
measures envisaged to prevent, reduce 
and offset any significant adverse effects 

August 2011 Reviewed to identify any changes 
since the scoping report was 
consulted on 

Monitoring methods proposed September 
2011 

Broad brush and tentative to be 
revised when the SDP is prepared 

Preparation and Consultation on the Interim 
Environmental Report for the Main Issues 
Report 

7 October 
2011 – 5 Jan 
2012 

At the same time as the MIR 

Taking account of the consultation outcome 
in formation of the final environmental 
report 

June – July 
2012 

As reported in Table 5.3  

Agreeing on the alternatives and options to 
be used in the final environmental report 

July 2012 Consider reasonable alternatives 
taking into account previous plans 
and the MIR 

Assessing the effects of the SDP, 
mitigating effects, firming monitoring 
measures and strategic flood risk 
assessment. 

July 2012 Based on the methodology agreed 
and modified for cumulative 
effects assessment 

Agreement of Environmental Report and September - Consideration by the SDPA, 

Page 150



 15 

Proposed Strategic Development Plan for 
publication. 

October 
2012 

Aberdeenshire Council and 
Aberdeen City Council 

Publication of Environmental Report 
alongside the Proposed Strategic 
Development Plan for consultation 

November – 
December 
2012 

7 Week period for representations 
on both documents, closing on 21 
December 2012. 

   
 

Page 151



 16 

3. Outline and Objectives of the Aberdeen City and Shire SDP 
 

The Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005 requires that the Environmental 
Report includes “an outline of the contents and main objectives of the plan or 
programme”.  The purpose of this section is to explain the nature, contents, objectives 
and timescale of the SDP.  The content of the SDP report and its options are listed in 
Table 3.1 – Table 3.3 below . 
 
3.1 Vision 
 

Aberdeen City and Shire will be an even more attractive, prosperous and sustainable 
European city region and an excellent place to live, visit and to do business. We will 
be recognised for:  

· our enterprise and inventiveness, particularly in the knowledge economy and in 
high-value markets 

· The unique qualities of our environment; and  
· our high  quality of life 

We will have acted confidently and taken the courageous decisions necessary to 
further develop a robust and resilient economy and lead the way towards development 
being sustainable, including dealing with climate change and creating a more inclusive 
society. 
 
3.2 Spatial Strategy and Options 
 

The spatial strategy deals with the land use allocations and the way in which these will 
be delivered. In determining reasonable alternatives for the spatial strategy we have to 
look at the reasonable strategies developed in the north east over the past years and 
analysed them in light of the modernised planning system. The options/alternative 
available therefore include the spatial strategies for (i) Aberdeen City and Shire 
Structure Plan, (ii) North East Scotland Together (dispersal model) and (iii) 
Modification of (i) and (ii) with emphasis on development concentrated in the City. It is 
envisaged that 76.4% of all the developments (51,600 houses) will take place within 
the Strategic Growth Areas with the remaining 23.6% of developments (15,900 
houses) reserved for Local Growth and Diversification Areas/Regeneration Priority 
Areas. 46.7% of all the developments are in the City while 53.3% of the developments 
are in the Shire. 
 
The preferred option combines development in (a) Strategic Growth Areas where 
about half of the developments will take place within the Huntly to Laurencekirk road 
and rail transport corridor stretching 66 miles and other developments along the 
Aberdeen to Peterhead corridor with significant development potential. It also includes 
development in (b) local growth and diversification areas and (c) regeneration priority 
areas. Table 3.1 shows these strategic options. Two other alternatives considered are 
listed in the table below.  
 
Table 3.1 Spatial Strategy 
Options and Alternatives  
Preferred Option  This option retains the proposals in the last Aberdeen 

City and Shire Structure Plan. This means that most 
developments will be in (i) the Strategic Growth areas, 
with further developments in (ii) the Regeneration Priority 

Page 152



 17 

and (iii) Local Growth and Diversification areas. Around 
half of the developments will be in Aberdeen City. 46.7% 
of all the developments are in the City while 53.3% of the 
developments are in the Shire. 

Alternative 1 This option focuses the majority of development in 
Aberdeen City. This option will allocate around 60-75% 
of all developments in the City with fewer developments 
in the Shire.  

Alternative 2 This option disperses most of the developments (60-
75%) in Aberdeenshire, and allows only a smaller 
proportion of allocations in the City.  

 
 
3.3 Alternatives within the Preferred Option  
In the preferred option, most of the allocations are within Ellon - Blackdog, Portlethen 
– Stonehaven and Inverurie - Pitcaple corridors. For the Alternative 1, the bulk of the 
allocation is proposed for the Portlethen – Stonehaven corridor. There is no allocation 
for Ellon – Blackdog corridor in this alternative.  In alternative 2, the developments are 
proposed to be concentrated within Inverurie – Blackburn and Portlethen – 
Stonehaven corridors. Table 3.2 below shows how housing and employment land will 
be allocated based the preferred option. From the assessments, the preferred option 
has the least effect on the environment.  
 
 
Table 3.2 Alternatives to the preferred Option 
Aberdeenshire Preferred 

Option 
Alternative 1 Alternative 2 

Housing (SGA)    
· Huntley - Pitcaple 1000 800 1000 
· Inverurie - Blackburn 6500 1000 10000 
· Portlethen - Stonehaven 5600 13900 8000 
· South of Dumlithie - 

Laurencekirk 
1000 1200 1200 

· Peterhead - Hatton 2200 2200 2000 
· Ellon - Blackdog 3800 0 500 

Housing (Other areas)    
· Local Growth Area    
· Regeneration Priority Areas    

Employment land (New/Reserve)    
· Huntley – Laurencekirk  175 175 175 
· Blackdog - Peterhead 88 88 88 

Aberdeen City    
Housing (SGA)    

· City Area 31000 31000 31000 
· Regeneration priority areas    

Employment land (New/Reserve)    
· City Area 175 175 175 

Page 153



 18 

 
3.4 SDP Objectives – Preferred Options and Alternatives 
In choosing options and alternatives for the SDP objectives, we have taken into 
account the outcome of the consultation on the Main Issues Report and the 
relevance of the Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan for the future of the City 
region. Moreover, the National Planning Framework, Scottish Planning Policy and 
other national policies circumscribe the policy choices that can be made. Besides, 
because of the modernised planning system, we consider that the reasonable 
alternatives will revolve around changes in successive plans. Thus the preferred 
objectives are those proposed for the SDP. These versions are an improvement 
upon the objectives in the last plan. Alternatives referred to as “Alternative objective 
1” are those in Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan. Table 3.3 below shows how 
new objectives for the SDP have been modified and/or differs from previous 
objectives. 
 
 
Table 3.3: Preferred SDP Options and Alternative Objectives  
 SDP Objectives  
Preferred Option  Economic growth - This covers employment land allocation, 

high-speed communication, innovation, retail and tourism, 
viability of town centres, regional shopping facilities, Energetica 
area, infrastructure needs protected and improved, supporting 
freight by rail and sea. In addition it seeks to roll-out high-speed 
broadband throughout the area, improve high-speed digital 
communications networks and support regional assets such as 
Aberdeen airport and the region’s main ports as means of 
accessing international markets and providing services to 
Orkney and Shetland.  
 

Alternative 
Objective 1  

Economic growth (Structure plan). It covers employment land 
allocation, high-speed communication, innovation, retail and 
tourism, viability of town centres, regional shopping facilities, 
Energetica area, infrastructure which needs protected and 
improved, supporting freight by rail and sea.  

Alternative 2  Sustainable Economic growth – This is the Main Issues 
Report objective. This is essentially taken into account in the 
preferred option and considers that a low-carbon economy 
(providing renewable energy and associated infrastructure and 
wider energy-related initiatives) brings economic benefits. 
Connectivity, transport infrastructure and digital infrastructure 
are at the heart of the main issue.  
 

Preferred Option Sustainable development and Climate Change – Reducing 
carbon dioxide emissions, adapting to climate change effects 
and limiting the use of non-renewable resources – design and 
use of new development to be resource efficient having minimal  
environmental impacts, supply and demand management of 
energy, renewable energy use, upgrading grid, tacking flooding, 
managing waste according to waste hierarchy and proximity 
principles, managing water use. In addition, it  encourages 

Page 154



 19 

increased energy efficiency in existing and new buildings, 
potential use of supplementary guidance to promote CO2 
reductions in buildings through sustainability labelling, CHP in 
larger developments, reduced emissions from power stations, 
offshore wind, energy from waste, solar, biomass and 
ground/water/air source heat pumps, upgraded electricity grid, 
carbon capture, more emphasis on  waste hierarchy, 75% of 
capacity in SGAs close to Aberdeen and the use of  self 
sufficiency and time-extension, regional concentration options. 

Alternative 
objective 1 

Sustainable development and Climate Change (Structure 
Plan).  
Reducing carbon dioxide emissions, adapting to climate change 
effects and limiting the use of non-renewable resources – 
design and use of new development to be resource efficient 
having minimal  environmental impacts, supply and demand 
management of energy, renewable energy use, upgrading grid, 
tacking flooding, managing waste according to waste hierarchy 
and proximity principles, managing water use 

Alternative 
objective 2 

No specific topic on sustainable development and climate 
change but separate objectives under waste management 
(import, export, self sufficiency); Landfill (time extension, site 
extension, new sites); The Policy and Spatial Framework for 
waste covers the existing spatial strategy, regional 
concentration and identifying sites); carbon neutrality in new 
development (status quo, building regulations, labelling); water 
efficiency (do nothing, labelling silver, gold); carbon capture; 
high voltage lines. 

Preferred Option Population Growth – 500 000 
Alternative Population Growth – 480 000 
Preferred Option Quality of the Environment (SDP). Improved Quality of the 

urban environment resulting from additional measures taken in 
Sustainable Development and Climate Change such as 
improving the efficiency of the existing housing stock 

Alternative Quality of the Environment  (Structure Plan)  
Preferred Option Sustainable Mixed Communities (SDP). To the extent that 

CHPs are being encouraged in larger developments, there is 
the possibility that mixed communities are likely to be more 
sustainable. 

Alternative Sustainable Mixed Communities (Structure Plan) 
Preferred Option Accessibility (SDP) Strategic Transport Fund has now been 

introduced to enable delivery of transport projects compared 
with the last structure plan. A range of transport proposals to 
deal with the cumulative impact of new development on the 
transport network including bus service, priority and frequency 
measures; junction improvements on the A96, A944, A956, 
A90, Kingswells North and Parkhill; safety improvements on the 
access road to the A93; Parkway and Persley Bridge 
improvements; and a River Dee link 

Alternatives  Accessibility (Structure Plan) 

Page 155



 20 

 
4 The Context of Aberdeen City and Shire SDP 
 
4.1 Relationship with other PPS and environmental protection objectives  
 
The Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005 requires that the Environmental 
Report includes an outline of the relationships with other relevant PPS and how 
environmental protection objectives have been taken into account in the PPS 
preparation. This section covers these issues and describes the policy context within 
which the PPS operates, and the constraints and targets that this context imposes 
on the PPS. The PPS’s thought to have an influence on or be influenced by the SDP 
are identified in Table 4.1 and in more detail in Appendix 6.5  
 
Consistent with Article 4(3) and Article 5(2) of Directive 2001/42/EC, if a higher level 
PPS and environmental protection objectives have fully been translated into UK and 
Scottish legislation, and no new objective is derived by maintaining the first PPS or 
objective, then the review in this Strategic Development Plan would be confined to 
latest and/or most comprehensive PPS so as to avoid duplication. In addition only 
those PPS and environmental protection objectives which are particularly relevant to 
the Strategic Development Plan have been reviewed as it is not meaningful to 
identify every possible plan or programme. Rather, the key plans only have been 
identified. 
 

Table 4.1: Other relevant PPS & environmental protective objectives of the 
Strategic Development Plan  

International Level 
1. The Habitats Directive 92/43/EEC 
2. The Birds Directive 2009/147/EC 
3. European Biodiversity Framework 
4. The Landfill Directive 99/31/EC 
5. The Waste Framework Directive 2008/98/EC 
6. Water Framework Directive 2000/60/EC 
National Level 
1. National Planning Framework for Scotland 2 (NPF2) (2009) 
2. Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) (2010) 
3. Scotland’s National Transport Strategy (2006) 
4. Strategic Transport Projects Review (2009) 
5. The Government Economic Strategy (2011) 
6. Choosing Our Future: Scotland’s Sustainable Development Strategy (2005) 
7. Natural Resource Productivity (2009) 
8. Scottish Climate Change Delivery Plan (2009) 
9. Air Quality Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland (2007) 
10. Towards a Low Carbon Economy for Scotland: Discussion Paper (2010) 
11. The Scottish Historic Environment Policy (2009)  
12. Designing Places: A Policy Statement for Scotland (2001) 
13. Scottish Executive (2006) People and Place: Regeneration Policy Statement 
14. The Scottish Soil Framework (2009) 
15. Scottish Landscape Forum’ (2007) Scotland’s living landscapes 

Page 156



 21 

16. Firm Foundations – The Future of Housing in Scotland – A Discussion Document 
(2007) 

17. Infrastructure Investment Plan (2011) 
18. Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 
19. The Nature Conservation (Scotland) Act 2004 
20. Scotland's Biodiversity: It's in Your Hands. A strategy for the conservation and 

enhancement of biodiversity in Scotland (2004) 
21. The Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.) Regulations 1994 (as amended)  
22. The Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.) Amendment (Scotland) Regulations 

2007 
23. All Our Futures: Planning for a Scotland with an Ageing Population (2007) 
24. Scottish Executive Reaching Higher – Building on the Success of Sport 21(2007) 
25. Lets Make Scotland More Active: a strategy for physical activity (2003) 
26. Equality Act 2010 
27. ‘Making the Links: greenspace for a more successful and sustainable Scotland’ 

(2009) 
28. Water Environment (Controlled Activities) (Scotland) Regulations 2011 
29. Water Environment and Water Services (Scotland) Act (WEWS) 2003 
30. The Flood Risk Management (Scotland) Act 2009 
31. River Basin Management Plan for Scotland (2009) 
32. Scottish Water Strategic Asset & Capacity Development Plan (2009) 
33. SEPA Indicative Flood Map (2006) 
34. SEPA Groundwater Protection Policy for Scotland v3: Environmental Policy 19 

(2009) 
35. Action Programme for Nitrate Vulnerable Zones (Scotland) Regulations 2008 
36. Our Seas – a shared resource. High Level Marine Objectives (2009) 
37. Marine (Scotland) Act 2010 
38. Scotland’s Zero Waste Plan (2010) 
Regional level 
39. Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan 2009 
40. Nestrans Regional Transport Strategy 2021 (2008) 
41. ‘Building on Energy Delivering the Vision for 2025’ - The Economic Action Plan 

for Aberdeen City and Shire (2008) 
42. North East Scotland Local Biodiversity Action Plan (2000) 
43. Forest and Woodland Strategy for Aberdeenshire and Aberdeen (2005) 
44. River Dee Catchment Management Plan (2007) 
45. The North East Area Management Plan (2010) 
46. Tay Area Management Plan (draft) 
Local Level 
47. Core Paths and Access Strategies 

a. Aberdeen City Council 
b. Aberdeenshire Council 

48. Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2012 
49. Aberdeen City Local Development Plan 2012 
50. Aberdeen City Air Quality Action Plan 2011 
51. Aberdeen City Waste Strategy 2010-2025  
 

Page 157



 22 

The key points relevant for the Strategic Development Plan and the SEA, drawn 
from identifying common themes arising in the objectives of these plans and 
programmes are to: 
 

· Promote sustainable development within the Strategic Development Plan 
area; 

· Support strategies that aim to limit or reduce the emissions of greenhouse 
gases; 

· Focus on the sustainable use of natural resources and encourage increased 
use of renewable energy resources and more efficient use of energy; 

· Promote sustainable economic development and regeneration;  
· Encourage sustainable transport, waste management, regeneration of 

previously developed land and rural development; 
· Promote sustainable alternatives to car and reduce congestion and traffic 

pollution through walking, cycling and the location of facilities; 
· Promote good design, safe environment, clean environment and good quality 

services; 
· Protect and enhance biodiversity, species and habitats. Avoid adverse effects 

on biodiversity, including protected sites and species, but also in relation to 
wider ecological networks;   

· Promote the sustainable management of soils. Explore scope to achieve 
enhancement of soil resources, including through derelict and contaminated 
land remediation and redevelopment; 

· Maintain, protect and enhance landscape character, including character of the 
built environment. Protect designated and less formally recognised historic 
buildings, sites and landscapes; 

· Promote sustainable and efficient use of water and enhance the 
environmental quality of water and the biodiversity it supports; 

· Avoid adverse effects on the water environment or add to or create any 
significant flood risks and actively promote sustainable flood risk 
management;  

· Promote strategies that do not degrade the coastal environment 
· Promote mitigation and adaption to the effects of climate change; 
· Set the framework for development consents for major residential, 

commercial, retail, employment, infrastructure and sports developments; 
· Reduce social exclusion and inequalities;  
· Address housing need and demand, including affordable housing. 

 
 
 
4.2 Relevant aspects of the current state of the environment  
 
Schedule 3 of the Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005 requires the 
Environmental Report to include a description of “the relevant aspects of the current 
state of the environment and the likely evolution thereof without the implementation 
of the Plan or Programme”, and “the environmental characteristics of areas likely to 
be significantly affected”.  The provision of this information allows a description of 
the relevant environmental context within which the Strategic Development Plan will 

Page 158



 23 

operate and the constraints and targets that this context imposes on the PPS. The 
detailed analysis of the baseline data is presented in Appendix 6.6.  
 
4.3 Environmental problems & likely evolution of the environment  
Environmental problems that affect the PPS were identified through an analysis of 
baseline data relevant to Aberdeen City and Shire and previous SEAs. Most of the 
problems emerging from the analysis of baseline data and discussions are being 
addressed through the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, Aberdeenshire Local 
Development Plan and other lower-tier PPS like core path plans and local transport 
strategies. The remaining strategic problems relevant to this Strategic Development 
Plan are those summarised in Table 4.2 below. 
 
Without this PPS it is envisaged that the likely future changes to the environmental 
baseline are inevitable due to natural processes but also due to human interventions 
that are unconnected with the strategy. A number of the PPS listed in Table 4.1 will 
involve physical development which will have environmental consequences; both 
positive and adverse. It should be noted that the existing environmental problems 
described in the previous section would persist in the absence of the strategy being 
introduced. Potential changes to the environmental baseline without the strategy 
discussed under the environmental issues are listed in Table 4.2 below. 
  

Page 159



 
24

 

T
ab

le
 4

.2
 E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l P

ro
b

le
m

s 
&

 li
ke

ly
 e

vo
lu

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

th
e 

S
D

P
 

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l 
T

o
p

ic
 

Is
su

es
/T

re
n

d
s 

L
ik

el
y 

ev
o

lu
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
o

u
t 

th
e 

S
D

P
 

P
o

ss
ib

le
 r

o
le

 o
f 

S
D

P
 

B
io

di
ve

rs
ity

, 
flo

ra
 &

 fa
un

a 
· 

P
ot

en
tia

l d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 to
 a

nd
 lo

ss
 o

f 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 fr

om
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

· 
C

on
tin

ui
ng

 n
ee

d 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 in
te

rn
at

io
na

lly
, 

na
tio

na
lly

 a
nd

 lo
ca

lly
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
si

te
s,

 a
nd

 
en

ha
nc

e 
w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e.
 

· 
D

ec
re

as
e 

an
d/

or
 fr

ag
m

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 s

em
i-

na
tu

ra
l h

ab
ita

ts
. 

·  
P

ot
en

tia
l i

m
pa

ct
s 

on
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 a
nd

 n
on

 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

sp
ec

ie
s 

fr
om

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
·  

P
ot

en
tia

l l
os

s 
of

 g
re

en
 s

pa
ce

, g
re

en
 

lin
ka

ge
s 

an
d 

w
ild

lif
e 

co
rr

id
or

s 
to

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
. 

·  
P

re
ss

ur
e 

on
 R

iv
er

 D
ee

 S
A

C
 fr

om
 fu

rt
he

r 
ab

st
ra

ct
io

n 
of

 w
at

er
 a

nd
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

sp
ec

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
S

A
C

. 

· 
T

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

fe
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
S

D
P

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 o

cc
ur

. 
· 

M
ay

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
fu

rt
he

r 
de

fr
ag

m
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
ha

bi
ta

ts
, l

os
s 

of
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 d

ue
 to

 
un

pl
an

ne
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

n 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 
se

ns
iti

ve
 a

nd
/o

r 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 a
re

as
. 

·  
O

th
er

 P
P

S
 m

ay
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t t

re
nd

s 
an

d 
is

su
es

. 

· 
T

he
 S

D
P

 c
ou

ld
 p

ro
te

ct
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 

th
ro

ug
h 

m
in

im
is

in
g 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

an
d 

no
n 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
de

si
gn

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

es
. T

he
 s

pa
tia

l 
st

ra
te

gy
 m

ay
 a

ss
is

t w
ith

 th
is

. 
· 

T
he

 S
D

P
 c

an
 o

nl
y 

in
di

re
ct

ly
 in

flu
en

ce
 

th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f d

es
ig

na
te

d 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

si
te

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ol
lin

g 
la

nd
 u

se
 

ch
an

ge
s 

ar
ou

nd
 th

es
e 

si
te

s.
 

· 
T

he
 S

D
P

 c
an

 h
el

p 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 ta

rg
et

s 
by

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
po

lic
ie

s.
 

·  
T

he
 S

D
P

 c
an

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 w
ith

in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t e

.g
. 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
qu

iri
ng

 g
re

en
sp

ac
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n.
 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
· 

C
oa

le
sc

en
ce

 o
f c

om
m

un
iti

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
ur

ba
n 

ex
pa

ns
io

n/
rib

bo
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

·  
Lo

ss
 o

f d
iv

er
si

ty
 in

 th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
its

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r.

 
·  

C
ap

ac
ity

 o
f l

an
ds

ca
pe

s 
to

 a
bs

or
b 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 c

ha
ng

e.
 

· 
Im

pa
ct

 o
n 

un
de

ve
lo

pe
d,

 r
em

ot
e 

an
d 

w
ild

 
co

un
tr

ys
id

e 
an

d 
co

as
ts

. 
·  

E
ro

si
on

 o
f r

ur
al

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 th

ro
ug

h 
su

bu
rb

an
is

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
in

tr
us

io
n 

of
 n

oi
se

 
an

d 
lig

ht
 p

ol
lu

tio
n.

 
· 

P
ot

en
tia

l o
f l

ar
ge

 s
ca

le
 w

in
df

ar
m

s 
to

 
ad

ve
rs

el
y 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
la

nd
sc

ap
e.

 

· 
G

re
en

fie
ld

 s
ite

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 o

n 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 
br

ow
nf

ie
ld

 s
ite

s 
th

us
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

an
d 

no
t a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
th

e 
is

su
e 

of
 

re
ge

ne
ra

tin
g 

br
ow

nf
ie

ld
 s

ite
s 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 

ha
ve

 la
nd

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n 

is
su

es
. 

·  
T

he
re

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

gr
ea

te
r 

ris
k 

of
 u

np
la

nn
ed

 
an

d 
sp

or
ad

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ot
en

tia
lly

 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

se
ns

iti
ve

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
rs

 
an

d 
di

lu
tin

g 
ru

ra
l c

ha
ra

ct
er

. 
·  

S
po

ra
di

c 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ou

ld
 r

es
ul

t i
n 

po
ck

et
s 

of
 n

oi
se

 a
nd

 li
gh

t p
ol

lu
tio

n.
 

· 
T

he
 a

bs
en

ce
 o

f a
 d

es
ig

n 
po

lic
y 

co
ul

d 
af

fe
ct

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

 b
ui

lt 
e n

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
af

fe
ct

 s
en

se
 o

f p
la

ce
. 

· 
T

he
 S

D
P

 s
ho

ul
d 

ta
ke

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
se

tti
ng

 in
to

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
w

he
n 

de
te

rm
in

in
g 

th
e 

sp
at

ia
l s

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

se
tti

ng
 th

e 
di

re
ct

io
n 

fo
r 

pl
an

ne
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

·  
T

he
 S

D
P

 c
ou

ld
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 r
eq

ui
re

 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 g
re

en
 b

el
t t

o 
pr

ot
ec

t t
he

 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

se
tti

ng
 o

f A
be

rd
ee

n.
 

· 
T

he
 S

D
P

 c
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

gi
ve

n 
to

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
br

ow
nf

ie
ld

 la
nd

. 
· 

T
he

 S
D

P
 h

as
 th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

gr
ee

ns
pa

ce
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 

de
si

gn
/s

en
se

 o
f p

la
ce

. 
· 

T
he

 S
D

P
 w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

ho
w

 it
 c

ou
ld

 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
is

su
e 

of
 w

in
df

ar
m

s 
in

 
co

nj
un

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 L

D
P

’s
. 

Page 160



 
25

 

C
ul

tu
ra

l 
H

er
ita

ge
 

· 
V

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
y 

of
 h

is
to

ric
 a

nd
 c

ul
tu

ra
l 

he
rit

ag
e 

as
se

ts
 to

 in
se

ns
iti

ve
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

. 
· 

Lo
ss

 o
f h

er
ita

ge
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 o
f r

eg
io

na
l a

nd
 

na
tio

na
l s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
. 

 

· 
T

he
 a

bs
en

ce
 o

f d
es

ig
n 

po
lic

ie
s 

co
ul

d 
af

fe
ct

 
th

e 
bu

ilt
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
· 

N
eg

at
iv

e 
an

d 
po

si
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t m

ay
 n

ot
 o

cc
ur

 if
 th

e 
pl

an
 is

 n
ot

 in
 p

la
ce

 (
th

is
 in

cl
ud

es
 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

pr
es

er
va

tio
n)

. 

· 
T

he
 S

D
P

 w
ill

 ta
ke

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 u
rb

an
 

fo
rm

, s
et

tle
m

en
t p

at
te

rn
s 

an
d 

th
e 

de
si

re
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 a

nd
 id

en
tit

y 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

re
gi

on
. 

C
lim

at
ic

 F
ac

to
rs

 
· 

G
re

en
ho

us
e 

ga
s 

em
is

si
on

s 
– 

re
la

te
d 

to
 

tr
an

sp
or

t a
nd

 e
ne

rg
y 

de
m

an
ds

. 
· 

T
he

 n
ee

d 
to

 a
da

pt
 to

 p
re

di
ct

ed
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 a
nd

 it
s 

po
te

nt
ia

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
(e

.g
. 

ex
tr

em
e 

w
ea

th
er

 e
ve

nt
s 

an
d 

se
a 

le
ve

l 
ris

es
).

 
·  

C
oa

st
al

 fl
oo

d 
ris

k 
an

d 
co

as
ta

l e
ro

si
on

. 
· 

N
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

flo
od

pl
ai

ns
 a

lo
ng

si
de

 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 fl
oo

d 
ris

k 
ar

is
in

g 
fr

om
 

pr
ed

ic
te

d 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. 
· 

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 r

el
ia

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
ca

r 
to

 tr
av

el
 to

 
w

or
k 

an
d 

gr
ow

in
g 

tr
av

el
 d

is
ta

nc
es

. 
· 

P
ot

en
tia

l n
ee

d 
fo

r 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

w
as

te
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ac
ili

tie
s.

 
·  

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

of
f-

sh
or

e)
. 

· 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 o

cc
ur

 in
 in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

co
m

m
ut

in
g 

an
d 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
 

em
is

si
on

s.
  

· 
W

ith
ou

t a
 s

tr
on

g 
po

lic
y 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
en

er
gy

 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

m
ea

su
re

s 
in

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

m
ay

 n
ot

 o
cc

ur
. 

· 
O

th
er

 P
P

S
 w

ill
 a

ffe
ct

 c
lim

at
ic

 fa
ct

or
s.

 

· 
T

he
 S

D
P

 s
ho

ul
d 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 r
en

ew
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 m

ea
su

re
s 

in
 n

ew
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

· 
T

he
 S

D
P

 s
ho

ul
d 

ta
ke

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 w
as

te
 to

 
la

nd
fil

l a
nd

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

w
as

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ac

ili
tie

s.
 

·  
T

he
 S

D
P

 c
an

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 o
n 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

bu
ild

in
g 

de
si

gn
, r

ed
uc

in
g 

flo
od

 r
is

k 
an

d 
re

du
ci

ng
 s

to
rm

 d
am

ag
e.

 
·  

T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l g

re
en

ho
us

e 
ga

s 
im

pa
ct

 
w

he
n 

de
te

rm
in

in
g 

th
e 

sp
at

ia
l 

st
ra

te
gy

. 
 

A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

· 
Le

ve
ls

 o
f N

O
2 

an
d 

P
M

10
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
nd

 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 p
oo

re
r 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

, a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 r

oa
d 

tr
an

sp
or

t, 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 tr
af

fic
 fl

ow
s 

an
d 

co
ng

es
tio

n.
 

·  
In

cr
ea

se
d 

ar
ea

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

of
 a

ir 
po

llu
ta

nt
s 

in
 c

ity
/ t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
s 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f c
ity

/ t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
fo

r 
re

ta
il,

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 a

nd
 le

is
ur

e,
 w

ith
ou

t a
de

qu
at

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 n

ew
 p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

. 
·  

N
ee

d 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

fo
rm

s 
of

 tr
an

sp
or

t. 
 

· 
W

ith
ou

t t
he

 p
la

n 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

 m
ay

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 

de
cr

ea
se

 in
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

. 
·  

O
th

er
 P

P
S

 w
ill

 a
ffe

ct
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 is
su

es
 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l t
ra

ns
po

rt
 

st
ra

te
gi

es
. 

· 
T

he
 S

D
P

 s
ho

ul
d 

id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

m
ea

ns
 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 th
e 

ca
r 

an
d 

di
re

ct
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

o 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
m

od
es

 o
f p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t. 
T

he
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
m

in
im

is
e 

ca
r 

de
pe

nd
en

ce
, a

ir 
po

llu
tio

n 
an

d 
nu

is
an

ce
. 

 

Page 161



 
26

 

W
at

er
 

· 
W

at
er

 b
od

ie
s 

in
 c

lo
se

 p
ro

xi
m

ity
 to

 m
ai

n 
ro

ad
s 

ar
e 

at
 r

is
k 

fr
om

 p
ol

lu
tio

n 
ca

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

of
 c

on
ta

m
in

at
ed

 s
ur

fa
ce

 w
at

er
 

ru
n-

of
f f

ro
m

 r
oa

ds
. 

·  
A

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
, f

or
es

tr
y 

an
d 

se
w

ag
e 

di
sp

os
al

 
ca

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 le

ve
ls

 o
f n

ut
rie

nt
s 

in
 th

e 
w

at
er

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t  

·  
O

ve
r-

ab
st

ra
ct

io
n 

in
 a

n 
ar

ea
 o

f r
el

at
iv

el
y 

lo
w

 w
at

er
 p

ro
du

ct
iv

ity
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 le
ad

in
g 

to
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
s 

on
 r

iv
er

 r
ea

ch
es

, 
gr

ou
nd

w
at

er
 s

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 la

ke
s/

 lo
ch

s.
 

·  
H

is
to

ric
al

 s
oi

l c
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n,

 in
 a

nd
 

ar
ou

nd
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

in
du

st
ria

l a
re

as
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

, i
s 

a 
ke

y 
so

ur
ce

 o
f g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 

po
llu

tio
n.

 
· 

R
eg

io
n 

ha
s 

fr
ag

ile
 r

iv
er

 s
ys

te
m

s 
of

 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
l i

m
po

rt
an

ce
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 
se

ns
iti

ve
 to

 p
ol

lu
tio

n 
an

d 
hy

dr
ol

og
ic

al
 

ch
an

ge
s.

 
·  

T
he

re
 is

 s
om

e 
al

te
ra

tio
n 

to
 b

ed
s,

 b
an

ks
 

an
d 

sh
or

es
 o

f r
iv

er
s,

 lo
ch

s 
an

d 
co

as
ta

l 
w

at
er

s 
(s

uc
h 

as
 s

tr
ai

gh
te

ni
ng

, c
ul

ve
rt

in
g 

an
d 

m
od

ify
in

g 
rip

ar
ia

n 
ha

bi
ta

ts
).

 

· 
A

dv
er

se
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
w

ou
ld

 
re

m
ai

n 
in

 th
e 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
. T

he
 

pr
es

su
re

 fo
r 

w
at

er
 a

bs
tr

ac
tio

n 
is

 d
ire

ct
ly

 
lin

ke
d 

to
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

op
os

ed
.  

· 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 p
la

ns
 

w
ou

ld
 s

til
l o

cc
ur

 a
nd

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l r
un

-o
ff 

w
ou

ld
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 c
au

se
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

of
 w

at
er

 
bo

di
es

. 

· 
T

he
 S

D
P

 c
an

 o
nl

y 
in

di
re

ct
ly

 in
flu

en
ce

 
th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 w
at

er
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
nd

 
co

nt
ro

lli
ng

 la
nd

 u
se

 c
ha

ng
es

. 
·  

T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
m

in
im

is
e 

w
at

er
 

po
llu

tio
n 

an
d 

av
oi

d 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
to

 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

fe
at

ur
es

 o
f t

he
 R

iv
er

 D
ee

. 
· 

T
he

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

S
D

P
 

sh
ou

ld
 im

pr
ov

e 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

en
su

re
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 u

se
 o

f w
at

er
. 

P
op

ul
at

io
n 

· 
Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 p
la

ce
 m

ak
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
de

si
gn

 
qu

al
ity

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
se

cu
re

 b
y 

de
si

gn
 a

nd
 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
. 

· 
La

ck
 o

f a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f 
ho

us
e 

ty
pe

s 
to

 s
ui

t v
ar

io
us

 n
ee

ds
 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
re

gi
on

. 
· 

C
ha

ng
in

g 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
s 

– 
ag

ei
ng

 
po

pu
la

tio
n.

 
· 

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 tr

en
d 

of
 lo

si
ng

 y
ou

ng
 e

du
ca

te
d 

ad
ul

ts
 –

 “
br

ai
n 

dr
ai

n”
. 

· 
T

he
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
is

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

nd
 th

is
 tr

en
d 

is
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
. T

hi
s 

m
ay

 a
ss

is
t i

n 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 b

ut
 w

ill
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

bu
ilt

 a
nd

 
na

tu
ra

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t. 

· 
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

re
gi

on
 w

ou
ld

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 

gr
ow

 in
 th

e 
65

+ 
ag

e 
gr

ou
p.

 
· 

W
ith

ou
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 p

os
iti

ve
 a

ct
io

n 
th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
fa

lli
ng

 d
em

an
d 

on
 s

ch
oo

ls
 

an
d 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

f p
re

ss
ur

e 
on

 h
ea

lth
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

· 
C

on
tin

ua
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

 tr
en

d 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 
hi

gh
er

 h
ou

se
 p

ric
es

, l
ac

k 
of

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 a
nd

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

on
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

, t
he

 b
ui

lt 
an

d 
na

tu
ra

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t. 

· 
T

hi
s 

is
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f w
hi

ch
 th

e 
S

D
P

 h
as

 
th

e 
m

os
t d

ire
ct

 in
flu

en
ce

 a
s 

it 
se

ts
 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
ta

ki
ng

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ch
an

ge
, h

ou
se

 ty
pe

, 
te

nu
re

, s
pe

ci
fic

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
in

to
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n.

 
·  

T
he

 S
D

P
 w

ill
 s

et
 th

e 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

an
d 

di
re

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
re

gi
on

. 
· 

T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 a
ll 

se
ct

or
s 

of
 s

oc
ie

ty
. 

Page 162



 
27

 

H
um

an
 H

ea
lth

 
· 

A
cc

es
s 

to
 g

re
en

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
ac

tiv
e 

tr
av

el
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 
· 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 fo
r 

C
or

e 
P

at
h 

P
la

ns
 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ar

ea
 to

 li
nk

 w
ith

 n
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 a

nd
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

cr
ea

tin
g 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 w

ith
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

ca
r 

tr
av

el
. 

·  
E

le
va

te
d 

le
ve

ls
 o

f N
O

2 
an

d 
P

M
10

 h
av

e 
a 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
hu

m
an

 h
ea

lth
, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 a
m

on
g 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 g

ro
up

s.
 

· 
S

po
ra

di
c 

an
d 

un
pl

an
ne

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t m
ay

 
lim

it 
or

 r
es

tr
ic

t a
cc

es
s 

to
 g

re
en

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
ac

tiv
e 

tr
av

el
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

  
·  

W
ith

ou
t t

he
 p

la
n 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 m

ay
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 
de

cr
ea

se
 in

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
. 

· 
O

th
er

 P
P

S
 w

ill
 a

ffe
ct

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 is

su
es

 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l t

ra
ns

po
rt

 
st

ra
te

gi
es

. 

· 
T

he
 S

D
P

 w
ill

 s
et

 th
e 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
sp

or
tin

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

lo
ca

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
la

ns
. 

· 
T

he
 S

D
P

 s
ho

ul
d 

id
en

tif
y 

m
ea

ns
 to

 
re

du
ce

 r
el

ia
nc

e 
on

 th
e 

ca
r 

an
d 

di
re

ct
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

o 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 
w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
pu

bl
ic

 
tr

an
sp

or
t, 

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

w
al

ki
ng

. T
he

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
S

D
P

 s
ho

ul
d 

m
in

im
is

e 
ca

r 
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, a
ir 

po
llu

tio
n 

an
d 

nu
is

an
ce

. 
 

S
oi

l  
· 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f l

an
d 

on
 th

e 
fr

in
ge

s 
of

 u
rb

an
 a

re
as

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 s
oi

l 
se

al
in

g/
lo

ss
. 

·  
A

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 fo

re
st

ry
 c

an
 le

ad
 to

 s
oi

l 
er

os
io

n.
 S

oi
l p

ol
lu

tio
n 

du
e 

to
 u

se
 o

f 
pe

st
ic

id
es

. P
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 m
is

us
e 

or
 

le
ak

ag
es

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 p
ol

lu
tio

n 
in

ci
de

nt
s.

 
· 

C
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 la

nd
 a

nd
 it

s 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 la
nd

 
us

e 
an

d 
so

il 
qu

al
ity

. N
ee

d 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 fu
tu

re
 

la
nd

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n.

 
·  

Lo
ss

 o
f p

rim
e 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l l

an
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

· 
Lo

ss
 o

f l
an

d 
to

 p
er

m
an

en
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

· 
S

oi
l e

ro
si

on
 is

 a
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 p
ro

bl
em

 in
 

S
co

tla
nd

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

bo
ut

 
lo

ss
 o

f s
oi

l o
rg

an
ic

 m
at

te
r 

an
d 

so
il 

se
al

in
g 

by
 im

pe
rm

ea
bl

e 
su

rf
ac

es
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 r
oa

ds
.  

Lo
ss

 o
f s

oi
l o

rg
an

ic
 

m
at

te
r 

(w
hi

ch
 a

ct
s 

as
 a

 c
ar

bo
n 

st
or

e)
 w

ill
 

re
su

lt 
in

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
ca

rb
on

 d
io

xi
de

 
em

is
si

on
s.

 
   

· 
Im

pa
ct

s 
on

 s
oi

l c
au

se
d 

by
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 m

ay
 n

ot
 o

cc
ur

 a
lth

ou
gh

 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 s
oi

ls
 a

nd
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l l

an
d 

w
ith

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
ith

in
 o

th
er

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 h

um
an

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 w

ou
ld

 r
em

ai
n.

 O
th

er
 P

P
S

 s
uc

h 
as

 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l H

ou
si

ng
 S

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 

af
fe

ct
 s

oi
ls

. 
·  

C
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
 tr

en
d/

is
su

es
 w

ith
 

no
 r

em
ed

ia
tio

n 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 lo
ss

 o
f g

ro
un

d 
w

at
er

 r
es

ou
rc

e,
 s

oi
l r

es
ou

rc
e 

an
d 

ad
ve

rs
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lth
. 

· 
T

he
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
S

D
P

 
sh

ou
ld

 a
vo

id
 s

oi
l c

on
ta

m
in

at
io

n.
 

·  
T

he
 S

D
P

 w
ill

 s
et

 th
e 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
co

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
m

et
ho

ds
 s

uc
h 

as
 S

U
D

S
. 

· 
T

he
 S

D
P

 c
an

 s
et

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 fo

r 
re

m
ed

ia
tio

n 
of

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 la

nd
 

th
er

eb
y 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
w

el
l-b

ei
ng

. 
  

Page 163



 
28

 

M
at

er
ia

l A
ss

et
s 

· 
O

ng
oi

ng
 n

ee
d 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 la
nd

fil
l 

si
te

s.
 

· 
B

ro
w

nf
ie

ld
 s

ite
s 

va
ca

nt
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
. 

· 
C

on
tin

ui
ng

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r 

m
in

er
al

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n.

 
· 

C
ap

ac
ity

 a
nd

 u
se

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

ro
ad

 a
nd

 r
ai

l 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

. 
·  

P
re

ss
ur

e 
to

 e
xp

an
d 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
A

irp
or

t. 
·  

D
es

ire
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 a
nd

 e
xp

an
d 

po
rt

s/
ha

rb
ou

rs
 in

 th
e 

re
gi

on
. 

· 
P

ip
el

in
es

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 
co

ns
tr

ai
ni

ng
 la

nd
 fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
· 

P
re

ss
ur

e 
on

 w
at

er
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 to
 c

op
e 

w
ith

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
· 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

si
te

s 
fo

r 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 
en

er
gy

 a
nd

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 u

pg
ra

de
 e

le
ct

ric
ity

 
tr

an
sm

is
si

on
 n

et
w

or
ks

.  

· 
C

on
tin

ua
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

 tr
en

d 
al

th
ou

gh
 

ot
he

r 
P

P
S

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
an

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
re

du
ci

ng
 r

el
ia

nc
e 

on
 la

nd
fil

l. 
· 

W
ith

ou
t p

la
nn

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 a

 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
sh

or
tfa

lls
 m

ay
 o

cc
ur

 in
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f f
ac

ili
tie

s 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f t
he

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 
·  

O
th

er
 P

P
S

 s
uc

h 
as

 r
eg

io
na

l t
ra

ns
po

rt
 

st
ra

te
gy

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
an

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
m

at
er

ia
l 

as
se

ts
. 

· 
T

he
 S

D
P

 s
ho

ul
d 

pr
om

ot
e 

th
e 

w
as

te
 

hi
er

ar
ch

y 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 r
el

ia
nc

e 
on

 
la

nd
fil

l s
ite

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
W

as
te

 S
P

G
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

w
as

te
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
an

d 
tr

ea
tm

en
t f

ac
ili

tie
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

cy
cl

in
g.

 
· 

T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
ta

ke
 e

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 

(s
ch

oo
ls

, r
oa

ds
, h

os
pi

ta
ls

, c
om

m
un

ity
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
et

c)
 in

to
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

w
he

n 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

on
 th

e 
M

ai
n 

Is
su

es
 R

ep
or

t 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 th
e 

sp
at

ia
l s

tr
at

eg
y.

 
· 

T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f r

en
ew

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

so
ur

ce
s.

 

  

Page 164



 29 

4.4 Characteristics of Areas likely to be significantly affected 
The analysis of the baseline information indicates that the strategy is likely to have 
more significant effects on certain areas than others. This is due to the sensitivity of 
those areas in terms of international, national and local designation. Although other 
areas may not be designated, the effects on those sites from the SDP could be 
cumulative. In Appendix 7.1.1 – Appendix 7.4.5, we have presented information 
relating to the type and number of sites which are likely to be significantly affected. 
 
 

Page 165



 30 

5 Assessment Mitigation and Monitoring 
 
5.1 Alternatives to which SEA was applied 

 
We have listed alternatives as part of this strategic environmental assessment in 
Table 3.1, Table 3.2 and Table 3.3 above. We have considered three levels of 
alternatives in this plan. These alternatives include the spatial strategy, strategic 
options and alternatives within the SDP objectives. We have not assessed the vision 
as it is a repeat of the Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Structure Plan. Those 
consulted on the Main Issues Report have supported a repeat of the vision for the 
proposed SDP. There is no alternative vision to assess and a repeat of the past 
assessment will not add any value to the exercise. We have also not assessed the 
proposals as each project has been assessed through EIAs in other plans or 
projects. An assessment at this level will only duplicate other assessments. 
  
Spatial Strategy: 

· Three alternatives considered include the Preferred Option (Structure Plan 
Option), Alternative 1 (Concentrating developments in the City) and 
Alternative 2 (Concentrating developments in the Shire – dispersal 
alternative). The preferred option retains proposals in the Aberdeen City and 
Aberdeenshire Structure Plan. This option concentrates developments in the 
Strategic Growth areas, with further developments in the regeneration priority 
and local growth and diversification areas. Alternative 1 will allocate about 60-
75% of all developments in the City with fewer developments in the Shire. 
Alternative 2 will disperse most of the developments (60-75%) in 
Aberdeenshire, and allow only a smaller proportion of allocations in the City. 

 
Strategic Options 

· We have considered three alternatives within the preferred spatial strategy. 
The Preferred Option (balanced concentration north and south of Aberdeen 
and Energetica), Alternative 1 (south of Aberdeen concentration) and 
Alternative 2 (north-west & south of Aberdeen concentration). The preferred 
option will have a larger concentration of developments (i.e. within Ellon - 
Blackdog, Portlethen – Stonehaven and Inverurie - Pitcaple corridors). 
Alternative 1 will have a larger proportion of the developments within 
Portlethen – Stonehaven corridor while Alternative 2 will have a larger 
proportion of the developments within Inverurie – Blackburn and Portlethen – 
Stonehaven corridors.  

 
Alternatives within the SDP objectives 

· The SDP is being prepared following the approval of the last structure plan.  
In the transition from the Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan, which is in 
many respects consistent with the current planning legislation, to a new SDP, 
this plan seeks to add value to and reshape the last plan using the outcome 
of the consultation on Main Issues Report. The changes identified between 
the last structure plan and the proposed SDP have therefore shaped the 
choice of alternatives. For this reason, the most reasonable approach has 
been to pitch the last plan against the Main Issues Report and the proposed 
plan. The outcome of the consultation on the Main Issues Report indicates 
overwhelmingly that the objectives of the Aberdeen City and Shire Structure 

Page 166



 31 

Plan are still very relevant to the proposed SDP. Thus the alternatives we 
have considered are the changes between the two regional plan objectives.  
In Table 3.2, we have set out the alternatives within the objectives of 
“Economic growth,” “Sustainable development and Climate Change,” 
“Population Growth,” “Quality of the Environment,” “Sustainable Mixed 
Communities” and “Accessibility.”  

 
 
5.2 Framework for assessing environmental effects 
 
We have assessed the strategic, policy and spatial strategies developed under the 
Strategic Development Plan against SEA topics. We have predicted whether these 
effects are negative, positive, uncertain, mixed or neutral effects.  We have further 
evaluated their significance on the receptors in relation to reversibility or 
irreversibility of effects, risks and duration (permanent, temporary, long-term, short-
term and medium-term). We have also assessed cumulative effects in a separate 
table. Comments from the Consultation Authorities (SNH, SEPA and The Scottish 
Ministers (Historic Scotland)) have been taken into account regarding the methods, 
scope and level of detail in this Environmental Report. In Appendix 6.1 – Appendix 
6.3 below, we have shown the full assessments and our reasons.  
 
 
5.3 Cumulative Effect Assessment  
Paragraph 6 (e) of Schedule 3, of the Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 
2005 requires that we assess the likely significant effects on the environment, 
including secondary, cumulative and synergistic effects. We have assessed 
cumulative effects of the SDP taking into account the information available to us.  In 
doing so have considered the evolution of the environment without the plan, 
environmental characteristics of areas likely to be significantly affected as well as the 
assessment undertaken for this SDP. In this report, we have assessed 
direct/indirect/secondary, time crowding, time lag, space crowding, cross-boundary, 
nibbling and synergistic effects in gauging cumulative effects. We have presented 
the detailed assessment in Appendix 6.4 below.  

 
 

 

Page 167



 
32

 

5.
4 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
it

ig
at

io
n

 M
ea

su
re

s 
 

T
he

 S
E

A
 D

ire
ct

iv
e 

re
qu

ire
s 

th
at

 th
ro

ug
h 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s,

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

, r
ed

uc
e 

or
 c

om
pe

ns
at

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 i
m

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
. 

T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

to
 b

e 
ad

op
te

d 
to

 m
iti

ga
te

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
ef

fe
ct

s 
is

 a
t T

ab
le

 5
.2

. W
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 a
ny

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
s 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 w

e 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
s.

 
 T

ab
le

 5
.2

 P
ro

po
se

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

s 
  

Issue 

E
ff

ec
ts

  
M

it
ig

at
io

n
 M

ea
su

re
s 

 
W

h
en

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

m
it

ig
at

io
n

 b
e 

co
n

si
d

er
ed

?
 

W
h

o
 is

 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
m

it
ig

at
io

n
?

 

Air 

N
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

s 
N

o 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

N
.A

 
N

.A
 

Water 

· 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ill

 
ha

ve
 

a 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 
on

 
w

at
er

 
qu

al
ity

 
an

d 
w

ill
 

in
cr

ea
se

 
w

at
er

 
ab

st
ra

ct
io

n 
fr

om
 

th
e 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
.  

·  
S

ig
ni

fic
an

t n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

w
at

er
 

du
e 

to
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
le

ac
ha

te
 a

nd
 c

on
ta

m
in

at
io

n.
 

 

� 
F

ut
ur

e 
LD

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
ha

ve
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

on
 fl

oo
di

ng
 a

nd
 d

ra
in

ag
e,

 S
G

 o
n 

S
U

D
S

, D
ra

in
ag

e 
Im

pa
ct

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 o

n 
B

uf
fe

r 
S

tr
ip

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

A
ll 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 h

av
in

g 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

es
e 

po
lic

ie
s.

 
� 

A
ll 

si
te

s 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 a

t r
is

k 
fr

om
 fl

oo
di

ng
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 r
em

ov
ed

 fr
om

 fu
tu

re
 

LD
P

s.
  S

ite
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 L

D
P

s 
sh

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 a
re

as
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
at

 r
is

k 
fr

om
 fl

oo
di

ng
 (

i.e
. a

s 
bu

ffe
r 

st
rip

s)
 

� 
LD

P
s 

sh
ou

ld
 im

po
se

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 fo

r 
E

IA
s 

be
fo

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
re

 
al

lo
w

ed
 w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

. 
� 

H
ab

ita
ts

 R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f s
ite

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

R
iv

er
 

D
ee

 S
A

C
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 s

ite
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 L
D

P
s 

� 
W

e 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 n

ew
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 is
 p

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 a
vo

id
 h

av
in

g 
to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f w

at
er

 w
e 

ta
ke

 fr
om

 th
e 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

 n
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t”
  t

hr
ou

gh
 w

at
er

 e
ffi

ci
en

t t
ec

hn
ol

og
ie

s 
an

d 
us

in
g 

ot
he

r 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 r

el
ev

an
t b

od
ie

s 
� 

F
ut

ur
e 

pl
an

s 
sh

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
po

lic
ie

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 s

ta
tu

s 
of

 
w

at
er

. 
� 

C
on

si
de

r 
w

ith
 r

el
ev

an
t b

od
ie

s 
th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 a
 w

at
er

 s
ho

rt
ag

e 
pl

an
 

as
 a

n 
ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

 to
 fu

tu
re

 c
lim

at
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

T
hr

ou
gh

 L
D

P
s,

 
S

G
  

T
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

E
IA

 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

 D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

H
ab

ita
ts

 
R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t  

S
D

P
 a

nd
  

LD
P

 T
ea

m
s 

  

Page 168



 
33

 

Soil 
� 

Lo
ng

-t
er

m
 ir

re
ve

rs
ib

le
 im

pa
ct

s 
on

 s
oi

l 
qu

al
ity

, s
oi

l s
tr

uc
tu

re
, s

oi
l m

or
ph

ol
og

y 
an

d 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

n 
pe

at
 

so
ils

  
  

� 
F

ut
ur

e 
LD

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
ha

ve
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
w

as
te

 to
 la

nd
fil

l b
y 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
a 

sp
at

ia
l f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
ne

w
 w

as
te

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
su

ch
 a

s:
 r

ec
yc

lin
g,

 
co

m
po

st
in

g 
an

d 
th

er
m

al
 tr

ea
tm

en
t. 

T
hi

s 
co

ul
d 

be
 d

on
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 G

ui
da

nc
e.

 
� 

F
ut

ur
e 

LD
P

 s
ho

ul
d 

ha
ve

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 to
 m

ak
e 

us
e 

of
 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

w
as

te
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

la
nd

fil
l. 

� 
F

ut
ur

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 la

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
di

re
ct

ed
 a

w
ay

 fr
om

 p
ea

t s
oi

ls
 

T
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

LD
P

 a
nd

 S
G

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s  

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 E
IA

s 
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

co
nd

iti
on

s.
 

S
D

P
 a

nd
 L

D
P

 
T

ea
m

s,
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

H
ea

lth
. 

  

Biodiversity, flora and fauna 

� 
Lo

ng
-t

er
m

 
irr

ev
er

si
bl

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 

th
ro

ug
h 

la
nd

 
ta

ke
, 

ha
bi

ta
t 

lo
ss

, 
ha

bi
ta

t 
fr

ag
m

en
ta

tio
n 

or
 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

to
 s

pe
ci

es
 t

ha
t 

us
e 

th
e 

si
te

 
as

 a
 h

ab
ita

t. 
� 

Lo
ng

-t
er

m
 p

os
iti

ve
 im

pa
ct

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 p
oo

r-
qu

al
ity

 b
io

-
di

ve
rs

e 
la

nd
.  

 

� 
F

ut
ur

e 
LD

P
 a

nd
 S

G
 s

ho
ul

d 
ha

ve
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

pr
ot

ec
tin

g 
th

e 
na

tu
ra

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t a
nd

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

� 
F

ut
ur

e 
LD

P
 a

nd
 S

G
 s

ho
ul

d 
ha

ve
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

en
su

re
 th

at
 la

nd
 is

 n
ot

 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

on
 s

ite
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
.  

� 
F

ut
ur

e 
LD

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
ha

ve
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
he

 r
is

k 
of

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t e

ffe
ct

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
E

IA
s,

 M
as

te
rp

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

H
ab

ita
t R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
� 

F
ut

ur
e 

na
tu

re
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 a

nd
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
nt

ai
n 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
th

at
 e

na
bl

e 
pe

op
le

 to
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
en

jo
y 

th
e 

na
tu

ra
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t w
ith

ou
t d

am
ag

in
g 

it.
 

� 
F

ut
ur

e 
LD

P
s 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 o

r 
en

ha
nc

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
gr

ee
n 

ne
tw

or
ks

 
   

T
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

LD
P

 a
nd

 S
G

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
oc

es
s  

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 E
IA

s 
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

co
nd

iti
on

s,
 

M
as

te
rp

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

H
ab

ita
ts

 
R

eg
ul

a t
io

n 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 

S
D

P
 a

nd
 L

D
P

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

an
d 

M
as

te
rp

la
n 

te
am

s.
 

Climatic factors 

· 
Lo

ng
-t

er
m

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t n

eg
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 th
ro

ug
h 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
us

e 
of

 fo
ss

il 
fu

el
 a

nd
 e

ne
rg

y 
in

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
flo

od
in

g 
in

 lo
w

-
ly

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
 

·  
Lo

ng
-t

er
m

 p
os

iti
ve

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 lo

w
-

ca
rb

on
 m

ea
su

re
s 

in
 th

e 
S

D
P

 s
uc

h 
as

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 M

ix
ed

 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 

 

� 
F

ut
ur

e 
re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l t

ra
ns

po
rt

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 m
od

al
 

hi
er

ar
ch

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
m

ot
or

 c
ar

 a
t t

he
 b

ot
to

m
.  

� 
T

he
 S

D
P

 a
nd

 L
D

P
 te

am
s 

sh
ou

ld
 w

or
k 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 m

ix
ed

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

in
 th

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 s
ec

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
 a

re
 d

el
iv

er
ed

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 

hi
gh

er
 d

en
si

tie
s 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
tr

av
el

 d
is

ta
nc

es
. 

� 
A

ll 
si

te
s 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 a
t r

is
k 

fr
om

 fl
oo

di
ng

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 r

em
ov

ed
 fr

om
 fu

tu
re

 
LD

P
s.

  S
ite

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 L
D

P
s 

sh
ou

ld
 s

er
ve

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 a

re
as

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

at
 r

is
k 

fr
om

 fl
oo

di
ng

 (
i.e

. a
s 

bu
ffe

r 
st

rip
s)

 
� 

F
ut

ur
e 

LD
P

’s
 s

ho
ul

d 
ai

m
 to

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
m

os
t e

ffi
ci

en
t u

se
 o

f i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l f

ac
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 e

m
is

si
on

s.
 

� 
F

ut
ur

e 
lo

ca
l t

ra
ns

po
rt

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

m
as

te
rp

la
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

ha
ve

 s
co

pe
 fo

r 
en

ha
nc

in
g 

po
si

tiv
e 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
S

D
P

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 

W
he

n 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 
m

as
te

rp
la

ns
, 

lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 

LD
P

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
S

G
. 

LD
P

 T
ea

m
, 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
, 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

te
am

s 
an

d 
N

E
S

T
R

A
N

S
 

Page 169



 
34

 

� 
F

ut
ur

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 la

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
di

re
ct

ed
 a

w
ay

 fr
om

 p
ea

t s
oi

ls
 

� 
La

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
fo

r 
fo

re
st

ry
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 w
in

df
ar

m
s 

 u
nl

es
s 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

fr
om

 th
os

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 s

av
e 

m
or

e 
ca

rb
on

 th
an

 th
e 

 p
ea

t s
oi

l 
di

sp
la

ce
d.

 
    

Material Assets 

� 
Lo

ng
-t

er
m

 p
os

iti
ve

 e
ffe

ct
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

ac
qu

is
iti

on
 o

f a
ss

et
s,

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f 

ne
w

 a
nd

 e
ne

rg
y 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
, 

ne
w

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ho

us
in

g 
st

oc
k,

 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

 a
nd

 fo
r 

re
us

in
g 

bu
ild

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

ls
   

 

� 
T

o 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

S
D

P
, m

or
e 

em
ph

as
is

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

pl
ac

ed
 o

n 
en

su
rin

g 
qu

al
ity

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

LD
P

s,
 S

G
s 

an
d 

m
as

te
rp

la
ns

.  

T
hr

ou
gh

 L
D

P
, 

S
G

, 
m

as
te

rp
la

nn
in

g 
 

pr
oc

es
se

s  

LD
P

, 
M

as
te

rp
la

nn
in

g 
T

ea
m

, 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

 

Population 

� 
Lo

ng
-t

er
m

 p
os

iti
ve

 e
ffe

ct
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

pe
op

le
 

liv
in

g 
in

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
qu

an
tit

y 
an

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r 
m

os
t p

eo
pl

e 
of

 a
ll 

ag
es

. T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 h

ou
se

s,
 th

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
m

ix
ed

 c
om

m
un

ity
 o

pt
io

ns
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

th
es

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

 
 

T
o 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
S

D
P

, t
he

 S
D

P
 a

nd
 L

D
P

 te
am

s 
sh

ou
ld

 th
er

e 
is

 a
de

qu
at

e 
su

pp
ly

 o
f h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d 

at
 a

ll 
tim

es
 s

o 
th

at
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
ity

 a
nd

 th
e 

S
hi

re
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
et

.  
  

T
hr

ou
gh

 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 a

ud
it.

 S
ho

rt
 

fa
lls

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
LD

P
s 

S
D

P
 a

nd
 L

D
P

 
T

ea
m

 

Page 170



 
35

 

 5.
5 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
P

la
nn

in
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
(S

D
P

A
) 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 m

on
ito

r 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
ef

fe
ct

s 
w

he
n 

th
e 

pl
an

 i
s 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 I
n 

do
in

g 
so

, 
th

e 
S

D
P

A
 i

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 i
de

nt
ify

 a
ny

 u
nf

or
es

ee
n 

ad
ve

rs
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

at
 a

n 
ea

rly
 

st
ag

e;
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 r
em

ed
ia

l a
ct

io
n.

 A
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rt
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 to

 c
on

st
an

tly
 m

on
ito

r 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffe

ct
s.

 
T

he
 f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffe
ct

 o
f 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 p
la

n 
is

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 t

he
 T

ab
le

 5
.3

 b
el

ow
. 

A
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
P

P
S

. 
 T

ab
le

 5
.3

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 P
la

n
 

Effects 

W
h

at
 s

o
rt

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 is
 

re
q

u
ir

ed
?

 
(I

n
d

ic
at

o
rs

) 

W
h

er
e 

w
ill

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 b

e 
o

b
ta

in
ed

 f
ro

m
?

 

A
re

 t
h

er
e 

g
ap

s 
in

 t
h

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

an
d

 h
o

w
 c

an
 it

 
b

e 
re

so
lv

ed
?

 

W
h

en
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
h

e 
re

m
ed

ia
l a

ct
io

n
 b

e 
co

n
si

d
er

ed
?

 

W
h

o
 is

 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
u

n
d

er
ta

ki
n

g
 

th
e 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

?
 

H
o

w
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
th

e 
re

su
lt

s 
b

e 
p

re
se

n
te

d
?

 

W
h

at
 r

em
ed

ia
l 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
co

u
ld

 b
e 

ta
ke

n
?

 

Water 

S
uf

fic
ie

nc
y 

of
 R

iv
er

 
D

ee
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 
fu

tu
re

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 

 E
ffe

ct
s 

of
 w

at
er

 
le

ve
l o

n 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

fe
at

ur
es

 s
uc

h 
fr

es
h 

w
at

er
 p

ea
rl 

m
us

se
l 

 T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f w

at
er

 
ab

st
ra

ct
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
 a

nd
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 w
at

er
 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 fl

ow
 r

at
e.

  
 N

o 
of

 w
at

er
 b

od
ie

s 
(p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
w

at
er

 b
od

ie
s)

 
at

ta
in

in
g 

hi
gh

/g
oo

d/
m

od
er

at
e 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 

po
te

nt
ia

l  
 

S
co

tti
sh

 W
at

er
, S

N
H

 
an

d 
S

E
P

A
 

  . 

K
no

w
in

g 
th

e 
op

tim
um

 le
ve

l o
f 

th
e 

su
rv

iv
al

 o
f 

qu
al

ify
in

g 
fe

at
ur

es
 a

re
 a

t 
ris

k 
 

W
he

n 
S

co
tti

sh
 W

at
er

s,
 

S
N

H
 a

nd
 S

E
P

A
 in

fo
rm

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 

 W
he

n 
da

ta
 fr

om
 S

N
H

 
in

di
ca

te
 th

at
 th

e 
th

re
sh

ol
d 

of
 w

at
er

 le
ve

l i
s 

be
in

g 
re

ac
he

d  
       W

he
n 

th
e 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 

po
te

nt
ia

l o
f w

at
er

 b
od

ie
s 

ar
e 

be
co

m
in

g 
po

or
 o

r 
ba

d 

S
E

P
A

, S
N

H
. 

S
co

tti
sh

 W
at

er
 

an
d 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il s

  
         S

E
P

A
 

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

S
D

P
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt

 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

ac
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 th
e 

S
D

P
 a

nd
 L

D
P

s 
  

Page 171



 
36

 

Soil 
R

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

w
as

te
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t/i

nd
us

t
ria

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 

la
nd

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n 

W
as

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
lic

en
se

s 
  

N
o 

as
 S

E
P

A
 

m
on

ito
rs

 th
is

 
re

gu
la

rly
 

W
he

n 
in

fo
rm

ed
 b

y 
S

E
P

A
 

C
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 

La
nd

 U
ni

ts
, 

S
E

P
A

 

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

S
D

P
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt

 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

ac
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 th
e 

S
D

P
 a

nd
 L

D
P

s 
 

Biodiversity 

C
on

di
tio

n 
of

 
qu

al
ify

in
g 

fe
at

ur
es

 
an

d 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 o

f 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

si
te

s 
 H

ab
ita

t 
fr

ag
m

en
ta

tio
n 

S
N

H
 S

ite
Li

nk
 u

nd
er

 
si

te
 c

on
di

tio
n 

N
o 

W
he

n 
si

te
s/

ha
bi

ta
ts

 w
ith

 
fa

vo
ur

ab
le

 o
r 

un
fa

vo
ur

ab
le

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 w
or

se
n 

 

S
D

P
 a

nd
 L

D
P

 
T

ea
m

s,
 S

N
H

 
A

nn
ua

lly
 

R
ev

ie
w

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
la

ns
 

fo
r 

th
e 

si
te

s 
 

Climatic factors 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 c

ar
 u

se
 

an
d 

en
er

gy
 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

in
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt

s 
of

 
re

gi
on

al
 tr

an
sp

or
t 

st
ra

te
gy

 
 A

nn
ua

l r
ep

or
t f

ro
m

 
D

E
C

C
 

 

T
he

 o
nl

y 
ga

p 
is

 
th

at
 D

E
C

C
 d

at
a 

ar
e 

re
le

as
ed

 in
 

ar
ea

s 

W
he

n 
D

E
C

C
 d

at
a 

sh
ow

s 
th

at
 C

O
2 

em
is

si
on

s 
ar

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

ly
 r

is
in

g  
 W

he
n 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rt
 s

ho
w

s 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

in
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
a 

m
od

al
 s

hi
ft 

is
 n

ot
 

oc
cu

rr
in

g,
 i.

e.
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 
ca

r 
is

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
. 

S
D

P
,  

LD
P

 a
nd

 
re

gi
on

al
 

tr
an

sp
or

t t
ea

m
s 

 

A
nn

ua
lly

 
R

ev
ie

w
 r

eg
io

na
l 

tr
an

sp
or

t s
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
ca

rb
on

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 

Page 172



 37 

5.6 An outline of the reasons for selecting the alternatives dealt with 
The preferred options are chosen because of their conformity with the modernised 
planning system and the fact that their effects on the environment are slightly less 
than the alternatives considered. Further details are also listed in Sections 3.2 – 3.4 
and assessment sections in Appendices 6.1 – 6.3 
 
5.7 General Difficulties, Weaknesses and Limitations 
One difficulty relates to how the SDP differs in format and content from the Main 
Issues Report. The result is that while some comments relating to data can be taken 
on board, because the alternatives and content of the SDP are somewhat different 
from those of the MIR, there is some lack of continuity. Another difficulty of this 
Environmental Report is that the SDP is a high level document and therefore could 
not go into details of every development and leaves that assessment at a high 
strategic level. It does not consider issues relating to implementation and as a result 
the full impact of the strategy will not be fully understood until lower-tier plans are 
developed. There is little scope for enhancements. However, where potential 
significant negative environmental effects have been identified, this Report has 
enabled consideration to be given to potential negative impacts at the low level 
planning stage. 
 
5.8 Next Steps and Anticipated Milestones 
  
Table 5.4 shows the remaining steps needed for the SEA of Aberdeen City and 
Shire Strategic Development Plan and how these steps would be carried out and 
described in the final environmental report. 
 
Table 5.4 Proposed consultation timescale and methods 
Expected time frame Milestone Comments 
November 2012 to 
December 2012 

Consulting on the Environmental 
Report and Proposed SDP. 

We will consult over a 
7 week period. 

January 2013 to June 
2013 

Collating views on the consultation 
and take the appropriate action on 
the Environmental Report and the 
plan. 

Engagement will take 
place throughout this 
period with the 
Consultation 
Authorities in their 
role as Key Agencies 
in the development 
plan process. 

June 2013 to 
December 2013 

Examination of Proposed SDP This process could 
take between 6 and 
12 months. 

Early 2014 Ministers publish revised 
Environmental Report if 
modifications are proposed. 

This will be done by 
Scottish Ministers 

 Publishing a Post-Adoption 
Statement and submitting to SEA 
Gateway. 

This will be done 
within 3 months of the 
SDP being approved 
by Scottish Ministers. 

 

Page 173



 38 

 

Page 174



 
39

 

In
 T

ab
le

 5
.5

 b
el

ow
 w

e 
sh

ow
 h

ow
 w

e 
ha

ve
 a

na
ly

se
d 

th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

re
sp

on
se

s.
 

 
T

ab
le

 5
.5

 A
n

al
ys

is
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
en

ts
 o

n
 t

h
e 

M
ai

n
 Is

su
es

 R
ep

o
rt

 In
te

ri
m

 E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l R
ep

o
rt

 (
re

ce
iv

ed
 J

an
u

ar
y 

20
12

) 
 C

o
n

su
lt

at
io

n
 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 
Is

su
e 

 
C

o
n

ce
rn

 / 
C

o
m

m
en

ts
 

A
ct

io
n

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 

H
is

to
ric

 
S

co
tla

nd
 

G
en

er
al

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
C

le
ar

 r
ep

or
t, 

ea
sy

 d
oc

um
en

t t
o 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 a

nd
 fo

llo
w

 a
nd

 h
ap

py
 fo

r 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
co

m
m

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

sc
op

in
g 

re
po

rt
. t

ho
ro

ug
h 

an
d 

tr
an

sp
ar

en
t a

ss
es

sm
en

t  
W

el
co

m
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 lo

w
er

-t
ie

r 
pl

an
s 

fo
r 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
 

N
ot

ed
 

H
is

to
ric

 
S

co
tla

nd
 

N
on

-T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

S
um

m
ar

y 
In

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
te

rm
 ‘b

ui
lt 

he
rit

ag
e 

fe
at

ur
es

’ i
n 

th
e 

cu
ltu

ra
l h

er
ita

ge
 s

ec
tio

n 
of

 T
ab

le
 1

 c
on

si
st

en
t a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 in

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

1 
to

 s
ho

w
 th

at
 th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t h
as

 p
re

di
ct

ed
 m

ix
ed

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 o

th
er

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f t

he
 h

is
to

ric
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

no
t j

us
t s

pe
ci

al
 o

r 
ol

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
. 

 

A
dd

ed
 

H
is

to
ric

 
S

co
tla

nd
 

R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 

ot
he

r 
P

P
S

 -
  

T
ab

le
 4

.1
 

 

 S
in

ce
 r

es
po

nd
in

g 
at

 s
co

pi
ng

 s
ta

ge
 th

e 
S

H
E

P
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d 

to
 ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 r

ec
en

t a
dd

iti
on

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

H
is

to
ric

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t (

A
m

en
dm

en
t)

 (
S

co
tla

nd
) 

A
ct

 2
01

1 
(“

th
e 

20
11

A
ct

”)
; t

he
 M

ar
in

e 
(S

co
tla

nd
) 

A
ct

 2
01

0 
(“

th
e 

20
10

 A
ct

”)
; t

he
 a

do
pt

io
n 

of
 a

 U
K

 M
ar

in
e 

P
ol

ic
y 

S
ta

te
m

en
t; 

an
d,

 S
co

tt
is

h 
M

in
is

te
rs

’ p
ol

ic
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

si
gn

at
io

n 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f H

is
to

ric
 M

ar
in

e 
P

ro
te

ct
ed

 A
re

as
. T

he
 u

pd
at

ed
 S

H
E

P
 c

an
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

at
 th

is
 li

nk
 

H
U

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.h
is

to
ric

-s
co

tla
nd

.g
ov

.u
k/

sh
ep

-d
ec

20
11

.p
df

U
  

 

N
ot

ed
 

H
is

to
ric

 
S

co
tla

nd
 

B
as

el
in

e 
S

in
ce

 r
es

po
nd

in
g 

at
 s

co
pi

ng
 s

ta
ge

 a
n 

In
ve

nt
or

y 
of

 H
is

to
ric

 B
at

tle
fie

ld
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 la
un

ch
ed

 b
y 

H
is

to
ric

 S
co

tla
nd

. 
A

nd
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 4
 h

is
to

ric
 b

at
tle

fie
ld

 s
ite

s 
lis

te
d 

on
 th

e 
In

ve
nt

or
y 

in
 th

e 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 a

re
a.

 
H

is
to

ric
 B

at
tle

fie
ld

s 
sh

ou
ld

 th
er

ef
or

e 
be

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
ba

se
lin

e 
da

ta
.  

 

A
dd

ed
 

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

N
on

-T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

S
um

m
ar

y  
W

e 
ap

pr
ec

ia
te

 th
at

 th
e 

w
rit

in
g 

st
yl

e 
is

 a
n 

at
te

m
pt

 to
 h

el
p 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 e

ng
ag

e 
w

ith
 s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
is

su
es

. H
ow

ev
er

, 
in

 s
om

e 
ca

se
s 

it 
si

m
pl

ifi
es

 th
e 

is
su

es
 to

 a
 d

eg
re

e 
th

at
 is

 u
nh

el
pf

ul
 a

n
d 

m
is

le
ad

in
g.

 
 

N
T

S
 is

 n
ot

 o
nl

y 
w

rit
te

n 
in

 a
n 

at
te

m
pt

 
to

 h
el

p 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
en

ga
ge

 w
ith

 s
om

e 
of

 
th

e 
is

su
es

.  
It 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

un
de

r 
S

ec
tio

n 
4.

33
 o

f P
A

N
 

1/
20

10
. B

es
id

es
 it

 is
 

a 
“N

O
N

-
T

E
C

H
N

IC
A

L”
 r

at
he

r 
an

 “
E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
” 

su
m

m
ar

y 
an

d 
co

nf
or

m
s 

to
 P

la
in

 
La

ng
ua

ge
 

st
an

da
rd

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

re
nd

er
in

g 
do

 n
ot

 
co

nv
ey

 th
e 

m
ea

ni
ng

s 
w

el
l 

en
ou

gh
, w

e 
w

ill
 

am
en

d 
th

em
.  

 

Page 175



 
40

 

 
S

co
tti

sh
 N

at
ur

al
 

H
er

ita
ge

 
N

on
-T

ec
hn

ic
al

 
S

um
m

ar
y 

W
e 

su
gg

es
t t

ha
t T

ab
le

 1
 a

nd
 2

 a
re

 th
er

ef
or

e 
co

m
bi

ne
d,

 s
o 

it 
is

 e
as

ie
r 

to
 s

ee
 h

ow
 th

e 
m

iti
ga

tio
n,

 in
 p

ra
ct

ic
e,

 w
ill

 
ad

dr
es

s 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

he
or

et
ic

al
 im

pa
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s.
  

 

N
ot

ed
.  

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

N
on

-T
ec

hn
ic

al
 

S
um

m
ar

y  
F

ur
th

er
, w

e 
su

gg
es

t t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 in

se
rt

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
ta

bl
e:

 “
W

e 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 n

ew
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 is

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 a

vo
id

 h
av

in
g 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f w

at
er

 w
e 

ta
ke

 fr
om

 th
e 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
 to

 
se

rv
ic

e 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t.”

  
 

S
ug

ge
st

io
n 

ad
de

d.
 

T
hr

ou
gh

 w
at

er
 

sa
vi

ng
 te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
 

in
 th

e 
pl

an
 

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

G
re

en
 N

et
w

or
ks

 
W

e 
ar

e 
pl

ea
se

d 
to

 s
ee

 a
n 

up
da

te
 in

 T
ab

le
 4

.2
 a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 r

ol
e 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
 in

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
in

g 
to

 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 w

ith
in

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t e
.g

. t
hr

ou
gh

 g
re

en
sp

ac
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n.
  

   

N
ot

ed
 

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

G
re

en
 N

et
w

or
ks

 
A

 fu
tu

re
 r

ev
is

io
n 

of
 th

is
 E

R
 c

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
is

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 im
pa

ct
s 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
 th

at
 

ha
s 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d.
  

 

In
cl

ud
ed

  

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

G
re

en
 N

et
w

or
ks

 
O

f c
ou

rs
e,

 it
 is

 im
po

rt
an

t t
o 

sh
ow

 th
at

 g
re

en
 n

et
w

or
ks

 a
re

 n
ot

 ju
st

 a
bo

ut
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, b

ut
 if

 w
el

l p
la

nn
ed

, c
an

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ac

ce
ss

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s,
 c

yc
lin

g 
ro

ut
es

 to
 w

or
k 

, s
af

e 
ro

ut
es

 to
 s

ch
oo

l a
nd

 s
o 

on
. 

N
ot

ed
 

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

an
d 

S
yn

er
gi

st
ic

 
E

ffe
ct

s 
– 

“S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
E

co
no

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t”

? 
 

T
ab

le
 5

.6
 is

 ti
tle

d 
“A

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f C

um
ul

at
iv

e 
an

d 
S

yn
er

gi
st

ic
 e

ffe
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

 o
pt

io
ns

/a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

”.
 H

ow
ev

er
 

it 
do

es
 n

ot
 a

pp
ea

r 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 o
r 

op
tio

ns
, i

nd
ee

d 
it 

is
n’

t c
le

ar
 q

ui
te

 w
ha

t i
s 

be
in

g 
as

se
ss

ed
. I

s 
it 

th
e 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
op

tio
n 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 p
ol

ic
y 

ar
ea

 in
 th

e 
pl

an
?

 
  

N
ar

ra
tiv

e 
ad

de
d 

an
d 

th
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 a
re

 
cl

ea
rly

 s
pe

lt 
ou

t i
n 

T
ab

le
 3

.1
- 

T
ab

le
3.

3 

 
 

T
he

 ta
bl

e 
its

el
f d

oe
s 

no
t a

llo
w

 th
e 

re
ad

er
 to

 m
ak

e 
st

ra
ig

ht
fo

rw
ar

d 
co

nc
lu

si
on

s 
ab

ou
t s

yn
er

gi
st

ic
 o

r 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s.
 W

e 
w

ou
ld

 r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 s
om

e 
na

rr
at

iv
e 

he
re

 th
at

 d
ra

w
s 

ou
t t

he
 m

os
t i

m
po

rt
an

t c
um

ul
at

iv
e/

 
sy

ne
rg

is
tic

 e
ffe

ct
s 

an
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 s
om

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
of

 h
ow

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

w
er

e 
as

se
ss

ed
. 

 

E
xp

la
na

tio
n 

no
te

s 
ad

de
d 

in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

6.
4  

 
 

T
ab

le
 5

.6
 w

ou
ld

 a
pp

ea
r 

to
 s

ug
ge

st
 th

at
 th

e 
‘S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 E

co
no

m
ic

 G
ro

w
th

’ p
ol

ic
y 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
m

aj
or

 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
(-

-)
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 A
ir,

 W
at

er
, S

oi
l, 

B
io

di
ve

rs
ity

, C
lim

at
ic

 F
ac

to
rs

, C
ul

tu
ra

l H
er

ita
ge

, L
an

ds
ca

pe
 a

nd
 H

um
an

 
H

ea
lth

. I
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 to

 c
on

cl
ud

e 
th

at
 if

 th
at

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t w

as
 a

cc
ur

at
e,

 th
en

 th
er

e 
m

us
t b

e 
so

m
et

hi
ng

 
se

rio
us

ly
 w

ro
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
an

d 
th

at
 it

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

ha
ng

ed
.  

It 
m

ay
 b

e 
m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
th

ou
gh

 th
at

 th
e 

m
et

ho
d 

us
ed

 in
 th

e 
S

E
A

 o
r 

th
e 

w
ay

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 is
 m

is
le

ad
in

g.
 If

 th
at

 is
 th

e 
ca

se
, w

e 
w

ou
ld

 w
el

co
m

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
di

sc
us

si
on

 a
bo

ut
 h

ow
 a

 r
ev

is
ed

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l R
ep

or
t m

ig
ht

 b
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

.  

T
he

 p
ol

ic
y 

is
 r

ev
is

ed
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

M
IR

 a
nd

 th
e 

re
as

se
ss

ed
  

A
pp

en
di

x 
6.

1-
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
6.

4 
S

co
tti

sh
 N

at
ur

al
 

H
er

ita
ge

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
T

he
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l A

ss
es

sm
en

t (
S

co
tla

nd
) 

A
ct

 2
00

5 
re

qu
ire

s 
th

at
 th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t m
us

t i
nc

lu
de

 a
n 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f 

sh
or

t, 
m

ed
iu

m
 a

nd
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 e
ffe

ct
s;

 p
er

m
an

en
t a

nd
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 e
ffe

ct
s;

 p
os

iti
ve

 a
nd

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s;
 a

nd
 

se
co

nd
ar

y,
 c

um
ul

at
iv

e 
an

d 
sy

ne
rg

is
tic

 e
ffe

ct
s.

 P
os

iti
ve

 a
nd

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
m

us
t n

ot
 b

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 c
an

ce
l 

ea
ch

 o
th

er
 o

ut
.  

P
le

as
e 

re
co

ns
id

er
 th

is
 w

ith
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 to
 ta

bl
e 

5.
6 

an
d 

an
y 

ad
di

tio
na

l m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
at

 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 O

ne
 w

ay
 o

f d
oi

ng
 th

is
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

to
 h

av
e 

a 
ta

bl
e 

(o
r 

se
rie

s 
of

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
s)

 w
hi

ch
 li

st
 th

e 
va

rio
us

 
ty

pe
s 

of
 im

pa
ct

s 
(s

ho
rt

, m
ed

iu
m

, l
on

g 
et

c.
) 

an
d 

br
ie

fly
 s

ta
te

 w
ha

t t
he

 m
ai

n 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

 w
ill

 b
e.

 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t m

et
ho

d 
is

 r
ev

is
ed

. S
ee

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

6.
1-

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

6.
4.

 

 
 

It 
is

 n
ot

 c
le

ar
 h

ow
 A

pp
en

di
x 

1 
re

la
te

s 
to

 T
ab

le
 5

.6
. F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

w
ou

ld
 s

ug
ge

st
 th

at
 e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
4 

pr
op

os
al

s 
an

d 
al

so
 N

R
IP

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

a 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

B
io

di
ve

rs
ity

. 
H

ow
ev

er
, T

ab
le

 5
.6

 s
ug

ge
st

s 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

It 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

us
ef

ul
 to

 e
xp

la
in

 
ho

w
 T

ab
le

 5
.6

 w
as

 d
er

iv
ed

, w
he

th
er

 o
r 

no
t i

t t
ak

es
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

an
d 

if 
no

t, 
w

he
re

 w
e 

ca
n 

lo
ok

 in
 t

he
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t h

as
 

be
en

 r
ev

is
ed

 to
 li

nk
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

to
 T

ab
le

 
5.

6 

Page 176



 
41

 

E
R

 to
 fi

nd
 o

ut
 h

ow
 th

es
e 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
iti

ga
te

d.
 

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

as
se

ss
in

g 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

ef
fe

ct
s 

It 
is

 d
iff

ic
ul

t t
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
fo

r 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

ef
er

re
d 

M
IR

 o
pt

io
ns

 if
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t f
or

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
of

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
re

ce
pt

or
s 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 r

ev
er

si
bi

lit
y 

or
 ir

re
ve

rs
ib

ili
ty

 o
f e

ffe
ct

s,
 r

is
ks

, d
ur

at
io

n 
(p

er
m

an
en

t, 
te

m
po

ra
ry

, l
on

g-
te

rm
, s

ho
rt

-t
er

m
, m

ed
iu

m
-t

er
m

).
 If

 th
is

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
do

ne
, t

he
n 

so
m

e 
ki

nd
 o

f 
st

ra
ig

ht
fo

rw
ar

d 
su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 th

e 
im

po
rt

an
t i

m
pa

ct
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
he

lp
fu

l. 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t h

as
 

be
en

 r
ev

is
ed

 to
 

ex
pl

ai
n 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

of
 

ef
fe

ct
. S

ee
 A

pp
en

di
x 

6.
1-

 A
pp

en
di

x 
6.

4 

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

S
oi

l 
 

T
he

 im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f c
ar

bo
n-

ric
h 

so
ils

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ra

is
ed

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

in
 o

ur
 s

co
pi

ng
 r

es
po

ns
e 

ye
t i

t d
oe

s 
no

t s
ee

m
 to

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 i
n 

th
e 

E
R

. 
G

iv
en

 t
ha

t 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 a
re

as
 o

f 
pe

at
 e

xi
st

 i
n 

th
e 

S
D

P
 a

re
a,

 w
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
at

 t
he

 s
oi

l 
se

ct
io

n 
of

 t
ab

le
 5

.7
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
m

en
de

d 
to

 i
nc

lu
de

 t
he

 p
os

si
bl

e 
e

ffe
ct

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

on
 p

ea
t. 

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 t

o 
en

su
re

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 t

hi
s 

re
so

ur
ce

 a
re

 
m

in
im

is
ed

.  
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 in
cl

ud
ed

 
pe

at
 s

oi
ls

 in
 th

e 
ba

se
lin

e,
 th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
 

T
he

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
do

es
 n

ot
 y

et
 s

et
 o

ut
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

et
 o

f 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
ga

in
st

 w
hi

ch
 t

o 
m

ea
su

re
 

su
cc

es
s 

fo
r 

m
an

y 
of

 t
he

 t
op

ic
s 

in
 t

ab
le

 5
.8

. 
W

e 
w

ou
ld

 h
op

e 
to

 s
ee

 m
uc

h 
m

or
e 

tig
ht

ly
 d

ef
in

ed
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 in
 t

he
 

ne
xt

 r
ev

is
io

n 
of

 th
e 

E
R

 a
nd

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ke

en
 to

 e
xp

lo
re

 th
is

 w
ith

 y
ou

. 
 

N
ot

ed
 

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
 

In
 t

er
m

s 
of

 l
an

ds
ca

pe
 c

ha
ng

e,
 T

ab
le

 4
 o

f 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

ns
 i

n 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.s

nh
.g

ov
.u

k/
pl

an
ni

ng
-a

nd
-d

ev
el

op
m

en
t/e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l-a

ss
es

sm
en

t/s
ea

/ 
pr

ov
id

es
 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
su

gg
es

te
d 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ch
an

ge
 fo

r 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

he
lp

fu
l t

o 
yo

u.
 

 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
is

 n
ot

 a
  

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 is

su
e 

in
 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

It 
is

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

no
t 

m
on

ito
re

d 
S

co
tti

sh
 N

at
ur

al
 

H
er

ita
ge

 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

 
In

 te
rm

s 
of

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 w

at
er

, w
e 

w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 s
ee

 m
uc

h 
m

or
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f w

at
er

 
ab

st
ra

ct
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
 a

nd
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
flo

w
 r

at
e.

 In
 te

rm
s 

of
 im

pa
ct

s 
on

 
F

re
sh

w
at

er
 P

ea
rl 

M
us

se
l (

F
W

P
M

) 
fr

om
 to

o 
m

uc
h 

ab
st

ra
ct

io
n,

 r
em

ed
ia

l a
ct

io
n 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ne

ed
ed

 b
ef

or
e 

le
ve

ls
 

w
er

e 
re

ac
he

d 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

em
.  

 

In
cl

ud
ed

  

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
 

T
he

se
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

gr
ee

d 
w

ith
 S

co
tti

sh
 W

at
er

 a
nd

 S
E

P
A

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f a

 w
or

ki
ng

 g
ro

up
 c

on
si

de
rin

g 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

P
la

n 
on

 th
e 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
 S

A
C

 a
nd

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 w
or

k 
to

 e
xp

lo
re

 th
es

e 
im

pa
ct

s.
  

 

O
n-

go
in

g 
di

sc
us

si
on

 
w

ith
 th

em
 

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
 

O
ne

 o
f t

he
 m

os
t i

m
po

rt
an

t i
nd

ic
at

or
s 

in
 te

rm
s 

of
 th

e 
B

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 o

f t
he

 R
iv

er
 D

ee
 S

A
C

 is
 th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 
in

te
re

st
s 

of
 th

e 
S

A
C

. C
ur

re
nt

ly
, t

he
 c

on
di

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
F

W
P

M
 is

 ‘u
nf

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
no

 c
ha

ng
e’

. 
 

 

S
ee

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
ta

bl
e 

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 
H

er
ita

ge
 

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f P

ro
po

sa
ls

 
C

ar
bo

n 
C

ap
tu

re
 a

nd
 S

to
ra

ge
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

&
 E

le
ct

ric
ity

 I
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

U
pg

ra
de

s 
W

e 
w

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

at
 t

he
se

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

ou
ld

 c
au

se
 m

or
e 

th
an

 a
 n

eu
tr

al
 e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
 D

ue
 t

o 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 a
nd

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
th

es
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 e

xi
st

in
g 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 o

n 
si

te
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 a
 l

ar
ge

 
tr

an
sf

or
m

er
 p

la
nt

 a
t 

P
et

er
he

ad
, 

w
e 

w
ou

ld
 a

sk
 t

he
 S

D
P

A
 t

o 
re

co
ns

id
er

 t
he

 c
um

ul
at

iv
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 a
ll 

th
es

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 a
ro

un
d 

P
et

er
he

ad
. 

It 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

he
lp

fu
l 

if 
m

or
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
no

 a
dv

er
se

 im
pa

ct
 w

er
e 

st
at

ed
 in

 ta
bl

e 
5.

7.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

th
e 

M
IR

 a
t p

ar
a.

 A
6.

25
 s

ug
ge

st
s 

a 
m

as
te

rp
la

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 f

or
 t

hi
s 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 a
n 

‘e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pl

an
’ i

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 b

ei
ng

 p
re

pa
re

d.
 

W
ill

 th
es

e 
m

iti
ga

te
 th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

im
pa

ct
s?

 If
 s

o,
 in

 w
ha

t w
ay

? 
 

A
s 

S
N

H
 h

as
 r

ig
ht

ly
 

in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 th
ei

r 
co

m
m

en
t o

n 
th

e 
H

R
A

, t
he

se
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

fr
om

 p
ar

t o
f a

no
th

er
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t i

n 
N

P
F

2,
 p

12
2.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 li
ttl

e 
co

nt
ro

l 
ov

er
 th

em
 T

he
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 p

la
ce

 fo
r 

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l 

Page 177



 
42

 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
at

 
E

IA
 le

ve
l 

S
co

tti
sh

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y 

G
en

er
al

 
C

om
m

en
ts

  
 

W
e 

ar
e 

pl
ea

se
d 

to
 n

ot
e 

th
at

 m
an

y 
of

 t
he

 c
om

m
en

ts
 w

e 
m

ad
e 

at
 t

he
 s

co
pi

ng
 s

ta
ge

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

ct
ed

 u
po

n.
 W

e 
co

ns
id

er
 t

ha
t 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 t
he

 E
R

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
n 

th
e 

M
ai

n 
Is

su
es

 R
ep

or
t (

M
IR

) 
an

d 
fo

r 
th

is
 y

ou
 a

re
 to

 b
e 

co
m

m
en

de
d.

  S
om

e 
su

gg
es

tio
ns

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ot
he

r 
pa

rt
s 

of
 th

e 
re

po
rt

 

N
ot

ed
 

S
co

tti
sh

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y 

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 

ot
he

r 
P

la
ns

, 
P

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

(P
P

S
) 

 
 

O
n 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 th

e 
lis

t o
f P

P
S

s 
is

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
, w

e 
su

gg
es

t y
ou

 c
he

ck
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 e

ve
ry

th
in

g 
is

 u
p 

to
 d

at
e 

be
fo

re
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
 y

ou
r 

E
R

. 
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

  
 

· 
T

he
 N

or
th

 E
as

t 
A

re
a 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
la

n 
ha

s 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

fin
al

is
ed

 (
20

10
),

 a
nd

 t
he

 W
at

er
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
(c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

) 
(S

co
tla

nd
) 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
00

5 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

am
en

de
d 

an
d 

ar
e 

no
w

 t
he

 W
at

er
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t (

C
on

tr
ol

le
d 

A
ct

iv
iti

es
) 

(S
co

tla
nd

) 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

01
1.

  
· 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 w

e 
br

in
g 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
P

P
S

 to
 y

ou
r 

at
te

nt
io

n:
  

· 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
20

11
  

· 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 W
as

te
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

20
10

-2
02

5 
 

 

U
pd

at
ed

 a
nd

 
ad

di
tio

na
l P

P
S

s 
ad

de
d.

 

S
co

tti
sh

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y 

 B
as

el
in

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
 

 

A
s 

in
di

ca
te

d 
at

 th
e 

sc
op

in
g 

st
ag

e 
yo

u 
sh

ou
ld

 r
ec

og
ni

se
 in

 th
e 

ba
se

lin
e 

an
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t t
ha

t 
flo

od
 r

is
k 

is
 a

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
pr

ob
le

m
 (

no
t j

us
t a

n 
is

su
e 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

).
 W

e 
ar

e 
pl

ea
se

d 
to

 n
ot

e 
th

at
 th

e 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

a 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 F
lo

od
 R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t (

S
F

R
A

) 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

; w
he

n 
th

e 
S

F
R

A
 it

se
lf 

ha
s 

be
en

 
pr

od
uc

ed
 w

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
th

at
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 is
 m

ad
e 

to
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 th
is

 in
 th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
E

R
. 

 

T
he

 S
D

P
 r

ec
og

ni
se

s 
th

at
 fl

oo
d 

ris
k 

is
 a

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
pr

ob
le

m
. 

T
he

 S
F

R
A

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 a

s 
a 

se
pa

ra
te

 d
oc

um
en

t. 
S

co
tti

sh
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

A
ge

nc
y 

 
W

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
so

ils
 s

ec
tio

n 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 in
cl

ud
es

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 p

ea
tla

nd
. T

he
 S

oi
l S

ur
ve

y 
of

 S
co

tla
nd

 
1:

25
0 

00
0 

m
ap

s 
pr

ov
id

es
 g

en
er

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 s
oi

ls
. 

T
hi

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 S

co
tti

sh
 s

oi
ls

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fr
om

 w
w

w
.M

ac
au

la
y.

ac
.u

k.
 

B
as

el
in

e 
up

da
te

d 
an

d 
m

ap
s 

ad
de

d 

S
co

tti
sh

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y 

 
A

ls
o 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

n 
w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
so

ils
 s

ec
tio

n 
yo

u 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

w
is

h 
to

 r
ef

er
 

to
 th

e 
w

as
te

 s
ite

 c
ap

ac
ity

 a
nd

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 r

ep
or

ts
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

on
 o

ur
 w

eb
si

te
: n

at
io

na
l c

ap
ac

ity
 r

ep
or

ts
 -

 
w

w
w

.s
ep

a.
or

g.
uk

/w
as

te
/w

as
te

_d
at

a/
si

te
_c

ap
ac

ity
__

in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

ur
e/

na
tio

na
l_

ca
pa

ci
ty

_r
ep

or
t s

.a
sp

x 
an

d 
la

nd
fil

l 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 r

ep
or

ts
 -

 
w

w
w

.s
ep

a.
or

g.
uk

/w
as

te
/w

as
te

_d
at

a/
si

te
_c

ap
ac

ity
__

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
/la

nd
fil

l_
ca

pa
ci

ty
_r

ep
or

t.a
sp

x 
an

d 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 
w

as
te

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t 
w

w
w

.s
ep

a.
or

g.
uk

/w
as

te
/w

as
te

_d
at

a/
w

as
te

_d
at

a_
re

po
rt

s/
lo

ca
l_

a
ut

ho
rit

y_
an

nu
al

_r
ep

or
ts

.a
sp

x 

 

S
co

tti
sh

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y 

 
T

ab
le

 4
.2

 s
et

s 
ou

t 
a 

cl
ea

r 
ro

le
 f

or
 t

he
 S

D
P

 o
n 

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y,
 a

nd
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

s 
th

e 
ke

y 
is

su
es

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 B
as

in
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

la
n 

fo
r 

S
co

tla
nd

. 
W

e 
su

gg
es

t 
th

at
 t

he
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 t
o 

th
e 

S
D

P
 r

ol
e 

as
 

‘im
pr

ov
e 

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
en

su
re

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 u
se

 o
f 

w
at

er
’ 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
br

oa
de

ne
d 

to
 ‘

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 

st
at

us
 o

f 
w

at
er

’. 
T

hi
s 

re
fle

ct
s 

th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 w
at

er
 is

su
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d,
 a

nd
 m

ak
es

 a
 c

le
ar

 li
nk

 t
o 

W
at

er
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
D

ire
ct

iv
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. 

A
dd

ed
 to

 th
e 

S
D

P
 

    
S

co
tti

sh
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

A
ge

nc
y 

A
lte

rn
at

iv
es

  
 

It 
st

at
es

 in
 3

.1
 th

at
 th

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 li
st

ed
 in

 T
ab

le
 4

.1
 h

ow
ev

er
 T

ab
le

 4
.1

 r
el

at
es

 to
 O

th
er

 P
P

S
 a

nd
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

f t
he

 S
D

P
. W

e 
no

te
 th

at
 th

e 
E

R
 m

ak
es

 a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f b
ot

h 
th

e 
pr

ef
er

re
d 

op
tio

ns
 a

nd
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
op

tio
ns

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

in
 th

e 
M

IR
, t

hi
s 

is
 w

el
co

m
ed

. 
 

 

T
ab

le
 n

um
be

rin
g 

am
en

de
d  

S
co

tti
sh

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
M

et
ho

do
lo

gy
  

Y
ou

 h
av

e 
go

ne
 t

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
ffo

rt
 t

o 
as

se
ss

 in
di

vi
du

al
 e

le
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

M
IR

 in
 s

om
e 

de
ta

il 
an

d 
fo

r 
th

is
 y

ou
 a

re
 

to
 b

e 
co

m
m

en
de

d.
 W

e 
no

te
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

ha
s 

be
en

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
e 

S
E

A
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

to
pi

cs
 

N
ot

ed
 

Page 178



 
43

 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

A
ge

nc
y 

G
en

er
al

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 S
E

A
 O

bj
ec

tiv
es

.  
 

 
 

 
W

e 
ar

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
th

at
 t

he
 v

is
io

n 
an

d 
sp

at
ia

l s
tr

at
eg

y 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

S
E

A
 f

or
 t

he
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

 
P

la
n,

 h
ow

ev
er

 s
ho

ul
d 

th
e 

M
IR

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

le
ad

 t
o 

an
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 t

he
 v

is
io

n 
or

 s
pa

tia
l s

tr
at

eg
y 

th
en

 t
he

se
 w

ill
 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 in

 th
e 

re
vi

se
d 

E
R

.  
 

M
IR

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

di
d 

no
t c

ha
ng

e 
vi

si
on

. 
S

o 
th

e 
is

 n
ot

 
as

se
ss

ed
. 

 
 

W
e 

ar
e 

pl
ea

se
d 

to
 n

ot
e 

th
at

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
of

 c
um

ul
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

an
 a

sp
ec

t 
of

 t
he

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
w

hi
ch

 is
 o

fte
n 

ov
er

lo
ok

ed
. 

H
ow

ev
er

 w
e 

no
te

 t
he

re
 is

 s
om

e 
un

ce
rt

ai
nt

y 
ov

er
 t

he
 e

ffe
ct

s 
w

ith
 T

ab
le

 
5.

6 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 e
ffe

ct
s 

as
 b

ei
ng

 b
ot

h 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

an
d 

po
si

tiv
e.

 P
er

ha
ps

 in
 t

he
 r

ev
is

ed
 E

R
 

yo
u 

co
ul

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l c

om
m

en
ta

ry
 a

s 
to

 th
e 

re
as

on
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
cl

ar
ity

. 
 

 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

co
m

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
fo

r 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 

 
 

In
 T

ab
le

 6
.3

 y
ou

 s
et

 o
ut

 c
le

ar
ly

 h
ow

 t
he

 c
om

m
en

ts
 m

ad
e 

by
 t

he
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
at

 t
he

 S
co

pi
ng

 S
ta

ge
 

ha
s 

be
en

 ta
ke

n 
in

to
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 th
is

 In
te

rim
 E

R
, w

e 
co

ns
id

er
 th

is
 to

 b
e 

go
od

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 

N
ot

ed
 

S
co

tti
sh

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f 
M

ai
n 

Is
su

es
 

 

It 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

he
lp

fu
l i

f 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

bo
dy

 o
f 

th
e 

E
R

 in
cl

ud
ed

 s
om

e 
te

xt
 t

o 
ex

pl
ai

n 
ex

ac
tly

 w
ha

t 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

ss
es

se
d 

in
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

an
d 

th
at

 b
ot

h 
us

ed
 t

he
 s

am
e 

w
or

di
ng

, 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 p
re

fe
rr

ed
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 in

 t
he

 in
te

re
st

s 
of

 c
la

rit
y 

an
d 

tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

.  
 

T
hi

s 
ha

s 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

cl
ar

ifi
ed

 in
 T

ab
le

s 
6.

1-
 T

ab
le

 6
.4

 

 
 

In
 g

en
er

al
, w

e 
ar

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
su

gg
es

tio
ns

. 
 

W
as

te
: Y

ou
 h

av
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 O
pt

io
n 

1 
(N

et
 Im

po
rt

er
 o

f W
as

te
) 

as
 h

av
in

g 
a 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
w

at
er

, i
t i

s 
no

t c
le

ar
 

w
hy

 y
ou

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

at
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 w
as

te
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

w
ill

 le
ad

 t
o 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 t

he
 w

at
er

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t, 

as
 

yo
u 

st
at

e 
in

 t
he

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

m
od

er
n 

w
as

te
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

ar
e 

lic
en

se
d 

an
d 

re
qu

ire
 t

o 
op

er
at

e 
to

 h
ig

h 
st

an
da

rd
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 m

in
im

is
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

w
at

er
) 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 h

um
an

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 p

op
ul

at
io

n,
 t

hi
s 

as
se

ss
m

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
le

ar
ly

 e
xp

la
in

ed
.  

 

R
ep

or
t a

m
en

de
d 

to
 

re
fle

ct
 li

ce
ns

in
g 

re
gi

m
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
w

as
te

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 In

 
G

en
er

al
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f T

ab
le

 6
.1

 
an

d 
T

ab
le

 6
.2

  
 

 
S

im
ila

rly
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

al
so

 a
ss

es
se

d 
th

is
 o

pt
io

n 
as

 h
av

in
g 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
so

ils
; 

it 
is

 n
ot

 c
le

ar
 

w
hy

 t
hi

s 
is

 t
he

 c
as

e.
 W

e 
w

ou
ld

 a
ga

in
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

 m
od

er
n 

w
as

te
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

ar
e 

lic
en

se
d 

an
d 

re
qu

ire
 t

o 
op

er
at

e 
to

 
hi

gh
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

, 
th

is
 w

ill
 m

in
im

is
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 t

he
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 h
um

an
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 W
e 

re
qu

es
t t

ha
t y

ou
 c

la
rif

y 
yo

ur
 r

ea
so

ni
ng

 fo
r 

th
is

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t. 

 
 

R
ep

or
t a

m
en

de
d 

to
 

re
fle

ct
 li

ce
ns

in
g 

re
gi

m
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
w

as
te

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 In

 
G

en
er

al
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f T

ab
le

 6
.1

 
an

d 
T

ab
le

 6
.2

 
 

 
La

nd
fil

l: 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ss
es

se
d 

O
pt

io
n 

3 
(I

de
nt

ify
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l l

an
df

ill
) 

as
 h

av
in

g 
a 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 

on
 s

oi
ls

 a
nd

 w
at

er
, 

ag
ai

n 
w

e 
hi

gh
lig

ht
 m

od
er

n 
w

as
te

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
lic

en
se

d 
an

d 
re

qu
ire

 t
o 

op
er

at
e 

to
 h

ig
h 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 t

hi
s 

w
ill

 m
in

im
is

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
hu

m
an

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 p

op
ul

at
io

n.
 W

e 
re

qu
es

t 
th

at
 y

ou
 c

la
rif

y 
yo

ur
 r

ea
so

ni
ng

 fo
r 

th
is

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t. 

 
 

R
ep

or
t a

m
en

de
d 

to
 

re
fl e

ct
 li

ce
ns

in
g 

re
gi

m
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
w

as
te

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 In

 
G

en
er

al
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f T

ab
le

 6
.1

 
an

d 
T

ab
le

 6
.2

 
 

 
P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
S

pa
tia

l F
ra

m
ew

or
k:

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

ll 
op

tio
ns

 a
s 

ha
vi

ng
 a

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

so
ils

 a
nd

 w
at

er
, 

w
e 

ag
ai

n 
hi

gh
lig

ht
 m

od
er

n 
w

as
te

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
lic

en
se

d 
an

d 
re

qu
ire

 t
o 

op
er

at
e 

to
 h

ig
h 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 t

hi
s 

w
ill

 
R

ep
or

t a
m

en
de

d 
to

 
re

fle
ct

 li
ce

ns
in

g 

Page 179



 
44

 

m
in

im
is

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
hu

m
an

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 p

op
ul

at
io

n.
 W

e 
re

qu
es

t t
ha

t y
ou

 c
la

rif
y 

yo
ur

 
re

as
on

in
g 

fo
r 

th
is

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t. 

 
 

re
gi

m
e 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
w

as
te

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 In

 
G

en
er

al
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f T

ab
le

 6
.1

 
an

d 
T

ab
le

 6
.2

 
 

 
4.

2.
6 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 I
nt

er
ve

nt
io

ns
: 

Y
ou

 h
av

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 t

he
se

 a
s 

ha
vi

ng
 p

os
iti

ve
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
yo

u 
st

at
e 

in
 t

he
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
co

m
m

en
ts

 s
ec

tio
n 

th
at

 i
nc

re
as

ed
 i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ca

n 
le

ad
 t

o 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 tr

af
fic

 a
nd

 th
er

eb
y 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
us

e 
of

 fo
ss

il 
fu

el
s.

 W
e 

ag
re

e 
th

at
 g

en
er

al
ly

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 
re

su
lt 

in
 m

or
e 

ro
ad

 t
ra

ffi
c,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 t
he

 m
ai

n 
co

nt
rib

ut
in

g 
fa

ct
or

 t
o 

po
or

 a
ir 

qu
a

lit
y 

in
 t

he
 C

ity
 a

nd
 s

o 
th

er
e 

m
ay

 
be

 s
om

e 
(p

er
ha

ps
 l

oc
al

is
ed

) 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 t
he

 p
ac

ka
ge

 o
f 

m
ea

su
re

s.
 W

hi
le

 w
e 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

th
at

 s
om

e 
of

 t
he

 m
ea

su
re

s 
w

ill
 l

ea
d 

to
 p

os
iti

ve
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
, 

cl
ar

ifi
ca

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

n 
th

os
e 

as
pe

ct
s 

w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
 a

nd
 c

ap
tu

re
d 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
in

 th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

(p
er

ha
ps

 a
n 

un
ce

rt
ai

n 
ef

fe
ct

).
 

T
he

 r
ep

or
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

cl
ar

ifi
ed

. T
he

 e
ffe

ct
 

is
 n

ow
 m

ix
ed

. 

S
co

tti
sh

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

C
om

m
en

ts
  

  

W
e 

w
el

co
m

e 
th

e 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
E

R
 to

 th
e 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 F

lo
od

 R
is

k 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t (
S

F
R

A
).

 W
e 

ha
ve

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
co

m
m

en
t o

n 
th

e 
S

F
R

A
 in

 o
ur

 r
es

po
ns

e 
on

 th
e 

M
IR

 it
se

lf.
  

W
e 

w
el

co
m

e 
th

e 
re

co
gn

iti
on

 o
f 

is
su

es
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 p

re
ss

ur
es

 f
ro

m
 a

bs
tr

ac
tio

n 
fr

om
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 D
ee

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

D
is

cu
ss

io
n 

on
 th

is
 is

su
e 

w
ith

 y
ou

, S
N

H
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 r
el

ev
an

t p
ar

tie
s 

is
 o

ng
oi

ng
. 

N
ot

ed
 

S
co

tti
sh

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
 W

e 
su

pp
or

t 
th

e 
st

ro
ng

 e
m

ph
as

is
 o

n 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

an
d 

th
e 

cl
ea

r 
ta

bl
e 

sh
ow

in
g 

th
e 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 e
ffe

ct
s,

 p
ro

po
se

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
th

e 
st

ag
es

 a
t w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d.
  

 W
e 

no
te

 t
ha

t 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 m
an

y 
of

 t
he

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
in

 t
he

 L
D

P
s 

ac
t 

as
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

fr
om

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
; 

th
is

 i
s 

of
te

n 
ov

er
lo

ok
ed

. 
W

e 
al

so
 w

el
co

m
e

 t
he

 f
ac

t 
th

at
 t

he
 t

ab
le

 o
ut

lin
es

 t
ho

se
 a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 
w

hi
ch

 w
er

e 
fo

un
d 

to
 h

av
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t w
er

e 
re

m
ov

ed
. 

N
ot

ed
 

S
co

tti
sh

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
A

ge
nc

y 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
 

 
W

e 
w

el
co

m
e 

th
e 

in
cl

us
io

n 
of

 a
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

P
la

n 
se

t 
ou

t 
in

 T
ab

le
 5

.8
 a

nd
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
nd

 o
n 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 

w
e 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 id
en

tif
ie

d.
  

. 

N
ot

ed
  

 
 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
w

e 
w

ou
ld

 w
el

co
m

e 
a 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

in
di

ca
to

r 
on

 e
co

lo
g

ic
al

 s
ta

tu
s 

o
f 

w
at

er
 b

o
d

ie
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 r
ef

le
ct

s 
w

at
er

 
q

u
al

it
y 

an
d

 a
 r

an
g

e 
o

f 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 in

d
ic

at
o

rs
. S

E
P

A
 c

an
 s

up
pl

y 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
is

 in
di

ca
to

r.
  

 

A
dd

ed
 

 
 

A
s 

a 
m

in
or

 p
oi

nt
, 

w
e 

no
te

 th
at

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
W

at
er

 c
at

eg
or

y,
 h

ow
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 c
ol

um
n,

 it
 s

ta
te

s 
”a

s 
an

d 
w

he
n 

flo
od

 r
is

k 
an

d 
po

llu
tio

n 
in

cr
ea

se
s”

, 
as

 o
ne

 o
f 

th
e 

ai
m

s 
of

 t
he

 P
P

S
 i

s 
to

 m
in

im
is

e 
flo

od
 r

is
k 

an
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
w

e 
w

ou
ld

 s
ug

ge
st

 th
at

 th
e 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t o

nl
y 

be
 t

rig
ge

re
d 

by
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l e
ffe

ct
s 

bu
t 

pe
rh

ap
s 

on
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 b
as

is
 w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 a

llo
w

 t
he

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
of

 p
os

iti
ve

 o
r 

ne
ut

ra
l e

ffe
ct

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

pl
an

 to
o

 

W
e 

w
ill

 m
on

ito
r 

it 
an

nu
al

ly
 

  

Page 180



 
45

 

A
p

p
en

d
ic

es
: 

A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

, P
P

S
 C

o
n

te
xt

 &
 B

as
el

in
e 

 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 6

.1
: 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

o
f 

S
p

at
ia

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
   

 S
E

A
 T

o
p

ic
s 

      P
o

lic
y 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

Air  

Water 

Soil  

Biodiversity 

Climatic Factors 

Cultural Heritage 

Landscape 

Material Assets 

Population  

Human health 

C
o

m
m

en
t  

N
at

ur
e 

of
 

ef
fe

ct
s:

 
ne

ga
tiv

e,
 

po
si

tiv
e,

 
un

ce
rt

ai
n,

 
m

ix
ed

, 
ne

ut
ra

l, 
re

ve
rs

ib
ili

ty
 

or
 

irr
ev

er
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 
ef

fe
ct

s,
 

ris
ks

, 
du

ra
tio

n 
(p

er
m

an
en

t, 
te

m
po

ra
ry

, l
on

g-
te

rm
, s

ho
rt

-t
er

m
 a

nd
 m

ed
iu

m
-t

er
m

) 
an

d 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
(d

ire
ct

, i
nd

ire
ct

, s
ec

on
da

ry
 a

nd
 s

yn
er

gi
st

ic
) 

G
en

er
al

 im
pa

ct
s 

of
  e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
th

re
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

- 

-- 

-- 

+/-- 

+/-- 

- 

+/- 

++ 

++ 

+/- 

T
he

 S
D

P
 h

as
 s

et
 t

he
 f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 o
ve

r 
70

, 
00

0 
ne

w
 h

ou
se

s.
 T

he
se

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 

th
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 2
55

ha
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 t
he

 C
ity

 a
nd

 t
he

 S
hi

re
 i

n 
th

e 
ne

xt
 2

5 
ye

ar
s.

 T
he

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ar
e 

ph
as

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

no
w

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
20

35
. 

T
hi

s 
m

ea
ns

 t
ha

t 
an

y 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 p
er

si
st

 f
ro

m
 n

ow
 in

 t
he

 s
h

o
rt

-t
er

m
, 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

m
ed

iu
m

 t
er

m
 t

o 
th

e 
lo

n
g

-t
er

m
. 

W
he

th
er

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

ar
e 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 
an

d
 r

ev
er

si
b

le
 o

r 
p

er
m

an
en

t 
an

d
 i

rr
ev

er
si

b
le

 d
ep

en
ds

 o
n 

ho
w

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 A

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
of

 c
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
 

ef
fe

ct
s 

( d
ir

ec
t,

 i
n

d
ir

ec
t,

 s
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
an

d
 s

yn
er

g
is

ti
c)

 a
ls

o 
de

pe
nd

s 
on

 h
ow

 t
he

 p
la

n 
is

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

an
d 

ho
w

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 

th
e 

S
D

P
 i

nt
er

ac
t 

w
ith

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 o

th
er

 p
la

ns
, 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 I
n 

ge
ne

ra
l 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
ho

us
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 h
av

e 
sh

or
t-

te
rm

 a
dv

er
se

 a
ffe

ct
s 

on
 s

oi
l t

hr
ou

gh
 s

oi
l e

ro
si

on
, d

es
eg

re
ga

tio
n,

 
co

m
pa

ct
io

n 
an

d 
po

llu
tio

n 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

ph
as

es
. 

D
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
ho

w
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

re
 m

an
ag

ed
 a

nd
 o

pe
ra

te
d,

 th
e 

pl
an

 is
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

ha
ve

 s
ho

rt
 t

o 
m

ed
iu

m
-t

er
m

 m
ix

ed
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 s
oi

l (
th

ro
ug

h 
lo

ss
, 

se
al

in
g,

 e
ro

si
on

 a
nd

 c
om

pa
ct

io
n)

. 
 I

t 
ne

ed
s 

to
 

be
 s

ta
te

d 
th

at
 t

he
 s

tr
ic

t 
re

gi
m

e 
of

 w
as

te
 r

eg
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 m
od

er
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
en

su
re

s 
th

at
 c

on
ta

m
in

at
io

n 
is

 m
in

im
is

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

la
nd

 f
ill

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
fo

rm
s 

of
 w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t.

 H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 in
du

st
ry

 o
r 

re
ta

il 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s’

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
co

ul
d 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 

ha
ve

 s
ho

rt
-t

er
m

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 w
at

er
 t

hr
ou

gh
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 w

at
er

 t
ab

le
, 

st
re

am
 f

lo
w

s,
 s

ite
 w

at
er

 b
ud

ge
ts

, 
lo

ca
lis

ed
 

flo
od

in
g,

 s
ilt

 d
ep

os
iti

on
 a

nd
 w

at
er

-b
or

ne
 p

ol
lu

tio
n.

 In
ev

ita
bl

y,
 s

om
e 

lo
ca

lis
ed

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 w

at
er

co
ur

se
s 

w
ou

ld
 o

cc
ur

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
W

ith
ou

t 
th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f 
S

co
tti

sh
 W

at
er

, 
th

e 
sc

al
e 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
op

os
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

S
D

P
 c

an
 h

av
e 

a 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
w

at
er

 a
bs

tr
ac

tio
n,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 d
ur

in
g 

pe
rio

ds
 o

f 
un

ex
pe

ct
ed

 p
ro

lo
ng

ed
 d

ro
ug

ht
. 

O
n 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

w
at

er
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
in

 t
he

 C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
, 

th
er

e 
is

 t
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
fo

r 
di

ffu
se

 r
un

-o
ff 

fr
om

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
pr

ac
tic

es
, 

ex
ce

ss
iv

e 
un

de
rw

at
er

 n
oi

se
 f

ro
m

 i
nc

re
as

ed
 e

co
no

m
ic

 a
ct

iv
ity

 i
n 

th
e 

C
ity

 R
eg

io
n 

ca
us

in
g 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

to
 d

ol
ph

in
 

po
pu

la
tio

ns
 a

nd
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

nd
 s

ew
ag

e 
ef

flu
en

t 
ca

us
in

g 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
of

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y.
 G

re
en

fie
ld

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
is

 
lik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 i

rr
ev

er
si

bl
e 

ad
ve

rs
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 l

os
s 

of
 h

ab
ita

ts
, 

ha
bi

ta
t 

fr
ag

m
en

ta
tio

n 
or

 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
to

 s
pe

ci
es

 t
ha

t 
us

e 
th

e 
si

te
 a

s 
a 

ha
bi

ta
t. 

T
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 d
eg

ra
de

d 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l 
la

nd
 m

ay
 b

e 
en

ha
nc

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
pl

an
tin

g
 a

nd
 b

ec
om

e 
m

or
e 

sp
ec

ie
s 

ric
h 

th
an

 m
on

oc
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 d
eg

ra
de

d 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l l
an

d
. 

T
he

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
to

 b
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

ed
 o

n 
si

te
s 

co
ul

d 
ha

ve
 a

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
cl

im
at

e 
du

e 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 i

nc
re

as
ed

 e
m

is
si

on
s.

 O
pe

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

ilt
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
ne

w
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
ill

 
in

cr
ea

se
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

us
e.

 O
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
ha

nd
, 

ne
w

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

re
 m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 t
ha

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
st

oc
k 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g

s.
 T

he
re

fo
re

 i
f 

de
gr

ad
ed

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
to

ck
 i

s 
re

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n,
 t

he
 i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
cl

im
at

e 
is

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 p

os
iti

ve
 

ef
fe

ct
s.

 T
he

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 p

ro
po

se
d 

is
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
tr

av
el

 a
nd

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 in
 t

ow
ns

 
an

d 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 w
he

re
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 i
s 

an
 i

ss
ue

. 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 i
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 i
nf

lu
en

ce
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 i
f 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
in

du
st

rie
s 

ar
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r 
he

av
y 

an
d 

ch
em

ic
al

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g.

 M
or

eo
ve

r,
 q

ua
rr

yi
ng

 fo
r 

ag
gr

eg
at

es
, c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

de
m

ol
iti

on
, 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n,
 s

to
ra

ge
 a

nd
 d

is
po

sa
l 

of
 w

as
te

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 v
eh

ic
ul

ar
 m

ov
em

en
t 

co
ul

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 r

el
ea

se
 o

f 
pa

rt
ic

ul
at

e 
m

at
te

r,
 p

oi
nt

-s
ou

rc
e 

po
llu

tio
n 

an
d 

nu
is

an
ce

.  
G

en
er

al
 im

pa
ct

s 
of

  e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

th
re

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
co

nt
d.

 

- 

-- 

-- 

+/-- 

+/-- 

- 

+/- 

++ 

++ 

+/- 

E
qu

al
ly

, 
if 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

bi
om

as
s 

pl
an

ts
 i

nc
re

as
e,

 i
t 

is
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 r
el

ea
se

 p
ar

tic
ul

at
e 

m
at

te
r.

 F
or

 p
op

ul
at

io
n,

 h
um

an
 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 m

at
er

ia
l 

as
se

ts
, 

la
rg

e-
sc

al
e 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

is
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 p
os

iti
ve

 a
ffe

ct
s.

 P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 
ne

w
 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 c

on
fo

rm
ity

 w
ith

 n
ew

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
st

an
da

rd
s 

ca
n 

en
ha

nc
e 

go
od

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l j
us

tic
e 

fo
r 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 n

o 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

ho
us

in
g 

no
w

 g
ai

ni
ng

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 h

ou
si

ng
. 

S
in

ce
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 a
re

 m
or

e 
en

er
gy

 e
ff

ic
ie

nt
 t

ha
n 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

st
oc

k;
 t

he
y 

re
du

ce
 

Page 181



 
46

 

ru
nn

in
g 

co
st

s 
an

d 
as

si
st

 in
 d

ec
re

as
in

g 
fu

el
 p

ov
er

ty
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
po

or
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 is
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

ha
ve

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 o

f 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

hu
m

an
 

he
al

th
. 

G
re

en
fie

ld
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

is
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
la

nd
sc

ap
e.

 T
he

se
 e

ffe
ct

s 
m

ay
 w

ea
ke

n 
th

e 
se

ns
e 

of
 

pl
ac

e,
 t

he
 i

de
nt

ity
 o

f 
ex

is
tin

g 
se

ttl
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 l
an

ds
ca

pe
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 i
n 

pl
ac

es
. 

D
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

st
ra

te
gi

es
, 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
op

os
ed

 o
n 

th
es

e 
si

te
s 

co
ul

d 
po

si
tiv

el
y 

or
 a

dv
er

se
ly

 a
ffe

ct
 t

he
 b

ui
lt 

fe
at

ur
es

, 
th

e
ir 

co
nt

ex
t, 

pa
tte

rn
 o

f 
pa

st
 

hi
st

or
ic

 
us

e,
 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

io
ns

 
of

 
th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

w
hi

ch
 

en
co

m
pa

ss
es

 
bu

ilt
 

he
rit

ag
e 

fe
at

ur
es

 
(a

nc
ie

nt
 

m
on

um
en

ts
, 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
ic

al
 s

ite
s 

an
d 

la
nd

sc
ap

es
, 

hi
st

or
ic

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, 

to
w

ns
ca

pe
s,

 p
ar

ks
, 

ga
rd

en
s 

an
d 

de
si

gn
ed

 la
nd

sc
ap

e
s,

 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

m
ar

in
e 

he
rit

ag
e)

 a
nd

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

r 
se

tti
ng

 in
 w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 s
it,

 a
nd

 th
e 

pa
tte

rn
s 

of
 p

as
t u

se
, i

n 
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 a
nd

 w
it

hi
n 

th
e 

so
il 

(a
rc

ha
eo

lo
gy

),
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

in
 o

ur
 to

w
ns

, v
ill

ag
es

 a
nd

 s
tr

ee
ts

. 
T

he
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

de
si

gn
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
, w

hi
ch

 c
on

fo
rm

s,
 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 t
o 

th
e 

C
ity

’s
 e

xi
st

in
g 

de
si

gn
, 

la
yo

ut
, 

m
at

er
ia

l 
an

d 
qu

al
ity

 i
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 p
os

iti
ve

 a
ffe

ct
s.

 B
ut

 n
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 t

ha
t 

de
vi

at
e 

fr
om

 e
xi

st
in

g 
de

si
gn

s 
co

ul
d 

ad
ve

rs
el

y 
af

fe
ct

 t
he

 s
et

tin
g 

of
 h

is
to

ric
 s

et
tle

m
en

ts
 i

n 
th

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

. 
N

ew
 h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
e 

sc
op

e 
fo

r 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 f
ix

ed
 a

ss
et

s,
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f 
na

tu
ra

l 
an

d 
m

at
er

ia
l 

as
se

ts
, 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
w

as
te

 
m

in
im

is
at

io
n,

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
in

g.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

us
e 

of
 t

he
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 is
 a

ls
o 

lik
e 

to
 h

av
e 

si
m

ila
r 

im
pa

ct
s.

 
In

 
ad

di
tio

n,
 

in
du

st
ria

l 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 c

an
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 a
dv

er
se

 i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

cl
im

at
ic

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
, 

w
as

te
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 t
hr

ou
gh

 
m

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g 

an
d 

re
ta

ils
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 v
eh

ic
ul

ar
 m

ov
em

en
ts

. 
P

re
fe

rr
ed

 
O

p
ti

o
n

: 
R

et
ai

ni
ng

 
pr

op
os

al
 in

 th
e 

la
st

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 

pl
an

 
 

- 

-- 

-- 

+/-- 

+/-- 

- 

+/- 

++ 

++ 

+/- 

S
am

e 
as

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l a

ss
es

sm
en

t  

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
1:

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
co

nc
en

tr
at

ed
 in

 
th

e 
C

ity
 (

ab
ou

t 
75

%
) 

-- 

-- 

-- 

+/- 

+/- 

- 

+/- 

++ 

++ 

+/-- 
T

he
 g

en
er

al
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t a
pp

lie
s 

to
 th

is
 o

pt
io

n 
ex

ce
pt

 th
at

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ch

an
ge

s 
w

ill
 o

cc
ur

. T
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 th

es
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 
co

nc
en

tr
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
ity

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 h
av

e 
m

or
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
, h

um
an

 h
ea

lth
, c

ul
tu

ra
l h

er
ita

ge
 a

nd
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

of
 th

e 
C

ity
. I

t m
ay

 h
ow

ev
er

 h
el

p 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

se
tti

ng
 o

f t
he

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 s
et

tle
m

en
t. 

S
in

ce
 th

e 
C

ity
 a

n
d 

S
hi

re
 

de
pe

nd
 o

n 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

R
iv

er
 D

ee
, t

he
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 w
at

er
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

th
e 

sa
m

e.
 A

lth
ou

gh
 m

uc
h 

la
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
in

 th
e 

C
ity

, 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 a

w
ay

 fr
om

 E
ur

op
ea

n 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

si
te

s 
in

 th
e 

S
hi

re
. P

ut
tin

g 
m

os
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
C

ity
 is

 
be

tte
r 

fo
r 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t a

nd
 tr

av
el

.  
 

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
2 

D
is

pe
rs

ed
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t  
(7

5%
 in

 th
e 

S
hi

re
 

- 

-- 

-- 

-- 

+/-- 

- 

+/- 

++ 

++ 

+ 

T
he

 g
en

er
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

pp
lie

s 
to

 th
is

 o
pt

io
n 

ex
ce

pt
 th

at
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ch
an

ge
s 

w
ill

 o
cc

ur
. T

he
re

 is
 le

ss
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 u

si
ng

 
br

ow
n 

fie
ld

 s
ite

s 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

w
or

se
ni

ng
 th

e 
cl

im
at

e 
si

tu
at

io
n.

 B
es

id
es

, m
or

e 
fo

ss
il 

fu
el

 w
ill

 b
e 

bu
rn

t t
ra

ve
lli

ng
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
C

ity
 

an
d 

th
e 

S
hi

re
. B

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 E

ur
op

ea
n 

si
te

s 
sc

at
te

re
d 

in
 th

e 
S

hi
re

, t
he

 o
pt

io
n 

is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 h

av
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
si

te
s 

th
an

 th
e 

ot
he

r 
op

tio
ns

. 

  K
ey

 

 + 
= 

po
si

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
   

 +
+ 

= 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
os

iti
ve

 e
ffe

ct
 

 -
 =

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

   
--

  =
  s

ig
ni

fic
an

t n
eg

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

 
0 

= 
ne

ut
ra

l e
ffe

ct
   

  ?
  =

  u
nc

er
ta

in
 e

ffe
ct

 
 

 

Page 182



 
47

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.2

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 a
n

d
 E

m
p

lo
ym

en
t 

L
an

d
 A

llo
ca

ti
o

n
s 

 
 

   
 S

E
A

 T
o

p
ic

s 
      P

o
lic

y 
O

p
ti

o
n

s 
Air  

Water 

Soil  

Biodiversity 

Climatic Factors 

Cultural Heritage 

Landscape 

Material Assets 

Population  

Human health 

C
o

m
m

en
t  

N
at

ur
e 

of
 

ef
fe

ct
s:

 
ne

ga
tiv

e,
 

po
si

tiv
e,

 
un

ce
rt

ai
n,

 
m

ix
ed

, 
ne

ut
ra

l, 
re

ve
rs

ib
ili

ty
 

or
 

irr
e

ve
rs

ib
ili

ty
 

of
 

ef
fe

ct
s,

 
ris

ks
, 

du
ra

tio
n 

(p
er

m
an

en
t, 

te
m

po
ra

ry
, l

on
g-

te
rm

, s
ho

rt
-t

er
m

 a
nd

 m
ed

iu
m

-t
er

m
) 

an
d 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

(d
ire

ct
, i

nd
ire

ct
, s

ec
on

da
ry

 a
nd

 s
yn

er
gi

st
ic

) 

G
en

er
al

 im
pa

ct
s 

of
  e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
th

re
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

- 

-- 

-- 

+/-- 

++/-- 

- 

+/- 

++ 

++ 

+/- 

T
he

 S
D

P
 h

as
 s

et
 t

he
 f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 o
ve

r 
70

, 
00

0 
ne

w
 h

ou
se

s.
 T

he
se

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 

th
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 2
55

ha
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 t
he

 C
ity

 a
nd

 t
he

 S
hi

re
 i

n 
th

e 
ne

xt
 2

5 
ye

ar
s.

 T
he

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ar
e 

ph
as

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

no
w

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
20

35
. 

T
hi

s 
m

ea
ns

 t
ha

t 
an

y 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 p
er

si
st

 f
ro

m
 n

ow
 in

 t
he

 s
h

o
rt

-t
er

m
, 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

m
ed

iu
m

 t
er

m
 t

o 
th

e 
lo

n
g

-t
er

m
. 

W
he

th
er

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

ar
e 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 
an

d
 r

ev
er

si
b

le
 o

r 
p

er
m

an
en

t 
an

d
 i

rr
ev

er
si

b
le

 d
ep

en
ds

 o
n 

ho
w

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 A

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
of

 c
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
 

ef
fe

ct
s 

( d
ir

ec
t,

 i
n

d
ir

ec
t,

 s
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
an

d
 s

yn
er

g
is

ti
c)

 a
ls

o 
de

pe
nd

s 
on

 h
ow

 t
he

 p
la

n 
is

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

an
d 

ho
w

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 

th
e 

S
D

P
 i

nt
er

ac
t 

w
ith

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 o

th
er

 p
la

ns
, 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 I
n 

ge
ne

ra
l 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
h o

us
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 h
av

e 
sh

or
t-

te
rm

 a
dv

er
se

 a
ffe

ct
s 

on
 s

oi
l t

hr
ou

gh
 s

oi
l e

ro
si

on
, d

es
eg

re
ga

tio
n,

 
co

m
pa

ct
io

n 
an

d 
po

llu
tio

n 
du

rin
g 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

ph
as

es
. 

D
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
ho

w
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

re
 m

an
ag

ed
 a

nd
 o

pe
ra

te
d,

 th
e 

pl
an

 is
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

ha
ve

 s
ho

rt
 t

o 
m

ed
iu

m
-t

er
m

 m
ix

ed
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 s
oi

l (
th

ro
ug

h 
lo

ss
, 

se
al

in
g,

 e
ro

si
on

 a
nd

 c
om

pa
ct

io
n)

. 
 I

t 
ne

ed
s 

to
 

be
 s

ta
te

d 
th

at
 t

he
 s

tr
ic

t 
re

gi
m

e 
of

 w
as

te
 r

eg
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 m
od

er
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
en

su
re

s 
th

at
 c

o
nt

am
in

at
io

n 
is

 m
in

im
is

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

la
nd

 f
ill

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
fo

rm
s 

of
 w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 in
du

st
ry

 o
r 

re
ta

il 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s’

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
co

ul
d 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 

ha
ve

 s
ho

rt
-t

er
m

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 w
at

er
 t

hr
ou

gh
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 w

at
er

 t
ab

le
, 

st
re

am
 f

lo
w

s,
 s

ite
 w

at
er

 b
ud

g
et

s,
 l

oc
al

is
ed

 
flo

od
in

g,
 s

ilt
 d

ep
os

iti
on

 a
nd

 w
at

er
-b

or
ne

 p
ol

lu
tio

n.
 In

ev
ita

bl
y,

 s
om

e 
lo

ca
lis

ed
 im

pa
ct

s 
on

 w
at

er
co

ur
se

s 
w

ou
ld

 o
cc

ur
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

W
ith

ou
t 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f 

S
co

tti
sh

 W
at

er
, 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

op
os

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
S

D
P

 c
an

 h
av

e 
a 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

w
at

er
 a

bs
tr

ac
tio

n,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 d

ur
in

g 
pe

rio
ds

 o
f 

un
ex

pe
ct

ed
 p

ro
lo

ng
ed

 d
ro

ug
ht

. 
O

n 
th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l 
w

at
er

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

in
 t

he
 C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

, 
th

er
e 

is
 t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

fo
r 

di
ffu

se
 r

un
-o

ff 
fr

om
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

pr
ac

tic
es

, 
ex

ce
ss

iv
e 

un
de

rw
at

er
 n

oi
se

 f
ro

m
 i

nc
re

as
ed

 e
co

no
m

ic
 a

ct
iv

ity
 i

n 
th

e 
C

ity
 R

eg
io

n 
ca

us
in

g 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
to

 d
ol

ph
in

 
po

pu
la

tio
ns

 a
nd

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
nd

 s
ew

ag
e 

ef
flu

en
t 

ca
us

in
g 

de
te

rio
ra

tio
n 

of
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y.

 G
re

en
fie

ld
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

is
 

lik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 i
rr

ev
er

si
bl

e 
ad

ve
rs

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 l
os

s 
of

 h
ab

ita
ts

, 
ha

bi
ta

t 
fr

ag
m

en
ta

tio
n 

or
 

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

to
 s

pe
ci

es
 t

ha
t 

us
e 

th
e 

si
te

 a
s 

a 
ha

bi
ta

t. 
T

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 d

eg
ra

de
d 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l 

la
nd

 m
ay

 b
e 

en
ha

nc
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
an

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

pl
an

tin
g 

an
d 

be
co

m
e 

m
or

e
 s

pe
ci

es
 r

ic
h 

th
an

 m
on

oc
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 d
eg

ra
de

d 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l l
an

d.
 

T
he

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
to

 b
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

ed
 o

n 
si

te
s 

co
ul

d 
ha

ve
 a

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
cl

im
at

e 
du

e 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
us

e 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 i

nc
re

as
ed

 e
m

is
si

on
s.

 O
pe

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

ilt
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
ne

w
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
ill

 
in

cr
ea

se
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

us
e.

 O
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
ha

nd
, 

ne
w

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

re
 m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 t
ha

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
st

oc
k 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

. 
T

he
re

fo
re

 i
f 

de
gr

ad
ed

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
to

ck
 i

s 
re

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n,
 t

he
 i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
cl

im
at

e 
is

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 p

os
iti

ve
 

ef
fe

ct
s.

 T
he

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 p

ro
po

se
d 

is
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
tr

av
el

 a
nd

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 in
 t

ow
ns

 
an

d 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 w
he

re
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 i
s 

an
 i

ss
ue

. 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 i
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 i
nf

lu
en

ce
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 i
f 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
in

du
st

rie
s 

ar
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r 
he

av
y 

an
d 

ch
em

ic
al

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g.

 M
or

eo
ve

r,
 q

ua
rr

yi
ng

 fo
r 

ag
gr

eg
at

es
, c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d 

de
m

ol
iti

on
, 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n,
 s

to
ra

ge
 a

nd
 d

is
po

sa
l 

of
 w

as
te

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 v
eh

ic
ul

ar
 m

ov
em

en
t 

co
ul

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 r

el
ea

se
 o

f 
pa

rt
ic

ul
at

e 
m

at
te

r,
 p

oi
nt

-s
ou

rc
e 

po
llu

tio
n 

an
d 

nu
is

an
ce

. 
G

en
er

al
 im

pa
ct

s 
of

  e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

th
re

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
co

nt
d.

 

- 

-- 

-- 

+/-- 

++/-- 

- 

+/- 

++ 

++ 

+/- 

E
qu

al
ly

, 
if 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

bi
om

as
s 

pl
an

ts
 i

nc
re

as
e,

 i
t 

is
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 r
el

ea
se

 p
ar

tic
ul

at
e 

m
at

te
r.

 F
or

 p
op

ul
at

io
n,

 h
um

an
 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 m

at
er

ia
l 

as
se

ts
, 

la
rg

e-
sc

al
e 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

is
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 p
os

iti
ve

 a
ffe

ct
s.

 P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 
ne

w
 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 c

on
fo

rm
ity

 w
ith

 n
ew

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
st

an
da

rd
s 

ca
n 

en
ha

nc
e 

go
od

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l j
us

tic
e 

fo
r 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 n

o 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

ho
us

in
g 

no
w

 g
ai

ni
ng

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 h

ou
si

ng
. 

S
in

ce
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 a
re

 m
or

e 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

t 
th

an
 t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
oc

k;
 t

he
y 

re
du

ce
 

Page 183



 
48

 

ru
nn

in
g 

co
st

s 
an

d 
as

si
st

 in
 d

ec
re

as
in

g 
fu

el
 p

ov
er

ty
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
po

or
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 is
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

ha
ve

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 o

f 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

hu
m

an
 

he
al

th
. 

G
re

en
fie

ld
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

is
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
la

nd
sc

ap
e.

 T
he

se
 e

ffe
ct

s 
m

ay
 w

ea
ke

n 
th

e 
se

ns
e 

of
 

pl
ac

e,
 t

he
 i

de
nt

ity
 o

f 
ex

is
tin

g 
se

ttl
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 l
an

ds
ca

pe
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 i
n 

pl
ac

es
. 

D
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

st
ra

te
gi

es
, 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
op

os
ed

 o
n 

th
es

e 
si

te
s 

co
ul

d 
po

si
tiv

el
y 

or
 a

dv
er

se
ly

 a
ffe

ct
 t

he
 b

ui
lt 

fe
at

ur
es

, 
th

ei
r 

co
nt

ex
t, 

pa
tte

rn
 o

f 
pa

st
 

hi
st

or
ic

 
us

e,
 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

io
ns

 
of

 
th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

w
hi

ch
 

en
co

m
pa

ss
es

 
bu

ilt
 

he
rit

ag
e 

fe
at

ur
es

 
(a

nc
ie

nt
 

m
on

um
en

ts
, 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
ic

al
 s

ite
s 

an
d 

la
nd

sc
ap

es
, 

hi
st

or
ic

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, 

to
w

ns
ca

pe
s,

 p
ar

ks
, 

ga
rd

en
s 

an
d 

de
si

gn
ed

 la
nd

sc
ap

es
, 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
m

ar
in

e 
he

rit
ag

e)
 a

nd
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
r 

se
tti

ng
 in

 w
hi

ch
 th

ey
 s

it,
 a

nd
 th

e 
pa

tte
rn

s 
of

 p
as

t u
se

, i
n 

la
nd

sc
ap

es
 a

nd
 w

it
hi

n 
th

e 
so

il 
(a

rc
ha

eo
lo

gy
),

 a
nd

 a
ls

o 
in

 o
ur

 to
w

ns
, v

ill
ag

es
 a

nd
 s

tr
ee

ts
. 

T
he

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
de

si
gn

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 c

on
fo

rm
s,

 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 t

o 
th

e 
C

ity
’s

 e
xi

st
in

g 
de

si
gn

, 
la

yo
ut

, 
m

at
er

ia
l 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
 i

s 
lik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 p

os
iti

ve
 a

ffe
ct

s.
 B

ut
 n

ew
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 t
ha

t 
de

vi
at

e 
fr

om
 e

xi
st

in
g 

de
si

gn
s 

co
ul

d 
ad

ve
rs

el
y 

af
fe

ct
 t

he
 s

et
tin

g 
of

 h
is

to
ric

 s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 i
n 

th
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
. 

N
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

fo
r 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 f

ix
ed

 a
ss

et
s,

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

na
tu

ra
l 

an
d 

m
at

er
ia

l 
as

se
ts

, 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

w
as

te
 

m
in

im
is

at
io

n,
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

co
m

po
st

in
g.

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
us

e 
of

 t
he

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 is

 a
ls

o 
lik

e 
to

 h
av

e 
si

m
ila

r 
im

pa
ct

s.
 

In
 

ad
di

tio
n,

 
in

du
st

ria
l 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 c
an

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 a

dv
er

se
 i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
cl

im
at

ic
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

, 
w

as
te

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 t

hr
ou

gh
 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
an

d 
re

ta
ils

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 v

eh
ic

ul
ar

 m
ov

em
en

ts
. 

P
re

fe
rr

ed
 

o
p

ti
o

n
: 

E
ve

n 
sp

re
ad

 o
f 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 
in

 a
ll 

co
rr

id
or

s.
  

 

- 

-- 

-- 

+/-- 

+/-- 

- 

+/- 

++ 

++ 

+/- 

T
he

 g
en

er
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

ap
pl

ie
s 

to
 t

hi
s 

op
tio

n 
ex

ce
pt

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 w

ill
 o

cc
ur

. 
B

ec
au

se
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
re

 
m

or
e 

ev
en

ly
 s

pr
ea

d 
th

an
 o

th
er

 o
pt

io
ns

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

ar
e 

no
t 

lik
el

y 
to

 d
iff

er
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 g
en

er
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t. 

T
he

 a
dv

an
ta

ge
 o

f 
th

is
 

op
tio

n 
is

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

re
 n

ot
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 p
ut

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
on

 a
ny

 c
rit

ic
al

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 i

n 
an

y 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 a
re

a.
 

P
re

ss
ur

e 
on

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 h

ea
lth

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
th

at
 w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

r 
be

 e
xa

ce
rb

at
ed

 in
 to

w
ns

 a
nd

 c
iti

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 to
 o

th
er

 
ar

ea
s.

 A
ga

in
 e

nc
ro

ac
hm

en
t 

on
 t

he
 l

an
ds

ca
pe

 w
ill

 b
e 

ev
en

ly
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 i

n 
th

is
 o

pt
io

n 
an

d 
so

 w
ill

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 c

ul
tu

ra
l 

he
rit

ag
e 

be
 le

ss
 s

ev
er

e.
  T

he
 o

ve
ra

ll 
ef

fe
c t

 o
n 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
fo

r 
al

l o
pt

io
ns

. 

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
1:

 
T

he
 b

ul
k 

of
 th

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

is
 

pr
op

os
ed

 fo
r 

P
or

tle
th

en
 –

 
S

to
ne

ha
ve

n 
co

rr
id

or
 w

ith
 

no
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r 

E
llo

n 
– 

B
la

ck
do

g 
co

rr
id

or
.  

 

-- 

-- 

-- 

+/-- 

+/-- 

- 

+/- 

++ 

++ 

+/-- 
T

he
 g

en
er

al
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
ap

pl
ie

s 
to

 t
hi

s 
op

tio
n 

ex
ce

pt
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 w
ill

 o
cc

ur
. 

T
hi

s 
op

tio
n 

is
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 p
ut

 
pr

es
su

re
 o

n 
an

y 
cr

iti
ca

l 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

in
 t

hi
s 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 a

re
a.

 P
re

ss
ur

e 
on

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 h

ea
lth

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
w

ill
 i

nc
re

as
e 

or
 b

e 
ex

ac
er

ba
te

d 
in

 to
w

ns
 in

 th
is

 c
or

rid
or

. A
ga

in
 e

nc
ro

ac
hm

en
t o

n 
th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

ev
en

ly
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 in

 th
is

 o
pt

io
n 

an
d 

so
 

w
ill

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 c

ul
tu

ra
l 

he
rit

ag
e 

be
 m

or
e 

se
ve

re
. 

B
ec

au
se

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
is

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nc
en

tr
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 P
or

tle
th

en
 –

 
S

to
ne

ha
ve

n 
co

rr
id

or
, 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 a
re

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 R
ed

 M
os

s 
of

 N
et

he
rly

, 
an

d 
G

ar
on

 P
oi

nt
. 

M
or

eo
ve

r 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

 is
su

es
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 P

or
tle

th
en

 a
nd

 S
to

ne
ha

ve
n.

  

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
2:

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
ar

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

to
 b

e 
co

nc
en

tr
at

ed
 

w
ith

in
 In

ve
ru

rie
 

– 
B

la
ck

bu
rn

 
an

d 
P

or
tle

th
en

 
– 

S
to

ne
ha

ve
n 

co
rr

id
or

s 

-- 

-- 

-- 

+/-- 

+/-- 

- 

+/- 

++ 

++ 

+/-- 

T
he

 g
en

er
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

ap
pl

ie
s 

to
 t

hi
s 

op
tio

n 
ex

ce
pt

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 w

ill
 o

cc
ur

. 
P

re
ss

ur
e 

on
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 
he

al
th

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
w

ill
 i

nc
re

as
e 

or
 b

e 
ex

ac
er

ba
te

d 
in

 t
ow

ns
 i

n 
th

is
 c

or
rid

or
. 

A
ga

in
 e

nc
ro

ac
hm

en
t 

on
 t

he
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

ev
en

ly
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 i

n 
th

is
 o

pt
io

n 
an

d 
so

 w
ill

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 c

ul
tu

ra
l 

he
rit

ag
e 

be
 m

or
e 

se
ve

re
. 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 i

n 
In

ve
ru

rie
 -

 
P

itc
ap

le
 c

or
rid

or
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 h
av

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 R
iv

er
 D

on
 a

nd
 it

s 
tr

ib
ut

ar
ie

s.
 T

he
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 e
ffe

ct
 w

ill
 b

e 
on

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y.
 

T
he

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 is

su
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

ar
ou

nd
 In

ve
ru

rie
. 

  
 + 

= 
po

si
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

   
 +

+ 
= 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 p

os
iti

ve
 e

ffe
ct

 

Page 184



 
49

 

K
ey

 
 -

 =
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
   

--
  =

  s
ig

ni
fic

an
t n

eg
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
 

0 
= 

ne
ut

ra
l e

ffe
ct

   
  ?

  =
  u

nc
er

ta
in

 e
ffe

ct
 

 
  

Page 185



 
50

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.3

: 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
o

f 
P

o
lic

y 
O

p
ti

o
n

s 
   

 S
E

A
 T

o
p

ic
s 

      P
o

lic
y 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

Air  

Water 

Soil  

Biodiversity 

Climatic Factors 

Cultural Heritage 

Landscape 

Material Assets 

Population  

Human health 

C
o

m
m

en
t  

N
at

ur
e 

of
 

ef
fe

ct
s:

 
ne

ga
tiv

e,
 

po
si

tiv
e,

 
un

ce
rt

ai
n,

 
m

ix
ed

, 
ne

ut
ra

l, 
re

ve
rs

ib
ili

ty
 

or
 

irr
ev

er
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 
ef

fe
ct

s,
 

ris
ks

, 
du

ra
tio

n 
(p

er
m

an
en

t, 
te

m
po

ra
ry

, l
on

g-
te

rm
, s

ho
rt

-t
er

m
 a

nd
 m

ed
iu

m
-t

er
m

) 
an

d 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
(d

ire
ct

, i
nd

ire
ct

, s
ec

on
da

ry
 a

nd
 s

yn
er

gi
st

ic
) 

 
E

co
n

o
m

ic
 G

ro
w

th
 

P
re

fe
rr

ed
 

O
p

ti
o

n
: 

(S
D

P
 

E
co

no
m

ic
 

G
ro

w
th

 O
pt

io
n)

 

- 

-- 

-- 

+/-- 

++/- 

- 

+/- 

++ 

++ 

+/- 

T
hi

s 
op

tio
n 

es
se

nt
ia

lly
 c

ov
er

s 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 a

llo
ca

tio
n,

 h
ig

h
-s

pe
ed

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n,

 in
no

va
tio

n,
 r

et
ai

l a
nd

 t
ou

ris
m

, 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 

of
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
s,

 r
eg

io
na

l s
ho

pp
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

an
d

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

fr
ei

gh
t b

y 
ra

il 
an

d 
se

a.
 In

 
ad

di
tio

n 
it 

se
ek

s 
to

 r
ol

l-o
ut

 h
ig

h-
sp

ee
d 

br
oa

db
an

d 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 t
he

 a
re

a,
 im

pr
ov

e 
hi

gh
-s

pe
ed

 d
ig

ita
l c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 n

et
w

or
ks

 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t 
re

gi
on

al
 a

ss
et

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

ai
rp

or
t 

an
d 

th
e 

re
gi

on
’s

 m
ai

n 
po

rt
s 

as
 m

ea
ns

 o
f 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

m
ar

ke
ts

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 O

rk
ne

y 
an

d 
S

he
tla

nd
. 

It 
is

 a
ls

o 
re

as
on

ab
le

 to
 s

ta
te

 th
at

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 c
re

at
e 

an
 

en
ab

lin
g 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

ec
on

om
y 

to
 g

ro
w

. 
F

or
 t

hi
s 

re
as

on
, 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
as

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
in

 T
ab

le
s 

6.
1 

an
d 

6.
2 

ab
ov

e.
 T

he
 e

m
ph

as
is

 o
n 

di
gi

ta
l 

an
d 

br
oa

db
an

d 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 i
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
re

m
ot

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

nd
 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
at

 v
al

ue
 o

f m
at

er
ia

l a
ss

et
 in

 u
rb

an
 a

nd
 r

ur
al

 a
re

as
. F

or
 th

is
 r

ea
so

n,
 th

is
 o

pt
io

n
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

m
or

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
th

an
 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
op

tio
ns

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. 
 

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
O

b
je

ct
iv

e 
1:

 
(S

tr
uc

tu
re

 P
la

n 
E

co
no

m
ic

 
gr

ow
th

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e)
 

- 

-- 

-- 

+/-- 

+/-- 

- 

+/- 

++ 

++ 

+/- 
T

hi
s 

op
tio

n 
es

se
nt

ia
lly

 c
ov

er
s 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 a
llo

ca
tio

n,
 h

ig
h

-s
pe

ed
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n,
 in

no
va

tio
n,

 r
et

ai
l a

nd
 t

ou
ris

m
, 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 
of

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

s,
 r

eg
io

na
l 

sh
op

pi
ng

 f
ac

ili
tie

s,
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
of

 i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
fr

ei
gh

t 
by

 r
ai

l 
an

d 
se

a.
 I

t 
is

 a
ls

o 
re

as
on

ab
le

 t
o 

st
at

e 
th

at
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ill

 c
re

at
e 

an
 e

na
bl

in
g 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

ec
on

om
y 

to
 g

ro
w

 in
 

th
is

 o
pt

io
n 

to
o.

 F
or

 t
hi

s 
re

as
on

, 
th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

as
 t

he
 g

en
er

al
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
in

 T
ab

le
s 

6.
1 

an
d 

6.
2 

ab
ov

e.
 

H
ow

ev
er

 u
nl

ik
e 

th
e 

S
D

P
 o

pt
io

n,
 th

is
 o

pt
io

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 e

m
ph

as
is

e 
di

gi
ta

l a
nd

 b
ro

a
db

an
d 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
. I

t i
s 

th
er

ef
or

e 
le

ss
 li

ke
ly

 to
 

pr
om

ot
e 

re
m

ot
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
nd

 i
nc

re
as

e 
th

at
 v

al
ue

 o
f 

m
at

er
ia

l 
as

se
t 

in
 u

rb
an

 a
nd

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

. 
F

or
 t

hi
s 

re
as

on
, 

th
is

 o
pt

io
n 

is
  

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

le
ss

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 th
an

 th
e 

S
D

P
 o

pt
io

n 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
.  

 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

2:
 

(M
ai

n 
Is

su
es

 
R

ep
or

t 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 

gr
ow

th
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e)

 

- 

-- 

-- 

+/-- 

++/-- 

- 

+/- 

++ 

++ 

+/- 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 E
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 is

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
is

su
es

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e.
 T

hi
s 

is
 e

ss
en

tia
lly

 t
ak

en
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 in

 t
he

 p
re

fe
rr

ed
 o

pt
io

n 
an

d 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 t
ha

t 
a 

lo
w

-c
ar

bo
n 

ec
on

om
y 

(p
ro

vi
di

ng
 r

en
ew

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
w

id
er

 e
ne

rg
y-

re
la

te
d 

in
iti

at
iv

es
) 

br
in

gs
 e

co
no

m
ic

 b
en

ef
its

. C
on

ne
ct

iv
ity

, t
ra

ns
po

rt
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 d
ig

ita
l i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ar

e 
at

 th
e 

he
ar

t o
f 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
is

su
e.

  S
in

ce
 th

is
 is

 th
e 

op
tio

n 
tr

an
sl

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

S
D

P
, t

hi
s 

as
se

ss
m

en
t i

s 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

as
 th

e 
S

D
P

 o
pt

io
n.

 
        

 

Page 186



 
51

 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
an

d
 C

lim
at

e 
C

h
an

g
e 

P
re

fe
rr

ed
 

O
p

ti
o

n
: 

(S
D

P
 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

O
pt

io
n)

 

+/- 

+ 

0 

0/- 

++ 

0/- 

0/- 

++ 

0 

+ 

T
hi

s 
op

tio
n 

is
 a

bo
ut

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
ca

rb
on

 d
io

xi
de

 e
m

is
si

on
s,

 a
da

pt
in

g 
to

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 e

ffe
ct

s 
an

d 
lim

iti
ng

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

no
n

-
re

ne
w

ab
le

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 –

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

us
e 

of
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

to
 b

e 
re

so
ur

ce
 e

ffi
ci

en
t 

ha
vi

ng
 m

in
im

al
  

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s,
 

su
pp

ly
 a

nd
 d

em
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 e
ne

rg
y,

 r
en

ew
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
us

e,
 u

pg
ra

di
ng

 g
rid

, 
ta

ck
in

g 
flo

od
in

g,
 m

an
ag

in
g 

w
as

te
 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 w
as

te
 h

ie
ra

rc
hy

 a
nd

 p
ro

xi
m

ity
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

, 
m

an
ag

in
g 

w
at

er
 u

se
. 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 i

t 
en

co
ur

ag
es

 i
nc

re
as

ed
 e

ne
rg

y 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

ne
w

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
us

e 
of

 s
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

C
O

2 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 i
n 

bu
ild

in
gs

 
th

ro
ug

h 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
la

be
lli

ng
, 

C
H

P
 i

n 
la

rg
er

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, 

re
du

ce
d 

em
is

si
on

s 
fr

om
 p

ow
er

 s
ta

tio
ns

, 
of

fs
ho

re
 w

in
d,

 e
ne

rg
y 

fr
om

 
w

as
te

, 
so

la
r,

 b
io

m
as

s 
an

d 
gr

ou
nd

/w
at

er
/a

ir 
so

ur
ce

 h
ea

t 
pu

m
ps

,  
up

gr
ad

ed
 e

le
ct

ric
ity

 g
rid

, 
ca

rb
on

 c
ap

tu
re

, 
m

or
e 

em
ph

as
is

 o
n 

 
w

as
te

 h
ie

ra
rc

hy
, 

75
%

 o
f 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 i
n 

S
G

A
s 

cl
os

e 
to

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
an

d 
th

e 
us

e 
of

  
se

lf 
su

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 t
im

e
-e

xt
en

si
on

, 
re

gi
on

al
 

co
nc

en
tr

at
io

n 
op

tio
ns

. 
S

ol
ar

 p
an

el
s 

in
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
w

in
d 

fa
rm

s 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

ad
ve

rs
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 

(b
ird

s)
, 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
cu

ltu
ra

l 
he

rit
ag

e.
 M

aj
or

 b
io

m
as

s 
pl

an
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

an
 i

ss
ue

 f
or

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

ho
w

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 h
om

es
 a

re
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 p
os

iti
ve

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 h

um
an

 h
ea

lth
. 

S
av

in
gs

 fr
om

 e
ne

rg
y 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 p
eo

pl
e’

s 
di

sp
os

ab
le

 in
co

m
e 

an
d 

th
er

eb
y 

ha
ve

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

m
at

er
ia

l 
as

se
t. 

E
qu

al
ly

 h
av

e 
an

d 
up

gr
ad

in
g 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 h
av

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 m
at

er
ia

l a
ss

et
s.

 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

o
b

je
ct

iv
e 

1:
 

(S
tr

uc
tu

re
 

P
la

n 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
O

pt
io

n)
 

+/- 

+ 

0 

0/- 

+ 

0/- 

0/- 

+ 

0 

+ 

T
hi

s 
op

tio
n 

se
ek

s 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

ca
rb

on
 d

io
xi

de
 e

m
is

si
on

s,
 a

da
pt

 t
o 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 e

ffe
ct

s 
an

d 
lim

it 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 n
on

-r
en

ew
ab

le
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
– 

de
si

gn
 a

nd
 u

se
 o

f 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

to
 b

e 
re

so
ur

ce
 e

ffi
ci

en
t 

ha
vi

ng
 m

in
im

al
  

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s,
 s

up
pl

y 
an

d 
de

m
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f e

ne
rg

y,
 r

en
ew

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

us
e,

 u
pg

ra
di

ng
 g

rid
, t

ac
ki

ng
 fl

oo
di

ng
, m

an
ag

in
g 

w
as

te
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 w

as
te

 
hi

er
ar

ch
y 

an
d 

pr
ox

im
ity

 p
rin

ci
pl

es
, 

m
an

ag
in

g 
w

at
er

 u
se

. 
T

he
 m

aj
or

 d
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
is

 o
pt

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

S
D

P
 o

pt
io

n 
is

 t
he

 
la

ck
 o

f 
em

ph
as

is
 o

n 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

ild
in

g 
st

oc
k.

 B
es

id
es

, t
he

re
 i

s 
le

ss
 e

m
ph

as
is

 o
n 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y.
 F

or
 

th
is

 r
ea

so
n,

 t
hi

s 
op

tio
n 

is
 l

es
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
, 

m
at

er
ia

l 
as

se
t 

an
d 

hu
m

an
 h

ea
lth

 t
ha

n 
th

e 
S

D
P

 o
pt

io
n 

 
 

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
o

b
je

ct
iv

e 
2:

 
(M

ai
n 

is
su

es
 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
no

t 
di

sc
us

se
d 

un
de

r 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e)
 

 

+/- 

+ 

0 

0/- 

++ 

0/- 

0/- 

++ 

0 

+ 
N

o
 s

p
ec

if
ic

 t
o

p
ic

 o
n

 s
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
an

d
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
g

e 
bu

t 
se

pa
ra

te
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 u
nd

er
 w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

(im
po

rt
, 

ex
po

rt
, 

se
lf 

su
ffi

ci
en

cy
);

 L
an

df
ill

 (
tim

e 
ex

te
ns

io
n,

 s
ite

 e
xt

en
si

on
, 

ne
w

 s
ite

s)
; 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

S
pa

tia
l 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

(W
as

te
) 

ex
is

tin
g 

sp
at

ia
l s

tr
at

eg
y,

 r
eg

io
na

l c
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

n,
 id

en
tif

yi
ng

 s
ite

s)
; 

ca
rb

on
 n

eu
tr

al
ity

 in
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

(s
ta

tu
s 

qu
o,

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, 
la

be
lli

ng
);

 w
at

er
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 (
do

 n
ot

hi
ng

, 
la

be
lli

ng
 s

ilv
er

, 
go

ld
);

 c
ar

bo
n 

ca
pt

ur
e;

 h
ig

h 
vo

lta
ge

 l
in

e.
 S

in
ce

 t
he

 
pr

ef
er

re
d 

op
tio

ns
 in

 t
he

 M
ai

n 
Is

su
es

 R
ep

or
t 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
in

to
 t

he
 S

D
P

, 
th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
is

 t
he

 s
am

e 
as

 t
he

 o
ne

 f
or

 
th

e 
S

D
P

 
 

 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 G

ro
w

th
 

P
re

fe
rr

ed
 

O
p

ti
o

n
: 

50
00

00
 

- 

-- 

-- 

+/-- 

+/-- 

- 

+/- 

++ 

++ 

+/- 

T
he

 d
riv

in
g 

fo
rc

e 
fo

r 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

is
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
pr

o
je

ct
io

ns
. 

O
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
ha

nd
 h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 
an

d 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

re
 d

riv
er

s 
of

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

gr
ow

th
 in

 th
ei

r 
rig

ht
. T

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
tio

n 
ha

s 
ha

d 
an

 in
di

re
ct

 im
pa

ct
 h

ow
 a

nd
 w

he
re

 
ho

us
es

 a
re

 b
ui

lt 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 i

s 
al

lo
ca

te
d.

 F
or

 t
hi

s 
re

as
on

, 
th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
 i

s 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

as
 t

ha
t 

of
 t

he
 

ge
ne

ra
l a

ss
es

sm
en

t i
n 

T
ab

le
s 

6.
1 

an
d 

6.
2)

   
 

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
48

00
00

 

- 

-- 

-- 

+/-- 

+/-- 

- 

+/- 

+ 

+ 

+/- 

Li
ke

 t
he

 S
D

P
, 

th
e 

dr
iv

in
g 

fo
rc

e 
fo

r 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

is
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

. 
O

n 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

ha
nd

 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

an
d 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
re

 d
riv

er
s 

of
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
gr

ow
th

 i
n 

th
ei

r 
rig

ht
. 

T
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

tio
n 

ha
s 

ha
d 

an
 i

nd
ire

ct
 

im
pa

ct
 h

ow
 a

nd
 w

he
re

 h
ou

se
s 

ar
e 

bu
ilt

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t l
an

d 
is

 a
llo

ca
te

d.
 H

ow
ev

er
, b

ec
au

se
 th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ta
rg

et
 is

 lo
w

er
 in

 
th

is
 o

pt
io

n 
th

an
 th

at
 o

f t
he

 S
D

P
, t

he
 im

pa
ct

s 
ar

e 
le

ss
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
fo

r 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

an
d 

m
at

er
ia

l a
ss

et
 th

an
 fo

r 
th

e 
S

D
P

. 
 

 
 

 

Page 187



 
52

 

S
u

st
ai

n
ab

le
 M

ix
ed

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
P

re
fe

rr
ed

 
O

p
ti

o
n

: 
E

n
h

an
ce

d
 

w
it

h
 

C
H

P
 

+/- 

+ 

0 

0/- 

++ 

0/- 

0/- 

++ 

0 

+ 

T
hi

s 
op

tio
n 

is
 a

bo
ut

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 M
ix

ed
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 (

S
D

P
).

 T
hi

s 
op

tio
n 

pl
ac

e 
m

or
e 

em
ph

as
is

 o
n 

th
e 

us
e 

C
H

P
s 

in
 l

ar
ge

r 
bu

ild
in

gs
. 

T
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 t

ha
t 

C
H

P
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 in
 la

rg
er

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, 

th
er

e 
is

 t
he

 p
os

si
bi

lit
y 

th
at

 m
ix

ed
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

m
or

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
in

 t
er

m
s 

of
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. 
T

hu
s 

th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

si
m

ila
r 

to
 t

he
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
fo

r 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
. 

 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e:

 
N

o
 C

H
P

 

+/- 

+ 

0 

0/- 

+ 

0/- 

0/- 

++ 

0 

+ 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 M
ix

ed
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 (

S
tr

uc
tu

re
 P

la
n)

. S
in

ce
 th

is
 o

pt
io

n 
pl

ac
es

 le
ss

 e
m

ph
as

is
 o

n 
C

H
P

’s
 in

 la
rg

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

it 
is

 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 le

ss
 p

os
iti

ve
 o

n 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. 
 

 
Q

u
al

it
y 

o
f 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
P

re
fe

rr
ed

 
O

p
ti

o
n

: 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 

S
to

ck
 

ef
fi

ci
en

cy
 

+/- 

+ 

0 

0/- 

++ 

0/- 

0/- 

++ 

0 

+ 

T
hi

s 
op

tio
n 

is
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t (

S
D

P
).

 It
 w

ill
 p

la
ce

 e
m

ph
as

is
 o

n 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f u
rb

an
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 m
ea

su
re

s 
ta

ke
n 

in
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
su

ch
 a

s 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
of

 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ho

us
in

g 
st

oc
k.

 T
hu

s 
th

is
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t i
s 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
as

 th
at

 o
f s

us
ta

in
a

bl
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. 
 

A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e:
 

N
ew

 
b

u
ild

 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 

+/- 

+ 

0 

0/- 

+ 

0/- 

0/- 

++ 

0 

+ 

T
hi

s 
op

tio
n 

is
 a

bo
ut

 t
he

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 t

he
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
It 

do
es

 n
ot

 p
la

ce
 e

m
ph

as
is

 o
n 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f u

rb
an

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

as
 it

 is
 in

 th
e 

S
D

P
. T

hu
s 

th
is

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t i

s 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 le

ss
 p

os
iti

ve
 fo

r 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 th
an

 th
at

 o
f t

he
 S

D
P

. 

 
A

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

 
P

re
fe

rr
ed

 
O

p
ti

o
n

: 
S

T
F

 

+/- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

+ 

+ 

+/- 
T

hi
s 

op
tio

n 
is

 a
bo

ut
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y.

 T
he

 m
ai

n 
id

ea
 is

 t
ha

t 
it 

in
tr

od
uc

es
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 F

un
d 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
de

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 l

as
t 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
pl

an
. 

In
di

re
ct

ly
 t

hi
s 

op
tio

n 
is

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 a

ffe
ct

 h
ow

, 
w

he
re

 a
nd

 w
he

n 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 i
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

. 
T

he
 li

ke
ly

 e
ffe

ct
s 

ar
e 

va
rie

d.
 O

n 
ai

r,
 in

 t
he

 s
ho

rt
 t

er
m

, 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
du

ce
d 

on
 t

he
 r

oa
ds

 le
a

di
ng

 t
o 

be
tte

r 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

. 
In

 t
he

 lo
ng

 t
er

m
s,

 t
he

 m
or

e 
ro

ad
s 

ar
e 

bu
ilt

, 
th

e 
m

or
e 

ve
hi

cl
es

 a
re

 u
se

d 
th

er
eb

y 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 w
or

se
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 p
ro

bl
em

s.
 

If 
ro

ad
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

av
oi

d 
w

at
er

 b
od

ie
s 

an
d 

co
ur

se
s,

 th
ey

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 h
av

e 
ne

ut
ra

l e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 w

at
er

. O
n 

th
e 

ot
h

er
 h

an
d,

 r
oa

ds
 w

ay
 

tr
an

sv
er

se
 w

at
er

 c
ou

rs
es

 d
ur

in
g 

th
ei

r 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
ph

as
es

 a
nd

 p
ol

lu
te

 w
at

er
. S

ho
rt

-t
er

m
 fl

oo
di

ng
 fr

om
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

w
or

ks
 m

ay
 

al
so

 i
m

pa
ct

 n
eg

at
iv

el
y 

on
 w

at
er

.  
In

 g
en

er
al

 h
ow

ev
er

, 
ho

us
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
is

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

sh
or

t-
te

rm
 

ad
ve

rs
e 

af
fe

ct
s 

on
 s

oi
l t

hr
ou

gh
 s

oi
l e

ro
si

on
, d

es
eg

re
ga

tio
n,

 c
om

pa
ct

io
n 

an
d 

po
llu

tio
n 

du
rin

g 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
ph

as
es

. T
he

re
 m

ig
ht

 
be

 i
ss

ue
s 

w
ith

 l
an

d 
ta

ke
, 

la
nd

 f
ra

gm
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 q
ua

lif
yi

ng
 f

ea
tu

re
s 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 w
he

re
 r

oa
d 

w
or

ks
 t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e.
 

R
oa

d 
w

or
ks

 c
lo

se
 t

o 
th

e 
D

ee
 a

re
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 i
n 

su
ch

 i
m

pa
ct

s.
 I

f 
th

is
 l

ea
ds

 t
o 

m
or

e 
m

ot
or

 c
ar

s 
in

 t
he

 f
ut

ur
e,

 t
he

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
fo

r 
cl

im
at

e 
in

 t
he

 lo
ng

 t
er

m
. 

C
ul

tu
ra

l h
er

ita
ge

 a
nd

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
ad

ve
rs

el
y 

im
pa

ct
ed

 o
n 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 w
he

re
 t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

lo
ca

te
d.

 F
or

 m
at

er
ia

l 
as

se
ts

, 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

an
d 

hu
m

an
 h

ea
lth

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

in
 th

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
 e

xc
ep

t t
ha

t w
or

se
ni

ng
 o

f a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 in

 th
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

 w
ill

 a
dv

er
se

ly
 a

ffe
ct

 h
um

an
 h

ea
lth

. 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e:

 
 N

o
 S

T
F

 

-- 

0 

0 

0 

-- 

0 

0 

0 

0 

-- 

T
he

 o
pt

io
n 

he
re

 e
xc

lu
de

s 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t f

un
d.

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

le
ss

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 o
r 

de
la

ye
d.

 T
he

 
im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
is

 t
ha

t 
if 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 d
o 

no
t 

go
 a

he
ad

, 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ro

ad
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ch
ok

ed
 w

ith
 tr

af
fic

 c
re

at
in

g
 s

er
io

us
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 
re

la
te

d 
he

al
th

 is
su

es
. T

he
re

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 le
ss

 p
os

iti
ve

 b
en

ef
its

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l a

ss
et

. T
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

ne
u

tr
al

 fo
r 

ot
he

r 
re

ce
pt

or
s.

 
  K

ey
 

 + 
= 

po
si

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
   

 +
+ 

= 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
os

iti
ve

 e
ffe

ct
 

 -
 =

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

   
--

  =
  s

ig
ni

fic
an

t n
eg

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

 
0 

= 
ne

ut
ra

l e
ffe

ct
   

  ?
  =

  u
nc

er
ta

in
 e

ffe
ct

 
 

 

Page 188



 
53

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.4

 C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
 E

ff
ec

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
P

re
fe

rr
ed

 O
p

ti
o

n
s 

 
 

      P
o

lic
y 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

Strategic  Options 

Housing Allocation 

Economic Growth 
policy 
Sust. Dev  & C. C. 

Population Growth 

Sust Mixed  Comm 

Qual. of the env.  

Access. policy 

Cumulative Effects 

 
 

C
o

m
m

en
t  

C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
 e

ff
ec

ts
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 T
im

e 
cr

o
w

d
in

g
 (

fr
eq

ue
nt

 a
nd

 r
ep

et
iti

ve
 e

ffe
ct

);
 T

im
e 

la
g

 (
lo

ng
 d

el
ay

s 
in

 c
au

se
 a

nd
 

ef
fe

ct
);

 s
p

ac
e 

cr
o

w
d

in
g

 (
hi

gh
 s

pa
tia

l d
en

si
ty

 o
f e

ffe
ct

s)
; c

ro
ss

-b
o

u
n

d
ar

y 
(e

ffe
ct

s 
oc

cu
rr

in
g 

di
st

an
ce

s 
fr

om
 s

ou
rc

e)
; 

sy
n

er
g

is
ti

c 
(e

ffe
ct

s 
fr

om
 m

ul
tip

le
 s

ou
rc

es
 o

r 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

ef
fe

ct
s 

di
ffe

re
nt

 i
n 

na
tu

re
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 i
nd

iv
id

ua
ls

);
 i

n
d

ir
ec

t 
(s

ec
on

da
ry

 e
ffe

ct
s 

re
su

lti
ng

 fr
om

 a
 p

rim
ar

y 
ac

tiv
ity

);
 n

ib
b

lin
g

 (
in

cr
em

en
ta

l) 

A
ir

 

- 
- 

- 

+/- 

- 

+/- 

+/- 

+/- 

+/- 

A
ir;

 T
he

re
 a

re
 a

re
as

 i
n 

th
e 

C
ity

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 A

Q
M

A
, 

so
 t

he
 l

ar
ge

 n
um

be
r 

of
 h

ou
se

s 
pr

op
os

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
C

ity
 i

s 
lik

el
y 

to
 c

re
at

e 
in

cr
em

en
ta

l 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

 h
ot

sp
ot

s 
in

 o
th

er
 a

re
as

 o
f 

th
e 

C
ity

, 
th

ro
ug

h 
ti

m
e-

cr
o

w
d

in
g

 e
ff

ec
ts

, 
if 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 d
o 

no
t g

o 
ah

ea
d.

  I
n 

th
e 

lo
ng

er
 te

rm
, i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f t
ra

ns
po

rt
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ca
n 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
m

or
e 

ve
hi

cl
es

 o
n 

th
e 

ro
ad

s 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 f
ut

ur
e 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 i

ss
ue

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
ti

m
e 

la
g

. 
 D

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

tim
in

g 
of

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
, 

th
er

e 
is

 t
he

 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 th
at

 d
us

t n
ui

sa
nc

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

by
 s

ev
er

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 o
r 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 w

or
ks

 (
in

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
pr

io
rit

y 
ar

ea
s)

 
le

ad
in

g 
el

ev
at

ed
 le

ve
ls

 o
f 

pa
rt

ic
ul

at
e 

m
at

te
r.

 T
he

 s
am

e 
ar

gu
m

en
t 

is
 r

el
ev

an
t i

f m
an

y 
bi

om
as

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 g

o 
on

 
in

 
di

ffe
re

nt
 

ar
ea

s,
 

th
ro

ug
h 

sp
ac

e 
cr

o
w

d
in

g
 

ef
fe

ct
s.

 
B

ut
 

th
e 

pr
es

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
se

em
 

to
 

su
gg

es
t 

a 
ph

as
in

g 
of

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 p
re

ve
nt

 t
hi

s 
fr

om
 h

ap
pe

ni
ng

. 
M

os
t 

of
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 t
ak

e 
pl

ac
e 

aw
ay

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

 
pl

an
 b

ou
nd

ar
y;

 t
he

re
 i

s 
th

er
ef

or
e 

no
 p

os
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 c
ro

ss
-b

o
u

n
d

ar
y 

ef
fe

ct
s.

  
S

yn
er

g
is

ti
c 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 o
n 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 a

re
 u

nl
ik

el
y.

 A
lth

ou
gh

 th
er

e 
N

O
x 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 e

xc
ee

d 
na

tio
na

l o
bj

ec
tiv

es
, t

he
se

 a
re

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 A

Q
M

A
 in

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 

an
d 

th
e 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 r

ai
nf

al
l w

ith
 N

O
x 

is
 n

ot
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
so

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

s 
to

 c
au

se
 a

ci
d 

ra
in

 in
 th

e 
w

ho
le

 S
D

P
 a

re
a.

 A
ga

in
 

it 
is

 n
ot

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

nd
 i

n
d

ir
ec

t 
ai

r 
po

llu
tio

n 
is

su
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

C
ity

 a
nd

 th
e 

S
hi

re
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
de

po
si

tio
n 

of
 a

ir 
po

llu
ta

nt
s 

on
 o

th
er

 r
ec

ep
to

rs
. 

If 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 d

o 
no

t 
go

 a
he

ad
, 

sm
al

l a
dd

iti
on

al
 

tr
af

fic
 p

re
ss

ur
es

 w
ill

 a
ct

 c
um

ul
at

iv
el

y 
in

 th
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 o
ve

ra
ll 

em
is

si
on

s 
of

 a
ir 

po
llu

ta
nt

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
ni

bb
lin

g 
ef

fe
ct

s.
  

 S
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

, 
th

e 
pl

an
 c

on
si

st
s 

of
 t

w
o 

co
nf

lic
tin

g 
id

ea
s.

 F
irs

t, 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

ha
ve

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 f

or
 t

hi
s 

re
ce

pt
or

. 
S

ec
on

d,
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

m
ix

ed
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
, 

on
 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
ha

nd
, 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 
ha

ve
 

po
si

tiv
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

fo
r 

th
is

 
re

ce
pt

or
 

in
 

th
e 

lo
ng

-r
un

.  
S

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 i
ss

ue
s 

do
 n

ot
 n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
ne

ut
ra

lis
e 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 i

ss
ue

s,
 t

hr
ou

gh
 n

eu
tr

al
is

in
g

 e
ff

ec
ts

 s
in

ce
 s

om
e 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 (

su
ch

 a
s 

bi
om

as
s)

 h
as

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 i

ss
ue

s 
in

he
re

nt
 i

n 
it.

 O
ve

ra
ll,

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
, 

ho
us

in
g 

al
lo

ca
tio

n,
 e

co
no

m
ic

 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

op
tio

ns
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 to
 h

av
e 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 a

ir 
in

 th
e 

gr
an

d 
sc

he
m

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

C
ity

 a
nd

 
S

hi
re

. 
F

or
 L

D
P

 a
re

as
, 

th
is

 e
ffe

ct
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

. 
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 e

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

/c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
, 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

m
ix

ed
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

 o
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
m

ix
ed

 e
ffe

ct
s.

 T
hi

s 
is

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f 

th
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

in
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 r
en

ew
ab

le
s 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
fr

om
 in

di
re

ct
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 tr
af

fic
 b

ui
ld

 
up

 a
nd

 b
io

m
as

s.
 

 

Page 189



 
54

 

W
at

er
 

-- 
-- 

-- 

+ 

-- 

+ 

+ 

- 

- - 

W
at

er
: 

In
 t

he
 f

ut
ur

e 
nu

m
er

ou
s 

w
at

er
 a

bs
tr

ac
tio

ns
 a

re
 p

os
si

bl
e 

un
de

r 
th

e 
ph

as
ed

 S
D

P
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f 
th

e 
la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 

ho
us

es
 p

ro
po

se
d 

in
 t

he
 C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

. 
If 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 a

re
 n

ot
 r

ea
ch

ed
 w

ith
 S

N
H

, 
S

E
P

A
 a

nd
 S

co
tti

sh
 W

at
er

 o
n 

fu
tu

re
 

so
lu

tio
ns

, 
th

e 
S

D
P

 i
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 c
re

at
e 

in
cr

em
en

ta
l 

bu
rd

en
 o

n 
w

at
er

 r
es

ou
rc

es
, 

th
ro

ug
h 

ti
m

e-
cr

o
w

d
in

g
 e

ff
ec

ts
. 

If 
w

at
er

 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
 a

nd
 n

ew
 w

a y
s 

of
 h

ar
ve

st
in

g 
w

at
er

 a
re

 n
ot

 r
es

ol
ve

d,
 it

 is
 li

ke
ly

 th
at

 w
at

er
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t f

or
 w

at
er

 a
bs

tr
ac

tio
n 

w
ill

 
le

ad
 to

 a
dv

er
se

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 R

iv
er

 D
ee

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
sp

ec
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
ti

m
e 

la
g

 e
ff

ec
ts

.  
T

he
 r

ea
so

ns
 g

iv
en

 fo
r 

tim
e 

la
g 

ef
fe

ct
s 

ar
e 

st
ill

 r
el

ev
an

t t
o 

sp
ac

e 
cr

o
w

d
in

g
 e

ff
ec

ts
. M

os
t o

f t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 a
w

ay
 fr

om
 th

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

pl
an

 
bo

un
da

ry
; 

th
er

e 
is

 t
he

re
fo

re
 n

o 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

cr
o

ss
-b

o
u

n
d

ar
y 

ef
fe

ct
s.

  
T

he
 l

on
g-

te
rm

 s
ur

vi
va

l 
of

 t
he

 C
ity

 a
nd

 t
he

 S
hi

re
 

de
pe

nd
 o

n 
th

e 
he

al
th

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
bu

ilt
 a

nd
 n

at
ur

al
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
W

at
er

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

ov
er

-e
xp

lo
ite

d 
if 

a 
co

m
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

is
 n

ot
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 ta
ck

le
 it

. 
F

or
 th

is
 r

ea
so

n,
 s

yn
er

g
is

ti
c 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 o
n 

w
at

er
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

. T
he

 e
ss

en
ce

 
of

 t
hi

s 
S

D
P

 i
s 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 w
hi

le
 a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 i
ss

ue
s.

 I
t 

is
 t

he
re

fo
re

 n
ot

 
en

vi
sa

ge
d 

th
at

 u
ns

us
ta

in
ab

le
 p

la
nn

in
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 t
o 

af
fe

ct
 o

ur
 w

at
er

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

ca
us

in
g 

se
co

n
d

ar
y,

 i
n

d
u

ce
d

 o
r 

in
d

ir
ec

t 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 t
hi

s 
re

ce
pt

or
. 

T
he

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 S
D

P
 w

ill
 n

ot
 p

er
m

it 
in

cr
em

en
ta

l a
dv

er
se

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 t

he
 w

at
er

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
to

 g
o 

w
ith

ou
t 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s.
 T

he
 S

D
P

 i
s 

no
t 

em
ph

as
is

in
g 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

It 
pr

om
ot

es
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 m
os

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
is

 a
ro

un
d 

in
 t

ow
ns

 a
nd

 t
he

 C
ity

. 
N

ut
rie

nt
 lo

ad
in

g 
fr

om
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

an
 o

ut
co

m
e 

of
 th

is
 p

la
n.

 It
 is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
no

t e
nv

is
ag

ed
 th

at
 n

ib
bl

in
g

 e
ffe

ct
s 

ar
e 

lik
el

y.
  

 T
he

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
en

vi
sa

ge
d 

is
 s

o 
la

rg
e 

th
at

 t
he

 S
D

P
 is

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
ha

ve
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

w
at

er
 a

bs
tr

ac
tio

n,
 

w
at

er
 p

ol
lu

tio
n,

 r
un

-o
ffs

, 
lo

ca
lis

ed
 f

lo
od

in
g 

an
d 

m
or

ph
ol

og
y 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 h
ow

 t
he

 p
la

ns
 f

lo
w

in
g 

fr
om

 t
he

 S
D

P
 w

ill
 

im
pl

em
en

t 
th

e 
S

D
P

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
. 

A
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 S
D

P
 p

ro
m

ot
es

 w
at

er
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 t
ec

hn
ol

og
ie

s,
 t

he
 s

ca
le

 o
f 

w
at

er
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
 e

nv
is

ag
ed

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ab
le

 t
o 

co
m

pe
ns

at
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

vo
lu

m
e 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
w

at
er

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 
th

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
ns

. 
 O

ve
ra

ll,
 t

he
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

, 
ho

us
in

g 
al

lo
ca

tio
n,

 e
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
op

tio
ns

 a
re

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 w

at
er

 i
n 

th
e 

gr
an

d 
sc

he
m

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
in

 t
he

 C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
. 

A
cc

es
s 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
m

in
or

 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s.
 F

or
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 e

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

/c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
, 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

m
ix

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
op

tio
ns

, 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 a
re

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
be

ca
us

e 
of

 t
he

 p
os

iti
ve

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 m

ea
su

re
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

w
at

er
 

te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

. 
 

Page 190



 
55

 

S
o

il 

-- 

-- 

-- 

0 

-- 

0 

0 

- 

-- 

S
oi

l: 
re

pe
tit

iv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 o
ve

r 
25

 y
ea

rs
 i

n 
th

e 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 o

ve
r 

72
,0

00
 h

om
es

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 p
ha

se
d 

ov
er

 t
he

se
 y

ea
rs

 i
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 c
au

se
 r

ep
et

iti
ve

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

so
il 

co
m

pa
ct

io
n,

 
lo

ss
, 

se
al

in
g 

an
d 

er
os

io
n;

 s
om

e 
of

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

sh
or

t-
te

rm
 in

 n
at

ur
e.

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
gi

ve
n 

th
at

 m
uc

h 
of

 t
he

 p
ea

t 
so

ils
 a

re
 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 lo

ca
l g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

 (
to

 th
e 

so
ut

h 
w

es
t)

, t
he

 e
ffe

ct
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
ti

m
e-

cr
o

w
d

in
g

 e
ff

ec
ts

. I
f c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
re

 n
ot

 s
et

 
in

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
 t

he
se

 lo
ca

l g
ro

w
th

 a
re

as
 o

f 
pe

at
y 

so
il 

ov
er

 t
im

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
in

 
te

rm
s 

of
 t

im
e 

la
g

. T
he

 r
ea

so
ns

 g
iv

en
 fo

r 
tim

e 
la

g 
ef

fe
ct

s 
ar

e 
st

ill
 r

el
ev

an
t t

o 
sp

ac
e 

cr
o

w
d

in
g

 e
ff

ec
ts

. B
ut

 a
ls

o,
 la

rg
e 

sc
al

e 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

nu
m

be
rs

 i
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 c
om

po
un

d 
so

il 
se

al
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

s.
 

M
os

t 
of

 t
he

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

ill
 t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e 
aw

ay
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

la
n 

bo
un

da
ry

; 
th

er
e 

is
 t

he
re

fo
re

 n
o 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
cr

o
ss

-b
o

u
n

d
ar

y 
ef

fe
ct

s.
  

If 
sa

fe
gu

ar
ds

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
 p

la
ce

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 s

oi
l s

ea
lin

g,
 c

om
pa

ct
io

n 
an

d 
lo

ss
 in

 p
la

ce
s 

w
ill

 c
om

bi
ne

 w
ith

 lo
ss

 o
f 

pe
at

 
so

ils
 e

ls
ew

he
re

 t
o 

le
ad

 t
o 

po
te

nt
ia

l a
dv

er
se

 e
ffe

ct
s 

on
 t

he
 s

oi
ls

 in
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 th

ro
ug

h 
sy

ne
rg

is
tic

 e
ffe

ct
s.

 F
or

 
th

is
 r

ea
so

n,
 s

yn
er

g
is

ti
c 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 o
n 

so
il 

ar
e 

lik
el

y.
 E

qu
al

ly
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 in
 a

re
as

 w
ith

ou
t 

pe
at

 c
ou

ld
 le

ad
 

to
 s

yn
er

gi
st

ic
 e

ffe
ct

 i
f 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
re

m
ov

al
, 

so
il 

co
m

pa
ct

io
n,

 s
ea

lin
g 

ca
us

es
 s

ur
fa

ce
 r

un
of

fs
 a

nd
 e

ro
si

on
 o

f 
so

ils
 i

n
d

ir
ec

tl
y 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
th

e 
aq

ua
tic

 e
co

sy
st

em
s.

 I
t 

m
ig

ht
 l

ea
d 

po
llu

tio
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

se
di

m
en

t 
lo

ad
in

gs
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 n

ea
r 

w
at

er
 b

od
ie

s 
an

d 
co

as
ta

l 
to

w
ns

. 
In

cr
em

en
ta

l 
se

al
in

g,
 e

ro
si

on
, 

co
m

pa
ct

io
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

co
nt

in
uo

us
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 i
n 

th
e 

ne
xt

 2
5 

ye
ar

s 
co

ul
d 

ca
us

e 
ni

bb
lin

g 
ef

fe
ct

s 
un

le
ss

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
s 

ar
e 

pl
ac

e.
 F

ro
m

 o
ur

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t e
nv

is
ag

ed
 is

 s
o 

la
rg

e 
sc

al
e 

th
at

 t
he

 S
D

P
 i

s 
lik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

a 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 i
m

pl
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r 
so

il 
in

 t
er

m
s 

so
il 

la
ss

, 
so

il 
se

al
in

g,
 s

oi
l 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
 

de
gr

ad
at

io
n 

an
d 

co
m

pa
ct

io
n 

an
d 

pe
rh

ap
s 

po
te

nt
ia

ls
 f

or
 c

on
ta

m
in

at
io

n 
if 

m
or

e 
in

du
st

ria
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 t
ak

e 
pl

ac
e.

 O
ve

ra
ll,

 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c,

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
llo

ca
tio

n,
 e

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

op
tio

ns
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

ha
ve

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

ad
ve

rs
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 

so
il 

in
 t

he
 g

ra
nd

 s
ch

em
e 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

in
 t

he
 C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

. 
A

cc
es

s 
op

tio
n 

is
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
m

in
or

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s.
 

E
ffe

ct
s 

of
 o

th
er

 p
ar

ts
 o

f t
he

 S
D

P
 a

re
 n

eu
tr

al
 

  
B

io
d

iv
er

si
ty

 

+/-- 

+/-- 

+/-- 

0/- 

+/-- 

0/- 

0/- 

- 

--/+ 

B
io

di
ve

rs
ity

: t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ho

us
in

g 
nu

m
be

r 
is

 la
rg

e 
sc

al
e 

ov
er

 2
5 

ye
ar

s;
 th

is
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 a
ffe

ct
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 th

ro
ug

h 
la

nd
 ta

ke
, 

ha
bi

ta
t f

ra
gm

en
ta

tio
n,

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 to
 s

pe
ci

es
, a

nd
 h

ab
ita

t l
os

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
ti

m
e-

cr
o

w
d

in
g

 e
ff

ec
ts

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 a

re
 

ph
as

ed
 t

o 
co

nt
in

ue
 o

ve
r 

al
l 

th
at

 p
er

io
d.

 T
he

re
 i

s 
al

so
 t

he
 p

os
si

bi
lit

y 
th

at
 t

he
re

 w
ill

 b
e 

lo
ng

 d
el

ay
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

la
nd

 t
ak

en
 f

or
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

to
 a

ffe
ct

 o
th

er
 u

se
s 

of
 la

nd
 s

ay
 f

or
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l p

ur
po

se
s.

 P
os

iti
ve

ly
, a

ny
 p

oo
r 

bi
o

-d
iv

er
se

 la
nd

 c
ou

ld
 e

nr
ic

he
d 

in
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 th

ro
ug

h 
fu

tu
re

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 th
ro

ug
h

 t
im

e 
la

g
. L

ar
ge

 s
ca

le
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 ta
ki

ng
 p

la
ce

 in
 th

e 
la

nd
 w

hi
ch

 w
as

 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

un
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

co
ul

d 
fa

ce
 r

ec
re

at
io

na
l 

pr
es

su
re

 f
ro

m
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
th

er
eb

y 
ca

us
in

g 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 

sp
ec

ie
s.

 T
hi

s 
is

 a
 s

p
ac

e 
cr

o
w

d
in

g
 e

ff
ec

t.
 M

os
t o

f t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 a
w

ay
 fr

om
 th

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

pl
an

 b
ou

nd
ar

y;
 

th
er

e 
is

 t
he

re
fo

re
 n

o 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

cr
o

ss
-b

o
u

n
d

ar
y 

ef
fe

ct
s.

  
W

h
ile

 a
d

ve
rs

e 
sy

n
er

g
is

ti
c 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 o
n 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 a
re

 l
ik

el
y,

 t
he

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 t
hr

ou
gh

 u
rb

an
 l

an
ds

ca
pe

, 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

pl
an

tin
g 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

po
or

 b
io

di
ve

rs
e 

la
nd

 c
an

 h
av

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
sy

ne
rg

is
tic

 e
ffe

ct
s.

 W
hi

le
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l a

ct
iv

ity
 w

ill
 

ar
is

e 
fr

om
 t

ou
ris

m
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n,
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 h

ou
se

s 
in

 t
he

 n
at

ur
al

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

w
ill

 i
n

d
ir

ec
tl

y 
in

cr
ea

se
 t

he
 p

ro
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l a

ct
iv

ity
 li

ke
ly

 to
 c

au
se

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 s
pe

ci
es

 if
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

s 
ar

e 
no

t i
n 

pl
ac

e.
 P

ie
ce

 m
ea

l a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 in

 
th

e 
lo

ca
l g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

 c
ou

ld
 c

om
po

un
d 

ov
er

 ti
m

e 
to

 h
av

e 
a

 n
ib

bl
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

.  
T

he
 s

ca
le

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t e

nv
is

ag
ed

 is
 s

o 
la

rg
e 

th
at

 th
e 

S
D

P
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 h
av

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 im
pl

ic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 in
 te

rm
s 

la
nd

 t
ak

e,
 h

ab
ita

t 
fr

ag
m

en
ta

tio
n,

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 t
o 

sp
ec

ie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l u
se

 a
nd

 h
ab

ita
t 

lo
ss

. 
O

n 
th

e 
pl

us
 

si
de

, 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 t
ha

t 
sp

ec
ie

s-
an

d-
ha

bi
ta

t-
po

or
 b

io
-d

iv
er

se
 l

an
d 

(s
uc

h 
as

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
la

nd
) 

ca
n 

be
 e

nh
an

ce
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t m

ak
es

 it
 p

os
si

bl
e 

to
 h

av
e 

so
m

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s.
 T

he
 s

co
rin

g 
re

fle
ct

s 
ou

r 
re

as
on

in
g.

 

Page 191



 
56

 

C
lim

at
ic

 
F

ac
to

rs
 

+/-- 

+/-- 

+/-- 

++ 

+/-- 

++ 

++ 

- 

--/++ 

C
lim

at
e:

 A
lre

ad
y 

th
e 

fo
ot

pr
in

t 
of

  
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 is

 a
m

on
g 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t 

in
 S

co
tla

nd
 t

hr
ou

gh
 h

ig
h 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

of
 

fo
ss

il 
fu

el
 f

ro
m

 t
ra

ve
l a

nd
 d

om
es

tic
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

of
 e

ne
rg

y,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 f

or
 t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

to
ck

. 
W

ith
ou

t 
re

ve
rs

in
g 

th
is

 t
re

nd
, 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

nu
m

be
rs

 p
ro

po
se

d 
in

 t
he

 S
D

P
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 2
5 

ye
ar

s 
is

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
ha

ve
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

ti
m

e-
cr

o
w

d
in

g
 e

ff
ec

ts
. G

iv
en

 
th

at
 m

uc
h 

of
 th

e 
pe

at
 s

oi
ls

 in
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 a

re
 lo

ca
te

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
so

ut
h-

w
es

t o
f t

he
 r

eg
io

n 
an

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 

by
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 i
n 

lo
ca

l 
gr

ow
th

 a
re

as
, 

an
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
 a

nd
 a

ro
un

d 
pe

at
 s

oi
l 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. 
If 

lo
ng

er
 t

er
m

, 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
of

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

en
co

ur
ag

e
s 

m
or

e 
ve

hi
cl

es
 o

n 
th

e 
ro

ad
s,

 t
hi

s 
w

ill
 le

ad
 t

o 
fu

tu
re

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
of

 m
or

e 
fo

ss
il 

fu
el

s 
an

d 
th

er
eb

y 
ad

ve
rs

el
y 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
cl

im
at

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
ti

m
e 

la
g

.  
S

im
ila

rly
, t

he
re

 is
 a

 ti
m

e 
la

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
n 

pe
at

 s
oi

ls
 a

nd
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

 in
 c

lim
at

e.
 H

ig
h 

de
ns

ity
 a

nd
 m

ix
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 r

ed
uc

es
 th

e 
ne

ed
 

to
 t

ra
ve

l l
on

g 
di

st
an

ce
s.

 O
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
ha

nd
 if

 p
eo

pl
e’

s 
tr

av
el

 h
ab

it 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
C

ity
 a

nd
 t

he
 S

hi
re

 r
em

ai
n 

un
ch

an
ge

d 
fu

el
 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

tr
av

el
 w

ill
 p

er
si

st
. 

T
hu

s 
in

 t
er

m
s 

of
 s

p
ac

e 
cr

o
w

d
in

g
, 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

m
ix

ed
. 

G
iv

en
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 i
n 

th
e 

lo
ca

l 
gr

ow
th

 a
re

as
 a

re
 m

or
e 

m
ea

su
re

d,
 t

he
se

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

S
D

P
 a

re
 n

ot
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
sp

ac
e 

cr
ow

di
ng

 e
ffe

ct
s.

 M
os

t 
of

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e 
aw

ay
 fr

om
 th

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

pl
an

 b
ou

nd
ar

y;
 b

ut
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 tr
an

sc
en

d 
re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 n

at
io

na
l b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
an

d 
fo

r 
th

is
 m

at
te

r 
so

m
e 

cr
o

ss
-b

o
u

n
d

ar
y 

ef
fe

ct
s 

ar
e 

po
ss

ib
le

. 
T

he
 e

ffe
ct

s 
of

 t
he

 p
la

n 
fr

om
 d

iff
er

en
t 

pe
rs

pe
ct

iv
es

 a
re

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

sy
n

er
g

is
ti

c 
ef

fe
ct

s.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 t
he

 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

of
 t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ho
us

in
g 

st
oc

k,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 f

or
 n

ew
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 m

ix
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ar

e 
ca

se
s 

in
 p

oi
nt

. 
O

n 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

ha
nd

 e
ne

rg
y 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
tr

av
el

 a
nd

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 p
ea

t 
so

ils
 a

re
 l

ik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
ad

ve
rs

e 
sy

ne
rg

is
tic

 e
ffe

ct
s.

 I
n

d
ir

ec
tl

y 
ho

us
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

ill
 i

nd
uc

e 
m

or
e 

en
er

gy
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n.

 A
nd

 t
he

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 e
ne

rg
y 

us
e 

in
 n

ew
 h

ou
se

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ho

us
in

g 
st

oc
k 

(n
o 

m
at

te
r 

ho
w

 e
ffi

ci
en

t 
th

ey
 a

re
) 

ca
n 

ac
cu

m
ul

at
e 

to
 

la
rg

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
fo

r 
cl

im
at

e.
 T

he
 f

ac
t 

th
at

 a
lth

ou
gh

 a
 l

ar
ge

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 h

ou
se

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
ta

ke
s 

pl
ac

e 
in

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 

ar
ea

s,
 a

llo
w

an
ce

 i
s 

gi
ve

n 
fo

r 
so

m
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 in
 lo

ca
l g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

. 
T

he
 c

om
bi

n
ed

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

in
 

al
l 

th
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

ca
n 

be
 n

ib
b

lin
g

 i
n 

ef
fe

ct
. 

S
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

, 
th

e 
pl

an
 c

on
si

st
s 

of
 t

w
o 

co
nf

lic
tin

g 
id

ea
s.

 F
irs

t, 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
op

tio
ns

 a
re

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 f
or

 t
hi

s 
re

ce
pt

or
. 

S
ec

on
d,

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 m
ix

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

bj
ec

tiv
es

, o
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
ha

nd
, a

re
 li

ke
ly

 to
 h

av
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

fo
r 

th
is

 r
ec

ep
to

r 
in

 t
he

 l
on

g -
ru

n.
  

S
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 i

ss
ue

s 
do

 n
ot

 n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

ne
ut

ra
lis

e 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 i
ss

ue
s,

 t
hr

ou
gh

 
n

eu
tr

al
is

in
g

 e
ff

ec
ts

 s
in

ce
 s

om
e 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 t

ha
t 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
(s

uc
h 

as
 b

io
m

as
s)

 h
as

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 is

su
es

 in
he

re
nt

 in
 it

. 
O

ve
ra

ll,
 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c,
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

llo
ca

tio
n,

 e
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
op

tio
ns

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
ha

ve
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 a

ir 
in

 t
he

 
gr

an
d 

sc
he

m
e 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

in
 t

he
 C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

. 
F

or
 L

D
P

 a
re

as
, 

th
is

 e
ffe

ct
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

. 
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 e

co
no

m
ic

 
gr

ow
th

/c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
, s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 m

ix
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 a
cc

es
s 

op
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

m
ix

ed
 e

ffe
ct

s.
 

T
hi

s 
is

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f 

th
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

in
 m

ea
su

re
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

re
ne

w
ab

le
s 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
fr

om
 in

di
re

ct
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 tr
af

fic
 b

ui
ld

 u
p 

an
d 

bi
om

as
s.

 T
he

 s
co

rin
g 

re
fle

ct
s 

ou
r 

re
as

on
in

g 
 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 

H
er

it
ag

e 

- 

- 

- 

0/- 

- 

0/- 

0/- 

- 

- 

T
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

re
 p

ro
po

se
d 

al
on

g 
th

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t c

or
rid

or
s 

an
d 

ar
ou

nd
 to

w
ns

 a
nd

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
. 

S
in

ce
 h

is
to

ric
 r

em
ai

ns
 

ar
e 

m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
co

nc
en

tr
at

ed
 i

n 
bu

ilt
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
th

an
 t

he
 n

at
ur

al
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t, 
i t 

is
 p

os
si

bl
e 

th
at

 s
om

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 h
is

to
ric

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

ar
e 

lik
el

y.
 A

lth
ou

gh
 la

rg
e 

sc
al

e 
ho

us
in

g 
w

ill
 t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e 
in

 t
he

 r
eg

io
n,

 t
he

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

fo
r 

bu
ilt

 fe
at

ur
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

fa
ct

 th
e 

fe
w

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 o

ut
si

de
 th

e 
se

ttl
em

en
ts

  m
ea

ns
 th

at
 th

e 
S

D
P

 in
 u

nl
ik

el
y 

to
 

ha
ve

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

th
is

 r
ec

ep
to

r 
th

ro
ug

h 
tim

e-
cr

ow
di

ng
,  

tim
e 

la
g,

 s
pa

ce
 c

ro
w

di
ng

 e
ffe

ct
s,

 s
yn

er
gi

st
ic

 a
nd

 
ni

bb
lin

g 
ef

fe
ct

s.
 T

he
 e

ffe
ct

s 
of

 t
he

 S
D

P
 i

n 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 c
on

te
xt

, 
pa

tte
rn

 o
f 

pa
st

 h
is

to
ric

 u
se

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t, 
an

d 
th

e 
co

nt
ex

t 
or

 s
et

tin
g 

in
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

y 
si

t, 
an

d 
th

e 
pa

tte
rn

s 
of

 p
as

t 
us

e,
 i

n 
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 a
nd

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 s

oi
l 

(a
rc

ha
eo

lo
gy

),
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

in
 o

ur
 to

w
ns

, v
ill

ag
es

 a
nd

 s
tr

ee
ts

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

ne
ga

tiv
e.

  

Page 192



 
57

 

L
an

d
sc

ap
e 

+/- 

+/- 

+/- 

0/- 

+/- 

0/- 

0/- 

- 

+/- 

L
an

d
sc

ap
e:

  
R

ep
et

iti
ve

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 o

ve
r 

25
 y

ea
rs

 in
 th

e 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 o

ve
r 

72
,0

00
 h

om
es

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 p
ha

se
d 

ov
er

 t
he

se
 y

ea
rs

 is
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

ca
us

e 
re

pe
tit

iv
e

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

la
nd

 f
or

m
, 

la
nd

 u
se

 
an

d 
la

nd
 c

ov
er

, 
w

at
er

; 
fo

re
st

s,
 w

oo
dl

an
ds

 a
nd

 t
re

es
; 

ag
ric

ul
tu

re
; 

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
la

nd
 f

or
m

 a
nd

 la
nd

 u
se

; 
bu

ild
in

gs
 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 in

 t
he

 la
nd

sc
ap

e;
 u

rb
an

 la
nd

sc
ap

e/
se

ttl
em

en
t 

pa
tte

rn
; 

lin
ea

r 
an

d/
or

 p
oi

nt
 f

ea
tu

re
s,

 o
pe

nn
es

s,
 s

ca
le

, 
co

lo
ur

, 
te

xt
ur

e,
 v

is
ua

l d
iv

er
si

ty
, 

lin
e,

 p
at

te
rn

, 
m

ov
em

en
t, 

so
lit

ud
e,

 n
at

ur
al

ne
ss

, 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 a
nd

/o
r 

cu
ltu

ra
l a

ss
oc

ia
tio

ns
. 

O
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
ha

nd
 n

ew
 fo

rm
s 

of
 la

nd
 c

ov
er

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
cr

ea
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
. B

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

se
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e;

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

in
 t

er
m

s 
of

 t
im

e-
cr

o
w

d
in

g
 a

re
 m

ix
ed

. 
T

he
 p

ha
si

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 2
5 

ye
ar

s 
is

 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
in

 t
er

m
s 

of
 t

im
e 

la
g

 f
or

 h
ow

 t
he

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
is

 s
ha

pe
d 

in
 t

he
 f

ut
ur

e.
 T

he
 r

ea
so

ns
 g

iv
en

 f
or

 t
im

e 
la

g 
ef

fe
ct

s 
ar

e 
st

ill
 r

el
ev

an
t 

to
 s

p
ac

e 
cr

o
w

d
in

g
 e

ff
ec

ts
. 

B
ut

 a
ls

o,
 l

ar
ge

 s
ca

le
 i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ne

ed
ed

 t
o 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
nu

m
be

rs
 is

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
af

fe
ct

 la
nd

 f
or

m
, 

la
nd

 u
se

 a
nd

 la
nd

 c
ov

er
 o

f 
th

e 
C

ity
 a

nd
 t

he
 S

hi
re

. 
M

os
t 

of
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
w

ill
 t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e 
aw

ay
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

la
n 

bo
un

da
ry

; 
th

er
e 

is
 t

he
re

fo
re

 n
o 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
cr

o
ss

-b
o

u
n

d
ar

y 
ef

fe
ct

s.
  

If 
sa

fe
gu

ar
ds

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
 p

la
ce

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 lo

ss
 o

f l
an

ds
ca

pe
 fe

at
ur

es
 w

ill
 le

ad
 to

 p
ot

en
tia

l a
dv

er
se

 e
ffe

ct
s 

fo
r 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 

S
hi

re
’s

 l
an

ds
ca

pe
 i

n 
te

rm
s 

of
 s

yn
er

g
is

ti
c 

ef
fe

ct
s.

 C
on

tin
uo

us
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 i
n 

th
e 

ne
xt

 2
5 

ye
ar

s 
co

ul
d 

ca
us

e 
n

ib
b

lin
g

 e
ff

ec
ts

 u
nl

es
s 

sa
fe

gu
ar

ds
 a

re
 p

la
ce

. 
 T

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 in
 t

he
 S

D
P

 a
re

 p
ro

po
se

d 
al

on
g 

th
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
co

rr
id

or
s 

an
d 

ar
ou

nd
 t

ow
ns

 a
nd

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
. 

It 
is

 t
he

re
fo

re
 p

os
si

bl
e 

th
at

 s
om

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ar

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 in

 
ar

ea
s 

w
he

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ill

 t
ak

e 
pl

ac
e.

 O
n 

th
e 

pl
us

 s
id

e,
 t

he
 p

os
si

bi
lit

y 
th

at
 a

re
as

 o
f 

po
or

 l
an

ds
ca

pe
 q

ua
lit

y 
ca

n 
be

 
en

ha
nc

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
pl

an
tin

g 
m

ak
es

 i
t 

po
ss

ib
le

 t
o 

ha
ve

 s
om

e 
po

si
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s.
 T

he
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
re

fle
ct

s 
ou

r 
re

as
on

in
g.

 
M

at
er

ia
l A

ss
et

s 

++ 

++ 

++ 

++ 

++ 

++ 

++ 

+ 

++ 

R
ep

et
iti

ve
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 o
ve

r 
25

 y
ea

rs
 in

 t
he

 C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 o
ve

r 
72

,0
00

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 p

ha
se

d 
ov

er
 th

es
e 

ye
ar

s 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 c
au

se
 r

ep
et

iti
ve

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

ffe
ct

in
g

 th
e 

ac
qu

is
iti

on
 o

f n
ew

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

of
 

 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

. 
N

ew
 

ho
us

in
g,

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
, 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

an
d 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

m
ix

ed
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 p
ro

vi
de

 t
he

 s
co

pe
 f

or
 c

re
at

io
n 

of
 f

ix
ed

 a
ss

et
s.

 T
he

 u
se

 o
f 

na
tu

ra
l 

an
d 

m
at

er
ia

l 
as

se
ts

, 
pr

om
ot

in
g

 w
as

te
 

m
in

im
is

at
io

n,
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

co
m

po
st

in
g 

is
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

us
e 

of
 t

he
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 i
s 

al
so

 
lik

el
y 

to
 h

av
e 

si
m

ila
r 

im
pa

ct
s.

 I
n 

th
at

 s
en

se
 it

 is
 n

ot
 e

nv
is

ag
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

an
y 

ad
ve

rs
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

ac
cu

m
ul

at
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
tim

e-
cr

ow
di

ng
, 

tim
e 

la
g,

 s
pa

ce
 c

ro
w

di
ng

 e
ffe

ct
s,

 s
yn

er
gi

st
ic

 a
nd

 n
ib

bl
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

s.
 O

n 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

ha
nd

 t
he

 S
D

P
 i

s 
lik

el
y 

to
 

ha
ve

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t p

os
iti

ve
 e

ffe
ct

s 
ov

er
al

l.  
  

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

  

++ 

++ 

++ 

0 

++ 

0 

0 

+ 

++ 

R
ep

et
iti

ve
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 o
ve

r 
25

 y
ea

rs
 in

 t
he

 C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 o
ve

r 
72

,0
00

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 p

ha
se

d 
ov

er
 th

es
e 

ye
ar

s 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 c
au

se
 r

ep
et

iti
ve

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

ac
qu

is
iti

on
 o

f n
ew

 a
ss

et
s 

by
 m

os
t 

pe
op

le
 

liv
in

g 
in

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 
an

d 
S

hi
re

. 
 

N
ew

 
ho

us
in

g,
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

, 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
m

ix
ed

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 in

 t
he

 s
iz

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 in

 th
e 

S
D

P
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

ei
r 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

. 
In

 t
ha

t 
se

ns
e 

it 
is

 n
ot

 e
nv

is
ag

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
an

y 
ad

ve
rs

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
ac

cu
m

ul
at

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

tim
e-

cr
ow

di
ng

, 
tim

e 
la

g,
 a

nd
 

sp
ac

e 
cr

ow
di

ng
 e

ffe
ct

s,
 s

yn
er

gi
st

ic
 a

nd
 n

ib
bl

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
s.

 T
he

 S
D

P
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 h
av

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
os

iti
ve

 e
ffe

ct
s 

ov
er

al
l. 

 

Page 193



 
58

 

H
u

m
an

 h
ea

lt
h

 

+/- 

+/- 

+/- 

+ 

+/- 

+ 

+ 

+/- 

+/- 

H
um

an
 H

ea
lth

. T
hi

s 
in

 p
ar

t i
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 is
su

es
. 

A
s 

al
re

ad
y 

m
en

tio
ne

d 
un

de
r 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
,  

th
er

e 
ar

e 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

 
is

su
es

 in
 p

ar
ts

 o
f A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 m
uc

h 
le

ss
 in

 o
th

er
 to

w
ns

 o
f A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

.  
T

he
 e

ffe
ct

s 
of

 la
rg

e 
sc

al
e 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 b

io
m

as
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
ss

es
se

d 
to

 h
av

e 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

 th
ro

ug
h 

tim
e-

cr
ow

di
ng

,  
tim

e 
la

g,
 s

pa
ce

 c
ro

w
di

ng
 e

ffe
ct

s,
 

sy
ne

rg
is

tic
 a

nd
 n

ib
bl

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
s.

 S
in

ce
 r

es
pi

ra
to

ry
 d

is
ea

se
 a

re
 r

el
at

ed
 to

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

 a
ir 

br
ea

th
ed

, t
he

re
 is

 a
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

fo
r 

ad
ve

rs
e 

or
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l h
um

an
 h

ea
lth

 e
ffe

ct
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 h

ow
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 im
pr

ov
es

 o
r 

de
te

rio
ra

te
s.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 n
um

be
r 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

po
se

d,
 e

ne
rg

y 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

m
ea

su
re

s 
in

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

an
d 

ne
w

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
to

ck
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

 m
ea

su
re

s 
en

su
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 g

re
en

 n
et

w
or

ks
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
n

tly
 p

os
iti

ve
 fo

r 
th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 
w

el
lb

ei
ng

 o
f t

he
 p

eo
pl

e 
of

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

. I
n 

th
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

, n
eg

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 tr
af

fic
 a

nd
 b

io
m

as
s 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 
ha

ve
 a

dv
er

se
 e

ffe
ct

s 
on

 p
eo

pl
e 

liv
in

g 
ar

ou
nd

 p
ol

lu
te

d 
ar

ea
s.

 F
or

 th
is

 r
ea

so
n 

th
e 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 a

ir 
is

 m
ix

ed
 o

ve
ra

ll.
 

T
he

re
 is

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l o
f s

om
e 

m
ix

ed
 e

ffe
ct

s 
ar

is
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
S

D
P

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ex

po
su

re
 to

 h
ig

h 
no

is
e 

le
ve

ls
 a

nd
 tr

an
sp

or
t-

in
du

ce
d 

vi
br

at
io

n;
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

he
al

th
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 h
ea

lth
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 If
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

s 
ar

e 
no

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 r
is

k 
of

 r
oa

d 
ac

ci
de

nt
s;

 (
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 d
ep

riv
ed

 a
re

as
) 

an
d 

ac
ci

de
nt

s 
on

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

nd
 p

av
em

en
ts

. C
um

ul
at

iv
el

y 
if 

ol
de

r 
ru

n-
do

w
n 

ar
ea

s 
ar

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
an

d 
th

e 
st

re
et

s 
ar

e 
lig

ht
ed

 th
e 

S
D

P
 w

ill
 li

ke
ly

 r
ed

uc
e 

cr
im

e 
an

d/
or

 fe
ar

 o
f c

rim
e 

as
 

w
el

l a
s 

ad
dr

es
s 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t i

ss
ue

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 lo
w

 in
co

m
es

. B
es

id
es

 th
e 

el
em

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 p

la
n 

su
ch

 a
s 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

m
ix

ed
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 g

oo
ds

, o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 a
ll,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 
th

os
e 

in
 d

is
ad

va
nt

ag
ed

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. T
he

se
 p

os
iti

ve
 e

ffe
ct

s 
w

ill
 a

cc
um

ul
at

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
tim

e 
an

d 
sp

ac
e.

 B
es

id
es

 if
 p

eo
pl

e 
liv

in
g 

in
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 a

re
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
us

e 
of

 th
e 

gr
ee

n 
ne

tw
or

ks
 th

ro
ug

h 
vi

go
ro

us
 r

ec
re

at
io

na
l 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
yc

lin
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

, h
ea

lth
 is

su
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 o
be

si
ty

, h
ig

h 
bl

oo
d 

pr
es

su
re

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 c

ar
di

o
-

va
sc

ul
ar

 d
is

ea
se

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

du
ce

d.
  

 
  K

ey
 

 + 
= 

po
si

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
   

 +
+ 

= 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
os

iti
ve

 e
ffe

ct
 

 -
 =

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

   
--

  =
  s

ig
ni

fic
an

t n
eg

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

 
0 

= 
ne

ut
ra

l e
ffe

ct
   

  ?
  =

  u
nc

er
ta

in
 e

ffe
ct

 
 D

ire
ct

  (
S

D
P

 ®
 Im

pa
ct

 A
) 

 
In

di
re

ct
 (

S
D

P
®

 Im
pa

ct
 A

 ®
 Im

pa
ct

 B
 

In
du

ce
d 

(S
D

P
®

ot
he

r 
P

P
S

  ®
Im

pa
ct

 A
) 

A
dd

iti
ve

 (
Im

pa
ct

 A
 +

Im
pa

ct
 B

= 
Im

pa
ct

 A
+B

) 
N

eu
tr

al
is

in
g 

(I
m

pa
ct

 A
 +

Im
pa

ct
 B

 <
Im

pa
ct

 A
+B

) 
S

yn
er

gi
st

ic
 (

Im
pa

ct
 A

 +
Im

pa
ct

 B
>I

m
pa

ct
 A

+B
) 

  

Page 194



 
59

 

   A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.5

: 
L

in
ks

 t
o

 o
th

er
 P

P
S

 &
 E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n
 O

b
je

ct
iv

es
 

  N
am

e 
of

 P
P

S
 / 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 

 M
ai

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 P
P

S
 

 

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 P

P
S

 

IN
T

E
R

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
  

N
at

u
re

 C
o

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 
· 

T
he

 H
ab

ita
ts

 D
ire

ct
iv

e 
92

/4
3/

E
E

C
 

· 
T

he
 B

ird
s 

D
ire

ct
iv

e 
20

09
/1

47
/E

C
 

· 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

B
io

di
ve

rs
ity

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k  

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

of
 h

ab
ita

ts
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

es
. 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

of
 w

ild
 b

ird
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
ha

bi
ta

ts
. 

P
ro

m
ot

es
 th

e 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
us

e 
of

 b
io

lo
gi

ca
l 

di
ve

rs
ity

. 
 

 P
la

n 
sh

ou
ld

 p
ro

te
ct

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 a

nd
 s

pe
ci

es
. 

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

po
lic

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 h

in
de

r 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n,

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

 o
f s

pe
ci

es
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
us

e 
of

 b
io

lo
gi

ca
l d

iv
er

si
ty

. 

W
as

te
 

· 
T

he
 L

an
df

ill
 D

ire
ct

iv
e 

99
/3

1/
E

C
 

· 
T

he
 W

as
te

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

D
ire

ct
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

iv
e 

20
08

/9
8/

E
C

 

 S
et

s 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

w
as

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t.  
C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
w

ho
le

 li
fe

 c
yc

le
 o

f l
an

df
ill

ed
 w

as
te

 
In

cl
ud

es
 ta

rg
et

s 
to

 r
ea

ch
 b

y 
20

20
. 

A
im

s 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 o
r 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
po

llu
tio

n 
po

te
nt

ia
l a

nd
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 

 P
la

n 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 
in

 c
on

si
st

en
cy

 w
ith

 th
e 

P
P

S
. T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r 

la
rg

e -
sc

al
e 

w
as

te
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ac
ili

tie
s 

w
hi

ls
t s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

th
e 

na
tu

ra
l a

nd
 

bu
ilt

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t. 

W
at

er
  

· 
W

at
er

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

D
ire

ct
iv

e 
20

00
/6

0/
E

C
 

 S
af

eg
ua

rd
s 

th
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

us
e 

of
 w

at
er

 s
ys

te
m

s;
 

S
up

po
rt

s 
th

e 
st

at
us

 o
f a

qu
at

ic
 e

co
sy

st
em

s 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ts
; 

 
A

dd
re

ss
es

 g
ro

un
dw

at
er

 p
ol

lu
tio

n;
 fl

oo
di

ng
 a

nd
 d

ro
ug

ht
s;

 r
iv

er
 b

as
in

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
la

nn
in

g.
 

 T
he

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
si

de
r 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

us
e 

of
 w

at
er

 a
nd

 m
iti

ga
te

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 fl

oo
ds

 
an

d 
dr

ou
gh

ts
. 

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
  

O
ve

ra
rc

h
in

g
 

· 
N

at
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

S
co

tla
nd

 2
 (

N
P

F
2)

 (
20

09
) 

· 
S

co
tti

sh
 P

la
nn

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y 

(S
P

P
) 

(2
01

0)
 

 G
ui

de
s 

S
co

tla
nd

’s
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

o 
20

30
, 

S
et

s 
ou

t s
tr

at
eg

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

rio
rit

ie
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
S

co
tti

sh
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 c
en

tr
al

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 e

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

. 
S

et
s 

ou
t t

he
 m

ai
n 

pu
rp

os
e 

an
d 

ta
sk

s 
fo

r 
la

nd
 u

se
 p

la
nn

in
g,

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l f
or

 S
co

tla
nd

. 

 T
he

 P
la

n 
m

us
t t

ak
e 

ac
co

un
t o

f N
P

F
2,

 it
s 

ke
y 

ai
m

s 
an

d 
th

e 
3 

N
at

io
na

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
S

D
P

 a
re

a .
 

U
nd

er
pi

ns
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

S
D

P
. 

C
ro

ss
 S

ec
to

ra
l 

· 
S

co
tla

nd
’s

 N
at

io
na

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
(2

00
6)

 
· 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 

(2
00

9)
 

· 
T

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t E
co

no
m

ic
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

(2
00

7)
 

· 
C

ho
os

in
g 

O
ur

 F
ut

ur
e:

 S
co

tla
nd

’s
 

 S
et

s 
ou

t a
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 v

is
io

n 
fo

r 
tr

an
sp

or
t . 

Id
en

tif
ie

s 
re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 

em
is

si
on

s,
 im

pr
ov

ed
 q

ua
lit

y,
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

af
fo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 
S

et
s 

ou
t r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fo

r 
la

nd
-b

as
ed

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 in
 S

co
tla

nd
’s

 n
at

io
na

l t
ra

ns
po

rt
 n

et
w

or
k 

fr
om

 2
01

2.
  

Id
en

tif
ie

s 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
cr

iti
ca

l t
o 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
.  

S
et

s 
ou

t a
 v

is
io

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

itm
en

t t
o 

bu
ild

 a
 m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

 T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
se

ek
 to

 in
te

gr
a t

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ai

m
s 

of
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
es

. I
m

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
S

D
P

 s
ho

ul
d 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
ne

ed
 

to
 u

se
 p

riv
at

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t a

nd
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

th
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 
em

is
si

on
s.

 It
 s

ho
ul

d 
su

pp
or

t s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 e
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 

w
hi

ls
t m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
di

ffe
rin

g 
ne

ed
s 

of
 a

 d
iv

er
se

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 It
 

sh
ou

ld
 a

im
 to

 c
on

se
rv

e 
S

c o
tla

nd
’s

 b
io

di
ve

rs
ity

 w
hi

ls
t 

re
du

ci
ng

 r
es

ou
rc

e 
de

pl
et

io
n 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

Page 195



 
60

 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
tr

at
eg

y 
(2

00
5)

 
· 

N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
P

ro
du

ct
iv

ity
 (

20
09

) 

S
co

tla
nd

. 
S

et
s 

ou
t a

 v
is

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

of
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
 in

 S
co

tla
nd

 in
 

a 
w

ay
 w

hi
ch

 is
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 b

ut
 d

el
iv

er
s 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 e
co

no
m

ic
 a

nd
 

pu
bl

ic
 b

en
ef

it.
 

us
e 

of
 o

ur
 n

at
ur

al
 r

es
ou

rc
es

. S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n,

 a
nd

 a
da

pt
 to

, c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
. 

T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

S
co

tti
sh

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

 
w

he
n 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

its
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

. 
A

ir
 &

 C
lim

at
e 

C
h

an
g

e 
· 

S
co

tti
sh

 C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
P

la
n 

(2
00

9)
 

· 
A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

E
ng

la
nd

, 
S

co
tla

nd
, W

al
es

 a
nd

 N
or

th
er

n 
Ir

el
an

d 
(2

00
7)

 
· 

T
ow

ar
ds

 a
 L

ow
 C

ar
bo

n 
E

co
no

m
y 

fo
r 

S
co

tla
nd

: D
is

cu
ss

io
n 

P
ap

er
 (

20
10

) 
 

 S
et

s 
ou

t h
ig

h 
le

ve
l m

ea
su

re
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 m

ee
t S

co
tla

nd
's

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 ta

rg
et

s,
 to

 2
02

0 
an

d 
in

 th
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

. 
P

ro
vi

de
s 

a 
cl

ea
r,

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 v

is
io

n 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 in

 th
e 

U
K

 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ct
 (

19
95

) 
se

tti
ng

 o
ut

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
nd

 p
ol

ic
y 

op
tio

ns
. 

S
et

s 
ou

t t
he

 S
co

tti
sh

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 p
la

ns
 to

 m
ov

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 a

 lo
w

 
ca

rb
on

 e
co

no
m

y 
in

 S
co

tla
nd

. 

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 th
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 g
re

en
ho

us
e 

ga
se

s 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
m

et
ho

ds
 o

f a
da

pt
at

io
n,

 
di

ve
rs

ifi
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n.
 T

hi
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

th
at

: 
 

· 
pr

om
ot

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 to

 c
ar

 a
nd

 r
ed

uc
e 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
tr

af
fic

 p
ol

lu
tio

n;
 a

nd
 

· 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 la

nd
 u

se
. 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t r
es

ul
t i

n 
a 

de
te

rio
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

. 
T

he
 S

D
P

 m
us

t c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 th

e 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
hi

ch
 h

el
ps

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
S

co
tla

nd
’s

 c
ar

bo
n 

fo
ot

pr
in

t a
nd

 h
el

p 
m

ee
t c

ar
bo

n 
sa

vi
ng

 ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 

S
co

tla
nd

. 
C

u
lt

u
ra

l H
er

it
ag

e 
&

 B
u

ilt
 

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

· 
T

he
 S

co
tti

sh
 H

is
to

ric
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
P

ol
ic

y 
(2

00
9)

 
· 

D
es

ig
ni

ng
 P

la
ce

s:
 A

 P
ol

ic
y 

S
ta

te
m

en
t f

or
 S

co
tla

nd
 (

20
01

) 
· 

S
co

tti
sh

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
(2

00
6)

 P
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

P
la

ce
: R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

P
ol

ic
y 

S
ta

te
m

en
t  

 P
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
op

er
at

io
na

l p
ol

ic
ie

s 
in

 m
an

ag
in

g 
th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
 

S
et

s 
ou

t t
he

 o
ve

ra
rc

hi
ng

 p
ol

ic
y 

on
 d

es
ig

n 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 m
ak

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 p
la

ce
s.

 
S

et
s 

ou
t a

 fo
rw

ar
d-

lo
ok

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

an
d 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
fo

r 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
in

 S
co

tla
nd

 e
nc

ou
ra

gi
ng

 p
ro

ac
tiv

e 
an

d 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

.  

 T
he

 P
la

n 
sh

ou
ld

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f t

he
 h

is
to

ric
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t i

n 
a 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

w
ay

 w
hi

ch
 a

vo
id

s 
ad

ve
rs

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

T
he

 p
la

n 
sh

ou
ld

 s
et

 o
ut

 c
on

ci
se

ly
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 d

es
ig

n,
 le

av
in

g 
th

e 
de

ta
il 

to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
do

cu
m

en
ts

. 
T

he
 p

la
n 

sh
ou

ld
 ta

ke
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f c
ha

ng
in

g 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

su
pp

or
t w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e.
 

L
an

d
sc

ap
e 

&
 S

o
il 

· 
T

he
 S

co
tti

sh
 S

oi
l F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
(2

00
9)

 
 T

he
 m

ai
n 

ai
m

 o
f t

he
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
is

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 s
oi

ls
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

, 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l n
ee

ds
 o

f S
co

tla
nd

.  
A

 k
ey

 a
sp

ec
t i

s 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 s

oi
l a

s 
an

 a
ss

et
 –

 fo
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e 
S

co
tti

sh
 e

co
no

m
y,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

a 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 s

et
 b

y 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. 

 T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f 

so
ils

. 

M
at

er
ia

l A
ss

et
s 

 
· 

F
irm

 F
ou

nd
at

io
ns

 –
 T

he
 F

ut
ur

e 
of

 
H

ou
si

ng
 in

 S
co

tla
nd

 –
 A

 D
is

cu
ss

io
n 

D
oc

um
en

t (
20

07
) 

· 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

a 
B

et
te

r 
S

co
tla

nd
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 In

ve
st

m
en

t P
la

n:
 

In
ve

st
in

g 
in

 th
e 

F
ut

ur
e 

of
 S

co
tla

nd
 

(2
00

5)
 

 S
et

s 
ou

t t
he

 S
co

tti
sh

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 v
is

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 in
 

S
co

tla
nd

: 
· 

A
n 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
su

pp
ly

 o
f h

ou
si

ng
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l t
en

ur
es

, a
ll 

of
 w

hi
ch

 is
 

de
liv

er
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 h
ig

he
r 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

st
an

da
rd

s;
 

· 
M

or
e 

ch
oi

ce
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 th
at

 th
os

e 
on

 lo
w

er
 in

co
m

es
 c

an
 a

ffo
rd

; 
· 

H
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 th

at
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 th
e 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e,

 m
ix

ed
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
; a

nd
 

· 
S

oc
ia

l h
ou

si
ng

 th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
be

tte
r 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

. 

 T
he

 S
D

P
 w

ill
 s

et
 th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t f
or

 th
e 

re
gi

on
 

ov
er

 a
 2

0 
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d.
 T

he
 s

pa
tia

l s
tr

at
eg

y 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 
st

at
em

en
t o

f p
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

s 
to

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 la

nd
 u

se
 

of
 la

nd
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 c
on

si
de

rin
g 

ho
us

in
g 

nu
m

be
rs

, t
yp

es
, 

te
nu

re
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n 
of

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
.  

T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

ns
id

er
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 e

co
no

m
ic

 
gr

ow
th

 in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

. 

Page 196



 
61

 

 S
et

s 
ou

t t
he

 S
co

tti
sh

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ts

 in
te

nt
io

ns
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

S
co

tla
nd

’s
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
. T

he
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 fo
r 

th
is

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 In

ve
st

m
en

t P
la

n 
ar

e 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e:

 
· 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
of

 h
ow

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

de
liv

er
ed

; 
· 

st
an

da
rd

 o
f o

ur
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

, s
uc

h 
as

 o
ur

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
ne

tw
or

k 
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
es

ta
te

; 
· 

bu
si

ne
ss

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t, 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
re

se
ar

ch
 a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 e

na
bl

in
g 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 

S
co

tla
nd

's
 w

or
kf

or
ce

; 
· 

co
-o

rd
in

at
io

n 
of

 o
ur

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 in

ve
st

m
en

t b
y 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

 a
re

a 
an

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
po

rt
fo

lio
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

se
cu

re
 e

xt
ra

 v
al

ue
 fr

om
 o

ur
 e

xi
st

in
g 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

nd
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
; a

nd
 

· 
co

-o
rd

in
at

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 a

nd
 s

ec
ur

e 
a 

m
ix

ed
 

ec
on

om
y 

an
d 

m
ix

ed
 te

nu
re

 o
f i

nv
es

tm
en

t. 
N

at
u

re
 C

o
n

se
rv

at
io

n
 &

 B
io

d
iv

er
si

ty
 

· 
W

ild
lif

e 
an

d 
C

ou
nt

ry
si

de
 A

ct
 1

98
1 

(a
s 

am
en

de
d)

 
· 

T
he

 N
at

ur
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
(S

co
tla

nd
) 

A
ct

 2
00

4 
· 

S
co

tla
nd

's
 B

io
di

ve
rs

ity
: I

t's
 in

 Y
ou

r 
H

an
ds

. A
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t o

f 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 in

 S
co

tla
nd

 (
20

04
) 

· 
T

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

(N
at

ur
al

 H
ab

ita
ts

, 
&

c.
) 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 1
99

4 
(a

s 
am

en
de

d)
  

· 
T

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

(N
at

ur
al

 H
ab

ita
ts

, 
&

c.
) 

A
m

en
dm

en
t (

S
co

tla
nd

) 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

00
7 

· 
S

co
tti

sh
 L

an
ds

ca
pe

 F
or

um
’ (

20
07

) 
S

co
tla

nd
’s

 li
vi

ng
 la

nd
sc

ap
es

 

 G
iv

es
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
to

 w
ild

lif
e 

an
d 

co
un

tr
ys

id
e 

fr
om

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

, i
nj

ur
y 

in
te

nt
io

na
l d

es
tr

uc
tio

n 
or

 s
al

e.
  

D
ut

ie
s 

ar
e 

pl
ac

ed
 o

n 
pu

bl
ic

 b
od

ie
s 

to
 fu

rt
he

r 
th

e 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
of

 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 a

nd
 s

et
s 

ou
t m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
bi

ol
og

ic
al

 a
nd

 g
eo

lo
gi

ca
l n

at
ur

al
 h

er
ita

ge
 o

f S
co

tla
nd

. 
P

ro
te

ct
s 

in
di

vi
du

al
 s

ite
s 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
es

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
on

 a
 b

ro
ad

er
 

sc
al

e.
 

A
im

s 
to

 h
al

t l
os

s 
an

d 
re

ve
rs

e 
de

cl
in

e 
of

 s
pe

ci
es

 a
nd

 h
ab

ita
ts

. 
S

pe
ci

fic
 m

ea
su

re
s 

se
t o

ut
 h

ow
 to

  
In

cl
ud

es
 m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 s

ite
s,

 h
ab

ita
ts

 a
nd

 s
pe

ci
es

. 
P

ro
m

ot
es

 g
oo

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f l

an
ds

ca
pe

s.
 

 

 T
he

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

sh
ou

ld
 a

vo
id

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 
to

 w
ild

lif
e 

an
d 

th
e 

co
un

tr
ys

id
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
pl

an
.  

T
he

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

sh
ou

ld
 r

es
to

re
, m

ai
nt

ai
n,

 
co

ns
er

ve
, p

ro
m

ot
e 

an
d 

pr
ot

ec
t b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, h

ab
ita

ts
 a

nd
 

sp
ec

ie
s.

 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 &
 H

u
m

an
 H

ea
lt

h
 

· 
A

ll 
O

ur
 F

ut
ur

es
: P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

a 
S

co
tla

nd
 w

ith
 a

n 
A

ge
in

g 
P

op
ul

at
io

n 
(2

00
7)

 
·  

S
co

tti
sh

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
R

ea
ch

in
g 

H
ig

he
r 

– 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 th

e 
S

uc
ce

ss
 o

f S
po

rt
 

21
(2

00
7)

 
· 

Le
ts

 M
ak

e 
S

co
tla

nd
 M

or
e 

A
ct

iv
e:

 A
 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
ct

iv
ity

 (
20

03
) 

· 
E

qu
al

ity
 A

ct
 2

01
0 

 P
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

si
de

rs
 h

ow
 b

es
t t

o 
re

sp
on

d 
to

 a
nd

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
a 

S
co

tla
nd

 w
ith

 a
n 

ag
ei

ng
 p

op
ul

at
io

n
. 

S
et

s 
ou

t t
he

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 a

im
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 fo

r 
sp

or
t a

nd
 p

la
ns

 fo
r 

its
 

de
liv

er
y 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n.
 

A
im

s 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 p

hy
si

ca
lly

 a
ct

iv
e 

pe
op

le
 in

 S
co

tla
nd

 s
et

tin
g 

ou
t t

ar
ge

ts
 to

 2
02

2.
 

S
et

s 
a 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
w

hi
ch

 p
ro

te
ct

s 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
fr

om
 u

nf
ai

r 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
es

 a
 fa

ir 
an

d 
m

or
e 

eq
ua

l s
oc

ie
ty

. 
S

et
s 

ou
t t

he
 k

ey
 a

ct
io

ns
 th

at
 a

re
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 g
re

en
sp

ac
e 

de
liv

er
s 

fo
r 

pe
op

le
, c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 p

la
ce

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

w
ho

le
 o

f 

 T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 a

n 
ag

ei
ng

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

in
to

 it
s 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ac

tio
ns

. 
T

he
 S

D
P

 s
ho

ul
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

. T
he

 p
la

n 
w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

so
ci

et
y 

in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

.  
T

he
 S

D
P

 s
ho

ul
d 

ta
ke

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 a

ct
io

ns
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 

de
liv

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
gr

ee
ns

pa
ce

 to
 s

ha
pe

 b
et

te
r 

pl
ac

es
 a

nd
 

in
cr

ea
se

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 li

fe
 fo

r 
th

os
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
nd

 li
vi

ng
 in

 th
e 

S
D

P
 a

re
a.

 

Page 197



 
62

 

· 
‘M

ak
in

g 
th

e 
Li

nk
s:

 g
re

en
sp

ac
e 

fo
r 

a 
m

or
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

S
co

tla
nd

’ (
20

09
) 

ur
ba

n 
S

co
tla

nd
. 

W
at

er
 

· 
W

at
er

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t (

C
on

tr
ol

le
d 

A
ct

iv
iti

es
) 

(S
co

tla
nd

) 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 

20
11

 
· 

W
at

er
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 W
at

er
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
(S

co
tla

nd
) 

A
ct

 (
W

E
W

S
) 

20
03

 
· 

T
he

 F
lo

od
 R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

(S
co

tla
nd

) 
A

ct
 2

00
9 

· 
R

iv
er

 B
as

in
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
fo

r 
S

co
tla

nd
 (

20
09

) 
· 

S
co

tti
sh

 W
at

er
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 A
ss

et
 &

 
C

ap
ac

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

(2
00

9)
 

· 
S

E
P

A
 In

di
ca

tiv
e 

F
lo

od
 M

ap
 (

20
06

) 
· 

S
E

P
A

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

P
ol

ic
y 

fo
r 

S
co

tla
nd

 v
3:

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
P

ol
ic

y 
19

 (
20

09
) 

· 
A

ct
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r 
N

itr
at

e 
V

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
Z

on
es

 (
S

co
tla

nd
) 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
00

8 
· 

O
ur

 S
ea

s 
– 

a 
sh

ar
ed

 r
es

ou
rc

e.
 H

ig
h 

Le
ve

l M
ar

in
e 

O
bj

ec
tiv

es
 (

20
09

) 
· 

M
ar

in
e 

(S
co

tla
nd

) 
A

ct
 2

01
0 

 

 P
ro

te
ct

s 
th

e 
w

at
er

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t t

ha
t i

nt
eg

ra
te

s 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

l o
f 

po
llu

tio
n,

 a
bs

tr
ac

tio
ns

, d
am

s 
an

d 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 in

 th
e 

w
at

er
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t. 

 
E

ns
ur

es
 th

at
 a

ll 
hu

m
an

 a
ct

iv
ity

 th
at

 c
an

 h
av

e 
a 

ha
rm

fu
l i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
w

at
er

 is
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d.
 

C
re

at
es

 a
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

in
 w

hi
ch

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 in

vo
lv

e 
in

 fl
oo

d 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

ed
 c

an
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
ac

tio
ns

 to
 d

el
iv

er
y  

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

an
d 

m
od

er
n 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 to

 fl
oo

d 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
D

et
ai

ls
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 fo

r 
R

iv
er

 B
as

in
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

nn
in

g 
in

 
S

co
tla

nd
. 

P
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

de
sc

rip
tio

n 
of

 S
co

tti
sh

 W
at

er
s 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
an

d 
sy

st
em

s 
fo

r 
ca

lc
ul

at
in

g 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 a

va
ila

bl
e,

 a
t t

he
 1

98
1 

w
as

te
 w

at
er

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

w
or

ks
 (

W
W

T
W

) 
an

d 
29

4 
w

at
er

 tr
ea

tm
en

t w
or

ks
 (

W
T

W
) 

se
rv

in
g 

S
co

tla
nd

. 
P

ro
vi

de
s 

an
 e

st
im

at
e 

at
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l s
ca

le
 o

f a
re

as
 a

t r
is

k 
fr

om
 r

iv
er

 
an

d 
co

as
ta

l f
lo

od
in

g 
(a

re
as

 w
ith

 a
 0

.5
%

 (
1 

in
 2

00
) 

or
 g

re
at

er
 

pr
ob

ab
ili

ty
 o

f b
ei

ng
 fl

oo
de

d 
in

 a
ny

 g
iv

en
 y

ea
r)

 a
nd

 is
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
s 

a 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

flo
od

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

oo
l.  

A
im

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 fu

tu
re

 fo
r 

S
co

tla
nd

’s
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
by

 p
ro

te
ct

in
g 

le
gi

tim
at

e 
us

es
 o

f g
ro

un
dw

at
er

. 
E

st
ab

lis
he

s 
re

vi
se

d 
ac

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 fo
r 

ni
tr

at
e 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 z

on
es

 
w

hi
ch

 a
im

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
w

at
er

 p
ol

lu
tio

n 
ca

us
ed

 b
y 

ni
tr

at
es

 fr
om

 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l s
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 p
re

ve
nt

 fu
rt

he
r 

po
llu

tio
n.

 
E

xp
re

ss
es

 o
ut

co
m

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
U

K
 m

ar
in

e 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

pi
ns

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 jo
in

t M
ar

in
e 

P
ol

ic
y 

S
ta

te
m

en
t (

M
P

S
) 

(d
ue

 fo
r 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

by
 2

01
1)

 a
nd

 w
ill

 g
ui

de
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f n
at

io
na

l a
nd

 
re

gi
on

al
 m

ar
in

e 
pl

an
s.

 
P

ro
vi

de
s 

a 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 h

el
p 

ba
la

nc
e 

co
m

pe
tin

g 
de

m
an

ds
 

on
 S

co
tla

nd
's

 s
ea

s 
an

d 
in

tr
od

uc
es

 d
ut

ie
s 

fo
r 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t o
f m

ar
in

e 
ar

ea
s,

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

of
 a

nd
 a

da
pt

at
io

n 
to

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
, m

ar
in

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

an
d 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 e

co
no

m
ic

 in
ve

st
m

en
t.

 

 T
he

 p
la

n 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
ha

t w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

ad
ve

rs
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
w

at
er

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t o

r 
ris

k 
fa

ilu
re

 o
f 

w
at

er
 b

od
ie

s 
no

t a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 a

t l
ea

st
 g

oo
d 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 s

ta
tu

s 
by

 2
01

5.
  

T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t c
re

at
e 

flo
od

 r
is

ks
 (

fr
om

 th
e 

se
a 

or
 

riv
er

s)
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
ac

tiv
el

y 
pr

om
ot

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
flo

od
 r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t  w

ith
ou

t c
on

fli
ct

in
g 

w
ith

 r
iv

er
 b

as
in

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
la

ns
. 

W
as

te
  

· 
S

co
tla

nd
’s

 Z
er

o 
W

as
te

 P
la

n 
(2

01
0)

 
 T

he
 p

la
n 

ou
tli

ne
s 

S
co

tla
nd

's
 k

ey
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 w

as
te

 
pr

ev
en

tio
n,

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f w

as
te

 s
en

t t
o 

la
nd

fil
l o

n 
th

e 
jo

ur
ne

y 
to

 a
 Z

er
o 

W
as

te
 S

co
tla

nd
. 

T
he

 p
la

n 
pr

op
os

es
 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 

S
co

tla
nd

’s
 w

as
te

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

th
es

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
w

i ll
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 th

e 
la

nd
-u

se
 p

la
nn

in
g 

sy
st

em
.  

P
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

vi
si

on
 fo

r 
S

co
tla

nd
 w

he
re

 a
ll 

w
as

te
 is

 s
ee

n 
as

 a
 

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
su

pp
or

t m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

w
as

te
 in

 th
e 

S
D

P
 

ar
ea

. 

Page 198



 
63

 

re
so

ur
ce

; W
as

te
 is

 m
in

im
is

ed
; v

al
ua

bl
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
no

t d
is

po
se

d 
of

 in
 la

nd
fil

ls
, a

nd
 m

os
t w

as
te

 is
 s

or
te

d,
 le

av
in

g 
on

ly
 li

m
ite

d 
am

ou
nt

s 
to

 b
e 

tr
ea

te
d.

 
R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 
C

ro
ss

 S
ec

to
ra

l 
· 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 

P
la

n 
20

09
 

· 
R

eg
io

na
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
20

21
 

(R
T

S
) 

(2
00

8)
  

· 
 ‘B

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 E

ne
rg

y 
D

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
V

is
io

n 
fo

r 
20

25
’ -

 T
he

 E
co

no
m

ic
 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
fo

r 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 
S

hi
re

 (
20

08
) 

· 
 

 G
ui

de
s 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 
re

gi
on

 fo
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 2
5 

ye
ar

s.
 S

et
s 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
co

nt
ex

t f
or

 A
be

rd
ee

n
 

an
d 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

ils
 L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

ns
 w

hi
ch

 in
 tu

rn
 

se
t t

he
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

la
nd

 u
se

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
S

et
s 

ou
t w

ha
t n

ee
ds

 to
 h

ap
pe

n 
ov

er
 th

e 
pe

rio
d 

to
 2

02
1 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 
tr

an
sp

or
t s

ys
te

m
 th

at
 e

ns
ur

es
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

, i
m

pr
ov

es
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 a
nd

 p
ro

te
ct

s 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t a
nd

 o
ur

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 li

fe
 in

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
. 

S
et

s 
ou

t a
 5

 y
ea

r 
lif

e 
pl

an
 id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 e
co

no
m

ic
 a

m
bi

tio
ns

 fo
r 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 

S
hi

re
. 

 T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
om

pa
tib

le
 w

ith
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

pl
an

. 
S

D
P

 s
ho

ul
d 

se
ek

 to
 in

te
gr

at
e 

w
ith

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
em

en
t t

h
e 

ai
m

s 
of

 th
e 

R
T

S
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
co

ng
es

tio
n,

 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

hu
m

an
 h

ea
lth

, t
ac

kl
in

g 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 a
nd

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t t
o 

re
du

ce
 d

ep
en

de
nc

y 
on

 c
ar

s.
 

T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
su

pp
or

t s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 e
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
. 

N
at

u
re

 C
o

n
se

rv
at

io
n

 &
 B

io
d

iv
er

si
ty

 
· 

N
or

th
 E

as
t S

co
tla

nd
 L

oc
al

 
B

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

(2
00

0)
 

· 
F

or
es

t a
nd

 W
oo

dl
an

d 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 a

nd
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

(2
00

5)
 

 E
ns

ur
es

 th
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t o
f t

he
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 in

 th
e 

no
rt

h 
ea

st
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f e

ffe
ct

iv
e,

 lo
ca

l, 
w

or
ki

ng
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

; 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 n

at
io

na
l t

ar
ge

ts
 fo

r 
sp

ec
ie

s 
an

d 
ha

bi
ta

ts
, a

s 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 in

 
th

e 
U

K
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n,

 a
re

 tr
an

sl
at

ed
 in

to
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

lo
ca

l a
ct

io
n.

 
P

ro
vi

de
s 

a 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 m
an

ag
em

en
t.

 

 T
he

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

sh
ou

ld
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

an
d 

pr
ot

ec
t b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
. 

T
he

 s
pa

tia
l s

tr
at

eg
y 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 r

es
ul

t i
n 

co
nf

lic
t w

ith
 fo

re
st

 
an

d 
w

oo
dl

an
d 

pr
io

rit
ie

s.
 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 &
 H

u
m

an
 H

ea
lt

h
 

· 
C

or
e 

P
at

hs
 a

nd
 A

cc
es

s 
S

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
fo

r 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 

 C
or

e 
P

at
hs

 P
la

ns
 a

nd
 A

cc
es

s 
S

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
lo

ok
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
th

em
es

 o
f: 

· 
G

re
en

 s
pa

ce
s 

· 
H

um
an

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 w

el
l b

ei
ng

 
·  

A
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
· 

In
cl

us
io

n 
· 

B
io

di
ve

rs
ity

 

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
w

ar
ds

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 
w

el
l b

ei
ng

 o
f t

he
 S

D
P

 a
re

a 
by

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

co
re

 p
at

hs
 a

nd
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 to
 th

e 
co

un
tr

ys
id

e 
an

d 
gr

ee
n 

pl
ac

es
. 

W
as

te
 a

n
d

 a
ir

 
· 

S
co

tla
nd

’s
 Z

er
o 

W
as

te
 P

la
n 

 
·  

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 W

as
te

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
20

10
-2

02
5 

 
· 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

20
11

 
   

 S
ee

 a
bo

ve
. T

he
 Z

er
o 

W
as

te
 P

la
n 

re
vo

ke
d 

th
e 

A
re

a 
W

as
te

 P
la

ns
. 

 T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
ai

m
s 

of
 th

e 
w

as
te

 h
ie

ra
rc

hy
 

an
d 

m
ay

 id
en

tif
y 

ne
w

 a
nd

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 r

eg
io

na
l w

as
te

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

It 
m

us
t e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

os
e 

w
as

te
-m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ac

ili
tie

s 
ca

n 
be

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 in

 a
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 m

an
ne

r 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, t

he
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

sy
st

em
s 

ar
e 

m
in

im
is

ed
 a

s 
m

uc
h 

as
 

pr
ac

tic
ab

le
. 

W
at

er
 

· 
R

iv
er

 D
ee

 C
at

ch
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

la
n 

(2
00

7)
 

 · 
R

ec
or

ds
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

te
 o

f t
he

 D
ee

 c
at

ch
m

en
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
w

at
er

 
qu

al
ity

, t
he

 ty
pe

 a
nd

 e
xt

en
t o

f h
ab

ita
ts

 a
nd

 s
pe

ci
es

 in
 th

e 

 T
he

 P
la

n 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
ac

tio
ns

 
pr

op
os

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
at

ch
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n.
 

T
he

 S
D

P
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t a
dv

er
se

ly
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

w
at

er
 

Page 199



 
64

 

· 
N

or
th

 E
as

t S
co

tla
nd

 A
re

a 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
(2

01
0)

 
· 

T
ay

 A
re

a 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
(d

ra
ft)

 

ca
tc

hm
en

t, 
an

d 
im

po
rt

an
t l

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

. 
 

· 
Id

en
tif

ie
s 

ke
y 

is
su

es
 a

nd
 p

ut
s 

fo
rw

ar
d 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
ol

ut
io

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

se
rie

s 
of

 a
ct

io
ns

. 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t c

ov
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ar

ea
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
la

ns
. 

Page 200



 
65

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.6

: 
B

as
el

in
e 

d
at

a,
 t

ar
g

et
s 

&
 t

re
n

d
s 

fo
r 

A
b

er
d

ee
n

 C
it

y 
&

 S
h

ir
e 

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.6

.1
: 

S
E

A
 T

o
p

ic
: 

A
ir

 &
 C

lim
at

ic
 F

ac
to

rs
 

S
E

A
 In

di
ca

to
r 

Q
ua

nt
ifi

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
C

om
pa

ra
to

rs
 a

nd
 ta

rg
et

s 
 

T
re

nd
s 

 
 

Is
su

es
/c

on
st

ra
in

t
s  

D
at

a 
so

ur
ce

(s
) 

 

C
ar

bo
n 

di
ox

id
e 

(C
O

2)
 

em
is

si
on

s 

S
co

tla
nd

 in
 1

99
0 

em
itt

ed
 7

0.
1 

m
t C

O
2e

 
an

d 
in

 2
00

6 
th

is
 fi

gu
re

 
ha

d 
dr

op
pe

d 
to

 5
7.

6m
t 

C
O

2e
. T

o 
m

ee
t t

he
 

in
te

rim
 ta

rg
et

 (
by

 2
02

0)
  

S
co

tla
nd

’s
 e

m
is

si
on

s 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 d

ro
p 

to
 

40
.5

m
t C

O
2e

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 –
42

%
 fr

om
 

th
e 

19
90

 b
as

el
in

e 
an

d 
–

30
%

 fr
om

 th
e 

20
06

 
fig

ur
e.

 
 A

n 
av

er
ag

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

in
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

pr
od

uc
es

 
51

75
 k

g 
of

 C
O

2 
pe

r 
an

nu
m

.  
A

n 
av

er
ag

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

in
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 
pr

od
uc

es
 6

31
8 

kg
 C

O
2 

pe
r 

an
nu

m
.  

  

T
he

 U
K

 h
as

 b
ot

h 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
l (

K
yo

to
 

P
ro

to
co

l) 
an

d 
do

m
es

tic
 

(C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

(S
co

tla
nd

) 
A

ct
 2

00
9)

 ta
rg

et
s 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
gr

ee
nh

ou
se

 g
as

 e
m

is
si

on
s.

 
 S

co
tla

nd
’s

 ta
rg

et
s 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
em

is
si

on
s 

of
 g

re
en

ho
us

e 
ga

se
s:

 
· 

A
t l

ea
st

 8
0 

pe
r 

ce
nt

 
lo

w
er

 th
an

 th
e 

ba
se

lin
e 

by
 2

05
0 

 
· 

In
te

rim
 ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
20

 o
f a

t l
ea

st
 4

2 
pe

r 
ce

nt
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 
th

e 
ba

se
lin

e 
 T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 S

co
tti

sh
 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
pr

od
uc

es
 5

,5
05

 
kg

 C
O

2 
pe

r 
an

nu
m

.  
  

O
ve

ra
ll 

gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 g

as
es

 a
re

 
de

cr
ea

si
ng

.  
La

te
st

 e
st

im
at

es
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

U
K

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t s

ug
ge

st
 th

at
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 r
el

ea
se

d 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

4.
4 

m
ill

io
n 

to
nn

es
 

of
 C

O
2 

in
 2

00
7,

 w
ith

 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

fo
r 

59
%

 a
nd

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 4

1%
. T

he
 

hi
gh

 p
er

 c
ap

ita
 e

m
is

si
on

s 
fo

r 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 r
es

ul
t f

ro
m

 h
ig

h 
em

is
si

on
s 

fr
om

 in
du

st
ria

l a
nd

 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 g

as
 u

se
rs

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

gr
ea

te
r 

tr
an

sp
or

t a
nd

 la
nd

us
e 

em
is

si
on

s.
  

O
ve

r 
th

e 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s 
th

at
 fi

gu
re

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

es
tim

at
ed

 th
e 

to
ta

ls
 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 fl
uc

tu
at

ed
 g

re
at

ly
 w

ith
 

th
e 

C
ity

 fi
gu

re
s 

sh
ow

in
g 

a 
sl

ig
ht

 
de

cl
in

e,
 a

nd
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 n
o 

cl
ea

r 
pa

tte
rn

.  
  

N
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t  
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

si
de

r 
en

er
gy

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 

an
d 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

as
 

an
 is

su
e 

as
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill
 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

ar
ea

s 
ca

rb
on

 
fo

ot
pr

in
t.  

M
at

er
ia

ls
 w

ith
 

hi
gh

 C
O

2 
le

ve
ls

 
ar

e 
st

ill
 p

op
ul

ar
 

(e
.g

. c
on

cr
et

e 
an

d 
ta

rm
ac

).
  

T
he

 r
eg

io
n 

ha
s 

a 
hi

gh
 e

ne
rg

y 
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 o
n 

fo
ss

il 
fu

el
s 

fo
r 

he
at

 a
nd

 
el

ec
tr

ic
ity

 a
nd

 
fo

r 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n.

 

S
ou

rc
e:

  
 S

co
tti

sh
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t (
20

09
) 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
P

la
n 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.s
co

tla
nd

.g
ov

.u
k/

R
es

ou
rc

e/
D

oc
/2

76
27

3/
00

82
93

4.
pd

f 
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 (
20

07
) 

S
ta

te
 o

f t
he

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

R
ep

or
t 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.a
be

rd
ee

nc
ity

.g
ov

.u
k/

nm
sr

un
tim

e/
sa

ve
a

sd
ia

lo
g.

as
p?

lID
=1

59
60

&
sI

D
=8

83
 

N
at

ur
al

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

(f
oo

tp
rin

t)
 

A
be

rd
ee

n’
s 

C
ity

 a
nn

ua
l 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 fo

ot
pr

in
t i

s 
5.

80
 g

lo
ba

l h
ec

ta
re

s 
pe

r 
pe

rs
on

 (
gh

a/
pe

rs
o n

).
 

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
’s

 a
nn

ua
l 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 fo

ot
pr

in
t i

s 
5.

64
 g

ha
/p

er
so

n.
 

T
he

 N
or

th
 E

as
t o

f S
co

tla
nd

 
ex

ce
ed

s 
S

co
tla

nd
 e

co
lo

gi
ca

l 
fo

ot
pr

in
t o

f 5
.3

7 
gl

ob
al

 
he

ct
ar

es
 p

er
 p

er
so

n.
 

  

T
he

 m
ai

n 
co

nt
rib

ut
or

s 
to

 th
e 

N
or

th
 

E
as

t’s
 e

co
lo

gi
ca

l f
oo

tp
rin

t r
em

ai
n 

en
er

gy
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n,

 fo
od

 a
nd

 
dr

in
k,

 a
nd

 tr
an

sp
or

t.  

A
be

rd
ee

n 
co

ns
um

es
 m

or
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
pe

r 
pe

rs
on

 th
an

 a
ny

 
ot

he
r 

S
co

tti
sh

 
ci

ty
 a

nd
 it

 h
as

 
th

e 
la

rg
es

t 
fo

ot
pr

in
t i

n 
S

co
tla

nd
, w

hi
ch

 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

su
st

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 (

20
07

) 
S

ta
te

 o
f t

he
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
R

ep
or

t 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.a

be
rd

ee
nc

ity
.g

ov
.u

k/
nm

sr
un

tim
e/

sa
ve

a
sd

ia
lo

g.
as

p?
lID

=1
59

60
&

sI
D

=8
83

 

Page 201



 
66

 

P
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

at
 

ris
k 

w
ith

in
 

in
la

nd
 a

nd
 

co
as

ta
l a

re
as

 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
: 

30
9 

in
la

nd
 fl

oo
dp

la
in

 
57

1 
co

as
ta

l (
be

lo
w

 5
m

 
O

D
)  

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 

2,
21

9 
in

la
nd

 fl
oo

dp
la

in
 

1,
74

3 
co

as
ta

l (
be

lo
w

 5
m

 
O

D
) 

S
co

tla
nd

: 
77

,1
91

 in
la

nd
 fl

oo
dp

la
in

 
93

,8
30

 c
oa

st
al

 (
be

lo
w

 5
m

 
O

D
)  

 C
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

st
 o

f 
S

co
tla

nd
, f

ar
 fe

w
er

 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

in
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

an
d 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 a

re
 a

t 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 r
is

k 
fr

om
 fl

oo
di

ng
.  

T
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 a

nd
 

flo
od

in
g 

in
 th

e 
N

or
th

 E
as

t i
s 

un
pr

ed
ic

ta
bl

e.
 H

ow
ev

er
 th

er
e 

m
ay

 
be

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
du

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

of
 s

to
rm

s 
an

d 
ris

in
g 

se
a 

le
ve

ls
. W

ea
th

er
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 
th

e 
ye

ar
 is

 p
re

di
ct

ed
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 lo

ng
er

 w
et

te
r 

w
in

te
rs

 
an

d 
sh

or
te

r 
dr

ie
r 

su
m

m
er

s 
w

ith
 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

flo
od

in
g.

 

T
he

re
 m

ay
 b

e 
an

 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 n
ee

d 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t 
flo

od
 d

ef
en

ce
 

sy
st

em
s.

 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f S
ci

en
ce

 a
nd

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

(2
00

5)
 F

or
es

ig
ht

 
re

po
rt

: F
ut

ur
e 

F
lo

od
in

g 
S

co
tla

nd
  

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.fo
re

si
gh

t.g
ov

.u
k/

S
co

tla
nd

/F
in

al
_S

co
tla

n
d.

pd
f 

A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

 
S

in
ce

 2
00

1 
A

ir 
qu

al
ity

 
co

nt
in

uo
us

 to
 b

e 
an

 
is

su
e 

in
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

. 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

w
as

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 a
s 

an
 A

Q
M

A
 

in
 2

00
1 

fo
r 

co
nt

in
uo

us
ly

 
ex

ce
ed

in
g 

th
e 

20
05

 
an

nu
al

 o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
le

ve
l 

fo
r 

ni
tr

og
en

 d
io

xi
de

 
(N

O
2)

 o
f 4

0 
µg

m
-3

 .I
n 

20
08

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 m

ea
n 

st
an

da
rd

 o
f N

O
2 

in
 

U
ni

on
 S

t w
as

 5
4 

m
ic

ro
gr

am
s 

pe
r 

cu
bi

c 
m

et
re

 (
µg

m
-3

) 
an

d 
in

 
M

ar
ke

t S
t 7

3 
µg

m
-3

, 
pr

in
ci

pa
lly

 fr
om

 H
G

V
s 

an
d 

bu
se

s.
  T

he
 A

Q
M

A
 

in
cl

ud
es

 M
ar

ke
t S

t, 
U

ni
on

 S
t, 

K
in

g 
S

t, 
G

ui
ld

 
S

t, 
an

d 
V

irg
in

ia
 S

t. 
A

ir 
qu

al
ity

 c
on

tin
uo

us
 to

 b
e 

an
 is

su
e 

in
to

 2
01

0.
 In

 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
st

at
io

ns
 N

O
x,

 
N

O
, P

M
10

 a
re

 n
ow

 
m

on
ito

re
d 

at
 A

nd
er

so
n 

D
riv

e,
 E

rr
ol

 P
la

ce
, 

W
el

lin
gt

on
 R

oa
d 

w
he

re
 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

 
ex

ce
ed

an
ce

s.
  

 N
O

2 
is

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

 is
su

e 
m

on
ito

re
d 

B
et

w
ee

n 
19

90
 a

nd
 2

00
6,

 
U

K
 e

m
is

si
on

s 
of

 P
M

10
 fe

ll 
by

 5
0%

. 

W
hi

le
 m

or
e 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

re
as

 a
re

 d
ec

la
re

d 
in

 th
e 

C
ity

. T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

re
as

 in
 th

e 
S

hi
re

. 
  

T
he

re
 is

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 n

ee
d 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 

en
er

gy
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 o
ur

 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 
pr

iv
at

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

, 
gr

ee
nh

ou
se

 g
as

 
em

is
si

on
s 

an
d 

he
al

th
. 

 T
ra

ffi
c 

gr
ow

th
 

m
ay

 b
e 

a 
co

ns
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

fa
ct

or
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
. 

S
co

tti
sh

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t H

ig
h 

Le
ve

l S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 
S

ta
tis

tic
s 

T
re

nd
s 

fo
r 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t (

20
10

 a
s 

am
en

de
d)

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.s

co
tla

nd
.g

ov
.u

k/
T

op
ic

s/
S

ta
tis

tic
s/

B
ro

w
s

e/
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t/T
re

nd
P

D
F

 
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

U
pd

at
in

g 
an

d 
S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t (

20
09

) 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

(2
00

5)
 L

oc
al

 A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t  

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
(2

00
6)

 U
pd

at
in

g 
an

d 
S

cr
ee

ni
ng

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t A

be
rd

ee
n:

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il  

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
(2

00
7)

 L
oc

al
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t: 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

R
ep

or
t 2

00
7.

 A
be

rd
ee

n:
 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
  

Page 202



 
67

 

in
 W

es
th

ill
, I

nv
er

ur
ie

, 
P

et
er

he
ad

, S
to

ne
ha

ve
n,

 
an

d 
M

in
tla

w
. T

he
 A

nn
ua

l 
M

ea
n 

ug
m

-3
 fo

r 
N

O
2 

in
 

20
04

 r
an

ge
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

9.
4 

(S
to

ne
ha

ve
n 

3)
 a

nd
 

34
.1

 (
In

ve
ru

rie
 1

);
 in

 
20

05
, i

t r
an

ge
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

9.
2 

(S
to

ne
ha

ve
n 

3)
 a

nd
 

26
.5

 (
In

ve
ru

rie
 1

);
 in

 
20

06
 it

 r
an

ge
d 

fr
om

 1
0 

(I
nv

er
ur

ie
 4

) 
to

 3
3 

(I
nv

er
ur

ie
 1

) 
an

d 
in

 2
01

0 
it 

is
 e

st
im

at
ed

 th
at

 it
 w

ill
 

ra
ng

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
8.

8 
(I

nv
er

ur
ie

 4
) 

an
d 

28
.1

 
(I

nv
eu

rie
 1

).
 

 
  

Page 203



 
68

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.6

.2
: 

S
E

A
 T

o
p

ic
: 

W
at

er
 

S
E

A
 In

di
ca

to
r 

Q
ua

nt
ifi

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
C

om
pa

ra
to

rs
 a

nd
 ta

rg
et

s 
T

re
nd

s 
Is

su
es

/c
on

st
ra

in
ts

 
D

at
a 

so
ur

ce
(s

) 

G
ro

un
d 

w
at

er
 

an
d 

riv
er

 le
ve

ls
 

S
co

tti
sh

 W
at

er
 a

re
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 to

 
ab

st
ra

ct
 u

p 
to

 1
45

 
m

eg
al

itr
es

 p
er

 d
ay

 
(M

LD
) 

fr
om

 th
e 

R
iv

er
 

D
ee

, h
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 
av

er
ag

e 
am

ou
nt

 ta
ke

n 
is

 a
ro

un
d 

90
M

LD
. I

t i
s 

no
t a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 th

at
 th

is
 

lic
en

se
 w

ill
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 a

bs
tr

ac
tio

n 
le

ve
l p

rio
r 

to
 2

01
4.

 
 D

at
a 

on
 g

ro
un

d 
w

at
er

 in
 

S
co

tla
nd

 w
as

 n
ot

 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 
 

B
y 

th
e 

20
80

s,
 s

um
m

er
 

pr
ec

ip
ita

tio
n 

de
cr

ea
se

s 
of

 
10

-2
0%

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
lo

w
 

em
is

si
on

s 
(G

lo
ba

l 
S

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

),
 a

nd
 2

0 -
30

%
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

hi
gh

-
em

is
si

on
s 

W
or

ld
 M

ar
ke

ts
 

sc
en

ar
io

 a
re

 p
re

di
ct

ed
 in

 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

of
 S

co
tla

nd
.  

  

· 
R

ai
nf

al
l l

ev
el

s 
ar

e 
pr

ed
ic

te
d 

to
 

de
cl

in
e 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
su

m
m

er
 

m
on

th
s,

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 a

ffe
ct

 a
 

riv
er

s 
yi

el
d 

ra
te

, b
ut

 th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

le
ss

 s
ev

er
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

no
rt

h.
 

· 
R

ai
nf

al
l i

n 
w

in
te

r 
m

on
th

s 
is

 
pr

ed
ic

te
d 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
. 

·  
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 w
at

er
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

fr
om

 in
du

st
ria

l c
on

su
m

er
s 

an
d 

fr
om

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
· 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 le

ak
ag

es
 fr

om
 p

ip
e 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

s 
it 

‘a
ge

s’
 

ho
w

ev
er

 S
co

tti
sh

 W
at

er
 c

on
tin

ue
 

to
 m

ak
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
n 

le
ak

ag
e 

re
du

ct
io

n.
 

T
he

re
 is

 a
 n

ee
d 

to
 s

ta
rt

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
w

at
er

 
ab

st
ra

ct
io

n 
by

 
in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

w
at

er
 e

ffi
ci

en
t 

te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

 
in

to
 n

ew
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

(in
du

st
ria

l a
nd

 
do

m
es

tic
) 

in
 

lig
ht

 o
f t

he
 

pr
ed

ic
te

d 
de

cr
ea

se
 in

 
su

m
m

er
 r

ai
nf

al
l. 

 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 (

20
07

) 
S

ta
te

 o
f t

he
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
R

ep
or

t 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.a

be
rd

ee
nc

ity
.g

ov
.u

k/
nm

sr
un

tim
e/

sa
ve

a
sd

ia
lo

g.
as

p?
lID

=1
59

60
&

sI
D

=8
83

 
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 S

D
P

A
 (

20
10

) 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

 P
la

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

R
ep

or
t  

 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 w

at
er

 
bo

di
es

 (
G

ro
un

d 
w

at
er

) 
 

20
10

:  
hi

gh
 s

ta
tu

s 
– 

0 
 

20
10

:  
go

od
 s

ta
tu

s 
– 

42
 

20
10

:  
m

od
er

at
e 

st
at

us
 

– 
0 

20
10

:  
po

or
 s

ta
tu

s 
– 

8 
20

10
:  

ba
d 

st
at

us
 –

 0
 

 

T
he

 W
at

er
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
D

ire
ct

iv
e 

st
at

es
 th

at
 a

ll 
w

at
er

 b
od

ie
s 

ar
e 

of
 g

oo
d 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 s

ta
tu

s,
 o

r 
si

m
ila

r 
ob

je
ct

iv
e,

 b
y 

20
15

.  
 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

12
1 

w
at

er
 

bo
di

es
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 ‘g
oo

d’
 o

r 
‘h

ig
h’

 
st

an
da

rd
s,

 r
ep

re
se

nt
in

g 
46

%
 o

f t
he

 
to

ta
l. 

34
%

 o
f w

at
er

 b
od

ie
s 

ar
e 

in
 th

e 
‘m

od
er

at
e’

 c
at

eg
or

y 
an

d 
21

%
 a

re
 o

f 
‘p

oo
r’ 

or
 ‘b

ad
’ q

ua
lit

y.
 

 

It 
is

 im
po

rt
an

t 
th

at
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

do
es

 n
ot

 
pr

ev
en

t w
at

er
 

bo
di

es
 in

 th
e 

S
D

P
 a

re
a 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
at

 
le

as
t ‘

go
od

’ 
ec

ol
og

ic
al

 s
ta

tu
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 fo
r 

th
e 

ar
ea

 to
 r

ea
ch

 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

s.
 

S
E

P
A

 (
09

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

10
) 

D
at

a 
fr

om
 R

iv
er

 B
as

in
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

S
co

tla
nd

 R
iv

er
 B

as
in

 
D

is
tr

ic
t 2

00
9  

  

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 w

at
er

 
bo

di
es

 (
C

oa
st

al
) 

20
10

:  
hi

gh
 s

ta
tu

s 
– 

6 
 

20
10

:  
go

od
 s

ta
tu

s 
– 

8 
20

10
:  

m
od

er
at

e 
st

at
us

 
– 

1 
20

10
:  

po
or

 s
ta

tu
s 

– 
0 

20
10

:  
ba

d 
st

at
us

 –
 0

 
 

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
  

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
  

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
  

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
 

Page 204



 
69

 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 w

at
er

 
bo

di
es

 
(T

ra
ns

iti
on

al
) 

20
10

: h
ig

h 
st

at
us

 –
 4

  
20

10
: g

oo
d 

st
at

us
 –

 1
 

20
10

: m
od

er
at

e 
st

at
us

 –
 

1  20
10

: p
oo

r 
st

at
us

 –
 0

 
20

10
: b

ad
 s

ta
tu

s 
– 

0 
 

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
  

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
  

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
  

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 w

at
er

 
bo

di
es

 (
Lo

ch
) 

20
10

:  
hi

gh
 s

ta
tu

s 
– 

0 
 

20
10

:  
go

od
 s

ta
tu

s 
– 

1 
20

10
:  

m
od

er
at

e 
st

at
us

 
–  

0 
20

10
:  

po
or

 s
ta

tu
s 

– 
2 

20
10

:  
ba

d 
st

at
us

 –
 1

 
 

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
  

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
  

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
  

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 w

at
er

 
bo

di
es

 (
R

iv
er

) 
20

10
:  

hi
gh

 s
ta

tu
s 

– 
5 

 
20

10
:  

go
od

 s
ta

tu
s 

– 
54

 
20

10
:  

m
od

er
at

e 
st

at
us

 
– 

87
 

20
10

:  
po

or
 s

ta
tu

s 
– 

31
 

20
10

:  
ba

d 
st

at
us

 –
 1

2 
 

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
  

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
  

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
  

S
am

e 
as

 a
bo

ve
 

Page 205



 
70

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.6

.3
: 

S
E

A
 T

o
p

ic
: 

S
o

il 
 S

E
A

 In
di

ca
to

r 
Q

ua
nt

ifi
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

C
om

pa
ra

to
rs

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
s 

T
re

nd
s 

Is
su

es
/c

on
st

ra
in

ts
 

D
at

a 
so

ur
ce

(s
) 

La
nd

 
co

nt
am

in
at

io
n 

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
st

at
ut

or
ily

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

co
nt

am
in

at
ed

 
si

te
s 

in
 A

be
rd

ee
n,

 
al

th
ou

gh
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

90
0 

po
te

nt
ia

lly
 

co
nt

am
in

at
ed

 s
ite

s,
 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 fo
r 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n.
   

 T
he

re
 a

re
 4

 s
ta

tu
to

ril
y 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
co

nt
am

in
at

ed
 

si
te

s 
in

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
. 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
C

on
ta

m
in

at
ed

 L
an

d 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
un

de
r 

re
vi

ew
.  

 In
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

, t
he

re
 

ar
e 

ot
he

r 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 
co

nt
am

in
at

ed
 s

ite
s,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

la
nd

fil
l s

ite
s,

 
fo

rm
er

 g
as

w
or

ks
, 

st
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 g
oo

ds
 

ya
rd

s,
 p

et
ro

l s
ta

tio
ns

 
an

d 
ga

ra
ge

s,
 

di
st

ill
er

ie
s,

 s
m

ith
y’

s 
an

d 
in

fil
le

d 
C

oa
st

al
. 

  

T
he

 to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 s

ite
s 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

co
nt

am
in

at
io

n 
w

ith
in

 
S

co
tla

nd
 is

 d
iff

ic
ul

t t
o 

ju
dg

e 
ac

cu
ra

te
ly

 a
s 

in
di

vi
du

al
 lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 u

se
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 
of

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t m

et
ho

ds
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, i
t i

s 
es

tim
at

ed
 

th
at

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y  

67
,0

00
 s

ite
s 

(8
2,

03
4 

he
ct

ar
es

) 
co

ul
d 

be
 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

la
nd

 
co

nt
am

in
at

io
n.

 
 

A
lth

ou
gh

 o
nl

y 
4 

co
nt

am
in

at
ed

 s
ite

s 
ar

e 
on

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 r

eg
is

te
r 

in
 th

e 
N

or
th

 E
as

t, 
th

is
 m

ay
 in

cr
ea

se
 a

s 
m

an
y 

si
te

s 
ar

e 
st

ill
 to

 b
e 

in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

. L
eg

al
 r

eg
im

e 
is

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 

si
te

s 
th

er
ef

or
e 

th
is

 p
os

iti
on

 s
ho

ul
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

. 
    

C
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 

la
nd

 p
la

ce
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 a
nd

 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

ca
l 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s 

on
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 
T

he
se

 c
on

st
ra

in
ts

 
m

ay
 d

ic
ta

te
 th

e 
ty

pe
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t: 
 th

e 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

re
m

ed
ia

l w
or

ks
 

m
ay

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
at

 a
 s

ite
 is

 o
nl

y 
su

ita
bl

e 
fo

r 
in

du
st

ria
l u

se
; t

he
 

co
st

 o
f r

em
ed

ia
l 

w
or

ks
 m

ay
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

at
 

hi
gh

 d
e n

si
ty

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
s 

th
e 

on
ly

 v
ia

bl
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 o
pt

io
n.

 
C

on
ta

m
in

at
ed

 
la

nd
 im

pa
ct

s 
on

 
th

e 
w

at
er

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t, 
i.e

. 
c o

as
ta

l s
ur

fa
ce

 
an

d 
co

as
ta

l 
w

at
er

s,
 a

nd
 th

e 
w

id
er

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
fo

r 
in

st
an

ce
 lo

ca
l 

ec
ol

og
y.

 
 In

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
s,

 th
e 

S
co

tti
sh

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
(2

00
1)

 C
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 

La
nd

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.a
be

rd
ee

nc
ity

.g
ov

.u
k/

w
eb

/fi
le

s/
P

ol
lu

tio
n/

C
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
La

nd
In

sp
ec

tio
nS

tr
at

eg
y.

pd
f  

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
(2

00
9)

 
P

ub
lic

 R
eg

is
te

r 
of

 C
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 L

an
d 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.a
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
.g

ov
.u

k/
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t
al

/s
tr

at
eg

y/
P

ub
lic

R
eg

is
te

ro
fC

on
ta

m
in

at
ed

La
nd

A
ug

20
09

.p
df

 
 S

E
P

A
 (

20
09

) 
D

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 L

an
d 

C
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n 

in
 S

co
tla

nd
: A

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

pr
og

re
ss

 2
00

0-
20

08
 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.s
ep

a.
or

g.
uk

/la
nd

/la
nd

_p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

.
as

px
 

  

Page 206



 
71

 

ex
pe

ct
s 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
au

th
or

iti
es

 to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
re

us
e 

of
 b

ro
w

nf
ie

ld
 la

nd
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
si

te
s 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

co
nt

am
in

at
io

n.
 

N
at

io
na

l p
la

nn
in

g 
po

lic
y 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 

th
e 

re
us

e 
of

 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

la
nd

 in
 

pr
ef

er
en

ce
 to

 
G

re
en

fie
ld

 la
nd

. 
H

ow
ev

er
 N

P
F

2 
re

co
gn

is
es

 th
at

 
th

e 
co

nc
en

tr
at

io
n 

of
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
us

ed
 

la
nd

 is
 n

ot
 in

 th
e 

N
or

th
 E

as
t 

th
er

ef
or

e 
a 

hi
gh

er
 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 n
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ill

 
ha

ve
 to

 b
e 

on
 

gr
ee

nf
ie

ld
 s

ite
s.

 
P

rim
e 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l 

la
nd

 (
G

ra
de

s 
1 

to
 

3.
1)

 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
’s

 p
rim

e 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l l
an

d 
is

 
co

nc
en

tr
at

ed
 in

 c
en

tr
al

 
an

d 
so

ut
he

rn
 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
. G

ra
de

 
2 

ne
ar

 L
au

re
nc

ek
irk

 
(a

pp
ro

x 
95

0h
a)

 
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

co
nt

ai
ns

 v
er

y 
lit

tle
 p

rim
e 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l 

la
nd

 (
30

0h
a)

. 
       

N
et

 lo
ss

 o
f S

co
tti

sh
 

ag
ric

ul
tu

re
 la

nd
 fr

om
 

ro
ad

s,
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 

in
du

st
ry

 h
as

 d
ou

bl
ed

 
fr

om
 5

88
ha

 in
 1

98
9 

to
 

1,
40

2h
a 

in
 2

00
3.

 

C
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 c

ou
ld

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f p

rim
e 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l l

an
d 

in
 

S
co

tla
nd

, h
ow

ev
er

 th
is

 m
ay

 c
au

se
 

co
nf

lic
ts

 w
ith

 s
ite

s 
of

 h
ig

h 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 v

al
ue

, s
en

si
tiv

e 
or

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 s
ite

s.
 

P
ot

en
tia

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
of

 c
lim

at
e 

m
ay

 
co

ns
tr

ai
n 

pr
im

e 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l l
an

d 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

.  
 P

rim
e 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l 

la
nd

 m
ay

 r
eq

ui
re

 
fu

rt
he

r 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

fr
om

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
as

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t r

is
es

 
an

d 
as

 la
nd

 fo
r 

fo
od

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

ris
es

. 

S
co

tti
sh

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
S

ta
tis

tic
s 

(2
00

5)
: E

co
no

m
ic

 
R

ep
or

t o
n 

S
co

tti
sh

 A
gr

i c
ul

tu
re

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.s

co
tla

nd
.g

ov
.u

k/
P

ub
lic

at
io

ns
/2

00
5/

06
/2

29
04

02
/0

51
21

   
 

 S
co

tti
sh

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t (

20
09

):
 T

he
 S

co
tti

sh
 S

oi
l 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.s
co

tla
nd

.g
ov

.u
k/

P
ub

lic
at

io
ns

/2
00

9/
05

/2
01

45
60

2/
6 

Page 207



 
72

 

     B
io

d
eg

ra
d

ab
le

 
M

u
n

ic
ip

al
 w

as
te

 
la

n
d

fi
lle

d
 

(t
o

n
n

es
):

 
               M

u
n

ic
ip

al
 w

as
te

 
la

n
d

fi
lle

d
 

(t
o

n
n

es
):

 
  

     A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
: 

20
04

/0
5 

– 
74

,9
27

 
20

05
/0

6 
– 

68
,9

36
 

20
06

/0
7 

– 
69

,9
31

 
20

07
/0

8 
– 

67
,3

22
 

20
08

/0
9 

– 
63

,3
33

 
20

09
/1

0 
– 

55
,6

54
 

20
10

/1
1 

- 
49

,2
77

 
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

:  
20

04
/0

5 
– 

83
,6

86
 

20
05

/0
6 

– 
81

,0
92

 
20

06
/0

7 
– 

69
,2

04
 

20
07

/0
8 

– 
70

,2
86

 
20

08
/0

9 
– 

68
,3

55
 

20
09

/1
0 

– 
65

,8
64

 
20

10
/1

1 
- 

68
,8

32
 

  A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
: 

20
05

/0
6 

– 
10

8,
15

9 
20

06
/0

7 
– 

11
0,

96
4 

20
07

/0
8 

– 
10

7,
65

8 
20

08
/0

9 
– 

10
1,

13
6 

20
09

/1
0 

– 
90

,8
00

 
20

10
/1

1 
- 

80
,5

78
 

  A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
: 

20
05

/0
6 

– 
12

9,
85

8 
20

06
/0

7 
– 

11
0,

30
3 

20
07

/0
8 

– 
10

5,
75

0 
20

08
/0

9 
– 

10
1,

74
6 

20
09

/1
0 

– 
98

,2
62

 
20

10
/1

1 
- 

 1
03

,7
71

 
  

S
co

tla
nd

’s
 Z

er
o 

W
as

te
 

P
la

n 
(2

01
0)

 a
im

s 
fo

r 
a 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
in

g 
ra

te
 o

f 7
0%

 b
y 

20
20

.  
 S

co
tl

an
d

 
      20

10
/1

1 
- 

 1
,1

03
,9

56
 

                         20
10

/1
1 

- 
1,

84
4,

33
3 

 

O
ve

r 
th

e 
la

st
 6

 y
ea

rs
 b

ot
h 

co
un

ci
ls

 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 in
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
le

ve
ls

 o
f r

ec
yc

lin
g,

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
le

ve
l f

ro
m

 1
1%

 to
 2

7%
 in

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 1

3%
 to

 3
3%

 in
 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
. T

hi
s 

pr
og

re
ss

 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

vi
ew

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f 
na

tio
na

l t
ar

ge
ts

 s
et

 w
ith

in
 

S
co

tla
nd

’s
 Z

er
o 

W
as

te
 P

la
n 

(2
01

0)
.  

 T
he

re
 w

as
 n

ot
 a

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l f

al
l i

n 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 w
as

te
 s

en
t t

o 
la

nd
fil

l i
n 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 c

om
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 fo
r 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
ye

ar
s 

un
til

 2
00

9/
10

 w
he

n 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t f

al
l. 

  

N
ot

 e
no

ug
h 

si
te

s 
fo

r 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

or
 

co
m

po
st

in
g 

bi
od

eg
ra

da
bl

e 
m

un
ic

ip
al

 w
as

te
 

(la
rg

e,
 m

ed
iu

m
 o

r 
sm

al
l s

ca
le

) 
to

 
he

lp
 th

e 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
ei

r 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

la
nd

fil
l t

ar
ge

ts
. 

 H
ou

si
ng

, s
ch

oo
ls

, 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
us

es
 (

e.
g.

 r
et

ai
l 

an
d 

of
fic

es
) 

ar
e 

of
 

in
ad

eq
ua

te
 d

es
ig

n 
to

 m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
st

or
in

g 
an

d 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

of
 w

as
te

 
to

 b
e 

re
cy

cl
ed

. 
 O

pp
os

iti
on

 fr
om

 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 e

ne
rg

y 
fr

om
 w

as
te

 p
la

nt
s.

 
 T

he
re

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
no

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l 

dr
op

 in
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 
w

as
te

 s
en

t t
o 

la
nd

fil
l w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 
ha

ve
 c

os
t 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

th
e 

C
ity

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 L

an
df

ill
 T

ax
. 

 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
D

P
A

 (
20

10
) 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 P

la
n 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
R

ep
or

t 
 S

co
tla

nd
’s

 Z
er

o 
W

as
te

 P
la

n 
(2

01
0)

 
 S

E
P

A
 (

20
09

) 
W

as
te

 D
at

a 
D

ig
es

t 1
1 

 S
E

P
A

 (
20

08
) 

W
as

te
 D

at
a 

D
ig

es
t 1

0 
 S

E
P

A
 (

20
07

) 
W

as
te

 D
at

a 
D

ig
es

t 9
 

 S
E

P
A

 (
20

06
) 

W
as

te
 D

at
a 

D
ig

es
t 8

 
 S

E
P

A
 (

20
05

) 
W

as
te

 D
at

a 
D

ig
es

t 7
 

   w
w

w
.s

ep
a.

or
g.

uk
/w

as
te

/w
as

te
_d

at
a/

si
te

_c
ap

a
ci

ty
__

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
/la

nd
fil

l_
ca

pa
ci

ty
_r

ep
or

t.a
s

px
 a

nd
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 w
as

te
 a

nn
ua

l r
ep

or
t 

w
w

w
.s

ep
a.

or
g.

uk
/w

as
te

/w
as

te
_d

at
a/

w
as

te
_d

at
a_

re
po

rt
s/

lo
ca

l_
au

th
or

ity
_a

nn
ua

l_
re

po
rt

s.
as

px
 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 w
as

te
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
: 

20
05

/0
6 

– 
23

,0
80

 
S

co
tla

nd
 

20
10

/1
1-

 1
,2

00
,2

30
 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

as
te

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
is

 
 

 

Page 208



 
73

 

re
cy

cl
ed

 
(t

o
n

n
es

):
 

               M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 w
as

te
 

co
m

p
o

st
ed

 
(t

o
n

n
es

):
 

  

20
06

/0
7 

– 
20

,0
05

 
20

07
/0

8 
– 

19
,5

27
 

20
08

/0
9 

– 
19

,5
19

 
20

09
/1

0 
– 

19
,7

28
 

20
10

/1
1 

- 
 3

7,
47

1*
 

   A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
: 

20
05

/0
6 

– 
18

,4
49

 
20

06
/0

7 
– 

26
,9

78
 

20
07

/0
8 

– 
38

,4
32

 
20

08
/0

9 
– 

38
,9

41
 

20
09

/1
0 

– 
40

,6
14

 
20

10
/1

1 
- 

 4
9,

93
3*

 
  A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

: 
20

05
/0

6 
– 

8,
82

5 
20

06
/0

7 
– 

10
,3

27
 

20
07

/0
8 

– 
11

,2
74

 
20

08
/0

9 
– 

11
,4

23
 

20
09

/1
0 

– 
13

,4
39

 
20

10
/1

1 
- 

 
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

: 
20

05
/0

6 
– 

6,
81

6 
20

06
/0

7 
– 

6,
06

1 
20

07
/0

8 
– 

9,
54

9 
20

08
/0

9 
– 

9,
68

4 
20

09
/1

0 
– 

9,
62

2 
20

10
/1

1 
– 

 
 *i

nc
lu

de
 th

os
e 

co
m

po
st

ed
 

 

 
fa

lli
ng

 in
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 in
 

co
nt

ra
st

 w
ith

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
. 

               T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

an
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f w
as

te
 

co
m

po
st

ed
 in

 b
o t

h 
di

st
ric

ts
 

 

T
o

ta
l m

u
n

ic
ip

al
 

w
as

te
 a

ri
si

n
g

 
(t

o
n

n
es

):
 

    

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
: 

20
05

/0
6 

– 
14

0,
06

4 
20

06
/0

7 
– 

14
1,

29
6 

20
07

/0
8 

– 
13

8,
45

9 
20

08
/0

9 
– 

13
2,

07
8 

20
09

/1
0 

– 
12

3,
96

6 
20

10
/1

1 
- 

11
8,

04
9 

 

  20
10

/1
1 

- 
3,

14
1,

20
2 

     

  T
hi

ng
s 

ar
e 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
 

     

 
 

Page 209



 
74

 

             In
d

u
st

ri
al

 w
as

te
 

ar
is

in
g

s 
(t

o
n

n
es

) :
 

   C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
an

d
 d

em
o

lit
io

n
 

w
as

te
 a

ri
si

n
g

s 
(t

o
n

n
es

):
 

  C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 

w
as

te
 a

ri
si

n
g

s 
(t

o
n

n
es

):
 

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
: 

20
05

/0
6 

– 
15

5,
12

3 
20

06
/0

7 
– 

14
3,

34
2 

20
07

/0
8 

– 
15

3,
73

1 
20

08
/0

9 
– 

15
0,

37
2 

20
09

/1
0 

– 
15

1,
01

0 
20

10
/1

1 
- 

 1
54

,1
67

 
   N

or
th

 E
as

t S
co

tla
nd

 
 20

05
 –

 3
00

,0
00

 
20

06
 –

 4
20

,0
00

 
20

07
 –

 4
30

,0
00

 
20

08
 -

 3
15

,5
25

 
20

09
 –

 2
26

,3
26

 
 20

05
 –

 6
21

,2
54

 
20

06
 –

 4
93

,5
90

 
20

07
 -

 5
26

,0
13

 
20

08
 -

 4
37

,1
46

 
20

09
 –

 4
48

,6
02

 
 20

05
 –

 7
10

,0
00

 
20

06
 –

 5
80

,0
00

 
20

07
 –

 6
50

,0
00

 
20

08
 -

 6
72

,9
86

 
20

09
 –

 4
80

,2
61

 

           S
co

tla
nd

 
 20

05
 –

 2
,3

50
,0

00
 

20
06

 –
 2

,7
20

,0
00

 
20

07
 -

 2
,7

60
,0

00
 

20
08

 -
 2

,2
06

,0
17

 
20

09
 –

 1
,8

18
,3

43
 

 20
05

 –
 6

,4
12

,3
78

 
20

06
 –

 6
,0

10
,1

93
 

20
07

 -
 6

,2
12

,8
57

 
20

08
 -

 5
,4

92
,1

58
 

20
09

 -
 8

,1
25

,3
88

 
 20

05
 –

 6
,0

60
,0

00
 

20
06

 –
 4

,9
20

,0
00

 
20

07
 -

 5
,3

30
,0

00
 

20
08

 -
 5

,6
00

,6
47

 
20

09
 –

 4
,7

47
,2

14
 

           A
t b

ot
h 

re
gi

on
al

 a
nd

 n
at

io
na

l l
ev

el
 

th
er

e 
w

er
e 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 in

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 

of
 C

&
D

 w
as

te
 a

nd
 C

om
m

er
ci

al
 

w
as

te
 b

ut
 th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 in

du
st

ria
l w

as
te

. 
H

ow
ev

er
, t

hi
s 

po
si

tio
n 

re
ve

rs
ed

 in
 

20
09

. 

W
as

te
 c

ap
ac

ity
  

A
nn

ua
l c

ap
ac

ity
 

(T
on

ne
s)

 
   Q

ua
nt

ity
 o

f w
as

te
 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 (
to

nn
es

) 
     

N
or

th
 e

as
t 

20
07

 -
 3

,8
45

,3
06

 
20

08
 -

 3
,7

41
,9

77
 

20
09

 -
 3

,5
00

,3
70

* 
20

10
 -

 3
,5

16
,4

94
* 

 20
07

 -
  3

,8
99

,2
60

 
20

08
 -

  1
,7

48
,9

64
 

20
09

 -
  1

,4
64

,2
47

* 
20

10
 -

  1
,4

09
,2

72
* 

 * 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 
S

hi
re

 to
ta

l 

S
co

tla
nd

  
2 0

07
 -

 3
9,

98
7,

61
3 

20
08

 -
 3

7,
84

3,
49

0 
20

09
 -

 3
8,

02
2,

36
7 

 
20

10
 -

 3
8,

00
9,

04
5 

 
 20

07
 -

 1
6,

39
2,

33
5 

20
08

 -
 1

7,
68

4,
06

4 
20

09
 -

 1
4,

02
3,

40
0 

 
20

10
 -

  1
5,

96
6,

12
9 

 
  

 
 

w
w

w
.s

ep
a.

or
g.

uk
/w

as
te

/w
as

te
_d

at
a/

si
te

_c
ap

a
ci

ty
__

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
/n

at
io

na
l_

ca
pa

ci
ty

_r
ep

or
t 

s.
as

px
 a

nd
 la

nd
fil

l c
ap

ac
ity

 r
ep

or
ts

 -
 

Page 210



 
75

 

La
nd

fil
l c

ap
ac

ity
 

 In
er

t 
w

as
te

 
L

an
d

fi
lle

d
 

  In
er

t  
la

n
d

fi
ll 

ca
p

ac
it

y 
 N

o
n

 
h

az
ar

d
o

u
s 

la
n

d
fi

lle
d

 
 N

o
n

 
h

az
ar

d
o

u
s 

la
n

d
fi

ll 
ca

p
ac

it
y  

    

N
or

th
ea

st
 

20
07

 -
 1

64
,8

24
  

20
08

 -
 7

7,
06

7 
20

09
 -

 4
1,

86
7*

 
20

10
 -

 2
6,

07
7*

  
 20

07
 -

 2
,2

26
,9

50
  

20
08

 -
 2

,5
97

,1
85

 
20

09
 -

 2
,5

56
,6

37
* 

20
10

 -
 2

,5
24

,1
56

  
 20

07
 -

 6
06

,9
99

  
20

08
 -

 5
52

,7
50

 
20

09
 -

  4
51

,0
01

**
 

20
10

 -
 3

83
,8

99
**

 
 20

07
 -

 7
,3

83
,1

67
 

20
08

 -
 6

,7
82

,6
74

 
20

09
 -

 2
,7

43
,0

62
 *

* 
20

10
 -

 6
,6

51
,3

49
 *

* 
 * 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 d

at
a 

**
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 
S

hi
re

 to
ta

l 
 

S
co

tla
nd

 
20

07
 -

 5
18

,8
99

 
20

08
 -

 4
53

,9
90

 
20

09
 -

 2
95

,8
95

  
20

10
 -

 3
18

,3
50

  
 20

07
 -

 9
,5

70
,9

31
 

20
08

 -
 1

0,
86

7,
34

0 
20

09
 -

  7
,1

81
,8

75
  

20
10

 -
  1

3,
60

9,
13

5 
 

 20
07

 -
  4

,8
94

,9
35

  
20

08
 -

  4
,5

41
,5

36
  

20
09

 -
 4

,1
10

,4
80

  
20

10
 -

  4
,0

43
,4

51
  

 20
07

 -
 6

2,
30

2,
80

6 
20

08
 -

 7
0,

19
2,

05
9 

 
20

09
 -

  6
5,

61
9,

91
0 

 
20

10
 -

 6
3,

97
7,

09
7 

 
  

 
 

w
w

w
.s

ep
a.

or
g.

uk
/w

as
te

/w
as

te
_d

at
a/

si
te

_c
ap

a
ci

ty
__

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
/n

at
io

na
l_

ca
pa

ci
ty

_r
ep

or
t 

s.
as

px
 a

nd
 la

nd
fil

l c
ap

ac
ity

 r
ep

or
ts

 -
 

P
ea

t s
oi

ls
 

4 
ty

pe
s 

of
 p

ea
ty

 s
oi

ls
 

 
· 

B
la

nk
et

 p
ea

t  
· 

P
ea

ty
 p

od
so

ls
 

· 
P

ea
ty

 g
le

ys
 

· 
O

rg
an

ic
 s

oi
ls

 
ric

h 
in

 p
ea

t 

W
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f t

he
 r

es
t 

of
 S

co
tla

nd
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 s

ee
m

 to
 

be
 a

t t
he

 fr
in

ge
s 

of
 p

ea
t 

so
ils

 

B
la

n
ke

t 
p

ea
t 

is
 

m
od

er
at

el
y 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 

to
 

th
e 

so
ut

hw
es

t 
of

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 a

nd
 w

ith
 a

 
fe

w
 

do
ts

 
in

 
th

e 
no

rt
he

as
t 

of
 

th
e 

re
gi

on
 

P
ea

ty
 p

o
d

zo
l 

is
 d

en
se

ly
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 

to
 t

he
 s

ou
th

w
es

t 
of

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 

an
d 

S
hi

re
 a

nd
 w

ith
 a

 fe
w

 d
ot

s 
in

 th
e 

no
rt

he
as

t o
f t

he
 r

eg
io

n  
 P

ea
ty

 g
le

ys
 i

s 
sp

ar
se

ly
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 

to
 t

he
 s

ou
th

w
es

t 
of

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 

an
d 

S
hi

re
 a

nd
 w

ith
 a

 fe
w

 d
ot

s 
in

 th
e 

no
rt

he
as

t o
f t

he
 r

eg
io

n  
 O

rg
an

ic
 

so
ils

 
ri

ch
 

in
 

p
ea

t 
is

 
m

od
er

at
el

y 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 
to

 
th

e 
so

ut
hw

es
t 

of
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 

an
d 

B
ec

au
se

 o
f t

he
 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

pe
at

 a
nd

 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t m
us

t 
be

 d
ire

ct
ed

 a
w

ay
 

fr
om

 p
ea

t s
oi

ls
  

w
w

w
.m

ac
au

la
y.

ac
.u

k 

Page 211



 
76

 

S
hi

re
 

an
d 

w
ith

 a
 f

ew
 d

ot
s 

in
 t

he
 

no
rt

he
as

t o
f t

he
 r

eg
io

n 
  

S
oi

l E
ro

si
on

  
F

ro
m

 B
er

w
ic

k 
to

 
A

be
rd

ee
n,

 th
e 

co
as

tli
ne

 
is

 e
ro

di
ng

, b
ut

 is
 s

ta
bl

e 
w

he
re

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
ro

ck
y 

co
as

ts
 o

r 
co

as
ta

l 
de

fe
nc

es
. 

F
ro

m
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

to
 

In
ve

rn
es

s 
th

e 
co

as
tli

ne
 

is
 la

rg
el

y 
er

od
in

g,
 b

ut
 

pa
rt

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

re
pl

en
is

he
d 

w
ith

 s
an

d 
an

d 
gr

av
el

 fr
om

 la
rg

er
 

riv
er

s.
  

 

T
he

 n
or

th
 o

f S
co

tla
nd

 is
 

m
os

tly
 s

ta
bl

e 
w

ith
 li

ttl
e 

er
os

io
n,

 b
ut

 s
ou

th
 o

f 
M

al
la

ig
, t

ow
ar

ds
 C

ar
lis

le
, 

th
e 

co
as

tli
ne

 is
 

pr
ed

om
in

an
tly

 e
ro

di
ng

 
bu

t s
ta

bl
e 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

ro
ck

y 
co

as
ts

 o
r 

co
as

ta
l d

ef
en

ce
s.

 
P

re
ci

pi
ta

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

gr
ea

te
r  

in
 th

e 
w

es
t d

ue
 to

 
th

e 
w

es
t-

ea
st

 
pr

ec
ip

ita
tio

n 
gr

ad
ie

nt
. 

 

T
he

 c
oa

st
lin

e 
is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 

er
od

in
g 

al
on

g 
th

e 
ea

st
. 

A
ut

um
n/

W
in

te
r 

ra
in

fa
ll 

is
 p

re
di

ct
ed

 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

, g
iv

in
g 

ris
e 

to
 w

in
te

r 
st

or
m

s 
an

d 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

ru
no

ff 
an

d 
(w

in
d 

an
d 

w
at

er
) 

er
os

io
n.

 
U

pl
an

d 
sc

he
m

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 w

in
d 

fa
rm

 
ac

ce
ss

 r
oa

ds
 a

nd
 r

ec
re

at
io

n 
tr

ac
ks

 
(e

.g
. m

ou
nt

ai
n 

bi
ki

ng
) 

on
 s

te
ep

 la
nd

 
ca

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 s

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 r
un

of
f 

an
d 

le
ad

 to
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t s
oi

l l
os

s 
(e

.g
. 

gu
lli

es
).

 

C
oa

st
al

 e
ro

si
on

 
m

os
tly

 w
he

re
 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 r
oc

ks
 

or
 c

oa
st

al
 

de
fe

nc
es

 
In

cr
ea

se
 s

ilt
in

g 
of

 
riv

er
s 

fr
om

 fl
uv

ia
l 

flo
od

in
g.

 
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 s
oi

l 
er

os
io

n 
fr

om
 w

in
d 

an
d 

w
at

er
, w

hi
ch

 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 

ex
ac

er
ba

te
d 

by
 

ba
d 

la
nd

 u
se

 
pr

ac
tic

es
, s

uc
h 

as
 

lo
ca

tin
g 

tr
ac

ks
/a

cc
es

s 
ro

ad
s 

on
 s

te
ep

/ 
up

la
nd

 a
re

as
. 

In
cr

ea
si

ng
 u

se
 o

f 
m

ot
or

is
ed

 
ve

hi
cl

es
 o

n 
sa

nd
 

du
ne

s 
is

 
co

nt
rib

ut
in

g 
to

 
co

as
ta

l e
ro

si
on

. 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 (

20
07

) 
S

ta
te

 o
f t

he
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t R

ep
or

t 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.a

be
rd

ee
nc

ity
.g

ov
.u

k/
nm

sr
un

tim
e/

sa
ve

as
di

al
og

.a
sp

?l
ID

=1
59

60
&

sI
D

=8
83

 
  S

E
P

A
 (

20
06

) 
S

ta
te

 o
f S

co
tla

nd
's

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

R
ep

or
t 2

00
6 

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.s

ep
a.

or
g.

uk
/s

ci
en

ce
_a

nd
_r

es
ea

rc
h

/d
at

a_
an

d_
re

po
rt

s/
st

at
e_

of
_t

he
_e

nv
iro

nm
en

t.
as

px
 

 

 

Page 212



 
77

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.6

.4
: 

S
E

A
 T

o
p

ic
: 

B
io

d
iv

er
si

ty
 (

n
at

u
ra

l h
er

it
ag

e 
d

es
ig

n
at

io
n

s)
 

S
E

A
 In

d
ic

at
o

r 
Q

u
an

ti
fi

ed
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
ar

at
o

rs
 a

n
d

 
ta

rg
et

s 
T

re
n

d
s 

Is
su

es
/ c

o
n

st
ra

in
ts

 
D

at
a 

so
u

rc
e(

s)
 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
na

tu
ra

l h
er

ita
ge

 
de

si
gn

at
io

ns
 

(R
am

sa
r)

 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 –

  
si

te
s 

– 
3 

H
ec

ta
re

s 
- 

10
51

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

  
si

te
 –

 0
  

he
ct

ar
e 

- 
0 

 
 

T
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t o

f t
he

 
no

rt
h 

ea
st

 is
 a

n 
im

po
rt

an
t 

re
so

ur
ce

 a
nd

 is
 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 in

te
rn

at
io

na
lly

 
fo

r 
its

 v
al

ue
. H

ow
ev

er
, 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 a
nd

 h
ab

ita
ts

 
ca

n 
be

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 h
ar

m
fu

l e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 s

o 
th

e 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
al

lo
ca

tio
ns

 th
at

 r
es

ul
t 

fr
om

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
la

n 
m

us
t 

fo
cu

s 
on

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

na
tu

ra
l, 

bu
ilt

 
an

d 
cu

ltu
ra

l a
ss

et
s.

  
T

he
re

 a
re

 m
an

y 
na

tu
re

 
de

si
gn

at
io

ns
 o

f 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
l, 

na
tio

na
l a

nd
 

lo
ca

l i
m

po
rt

an
ce

 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

re
gi

on
 th

at
 

m
us

t b
e 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

ed
. 

 N
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t h
as

 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
pu

t 
pr

es
su

re
 o

n 
bu

ilt
, n

at
ur

al
 

an
d 

cu
ltu

ra
l s

ite
s,

 
co

ns
eq

ue
nt

ly
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t m

us
t b

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 p

la
nn

ed
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

lo
ss

 o
r 

da
m

ag
e 

to
 th

es
e 

im
po

rt
an

t a
ss

et
s.

 It
 is

 
im

po
rt

an
t t

o 
no

te
 th

at
 a

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 s
ite

 m
ay

 b
e 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
by

 m
or

e 
th

an
 

on
e 

de
si

gn
at

io
n.

   

S
ou

rc
e:

 S
N

H
 2

00
9 

 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
na

tu
ra

l h
er

ita
ge

 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 –
  

si
te

s 
– 

8 
 

 
 

S
ou

rc
e:

 S
N

H
 2

00
9 

 

Page 213



 
78

 

de
si

gn
at

io
ns

 
(S

pe
ci

al
 A

re
as

 o
f 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
(S

A
C

))
 

H
ec

ta
re

s 
- 

55
45

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

  
si

te
 –

 1
  

he
ct

ar
e 

- 
15

5 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

na
tu

ra
l h

er
ita

ge
 

de
si

gn
at

io
ns

 
(S

pe
ci

al
 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

A
re

as
 

(S
P

A
) 

 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 –

  
si

te
s 

– 
7 

H
ec

ta
re

s 
- 

22
27

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

  
si

te
 –

 0
  

he
ct

ar
e 

- 
0 

 
 

 
S

ou
rc

e:
 S

N
H

 2
00

9 
 

N
at

io
na

l n
at

ur
al

 
he

rit
ag

e 
de

si
gn

at
io

ns
 -

 
S

ite
s 

of
 S

pe
ci

al
 

S
ci

en
tif

ic
 In

te
re

st
 

(S
S

S
I)

 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 –

  
si

te
s 

– 
69

 
H

ec
ta

re
s 

- 
15

,6
55

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

  
si

te
 –

 4
  

he
ct

ar
e 

- 
47

 

 
 

 
S

ou
rc

e:
 S

N
H

 2
00

9 
 

N
at

io
na

l n
at

ur
al

 
he

rit
ag

e 
de

si
gn

at
io

ns
 

N
at

io
na

l N
at

ur
e 

R
es

er
ve

 (
N

N
R

) 
 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 –

  
si

te
s 

– 
2 

H
ec

ta
re

s 
- 

10
72

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

  
si

te
 –

 0
  

he
ct

ar
e 

- 
0 

 
 

 
S

ou
rc

e:
 S

N
H

 2
00

9 
 

Lo
ca

l n
at

ur
al

 
he

rit
ag

e 
de

si
gn

at
io

ns
 -

 
S

ite
s 

of
 In

te
re

st
 o

f 
N

at
ur

al
 S

ci
en

ce
 

(S
IN

C
S

) 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 –

  
si

te
s 

– 
79

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

  
si

te
 –

 1
6 

 

 
 

 
S

ou
rc

e:
 S

N
H

 2
00

9 
 

Lo
ca

l n
at

ur
al

 
he

rit
ag

e 
de

si
gn

at
io

ns
 

Lo
ca

l N
at

ur
e 

R
es

er
ve

 (
LN

R
) 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 –

  
si

te
s 

– 
2 

H
ec

ta
re

s 
- 

28
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
  

si
te

 –
 4

 
he

ct
ar

e 
- 

12
6 

 
 

 
S

ou
rc

e:
 S

N
H

 2
00

9 
 

Lo
ca

l n
at

ur
al

 
he

rit
ag

e 
de

si
gn

at
io

ns
 -

 
S

co
tti

sh
 W

ild
lif

e 
T

ru
st

 R
es

er
ve

s 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 –

  
si

te
s 

– 
4 

H
ec

ta
re

s 
– 

N
/A

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

  
si

te
 –

 0
 

he
ct

ar
e 

– 
N

/A
 

 
 

 
S

ou
rc

e:
 S

N
H

 2
00

9 
 

Lo
ca

l n
at

ur
al

 
he

rit
ag

e 
de

si
gn

at
io

ns
  -

 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 –

  
si

te
s 

– 
3 

H
ec

ta
re

s 
– 

N
/A

 

 
 

 
S

ou
rc

e:
 S

N
H

 2
00

9 
 

Page 214



 
79

 

R
S

P
B

 R
es

er
ve

s 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

  
si

te
 –

 0
 

he
ct

ar
e 

– 
N

/A
 

Lo
ca

l n
at

ur
al

 
he

rit
ag

e 
de

si
gn

at
io

ns
 -

 
D

is
tr

ic
t W

ild
lif

e 
S

ite
 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 –

  
si

te
s 

– 
0 

H
ec

ta
re

s 
– 

N
/A

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

  
si

te
 –

 7
0 

he
ct

ar
e 

– 
N

/A
 

 
 

 
S

ou
rc

e:
 S

N
H

 2
00

9 
 

Lo
ca

l n
at

ur
al

 
he

rit
ag

e 
de

si
gn

at
io

ns
 -

 
A

nc
ie

nt
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 –

  
si

te
s 

– 
2,

58
4 

H
ec

ta
re

s 
- 

45
,0

00
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
  

si
te

 –
 1

40
 

he
ct

ar
e 

– 
N

/A
 

 
 

 
S

ou
rc

e:
 S

N
H

 2
00

9 
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 

pu
bl

ic
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
in

 u
rb

an
 a

nd
 r

ur
al

 
ar

ea
s  

T
he

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 

au
di

t i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 3

47
1 

he
ct

ar
es

 o
f o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
(n

ot
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
iv

at
e 

ga
rd

en
s 

or
 s

ite
s 

un
de

r 
0.

2 
he

ct
ar

es
).

 T
he

 
qu

al
ity

 o
f o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
va

rie
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
ci

ty
 

w
ith

 p
ub

lic
 p

ar
ks

 a
nd

 
ga

rd
en

s 
ra

tin
g 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t a

nd
 a

llo
tm

en
ts

 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
 a

m
en

ity
 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
 s

co
rin

g 
th

e 
lo

w
es

t r
at

in
g.

  
 D

at
a 

fo
r 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
ils

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

 
A

ud
it 

w
as

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

 
T

he
 p

oo
re

st
 q

ua
lit

y 
pa

rk
s 

an
d 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
s 

te
nd

 to
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
pr

io
rit

y 
ar

ea
s.

  I
t i

s 
m

or
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
 w

ith
in

 
de

ns
el

y 
po

pu
la

te
d 

ar
ea

s.
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
re

ss
ur

e 
to

 
bu

ild
 o

n 
ur

ba
n 

op
en

 
sp

ac
es

.  
 D

ev
el

op
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

m
ay

 r
eq

ui
re

 to
 b

e 
so

ug
ht

 
fo

r 
br

ow
nf

ie
ld

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 to

 a
ss

is
t i

n 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e.
 

 R
ev

is
ed

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 c
ou

ld
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f m

or
e 

us
ef

ul
, p

ub
lic

ly
 d

es
ira

bl
e 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 ty
pe

s 
of

 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

, s
uc

h 
as

 
na

tu
ra

l a
re

as
, g

re
en

 
co

rr
id

or
s,

 p
la

y 
sp

ac
es

 
an

d 
al

lo
tm

en
ts

. T
hi

s 
de

ta
il 

is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

fo
rw

ar
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

lo
ca

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
la

n 
an

d 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 g
ui

da
nc

e.
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
(2

01
0)

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

 
A

ud
it  

Page 215



 
80

 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 li

fe
 in

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 d

ep
riv

ed
 

ar
ea

s 

T
he

 2
00

9 
S

co
tti

sh
 

In
de

x 
of

 M
ul

tip
le

 
D

ep
riv

at
io

n 
(S

IM
D

) 
fo

un
d 

th
at

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
la

n 
ar

ea
 

ha
s 

42
 d

at
az

on
es

 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

as
 th

e 
20

%
 

m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

S
co

tti
sh

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t, 

re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

7.
5%

 o
f 

th
e 

to
ta

l.  
 D

ep
riv

at
io

n 
is

 
co

nc
en

tr
at

ed
 in

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 w
ith

 
13

%
 o

f a
ll 

da
ta

zo
ne

s 
be

in
g 

cl
as

si
fie

d 
as

 in
 

th
e 

m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 2
0%

, 
w

hi
le

 a
lth

ou
gh

 o
nl

y 
2%

 
of

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 is

 in
 

th
is

 g
ro

up
, t

he
se

 a
re

 
co

nc
en

t r
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
as

ta
l t

ow
ns

 o
f 

F
ra

se
rb

ou
rg

h 
an

d 
P

et
er

he
ad

. I
n 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
th

e 
zo

ne
s 

ar
e 

si
tu

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
N

or
th

 a
nd

 S
ou

th
 o

f t
he

 
ci

ty
.  

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 h

as
 m

os
t 

of
 it

s 
da

ta
zo

ne
s 

in
 th

e 
le

as
t d

ep
riv

ed
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 
S

IM
D

 r
an

ks
.  

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 h

as
 

S
co

tla
nd

’s
 le

as
t d

ep
riv

ed
 

da
ta

zo
ne

 in
 B

an
ch

or
y.

 
 T

he
 2

5%
 m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 

da
ta

zo
ne

s 
in

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

ll 
ra

nk
 in

 th
e 

30
%

 
m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 n

at
io

na
lly

. 

 
P

oo
r 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

. 
C

en
tr

al
is

at
io

n 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

ha
s 

an
d 

w
ill

 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 a
ffe

ct
 

m
ar

gi
na

lis
ed

 a
re

as
.  

P
oc

ke
ts

 o
f d

ep
riv

at
io

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
lo

w
 jo

b 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 in

co
m

e 
co

ul
d 

be
 a

dv
er

se
ly

 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

pe
op

le
’s

 m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
.  

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
D

P
A

 (
20

10
) 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 P

la
n 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
R

ep
or

t 
 

S
po

rt
 a

nd
 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 a

re
as

 
of

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ne

ed
 

  

A
be

rd
ee

n 
an

d 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 b
ot

h 
re

qu
ire

 s
po

rt
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ra
ng

in
g 

fr
om

 
ba

dm
in

to
n 

co
ur

ts
 a

nd
 

go
lf 

co
ur

se
s 

to
 

sw
im

m
in

g 
po

ol
s 

 
P

os
iti

ve
 s

te
ps

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

m
ad

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ev
er

yo
ne

 h
as

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 s

po
rt

, l
ei

su
re

 a
nd

 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 h

ow
ev

er
 

lim
ite

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

. 

Lo
ca

l f
ac

ili
tie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

ns
 

al
th

ou
gh

 if
 r

eg
io

na
l 

sp
or

tin
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
es

e 
m

ay
 

co
m

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
S

D
P

. 
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
(2

00
2)

 A
ct

iv
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
20

02
-2

00
7:

 A
 s

po
rt

, r
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
ct

iv
ity

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

(2
00

5)
 S

po
rt

s 
F

ac
ili

ty
 

S
tu

dy
 U

pd
at

ed
 R

ep
or

t 
 

 

Page 216



 
81

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.6

.5
: 

H
u

m
an

 H
ea

lt
h

 
 S

E
A

 In
d

ic
at

o
r 

Q
u

an
ti

fi
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
C

o
m

p
ar

at
o

rs
 a

n
d

 
ta

rg
et

s 
T

re
n

d
s 

Is
su

es
/ c

o
n

st
ra

in
ts

 
D

at
a 

so
u

rc
e(

s)
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 

pu
bl

ic
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
in

 u
rb

an
 a

nd
 r

ur
al

 
ar

ea
s 

T
he

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

ud
it 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
34

71
 h

ec
ta

re
s 

of
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
(n

ot
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
pr

iv
at

e 
ga

rd
en

s 
or

 s
ite

s 
un

de
r 

0.
2 

he
ct

ar
es

).
 T

he
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 v
ar

ie
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
ci

ty
 w

ith
 

pu
bl

ic
 p

ar
ks

 a
nd

 g
ar

de
ns

 
ra

tin
g 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t a

nd
 

al
lo

tm
en

ts
 a

nd
 b

us
in

es
s 

am
en

ity
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
sc

or
in

g 
th

e 
lo

w
es

t r
at

in
g.

  
 D

at
a 

fo
r 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
ils

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

 
A

ud
it 

w
as

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

 
T

he
 p

oo
re

st
 q

ua
lit

y 
pa

rk
s 

an
d 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
s 

te
nd

 to
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
pr

io
rit

y 
ar

ea
s.

  I
t i

s 
m

or
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
 w

ith
in

 
de

ns
el

y 
po

pu
la

te
d 

ar
ea

s.
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
re

ss
ur

e 
to

 b
ui

ld
 o

n 
ur

ba
n 

op
en

 
sp

ac
es

.  
 D

ev
el

op
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

m
ay

 r
eq

ui
re

 to
 b

e 
so

ug
ht

 fo
r 

br
ow

nf
ie

ld
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 to
 a

ss
is

t 
in

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e.

 
 R

ev
is

ed
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
 c

ou
ld

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f m
or

e 
us

ef
ul

, p
ub

lic
ly

 
de

si
ra

bl
e 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 
ty

pe
s 

of
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 

su
ch

 a
s 

na
tu

ra
l a

re
as

, 
gr

ee
n 

co
rr

id
or

s,
 p

la
y 

sp
ac

es
 a

nd
 a

llo
tm

en
ts

. 
T

hi
s 

de
ta

il 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 
be

 ta
ke

n 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

la
n  

an
d 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 

gu
id

an
ce

. 
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
(2

01
0)

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

 
A

ud
it 

Page 217



 
82

 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 li

fe
 in

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 d

ep
riv

ed
 

ar
ea

s 

T
he

 2
00

9 
S

co
tti

sh
 In

de
x 

of
 M

ul
tip

le
 D

ep
riv

at
io

n 
(S

IM
D

) 
fo

un
d 

th
at

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
 a

re
a 

ha
s 

42
 

da
ta

zo
ne

s 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

as
 

th
e 

20
%

 m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 
by

 th
e 

S
co

tti
sh

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t, 
re

pr
es

en
tin

g 
7.

5%
 o

f t
he

 
to

ta
l.  

 D
ep

riv
at

io
n 

is
 

co
nc

en
tr

at
ed

 in
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 w

ith
 1

3%
 

of
 a

ll 
da

ta
zo

ne
s 

be
in

g 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

as
 in

 th
e 

m
os

t 
de

pr
iv

ed
 2

0%
, w

hi
le

 
al

th
ou

gh
 o

nl
y 

2%
 o

f 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 is
 in

 th
is

 
gr

ou
p,

 th
es

e 
ar

e 
co

nc
en

tr
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
as

ta
l t

ow
ns

 o
f 

F
ra

se
rb

ou
rg

h 
an

d 
P

et
er

he
ad

. I
n 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
th

e 
zo

ne
s 

ar
e 

si
tu

at
ed

 in
 

th
e 

N
or

th
 a

nd
 S

ou
th

 o
f 

th
e 

ci
ty

.  

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 h

as
 m

os
t 

of
 it

s 
da

ta
zo

ne
s 

in
 th

e 
le

as
t d

ep
riv

ed
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 
S

IM
D

 r
an

ks
.  

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 h

as
 

S
co

tla
nd

’s
 le

as
t d

ep
riv

ed
 

da
ta

zo
ne

 in
 B

an
ch

or
y.

 
 T

he
 2

5%
 m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 

da
ta

zo
ne

s 
in

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

ll 
ra

nk
 in

 th
e 

30
%

 
m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 n

at
io

na
lly

. 

 
P

oo
r 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

. 
C

en
tr

al
is

at
io

n 
of

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

ha
s 

an
d 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 

af
fe

ct
 m

ar
gi

na
lis

ed
 

ar
ea

s.
 

P
oc

ke
ts

 o
f d

ep
riv

at
io

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
lo

w
 jo

b 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 

in
co

m
e 

co
ul

d 
be

 
ad

ve
rs

el
y 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
pe

op
le

’s
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
. 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
D

P
A

 (
20

10
) 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 P

la
n 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
R

ep
or

t 
 

S
po

rt
 a

nd
 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 a

re
as

 
of

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ne

ed
 

  

A
be

rd
ee

n 
an

d 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 b
ot

h 
re

qu
ire

 s
po

rt
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ra
ng

in
g 

fr
om

 b
ad

m
in

to
n 

co
ur

ts
 a

nd
 g

ol
f c

ou
rs

es
 

to
 s

w
im

m
in

g 
po

ol
s 

 
P

os
iti

ve
 s

te
ps

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

m
ad

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ev
er

yo
ne

 h
as

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 s

po
rt

, l
ei

su
re

 a
nd

 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 h

ow
ev

er
 

lim
ite

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

. 

Lo
ca

l f
ac

ili
tie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
P

la
ns

 a
lth

ou
gh

 if
 

re
gi

on
al

 s
po

rt
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ar
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

es
e 

m
ay

 c
om

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
S

D
P

. 
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
(2

00
2)

 A
ct

iv
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
20

02
-2

00
7:

 A
 s

po
rt

, r
ec

re
at

io
n 

an
d 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
ct

iv
ity

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

(2
00

5)
 S

po
rt

s 
F

ac
ili

ty
 

S
tu

dy
 U

pd
at

ed
 R

ep
or

t  
 

Page 218



 
83

 

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.6

.6
: 

S
E

A
 T

o
p

ic
: 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 
S

E
A

 In
d

ic
at

o
r 

Q
u

an
ti

fi
ed

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

C
o

m
p

ar
at

o
rs

 a
n

d
 t

ar
g

et
s 

T
re

n
d

s 
Is

su
es

/c
o

n
st

ra
in

ts
 

D
at

a 
so

u
rc

e(
s)

 

Li
fe

 e
xp

ec
ta

nc
y 

at
 

bi
rt

h 
A

be
rd

ee
n:

 
M

en
 7

5.
4 

ye
ar

s 
W

om
en

 8
0.

4 
ye

ar
s 

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
:  

M
en

 7
7.

5 
ye

ar
s 

W
om

en
 8

1.
1 

ye
ar

s 
 

S
co

tla
nd

: 
75

.0
 y

ea
rs

 fo
r 

m
en

 a
nd

 
79

.9
 y

ea
rs

 fo
r 

w
om

en
 

C
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 1

0 
ye

ar
s 

ag
o 

in
 1

99
6-

19
98

: 
Li

fe
 e

xp
ec

ta
nc

y 
at

 b
irt

h 
fo

r 
S

co
tla

nd
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 

2.
6 

ye
ar

s 
fo

r 
m

en
 (

fr
om

 7
2.

4 
ye

ar
s 

to
 7

5.
0 

ye
ar

s)
 a

nd
 1

.9
 

ye
ar

s 
fo

r 
w

om
en

 (
fr

om
 7

8.
1 

ye
ar

s 
to

 7
9.

9 
ye

ar
s)

;  
T

he
 g

ap
 b

et
w

ee
n 

m
en

 a
nd

 
w

om
en

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 c
lo

se
, 

dr
op

pi
ng

 fr
om

 5
.6

 y
ea

rs
 to

 
4.

9 
ye

ar
s 

ov
er

 th
e 

pe
rio

d;
 

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
ar

ea
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 a
 d

ro
p 

in
 li

fe
 

ex
pe

ct
an

cy
 

T
he

 g
ap

 b
et

w
ee

n 
m

en
 a

nd
 

w
om

en
 is

 c
lo

si
ng

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 li

fe
 e

xp
ec

ta
nc

y 
at

 b
irt

h.
 

A
gi

ng
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
w

ill
 

cr
ea

te
 d

em
an

d 
fo

r 
ce

rt
ai

n 
ty

pe
s 

of
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

e.
g.

 s
he

lte
re

d 
ho

us
in

g,
 

lo
w

 le
ve

l h
ou

si
ng

, a
cc

es
s 

to
 h

ea
lth

ca
re

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

G
en

er
al

 R
eg

is
te

r 
O

ffi
ce

 fo
r 

S
co

tla
nd

 (
20

09
) 

Li
fe

 E
xp

ec
ta

nc
y 

fo
r 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

A
re

as
 

w
ith

in
 S

co
tla

nd
, 2

00
6-

20
08

 
  

H
ea

lth
y 

lif
e 

ex
pe

ct
an

cy
 a

t b
irt

h 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

M
en

 6
7.

8 
ye

ar
s 

W
om

en
 7

2.
1 

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 

M
en

 7
0.

8 
ye

ar
s 

W
om

en
 7

4.
5 

S
co

tla
nd

 
M

en
 6

6.
3 

ye
ar

s 
F

em
al

es
 7

0.
2 

ye
ar

s 

T
he

 g
ap

 b
et

w
ee

n 
m

en
 a

nd
 

w
om

en
 is

 c
lo

si
ng

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 h

ea
lth

y 
lif

e 
ex

pe
ct

an
cy

 a
t 

bi
rt

h.
  

A
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
th

at
 li

ve
s 

lo
ng

er
 b

ut
 li

ve
s 

he
al

th
ie

r 
w

ill
 n

ot
 r

eq
ui

re
 a

s 
m

uc
h 

as
si

st
an

ce
 a

s 
a 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
th

at
 li

ve
s 

lo
ng

er
 b

ut
 li

ve
s 

un
he

al
th

ily
.  

S
co

tti
sh

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 O
bs

er
va

to
ry

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.s

co
tp

ho
.o

rg
.u

k/
ho

m
e/

P
op

ul
at

io
nd

yn
am

ic
s/

hl
e/

hl
e_

da
ta

/h
le

_s
co

tla
nd

.a
sp

 

P
op

ul
at

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 

19
98

 –
 2

15
,6

50
 

20
04

 –
 2

05
,4

90
 

20
08

 -
 2

10
,4

00
 

  A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 

19
98

 –
 2

26
,2

20
 

20
04

 –
 2

31
,5

70
 

20
08

 -
 2

41
,4

60
 

 S
D

P
 A

re
a:

 
19

98
 -

 4
38

,6
89

 
20

04
 -

 4
34

,1
60

 

S
co

tla
nd

 
 19

98
 –

 5
,0

77
,0

70
  

20
04

 –
 5

,0
78

,4
00

 
20

08
 -

 5
,1

68
,5

00
 

 T
he

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

ch
an

ge
 in

 
th

e 
S

D
P

 a
re

a 
ha

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

at
 a

 r
at

e 
(3

.3
5%

) 
do

ub
le

 to
 th

at
 o

f t
he

 
S

co
tti

sh
 a

ve
ra

ge
 (

1.
77

%
) 

in
 th

e 
la

st
 te

n 
ye

ar
s.

 

T
he

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

of
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 d
ec

lin
ed

 b
et

w
ee

n 
19

98
 

an
d 

20
04

, b
ut

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
fir

st
 

ha
lf 

of
 th

e 
pe

rio
d,

 h
ow

ev
er

 
th

is
 tr

en
d 

ha
s 

re
ve

rs
ed

, a
nd

 
si

nc
e 

20
04

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
C

ity
 a

nd
 

th
e 

S
hi

re
 p

op
ul

at
io

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
. 

 
G

en
er

al
 R

eg
is

te
r 

O
ffi

ce
 fo

r 
S

co
tla

nd
 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.g
ro

-
sc

ot
la

nd
.g

ov
.u

k/
st

at
is

tic
s/

pu
bl

ic
at

io
ns

-a
nd

-
da

ta
/p

op
ul

at
io

n-
es

tim
at

es
/in

de
x.

ht
m

l 
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 S

D
P

A
 (

20
10

) 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

 P
la

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

R
ep

or
t  

 

Page 219



 
84

 

20
08

 -
 4

48
,6

93
 

P
op

ul
at

io
n 

S
tr

uc
tu

re
 

A
s 

at
 J

un
e 

20
08

, t
he

 
av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
w

as
: 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
– 

38
 (

m
) 

40
 

(f
) 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 –

 3
9 

(m
) 

41
(f

) 
   

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 m

uc
h 

of
 

S
co

tla
nd

 th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

of
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 
an

d 
S

hi
re

 h
as

 a
ge

d 
ov

er
 

th
e 

la
st

 te
n 

ye
ar

s.
 

 

T
he

 2
00

8 
ba

se
d 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 

(p
ro

ba
bl

e)
 s

ug
ge

st
 th

at
 b

y 
20

33
 th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
S

D
P

 a
re

a 
w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 b

y 
14

%
. T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

of
 p

en
si

on
ab

le
 a

ge
 w

ill
 

in
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

32
%

 m
uc

h 
in

 
lin

e 
w

ith
 S

co
tti

sh
 fi

gu
re

s.
 

T
he

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 

ag
e 

is
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 to
 r

is
e 

by
 

11
.4

%
, w

el
l a

bo
ve

 th
e 

S
co

tti
sh

 fi
gu

re
 o

f 2
.2

%
. 

A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, w
hi

le
 a

t a
 

S
co

tti
sh

 le
ve

l t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 

un
de

r 
15

’s
 is

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 to

 
de

cl
in

e 
by

 1
.5

%
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

pe
rio

d,
 in

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 

S
hi

re
 th

is
 a

ge
 g

ro
up

 c
ou

ld
 

in
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

4.
1%

. 

A
 r

ap
id

ly
 a

gi
ng

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

ha
s 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

bo
th

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

re
gi

on
, a

nd
 r

es
ul

ts
 in

 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 a
ttr

ac
t a

nd
 

re
ta

in
 p

eo
pl

e 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 
ag

e 
to

 th
e 

re
gi

on
. 

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 h

as
 th

e 
la

rg
es

t p
ro

je
ct

ed
 r

is
e 

in
 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
na

bl
e 

ag
e 

gr
ou

p 
in

 S
co

tla
nd

 a
nd

 
th

is
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

m
aj

or
 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

th
e 

re
gi

on
. 

 M
or

e 
ho

m
es

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

w
hi

ch
 s

ui
t t

he
 

ne
ed

s 
of

 a
n 

ag
ei

ng
 

po
pu

la
t io

n 
e.

g.
 

bu
ng

al
ow

s,
 s

he
lte

re
d 

ho
us

in
g 

et
c.

 

G
en

er
al

 R
eg

is
te

r 
O

ffi
ce

 fo
r 

S
co

tla
nd

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.g

ro
-

sc
ot

la
nd

.g
ov

.u
k/

st
at

is
tic

s/
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
-a

nd
-

da
ta

/p
op

ul
at

io
n-

es
tim

at
es

/in
de

x.
ht

m
l 

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
D

P
A

 (
20

10
) 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 P

la
n 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
R

ep
or

t 
 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 

 H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
 g

ro
w

th
 

         

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
  

 19
91

 -
 8

9,
94

9 
20

01
 -

 9
5,

26
5 

20
03

 -
 9

6,
94

4 
20

08
 -

 9
7,

42
4 

 20
01

 –
 2

00
8 

– 
2,

15
9 

%
 c

ha
ng

e 
– 

2.
3%

 
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 (
in

c 
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s 
N

at
io

na
l 

P
ar

k)
 

S
co

tla
nd

 
 19

91
 –

 2
,0

42
,8

09
 

20
01

 –
 2

,1
25

,5
77

 
20

03
 –

 2
,1

95
,0

33
 

20
08

 –
 2

,2
11

,0
25

 
 20

01
-2

00
8 

– 
85

,4
48

 
%

 c
ha

ng
e 

– 
4.

0%
 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

la
st

 d
ec

ad
e 

th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

 s
us

ta
in

ed
 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 n

um
be

rs
 o

f 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 a
nd

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
fa

ll 
in

 a
ve

ra
ge

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 

si
ze

. T
hi

s 
is

 a
 tr

en
d 

th
at

 is
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
, w

ith
 

av
er

ag
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
si

ze
 

dr
op

pi
ng

 to
 u

nd
er

 tw
o 

in
 th

e 
S

D
P

 a
re

a 
by

 2
02

1.
 

D
ec

re
as

in
g 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
si

ze
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

w
ill

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s 
in

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f h

ou
se

s 
th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 to

 
de

m
an

d.
 If

 th
is

 tr
en

d 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

th
er

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
se

rio
us

 is
su

es
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

.  
 P

os
si

bi
lit

y 
th

at
 th

e 
ne

ed
 

G
en

er
al

 R
eg

is
te

r 
O

ffi
ce

 fo
r 

S
co

tla
nd

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.g

ro
-

sc
ot

la
nd

.g
ov

.u
k/

st
at

is
tic

s/
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
-a

nd
-

da
ta

/p
op

ul
at

io
n-

es
tim

at
es

/in
de

x.
ht

m
l 

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
D

P
A

 (
20

10
) 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 P

la
n 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
R

ep
or

t 
 

Page 220



 
85

 

                 F
o

re
ca

st
 

h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
 s

iz
e 

 19
91

 -
 8

0,
47

3 
20

01
 -

 8
7,

07
7 

20
03

 -
 9

0,
90

2 
20

08
 -

 9
2,

31
7 

 20
01

 –
 2

00
8 

– 
5,

24
0 

%
 c

ha
ng

e 
– 

6.
0%

 
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 
S

hi
re

 (
in

c 
C

ai
rn

go
rm

s 
N

at
i o

na
l P

ar
k)

 
 19

91
 -

 1
70

,4
22

 
20

01
 -

 1
82

,3
42

 
20

03
 -

 1
87

,8
46

 
20

08
 -

 1
89

,7
41

 
 20

01
-2

00
8 

– 
7,

39
9 

%
 c

ha
ng

e 
– 

4.
1%

 
  A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 fo
re

ca
st

 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

si
ze

: 
 20

06
 –

 2
.0

0 
20

11
 –

 1
.9

3 
20

16
 –

 1
.8

6 
20

21
 –

 1
.8

2 
20

26
 –

 1
.7

8 
20

31
 –

 1
.7

4 
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 fo
re

ca
st

 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

si
ze

: 
 20

06
 –

 2
.3

6 
20

11
 –

 2
.3

0 
20

16
 –

 2
.2

3 
20

21
 –

 2
.1

6 
20

26
 –

 2
.0

9 
20

31
 –

 2
.0

3 
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 
S

hi
re

 fo
re

ca
st

 

fo
r 

m
or

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
la

nd
 c

ou
ld

 p
ut

 p
re

ss
ur

e 
on

 o
r 

ne
ar

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
na

tu
ra

l h
er

ita
ge

 a
re

as
 a

s 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
la

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
s.

 
 S

m
al

le
r 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 te

nd
 

to
 p

ro
du

ce
 m

or
e 

w
as

te
 

an
d 

us
e 

m
or

e  
en

er
gy

  
pe

r 
pe

rs
on

 th
an

 la
rg

er
 

on
es

. 

Page 221



 
86

 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
si

ze
: 

 20
06

 –
 2

.1
8 

20
11

 –
 2

.1
2 

20
16

 –
 2

.0
4 

20
21

 –
 1

.9
9 

20
26

 –
 1

.9
4 

20
31

 –
 1

.8
9 

 

Page 222



 
87

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.6

.7
: 

S
E

A
 T

o
p

ic
: 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l H

er
it

ag
e 

 S
E

A
 In

d
ic

at
o

r 
Q

u
an

ti
fi

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

C
o

m
p

ar
at

o
rs

 a
n

d
 t

ar
g

et
s 

T
re

n
d

s 
Is

su
es

/c
o

n
st

ra
in

ts
 

D
at

a 
so

u
rc

e(
s)

 
B

ui
lt 

an
d 

C
ul

tu
ra

l 
H

er
ita

ge
 

D
es

ig
na

tio
ns

 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 

 Li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 –
 1

,2
12

 
Li

st
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

t r
is

k 
– 

26
 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
as

 –
 1

1 
S

ch
ed

ul
ed

 A
nc

ie
nt

 
M

on
um

en
ts

 –
 4

4 
A

rc
ha

eo
lo

gi
ca

l S
ite

s 
an

d 
M

on
um

en
ts

 R
ec

or
d 

– 
69

9 
G

ar
de

ns
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

la
nd

sc
ap

es
 -

 1
 

 A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 

 Li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 –
 3

,7
15

 
Li

st
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

t r
is

k 
– 

22
8 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
as

 –
 4

9 
S

ch
ed

ul
ed

 A
nc

ie
nt

 
M

on
um

en
ts

 –
 5

81
 

A
rc

ha
eo

lo
gi

ca
l S

ite
s 

an
d 

M
on

um
en

ts
 R

ec
or

d 
– 

17
,6

31
 

G
ar

de
ns

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 -
 2

7 
 A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 a
nd

 S
hi

re
 

 Li
st

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 –
 4

,9
27

 
Li

st
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

t r
is

k 
– 

25
4 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
A

re
as

 –
 6

0 
S

ch
ed

ul
ed

 A
nc

ie
nt

 
M

on
um

en
ts

 –
 6

25
 

A
rc

ha
eo

lo
gi

ca
l S

ite
s 

an
d 

M
on

um
en

ts
 R

ec
or

d 
– 

18
,3

30
 

G
ar

de
ns

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
ne

d 

 
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
s 

pu
tti

ng
 

pr
es

su
re

 o
n 

th
es

e 
fe

at
ur

es
. T

he
re

 is
 a

ls
o 

a 
th

re
at

 o
f a

dv
er

se
 im

pa
ct

s 
to

 a
nd

 th
e 

lo
ss

 o
f 

un
kn

ow
n 

or
 lo

ca
lly

 
kn

ow
n 

(a
nd

 n
ot

 fo
rm

al
ly

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

) 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 

an
d 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
ic

al
 

re
m

ai
ns

 fr
om

 n
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
va

nd
al

is
m

 
an

d 
co

as
ta

l e
ro

si
on

. 
 N

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t h

as
 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

pu
t 

pr
es

su
re

 o
n,

 o
r 

be
 

co
ns

tr
ai

ne
d 

by
, b

ui
lt 

an
d 

cu
ltu

ra
l s

ite
s.

 
C

on
se

qu
en

tly
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t m

us
t b

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 p

la
nn

ed
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

lo
ss

 o
r 

da
m

ag
e 

to
 th

es
e 

im
po

rt
an

t a
ss

et
s.

 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
D

P
A

 (
20

09
) 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 P

l a
n 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
R

ep
or

t 
 

Page 223



 
88

 

la
nd

sc
ap

es
 -

 2
8 

B
at

tle
fie

ld
s 

A
b

er
d

ee
n

sh
ir

e 
A

lfo
rd

 1
64

5 
B

ar
ra

 1
30

8 
F

yv
ie

 1
64

4 
H

ar
la

w
 1

41
1 

 
 

 
ht

tp
://

da
ta

.h
is

to
ric

-
sc

ot
la

nd
.g

ov
.u

k/
pl

s/
ht

m
ld

b/
f?

p=
25

00
:1

0:
0 

   

Page 224



 
89

 

   A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.6

.8
: 

S
E

A
 T

o
p

ic
: 

L
an

d
sc

ap
e 

S
E

A
 In

d
ic

at
o

r 
Q

u
an

ti
fi

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

C
o

m
p

ar
at

o
rs

 a
n

d
 t

ar
g

et
s 

T
re

n
d

s 
Is

su
es

/c
o

n
st

ra
in

ts
 

D
at

a 
so

u
rc

e(
s)

 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
  

T
he

re
 a

re
 4

2 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
s 

in
 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
9 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

N
P

.  
 In

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

27
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ar

ea
s.

 
  

T
he

 fo
ur

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 

th
at

 c
ov

er
 th

e 
N

or
th

 E
as

t 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

 b
rie

f o
ve

rv
ie

w
 

of
 p

as
t l

an
d 

us
e 

pr
ac

tic
es

 
an

d 
di

sc
us

se
s 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
la

nd
 u

se
s 

fo
r 

ex
is

tin
g 

la
nd

sc
ap

es
. 

   

 N
o 

tr
en

d 
T

he
 in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 s

ca
le

 
an

d 
in

se
ns

iti
ve

 s
iti

ng
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
m

ay
 a

dv
er

se
ly

 a
ffe

ct
 

la
nd

sc
ap

e  
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

(e
.g

. c
ha

ng
in

g 
its

 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
ty

pe
, n

ot
 r

es
pe

ct
in

g 
lo

ca
l 

to
po

gr
ap

hy
/c

on
to

ur
s)

. 
N

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t n

ot
 

fit
tin

g 
in

 w
ith

 th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e’
s 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 to
 

ab
so

rb
 fu

rt
he

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 (

e.
g.

 
de

si
gn

, l
ay

ou
t a

nd
 s

en
se

 
of

 p
la

ce
) 

– 
ne

ed
 to

 
pr

om
ot

e 
su

ita
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t c
ap

ac
ity

. 

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 H
er

ita
ge

 (
19

97
) 

N
at

io
na

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
as

se
ss

m
en

t: 
B

an
ff 

an
d 

B
uc

ha
n,

 R
ev

ie
w

 N
o 

37
. 

S
co

tti
sh

 N
at

ur
al

 H
er

ita
ge

 (
19

96
) 

C
ai

rn
go

rm
s 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
R

ev
ie

w
 N

o 
75

. 
S

co
tti

sh
 N

at
ur

al
 H

er
ita

ge
 (

19
96

) 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f 

A
be

rd
ee

n,
 R

ev
ie

w
 N

o 
80

 
S

co
tti

sh
 N

at
ur

al
 H

er
ita

ge
 (

19
98

) 
S

ou
th

 
an

d 
C

en
tr

al
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

: l
an

ds
ca

pe
 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
R

ev
ie

w
 N

o 
10

2.
 

 

 

Page 225



 
90

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.6

.9
: 

S
E

A
 T

o
p

ic
: 

M
at

er
ia

l A
ss

et
s 

S
E

A
 In

d
ic

at
o

r 
Q

u
an

ti
fi

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

C
o

m
p

ar
at

o
rs

 a
n

d
 t

ar
g

et
s 

T
re

n
d

s 
Is

su
es

/c
o

n
st

ra
in

ts
 

D
at

a 
so

u
rc

e(
s)

 
E

xi
st

in
g 

flo
od

 
de

fe
nc

es
 

T
he

re
 a

re
 3

 fl
oo

d 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

sc
he

m
es

 in
 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 a

nd
 2

 in
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
.  

 
F

lo
od

 d
ef

en
ce

 s
ch

em
es

 w
ill

 
pr

og
re

ss
iv

el
y 

be
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 b

y 
so

il/
sa

nd
 e

ro
si

on
 fr

om
 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 r

ai
nf

al
l a

nd
 s

to
rm

 
ev

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 a

ffe
ct

 th
ei

r 
st

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s.

  
A

s 
a 

re
su

lt,
 th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
ne

ed
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 th
es

e 
de

fe
nc

es
, a

nd
 p

os
si

bl
y 

re
lo

ca
te

 th
em

.  

P
re

di
ct

ed
 r

is
e 

in
 s

ea
 

le
ve

l m
ay

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
flo

od
 d

ef
en

ce
s 

be
in

g 
in

ad
eq

ua
te

.  
T

he
 p

re
di

ct
ed

 r
is

e 
in

 
st

or
m

 e
ve

nt
s 

an
d 

w
in

te
r 

pr
ec

ip
ita

tio
n 

is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 

in
cr

ea
se

 s
oi

l/s
an

d 
er

os
io

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
w

in
d 

an
d 

ra
in

/w
at

er
, w

hi
ch

 
m

ay
 p

re
ve

nt
 fl

oo
d 

de
fe

nc
e 

sc
he

m
es

 
fu

nc
tio

ni
ng

 p
ro

pe
rly

 a
nd

 
re

su
lt 

in
 th

ei
r 

fa
ilu

re
 (

e.
g.

 
co

lla
ps

e)
. 

O
ffi

ce
 o

f S
ci

en
ce

 a
nd

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

(2
00

5)
 

F
or

es
ig

ht
 r

ep
or

t: 
F

ut
ur

e 
F

lo
od

in
g 

S
co

tla
nd

  
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.fo

re
si

gh
t.g

ov
.u

k/
S

co
tla

nd
/F

in
al

_S
co

tla
nd

.p
df

 
 S

E
P

A
 (

20
06

) 
In

di
ca

tiv
e 

R
iv

er
 &

 C
oa

st
al

 
F

lo
od

 M
ap

 (
S

co
tla

nd
) 

 
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

(2
00

7)
 F

lo
od

in
g 

in
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

: S
ix

th
 B

ie
nn

ia
l R

ep
or

t 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.a

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

.g
ov

.u
k/

flo
od

in
g/

re
po

rt
/6

th
_b

ie
nn

ia
l_

re
po

rt
.p

df
 

 

S
up

pl
y/

de
liv

er
y 

of
 A

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
H

ou
si

ng
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

: 
20

04
/0

5 
– 

24
6 

20
05

/0
6 

– 
21

3 
 

20
06

/0
7 

– 
13

0 
 

20
07

/0
8 

– 
16

8 
20

08
/0

9 
– 

31
2 

 5 
ye

ar
 a

ve
ra

ge
 –

 2
14

 
(a

ve
ra

ge
 o

f 1
0%

 o
f a

nn
ua

l 
co

m
pl

et
io

ns
) 

 

 
T

he
 s

up
pl

y 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
m

es
 in

 th
e 

N
or

th
 E

as
t i

s 
no

t m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

de
m

an
d 

bu
t 

th
e 

la
te

st
 d

at
a 

sh
ow

s 
an

 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

f s
up

pl
y.

 

T
he

re
 is

 a
 n

ee
d 

to
 

re
vi

ew
 th

e 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

 
ne

w
 b

ui
ld

. 
  

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
D

P
A

 (
20

10
) 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 P

la
n 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
R

ep
or

t 
 

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
La

nd
 s

up
pl

y 
(s

ee
 ta

bl
es

 
be

lo
w

)  

T
he

 s
up

pl
y 

of
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t l
an

d 
in

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
is

 d
is

pe
rs

ed
 

ov
er

 s
ix

 s
ite

s 
an

d 
is

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 a

ro
un

d 
30

%
 o

f 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

ta
bl

e 
su

pp
ly

. T
he

 
m

ar
ke

ta
bl

e 
su

pp
ly

 o
f 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d 

in
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
st

an
ds

 a
t 9

1h
a.

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
on

ly
 3

1h
a 

of
 th

is
 is

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 
 T

he
 m

ar
ke

ta
bl

e 
su

pp
ly

 o
f 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d 

in
 th

e 

 
A

be
rd

ee
n 

C
ity

 h
as

 s
ho

w
n 

a 
tr

en
d 

of
 d

im
in

is
hi

ng
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

su
pp

ly
 o

f l
an

d 
fo

r 
bu

si
ne

ss
 u

se
 a

s 
al

lo
ca

tio
ns

 
ar

e 
bu

ilt
 o

ut
. H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 

m
ar

ke
ta

bl
e 

su
pp

ly
 h

as
 

re
co

ve
re

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

in
cl

us
io

n 
of

 th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

si
te

 a
t M

ur
ca

r 
in

 th
e 

ad
op

te
d 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n 

20
08

. 
 F

or
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

, (
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

gr
ow

th
 a

re
as

),
 

th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

 tr
en

d 
of

 
di

m
in

is
hi

ng
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 

U
ne

ve
n 

su
pp

ly
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t l
an

d 
ha

s 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 

w
or

k 
an

d 
liv

e 
w

ith
in

 a
 

cl
os

e 
pr

ox
im

ity
 th

us
 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
lik

el
ih

oo
d 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
tr

av
el

lin
g 

to
 

w
or

k 
by

 p
riv

at
e 

m
ea

ns
. 

E
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
tr

ai
ne

d 
w

ith
ou

t a
 

re
as

on
ab

le
 s

up
pl

y 
of

 
la

nd
 w

hi
ch

 is
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
D

P
A

 (
20

10
) 

A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 S
tr

uc
tu

re
 P

la
n 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
R

ep
or

t 
 

Page 226



 
91

 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 S

G
A

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 s

ta
nd

s 
at

 1
46

ha
. 

O
f t

hi
s 

to
ta

l, 
on

ly
 2

0h
a 

is
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

su
pp

ly
 o

f l
an

d 
fo

r 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

us
e.

 T
he

 m
ar

ke
ta

bl
e 

su
pp

ly
 

ha
s 

re
m

ai
ne

d 
ar

ou
nd

 a
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 le

ve
l. 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 L

ife
 

In
 2

00
7 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 w

as
 

to
p 

ov
er

al
l f

or
 th

e 
be

st
 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

 o
f 3

2 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 in

 S
co

tla
nd

. 
 In

 M
ay

 2
00

8 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 h
ad

 th
e 

be
st

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 li

fe
 a

m
on

gs
t 

ru
ra

l a
re

as
 in

 S
co

tla
nd

.  
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
08

 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 c
am

e 
se

co
nd

 in
 th

e 
lis

t o
f a

re
as

 
en

jo
yi

ng
 th

e 
be

st
 o

ve
ra

ll 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
.  

 In
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9 
A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 c
am

e 
ou

t 
to

p 
am

on
gs

t t
en

 o
th

er
 r

ur
al

 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s.
  

 

O
n 

se
ve

ra
l i

nd
ic

at
or

s,
 

A
be

rd
ee

ns
hi

re
 r

an
ks

 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

S
co

tti
sh

 
av

er
ag

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t r

at
e 

(8
2.

6%
 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 7

6.
6%

) 
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

ns
 (

84
%

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
fiv

e 
or

 m
or

e 
S

C
Q

F
 le

ve
l 4

 a
w

ar
ds

 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
S

co
tla

nd
 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 7

9%
).

 
 R

es
id

en
ts

 a
ls

o 
en

jo
y 

a 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

go
od

 c
lim

at
e;

 
th

er
e 

is
, o

n 
av

er
ag

e,
 le

ss
 

ra
in

fa
ll 

pe
r 

ye
ar

 (
99

9m
m

 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 S
co

tla
nd

 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 1
,2

95
m

m
) 

an
d 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 m
or

e 
w

ee
kl

y 
su

ns
hi

ne
 h

ou
rs

 (
25

.5
 

ho
ur

s 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 S
co

tla
nd

 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 2
4.

9)
. 

 

 
 

B
an

k 
of

 S
co

tla
nd

’s
 R

ur
al

 Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 L

ife
 

S
ur

ve
y  

20
09

 

 

Page 227



 
92

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
.6

.1
0 

E
m

p
lo

ym
en

t 
L

an
d

 S
u

p
p

ly
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

: 
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

 S
G

A
s 

 
E

st
ab

lis
he

d 
 

C
on

st
ra

in
ed

  
M

ar
ke

ta
bl

e 
 

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
 

U
nd

er
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

 
20

06
  

27
2 

 
11

8 
 

15
5 

 
39

  
10

  
20

07
  

27
1 

 
11

2 
 

15
7 

 
30

  
8 

 
20

08
  

26
6 

 
10

4 
 

16
2 

 
24

  
3 

 
20

09
  

24
6 

 
99

  
14

6 
 

20
  

2 
 

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 S

G
A

 
 

 
E

st
ab

lis
he

d 
 

C
on

st
ra

in
ed

  
M

ar
ke

ta
bl

e 
 

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 A
va

ila
bl

e 
 

U
nd

er
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

 
20

06
  

23
9 

 
18

1 
 

40
  

34
  

1 
 

20
07

  
23

5 
 

17
1 

 
53

  
27

  
7 

 
20

08
  

22
5 

 
17

1 
 

42
  

24
  

10
  

20
09

  
21

7 
 

10
3 

 
91

  
31

  
2 

 
 N

.B
 D

at
a 

on
ly

 c
ov

er
s 

th
os

e 
ar

ea
s 

w
ith

in
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 G
ro

w
th

 A
re

as
 w

ith
in

 A
be

rd
ee

n 
C

ity
 a

nd
 A

be
rd

ee
ns

hi
re

. 
 

Page 228



 
93

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
7.

1.
1 

B
at

tl
e 

o
f 

A
lf

o
rd

 
                             

 
 

Page 229



 
94

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 7
.1

.2
 B

at
tl

e 
o

f 
B

ar
ra

 
                             

 

Page 230



 
95

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 7
.1

.3
 B

at
tl

e 
o

f 
F

yv
ie

 
                   

 

 

Page 231



 
96

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 7
.1

.3
 B

at
tl

e 
o

f 
H

ar
la

w
 

                              

Page 232



 97 

Appendix 7.2.1 Major Soil sub-groups 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 233



 98 

Appendix 7.2.2 Peaty Podzols

Page 234



 99 

Appendix 7.2.3 Blanket Peat

 

Page 235



 100 

Appendix 7.2.4 Peaty Gleys  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 236



 101 

Appendix 7.2.5 Organic Soils

 

Page 237



 102 

 
Appendix 7.3.1 SSSI

 

Page 238



 103 

Appendix 7.3.2 District Wild Life Sites

 

Page 239



 104 

Appendix 7.3.3 Local Nature Reserves

 

Page 240



 105 

Appendix 7.3.4 Special Area of Conservation

 

Page 241



 106 

Appendix 7.3.5 Sites and Monuments Record

 

Page 242



 107 

Appendix 7.3.6 Listed Buildings

 

Page 243



 108 

Appendix 7.3.7 Conservation Areas

 

Page 244



 109 

 
 
Appendix 7.3.8 Townscapes – The Green

 

Page 245



 110 

Appendix 7.3.9 Designed Garden and Landscapes – Duthie Park

 

Page 246



 111 

Appendix 7.4.1 International and National Heritage Designations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 247



 112 

Appendix 7.4.2 Landscape Designations 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 248



 113 

Appendix 7.4.3 Archaeological and Listed Buildings  

Page 249



 114 

Appendix 7.4.4 Local natural heritage designations

 

Page 250



 115 

Appendix 7.4.4 Scheduled Ancient Monuments 

 

Page 251



 116 

Appendix 7.4.5 Category C(S) Listed Buildings  
 

Page 252



Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan 
  
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 
 
This Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) is designed to inform the Aberdeen 
City and Shire Strategic Development Plan. A SFRA involves the collection, analysis 
and presentation of existing and readily available flood risk information (from any 
source) for the area of interest. It constitutes a strategic overview of flood risk, without 
necessarily meeting the reporting requirements of a detailed Flood Risk Assessment 
and has been executed as a desk top study. However, in some instances, greater 
detail may be required (if appropriate) to inform the Strategic Development Plan. Part 
of a SFRA could be the identification of priority areas for more detailed analysis. 
 
Sources of information on SFRA for the Main Issues Report came from Appendix 1 of 
the Technical Flood Risk Guidance for Stakeholders which was produced by SEPA. 
This has now been superseded by new Technical Guidance to support Development 
Planning which was issued by SEPA in June 2012. Those sources of information 
considered appropriate to Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire are briefly set out 
below. 
 
1. Biennial Flood Reports 
These reports specify the measures that Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Councils 
have undertaken to meet their duties under the Flood Prevention (Scotland) Act 1961 
as amended by the Flood Prevention and Land Drainage (Scotland) Act 1997. They 
detail flood prevention measures and strategies for preventing and mitigating 
flooding, including proposals and expenditure for the future. Flood and road drainage 
incidents are reported and measures which dealt with them are outlined. Both 
Councils have produced a 7th Biennial Report which covers the period up to 
November 2009. Under the Flood Risk (Scotland) Management Act 2009, Biennial 
Flood Reports will no longer be produced. Instead, Flood Risk Management 
Strategies will be prepared for 14 local plan districts in Scotland, of which Aberdeen 
City and Aberdeenshire form one. 
 
2. Flood Prevention Schemes and other studies 
Over the last few years there have been a number of studies that have either been 
carried out or are proposed in Aberdeen. 
 
· Glashieburn, Bridge of Don. This is located on the Glashieburn close to Lochside 

Drive. Works here are now complete.  
 
· West Cults Farm, Cults. Aberdeen City Council has investigated the need to carry 

out a Flood Prevention Scheme in this area but decided not to proceed. It is 
understood that residents have proceeded with their own scheme. 

 
· Fraser Road. This is part of the built up area to the north of Hutcheon Street and 

flood prevention works were successfully completed there in 2004.  
 
· Hydrological studies were commissioned in 2007 to investigate flooding problems 

in Northfield, Middlefield, Cummings Park and Logie. This may lead to the 
development of flood mitigation measures and ways to improve the drainage of 
the area. 

 

Page 253



· The 7th Biennial Flood Report proposed the promotion of a scheme to tackle 
flooding issues on the Den Burn at Jacks Brae in Rosemount. 

 
Aberdeenshire’s 7th Biennial Flood Report outlines a number of actions and 
proposals. 
 
· Flood studies have been carried out at the following locations:  

· Burn of Cauldcotts, Fettercairn  
· Ythan Estuary, Newburgh  
· Tarland Burn, Tarland and Aboyne  
· Johnshaven (coastal flood / erosion assessment)  
· Extreme coastal water levels assessment  
· Coastal landslip studies at Stonehaven and Pennan  

 
Where appropriate, the studies will generate cost benefit analyses which will be used 
to justify proposals for Flood Protection Schemes and Coast Protection Works.  
 
· Johnshaven Coast Protection Works. Properties and the road at Beach Road, 

Johnshaven were being threatened by coastal erosion. The erosion, if left 
unchecked would have lead to an increase in flood risk to a number of properties. 
Following investigations and a public meeting, a 100 metre long rock revetment 
was installed at a total cost of £101,000. This will provide long term benefits to 
residents in terms of reduced risk from flooding and erosion.  

 
· Flood Alleviation Works at Whinnyfold, Cruden Bay and Alford. Aberdeenshire 

Council completed a flood relief scheme at Whinnyfold, Cruden Bay at a cost of 
£12,000. A number of properties were being flooded on a frequent basis. A flood 
alleviation scheme, also costing £12,000, was completed to prevent repeated 
flooding to properties in Alford. 

 
· Landslides. Following major mudslides at Pennan in August 2007, which resulted 

in the inundation of a number of properties, the Scottish Government agreed in 
December 2008 to fund £500,000 of a £600,000 scheme to reduce the risk of a 
repeat occurrence. This scheme is currently being developed and it is anticipated 
that the works will be implemented during the summer of 2010.  

 
Concerns have existed for a number of years about the stability of the Bervie Braes, 
Stonehaven. The Braes are privately owned but a public road runs across the slope 
and approximately 65 houses are located at its base, many of them Council owned. 
As a result of heavy rainfall on 1 November 2009 a localised area of road edge and 
embankment failed causing material to be washed down towards the harbour, 
affecting private properties. Options for stabilising the wider slope had already been 
examined and a request made to the Scottish Government for assistance to fund a 
major remediation project.  
 
Over the last two years localised landslides have also occurred at Newtonhill, Banff, 
Boddam and Cruden Bay. With the exception of Banff, the slips have all occurred on 
private land. In each case the cause has been a combination of water run off or 
seepage from above acting on overly steep coastal slopes. The Council has provided 
limited technical advice on each occasion. As a general rule, it will only undertake 
remedial action if it owns the land, if its assets are affected or where it has in some 
way contributed to the problem.  
 

Page 254



In addition the following proposals are outlined; 
 
· Further flood studies will be undertaken at Stonehaven (Carron), Huntly (Meadow 

Burn / Deveron), Portsoy (Soy Burn), Marykirk (in conjunction with restoration 
funding from SEPA).  

 
· Flood Protection Schemes are proposed on the Cauldcotts Burn at Fettercairn, 

and the Tarland Burn at Aboyne and Tarland. It is likely that flood alleviation 
schemes will also be drawn up in Huntly and Stonehaven subject to the outcome 
of the flood studies.  

 
· Flood Alleviation Works at Boddam, Peterhead - the problem caused by surface 

water coming off the Trunk Road at Boddam and flooding domestic property has 
advanced to the stage where agreement from Scottish Water has been obtained 
recently to undertake the necessary connections to the surface water sewer of the 
former RAF Buchan site, and the adjacent Army Cadets’ property.  

 
· Coast Protection Works at Scotstown, Banff will be progressed to strengthen and 

repair damage to the existing seawall.  
 
3. British Hydrological Society 
This website contains a historical chronology of British hydrological events largely 
taken from documentary evidence. A number of flood events are noted from the 18th 

century to the present, mainly concerning flood damage along the Rivers Deveron, 
Don, Dee and Ythan. A search facility is available here 
http://www.dundee.ac.uk/geography/cbhe/ 
 
4. Flood Events 
Flood and drainage problems are highlighted in the Biennial Flood Reports. In 
addition two flood events on the Rivers Don and Dee have been mapped on 
Aberdeen City Council’s Geographic Information System. These took place in 
September 1995 and November 2002 and are generally confined to the River Dee 
and Don valley floors. 
 
5. SEPA Flood Maps 
SEPA’s Flood Maps are available on their website and show areas of land which are 
at risk of river and coastal flooding. They formed an important part of both Council’s 
assessment of development options and of the SEA of sites in the Local 
Development Plans. Any potential flood risk is identified in these assessments. Both 
Council’s Geographic Information Systems hold this data. Map 1 show the high level 
flood risk areas of the Rivers Dee, Don, Ythan and Ugie catchements. Map 2 shows 
a more detailed representation of the 1:200 flood risk area for both pluvial (river) and 
coastal flooding. SEPA’s Flood Maps can be viewed online here; 
 
http://www.sepa.org.uk/flooding/flood_extent_maps/view_the_map.aspx  
 
6. Aberdeen Beach Recharge 
To protect the revetment and area around Aberdeen beach from continued erosion 
and failure, a programme of beach recharge took place in July and August 2006. 
This programme protected property and infrastructure and provided an enhanced 
beach for recreational use. To ensure the stability of the new beach and to protect 
the area from further erosion, rock t-head extensions to the present timber groynes 
were constructed to keep the sand in place. Computer modelling of the coastline, 

Page 255



experience gained from elsewhere, and an economic analysis of the cost of the 
options, indicated that this was the best option for protecting the beach. 
 
7. Future Issues 
The City Council gave a response to the Rural Affairs and Environment Committee of 
the Scottish Parliament on an inquiry into Flooding and Flood Management which 
focussed on climate change issues. A full response can be found on the internet at 
http://www.scottish.parliament.uk/S3/committees/rae/inquiries/flooding/AberdeenCity 
Council.htm 
 
 
8. National Flood Risk Assessment 
 
The National Flood Risk Assessment is the first step of the new risk-based approach 
to managing the impacts of flooding, introduced by the Flood Risk Management 
(Scotland) Act 2009.  It represents a significant milestone in our understanding of 
flood risk by bringing together the latest information on the sources and impacts of 
flooding across Scotland. 
 
From the National Flood Risk Assessment we have found that one in 22 of all 
residential properties and one in 13 of all non-residential properties are at risk of 
flooding from rivers, the sea or heavy rainfall in urban areas.  The outcomes of the 
National Flood Risk Assessment will help us to target actions for flood risk 
management in those areas where we can have the greatest impact. 
 
SEPA is now building on the National Flood Risk Assessment by producing 
the ‘Flood Risk Management Planning in Scotland: Arrangements for 2012 -2016’ 
document which provides further explanation of how and when Flood Risk 
Management Strategies and Local Flood Risk Management Plans will be produced. 
This publication, which has been jointly produced by SEPA and the Scottish 
Government outlines the new approach to flood risk management which will help us 
to co-ordinate the involvement of local partnerships and advisory groups by defining 
sustainable policies and actions for Flood Risk Management. 
 
SEPA has published the following documents to accompany the National Flood Risk 
Assessment: 

· The National Flood Risk Assessment (  774Kb):  This document provides 
further detail on the National Flood Risk Assessment and how its outcomes 
support Flood Risk Management Planning.  

· Flood Risk Management Strategies and Local Flood Risk Management 
Plans (  463Kb):  Provides detail on the content and production of Flood Risk 
Management Strategies and Local Flood Risk Management Plans.  

· Flood Risk Management Planning in Scotland: Arrangements for 2012 -2016 
(  1.29Mb): This document provides further detail of how and when Flood 
Risk Management Strategies and Local Flood Risk Management plans will be 
produced. 

 
Information on the main sources of flooding in Aberdeenshire and Aberdeen City and 
the associated impacts identified through the National Flood Risk Assessment are 
identified. It also provides a summary of Potentially Vulnerable Areas within the area 
and how they are spread between the local authorities. These are shown in Map 3. 
More detailed information on the sources and impacts of floods, including past events 
and catchment characteristics will be developed as part of the Flood Risk 
Management Strategies for each area. For instance the National Flood Risk 

Page 256



Assessment Risk Grid shows a more detailed gradation of flood risk based on 1km 
squares. This can indicate potential issues at a strategic level, and is shown in Map 
4.  
 
The North East Local Plan area covers all of Aberdeenshire and Aberdeen City 
including part of the Cairngorms National Park. It has a total area of 6,780km2. The 
National Flood Risk Assessment identified approximately 4,800 residential properties 
and 880 non-residential properties as at risk of flooding in this area. This equates to 
approximately 1 in 45 of all residential properties and 1 in 21 of all non-residential 
properties located within the area. The Weighted Annual Average Damages for 
properties and agricultural land at risk of flooding is estimated at £57.5million. 
 
 
Conclusions 
 

Clearly, some parts of the Strategic Development Plan Area are affected by flooding 
from a number of sources (fluvial, coastal, groundwater and surface water). The 
largest potential source of flood risk in Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire is from rivers, 
closely followed by surface water flooding. 

Most growth in the Strategic Development Plan is directed towards the Strategic 
Growth Areas and at a strategic level, the maps below show that particular attention 
needs to be given to areas around Huntly, Inverurie-Kintore, Ellon, Aberdeen and 
Stonehaven. Within the Local Growth and Diversification Areas, the maps highlight 
risks at Banff and Macduff, Fraserburgh, Peterhead, Turriff and Mintlaw.  

The Strategic Development Plan recognises the risks of flooding that already exist 
but that climate change is likely to increase these risks. The plan notes that avoiding 
flood risk is an important means of adapting to climate change and that taking 
account of flood risk is vital when local development plans identify sites for 
development. 

Flood risk will be avoided and managed in line with the Scottish Planning Policy risk 
framework and through local development plan policies and detailed allocations. In 
doing so, local development plans should avoid development on land which is at 
unacceptable risk of coastal or river flooding (as defined by the ‘Indicative River and 
Coastal Flood Map for Scotland’ or through detailed flood risk assessment), except in 
exceptional circumstances. This is one of the targets of the Strategic Development 
Plan. In doing so it should be recognised that this SFRA has considered flood risk 
across the region at a strategic level and should not be used to assess individual 
sites. More detailed assessments of specific areas and allocations will be undertaken 
at an early stage to inform next round of local development plans.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 257



Map 1: SEPA Indicative Flood Map 

 

Page 258



Map 2: Detailed example of 1 in 200 year flood risk area map 

 
 

Page 259



Map 3: Potentially Vulnerable Areas 
 
 

 
 
©2012 Scottish Environment Protection Agency. Some features of this map are based on digital spatial data 
licensed from the Centre for Ecology and Hydrology, © CEH. Includes material based upon Ordnance Survey 
mapping with permission of H.M. Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright. Licence number 100016991. 
 
 
 
 
For further information see the following link; 
 
http://map.sepa.org.uk/nfra/map.htm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 260



MAP 4: National Flood Risk Area Risk Grid 
 
 

 
 
Key – Flood Risk 
 

 
 
 
©2012 Scottish Environment Protection Agency. Some features of this map are based on digital spatial data 
licensed from the Centre for Ecology and Hydrology, © CEH. Includes material based upon Ordnance Survey 
mapping with permission of H.M. Stationery Office, © Crown Copyright. Licence number 100016991. 
 
 
 
 
For further information see the following link; 
 
http://map.sepa.org.uk/nfra/map.htm 
 

Page 261



Page 262

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan 
 

Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment 
 
Introduction 
 

Section 270B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as amended, 
requires planning authorities to “perform their functions…in a manner which encourages 
equal opportunities”. This complements a range of legislation which applies to public 
and private sector organisations to underpin equal opportunities and human rights. 
 

This Equalities and Human Rights Impact Assessment assesses the Proposed 
Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan, with an overall purpose to help 
ensure that the plan does not discriminate and that where possible, opportunities are 
taken to promote equality, as well as all other human rights and good relations between 
groups. 
 
The Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan is an evolution of the 
Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan (2009). That plan went through an Equalities 
and Human Rights Assessments as well, so this assessment builds on that experience. 
 

All Equalities and Human Rights Assessments involve three stages: 
1. Assessing the impact of proposed or existing policies or functions on different 

equalities groups including collecting and analysing relevant data; 
2. Consulting people who are likely to be affected by the policies; and 
3. Reviewing and revising the policies in the light of the consultation and assessment. 
 
An Equalities and Human Rights Assessment involves thinking through the potential 
consequences of policies and functions on both the identified equality target groups and 
society at large, making sure that as far as possible, any negative impacts are 
minimised or eliminated and that opportunities for promoting equality and respect for all 
other human rights are maximised. The assessment follows the process adopted by 
Aberdeen City Council. 
 
Process 
 
The initial (Stage I) assessment was conducted in September 2011 on basis of the 
changes envisaged to the Structure Plan by the Main Issues Report. The Main Issues 
Report and its Equalities and Human Rights Assessments were published for 
consultation on 7 October 2011.  
 
Stage II (consultation) was undertaken between October and December 2011. No 
responses were received to the Equalities and Human Rights Assessments. 
 
Stage III of the process was carried out in 2012 as the proposed strategic development 
plan was prepared. In late 2012 there will be further opportunity to respond to the 
proposed strategic development plan which will be accompanied by this revised 
Equalities and Human Rights Assessment. 
 
The proposed strategic development plan will be submitted to Scottish Ministers in mid-
2013 who will approve it with or without modifications on the basis of an ‘examination’ 
into unresolved objections. The impact of any modifications to the plan prior to approval 
would be for Scottish Ministers to determine. However, if modifications are proposed, 
the SDPA will request that this assessment is updated prior to approval. 

Page 263



2 
 

STEP 1: Identify essential information 
 
 
1. Name of proposal. 
 
 

2. Officers completing this form. 
 

Name Designation Service 
 
David Jennings 
 
 

 
Strategic Development 
Plan Manager 

 
Aberdeen City and Shire SDPA 

 
3. Date of Impact Assessment. 
 
 

4. When is the proposal next due for review? 
 
 

5. Committee Name. 
 
 
6. Date the Committee is due to meet.  
 
 

7. Identify the Lead Council Service and who else is involved in the delivery of this 
proposal.  (for example other Council services or partner agencies) 

 

 
Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority.  Planning and 
Sustainable Development (Aberdeen City Council) as well as Planning and Building 
Standards (Aberdeenshire Council) will have a very important role to play in 
delivery, along with a range of other services of the two councils including housing, 
economic development and transportation. A range of partnerships, agencies and 
the private sector will also have an important role to play. 
 

 
9.  Please summarise this Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment, (EHRIA).  

This must include any practical actions you intend to take / have taken to reduce, 
justify or remove any adverse negative impacts.   

 

 
The assessment has identified positive impacts on a range of equality target 
groups, along with neutral impacts on the others.  
 

 
10.  Where will you publish the results of the Equality and Human Rights Impact 

Assessment?   
 

ü Full EHRIA will be attached to the committee report as an appendix. 
ü Full EHRIA will be available on the SDPA website, at all public libraries and on 

request from the SDPA. 

2017 

14 September 2012 

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan 
 

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development 
Planning Authority 

21 September 2012 

Page 264



3 
 

STEP 2: Outline the aims of the proposal 
 
11. What are the main aims of the proposal? 
 

 
To guide the future development of Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire over the period to 
2035 in such a way that it becomes more prosperous, sustainable and inclusive. 
 

 
12.  Who will benefit most from the proposal? 
 

 
The strategic development plan is intended to be of benefit to the whole of 
Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire - residents, businesses and visitors.  
 

 
13. Tell us if and how the proposal will increase equality of opportunity by permitting 

positive action to redress disadvantage? 
 

 
N/A 
 

 
14. What impact will the proposal have on promoting good relations and wider 

community cohesion? 
 

 
Sustainable mixed communities are a key component of the way development is 
envisaged to take place – meeting the needs of all in the community through the 
provision of a wide range of housing options with high quality design and 
community facilities. 
 

 

Page 265



4 
 

STEP 3: Gather and consider evidence 

15. What evidence is there to identify any potential positive or negative impacts in 
terms of consultation, research officer knowledge and experience, equality 
monitoring data, user feedback and other? 

 

 
 

 
The ‘Monitoring Statement’ identifies the scale of change in Aberdeen City and 
Shire over recent years, particularly focusing on the targets in the current structure 
plan. This identifies the scale and nature of population growth across the area. 
 
The ‘Housing Need and Demand Assessment’ seeks to identify the housing needs 
of the various equalities groups (p103 – 143).  The assessment identified for 
example an increasing percentage of the population in older age groups (a 200% 
increase in the over 85 age group for example between 2008 and 2033) and that 
ethnic minorities generally require homes with more bedrooms. At the strategic 
planning level, need is generally generic (with a few exceptions), but it is at the 
delivery phase where services and individual products need to be tailored to the 
needs of individual groups. It will be local housing strategies in particular which 
focus on these individual needs but the role of the strategic development plan is to 
ensure that the framework is in place to be best able to meet these needs in land 
use planning terms. The main exception relates to the housing needs of the 
gypsy/traveller community which are already identified explicitly in the structure 
plan (and there is no proposal to change this). In a few cases, such as within the 
LGB community, it was not possible to identify particular housing needs due to a 
lack of data – but it is thought unlikely that any need would require a distinctive 
response in the strategic development plan. 
 
Customer feedback has expressed concern over a lack of progress with dealing 
with the housing needs of the gypsy/traveller community on the ground. However, 
the structure plan saw local development plans as the main delivery mechanism to 
help meet their housing needs. Both local development plans have responded 
positively to this and have recently been adopted by both councils. As a 
consequence, it is too early to tell whether there is a need to change the 
framework in the strategic development plan. However, early indications are that 
sites are being identified through the masterplans prepared for some of the larger 
housing allocations in line with these policies. 
 
No additional impacts were identified in response to the Equalities and Human 
Rights Impact Assessment published alongside the Main Issues Report in 2011.  
 
Any unresolved objections to the Proposed Strategic Development Plan will be 
considered by an independent Reporter who will prepare a report with 
recommendations for Scottish Ministers outlining if and how the plan should be 
changed. Scottish Ministers are responsible for the final approval of the plan. 

Page 266



5 
 

STEP 4:  Assess likely impacts on equality strands 
 
16. Which, if any, equality target groups and others could be affected positively or 

negatively by this proposal?  Place the symbol in the relevant box. 
 

(Positive +, neutral 0, - negative) 
 

Equality Target Group 
Race* + Disability + Gender** 0 
LGB*** 0 Belief 0 Younger + 
Older + Others e.g. 

poverty 
+/0  

 
*  Race includes Gypsies/Travellers 
** Gender includes women, men, Transgender 
*** LGB: Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual 

 
17. Please detail the potential positive and/or negative impacts on the groups you have 

highlighted above?  Detail the impacts and describe the groups affected. 
 

Positive impacts 
(describe groups affected) 
 
Race – explicit recognition in the 
structure plan of the specific housing 
needs of gypsies / travellers. Improved 
quality of life and life chances in 
regeneration areas. 
 
Disability – increased accessibility to new 
developments by non-car modes of 
transport, including buses. 
 
Young People – economic growth will 
increase employment opportunities. 
Increased affordability and availability of 
housing. Increased accessibility of new 
development by non-car modes of 
transport. Reduced energy demand from 
new homes will reduce costs. 
 
Older People – Increased accessibility of 
new development by non-car modes of 
transport. Reduced energy demand from 
new homes will reduce costs. 
 
Other (poverty) – affordable housing for 
low income groups / young people / 
people with families / single people. 
Economic growth will increase 
employment opportunities. Regeneration 
will increase the quality of life and life 
chances. 

 

Negative Impacts 
(describe groups affected) 
 
 

Page 267



6 
 

STEP 5: Apply the three key assessment tests for compliance assurance 
 
18. Does this policy/procedure have the potential to interfere with an individual’s rights 

as set out in the Human Rights Act 1998?  State which rights might be affected by 
ticking the appropriate box(es) and how.  If you answer “no”, go to question 22. 

 
o Article 3 – Right not to be subjected to torture, inhumane or degrading treatment 
or punishment 
o Article 6 – Right to a fair and public hearing 
o Article 8 – Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence 
o Article 10 – freedom of expression 
o Other article not listed above 
 
How? 
 

No 
 

 
Legality 
 
19. Where there is a potential negative impact is there a legal basis in the relevant 

domestic law? 
 

 
N/A 

 
Legitimate aim 
 
20. Is the aim of the policy a legitimate aim being served in terms of the relevant 

equality legislation or the Human Rights Act? 
 

 
N/A 

 
 
Proportionality 
 
21. Is the impact of the policy proportionate to the legitimate aim being pursued?  Is it 

the minimum necessary interference to achieve the legitimate aim? 
 

 
N/A 

 

 

Page 268



7 
 

STEP 6: Monitor and review 
 
22. How will you monitor the implementation of the proposal?  (For example, customer 

satisfaction questionnaires) 
 

 
Monitoring is an essential part of the implementation of the strategic development 
plan. The plan will contain a monitoring framework directly related to the targets in 
the plan (as well as changes to the context) which will include a monitoring 
statement as well as more regular reports to the SDPA on individual subjects. 
 

 
23. How will the results of this impact assessment and any further monitoring be used 

to develop the proposal? 
 

 
This impact assessment has been produced to accompany the proposed strategic 
development plan, building on the assessment of the main issues report and 
previous structure plan. Any response to this assessment will be taken into 
account in the assessment of representations to the proposed plan itself. Any 
modifications to the proposed plan will be assessed by Scottish Ministers before 
approval of the strategic development plan (expected in late 2013 or early 2014). 
Monitoring will inform the review of the plan in 5 years’ time. 
 
Local development plans are a key means of implementing the strategic 
development plan. These are also subject to Equalities and Human Rights 
Assessments so the detailed implementation of the plan will also be subject to 
assessment by both Aberdeen City Council and Aberdeenshire Council. 
 

 

Page 269



8 
 

STEP 7: SIGN OFF 
 
The final stage of the EHRIA is formally to sign off the document as being a complete, 
rigorous and robust assessment. At this stage the assessment is interim in nature and 
subject to consultation. 
 
Person(s) completing the impact assessment. 
 
Name Date Signature 
 
David Jennings 
 

 
14 September 2012 

 

 
 
 

Page 270



Aberdeen City 
Council 
Annual report on the 
2011/12 audit 

 

Prepared for Members of Aberdeen City Council and the Controller of Audit 

October 2012 

  

Agenda Item 8(d)

Page 271



  
 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 2 

 

 

 

 
Audit Scotland is a statutory body set up in April 2000 under the Public Finance and Accountability 

(Scotland) Act 2000. It provides services to the Auditor General for Scotland and the Accounts Commission. 

Together they ensure that the Scottish Government and public sector bodies in Scotland are held to account 

for the proper, efficient and effective use of public funds. 

Page 272



 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 3 

 

Contents 
Key messages ............................................................................................................................... 4 

2011/12 audit findings ....................................................................................................... 4 

Outlook .............................................................................................................................. 4 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................... 6 

Financial statements .................................................................................................................... 7 

Audit opinion ..................................................................................................................... 7 

Accounting issues ............................................................................................................. 8 

Outlook ............................................................................................................................ 13 

Financial position ....................................................................................................................... 14 

Financial results .............................................................................................................. 14 

Capital investment and performance 2011/12 ................................................................. 17 

Treasury management .................................................................................................... 18 

Financial planning to support priority setting and cost reductions .................................... 19 

Outlook ............................................................................................................................ 21 

Governance and accountability ................................................................................................. 22 

Corporate governance ..................................................................................................... 22 

Prevention and detection of fraud and irregularities ......................................................... 24 

Standards of conduct and arrangements for the prevention/ detection of bribery and 
corruption ........................................................................................................................ 25 

Outlook ............................................................................................................................ 25 

Best Value, use of resources and performance ........................................................................ 26 

Management arrangements ............................................................................................ 26 

Overview of performance in 2011/12 ............................................................................... 27 

Local performance reporting ............................................................................................ 28 

National performance reports .......................................................................................... 29 

Progress against audit risks identified in the Shared Risk Assessment ........................... 29 

Outlook ............................................................................................................................ 31 

Appendix A: audit reports .......................................................................................................... 32 

Appendix B: action plan ............................................................................................................. 33 

 

Page 273



Key messages 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 4 

 

Key messages 
2011/12 audit findings     

We have given an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of Aberdeen City Council 
and its group.     

In 2011/12, the council spent £748 million on the provision of public services, with £678 million 
on revenue services and the remainder on its capital programme.  In recent years there has 
been an improving trend by services in managing their budgets.  For 2011/12, there was an 
overall surplus of £3.9 million.  At 31 March 2012, the general fund balance was £31.4 million 
of which unallocated balances amounted to £11.3 million.    

The Explanatory Foreword to the council's financial statements includes a range of nationally 
agreed indicators which show that the council can evidence effective financial management of 
its budget and collection of in-year council tax debt, is maintaining unallocated reserves in line 
with its agreed strategy and is managing capital within the constraints of the prudential code.   

The council generally has satisfactory governance arrangements in place but in relation to the 
administration of housing benefits, further improvement is required.  This will be challenging 
for the council alongside the implementation of welfare reform.   

The council also needs to give more consideration to its scrutiny role in relation to the 
companies and other organisations within its group structure.  This will be an important 
governance aspect for the council in taking forward its plans to create two companies to 
manage adult social care services and property maintenance.  These plans have important 
implications for staff, service users and the delivery of balanced budgets. 

The council has a monitoring framework linked to its five-year business plan with regular 
reporting to the management team.  It has reported stable or improving performance across 
the majority of its local performance indicators, along with improvements in the majority of 
reported statutory performance indicators. 

 

Outlook 

Looking ahead, the financial outlook for public spending for the period 2012/13 to 2014/15 
remains challenging.  The high level figures for Scotland announced in the UK 
Comprehensive Spending Review indicate significant funding reductions in these years and 
effective planning will be required from councils to address this.  

  

Page 274



Key messages 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 5 

 

The council recently concluded an extensive Priority Based Budgeting exercise which is the 
basis for its five-year business plan, approved in August 2011 and covering the period 2011-
16.  The plan set out £71.5 million of essential savings which need to be achieved if the 
council is to deliver a balanced budget in the coming years.  While there has been some 
reduction in future financial pressures arising from the Scottish Government’s implementation 
of a funding floor, the council also needs to respond to national reform of services such as 
police, fire, the integration of social work and health care and welfare benefits.   

 

  

Page 275



Introduction 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 6 

 

Introduction 
1. This report is the summary of our findings arising from the 2011/12 audit of Aberdeen City 

Council. The nature and scope of the audit were outlined in the Audit Plan presented to the 
Audit and Risk Committee on 28 February 2012 and follow the requirements of the Code of 
Audit Practice prepared by Audit Scotland in May 2011. The purpose of the annual audit 
report is to summarise the auditor’s opinions (i.e. on the financial statements) and 
conclusions, and to report any significant issues arising.  The report is divided into sections 
which reflect the extent of our public sector audit model. 

2. A number of reports have been issued in the course of the year in which we made  
recommendations for improvements (Appendix A).  We do not repeat all of the findings in this 
report, but instead we focus on the financial statements and any significant findings from our 
wider review of Aberdeen City Council. 

3. Appendix B is an action plan setting out the high level risks we have identified from the audit.  
Officers have considered the issues and are taking the specific steps in the column headed 
“management action".  We do not expect all risks to be eliminated or even minimised.  What 
we expect is that Aberdeen City Council understands its risks and has arrangements in place 
to manage these risks.  Members should ensure that they are satisfied with the proposed 
management action and have a mechanism in place to assess progress.   

4. This report is addressed to members and the Controller of Audit and should form a key part of 
discussions with the Audit and Risk Committee, either prior to, or as soon as possible after, 
the formal completion of the audit of the financial statements.  Reports should be available to 
the Scottish Parliament, other stakeholders and the public, where appropriate. Audit is an 
essential element of accountability and the process of public reporting.   

5. This report will be published on our website after consideration by the council. The information 
in this report may also be used for the Accounts Commission's annual overview report on local 
authority audits.  The overview report is published and presented to the Local Government 
and Regeneration Committee of the Scottish Parliament. 

6. The management of Aberdeen City Council is responsible for preparing financial statements 
that show a true and fair view and for implementing appropriate internal control systems.  The 
auditor is responsible for auditing and expressing an opinion on the financial statements.  
Weaknesses or risks identified by auditors are only those which have come to their attention 
during their normal audit work, and may not be all that exist.   Communication by auditors of 
matters arising from the audit of the financial statements or of risks or weaknesses does not 
absolve management from its responsibility to address the issues raised and to maintain an 
adequate system of control. 

7. The co-operation and assistance given to us by Aberdeen City Council members, officers and 
staff is gratefully acknowledged 

 

Page 276



Financial statements 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 7 

 

Financial statements 
8. Audited bodies’ financial statements are an essential part of accounting for their stewardship 

of the resources made available to them and their performance in the use of those resources.  

9. Auditors are required to audit financial statements in accordance with the timescales set by 
Audit Scotland, which may be shorter than statutory requirements, and give an opinion on: 

· whether they give a true and fair view of the financial position of audited bodies and 
their expenditure and income 

· whether they have been properly prepared in accordance with relevant legislation, the 
applicable accounting framework and other reporting requirements. 

10. Auditors review and report on, as appropriate, other information published with the financial 
statements, including the explanatory foreword, annual governance statement and the 
remuneration report.  Where required, auditors also review and report on the Whole of 
Government Accounts return. This section summarises the results of our audit on the financial 
statements.   

Audit opinion 

11. We have given an unqualified opinion that the financial statements of Aberdeen City Council 
for 2011/12 give a true and fair view of the financial position and expenditure and income of 
the council and its group for the year.  We also certify that the accounts have been prepared 
properly in accordance with the relevant legislation, applicable accounting standards and 
other reporting requirements. 

Legality 

12. Through our planned audit work we consider the legality of the council’s financial transactions.  
In addition the Head of Finance has confirmed that, to the best of his knowledge and belief, 
the financial transactions of the council were in accordance with relevant legislation and 
regulations.  There are no legality issues arising from our audit which require to be brought to 
members’ attention.   

Annual Governance Statement 

13. The financial statements contain an Annual Governance Statement (the statement) signed by 
both the Leader of the Council and Chief Executive.  As part of our annual audit, we review 
the disclosures made in the statement and the process for obtaining sufficient assurance to 
inform its content.   

14. Following discussions during the audit process, the statement was revised to give wider 
consideration of group governance.  The quality of the statement has improved and the 
council continues to strengthen governance arrangements in respect of the group. We noted 
that it would be good practice to require group entities to provide the council with regular 

Page 277



Financial statements 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 8 

 

performance monitoring information against targets alongside annual assurances on the 
operation of their internal controls.    

Refer Action Plan No. 1    

15. In line with good practice, arrangements should be put in place to ensure the Audit and Risk 
Committee considers and approves the statement in June each year before the financial 
statements are submitted for audit.  The committee should also scrutinise group performance 
arrangements on a regular basis, thus increasing awareness and understanding of the 
council’s group financial statements.          

Refer Action Plan No. 2    

16. We were satisfied with the disclosures made in the revised statement and the adequacy of the 
process put in place by the council to obtain assurances from its service directors. 

Remuneration Report 

17. We are satisfied that the remuneration report has been prepared in accordance with the Local 
Authority Accounts (Scotland) Act 1985 and Scottish Government finance circular 8/2011. The 
disclosures within the 2011/12 financial statements include all eligible remuneration for the 
relevant council officers and elected members.  

Accounting issues 

18. Local authorities in Scotland are required to follow the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011/12 (the Code).  We are satisfied that the council 
prepared the 2011/12 financial statements in accordance with the Code. 

Accounts submission including whole of government accounts (WGA) return  

19. The unaudited financial statements were submitted to the Controller of Audit in advance of the 
target date of 30 June.  The working paper package to support the financial statements was 
however, provided for audit over a number of weeks.  We experienced some delay in 
receiving explanations to clarify the audit trail between working papers and key financial 
statements. There were also occasions where audit resources were reallocated to other tasks 
pending receipt of working papers.  These factors increased the pressure on both audit and 
finance teams to ensure the necessary assurances were collated to deliver the audit opinion 
on schedule.    

20. However, finance and audit worked together to conclude the audit and the financial 
statements were certified by the target date of 30 September 2012. The financial statements 
are now available for presentation to members and for publication. 

21. The UK Government's aim in respect of WGA is to develop a fully audited set of accounts 
covering virtually all of the UK public sector.  For 2011/12, Scottish local authorities were 
required to submit an audited WGA return to the Scottish Government by 5 October 2012.  In 
view of the time required to resolve issues and make adjustments to the pack to reflect the 
council’s audited accounts, we submitted the audited consolidation pack on 19 October 2012. 

Page 278



Financial statements 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 9 

 

22. We have agreed with the Head of Finance that it will be useful to reflect on our respective 
processes for the preparation and audit of the financial statements and WGA return to identify 
improvements for the 2012/13 audit.  We plan to contribute to the council’s  ‘2012/13 
Accounting Guidance Information Pack’ to provide a shared understanding of working paper 
requirements and increase awareness of scheduling of audit activity.  This will assist in 
prioritising for the timely availability of supporting evidence.     

Refer Action Plan No. 3 

Presentational and monetary adjustments to the unaudited accounts  

23. In line with International Standards on Auditing 260 Communication of audit matters to those 
charged with governance, we reported the conclusions of our audit to the Audit and Risk 
Committee on 25 September 2012.  

24. Several errors were identified during the audit and the most significant were corrected in the 
accounts.  In overall terms, the corrected amounts had a net effect of decreasing net cost of 
services and increasing earmarked balances within the General Fund by £2.951 million. This 
largely related to amendments for unspent grant balances incorrectly included as creditors 
and future commitments wrongly included as provisions. A number of presentational 
amendments were also processed to improve the disclosures within the accounts. 

25. Adjustments were not made for other errors identified during the audit.  These errors, while 
more than clearly trivial, are immaterial to the accounts as a whole.  Had an adjustment been 
made, there would have been an increase on net cost of services by £0.196 million and a 
decrease in the general fund balance of £0.343 million.  Following discussions with the Head 
of Finance, we concurred with officers' proposals not to adjust the accounts for these 
amounts. 

Exceptional Items 

26. The council’s comprehensive income and expenditure account includes material amounts 
which were categorised as Exceptional Items. These related to a reduction in provisions of 
£10.5 million which increased resources available and a charge of £26.2 million to recognise 
the likely non-collection of debt from Aberdeen Exhibition and Conference Centre (AECC).   

27. During 2011/12, the council reviewed provisions held at 31 March 2011 and consequently 
decided they could be reduced by £10.5 million.  This included a reduction of £5.9 million in 
respect of potential equal pay claims and a reduction of £1.4 million for anticipated penalties 
connected with the Landfill Allowance Scheme. We reviewed the methodology and 
documentation provided by officers and were satisfied that the council had adopted a 
reasonable approach in estimating the level of provisions required.   

28. AECC is included in the council’s group accounts as a wholly owned subsidiary.  Historically, 
AECC has relied on an annual subsidy from the council and has also received loans of      
£26.2 million which were due for repayment between 2017 and 2021.  In 2010, the council 
decided to bring land around the centre and any proposed development plans for the area 
within council control and restrict AECC's business to that of managing and running 

Page 279



Financial statements 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 10 

 

conferences and events.  During 2011/12, new arrangements were formalised within a service 
level agreement and AECC set out future aims within a business plan. The financial element 
of this plan did not include provision for repayment of the £26.2 million loans. 

29. As part of the council’s review of AECC business, plans were put in place to remove its debt 
burden and transfer land to the council.  In June 2012, the council approved in principle to 
write off  amounts owed by AECC and therefore 100% provision for non-collection of the 
£26.2 million was made within the council's 2011/12 accounts.  We were in agreement with 
the council's accounting treatment in respect of this matter.   

30. There is strong council support for the exhibition centre and the need for the local economy to 
continue to have such a facility.  Independent economic impact assessments for the area 
have estimated AECC’s contribution to the local economy as being in excess of £100 million 
per annum. The financial support provided to AECC has been a regular feature of council 
business since local government reorganisation and we have noted that, whenever decisions 
have been taken about AECC, members were generally provided with appropriate economic 
results including the contribution provided by the facility in supporting the oil industry.  In 
making its decision regarding the write off, the council received robust information and can 
demonstrate that value for money was one of the factors considered.           

Prior year adjustments (Heritage assets) 

31. For the first time in 2011/12, the Code required local authorities to account for tangible 
heritage assets in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 30 Heritage assets. 
Heritage assets are those that are intended to be preserved in trust for future generations and 
are held and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and culture. The council 
identified heritage assets of £128.668 million largely representing the city art gallery’s fine art 
collections.  With the exception of Glasgow City Council who reported £1,400 million, 
Aberdeen identified and reported the highest value of heritage assets across Scottish local 
government.  We were satisfied with the approach adopted by the council in the identification 
of heritage assets and its implementation of FRS 30 requirements.  As this is a change in 
accounting policy, the previous year's balance sheet figures have been appropriately restated 
in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 8. 

Pension costs  

32. Aberdeen City Council is a scheduled body of North East Scotland Pension Fund which is a 
multi-employer defined benefit scheme.  In accordance with pensions accounting standard 
IAS19 'Retirement Benefits', the council has recognised its share of the net liabilities for the 
pension fund in the balance sheet. The valuation at 31 March 2012 provided by the scheme’s 
actuaries increased the council's share of the deficit from £228.255 million as at 31 March 
2011 to £257.577 million as at 31 March 2012. The large increase is due to changes in 
actuarial assumptions such as salary increases, mortality levels and rates of inflation.  
Actuarial assumptions in general were lower this year with the result that scheme liabilities 
increased. 

 

Page 280



Financial statements 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 11 

 

33. Exhibit 1 shows Aberdeen’s net liability compared to previous years.  This deficit does not 
require an immediate cash injection but is intended to be funded by increased contributions 
over the long term. 

Exhibit 1:  IAS19 Net Pension Liability/Deficit 
 2011/12 

£000 
 

 

20010/11 
£000 

2009/10 
£000 

Fair Value of Assets 
 744,506 846,722 738,366 

Liabilities - present value of defined 
benefits obligations 
 

(1,002,083) (1,074,977) (1,014,493) 

Net Pension Liability/Deficit 
 (257,577) (228,255) (276,127) 

Discount rate 
 4.9% 5.5% 5.5% 

Source: Aberdeen City Council Statement of Accounts 2011/12 

Group accounts 

34. The diversity of service delivery vehicles used by local authorities means that consolidated 
group financial statements are required to give a true and fair view of the activities of the 
council.  To enable the preparation of group financial statements, councils are required to 
consider their interests in all entities including companies, joint ventures and statutory bodies. 

35. The council has interests in 5 subsidiaries, 3 associates and one jointly controlled entity which 
are consolidated in the group accounts.  These interests have been included in group 
accounts in accordance with the Code and are shown in Exhibit 2.    

36. International Standard on Auditing (ISA) 600 'Using the work of another auditor' requires us to 
consider a number of matters relating to the audit of group entities included within the financial 
statements of the council.  As part of this process we issue questionnaires to auditors of 
material group entities and obtain audited accounts for all subsidiaries and associates.  Based 
on this work we draw members’ attention to the following matters:   

· in accordance with recommended accounting practice, key policies for component 
bodies such as pension costs and the valuation of non-current assets at market value 
have been aligned with the council’s accounting policies. Where this was not possible, 
we were satisfied that the amount was not material to the group accounts. 

· all bodies within the group received unqualified audit opinions on their 2011/12 
financial statements.  

 

Page 281



Financial statements 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 12 

 

Exhibit 2 – Aberdeen City Council Group Structure  

 
Source: Aberdeen City Council Statement of Accounts 2011/12 

 

Trust Funds 

37. Aberdeen City Council has 50 registered charitable trusts. Charitable bodies are required to 
comply with the requirements of the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 meaning 
a full set of financial statements is required for each trust fund. However, the Office of the 
Scottish Charities Regulator (OSCR) has deferred full implementation until 2013/14 allowing 
the council to continue to rely on existing disclosures for trust funds in the council's financial 
statements supplemented with additional working papers.  The council is currently going 
through an exercise to amalgamate the trust funds to reduce the overall number. 

Common Good Fund 

38. As at 31 March 2012, the value of the Common Good Fund stood at £73.853 million, an 
increase of £6.670 million from the value in the previous financial year. This increase was 
largely attributable to the increase in the value of the investment property held by the fund. 

39. In December 2007, the Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee (LASAAC) 
issued guidance covering the common good.  The council complies with this guidance as it 
prepares a separate disclosure in the council's financial statements and the assets are 
separately identified in the council's asset register.  

40. The guidance note also states that local authorities should take reasonable steps to ensure 
that common good asset registers support the assets shown in the common good balance 
sheet.  In common with other councils, Aberdeen’s view is that reviewing the title deeds at 
point of sale represents "reasonable steps" for maintaining the asset register as a title deeds 
search of all council assets would be time consuming and prohibitively expensive.  

Aberdeen City Council

Su
bs

id
ia

rie
s Aberdeen Exhibition 

and Conference 
Centre
100%

Mountwest 343 
Limited

100%

Common Good Funds 
100%

Trust Funds 
100%

Sport Aberdeen 
100%

A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

Grampian Joint Police 
Board
48%

Grampian Joint Fire 
and Rescue Board

49%

Grampian Valuation 
Joint Board

39%

Jo
in

t V
en

tu
re Aberdeen Sports 

Village Limited
ACC 50%

University of 
Aberdeen 50%

Page 282



Financial statements 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 13 

 

41. Restrictions over the alienation or disposal of common good assets continue to be governed 
by the law of common good.  No issues were identified through our routine audit activity during 
2011/12 in relation to the treatment of common good asset. 

Outlook  

42. The council is considering establishing a Local Authority Trading Company (LATC) for Adult 
Social Care services as an option to deliver £2.5 million of savings to the council over a 5 year 
period.  The company would be a wholly owned subsidiary of the council and around 600 staff 
would transfer from the council to the company.   If implemented, changes could start from     
1 April 2013.  In respect of the financial statements, there will be range of issues to consider 
and resolve in terms of separately identifying and disclosing the transactions and outstanding 
liabilities for the services to be transferred and any potential workforce reduction and early 
retirement costs.    

Refer Action Plan No. 4 

 

 
 

Page 283



Financial position 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 14 

 

Financial position 
43. Audited bodies are responsible for conducting their affairs and for putting in place proper 

arrangements to ensure that their financial position is soundly based.  

44. Auditors consider whether audited bodies have established adequate arrangements and 
examine: 

· financial performance in the period under audit 

· compliance with any statutory financial requirements and financial targets 

· ability to meet known or contingent, statutory and other financial obligations 

· responses to developments which may have an impact on the financial position 

· financial plans for future periods. 

45. These are key areas in the current economic circumstances.  This section summarises the 
financial position and outlook for the organisation.   

Financial results 

46. In 2011/12, Aberdeen City Council spent £747.6 million on the provision of public services 
including £69.1 million on its capital programme. In delivering these services the council 
generated an accounting loss of £64.7 million.  Adjustments are, however, required to this 
accounting deficit to reflect the statutory funding arrangements in place.  Once these are 
taken into account, the council increased its usable (cash backed) reserves by £4.1 million 
during 2011/12.  This is set out in Exhibit 6.  

Budgetary control 

47. Overall, a favourable outturn of £3.9 million was achieved by the council for 2011/12 and 
further explanation in provided throughout this section of the report.  In relation to the council's 
key frontline services, Exhibit 3 shows an increasing trend towards underspends in recent 
years.   

48. Exhibit 4 shows the departmental projected results as reported on a regular basis to members 
and highlights the on-going attention to savings during the year.  It should be noted however, 
that the level of variance is low in percentage terms for each department.   

49. Corporate Budgets were overspent by £6.8 million having taken account of a planned 
contribution of £8.8 million from surpluses delivered by significant trading operations.  The 
main reason for the overspend was the exceptional item mentioned earlier in paragraph 26 in 
respect of the non-collection of AECC debt.   

  

Page 284



Financial position 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 15 

 

  

Exhibit 3 - Service (underspend)/ overspend  

 2011/12 

£ million 

2010/11 

£million 

2009/10 

£ million 

Key Services 

Education, Culture and Sport  (0.7)  1.8 1.3  

Housing and Environment  (0.8)  (0.6)  (0.1) 

Social Care and Wellbeing (2.2) (7.8)  1.5 

Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure (3.0)  2.6  0.5 

Corporate Governance (2.8) (1.4) (2.0) 

Source: Aberdeen City Council Revenue Monitoring 2009/10, Statement of Accounts 2010/11 & 2011/12 

 

 

Exhibit 4 - 2011/12 Projected Outturn Variance against Budget   

 

Source: Aberdeen City Council Revenue Budget Monitoring 

 

50. During the year, architectural services transferred from Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure 
(EP&I) to Housing and Environment.  In addition, internal recharges were removed from 
service budgets which in effect transferred budgets from Education into EP&I.   This largely 
explains the reasons for the movements between revised budgets for key front-line services 
shown in Exhibit 5  

-3

-2

-1

0

1

2

3

July September January March

£m 
 

Period 

 
 

Social Care and Wellbeing

Education Culture and Sport

Enterprise Planning and
Infrastructure

Housing and Environment

Corporate Governance

Page 285



Financial position 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 16 

 

51. As set out in Exhibit 5, the council received additional government funding of £0.5 million 
between setting its budget in February 2011 and its revised budget position in June 2011.  
The outturn position shows that funding subsequently increased by a further £3 million 
represented by additional Scottish Government funding of £1 million and the balance relates 
to council tax income from second homes earmarked for affordable housing projects.        

Exhibit 5 - Outturn against budget 2011/12 

 Approved 

Budget  - 

February 

2011   

Revised 

Budget – 

June 2011  

Revised 

Budget after 

service 

changes 

Outturn Outturn 

variance 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Key Services 

Education, Culture and Sport 182,775 180,551 173,409 172,212  1,197 

Housing and Environment 44,542 44,195 41,198 39,318  1,880 

Social Care and Wellbeing  125,665 121,810 120,060 117,823 2,237 

Enterprise Planning and 

Infrastructure 

30,986 31,479 44,679 41,268 3,411 

Corporate Governance 26,724 28,091 28,532 25,801 2,731 

 

Total General Fund Services  443,350 443,834 444,904 443,035  1,869 

Funding  443,350 443,834 444,904 446,944  2,040 

General Fund Surplus  0 0 0 3,909 3,909 

Source: Aberdeen City Council Revenue Budget 2011/12, Revenue Budget Monitoring 

 

52. At 31 March 2012, the council had total usable funds of £60.3 million and as Exhibit 6 
demonstrates, this is an increase of £4.1 million compared to the previous year largely due to 
an increase in the capital fund which is held within statutory reserves. The unallocated general 
fund balance was held at £11.3 million.  The council’s policy is to maintain free balances at 
£11.3 million which is approximately 2.5% of revenue expenditure.  This was achieved in 
respect of 2011/12. 

  

Page 286



Financial position 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 17 

 

 

Exhibit 6: Reserves 

Description 31 March 2012 

£ million 

31 March 2011 

£ million 

General Fund (unallocated) 11.3 11.3 

General Fund (earmarked balances) 20.1 24.2 

Housing Revenue Account (unallocated) 4.3 4.5 

Housing Revenue Account (earmarked balances) 2.7 2.4 

Statutory and other reserves  21.8 13.6 

Capital grants unapplied 0.1 0.3 

Total  60.3 56.2 

Source: Aberdeen City Council Statement of Accounts 2011/12 

 

53. CIPFA's Directors of Finance Group has developed a suite of financial indicators for councils.  
The indicators will assist in evaluating a council's financial sustainability and the affordability of 
financial plans and could be used to compare financial performance across comparator 
councils.  The indicators also demonstrate the effectiveness of the financial management 
arrangements.  We were pleased to note that the Head of Finance had incorporated the 
indicators in the Explanatory Foreword to the annual accounts.  These show that the council 
can evidence effective financial management of its budget and collection of in-year council tax 
debt, is maintaining uncommitted reserves in line with its agreed strategy and is managing 
capital within the constraints of the prudential code.          

Capital investment and performance 2011/12 

54. The financial statements show additions to the council's property, plant and equipment of 
£69.1 million, the majority of which relates to roads and other infrastructure.  Including other 
asset categories and non-asset creating expenditure, this produces a total for capital 
expenditure in 2011/12 of £73.8 million.  Although this is a reduction from £116.4 million in 
2010/11, the outcome is in line with plans implemented by an officer led capital asset 
management group for the council to have a more affordable capital programme.     

55. The trend in sources of funding for capital financing is reflected in Exhibit 7. In recent years, 
the council’s flagship capital project has been the re-development of Marischal College as the 
council’s new headquarters.  The council has also developed plans for a significant capital 
expenditure project to regenerate Union Terrace Gardens in the city centre, known as the City 
Gardens Project (CGP). The estimated costs of the CGP were around £120 million, to be met 
by private contributions and Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) funding. A local referendum, held 

Page 287



Financial position 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 18 

 

on 1 March 2012, resulted in a majority in favour of the City Gardens Project. However in 
August 2012, the council voted to reject the CGP in favour of a package of smaller 
regeneration projects within the city centre.  Options to finance these latest plans are currently 
being considered.   

56. During 2011/12, the Marischal College was brought into use as the council’s new 
headquarters.  Consequently, the former main office building, St Nicholas House, was 
earmarked as a prime city centre location for redevelopment and was placed on the market.  A 
sub-committee of the Finance and Resources Committee was set up to consider the options 
arising from initial stage of marketing the site. It is too early to determine what the disposal 
proceeds might be and/or what additional cost the council will incur should it decide to 
contribute or be a partner in the future development.   

 

Exhibit 7 - Sources of finance for capital expenditure 2008/09 – 2011/12  

 
Source: Aberdeen City Council Statement of Accounts 

Treasury management 

57. Treasury management activities are reported twice a year to the council and the strategy is 
updated annually. As at 31 March 2012, Aberdeen City Council held short term investments of 
£42 million (£20 million at 31 March 2011).  The increase was largely due to temporary 
deposits held on behalf of the North East Scotland Pension Fund as a result of additional 
employer contributions received from scheduled bodies at the year end.       

58. All borrowing undertaken by the council should be in accordance with the Prudential Code 
which requires the council to demonstrate that it is affordable and sustainable.  For 2011/12, 
the council demonstrated tighter control of its capital programme and consequently, it was in a 
position to maintain its net borrowing at £558 million from 31 March 2011 to 31 March 2012.     

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

£
m

 

Financial Year 

 Capital Receipts/Other
Receipts

Revenue Financing/Borrowing

Govt. Grants/Other

Page 288



Financial position 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 19 

 

59. When the affordability of the current level of borrowing is considered, PFI borrowing needs to 
be included.  On this basis, overall net borrowing amounts to £666 million.  This is 29.6% of 
total assets, which compared to other Scottish authorities, is below the median figure of 
34.5%.    

Financial planning to support priority setting and cost reductions 

60. The Aberdeen City Council Business Plan was approved by the council in August 2011 and 
covers a five-year planning cycle from 2011-16.  As part of the development of the business 
plan, the council undertook an extensive Priority Based Budgeting (PBB) exercise that 
reviewed all costs incurred, considered all services being delivered and, having defined 
strategic priorities, developed a change programme which included a package of service 
options to deliver £71.5 million of savings by 2015/16.  This is an essential savings 
programme to assist the council to deliver a balanced budget in the years ahead. 

61. Stage 1 within Exhibit 8 shows the council’s projections when the 2011/12 budget was agreed 
in February 2011.  On the assumption that there were no changes in service provision, the 
cumulative budget shortfall estimated at that point for the 5 years to 2015/16 was £105 million 
of which £71.5 million was to be delivered through the agreed package of savings leaving a 
balance of £33.8 million to be funded by other means. 

62. During 2011, officers concluded their current PBB activities and consequently amended the 
future 5-year projections. In December 2011, revised 2011/12 figures reduced the shortfall 
from £33.8 million to £15.8 million. 

63. As part of the development of the 2012/13 revenue budget the council was able to revise the 
future estimates for funding and expenditure. Summary figures are set out in Stage 2 within 
Exhibit 8.  Funding levels were forecast to rise as a result of the Scottish Government’s 
implementation of the 85% funding floor, while overall cost pressures were reduced following 
a further review of forecast assumptions and an assessment of progress in delivery of the 
agreed savings packages.  This revised forecast reflected a reduced cost base having taken 
service reduction identified through the savings packages into account.  In February 2012, a  
further savings package of £2.5 million was agreed to deliver a balanced budget for 2012/13 
and the revised shortfall position at 2016/17 was estimated at £10.2 million.  Financial 
forecasts and progress against savings packages are routinely reviewed and monitored as 
part of regular monitoring reported to the management team and members.   

Refer Action Plan No. 5 

Asset management 

64. A corporate asset management group was established in 2010 to ensure the capital 
programme was developed in line with council priorities and was affordable.  Bids for funding 
are now more carefully considered before inclusion in the capital plan.  The group has senior 
representation from services and reports to management team on a regular basis.   

Page 289



Financial position 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 20 

 

65. A Corporate Asset Management Plan (CAMP) was under development during 2012. This is an 
overarching plan covering property, fleet, open space, housing, ICT and infrastructure assets. 
Asset Management Plans for each of these asset groups will support the CAMP and provide a 
link between the management of assets and the council’s strategic priorities.  For example, a  
plan was implemented for property assets in 2009 and is updated annually and during 2012 a 
roads asset plan was approved by members.  This is referred to further in paragraph 109.   

Exhibit 8: Movement in Financial Position 2011/12 – 2016/17 

 
2011/12 

£’000 

2012/13 

£’000 

2013/14 

£’000 

2014/15 

£’000 

2015/16 

£’000 

2016/17 

£’000 

Stage 1 Assumptions – No change in services  

Funding (460,587) (441,662) (434,959) (431,560) (431,354)  

Expenditure 476,164 491,655 511,500 526,276 536,717  

Shortfall 10/02/11 15,577 49,993 76,541 94,716 105,363  

Savings Agreed 10/02/11 (15,577) (39,735) (57,195) (65,308) (71,575)  

Revised Shortfall 10/02/11 0 10,258 19,346 29,408 33,788  

Increase Income 

Projections 06/12/11 

 (3,559) (750) (1,480) (6,060)  

Reduced Cost Projections 

06/12/11 

 (3,099) (10,867) (18,906) (19,629)  

Revised Shortfall 06/12/11  3,600 7,729 9,022 8,099 15,714 

Stage 2 Assumptions – Reduced cost base taking agreed service reduction into account  

Funding  (459,600) (461,821) (465,244) (471,908) (475,947) 

Expenditure  462,198 466,902 469,327 474,883 485,877 

Shortfall 09/02/12  2,598 5,081 4,083 2,975 9,930 

Savings Agreed 09/02/12  (2,598) (2,435) (2,426) (2,418) 293 

Revised Shortfall 09/02/12  0 2,646 1,657 557 10,223 

Source: Aberdeen City Council Revenue Budget 2011/12 and 2012/13, Report to Finance & Resources 

06/12/12. 

Workforce reduction 

66. Between 2009 and 2011, the council implemented significant organisational restructuring in 
response to the financial crisis it experienced at that time.  This included workforce reduction 
and early retirement.  Although the council has the occasional number of staff taking exit 
packages, there is no major programme of workforce reduction currently required to balance 
the budget.  The council does however deliver regular savings through vacancy management. 

Page 290



Financial position 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 21 

 

67. The implementation of single status was several years ago and the management of equal pay 
claims was largely addressed through the use of compromise agreements.  The council has a 
relatively low number of outstanding equal pay claims and therefore reduced the amount of 
the equal pay provision included in its financial statements at 31 March 2012.  This was 
referred to earlier at paragraph 27. 

Partnership working 

68. In response to a request from the Cabinet Secretary for Finance, Employment and 
Sustainable Growth, the Accounts Commission, with scrutiny partners, has led development 
work on how audit and inspection can support the delivery of better outcomes by Community 
Planning Partnerships.  Initial audits are being undertaken in Aberdeen, North Ayrshire and 
Scottish Borders with reports due to be published in Spring 2013.  These early audits will 
inform the evolving methodology and approach for the audits of subsequent partnerships.  

69. The Priority Based Budgeting process identified an Alternative Delivery Model (ADM) as a 
means of working with an external strategic partner.  The model involved outsourcing various 
functions of the Corporate Governance service as a potential efficiency saving. However, in 
March 2012, the council’s Finance and Resources Committee cancelled the ADM project in 
favour of taking forward an internal transformation programme to deliver a similar level of 
savings.    

Outlook 

2012/13 budget reporting and financial forecasts beyond 2012/13 

70. In August 2012, the 2012/13 outturn forecast reported to members was an underspend of 
£2.182 million, around 0.5% of budget. This position has arisen due to increased income from 
shared buildings, vacancy management and reduced waste disposal costs.  

71. The council’s 5 Year Business Plan 2012/13 – 2016/17 sets out its strategic objectives and 
priorities for the period.  As detailed in paragraphs 60 to 63, the council is forecasting a budget 
shortfall each year.  Comprehensive savings packages have been agreed and need to be 
delivered to enable the council to be in a position to balance budgets. Included in those 
packages are options to set up 2 wholly owned companies to deliver council services. Plans 
are being progressed to set up a local authority trading company to deliver adult social care 
while a Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) is being considered for managing property repairs. 
These plans have important implications for staff, service users and in the delivery of balanced 
budgets.  

72. In the short term, the council expects relative financial stability as savings packages in 
2012/13 and 2013/14 are anticipated to deliver an outturn in line with a balanced budget.  
Beyond that, however, the medium to long term outlook for public sector finance remains 
significantly challenging so councils will need to plan accordingly,   

 

Page 291



Governance and accountability 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 22 

 

Governance and 
accountability 
73. The three fundamental principles of corporate governance – openness, integrity and 

accountability – apply to all audited bodies, whether their members are elected or appointed, 
or whether they comprise groups of people or an individual accountable officer. 

74. Through its chief executive or accountable officer, each body is responsible for establishing 
arrangements for ensuring the proper conduct of its affairs including the legality of activities 
and transactions, and for monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 
Audited bodies usually involve those charged with governance (including audit committees or 
similar groups) in monitoring these arrangements. 

75. Consistent with the wider scope of public audit, auditors have a responsibility to review and 
report on audited bodies’ corporate governance arrangements as they relate to: 

· corporate governance and systems of internal control 

· the prevention and detection of fraud and irregularity 

· standards of conduct and arrangements for the prevention and detection of corruption 

76. In this part of the report we comment on key areas of governance. 

Corporate governance 

Processes and committees 

77. After the local elections in May 2012, the administration of the council changed from a Scottish 
National Party/Liberal Democrat coalition to a Labour/Conservative/Independent Alliance 
coalition. There were 17 (40%) new members out of a total of 43 members. Each elected 
member has a personal development plan from which training can be tailored to an 
individual’s needs. In addition, elected member briefing sessions are held when necessary to 
provide detailed information on complex issues.   

78. Effective scrutiny is central to good governance, with a significant role for members to 
scrutinise performance, hold management to account and support the modernisation agenda. 
The Audit and Risk Committee provides the main scrutiny mechanism within the council. In 
line with good practice, the committee is chaired by the Leader of the main opposition party in 
the council. The remit of the committee is in line with good practice principles set out in 
CIPFA's Guidance Note 'Audit Committee Principles in Local Authorities in Scotland'.   

79. While we are generally satisfied that the committee operates effectively, we would wish to 
work with officers to increase the committee's scrutiny of the council’s financial statements.  
The link between the budget outturn and the financial statements is quite complicated but 
important for the committee to understand.  The ‘financial position’ section of this report should 

Page 292



Governance and accountability 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 23 

 

provide a helpful commentary on this matter.  Although the accounts are submitted to full 
council in June, the cycle of committee dates was such that the Audit and Risk Committee did 
not consider them until September when the matters arising from the audit were discussed.  
This did not provide the right opportunity for scrutiny of the financial statements.  We would 
suggest that steps are taken to enable the committee to have an opportunity to consider the 
unaudited accounts in the June cycle of meetings.           

80. Training should be provided to enable elected members become more engaged with the 
content of the financial statements and the linkages with the budget monitoring outturn 
information.  This would better equip members to challenge officers on reported figures.      

Refer Action Plan No. 2 

Internal control 

81. While auditors concentrate on significant systems and key controls in support of the opinion 
on the financial statements, their wider responsibilities require them to consider the financial 
systems and controls of audited bodies as a whole.  However, the extent of this work should 
also be informed by their assessment of risk and the activities of internal audit. 

82. Internal audit for the council is provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers.  Generally, we seek to 
rely on the work of internal audit wherever possible and in respect of 2011/12, we concluded 
that reliance could be placed on their work.   International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) 
require evaluation of critical financial systems and testing of key controls on an annual basis.  
In reaching conclusions, audit work should be based on controls and transactions across the 
financial year. For 2011/12, reviews of financial systems by internal audit were largely 
completed in the early part of the financial year and while this provided some assurance, we 
were required to undertake additional testing to ensure coverage across the year. We have 
however agreed a strategy for 2012/13 which will ensure improved sharing of the work 
between internal and external audit and wider coverage of systems across the year by internal 
audit. 

83. No material weaknesses in the accounting and internal control systems were identified during 
the audit which could adversely affect the ability to record, process, summarise and report 
financial and other relevant data so as to result in a material misstatement in the financial 
statements 

84. The Head of Finance holds the council's statutory chief financial officer role.  He attends 
council and management meetings and has direct access to members and other chief officers.  
For 2011/12, the council was able to demonstrate compliance with the governance 
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local 
Government. 

  

Page 293



Governance and accountability 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 24 

 

Prevention and detection of fraud and irregularities 

85. Audited bodies are responsible for establishing arrangements to prevent and detect fraud and 
other irregularity.   Auditors review and report on these arrangements. 

86. The council has appropriate arrangements in place to help prevent and detect fraud and 
irregularity.  These arrangements include, for example, a counter fraud strategy, a whistle 
blowing policy and codes of conduct for elected members and staff.  Overall we concluded 
that arrangements for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities were 
generally satisfactory.   

NFI in Scotland 

87. Audit Scotland has coordinated another major counter-fraud exercise working together with a 
range of Scottish public bodies, external auditors and the Audit Commission to identify fraud 
and error. These exercises, known as the National Fraud Initiative in Scotland (NFI), are 
undertaken every two years as part of the statutory audits of the participating bodies. The 
latest exercise started in October 2010 and was reported upon in May 2012. The next round 
of NFI commenced in September 2012, and expands the range of data sets and bodies. 

Housing and council tax benefits  

- Performance audit 

88. A risk assessment was previously carried out on Aberdeen City Council’s benefits service in 
October 2009 when Audit Scotland identified ten risks to continuous improvement. These 
were reported to the Chief Executive in November 2009. The council submitted an action plan 
in January 2010 to address these risks. In Summer 2012, a follow up review was undertaken 
by Audit Scotland as part of a planned timetable of performance audits.  The council 
submitted a revised self-assessment in August 2012 along with supporting evidence, and an 
updated action plan. The findings from the follow up review are due to be reported in 
November 2012.   

- Housing benefit subsidy  

89. In previous reports to members, Henderson Loggie reported on the level of errors found when 
examining cases in connection with the audit of the council's housing benefit subsidy claims. 
This meant that the council had overclaimed subsidy leading to a recovery of £0.849 million by 
the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) in respect of the 3 year period to 31 March 
2010.  The outcome of the 2010/11 audited claim has yet to be determined by DWP. 

90. In 2011/12, we continued to find a significant number of errors in our case review of benefit 
claims.  Consequently, further samples have been selected in order that focused work can be 
undertaken on the areas of specific concern.  On conclusion of this additional work, errors will 
be extrapolated in consultation with benefits staff and reported to DWP who will then 
determine if there are financial implications for the council.  The 2011/12 subsidy claim will be 
certified by 30 November 2012.  Thereafter, we will provide management with an analysis of 

Page 294



Governance and accountability 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 25 

 

the types of errors found in order that further steps can be taken to improve benefit processing 
arrangements.  

Refer Action Plan No. 6 

Standards of conduct and arrangements for the prevention/ 
detection of bribery and corruption 

91. Audited bodies are responsible for ensuring that their affairs are managed in accordance with 
proper standards of conduct and that they have proper arrangements in place for 
implementing and monitoring compliance with standards and codes of conduct, standing 
orders and financial instructions.  Auditors consider whether bodies have adequate 
arrangements in place. We have concluded that the overall arrangements in Aberdeen City 
Council are satisfactory.   

Complaints Handling Procedures 

92. The council participated in the working group established in 2011 by the Complaints 
Standards Authority. This enabled the council to prepare an effective implementation 
programme for the introduction of the standardised local authority Complaints Handling 
Procedures (CHP). The council submitted details of the revised CHP confirming compliance 
with the Scottish Public Sector Ombudsman’s Implementation Guide for Complaints Handling 
Procedures in August 2012.  We will monitor the new arrangements as part of the 2012/13 
audit. 

Outlook  

93. The Welfare Reform Act 2012 received royal assent in March 2012. The Act provides for the 
introduction of a 'Universal Credit' to replace a range of existing means-tested benefits and tax 
credits for people of working age, starting from 2013. Councils will face challenges in 
understanding and acting upon welfare reform changes.  The introduction of Universal Credit 
will also have a significant impact on councils' strategies and plans in areas such as housing, 
asset management, finance, ICT and customer service. Councils will be challenged during this 
period of change to maintain service delivery and performance around housing benefit claims. 

94. As part of our work on the 2012/13 audit, we will consider the council's preparedness for 
introduction of these changes, and how it is developing and taking forward its strategies and 
plans to address the risks arising from these changes.  

 

Page 295



Best Value, use of resources and performance 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 26 

 

Best Value, use of 
resources and performance 
95. Audited bodies have a specific responsibility to ensure that arrangements have been made to 

secure Best Value. The Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 places a duty on the auditors 
of local government bodies to be satisfied that proper arrangements have been made for 
securing Best Value and complying with responsibilities relating to community planning. 
Auditors of local government bodies also have a responsibility to review and report on the 
arrangements that specified audited bodies have made to prepare and publish performance 
information in accordance with directions issued by the Accounts Commission. 

96. As part of their statutory responsibilities, the Accounts Commission may procure, through 
Audit Scotland, examinations of the use of resources by audited bodies and publish reports or 
guidance.  Auditors may be requested from time to time to participate in: 

· a performance audit which may result in the publication of a national report 

· an examination of the implications of a particular topic or performance audit for an 
audited body at local level 

· a review of a body’s response to national recommendations.  

97. Auditors may also consider the use of resources in services or functions, where the need for 
this is identified through local audit risk assessments 

98. During the course of their audit appointment auditors should also consider and report on 
progress made by audited bodies in implementing the recommendations arising from reviews 
in earlier years. 

99. This section includes a commentary on the Best Value and performance management 
arrangements within the council.  Any headline performance outcomes and measures used by 
the council are also noted and we comment on relevant national reports.     

Management arrangements 

Performance management  

100. The Aberdeen City Council Business Plan was approved by the council in August 2011 and 
covers a five-year planning cycle from 2011-16. The plan is subject to ongoing review and 
update. The business plan reflects the council’s strategic priorities and details specific,   
priority-based actions. Performance monitoring sits alongside the business plan focusing on 
achievement of the plan and regular monitoring by elected members of progress in 
implementing the council’s strategic priorities.  

101. The overall responsibility for corporate monitoring lies with the Corporate Policy and 
Performance Committee (CPPC).  There is also a Corporate Performance Management 

Page 296



Best Value, use of resources and performance 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 27 

 

Group who is consulted on all changes to the framework. Regular performance exception 
reports are presented to each of the council’s service committees highlighting performance 
outwith agreed target levels. A recent review confirmed that exception reporting is not 
consistent across services and required further development.  This is being addressed by 
CPPC.   

Overview of performance in 2011/12 

Statutory performance indicators 

102. In 2011/12, a total of 25 Statutory Performance Indicators, with 56 individual performance 
measures were required. The majority of these show improving performance as Exhibit 9 
illustrates. 

Exhibit 9:  Improvements demonstrated by SPIs (Total 56 measures from 25 indicators) 

 
Source:  Aberdeen City Council SPI data returns 

103. The improved indicators include sickness absence levels, percentage of Council Tax income 
due which was received and processing time for planning applications.  The measures which 
showed a decline included rent arrears and attendance at libraries and swimming pools. 

Aberdeen City Council performance measurement outcomes  

104. In addition to the Statutory Performance Indicators, councils are required to publish a range of 
performance information sufficient to demonstrate that they are securing Best Value across a 
defined range of services and criteria. Aberdeen City Council have therefore developed a 
further 48 local performance indicators including 74 performance measures and 3 qualitative 
assessments. The majority of these have remained stable or improved in 2011/12 as 
demonstrated in Exhibit 10.  

40 

1 

14 

1 

Improved

No Change

Declined

No Direct Comparison

Page 297



Best Value, use of resources and performance 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 28 

 

Exhibit 10:  Improvements demonstrated by local performance indicators (Total 74 
measures from 48 indicators) 

 
Source:  Aberdeen City Council SPI data returns 

105. Examples of improving performance included the percentage of food hygiene visits completed 
by the due date, repairs to street lights and the number of children on the child protection 
register. The measures which declined during the year included the cost of the Accountancy 
and Human Resource services and the time to process new benefit claims and changes to 
existing claims. 

106. The 3 indicators which were not reported in 2011/12 were the council’s carbon footprint, 
educational outcomes for looked after children and satisfaction with the council. In each case, 
no current data was available to calculate the indicator. The Corporate Performance 
Management Group is to review the non-specified indicators during 2013. 

Local performance reporting 

107. In 2010, Audit Scotland agreed a targeted approach to following-up a small number of 
performance audit reports each year to promote local impact. During 2011/12 ‘Maintaining 
Scotland’s roads: a follow-up report’, which was published in February 2011, was selected for 
follow up. The aim of the follow-up review was to assess the progress the council had made in 
improving the management of roads maintenance, focusing on road asset management 
planning, performance management and maximising value for money. 

108. Aberdeen City Council is responsible for a local road network of 913 km with a gross 
replacement value of over £1.014 billion.  Funding required for routine maintenance is           
£2 million per annum with a further £200 million estimated for backlog repairs to reinstate 
carriageways to fully acceptable standards.   

109. A Roads Asset Management Plan (RAMP) was approved by the Enterprise, Planning & 
Infrastructure Committee in September 2012. The RAMP describes the approach Aberdeen 

30 

23 

16 

3 
4 3 

Improved

No Change

Declined

Qualitative Only

No Direct Comparison

Not Reported

Page 298



Best Value, use of resources and performance 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 29 

 

City Council will use in managing its infrastructure network and provides a base-line from 
which improvements to the roads service can be measured. 

National performance reports 

110. Audit Scotland carries out a national performance audit programme on behalf of the Accounts 
Commission and the Auditor General for Scotland.  Reports in the last year of direct interest 
are detailed in Exhibit 11. In most cases these are shared with elected members and the 
management team.   

Exhibit 11: A selection of National performance reports 2011/12 

· The National Fraud Initiative in Scotland 

· An overview of local government in Scotland - 

challenges and change in 2012 

· The role of community planning partnerships in 

economic development  

· Arm’s-Length External Organisations (ALEOs): 

are you getting it right? 

· Transport for health and social care 

· Commissioning social care 

· Modernising the planning system 

· Grampian Fire and Rescue Service Best 

Value Audit 

· Scotland's public finances: addressing the 

challenges 

· Community Health Partnerships 

 

Source:  www.audit-scotland.gov.uk 

Progress against audit risks identified in the Shared Risk 
Assessment 

111. The first Assurance and Improvement Plan (AIP) for Aberdeen City Council was published in 
July 2010.  That document set out the planned scrutiny activity for the council for the period 
April 2010 to March 2013 based on a shared risk assessment undertaken by a local area 
network (LAN) of scrutiny partners.   

112. The AIP has been updated twice since 2010 with the latest version being reported to the 
council's Audit and Risk Committee in June 2012.  At that point, the LAN had reviewed 
progress in the attainment of the objectives in the Single Outcome Agreement.  This assisted 
in the identification of future audit and scrutiny activity. In many cases, we said that we would 
monitor key service developments and further evidence of performance and comment within 
this report.  The following paragraphs note the position against areas of uncertainty 
highlighted in the LAN’s Audit and Improvement Plan Update (AIP) 2012 - 2015. The council, 
together with its Community Planning Partners is responsible for evidencing performance and 
each partner will have varying degrees of influence over each area. 

  

Page 299



Best Value, use of resources and performance 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 30 

 

Leadership and Culture 

113. The LAN’s 2011 AIP reported that “All groups on the council need to work more productively 
together and demonstrate a clearer focus on the needs of the local area. In addition, 
improvements need to be made in member officer relations to create a position of mutual trust 
and respect founded on a clear understanding of the distinctive roles that officers and 
members play within the council. The current situation creates risks to the efficient and 
effective conduct of business.” In response to this the council undertook a self-evaluation 
activity which drew the Audit Scotland ‘Roles and working relationships: are you getting it 
right?’ report. 

114. In order to take an independent approach to the self-evaluation, an independent consultant  
was engaged by the council to carry out the review in December 2011.  A final report on the 
self-evaluation process was presented to the Audit and Risk Committee in September 2012. 
While there has been a change in elected members as a result of the May 2012 elections, it 
was recognised that the key messages and recommendations from the review were relevant 
and valid.  

115. The committee approved the recommendations to enhance further development of effective 
working relationships between elected members and officers. We will review the extent of 
improvement observed in this area as part of our 2013 AIP update.    

Housing and Environment 

116. At the time our assessment, the Scottish Housing Regulator continued to have concerns 
about the council’s plans to meet homelessness targets and its management of gas safety 
and intended to monitor these areas through self-assessment activity.  LAN colleagues will 
consider the outcome of this scrutiny activity as part of the next SRA refresh.    

Social Care and Wellbeing 

117. There has been significant service redesign, improved performance management and the 
introduction of a framework for self-evaluation in all areas of the Social Care and Wellbeing 
service. At the time of issue of the 2012 AIP, the LAN felt that it was too early to assess the 
level of impact of the changes on the services.  

118. The Care Inspectorate undertook an Initial Scrutiny Level Assessment (ISLA) during 2012 
which considered the impact of these changes on the service. The results of this review are 
expected to be published in December 2012 and will be considered as part of the 2013 AIP 
update. 

Financial Position 

119. The LAN considered the financial position of the council to be an area of uncertain scrutiny 
risk.  Primarily, this was as a result of the overall uncertainty of funding levels despite the 
Scottish Government announcing proposed allocations for 2012/13 – 2014/15 in early 2012. 
We have commented on the council’s financial position earlier in this report.   

Page 300



Best Value, use of resources and performance 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 31 

 

Outlook  

120. There are currently no plans for Best Value work in Aberdeen City Council.  However, the AIP 
did include activity by other scrutiny bodies over the next three years including: 

· Care Inspectorate – Initial Scrutiny Level Assessment (ISLA) review (2011/12) 

· Scottish Housing Regulator – follow up on progress with SHQS, gas safety and 
homelessness and focused self-evaluation work in areas of uncertainty in the AIP 
(2011/12) 

121. In April 2011, the Equality Act 2010 introduced a new public sector ‘General Duty’ which 
encourages equality to be mainstreamed into public bodies’ core work.  The Scottish 
Government subsequently consulted on a set of ‘Specific Duties’ which came into force in May 
2012. There is also a requirement to publish a set of equality outcomes no later than             
30 April 2013. We will consider progress made by the council in implementing these 
requirements as part our 2012/13 audit. 

 

Page 301



Appendix A: audit reports 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 32 

 

Appendix A: audit reports 
External audit reports and audit opinions issued for 2011/12 

Title of report or opinion Date of issue Date presented to 

Audit Committee 

Annual Audit Plan  20 February 2012 28 February 2012 

Assurance and Improvement Plan 20 April 2012  12 June 2012 

Report to those charged with governance on the 

2011/12 audit  

19 September 2012 25 September 2012 

Audit opinion on the 2011/12 financial statements 28 September 2012 27 November 2012 

Audit opinion on the 2011/12 Whole of Government 

accounts consolidation pack 

19 October 2012 N/A 

Report to Members on the 2011/12 audit 31 October 2012 27 November 2012 

 

Page 302



Appendix B: action plan 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 33 

 

Appendix B: action plan 
Key Risk Areas and Planned Management Action 

Action 

Point 

Refer 

Para No 

Risk Identified Management Action Responsible 

Officer 

Target 

Date 

1 14 Governance arrangements 

in respect of group entities 

should be strengthened.  

Risk:  

Risk - If group companies 

are not adequately 

monitored, this could lead 

to non-compliance with 

companies’ legislation. 

The group may not be 

delivering on its 

objectives. 

Following recent consideration 

by the Head of Finance, the 

council is developing its group 

reporting to ensure that regular 

financial and non-financial 

information is incorporated into 

the Corporate Performance 

Reporting arrangements.  

Internal Audit are engaging in a 

review of group entities that will 

provide additional findings and 

recommendations upon which to 

continue to strengthen group 

governance. 

 

Corporate 

Accounting 

Manager 

31 March 

2013 

2 15 & 80 There is scope to improve 

the effectiveness of the 

Audit and Risk Committee 

by clarifying its role in 

respect of scrutiny of the 

financial statements and 

group governance. 

Risk - Scrutiny 

arrangements within the 

council may be 

insufficient or do not 

comply with good 

practice.  

As a consequence of the 

change in councillors following 

the May 2012 council elections 

the council has put in place a 

training programme with 

councillors on a range of 

subjects, which includes specific 

training in relation to the role of 

the Audit and Risk Committee.  

Further consideration will also 

be given to the practicalities of 

scrutiny of financial statements 

being undertaken prior to the 

completion of the Draft 

Statement of Accounts. 

 

Head of 

Finance 

30 June 

2013 

Page 303



Appendix B: action plan 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 34 

 

Action 

Point 

Refer 

Para No 

Risk Identified Management Action Responsible 

Officer 

Target 

Date 

3 22 A review of the 

arrangements for the 

preparation and audit of the 

financial statements and 

WGA return should be 

undertaken to identify 

improvements for 2012/13 

and beyond. 

Risk: The target date for 

submission of audited 

accounts is not met.  

Delays in delivery of 

working papers impact on 

resources. 

 

Review and feedback sessions 

with accounting staff and 

auditors will take place during 

November / December to 

identify the improvements that 

can be achieved in relation to 

the preparation and audit of the 

Statement of Accounts and to 

set out the timetable for year 

end close as at 31 March 2013. 

Corporate 

Accounting 

Manager 

31 

December 

2012 

4 42 Early consideration should 

be given to the accounting 

requirements to be met 

within the council’s 

accounts if the new LATC 

and LLP are established. 

Risk: Accounting 

requirements are not met 

leading to a qualified 

opinion on the financial 

statements. 

 

A programme of work has been 

in place for a number of months 

to ensure the delivery of the 

financial support by the council. 

Chief 

Accountant 

31 March 

2013 

Page 304



Appendix B: action plan 

 

 

Aberdeen City Council Page 35 

 

Action 

Point 

Refer 

Para No 

Risk Identified Management Action Responsible 

Officer 

Target 

Date 

5 63 The council has a 

significant programme of 

savings to implement in 

delivering its 5 year 

business plan. 

Risk: A balanced budget 

is not delivered   

Continued development of 

financial monitoring and scrutiny 

continues on a regular basis, 

with a Finance Framework 

having been developed to 

improve the link between 

Finance and Budget Holders.  A 

review of savings achievement / 

progress is controlled by the 

Programme Management Office 

and the early identification of 

changes, including change 

control procedures, are 

overseen by the Performance 

Boards, which includes the Chief 

Executive. 

 

Chief 

Accountant 

Ongoing 

6 90 Improved arrangements 

should be implemented for 

benefit processing. 

Risk: Continued clawback 

of subsidy sought by 

DWP and increased 

reputational risk to the 

council. 

The team has in place a regular 

checking regime for benefit 

processing and this is under 

review with the objective of 

tackling errors effectively and 

timeously by revising and 

tightening the checking 

arrangements and to enhance it.  

A focus on improving the speed 

of processing claims also has an 

impact and the council is 

actively managing the staffing 

resources it has to ensure 

claims are completed in a timely 

manner. 

 

Revenue and 

Benefits 

Manager 

Ongoing 

 

Page 305



Page 306

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

CORPORATE POLICY AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 

29 NOVEMBER 2011 
 

DRAFT 
 
APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO THE OLDER PEOPLE’S ADVISORY 
GROUP – CG/12/114 
 
1. With reference to article 4 of the minute of its previous meeting, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Director of Corporate Governance 
which requested that a decision be taken with regard to the remaining place 
on the Older People’s Advisory Group as a result of the Liberal Democrat 
Group not wishing to take up their place on the Group at this time. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that Committee:- 
 

(a) keep the remaining place as a vacancy; or 
(b) suspend Standing Order 22(2) to revoke the decision taken in 

relation to the composition of the Older People’s Advisory Group at 
the last meeting of the Committee, and appoint a member from 
another Group to take up the fifth place. 

 
 
The Committee resolved:- 

(i) to instruct the Convener to write to Councillor Malone, Lead of the 
Liberal Democrats, reminding Councillor Malone that Council only 
operates successfully on the good will of all Councillors taking up 
positions on outside bodies and working groups, thus sharing the 
workload; 

(ii) to ask Councillor Malone to reconsider her Group’s position and to 
appoint a Liberal Democrat Councillor to the Older People’s 
Advisory Group;  and 

(iii) to move this matter to full Council on 19 December 2012 for further 
consideration. 

 

Agenda Item 8(e)

Page 307



Page 308

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE    Corporate Policy and Performance  
 
DATE      29 November 2012 
 
DIRECTOR     Stewart Carruth 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Appointment of Members to the Older 

People’s Advisory Group 
 
REPORT NUMBER:       CG/12/114 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

Further to the decision taken at the last meeting of the Corporate Policy 
and Performance Committee, this report is before Committee to enable 
a decision to be taken with regard to the remaining place on the Older 
People’s Advisory Group as a result of the Liberal Democrat Group not 
wishing to take up their place on the Group at this time. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
 The Committee is asked to:- 

(i) keep the remaining place as a vacancy;  or 
(ii) suspend Standing Order 22(2) to revoke the decision taken in 

relation to the composition of the Older People’s Advisory Group 
at the last meeting of the Committee, and appoint a member 
from another Group to take up the fifth place. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
There are no financial implications. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no other implications. 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
At the last meeting of the Corporate Policy and Performance 
Committee, it was agreed that the composition of the Older People’s 
Advisory Group should be 1+1+1+1+1 to allow for cross-party 
representation.  It was also agreed to appoint Councillors Donnelly and 
Jaffrey to the Group, with the remaining members to be advised to the 
Clerk outwith the meeting.  The remaining members have been 
confirmed as Councillors Cooney and Reynolds. 
 

Page 309



 

 

Since the last meeting of Committee, the Liberal Democrat Group have 
advised that they do not wish to take up their place on the Older 
People’s Advisory Group, and have indicated that they would be 
content for the place to be made available to another Group. 
 
It is suggested therefore that the Committee may wish to keep the fifth 
place vacant, or fill the remaining place with a member from another 
Group.  If the latter course of action was to be followed, the Committee 
would require to suspend Standing Order 22(2) to revoke its previous 
decision in relation to the composition of the Group. 
 
There is no requirement for the Council to allocate places proportionally 
across Working Groups, and therefore it would be for the Corporate 
Policy and Performance Committee as parent Committee to the Group 
to decide how it wishes to proceed in this case. 
 

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None. 
 
7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Steph Dunsmuir 
Committee Assistant 
sdunsmuir@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
Tel:- 01224 522503 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 310



 1

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Finance & Resources Committee     
 
DATE     6 December 2012  
 
DIRECTOR  Stewart Carruth (Director of Corporate 

Governance); Pete Leonard (Director of Housing & 
Environment)    

 
TITLE OF REPORT  Draft Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget 

and Housing Capital Budget 2013/14 to 2015/16 
 
REPORT NUMBER: CG/12/1023 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1.1 To provide elected members with information to allow the setting of the 

rent level for the financial year 2013/14 as well as provisional rent 
levels for the financial years 2014/15 and 2015/16.  In turn, this will 
allow a capital programme for 2013/14 as well as a provisional 
programme for 2014/15 and 2015/16. 
 

1.1.2 Elected members will be aware that the previous method of charging 
rent was based on a complicated and historical method.  The Council 
has agreed to replace this methodology with a much simpler method.  
As such it is vital that the rent level for 2013/14 is set by Council at 
its meeting in December to allow officers the time to update 
computer systems to allow suitable notification of rent levels for 
2013/14 to tenants. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 It is recommended that Committee consider the draft Housing Revenue 

Account Budget and refer it to Council on 19 December 2012 to: 
 
a. Approve the budget as attached in Appendix 1 of this report; 
b. Approve the weekly unrebated rents for municipal houses, as detailed 

in Appendix 1 of this report, to take effect from Monday 1 April 2013;  
c. Approve the level of revenue contribution to the Housing Capital budget 

for 2013/14 as well as a provisional contribution for the subsequent two 
financial years as detailed in Appendix 1 of this report;  

d. To agree the recommendation by the Head of Finance to increase 
working balances from 5% to 10% over a 3 year period to meet future 
contingencies; 

e. To agree the continuation of the practice that all capital receipts, from 
the disposal of Council houses, continue to be used to repay debt for 
2013/14 and future years;  

Agenda Item 8(f)

Page 311



 2

f. Approve the level of miscellaneous rents and service charges, 
including Heat with Rent as detailed in Appendix 1 of this report; 

g. Agree to other adjustments Council may wish to make to the draft HRA 
for the financial years 2013/14 to 2015/16; and 

h. Set a capital programme for the financial year 2013/14 based on the 
rent strategy adopted as well as the indicative level of programme for 
the financial years 2014/15 and 2015/16. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

3.1   Given this report is to set the HRA budget for 2013/14 the financial 
implications are contained within the report. 
 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Without adequate investment there is the possibility that the housing 

stock could fail to meet health and safety regulations as well as the 
Scottish Housing Quality Standard. 

 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
5.1 The Council is required to give its tenants 28 days notice of any change 

in the level of rent.  Further, the Housing (Scotland) Act 2001 requires 
the Council to consult with tenants on any proposed rent increase.  
This consultation was in the form of a tenant questionnaire on the 
possible rent increase. 

 
5.2 The tenants were asked if the rent policy of inflation plus 1% should 

continue in order to maintain investment in the housing stock and 
improve services. 

 
5.3 The results are shown on page 23 of Appendix 1.  The number of 

tenants who responded and agreed with this rent policy was 75%, 23% 
did not agree and 2% did not know. 

 
5.4 Schedule 15 of the Housing (Scotland) Act 1987 requires expenditure 

in the under noted main areas to be charged to the HRA: 
 

• Capital Financing Costs in respect of monies borrowed for the purpose 
of providing and improving the Council’s housing stock; 

• Management, administration and maintenance of the Council’s housing 
stock; 

• Other expenditure such as loss of rents for vacant periods, insurance, 
communal lighting and heating, cleaning and security. 

 
 
5.5 Items of income that must be credited to the HRA are: 

Page 312



 3

 
• Council house rents; 
• Other income attributable to the HRA.  For example, income recovered 

from tenants for heating, interest on revenue balances and, when 
available, transfers from working balances generated by the HRA in 
previous years. 

 
5.6 In the absence of any central or local authority financial support for the 

HRA, the HRA is regarded as “ring-fenced”.  In addition, consideration 
of the level of capital to be financed from current revenue (CFCR) 
within the HRA budget will have an impact on the Housing Capital 
Budget.  This report therefore, whilst indicating a possible HRA  
Budget, also comments on the Capital Budget. 

 
5.7 Consideration of the out-turn on the HRA for 2012/13 and the 2013/14 

budget is dealt with in detail in Appendix 1.  Based on the annual rent 
consultation and Council policy the budgeted figures have 
assumed a Council house rent increase of 4.1% (RPIX at October 
2012 of 3.1% plus 1%).   

 
5.8 While this is in line with Council policy it is worth noting that, at this 

time, the economic climate within the United Kingdom is such that the 
UK economy continues to struggle to grow, with low confidence, 
relatively high inflation and high unemployment.    

 
5.9 As the UK’s largest export partner, there is significant worry that the 

ongoing Euro zone uncertainty may have a further negative impact on 
the UK economy.  

 
5.10 Given the continued Government’s austerity programme spending 

reductions remain on target although there remains some considerable 
distance still to travel before they are fully delivered. The cumulative 
nature of the challenge means that, inevitably, the hardest part of the 
challenge lies ahead.1 

 
5.11 Given the UK Government’s attempts to resolve the economic position 

it is worth looking at the future projections for inflation in setting the rent 
increase for 2013/14: 

 
FORECAST 

End period %  Oct 
2012  

Q1 
2013 

Q2 
2013 

Q3 
2013 

Q4 
2013 

Q1 
2014 

RPI inflation  3.2 1.2 1.8 1.2 1.3 1.1 
RPIX inflation  3.1 1.2 1.9 1.3 1.3 1.1 
CPI inflation  2.7 1.6 2.4 1.7 1.7 1.5 
Source – Sector Treasury Services – Forecasts (Oct  2012) 

 

                                                 
1 CIPFA: The long downturn: implications for public service organisations 

Page 313



 4

5.12 The above table indicates that while we are currently experiencing a 
relatively high level of inflation it can be seen that this is projected to 
fall over the next financial year. 

 
5.13 What the table demonstrates is that RPIX is currently at 3.1%.  This is 

expected to fall by the end of the first quarter of 2013 to 1.2% and after 
an increase in the next quarter remain pretty stable thereafter.   

 
5.14 Welfare Reform and Working Balances 

The impact of Welfare Reform is at this time unquantifiable but we do 
need to ensure that adequate working balances are maintained to de-
risk the HRA position for future years. There are currently 46% of HRA 
tenants on full or partial housing benefit.  It is therefore important that 
the Council begins preparing for the full impact of Welfare 
Reform. 
 
The Head of Finance must be confident that the level of working 
balances is adequate to meet any unforeseen contingencies during the 
financial year particularly with regard to the introduction of Welfare 
Reform. 
 

 Based on projected income and expenditure that is likely to be     
generated for 2012/13, this opening figure for 2013/14 should be 
approximately £3.935 million as detailed below: 

 
 
MOVEMENT IN WORKING BALANCES  £000 
 
Working Balances as at 1 April 2012   6,682 
 
Less: Ear marked sums 
Housing repairs    (2,172) 
Scottish Secure Tenancy   (   250) 
Finance Lease Liability   (   323) (2,746) 
 
Projected Working Balances as at 31 March 2013  3,935   

  
 

 
Given the inherent uncertainty it is proposed that working 
balances are increased from 5% to 10% over the 3 year period.   
This will also allow a buffer against current economic conditions. As 
such a potential profile of this may look like: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BALANCE AS AT: CURRENT REVISED 

Page 314



 5

 £M £M 
31-03-2012 4.000 4.000 
31-03-2013 4.000 4.200 
31-03-2014 4.008 5.200 
31-03-2015 4.157 6.200 
31-03-2016 4.310 7.200 
31-03-2017 4.310 8.200 
 
 

This would be achieved through managing the level of capital 
investment through additional borrowing. The cost of this would be met 
through lower investment levels in future years (by virtue of SHQS 
having been delivered) and  future efficiency savings in line with the 30 
year business plan.  

 
5.15  Capital Expenditure 
 The draft budget for 2013/14 (and the subsequent two financial years) 

is attached as Appendix 1 of this report.  This shows gross expenditure 
of £47 million financed through £17.9 million of borrowing, £1.5 million 
of SEE grant funding and £22.1 million by way of a revenue 
contribution to fund the net programme of £41.5 million. 

 
5.16 This capital budget reflects and includes a proposed rent increase of 

4.1%. The details of the potential projects to be included in this 
programme are contained in Appendix 1 – pages 30 to 33. 

 
5.17 Miscellaneous Rents 
 The budget attached in Appendix 1 also requires the miscellaneous 

rents and service charges to be set.  As way of indication on possible 
increases, pages 19 to 22 gives indicative increases and decreases 
that the Council may wish to consider.  The Council will have to 
decide on any possible increment to these charges in line with 
their rent setting strategy. 

  
5.18 Prudential Code 
 From 1 April 2004, Councils are required by Regulation to have regard 

to the Prudential Code when carrying out their duties under Part 7 of 
the Local Government (Scotland) Act 2003. 

 
5.19 In setting a capital programme, members will be aware that under the 

Prudential Code, the level of capital investment is determined at a local 
authority level.  The base programme for consideration, subject to final 
rent levels is £46.930 million.  This is attached in Appendix 1 at pages 
30 to 33. 

 
5.20 As part of the rent setting process of determining the average rent 

payable for a Council house, the Council must ensure that this is 
affordable and sustainable over the long term. 

 

Page 315



 6

5.21 The fundamental objective, in the consideration of the affordability of 
the Council’s capital programme, is to ensure that the total capital 
investment of the authority remains within sustainable limits and in 
particular to consider the impact on the “bottom line”.  That is, 
affordability is determined by a judgement about acceptable levels of 
rent. 

 
5.22 2014/15 to 2015/16 Budget 
 Included within Appendix 1 is an indicative budget for 2014/15 and 

2015/16 with an assumed rent increase of 3.5% for both years.  There 
is also an analysis of the management and administration, the repairs 
and maintenance and capital budgets. 

 
5.23 In setting a 3 year rent strategy, Council must pay cognisance to the 

level of capital investment required to maintain and improve the overall 
housing conditions available to the citizens of Aberdeen.  The Council 
is required to meet the Scottish Housing Quality Standard by 2015. 

 
5.24 Summary 

The Council is required to determine the average weekly unrebated 
rents (and other miscellaneous rents and service charges) for 
municipal houses to take effect from Monday 1 April 2013 which in turn 
will allow decisions to be taken on the level of capital investment. 

 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

The City Council will operate within overall financial constraints taking 
into account recommended accounting practice and policies.  Rent 
increase will be notified to tenants providing them with 28 days notice. 

 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

HRA 30 Year Business Plan 
 CIPFA: The long downturn: implications for public service organisations 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Steven Whyte    Gill Mutch 
Chief Accountant    Finance Manager (Projects) 
swhyte@aberdeencity.gov.uk  gmutch@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523566    01224 522556 

Page 316



Page 1 

Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

Barry Jenkins 
Head of Finance 

 
Pete Leonard 

Director of Housing and Environment 
 
 
 
 

 

Aberdeen City Council 
Draft Housing Revenue Account 

2013/14 – 2015/16 Budget 

Page 317



Page 2 

DRAFT HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
 

Index 
 
Page 2 . . . . . Index 
 
Page 3 . . . . . Revenue Assumptions 
 
Page 5 . . . . . Housing Capital Expend Prog 
 
 
Section 1 – HRA Budget 2013/14 
 
Page 7 . . . . . HRA Draft  2013/14 Budget 
 
Page 9 . . . . . HRA Variance Notes 
 
Page 14 . . . . . Housing Repairs Draft Budget 
 
Page 15 . . . . . R&M Notes 
 
Page 16 . . . . . Management & Admin 
 
Page 18 . . . . . Management & Admin Notes 
 
Page 19 . . . . . Miscellaneous Rents  
 
Page 23 . . . . . Tenants Consultation 
 
 
Section 2 – HRA Budget 2014/15 – 2015/16 
 
Page 24 . . . . . 3 Year HRA Budget  
 
Page 26 . . . . . 3 Year HRA Assumptions 
 
Page 27 . . . . . 3 Year Repairs Budget 
 
Page 28 . . . . . 3 Year Management Budget 
 
Page 30  . . . . . 3 Year Capital Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 318



Page 3 

Revenue Assumptions 
 
In preparing the information for the draft Housing Revenue Account budget for 
the financial year 2013/14, a number of assumptions have been made and these 
are given below. 
 
Should you require an electronic version of the budget contained within this 
documentation, please contact Gill Mutch, Finance Manager (Projects) on 
(52)2556 or e-mail gmutch@aberdeencity.gov.uk.  The budget information is 
available as a set of Excel spreadsheets. 
 
Inflation 
In preparing the budget no general inflationary uplift has been added which is in 
line with the base assumptions used in preparing the General Fund Budget for 
2013/14, (there are some exceptions to this rule such as utility costs and 
contractual uplifts etc. and these are stated in the variance notes).   Inflation is 
currently running at approximately 3.1% (RPIX at October 2012). (Source: Office 
of National Statistics) 
 
Housing Stock 
The number of Council houses owned by the Council, as at 31 August 2012, is 
22,735.  It has been assumed that there will be a further 61 sales during the 
financial year 2012/13, bringing total sales for the year to 100. The average 
selling price for the period 1 April 2012 to 31 August 2012 is approximately 
£50,000.  
 
Set Aside Rules 
For the financial year 2012/13 the Council budgeted for 100% of all Council 
house sales to be utilised to repay debt.  The Council is free to decide on how the 
proceeds from the disposal of Council houses are used.  The Head of Finance 
recommends that all capital receipts continue to be used to repay debt for 
the financial year 2013/14 and future years.  
  
Council House Sales 
It has been assumed that the level of house sales will be 50 in 2013/14.  The 
average selling price for 2012/13 is currently estimated at £50,000. The average 
number of houses for the financial year 2013/14 is therefore estimated to be 
22,649 properties.   
 
Rental Income 
The income available in 2013/14 to fund the proposed budgeted level of 
expenditure has been calculated by taking the projected income under the 
revised rent structure plus 4.1% (RPIX at October 2012 + 1% which is the 
Council’s current rent strategy/policy). 
 
Heat with Rent 
A detailed analysis has been carried out on the utility bills for Heat with Rent to 
ensure that the charging policy introduced in the 2006/07 budget setting process 
can be continued into 2013/14. No increase of income has been built into the 
proposed budget.   

Page 319



Page 4 

Welfare Reform and Working Balances 
The impact of Welfare Reform is, at this time, unquantifiable but with 46% of 
current HRA tenants on full or partial housing benefit its effect on arrears, under 
occupancy etc could be substantial: 
 

• Current Tenant Arrears at the end of March 12 were £2.6M (prior to the 
introduction of Welfare reform). 

• There are 2,199 tenancies (approx 10% of all tenancies) which are 
effected by the under occupancy policy, these are tenants of working age 
and currently in receipt of Housing Benefit.  This is actively being managed 
by Housing but there are a limited number of suitable properties for people 
to move to. 

 
In developing a rent setting strategy it is important to ensure that there are 
adequate working balances.  The Head of Finance must be confident that the 
level of working balances is adequate to meet any unforeseen contingencies 
particularly as regards the uncertainty surrounding welfare reform and the impact 
this could have on viability of the business plan of the Housing Revenue Account. 
Given this inherent uncertainty it is proposed that the working balances are 
increased from 5% to 10% over a 3 year period. 
 
Rent Setting Strategy 
On 28th August 2012 the Housing & Environment Committee approved a 
proposed new rent structure. The new rent model will be phased in over a 5 year 
period from April 2013 to April 2017.  The increases and decreases are capped at 
a maximum of £3 per week during this period.  Any rents that have not achieved 
the model rent by April 2018 will do so on that date.  It was also agreed that any 
annual rent increases would be applied to the revised rent. 
 
The new rent structure is consistent, fair, efficient and transparent and is detailed 
below:  
 
BASE RENT £42.00 
  

CRITERIA 1 - BEDROOM ADDITIONAL RENT 
Number of Bedrooms £ 
0   0.00 
1 10.00 
2 15.00 
3 20.00 
4 25.00 
5 30.00 
6 35.00 
7 40.00 
 
CRITERIA 2 – DWELLING TYPE ADDITIONAL RENT 
 £ 
Multi/Flat/Maisonette 10.00 
Four in a Block 15.00 
Cottage/House 20.00 

Page 320



Page 5 

 
CRITERIA 3 - GARAGES ADDITIONAL RENT 
 £ 
Garage 10.00 
No Garage   0.00 
 
 
Rent is equal to Base Rent + Criteria 1 + Criteria 2 + Criteria 3 
 
So, for example, rent for 2 bedroom house with a garage: 
 £42.00+£15.00+£20.00+£10.00 = £87.00 
 
The budget has been calculated using the above rent structure plus an 
increase of 4.1%. 
 
Business Plan  
During 2012 the 30 year business plan model, which sets out the current and 
future financial position of the Council’s HRA, it’s ability to meet and maintain the 
Scottish Housing Quality Standard (SHQS) and manage, repair and invest in 
tenant’s homes has been updated with the financial information from the financial 
year 2011/12 which continues to show a business plan which is sustainable in the 
long term.  However if there were to be increases in, for example, interest rates 
this would impact on the long term viability of the plan.  No account has been 
taken of any potential impact of welfare changes as, at this stage, these are 
unknown but could dramatically change the cash flow of the plan.   
 
A sustainable rent policy must be adhered to in order to secure the long term 
financial position of this 30 year business plan. The Council policy for maintaining 
sustainable rents is for a rental increase of RPIX plus 1%.   
 

Housing Capital Expenditure Programme 
 
Housing Investment Programme 
2013/14 will see continued major investment in tenants’ homes to make sure that 
they meet their needs and expectations as well as the requirements of the 
Scottish Housing Quality Standard (SHQS). Aberdeen City continues to make 
steady progress towards SHQS compliance with 81% of our stock now meeting 
the standard (as at June 2012) rising to an anticipated 90.8% by March 2014.  
 
Whilst it is unclear as to any future obligations beyond the SHQS 
completion date of 2015 it is likely that this will dramatically reduce the 
current level of capital investment as this is not sustainable in the longer 
term. 
 
The Council will continue to provide funding for the provision of combined heat 
and power in our multi storey stock.  These actions will improve the energy 
performance of the council housing stock and prevent potentially hundreds of 
tenants from falling into or remaining in fuel poverty. 
 

Page 321



Page 6 

The Council has started work on a major over-cladding scheme for High Rise 
buildings and it is anticipated that those in Seaton will be completed by 2013/14 
with work commencing on the blocks at Balnagask in November 2012.      
 
To ensure that the Council can meet its priorities in terms of its housing stock the 
capital programme for the next three years (inclusive of slippage) is proposed as 
follows: 
 
2013/14 - £46.930 Million 
2014/15 - £39.330 Million 
2015/16 -£37.949 Million (this is indicative at this stage but is likely to be 
considerably less) 
 
The capital investment programme will begin to diminish in 2014/15 as a result of 
the reduced work required on the SHQS and this will have significant savings in 
the revenue account as the borrowing levels will begin to reduce. 
 
Tenants Charter 
 
The Tenants Charter1 was published by the Scottish Government in March 2012. 
The purpose of the Charter is to improve the quality and value of the services that 
social landlords provide, and supports the Scottish Government’s long term aim 
of creating a safer and stronger Scotland.  
 
The Charter has seven sections covering:  

• equalities; 
• the customer/landlord relationship; 
• housing quality and maintenance; 
• neighbourhood and community; 
• access to housing and support; 
• getting good value from rents and service charges; 
• other customers.     

 
The objective of the section on rents and service charges is that Social landlords 
set rents and service charges in consultation with their tenants and other 
customers so that: 
 

• A balance is struck between the level of services provided, the cost of the 
services, and how far current and prospective tenants and other customers 
can afford them 

• Tenants get clear information on how rent and other money is spent, 
including any details of individual items of expenditure above thresholds 
agreed between landlords and tenants.  

 
Each landlord must decide, in discussion with tenants and other customers, 
whether to publish information about expenditure above a particular level, and in 
what form and detail. It is important that discussions do take place and the 
decisions made reflect the views of tenants and other customers. 
                                                           
1 A copy of the Charter can be found at www.housingcharter.scotland.gov.uk 
 

Page 322



Page 7 

 Housing Revenue Account     
 Draft 2013/14 Budget Budget Out-turn Budget Notes 
  2012/13 2012/13 2013/14  
      
  £000 £000 £000  
      
 Premises Costs     
1 Rates 3 3 3  
2 Rent – Other 135 115 138 1 
3 Repairs and Maintenance 23,264 23,092 22,042 2 
4 Maintenance of Grounds 2,560 2,866 3,045 3 
5 Gas 714 714 674 4 
6 Electricity 2,361 2,361 2,420 5 
7 Cleaning Service 476 476 542 6 
8 Security Service 444 372 372 7 
9 Window Cleaning 19 19 19  
10 Refuse Collection 240 320 325 8 
11 Cleaning – Sheltered Housing 475 449 453 9 
12 Premises Insurance 56 56 57 10 
13 Other Property Costs - Council Tax 115 122 122 11 
  30,862 30,965 30,212  
      
 Administration Costs     
14 Downsizing Grants/Direct Debit Incentives 52 15 52 12 
15 Legal Expenses 222 201 201  
16 Office Tel / Rent 88 88 88  
17 Former Tenants Arrears 1,379 1,379 1,379 13 
18 Charges - Services Admin & Management. 8,556 7,968 8,582 14 
19 General Consultancy 55 55 55 15 
20 Training for Front Line Staff 100 100 100 15 
21 Benefits Staff 94 94 95 15 
22 Charges - Tenants Participation 238 238 206 16 
23 Charges for Environmental Health 213 227 227  
  10,997 10,365 10,985  
      
 Supplies & Services     
24 Provision of Meals 177 166 168 17 
25 Equipment Purchase 55 55 55  
26 Television Licence 5 5 5  
27 Integrated Housing System 338 338 314 18 
  575 564 542  
      
 Agencies     
28 Mediation Service 98 98 98 19 
29 Energy Advice 81 81 81 20 
30 Citizens Advice Bureau 14 14 14 15 
31 Disabled Persons Housing Service 38 38 38 15 
  231 231 231  
      
      
  

 
    

      
      

Page 323



Page 8 

 Housing Revenue Account Budget Out-turn Budget  
 Draft 2013/14 Budget 2012/13 2012/13 2013/14  
  £000 £000 £000  
      
 Transfer Payments     
32 Aberdeen Families Project  400 400 414 21 
33 Loss of Rent - Council Houses 722 754 722 22 
34 Loss of Rent - Garages, Parking etc 153 211 211  
35 Loss of Rent - Modernisation Works 86 50 50  
36 Supporting People Contribution 406 406 406 23 
37 CFCR 17,675 21,484 22,116  
  19,442 23,305 23,919  
      
 Capital Financing Costs     
38 Loans Fund Instalment 4,260 3,168 3,903  
39 Loans Fund Interest 10,819 8,889 9,559  
40 Heating Leasing Payment 131 131 131  
  15,210 12,188 13,593 24 
      
 Expense Total 77,317 77,618 79,482  
      
 Income     
41 Government Grant - General (420) (234) (234) 25 
42 Ground Rentals (25) (25) (27)  
43 Dwelling Houses Rent Income (73,144) (73,748) (76,589) 26 
44 Housing - Heat with Rent Income (1,534) (1,459) (1,459) 27 
45 Housing - Garages Rent Income (1,096) (1,087) (1,087) 28 
46 Housing - Parking Spaces Rent (167) (187) (187) 28 
47 Housing - Insurance Income (8) (8) (2)  
48 Housing - Other Service Charge (479) (489) (489) 28 
49 Legal Expenses (323) (260) (260)  
50 Revenue Balance Interest (121) (121) (148) 29 
      
 Income Total (77,317) (77,618) (80,482)  
      
 Net Expenditure 0 0 (1,000)  
      

 Projected Working Balance at 1 April 2013  4,200  
      

      
      
      
      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 324



Page 9 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2013/14 BUDGET 
 

Variance Notes  
Comparing Draft Budget 2013/14 to Estimated Out-turn 2012/13 

 
Expenditure Movements 
 
1. Rent 
This budget is for the rent of police houses, accommodation for community 
groups and housing offices.   
 
2. Repairs and Maintenance 
An analysis of the proposed budget is included within this booklet (pages 14 to 
15).  The budget has reduced from 2012/13 as there have been year on year 
reductions in repairs and maintenance costs. 
 
3. Maintenance of Grounds 
Maintenance of Grounds budget has two elements: ground maintenance and 
cleansing/weed control. Both budgets for 2013/14 have been calculated by 
uplifting the anticipated outturns for 2012/13 by 1% (the budgeted salary uplift) 
and also includes an additional £150K for ad hoc grass cutting requests from 
Housing Managers. 
 
4. Gas 
The Council moved on to the Scottish Government National Procurement for Gas 
Supply on 1 April 2010 with the contract price reviewed on an annual basis. The 
budget has been calculated using the actual consumption from 2011/12 and an 
anticipated rates increase in the contract price as advised by the Council’s energy 
unit. 
 
5. Electricity 
This is the third year of a four year electricity contract. The budget has been 
calculated by using information provided for the 2012/13 budget process as the 
updated figures are not yet available. 
 
6. Cleaning Service 
This budget is for communal cleaning.  The cleaning contract commenced on 5 
July 2010 and runs for three years. To date the contract has not been agreed for 
July 2013 onwards therefore the budget has been based on  actual expenditure 
for 2011/12 plus 2.6% (RPIX for September 2012). The Contracts Managers 
costs are also contained within this budget.  
 
7. Security Service 
This budget is for the security service which started in 2012/13 and runs for three 
years.  The cost of the security included in the budget for 2013/14 is £372,000, 
and includes the control room team. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 325



Page 10 

8. Refuse Collection 
This budget has been based on the actual expenditure for 2011/12 plus 1% 
potential wage increase. 
 
9. Cleaning –  Sheltered Housing 
This is the budget for the cleaning of sheltered housing and has been calculated 
by using the actual expenditure for 2011/12 plus 1%. 
 
10. Premises Insurance 
The budget for 2013/14 has been maintained at the 2012/13 level. 
 
11. Other Property Costs – Council Tax on void properties 
This budget is for the cost of Council Tax due on void properties. The actual 
expenditure for 2011/12 has been used and is based on the assumption that 
there will be no increase in Council Tax for 2013/14 based on the terms and 
conditions of the award of the General Revenue Grant. 
   
12. Downsizing Grants/Direct Debit Incentives 
There are currently two schemes within this budget line which are Downsizing 
grants (£50,000) and Direct Debit Incentives (£2,000). Budgets have been 
maintained at the 2012/13 level. 
 
The Downsizing Scheme provides assistance and a financial incentive to Council 
tenants occupying 3+ bedroom family properties in high demand areas to move 
to smaller more suitable housing in order to increase the supply of large family 
housing. This budget is being maintained at the current level as there could be a 
potential rise in demand when the welfare reforms are introduced and tenants are 
penalised for under occupation.   
 
The Direct Debit Incentive scheme was introduced on 5 April 2010.  Each month 
there is a draw for all new and existing direct debit payers for a chance to win a 
week free rent period, to encourage more people to switch to paying by direct 
debit. 
 
13. Former Tenants Arrears 
The budget has been maintained at the current budgeted level to allow for 
potential costs of the welfare reforms being introduced by the Government. 
Aberdeen City Council had 29.6% tenancies in arrears at 31 March 2012 
compared to the Scottish Average of 26%. 
 
14. Management & Administration 
The staffing budget is based on the current structure of the Housing Revenue 
Account.   A pay award of 1% has been allowed for which is in line with the 
assumptions contained within the Council’s General Fund. 
 
15. General Consultancy, Training for Front Line Staff, Benefits staff, 

Citizens Advice Bureau, Disabled persons Housing Service 
All of the above budgets have assumed no uplifts. 
 

Page 326



Page 11 

General consultancy allows the Housing Revenue Account to fund one off 
projects.  An example of this type of expenditure would include work on the 
Housing Business Plan. 
 
Training for front line staff allows, for example, housing assistants to participate in 
professional staff development programmes with the opportunity of gaining 
membership of the Chartered Institute of Housing. 
 
The costs of the benefits staff are recharged from the benefits team for the time 
spent with council house tenants on maximising income and tackling financial 
exclusion.  
 
The contribution to the Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) provides funding to the 
service at ARI/Woodend hospitals.  
 
Disabled Persons Housing Service (Aberdeen) (DPHS) is a charitable 
organisation that provides specialist information, advice and advocacy on housing 
matters to disabled people, their families and carers and professionals working in 
housing, social work, health and the voluntary sector. 
 
Grant funding has previously been provided to DPHS and it was agreed in 
2010/11 that funding would run for a three year period and would cover core 
funding for the development officer’s post, plus an allowance for running costs.  
This will enable the DPHS to continue to develop and expand the range of 
services that it offers to people of Aberdeen in line with the objectives set out 
within the Disability Action Group (DAG), DAG Homes Sub-Group Action Plan, 
the Local Housing Strategy and the Community Care Housing Strategy. 
 
16. Tenants Participation  
This is the budget allocated for the provision of tenants participation and includes 
the employment costs of two tenant participation officers, Newsbite and training 
for tenant representatives.  
 
17. Provision of Meals 
The actual expenditure for 2011/12 plus 1% is the basis for the 2013/14 budget.  
This budget is for the provision of meals at Denmore and Kingswood extra care 
housing.  The income for this service is contained in line 48 of the budget 
statement above which is shown as “Housing Other Service Charge”.  No 
increase to this charge is being recommended (this is contained in miscellaneous 
rents page 19) as there is currently a review ongoing on Housing for Varying 
Needs which will consider these charges for the future. Currently there is a 
shortfall of £34,000 between income and expenditure for meals.   
 
18. Integrated Housing System 
This budget is based on the IT requirements for 2013/14 which includes all the 
support and maintenance costs.   
 
19.       Mediation Service  
For 2013/14 budget has been maintained at 2012/13 levels. 
 
 

Page 327



Page 12 

20.       Energy Advice 
 The energy advice budget is currently a payment to SCARF (Save Cash and 
Reduce Fuel).  SCARF encourage the sustainable use of energy, achieving 
affordable warmth, eradicating fuel poverty and extending the life of natural 
energy resources across the North East of Scotland.   
 
21.    Aberdeen Families Project  
This budget is used to fund the Aberdeen Families Project. The Families Project 
is based in the Torry area and provides intensive support and supervision to 
families (mainly council tenants) who are involved in serious antisocial behaviour 
which could result in their eviction and subsequent homelessness. The service 
aims to reintegrate tenants or former tenants who are homeless and have a 
history of not sustaining a satisfactory tenancy, back into a tenancy without 
requiring intensive housing management.  The budget is based on the 2011/12 
actual expenditure. 
    
22. Loss of Rent Council Houses  
No uplift has been assumed therefore setting a target for savings in 2013/14. The 
void trend in 2012/13 is still showing a small increase.   
 
23.      Supporting People Contribution 
This budget is a contribution to cover the costs of providing the former wardens 
salaries for people who were not in receipt of housing benefit as at 31 March 
2003.  The contribution in 2013/14 is based on the actual expenditure for 
2011/12. 
 
This does not reflect the costs associated with the former warden’s salaries as 
this forms part of the General Fund. 
 
The contribution is being considered as part of the review for Housing for Varying 
Needs and therefore will be subject to change. 
 
24.       Capital Financing Costs 
The budget for capital financing costs is based on the likely level of capital spend 
in 2012/13 as at the end of August 2012 and a possible future programme for 
2013/14 of £41.533 million, as well as the level of historic debt that has to be 
financed.  It also assumes that the consolidated loans pool rate (the rate used to 
calculate debt charges) is 4.5%.    
 
Income 
 
25.       Government Grant – General  
This budget is grant income from the Scottish Government for the Hostel. The 
grant previously funded any deficit generated from the running of this service but 
since 2012/13 is a fixed amount. There is a provision held in the balance sheet to 
cover the shortfall for the next 2 years.  
 
 
26.        Dwelling Houses Rent Income 
The budgeted income from Dwelling House Rent has been calculated using the 
anticipated income from the new rent structure and increased by the potential 

Page 328



Page 13 

rent increase of 4.1% (RPIX at October 2012 +1%) which is in line with current 
Council policy on rent setting.     
 
 
27.       Housing – Heat with Rent Income 
A review was undertaken of the income and expenditure of Heat with Rent. 
 

• Gas 
The projected energy consumption and contract rates were provided by 
the Council’s Energy Management Unit for each sheltered complex.  As 
from 1 April 2011 the gas supply is through Scottish Government 
National Procurement and is reviewed on an annual basis. The energy 
used in the common rooms and guest rooms has been removed from 
the calculation as these costs are funded by rent pooling. The revised 
consumption has been multiplied by the agreed rate to be paid on the 
gas contract.  
 

• Electricity 
The projected energy consumption and rates were provided by the 
Council’s Energy Management Unit for each sheltered complex.  The 
four year electricity contract started on 1 April 2011,reductions in the 
consumption were made for the common rooms and guest rooms as 
these costs are funded by rent pooling. The consumption has been 
multiplied by the agreed rate on the electricity contract.     
 

• Combined Heat & Power (CHP) 
Aberdeen Heat and Power are to advise the Council of the rate 
increase in November, indications are that the maximum increase will 
be 5%.  

 
Page 21 of this document shows the recovery of these costs 

 
28. Housing – Garages Rent Income, Housing Parking Spaces Rent, 

Housing – Other Service Charges  
This line will move depending on the level that miscellaneous rents are set at, as 
covered on page 19.  The current budget therefore assumes that there will be no 
increase at present. 
 
29. Interest on Revenue Balances 
This is akin to bank interest received on the HRA’s cash flow during the year.  
Budget is based on the income received in 2011/12 and current economic 
conditions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 329



Page 14 

 
  HOUSING REPAIRS DRAFT BUDGET   Approved 

Budget 
2012/13 

£000 

Projected 
Spend 
2012/13 

£000  

 Base 
Budget 
2013/14 

£000 
PLANNED AND CYCLICAL MAINTENANCE    

1 External Joiner work Repairs including external painter work etc.  1,500 1,613 1,500 
2 Boiler Maintenance – Sheltered Housing  175 350 300 
3 Controlled Entry Systems – Maintenance 450 367 370 
4 Fire Precautions - Servicing & Renewal of Equipment inc. Smoke 
Detectors & Dry Risers 

340 218 220 

5 Flat Roofs/Dormers – Renewal & Insulation 50 14 50 
6 Common Rooms – Replacement of Furniture 70 28 40 
7 Gas Servicing, Maintenance and Repair 2,825 2,882 2,885 
8 Laundry Equipment Replacement & Maintenance 85 48 60 
9 Legionella Testing incl. Repair/Renewal of Tanks  100 43 60 
10 Lift Maintenance 315 339 350 
11 Mutual Repairs outwith Housing Action Areas 25 25 25 
12 Pumps & Fans - Maintenance & Renewal 90 131 120 
13 Sheltered Housing - Replacement of Carpets, furnishings etc 70 22 40 
14 Standby Generators – Maintenance 90 122 120 
15 Warden call systems- maintenance and Repair 90 90 90 
16 Provision of Community Alarm 125 230 230 
17 Environmental Improvements (including internal communal areas) 1,500 1,059 1,200 
18  Void Properties 4,500 3,616 3,550 
19 Asbestos 200 238 200 

Planned/Cyclical Maintenance Sub Total 12,600 11,435 11,410  
DAY TO DAY RESPONSE MAINTENANCE    

20 Blacksmith General incl. Renewing & Repairing Rotary 
Driers/Handrails  

280 147 160 

21 Car Park Repairs 10 14 15 
22 Chimney heads - Repointing and Rebuilding 5 0 5 
23 Condensation - Treatment of Walls  160 37 100 
24 Electrical Work - General Repairs 1,100 1,071 1,100 
25 Emergency Work - Out of Hours Service 620 571 620 
26 External/Internal Response Paintwork  350 222 250 
27 Fire Damage Repairs 200 267 300 
28 Garage Repairs 30 40 50 
29 Glazier work 200 129 150 
30 Joiner work - General Repairs 2,000 2,370 2,400 
31 Mason work and Water Penetration Repairs 620 324 350 
32 Minor Environmental Services 520 547 560 
33 Plasterwork – General 320 256 270 
34 Plumber work – General 1,100 1,126 1,150 
35 Slater work 800 720 800 
36 Snow Clearance 52 52 52 
37 TV Aerial 220 110 150 
38 Rubbish Removal 200 126 140 
39 Vandalism 200 88 100 
40 Water Services Charges 10 10 10 
     
 Day to Day Response Maintenance Total 8,997 8,227 8,732 

41 Chargeable Repairs 0 1,550 0 
42 Fees 1,667 1,880 1,900 
 TOTAL REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE BUDGET 23,264 23,092 22,042 

 
 

Page 330



Page 15 

 
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE BUDGET 2013/14 

 
General 
The projected spend figures have been taken from invoicing up to the end of 
August 2012 and the committed cost for jobs yet to be invoiced as at the 
middle of September.   
 
Projections are based on the average monthly spend, updates from surveyors 
and, in the case of the general trades, historical information has been taken 
from previous spend patterns.  
  
Projected spend in 2012/13 is currently anticipated to be lower than budget 
however this can be subject to change as this budget is demand led.  
 
Specific Items 
 
Planned and Cyclical Maintenance 
 
Item 2 Boiler Maintenance – Sheltered Housing 
Expenditure is above budget due to the increasing number of call-outs 
regarding faults involving radiators in flats, cottages and common areas.  
There has also been a significant increase in recent call-outs to replace 
calorifiers, boilers and water heaters. 
 
Item 17 Environmental Improvements 
This line includes crime prevention measures, bird proofing including the 
removal of nests, area fencing, security doors, sound insulation, security 
lighting and other estate management improvements identified by housing 
officers. 
 
Item 18 Void Properties (Relets) 
The projected decrease reflects actual expenditure to date. 
 
Day to Day Response Maintenance 
 
The items listed under day to day response are more susceptible to weather 
/climate/fluctuations in costs from year to year.  The projected and budget 
costs are in part based on historical data taken from previous years. 
  
Chargeable Repairs 
 
Chargeable repairs are those repairs which are completed on blocks which 
contain owners, the spend cannot be split between tenants and owners, the 
projected spend figure has been reduced by 25% to take account of this. 
 
Fees 
 
The fees have increased as a result of the inclusion of the recharge for the 
call centre who receive the repairs calls. Also uplifted by 1% for wage inflation. 
 

Page 331



Page 16 

 
 Management & Admin   Proposed  
  Budget  Budget  
  2012/13  2013/14 Notes 
      
  £000  £000  
 Staff Costs    1 
1 Salaries 6,409  6,003  
2 Overtime 69  70  
3 Superannuation 1,118  1,063  
4  N.I 511  481  
5 Other Staff Costs 253  245  
  8,360  7,862  
      
 Premises Costs    2 
6 Rates 107  104  
7 Rent 30  30  
8 Insurance 2  2  
9 Electricity/Gas 70  63  
10 Void Properties 10  10  
11 Rubbish Removal 21  21  
12 Cleaning 114  114  
13 Repairs and Maintenance 45  34  
14 Security 51  51  
  450                                                                         429  
      
 Administration Costs    2 
15 Printing 82  89  
16 Photocopying 19  19  
17 Stationery 30  31  
18 Subscriptions 16  22  
19 Postages 87  101  
20 Telephones 35  50  
21 Bank Charges(inc Cash in transit 76  77  
22 Advertising 49  44  
23 Course Expenses 93  100  
24 Legal Expenses 18  1  
25 Former Tenants Arrears 3  1  
26 Tenants Participation Expenses 0  20  
  508  555  
      
      
      
      
      
      

Page 332



Page 17 

 
    Proposed  
  Budget  Budget  
  2012/13  2013/14  
  £000  £000 Notes 
 Transport Costs    2 
27 Travel Costs 94  99  
  94  99  
      
 Supplies & Services    2 
28 Equipment Purchases 57  69  
29 Computer Software Support 18  15  
30 Sundry Outlays 110  153  
  185  237  
      
 Corporate/Directorate 

Recharge 
    

31 Corporate/Directorate Recharges 2,020  2,366 3 
  2,020  2,366  
      
      
 Expense Total 11,617  11,548  
      
 Income     
 Recharges:-     
34 Management & Admin – HRA (8,453)  (8,582)  
35 Tenants Participation – HRA (238)  (206)  
36 Other Housing (289)  (330)  
37 Homeless Persons (160)  (149)  
38 Housing Capital  (1,232)  (1,044)  
  (10,372)  (10,311)  
      
39 Hostel - Rents (1,245)  (1,237)  
      
 Income Total (11,617)  (11,548)  
      
 Net Expenditure 0  0  
      

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 333



Page 18 

 
MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION BUDGET 

 
Variances and Notes 

 
The 2013/14 budget for management and administration is based on the updated 
structure of Housing. 
 
1. Staff Costs 

Staff costs have been increased to reflect annual salary increments and 
increases in employers’ superannuation and national insurance costs. The 
element for the Corporate Director and Heads of Service for Housing and 
Environment previously included within this budget has been moved to the 
Corporate/Directorate Charges. This has resulted in a reduction in the staff 
costs budget. 

 
2. Premises Costs, Fees & Charges, Administration Costs, Transport 

Costs, Supplies and Services  
All the above budgets have been reviewed with certain costs being 
adjusted  based on current service provision.  
 

3. Corporate/Directorate Charges 
This budget is based on the current services being provided to Housing 
and may be subject to change.  It covers services such as Legal, Finance, 
Office Accommodation, IT, Corporate Director and Heads of Service (as 
per note 1) etc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 334



Page 19 

 
Miscellaneous Rents 

 
 
Heat with Rent – 48 week basis   

 Previous Proposed 
Gas Heated Properties £ £ 
Bedsits 8.25 9.05 
1 bed roomed flats 8.95 9.85 
2 bed roomed flats 9.25 10.25 
3 bed roomed flats 10.35 11.45 

   
Electrically Heated Properties   
Bedsits 9.25 10.05 
1 bed roomed flats 9.95 10.85 
2 bed roomed flats 10.65 11.65 
3 bed roomed flats 11.35 12.45 

   
CHP Properties   
All 1 Bed roomed Properties 8.90 9.80 
All 2 Bed roomed Properties 9.40 10.40 
All 3 Bed roomed Properties 10.10 11.20 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 335



Page 20 

 
 

 
  ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
     
     

Proposed Increase to be included in the HRA budget – Miscellaneous Rents  
  2013/2014    
  Current Proposed Increase Percentage Additional 
  Rental Rental Per Week Increase Income 

Note Miscellaneous Increases £ £ £ % £ 
1 Garages  9.10 10.00 0.90 9.89 89,078 
 Denburn and West North Street Spaces 4.40 4.55 0.15 3.41 4,514 
 Garages Sites 3.70 3.85 0.15 4.05 1,771 
 Car Ports 4.10 4.25 0.15 3.66 1,037 
2 Car Parking Spaces – Local Residents  3.40 3.40 0 0 0 
2 Parking Spaces Non Local Residents  35.00 35.00 0 0 0 
3 Window Cleaning  0.85 0.85 0 0 0 
3 Meals at Denmore & Kingswood  35.00 35.00 0 0 0 
 Mortgage Reference Fees 60.00 62.00 2.00 3.33 56 
4 Guest Rooms  10.00 & 15.00 10.00 &15.00 0 0 0 
5 Owners Administration fees  16.13 38.59 22.46 139.24 11,544 

      108,001 
       

 General Services      
 Housing – Homeless Account      
 Clinterty Caravan Site 79.00 82.00 3.00 3.80 5,040 

      5,040 
       
 Accommodation Units (Grant Funded)      
 Adult (first2) 54.00 56.00 2.00 3.70 27,500 
 Child 36.00 37.00 1.00 2.78 6,875 

      34,375 

       

 
 
The above proposed prices for 2013/14 have been increased broadly in line with 
the proposed rental increase subject to: 
 
Note 1 This increase was agreed as part of the revised rent structure on 28th August 2012 but has 
yet to be implemented. 
Note 2 These charges will be part of the overall review by EP&I on Parking. 
Note 3 These charges are being considered as part of the overall review of Housing for Varying 
Needs.  In 2011/12 there for a shortfall of £34K from the provision of meals  
Note 4 These charges were agreed at H& E Committee on 28 August 2012 therefore do not 
require review. 
Note 5 This is an annual charge per owner and the increase reflects the Property Factors Act 
which was introduced on 1st October 2012, revised fees have not been introduced to date. 
 

Page 336



Page 21 

 
Heat with Rent calculations for 2013/14 

 
It was agreed in the 2012/13 budget process to apply an increase of 50p per 
week for bedsits, 60p per week for 1 bed roomed dwellings, 70p per week 
for 2 bed roomed dwelling and 80p per week for 3 bed roomed dwellings 
across all the Council’s Heat with Rent properties. Similar increases will be 
required for the next three years to cover the costs.   
 
It was noted that a review of consumption and costs would be required each year 
especially as only the electric contract was fixed for four years.  There would also 
be revised costs for CHP and gas each year.  As a result the above increases 
would be subject to change for the next 3 years. 
  
The Bank of England anticipates that gas prices may rise by 15% & electricity by 
10% during this winter. Tenants with Heat with Rent have been protected from 
these market increases as the Council can buy these fuels at lower contract 
prices than would be available to individual domestic customers. These fuel price 
savings are then passed on to tenants who are on Heat with Rent.  
 
In addition as the charge is the same every week, tenants on Heat with Rent are 
not faced with the problem of having to pay large gas or electric bills during the 
colder winter months which have been extreme in the last two years.  
 
It is proposed to apply an increase of 80p per week for bedsits, 90p per week 
for 1 bed roomed dwellings, £1.00 per week for 2 bed roomed dwelling and 
£1.10 per week for 3 bed roomed dwellings across all the Council’s Heat 
with Rent properties in 2013/14.   
 
For 2013/14 revised rates will result in increases of between 8.6% and 10.8%. 
 
This would generate sufficient income to ensure the Housing Revenue Account 
would break even between the costs to the Council of providing electricity and 
gas through Combined Heat with Power charges for the heating in these 
dwellings over a four year period. 
  
 Estimated 4 year cost 

to Council 
£000 

Estimated 4 year 
income to cover costs 

£000 
Total 6,200 6,200 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 337



Page 22 

 
This would equate to the following weekly Heat with Rent charges for 2013/14: 
 

for electrically and oil heated properties:  
Bedsits 10.05 Increase of 8.6% 
1 bed roomed dwellings 10.85 Increase of 9.04% 
2 bed roomed dwellings 11.65 Increase of 9.38% 
3 bed roomed dwellings 12.45 Increase of 9.6% 

for gas heated properties:  
Bedsits 9.05 Increase of 9.6% 
1 bed roomed dwellings 9.85 Increase of 10.05% 
2 bed roomed dwellings 10.25 Increase of 10.8% 
3 bed roomed dwellings 11.45 Increase of 10.6% 

for CHP heated properties:  
1 bed roomed dwellings 9.80 Increase of 10.1% 
2 bed roomed dwellings 10.40 Increase of 10.6% 
3 bed roomed dwellings 11.20 Increase of 10.89% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 338



Page 23 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

Tenants Consultation 
 
Aberdeen City Council is committed to ensuring that tenants’ views are both 
sought and listened to.  As part of the review on the future of the Council housing 
stock, a tenant referendum was held to determine what the views of tenants 
were. 
 
The tenants voted overwhelmingly to retain the Council as their landlord in 2002, 
provided that continued improvements were made to the housing stock. In 2004, 
the Council adopted a Housing Business Plan approach.  This has allowed us to 
plan for the future.  This has meant that the rent increases over the last four years 
has allowed the Council to speed up the Capital Programme and build a 
foundation for future investment in Council homes.  
 
Furthermore, a questionnaire was sent out to tenants in July 2012 to ascertain 
views on the possible rent increase of inflation plus 1%.  The table below shows 
the results of the questionnaire.  
 
ANNUAL RENT CONSULTATION – Feedback   
 
Do you agree that the rent policy, inflation + 1%, should be continued to maintain 
investment in our housing stock and improve services? 
         
 Returns Percent 
Yes 266 75 
No 84 23 
Don’t know 6 2 
Total 356 100 
 
. 
 
 
 
Presentations and question and answer sessions  were also held with 
tenants to discuss the budgets. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 339



Page 24 

 
 Housing Revenue Account     
  Budget Budget Budget  
  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16  
  £000 £000 £000 Notes 
 Premises Costs     
1 Rates 3 3 3  
2 Rent 138 141 145 3 
3 Repairs and Maintenance 22,042 22,564 23,100 1 
4 Maintenance of Grounds 3,045 3,075 3,106 2 
5 Gas 674 691 708 3 
6 Electricity 2,420 2,481 2,543 3 
7 Cleaning Service 542 542 542 3 
8 Security Service 372 376 379 2 
9 Window Cleaning 19 19 19  
10 Refuse Collection 325 328 332 2 
11 Cleaning - Payments to Contractor 453 458 463 2 
12 Premises Insurance 57 58 60 3 
13 Other Property Costs - Council Tax 122 122 122  
  30,212 30,858 31,522  
 Administration Costs     
14 Down sizing Grants/Direct Debit Incentives 52 52 52  
15 Legal Expenses 201 201 201  
16 Office Tel / Rent 88 90 92 3 
17 Former Tenants Arrears 1,379 1,379 1,379  
18 Charges - Services Admin & Management 8,582 8,668 8,747  
19 General Consultancy 55 55 55 2 
20 Training for Front Line Staff 100 100 100  
21 Benefits Staff 95 96 97 2 
22 Charges - Tenants Participation 206 208 210 2 
23 Charges for Environmental Health 227 229 232 2 
  10,985 11,078 11,165  
 Supplies & Services     
24 Provision of Meals 168 169 171  
25 Equipment Purchase 55 55 55  
26 Television Licence 5 5 5  
27 Integrated Housing System 314 314 314  
  542 543 545  
  

 
 

    

      
  

 
 
 
 
 

    

Page 340



Page 25 

 
 
 
 

 Housing Revenue Account Budget Budget Budget  
  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16  
  £000 £000 £000 Notes 
 Agencies     
28 Mediation Service 98 99  99 2 
29 Energy Advice 81 82 83 2 
30 Citizens Advice Bureau 14 14 14  
31 Disabled Persons Housing Service 38 38 39 2 
  231 233 235  
 Transfer Payments     
32 Aberdeen Families Project 414 418 422 2 
33 Loss of Rent - Council Houses 722 747 773 4 
34 Loss of Rent - Garages, Parking etc 211 218 226 4 
35 Loss of Rent - Modernisation Works 50 53 54 4 
36 Supporting People Contribution 406 406 406  
37 CFCR 22,116 22,783 23,570  
  23,919 24,625 25,451  
 Capital Financing Costs     
38 Loans Fund Instalment 3,903 4,794 5,715  
39 Loans Fund Interest 9,559 10,263 10,829  
40 Heating Leasing Payment 131 131 131  
  13,593 15,188 16,675  
 Expense Total 79,482 82,525 85,593  
      
 Income     
41 Government Grant – General (234) (234) (234)  
42 Ground Rentals (27) (27) (27)  
43 Dwelling Houses Rent Income (76,589) (79,632) (82,700) 4 
44 Housing - Heat with Rent Income (1,459) (1,459) (1,459)  
45 Housing - Garages Rent Income (1,087) (1,087) (1,087)  
46 Housing - Parking Spaces Rent (187) (187) (187)  
47 Housing - Insurance Income (2) (2) (2)  
48 Housing - Other Service Charge (489) (489) (489)  
49 Legal Expenses (260) (260) (260)  
50 Revenue Balance Interest (148) (148) (148)  
 Income Total (80,482) (83,525) (86,593)  
      
 Net Expenditure (1,000) (1,000) (1,000)  
      
 Current Minimum Working Balances 3,974 4,126 4,280  
 Actual Working Balance 5,200 6,200 7,200  

 
 

Page 341



Page 26 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
THREE YEAR BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS 

 
 

1. Repairs and Maintenance  
The analysis of the three year budget is included within this booklet (page 27). 
The budget has been uplifted by 2.5% in 2014/15 and 2015/16.  The fee element 
has been uplifted by 1% to reflect the salary uplift. 
 
2. Maintenance of Grounds, Security Service, Refuse Collection, 

Cleaning – Payments to Contractors, General Consultancy,  Benefits 
staff, Charges – Tenants Participation, Charges for Environmental 
Health, Mediation Service, Energy Advice, Disabled Persons Housing 
Service, Aberdeen Families Project 

 
As these budgets are principally for staffing within the Council an uplift of 1% has 
been applied to reflect the anticipated public sector pay awards. 
 
3. Rent, Gas, Electricity, Cleaning Service, Premises Insurance, Office 

Telephone 
 
These budgets have been uplifted by the inflationary increase in the HRA 
Business Plan.  
 
4. Dwelling Houses Rent Income and Transfer Payments 
The budgeted income from dwelling house rent is calculated by using the 
anticipated income from the new rent structure uplifted by the potential rent 
increase of 4.1% for 2013/14 and then uplifting each year by 3.5% (RPIX of 2.5% 
used in the business plan plus 1%) less a projected reduction in stock of 50 each 
year. 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 342



Page 27 

 HOUSING REPAIRS DRAFT BUDGET   Base 
Budget 
2013/14 

£000 

 Base 
Budget 
2014/15 

£000 

 Base 
Budget 
2015/16 

£000 
PLANNED AND CYCLICAL MAINTENANCE    

1 External Joiner work Repairs including external paintwork etc.  1,500 1,538 1,576 
2 Boiler Maintenance - Extra Care Housing  300 308 315 
3 Controlled Entry Systems – Maintenance 370 379 389 
4 Fire Precautions - Servicing & Renewal of Equipment inc. Smoke 
Detectors & Dry Risers 

220 226 231 

5 Flat Roofs/Dormers – Renewal & Insulation 50 51 53 
6 Common Rooms - Replacement of Furniture 40 41 42 
7 Gas Servicing, Maintenance and Repair 2,885 2,957 3,031 
8 Laundry Equipment Replacement & Maintenance 60 62 63 
9 Legionella Testing incl. Repair/Renewal of Tanks  60 62 63 
10 Lift Maintenance 350 359 368 
11 Mutual Repairs outwith Housing Action Areas 25 26 26 
12 Pumps & Fans - Maintenance & Renewal 120 123 126 
13 Extra Care Housing - Replacement of Carpets, furnishings etc 40 41 42 
14 Standby Generators – Maintenance 120 123 126 
15 Warden call systems- Maintenance and Repair 90 92 95 
16 Provision of Community Alarm 230 236 242 
17 Environmental Improvements 1,200 1,230 1,261 
18 Relets 3,550 3,636 3,729 
19 Asbestos 200 205 210 

Planned/Cyclical Maintenance Sub Total 11,410 11,695 11,988  
DAY TO DAY RESPONSE MAINTENANCE     

20 Blacksmith General incl. Renewing & Repairing Rotary Driers/Handrails  160 164 168 
21 Car Park Repairs 15 15 16 
22 Chimney heads - Repointing and Rebuilding 5 5 5 
23 Condensation - Treatment of Walls  100 103 105 
24 Electrical Work - General Repairs 1,100 1,128 1,156 
25 Emergency Work - Out of Hours Service 620 636 651 
26 External/Internal Response Paintwork  250 256 263 
27 Fire Damage Repairs 300 308 315 
28 Garage Repairs 50 51 53 
29 Glazier work 150 154 158 
30 Joiner work – General Repairs 2,400 2,457 2,519 
31 Mason work and Water Penetration Repairs 350 359 368 
32 Minor Environmental Services 560 574 588 
33 Plasterwork – General 270 277 284 
34 Plumber work – General 1,150 1,179 1,208 
35 Slater work 800 820 841 
36 Snow Clearance 52 53 55 
37 TV Aerial 150 154 158 
38 Rubbish Removal 140 144 147 
39 Vandalism 100 103 105 
40 Water Services Charges 10 10 11 
 Day to Day Response Maintenance Total 8,732 8,950 9,174 
 Chargeable Repairs 0 0 0 
 HOUSING REPAIRS TOTAL 20,142 20,645 21,162 
 Fees 1,900 1,919 1,938 
 TOTAL REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE BUDGET 22,042 22,564 23,100 
     

Page 343



Page 28 

 
 

Management & Admin      
  Budget Budget Budget   
  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16   
       
  £000 £000 £000   
 Staff Costs      
1 Salaries 6,003 6,063 6,124   
2 Overtime 70 71 71   
3 Superannuation 1,063 1,074 1,084   
4 N.I 481 486 491   
5 Other Staff Costs 245 247 250   
  7,862 7,941 8,020   
       
 Premises Costs      
6 Rates 104 107 109   
7 Rent 30 31 31   
8 Insurance 2 2 2   
9 Electricity/Gas 63 65 66   
10 Void Properties 10 10 10   
11 Rubbish Removal 21 22 22   
12 Cleaning 114 116 119   
13 Repairs and Maintenance 34 35 36   
14 Security 51 52 53   
  429 440 448   
       
 Administration Costs      
15 Printing 89 91 93   
16 Photocopying 19 19 20   
17 Stationery 31 32 32   
18 Subscriptions 22 23 23   
19 Postages 101 103 106   
20 Telephones 50 51 52   
21 Bank Charges 77 79 81   
22 Advertising 44 45 46   
23 Course Expenses 100 103 105   
24 Legal Expenses 1 1 1   
25 Former Tenants Arrears 1 1 1   
26 Tenants Participation Costs 20 21 21   
  555 569 581   
       
       
       
  

 
 

     

  
 

     

Page 344



Page 29 

  Budget Budget Budget   
  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16   
  £000 £000 £000   
 Transport Costs      
27 Travel Costs 99 101 104   
  99 101 104   
       
 Supplies & Services      
28 Equipment Purchases 69 71 72   
29 Computer Software Support 15 15 15   
30 Sundry Outlays 153 156 160   
  237 242 247   
       
 Corporate/Directorate Recharge      
33 Corporate/Directorate Recharge 2,366 2,390 2,414   
  2,366 2,390 2,414   
       
       
 Expense Total 11,548 11,683 11,814   
       
       
 Income      

 Recharges:-      
34 Management & Admin – HRA (8,582) (8,669) (8,751)   
35 Tenants Participation – HRA (206) (208) (210)   
36 Recharges to Other Housing (330) (334) (336)   
37 Recharges to Homeless  (149) (150) (152)   
38 Housing Capital  (1,044) (1,054) (1,065)   
  (10,311) (10,415) (10,514)   
       
39 Hostel – Rents (1,237) (1,268) (1,300)   
       
 Income Total (11,548) (11,683) (11,814)   
       
       
 Net Expenditure 0 0 0   

       
    
    
    
    
 
 
 
 

   

    
    
    

Page 345



Page 30 

Draft Housing Capital Budget 2013/14 to 2015/16    
 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16  

 Project    
  £000 £000 £000 
     
 SCOTTISH HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS    
     

1 Compliant with the tolerable standard    
1.1 Major Repairs- 1,250 1,000 1,030 
 Roofs Renewal/Gutters/RWP/Roughcast    
 Undertaking large scale repairs to Roofs/Gutters/RWP/Roughcast    

  1,250 1,000 1,030 
     

2 Free from Serious Disrepair    
2.1 Primary Building Elements    
 Structural Repairs Multi Storey 6,175 2,875 2,725 
 Multi Storey blocks are surveyed on a 5-7 year cycle to identify any works required to the     
 structure of the buildings in order to keep the buildings safe and prolong their life.    
 Structural Repairs General Housing 1,170 1,450 950 
 Structural works carried out in order to keep the building stable and structurally sound.    
     
 Secondary Building Elements    

2.2 Upgrading Of Flat Roofs General 350 350 350 
 Replacement of existing roof covering and upgrading of insulation to meet current building    
 regulations.    

2.3 Upgrade Flat Roofs Multi Storey 1,000 1,000 1,000 
 Full replacement of the flat roofs and also checking the replacement of roof ventilation as 
required 

   
2.5 Mono Pitched Types 530 500 500 
 Replacement of the external render of the building, replacement of gutters and 
downpipes,  

   
 environmental works    

2.6 Window Replace General 600 500 500 
 A rolling programme of double glazing where previously single glazing, or replacing 
existing   

   
 double glazing to meet current standards.  This is based on a cyclical programme.    

2.7 Window Replace Multi Storey 0 0 0 
 A rolling programme to replace existing double glazing to meet current standards.  This is 
based on a cyclical programme. 

   
2.8 Balcony Storm Doors 60 60 60 
 Replacement of existing doors with more secure, solid doors    

2.9 Balcony Glass Renewal - Multi Storey 1,165 90 90 
 Replacement of existing balcony glazing on a cyclical basis    
  11,050 6,825 6,175 
     
     
     
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 346



Page 31 

  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 
  £000 £000 £000 

3 Energy Efficient    
     
 Effective insulation    

3.1 Energy Efficiency – General Houses 220 0 220 
3.2 General Houses Loft Insulation    

 Installation of loft insulation where there is none previously or the topping up of existing 50 50 50 
 insulation to comply with current building regulations.    
 Efficient Heating    

3.3 Heating Systems Replacement 4,950 4,100 3,500 
 Replacement of boiler/whole system as deemed necessary.    

3.4 Medical Need Heating 50 50 50 
 Installation of gas/electric heating depending on the medical assessment.    
 This can be installing a completely new system, modifying or extending an existing 
system. 

   
3.5 Energy Efficiency Multi Blocks 1,500 1,500 1,500 
 Contribution to Aberdeen Heat & Power for the creation of Combined Heat & Power 
Plants 

   
3.6 Energy Efficiency Sheltered 250 350 250 
 Introduction of energy efficiency measures in extra care housing such as new or 
upgraded heating systems. 

   
 Additional Energy Efficiency measures    

3.7 S.C.A.R.F 35 35 35 
 Payment to SCARF for work carried out by them under the Energy Efficiency programme     
 to individual council properties.  The work carried out includes the installation of loft 
insulation, draught proofing and compact fluorescent bulbs.  Also providing tenants with 
energy efficiency advice and information.  

   

3.8 Solid Wall Insulation 250 150 150 
3.9 Vestibule Doors 0 0 15 

  7,305 6,235 5,770 
     

4 Modern Facilities & Services    
     
 Bathroom and Kitchen Condition      

4.1 Modernisation Programme 13,894 13,111 12,979 
 Replacement of bathrooms and kitchens.    
  13,894 13,111 12,979 
     

5 Healthy,Safe & Secure    
     
 Healthy    

5.1 Condensation Measures 50 50 50 
 Installation of heating systems and ventilation measures to combat condensation.    
 
 
Safe 
 

   
5.3 Rewiring  1,100 1,100 1,100 
 Replacement of cabling, fittings and distribution boards as necessary. This work is carried     
 out in every property on a cyclical basis    

5.4 Lift Replacement Multi Storey/Major Blocks 1,000 1,000 1,000 
 Replacement of lifts where they are beyond economical repair. This can be full 
replacement or replacement of specific parts of the lift. 

   

5.5 Smoke Detectors – Common Areas Major Blocks 150 50 50 
     
     
  
 
 
 
 

   

Page 347



Page 32 

     
  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 
  £000 £000 £000 
 Healthy,Safe & Secure (continued)    

5.6 Services 50 50 50 
 Cyclical maintenance/replacement of the following services    
 Ventilation Systems, water tanks/pipe work, refuse chutes/chamber, Dry risers systems, 
Standby Generators 

   
5.7 Entrance Halls/Concierge 50 50 50 
 Provision of security service      

5.8 Laundry Facilities 50 50 50 
 Replacement of laundry equipment    

5.9 Upgrading of Lighting  36 10 10 
 Installation of lighting controlled by photo cell i.e. switches on and off automatically 
depending on the level of natural light & installation of lighting in areas where there was 
none before 

   

 Secure    
5.11 Door Entry Systems 40 40 40 

  Installation of door entry and replacement of existing doors where required    
5.12 Replace Door Entry Systems - Major Blocks 200 200 200 

  Installation of door entry and replacement of existing doors where required    
5.13 Other Initiatives 750 750 750 

 Upgrading of stairs and installation of security doors and door entry systems    
  3,476 3,350 3,350 
     
 NON SCOTTISH HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS    
     

6 Community Plan & Single Outcome Agreement    
6.1 Housing For Varying Needs 300 300 300 
 New build including extra care housing.    

6.2 Community Initiatives 300 400 400 
 Refurbishment of properties or environmental improvements in designated areas.    

6.5 Regeneration/Acquisition of Land or Houses 300 500 1000 
 Early Action projects linked to Regeneration and Master planning Briefs for Regeneration    
 & provision of consultation events.  Acquisition of Land/Houses for the new build 
programme. 

   
6.6 CCTV – Concierge 150 150 150 
 Provision of CCTV for the new Concierge service    

6.7 Adaptations Disabled 1,250 1,250 1,250 
 Installation of level access showers, ramps, stair lifts and kitchen adaptations    

6.8 Special Initiatives/Barrier Free Housing 650 250 150 
 Provision of specialist facilities or housing for tenants with particular needs i.e. extensions    

6.9 Housing For Varying Needs- Amenity/Adaptations 200 150 100 
 Conversion of properties to Amenity Level standard    

6.10 Housing For Varying Needs- Extra Care/Adaptations 150 100 100 
 Adaptations required to ensure existing sheltered housing stock meets current standards    

6.11 Roads 100 100 100 
 Upgrade of Roads to an adoptable standard    

6.12 Paths 100 100 100 
 Formation or upgrading of paths     

6.13 Garages 0 0 0 
 Upgrade of Garages    

6.14 New Affordable Housing 600 400 0 
  4,100 3,700 3,650 
     
     
     
     

Page 348



Page 33 

  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 
  £000 £000 £000 
     

7 Service Development    
     

7.1 Conditions Surveys 50 50 50 
 Surveying of Council houses to identify failures against Scottish Housing Quality Standard    

7.2 Property Database 100 100 100 
 Various items of IT equipment including hardware and software    

7.3 Integrated Housing System 100 100 100 
 Various purchase of PC's and software packages    
     
     
  250 250 250 
     
9 Service Expenditure    
 Corporate Fees 5,605 4,859 4,745 
  5,605 4,859 4,745 
     
 Gross Programme 46,930 39,330 37,949 
     
 Less Slippage (5,397) (4,525) (4,366) 
     
 Net Programme  41,533 34,805 33,583 
     
     
 Financed by :-    
 Borrowing  17,917 12,022 10,013 

 Scottish Government Grant Funding – New Build 0 0 0 
                 SEE Grant Funding 

CFCR (Capital Financed From Current Revenue) 
1,500 
22,116 

 
0 

22,783 
0 

23,570 
     
 Total Funding 41,533 34,805 33,583 
     
     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 349



Page 350

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE    Council      
 
DATE      19 December 2012    
 
LEAD OFFICER   Chief Executive     
 
TITLE OF REPORT   Strategic Police Priorities   
 
REPORT NUMBER       OCE/12/032 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

The report brings before the Council the draft strategic police priorities 
prepared by the Scottish Ministers for the Scottish Police Authority.  
The Council is invited to comment on the draft, with any response to be 
submitted to the Scottish Government by Thursday 10 January 2013.   
 
The report provides a suggested response from the City Council 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 

  
That the Council considers the suggested response and, subject to any 
alteration agreed at the meeting, approves its submission to the 
Scottish Government. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
There are no financial implications for the Council to this report. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

The discharging of the Council’s responsibilities in relation to the Police 
and Fire Reform (Scotland) Act 2012 is of direct relevance to the 
delivery of the Council’s responsibilities in relation to Community 
Planning, the Single Outcome Agreement and the Business Plan. 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
The Police and Fire Reform (Scotland) Act 2012 (the Act) establishes 
the Scottish Police Authority and the Police Service of Scotland.  The 
Authority maintains the Service and holds the Chief Constable to 
account for the policing of Scotland. 
 
Under the terms of the Act (paragraph 33), the Scottish Ministers may 
determine strategic priorities for the Authority which may relate to the 
policing of Scotland or the carrying out of the Authority’s functions.  

Agenda Item 8(g)

Page 351



 

Before determining strategic police priorities, the Scottish Ministers 
must consult (among others) such persons as appear to them to be 
representative of local authorities. 
 
The strategic police priorities will inform the strategic police plan to be 
prepared by the Scottish Police Authority and will feed into the 
development of the Chief Constable’s annual plan and local plans.   
 
At its meeting on 29 November the Corporate Policy and Performance 
Committee agreed in principle the format and content of the draft local 
police plan for Aberdeen City.  The final local police plan will be brought 
back to that Committee for approval in early 2013. 
 
Attached as Appendix 1 is a copy of the draft strategic police priorities 
along with a diagram outlining the relationship between priorities, 
planning and reporting. 
 
In seeking feedback on the draft priorities, the Cabinet Secretary for 
Justice states that “taken together, the strategic police priorities and 
plans will form the basis against which progress on achieving positive 
outcomes for Scotland’s communities is monitored.  National and local 
priorities are not mutually exclusive – so a focus on preventing violent 
crime as a national priority may translate into a focus on preventing 
knife crime or alcohol crime locally.  National priorities often emerge 
from issues identified locally.” 
 
The comments of the Council are invited on the strategic police 
priorities and in particular views are sought on the following questions: 
 

• Do the strategic police priorities adequately reflect the Scottish 
Government’s purpose and outcomes and the new policing 
principles? 

 
• Do the strategic police priorities cover the important issues as a 

stakeholder you would expect to see? 
 

• The purpose of the strategic police priorities is to provide 
strategic direction over the medium to long term.  Are these 
priorities pitched at the right level?  In terms of the three year 
strategic plan produced by the Scottish Police Authority, what 
should the plan contain?  Are there more specific deliverables 
flowing from the strategic priorities which you would expect to 
be delivered by the Scottish Police Authority and the Police 
Service of Scotland? 

 
It is suggested that the Council responds as follows:- 
 

Aberdeen City Council welcomes the opportunity to provide 
feedback on the draft strategic police priorities set by the 
Scottish Ministers for the Scottish Police Authority.   

Page 352



 

In particular, the City Council supports the emphasis placed on 
the requirement for a partnership approach to the policing of 
Scotland and the empowerment of local police commanders to 
work closely with partners at a local level.   

 
In Aberdeen, we have established a strong working relationship 
with the local police commander for the Aberdeen City Division 
of the Police Service of Scotland and expect to agree with him 
the local police plan for Aberdeen for 2013/2014 in early 2013.  
Clearly that plan will be influenced by the strategic police 
priorities and the policing principles set out in the Act, but in 
addressing locally the Scottish Government’s purpose and 
outcomes the focus for the City Council, the local police 
commander and other community planning partners will be on 
together delivering the Single Outcome Agreement for the 
benefit of people living and working in Aberdeen. 

 
Given that the recently circulated guidance relating to the new 
Single Outcome Agreements has as one of its policy priorities 
safer and stronger communities, and reducing offending, and 
given the stress placed in that guidance on a clear 
understanding of place, prevention and community engagement 
the City Council looks forward to working closely with the local 
police commander and his colleagues in devising, delivering and 
monitoring local solutions to local challenges and in jointly 
meeting the needs of the people we serve.  It is gratifying that 
the draft strategic police priorities envisage the local commander 
being able to play a full and active role in such local partnership 
initiatives. 

 
It is understood that as national organisations, the Scottish 
Police Authority and the Police Service of Scotland will require to 
monitor and report on a number of national deliverables, but 
again the focus for Aberdeen City Council will be on the local 
outcomes that are embedded both within the local police plan 
and the Single Outcome Agreement having emerged through 
assessments of need conducted by community planning 
partners across the City. 

 
The City Council looks forward to receiving for comment the 
Scottish Police Authority’s draft strategic police plan.  It is hoped 
that the plan will reinforce both the centrality of a partnership 
approach to the work of the Police Service of Scotland and the 
empowerment of local police commanders to engage proactively 
with the local authority and others to address the issues that 
matter in local communities. 

 
It is recommended that the Council considers the suggested response 
above and, subject to any alteration agreed at the meeting, approves 
its submission to the Scottish Government by 10 January 2013. 

Page 353



 

6. IMPACT 
 

As noted above, the subject matter of this report is relevant to the 
Council’s work in relation to Community Planning, the Single Outcome 
Agreement and the delivery of the Business Plan. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None. 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Ciaran Monaghan 
Head of Service, Office of Chief Executive 
cmonaghan@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522293 

 

Page 354



 

Appendix 1 
 
 
DRAFT STRATEGIC POLICE PRIORITIES 
 
The Scottish Police Authority (SPA) and the Police Service of Scotland will 
deliver the policing principles and realise the statutory principles of policing as 
set out in the Police & Fire Reform (Scotland) Act 2012. The SPA is the 
national body responsible for the governance of policing in Scotland.  It will 
allocate resources to the Chief Constable and hold him to account for the 
policing of Scotland and the delivery of statutory functions. 
 
The priorities as drafted are intended to clearly incorporate the contribution 
which policing can make to achieving the Scottish Government’s national 
outcomes and the priorities within the Strategy for Justice.  Consistent with 
our wider ambitions for public service reform, these are strongly underpinned 
by an ethos of prevention, rooted within a partnership approach. 
 
They are intended to set clear national priorities but also to empower local 
commanders to work with partners in the public, private and third sectors, and 
local communities within the community planning framework to deliver greater 
integration of services at a local level driven by better partnership, 
collaboration and effective local delivery. 
 
We expect that further specific and measurable deliverables relating to 
Scottish Government’s national outcomes will be included in the Strategic 
Plan which the SPA will draft on the basis of the strategic priorities. 
 
The draft strategic priorities are:  
 
1.  Make communities safer and reduce crime by demonstrating 
pioneering approaches to partnership and collaboration at a national 
and local level. 
 
Actively support a decisive shift towards prevention by promoting evidence 
based preventative practice and effective partnerships which make the most 
of collective resource, knowledge and expertise, especially around reducing 
violence, substance misuse, promoting better outcomes for young people who 
offend and protecting children, young people and vulnerable adults. 
 
Supports: 

 
National outcome 5: Our children have the best start in life and are ready to 

succeed 
National outcome 8: We have improved the life chances for children, young 

people and families at risk 
National outcome 9: We live our lives safe from crime, disorder and danger 
 
 
 

Page 355



 

2.  Strengthen Scotland’s reputation as a successful and safe country by 
demonstrating excellence in effectively planning for and responding to 
major national events and threats. 
 
Work across national, international and organisational boundaries to ensure a 
safe and secure Commonwealth Games; contribute effectively to multi agency 
arrangements to deal with emergencies; and minimise threats to our 
communities more generally. 
 
Supports: 
 
National outcome 9: We live our lives safe from crime, disorder and danger 
National outcome 11:  We have strong, resilient and supportive communities 

where people take responsibility for their own actions 
and how they affect others 

 
3.  Provide an efficient, effective service and deliver the benefits of 
reform. 
 
Deliver the three benefits of reform* and work with others to ensure that the 
criminal justice system is fair and accessible, cost effective and efficient. 
 
Supports: 
 
National outcome 16: Our public services are high quality, continually 

improving, efficient and responsive to people’s needs 
 
(*note – the three benefits of reform are i) protect and improve local services despite financial 
cuts, by stopping duplication of support services eight times over and not cutting frontline 
services; ii) create more equal access to specialist support and national capacity where and 
when they are needed; iii) strengthen the connection between services and communities, by 
creating a new formal relationship with each of the 32 local authorities, involving many more 
local councillors and better integrating with community planning partnerships.) 
 
4.  Make communities stronger by increasing public confidence and 
reducing fear of crime, making the new Police Service of Scotland an 
exemplar of visible and responsive policing. 
 
Ensure that victims, witnesses and communities experience positive 
engagement with the police by providing inspirational leadership and 
embedding a culture, identity and values which provide a highly skilled and 
motivated workforce to deliver improved local services with the consent and 
involvement of communities. 
 
Supports: 
 
National outcome 7: We have tackled the significant inequalities in Scottish 

society. 
National outcome 9: We live our lives safe from crime, disorder and danger 
National outcome 11: We have strong, resilient and supportive communities 

where people take responsibility for their own actions 
and how they affect others 

Page 356



 

National outcome 13:  We take pride in a strong, fair and inclusive national 
identity 

National outcome 16: Our public services are high quality, continually 
improving, efficient and responsive to local people’s 
needs 

Page 357



Page 358

This page is intentionally left blank



F
R

A
M

E
W

O
R

K
L

O
C

A
L

N
A

T
IO

N
A

L

P
O

L
IC

E
:

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
,P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

A
N

D
S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

S
tr

at
eg

ic
P

ri
o

ri
ti

es
(S

G
)

A
n

n
u

al
P

la
n

(P
S

o
S

)

S
tr

at
eg

ic
P

la
n

(S
P

A
)

L
o

ca
lp

la
n

s
-

ap
p

ro
ve

d
b

y
lo

ca
la

u
th

o
ri

ty
(L

o
ca

lC
o

m
m

an
d

er
)

S
co

tt
is

h
S

tr
at

eg
ic

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

(P
S

o
S

)

B
en

ef
it

s
re

al
is

at
io

n
p

la
n

(S
P

A
)

P
ri

o
ri

ti
es

D
el

iv
er

ab
le

s

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

R
ep

o
rt

in
g

S
er

vi
ce

le
ve

l
d

at
a

co
lle

ct
io

n
O

ff
ic

ia
l

st
at

is
ti

cs
S

co
tt

is
h

P
o

lic
in

g
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
F

ra
m

ew
o

rk

In
fo

re
q

u
ir

ed
b

y
L

o
ca

l
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
(L

o
ca

lC
o

m
m

an
d

er
)

R
ep

o
rt

s
to

b
e

d
et

er
m

in
ed

lo
ca

lly
(L

o
ca

lC
o

m
m

an
d

er
)

S
P

A
A

n
n

u
al

R
ep

o
rt

Q
u

ar
te

rl
y

re
p

o
rt

s

S
in

g
le

O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
g

re
em

en
ts

(C
P

P
)

S
ta

ke
h

o
ld

er
in

p
u

t

S
ta

ke
h

o
ld

er
in

p
u

t

C
h

ie
f

C
o

n
st

ab
le

re
p

o
rt

to
S

P
A

S
co

tt
is

h
C

ri
m

e
&

Ju
st

ic
e

S
u

rv
ey

Page 359



Page 360

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10(a)

Page 361

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 364

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 365

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 376

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 377

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 378

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 379

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 384

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 385

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 6, 9 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 386

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4(b) Minute of Meeting of Urgent Business Committee of 29 November 2012 - for approval
	6(a) Business Statement
	6(b) Motions List
	7(a) Third Don Crossing - Referred by Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure Committee of 6 December 2012
	8(a) Appointments - Report by Chief Executive
	8(b) Treasury Management - Mid Year Review - Report by Director of Corporate Governance - Referred by Finance and Resources Committee of 4 October 2012
	8(c) Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan - Referred by Strategic Development Planning Authority of 9 November 2012
	Strategic Development Plan report
	SDP - Appendix 1
	SDP - Appendix 1B
	SDP - Appendix 2
	SDP - Appendix 3
	SDP - Appendix 4
	SDP - Appendix 5
	SDP - Appendix 6

	8(d) Annual Audited Accounts 2011/12 - Referred by Audit and Risk Committee of 27 November 2012
	8(e) Appointment of Members to the Older People's Advisory Group - Referred by Corporate Policy and Performance Committee of 29 November 2012
	Membership of Older Peoples Advisory Group

	8(f) Draft Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Housing Capital Budget 2013/14 to 2015/16 - Joint report by Director of Corporate Governance and Director of Housing and Environment - Referred simpliciter by Finance and Resources Committee of 6 December 2012
	Draft HRA - Appendix

	8(g) Strategic Police Priorities - Report by Chief Executive
	Strategic Police Priorities - appendix

	10(a) Pinewood and Hazledene Development Sites - Report by Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure - Referred by Finance and Resources Committee of 6 December 2012
	Pinewood and Hazledene report
	Pinewood - Appendix A
	Pinewood - Appendix B
	Pinewood - Appendix C


